
 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

1055 Ventura Ave. 
Oak View, CA 93022 

Board Room 
June 22, 2016 

3:00 P.M. 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the June 8, 2016 Board Meeting. 
b. Minutes of the June 6, 2016 Special Meeting. 
c. Recommend approval of Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

Coverage renewal with CSAC in the amount of $ 114,881 for fiscal 
year 2016/2017. 

d. Recommend approval of the Ernst & Young Statement of Work for 
Fiscal Year 2016/2017 for auditing services related to the State 
Water Project. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
 



 2 

6. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 6/7/16 – 
6/14/16. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving report 
   
7. Urban Water Management Plan/Agriculture Water Management Plan 
 

a. Public Hearing 
 

b. Resolution adopting the 2015 Urban Water Management 
Plan/Agriculture Water Management Plan 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
8. Public Hearing for the adoption of the 2016-2017 Budget. 
 

a. Public Hearing  
 
b. Resolution adopting the general fund budget, debt service fund and 

Mira Monte water assessment district fund budgets for the Fiscal 
Year ending June 30, 2017. 

  
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
9. Resolution fixing a tax rate for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 and authorizing the 
 President of the Board to execute a certificate requesting the Ventura 
 County Board of Supervisors to levy such a tax. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
10. Resolution to adopt, under Proposition 4, the 2016/2017 Establishment of 

Appropriations Limit of $12,669,524. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
11. Resolution authorizing the levy of a special tax for fiscal year 2016-2017 

for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai). 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution  
 
12. Discussion regarding Casitas representation in a panel discussion at the 

Ojai Film Festival on July 16, 2016. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to Staff 
 
13. Recommend approval of a letter of support for the Ventura County 

Watershed Protection District’s Prop 1 Watershed Grant Program – 
Matilija Dam Removal 65% Design Planning Project. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 



 3 

  
14. Information Items: 
 

a. Executive Committee Minutes. 
b. Finance Committee Minutes. 
c. Investment Report. 
 

15. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  113.  (Govt. Code 
Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1 

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

June 8, 2016 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held June 8, 2016 at the Casitas 
Municipal Water District located at 1055 Ventura Ave. in Oak View, California. 
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. Directors Kaiser, Baggerly, Hicks 
and Bergen were present.  Director Word arrived at 3:04 p.m. Also present were 
Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and 
Attorney, John Mathews.  There were three staff members and no members of 
the public in attendance.  President Kaiser led the group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

None 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board of a partial system isolation and the 
need for major users to cut back on their use on Friday.  Notices have been sent 
to the appropriate customers.  Conservation actions in the near future include a 
traffic message board to be put out front providing notification of the drought.  
There will be multiple media announcements on KEYT and local radio stations 
regarding conservation and drought info.  Ron is putting together a monthly 
report on water conservation efforts and that will be included in the Board 
Meeting packets on a monthly basis maybe to begin at the end of July. 
 

The Upper Ventura River GSA formation committee is meeting Tuesday 
from 6:00 – 8:00 p.m. to get public input on the Joint Powers Authority.  Mr. 
Wickstrum then informed the board of the various safety trainings that have been 
conducted in the past few weeks including confined space, trench excavations 
etc. Greg Romey has been making good progress with our safety programs and 
training and is a great addition to our team.  President Kaiser asked that the 
board’s appreciation be conveyed to Greg. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum added that he will be commenting on the City of Ventura’s 
Urban Water Management Plan to provide some clarity.  He then mentioned a 
June 24th meeting with Rincon Road and Water who are raising the question 
again about what it would take to transfer their system to us.  The last time this 
was discussed was about 15 years ago.   
 

May 25th there was a presentation to the Ojai Green Coalition on the 
status of water supply, demand and drought with Tom Ash.  Tom gave a global 
aspect and I tried to show a more local aspect.  Director Bergen added it was 
good educational information. 
 

President Kaiser asked about the status on moving ahead with the 
Assistant General Manager position.  Mr. Wickstrum informed him that a meeting 
had been held the previous week and there is a schedule for moving forward. 
 



 2 

3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Hicks reported that he watched the City Council meeting on 
Monday.  They are pursuing a route where they will pay over $20,000 an acre 
foot for the water.  Mr. Wickstrum explained that our capital facilities charge since 
2003 has been $18,000 an acre foot.  Director Hicks added they can hook up to 
state water and suggested speaking with Shauna.  They can buy state water. I 
have been meeting with Ed McCombs, Don Mills, Ron Calkins and a retired 
Assistant Manager from Met.  Ventura can hook up and pay us back the water 
they owe us.  Calleguas could store water in our system.  To do reclaimed water 
is crazy.  I hope we can encourage them to take another look at this.  Mr. 
Wickstrum explained the he would be meeting with Shauna Epstein later this 
month and mentioned the study that was done in 1990 that laid out all the 
options.  None of those projects are inexpensive. Director Hicks added that not 
having the requirement to be a member of Met now makes a difference.  Mr. 
Wickstrum advised Director Hicks that it was mixing apples and oranges – the 
rate of water versus the capital facilities charge to develop a fund to pay for the 
capital costs to build facilities.  Director Kaiser added that the Executive 
Committee will discuss holding a workshop. 

  
Director Baggerly mentioned that Judge O’Neil had been assigned to our 

case.  
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

Director Baggerly reported that he spoke at the Tom Ash mtg.  Director 
Bergen added that both Russ and Steve did a good job. 
 

Director Bergen reported on the Upper Ventura River GSA phone 
conference to work out issues on the JPA.  There is a long way to go.   
 

Director Bergen reported on a meeting with Tom Ash, Director Kaiser and 
Mr. Wickstrum and explained that Mr. Ash has a system for figuring out 
allocations but he uses different information to get parcel size.  They do monthly 
allocations based on real time ET data.  He implied that the state may adopt this.  
Director Bergen added that what impressed me is that the basic units of what he 
is looking at is what we have.  With our system you know what you have.  Mr. 
Ash is not a fan of Raftellis.  He likes to up the fixed costs.  Most of the costs are 
all the pipes and pumps.  Guidance for 25% of fixed cost are not set in stone.  
President Kaiser added a comment on executive Order B37 16.  It was a good 
meeting and we will need to discuss how we can incorporate it in the future. 
 

Director Baggerly reported that the DWR requested clarifications on the 
basin modification request. 
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the May 25, 2016 Board Meeting. 



 3 

b. Resolution requesting that the general district election to be held 
November 8, 2016 be consolidated with other elections called to be 
held on the same day in the same territory.   ADOPTED 
 

 The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by 
Director Word and adopted by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 

  NOES: Directors: None 
 ABSENT: Directors: None 

   
  Resolution is numbered 16-13 
 
6. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 5/24/16 – 

6/01/16.        APPROVED 
 
 The report was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director Baggerly 
and approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
   
7. Resolution to rescind Resolution No. 92-9 and adopt procedures for new 

and expanded water allocations.     ADOPTED 
 
 The resolution was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks 
and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
  
  Resolution is numbered 16-14 
    
8. Information Items: 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes 
b. Water Resources Committee Minutes 
c. Staff report on the Executive Order B-37-16 Listening Session on 

June 3, 2016.    
d. Water Consumption Report. 
e. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
f. Investment Report. 
 
Director Bergen requested that on Finance Committee item number 9 the 

language be changed to reflect that they did not approve the request from the 
green coalition. Director Word asked about status on water rates.  Mr. Wickstrum 
explained that after July 1st we will put out a RFQ for water rates studies. 



 4 

The Information items were offered for approval by Director Bergen, 
seconded by Direction Baggerly and passed by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 

  NOES: Directors: None 
 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

9. Adjournment  
 
 President Kaiser adjourned the meeting at 3:47 p.m.  
 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      James W. Word, Secretary 



 1 

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Special Meeting Held 

June 6, 2016 
 

A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held June 6, 2016 at the Oak 
View Community Center, located at 18 Valley Rd. in Oak View, California. The 
special joint meeting was held along with the Ojai Valley Sanitary District and 
Meiners Oaks Water District Board of Directors for the purpose of conducting 
required Ethics training.  The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. Directors 
Kaiser, Baggerly, Hicks and Bergen were present.  Also present were Steve 
Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, 
Andreas Booher.  There were three additional staff members and no members of 
the public in attendance.   

 
1. Public Comments 
 
 None 
 
2. AB 1234 Compliance Training – Ethics Training 
 
 Jennifer Rosner, attorney with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore in Los Angeles, 

conducted an Ethics Training course for Directors and designated staff. 
 
3. Adjournment  
 
 The meeting was adjourned at 12:25 p.m. 
 
   
       ________________________ 
       James W. Word, Secretary 
    



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  June 17, 2016 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 
Re:  Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal and Proposals for Coverage 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board approval the Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal with CSAC 
EIA in the amount of $114,881 for fiscal year 2016/2017.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The District went out to bid for coverage on the excess and primary markets.  The excess markets all 
require a substantial increase to the self-insured retention (SIR) from $750,000 to $1,000,000.  Our 
current SIR is $125,000 and thus the potential excess carriers declined to provide a quote.  We 
reviewed an option of increasing our SIR with our current provider to either $250,000 or $500,000 and 
while there is a savings in the premium it did not seem to be enough to warrant the additional risk 
involved to the district with a higher SIR.  The district received one quote for primary coverage with an 
annual premium of $190,947.62. 
 
The renewal premium with CSAC EIA decreased $3,243 from our premium last year. 
  
The current coverage expires at the end of the month.  The Board will need to decide on the coverage 
at the June 22nd meeting as the coverage will need to be put in force and premiums paid by July 1, 
2016. 
 



 
CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (CSAC EIA) 

EXCESS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
2016/2017 PROPOSAL 

 

NOTE:  THIS PROPOSAL IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE POLICY FORM IN 
ANY WAY.  PLEASE REFER TO THE POLICY FORM FOR COMPLETE COVERAGE AND EXCLUSION INFORMATION 

 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.  1301 Dove Street  Suite 200  Newport Beach, CA 92660 

PHONE (949) 756-0271  www.alliant.com  License No. 0C36861 
Version: 6/7/2016  Page 1 of 4 

COVERED PARTY Casitas Municipal Water District 

COVERAGE TERM July 1, 2016 to July 1, 2017 

COMPANIES AFFORDING 
COVERAGE 

CSAC Excess Insurance Authority with reinsurance and excess insurance 
provided by (see attached) 

COVERAGE PROVIDED Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability  

LIMITS 
(See attached) 

$ 5,000,000 Employers’ Liability 
 Statutory Workers’ Compensation 
 
Limits are eroded by allocated claims expense 

RETENTION $ 125,000 each occurrence 
 
Self-insured retention is eroded by allocated claims expense 

MAJOR EXCLUSIONS 
(Including but not limited to) 

 Punitive or exemplary damages, fines or penalties 
 Any payments in excess of the benefits regularly provided by the 

Workers’ Compensation law 
 Labor Code 4850 benefits  
 Labor Code 4856 benefits 
 Education Section Codes 44984 and 45192 

PREMIUM AUDIT Premiums are auditable and adjustable at June 30, 2017 based on actual 
payroll 

CONDITIONS  Premium includes a $1,000 annual loss prevention subsidy 
 Premium includes a $2,000 actuarial subsidy 
 Premium includes cost for claim audit requirement (audit to include 

access to all files handled by TPA) 

ESTIMATED ANNUAL 
PAYROLL 

$ 5,598,416 

ESTIMATED PREMIUM 
(Annualized) 

$  96,767 Deposit Premium 
 7,664 CSAC EIA Administration Fee 
  498 CSAC EIA Public Entity Fee 
 9,952 Alliant Broker Fee 
$ 114,881 Total Estimated Deposit Premium 
 



 
CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (CSAC EIA) 

EXCESS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
2016/2017 PROPOSAL 

 

NOTE:  THIS PROPOSAL IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE POLICY FORM IN 
ANY WAY.  PLEASE REFER TO THE POLICY FORM FOR COMPLETE COVERAGE AND EXCLUSION INFORMATION 

 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.  1301 Dove Street  Suite 200  Newport Beach, CA 92660 

PHONE (949) 756-0271  www.alliant.com  License No. 0C36861 
Version: 6/7/2016  Page 2 of 4 

BROKER ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 
Gordon DesCombes, Executive Vice President 
Nazie Arshi, Senior Vice President 
Tom E. Corbett, Senior Vice President 
Lilian Vanvieldt, Senior Vice President 
Christine Tobin, First Vice President 
Rhiannon Cabral, CSAC EIA Program Specialist-Lead 



 
CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (CSAC EIA) 

EXCESS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
2016/2017 PROPOSAL 

 

NOTE:  THIS PROPOSAL IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE POLICY FORM IN 
ANY WAY.  PLEASE REFER TO THE POLICY FORM FOR COMPLETE COVERAGE AND EXCLUSION INFORMATION 

 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.  1301 Dove Street  Suite 200  Newport Beach, CA 92660 

PHONE (949) 756-0271  www.alliant.com  License No. 0C36861 
Version: 6/7/2016  Page 3 of 4 

This proposal of insurance is provided as a matter of convenience and information only.  All information included 
in this proposal, including but not limited to personal and real property values, locations, operations, products, 
data, automobile schedules, financial data and loss experience, is based on facts and representations supplied to 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. by you.  This proposal does not reflect any independent study or investigation by 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. or its agents and employees. 
 
Please be advised that this proposal is also expressly conditioned on there being no material change in the risk 
between the date of this proposal and the inception date of the proposed policy (including the occurrence of any 
claim or notice of circumstances that may give rise to a claim under any policy which the policy being proposed is 
a renewal or replacement).  In the event of such change of risk, the insurer may, at its sole discretion, modify, or 
withdraw this proposal, whether or not this offer has already been accepted. 

This proposal is not confirmation of insurance and does not add to, extend, amend, change, or alter any coverage 
in any actual policy of insurance you may have.  All existing policy terms, conditions, exclusions, and limitations 
apply.  For specific information regarding your insurance coverage, please refer to the policy itself.  Alliant 
Insurance Services, Inc. will not be liable for any claims arising from or related to information included in or omitted 
from this proposal of insurance. 

Alliant embraces a policy of transparency with respect to its compensation from insurance transactions. Details on our 
compensation policy, including the types of income that Alliant may earn on a placement, are available on our website at 
www.alliant.com. For a copy of our policy or for any inquiries regarding compensation issues pertaining to your account you 
may also contact us at: Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., Attention: General Counsel, 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, 
CA  92101.   

Analyzing insurers' over-all performance and financial strength is a task that requires specialized skills and in-depth technical 
understanding of all aspects of insurance company finances and operations. Insurance brokerages such as Alliant Insurance 
typically rely upon rating agencies for this type of market analysis. Both A.M. Best and Standard and Poor's have been 
industry leaders in this area for many decades, utilizing a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis of the 
information available in formulating their ratings. 

A.M. Best has an extensive database of nearly 6,000 Life/Health, Property Casualty and International companies. You can 
visit them at www.ambest.com. For additional information regarding insurer financial strength ratings visit Standard and 
Poor's website at www.standardandpoors.com. 

Our goal is to procure insurance for you with underwriters possessing the financial strength to perform.  Alliant does not, 
however, guarantee the solvency of any underwriters with which insurance or reinsurance is placed and maintains no 
responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the financial failure or insolvency of any insurer.  We encourage you to 
review the publicly available information collected to enable you to make an informed decision to accept or reject a particular 
underwriter.  To learn more about companies doing business in your state, visit the Department of Insurance website for 
that state. 
 



 
CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (CSAC EIA) 

EXCESS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
2016/2017 SCHEDULE OF INSURERS AND LIMITS 

 

NOTE:  THIS PROPOSAL IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE POLICY FORM IN ANY WAY.  PLEASE REFER TO THE POLICY 
FORM FOR COMPLETE COVERAGE AND EXCLUSION INFORMATION 

 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.  1301 Dove Street  Suite 200  Newport Beach, CA 92660 

 PHONE (949) 756-0271  www.alliant.com  License No. 0C36861  Page 4 of 4 
 

Companies Affording Coverage Limit California Status A.M. Best’s  
Guide Rating 

Standard & 
Poor’s Rating 

CSAC Excess Insurance 
Authority 
 
 
 
 
 
With reinsurance provided by 
Wesco Insurance Company* 

Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability : 
The difference between 

 $5,000,000 and Individual Member’s Retention 
for each accident or each employee for 
disease  

 $5,000,000 and Individual Member’s Retention 
for each accident for communicable disease 

 
*subject to a Corridor Retention 

Not Applicable  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Not Applicable 
(reinsurance) 

Not Applicable 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

A (Excellent) Financial Size 
Category XII ($1,500,000,000 

to $2,000,000,000) 

Not Applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Not Applicable 

CSAC Excess Insurance 
Authority  
 

With reinsurance provided  by 
ACE American Insurance 
Company 

Workers’ Compensation: 
$ 45,000,000 each accident or each employee for 

disease excess of $5,000,000 
$ 45,000,000 each accident for communicable disease 

Not Applicable 
 
 
 

Not Applicable 
(reinsurance) 

 

Not Applicable 
 
 
 

A++ (Superior) Financial Size 
Category XV ($2,000,000,000 

or greater 

Not Applicable 
 
 
 

AA (Stable) 

Liberty Insurance Corporation 
An excess insurance policy 

Workers’ Compensation: 
Statutory  each accident and each employee for  
    disease excess of $50,000,000 

Admitted A (Excellent); Financial Size 
Category XV ($2,000,000,000 

or greater) 

A (Stable) 





















































































 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

DATE:   June 22, 2016 
 
TO:     Board of Directors 
 
CC:   Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM:  Ron Merckling, Public Affairs/Resource Manager 
 
RE:  Approval of Casitas’ Final 2015 (2016) UWMP/AWMP  
 
INTRODUCTION: 
 
Casitas contracted with Milner-Villa Consulting to assist with the development the 2015 
update of the District's Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) prepared in compliance 
with the California Urban Water Management Planning Act and the Water Conservation 
Bill of 2009 (SB X7-7 or 20x2020).  
 
The UWMP must be submitted to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
every five years and is required of all public water suppliers providing water for 
municipal purposes to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-
feet of urban water annually. The 2015 UWMP must be submitted to the DWR by July 1, 
2016. The Final 2015 UWMP provides information on the District's water supply and 
demand forecasts, water supply reliability analysis, water shortage contingency 
planning, and other ongoing activities to ensure adequate water supply for existing and 
future demands. Completion of an UWMP is required in order for a water supplier to be 
eligible for DWR administered state grants and loans and drought assistance. It is also 
a source of information for Water Supply Assessments required by SB 610 and Written 
Verifications of Water Supply required by SB 221. This year’s plan is a Wholesale plan 
rather than a retail plan per changes made in SB X7-7, that distinguish between the 
definition of urban Wholesale and Retail water agencies. 
 
Casitas’ also included in this year’s plan an Agricultural Water Management Plan 
(AWMP) that meets the requirements of the DWR and comply with provisions identified 
in the California Water Code. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve Casitas’ Final 2015 (2016) Urban 
Water Management Plan with an incorporated Agricultural Water Management Plan.   
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The UWMP was last prepared in 2010. One of the foundational documents relied upon 
to develop and update the UWMP is the District's Water Supply and Demand Study, 
2004. Periodic updates to this plan are undertaken by the District to ensure the plan 
accurately reflects current demand and supply conditions, technological advances, and 
regulatory changes. The draft 2015 UWMP includes future demand projections. 
Demand projections were developed in coordination with the District's retail customers, 
and include demands for resale customers, irrigation customers, and direct urban retail 
customers.  
 
The UWMP is required to include plans for addressing water supply shortages. While 
not bound to the plans, the Board, by adopting the UWMP, formally presents options 
that would be considered during a shortage. Water shortage stages are presented to 
achieve up to a 50% reduction in water use as required by the Urban Water 
Management Planning Act. In any future shortages, the special circumstances of the 
situation would be taken into consideration in any response.  
 
Conservation 
 
The UWMP reaffirms the District's commitment to conservation to reduce long-term 
water demand incrementally over time. Water conservation is an integral component of 
the District's water demand management and water supply sustainability goals. The 
District's program has evolved over the years, adding new program elements and 
adjusting existing program elements to improve cost effectiveness and increase 
savings. The District has been successful in meeting its water reduction targets. The 
UWMP contains an overview of the District's conservation activities and copies of the 
latest conservation Best Management Practice reports. As a result of State-mandated 
conservation requirements and the success of the District's 2015 drought water 
conservation efforts, the District has seen significant reductions in water use. During the 
January to April period, the average residential gallons per capita day (per State Water 
Resources Control Board calculation requirements) went from 121 r-gpcd in 2013, to 75 
r-gpcd in 2016, for the same period. That equals a 38% reduction in residential water 
use for that period.   
 
 
 
 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

Resolution No. 16-15 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT 
PLAN/AGRICULTURAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR CASITAS MUNICIPAL 

WATER DISTRICT 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Legislature in its 1983-84 Regular Session, adopted the Urban 
Water Management Planning Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Act requires all urban water purveyors with greater than 3,000 service 
connections or water use of more than 3,000 acre feet per year served directly to consumers to prepare 
and submit an urban water management plan to the California Department of Water Resources every 
five years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the plan shall be reviewed periodically, at least every five years, and Casitas shall 
make any amendments or changes to its plan which are indicated by the reviews; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the original plan was adopted and sent to the California Department of Water 
Resources in March, 1996; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the reviewed plan must be filed with the California Department of Water 
Resources within thirty days of adoption; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agricultural Water Management Plan was added to address State Water 
Resources Control Board requirements, as stated to Casitas in mid-2015, to allow the subtraction of 
agriculture water use from monthly urban water use reporting requirements; and 
 
 WHERAS, the following Urban Water Management Plan/Agricultural Water Management 
Plan addresses all state requirements for such plans; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District as follows: 
 
 1. The final 2015 (2016) Urban Water Management Plan/Agricultural Water Management Plan 
for Casitas Municipal Water District has been reviewed, modified and is on file in Casitas' office and 
is hereby adopted. 
 
 2. A copy of the final 2015 (2016) Urban Water Management Plan/Agricultural is to be 
forwarded to the California Department of Water Resources and other entities per California Code 
requirements. 
 
 APPROVED this 22nd Day of June, 2016 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Pete Kaiser, President  
       Casitas Municipal Water District 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary  
Casitas Municipal Water District 



 

 
 
 

FINAL 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN AND 

AGRICULTURAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
2016 UPDATE 

 

JUNE 2016 

 
  



 
 

2 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

 
FINAL 

URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN AND  
AGRICULTURAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 

2016 UPDATE 
 

JUNE 2016 
 

Prepared for: 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Board of Directors 
Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 

Ron Merckling, Water Conservation/Public Affairs Manager 
1055 Ventura Avenue 

Oak View, California 93022 
Phone: (805) 649-2251 
Fax: (805) 649-3001 

www.casitaswater.org 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
Brad Milner, President 

Milner-Villa Consulting 
1746 S. Victoria Ave. #F126 

Ventura, CA 93003 
Phone: (805) 551-3294 
www.milnervilla.com 

 
 
  



 
 

3 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS                                                                                         PAGE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................................................12 
ES1  INTRODUCTION .........................................................................................................................12 
ES2  SYSTEM DESCRIPTION ............................................................................................................13 
ES3  SYSTEM WATER USE ................................................................................................................15 
ES4  SYSTEM SUPPLIES ....................................................................................................................17 
ES5  WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT .....................................................................21 
ES6  WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLANNING ................................................................25 
ES7  DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES ..................................................................................27 

SECTION 1 - INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................29 
1.1  PURPOSE .......................................................................................................................................29 
1.2  URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING ACT ................................................................29 

1.2.1  SUMMARY ..............................................................................................................................29 
1.2.2  HISTORY ................................................................................................................................30 
1.2.3  RECENT CHANGES TO THE UWMP ACT ................................................................................33 

1.3  AGRICULTURAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING ACT ...............................................33 
1.3.1  SUMMARY ..............................................................................................................................33 
1.3.2  HISTORY ................................................................................................................................34 
1.3.3  RECENT CHANGES TO THE UWMP ACT ................................................................................34 

1.4  PLAN COORDINATION ...............................................................................................................35 
1.5  PLAN NOTIFICATION AND PARTICIPATION .........................................................................36 
1.6  PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND IMPLEMENTATION .................................................40 
1.7  PLAN  IMPLEMENTATION .........................................................................................................40 
1.8  REPORT FORMAT ........................................................................................................................40 
1.9  AUTHORIZATION ........................................................................................................................41 
1.10  CONTACT INFORMATION .......................................................................................................41 

SECTION 2 - SYSTEM DESCRIPTION ...........................................................................................42 
2.1  DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS ..................................................................................................42 

2.1.1  UWMP REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................42 
2.1.2  AWMP REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................42 

2.2  DESCRIPTION OF CMWD ...........................................................................................................43 
2.2.1  LOCATION ..............................................................................................................................43 
2.2.2  TERRAIN AND SOILS ...............................................................................................................43 

2.3  SERVICE AREA CLIMATE ..........................................................................................................47 
2.3.1  TEMPERATURE .......................................................................................................................48 
2.3.2  PRECIPITATION ......................................................................................................................48 
2.2.3  EFFECTIVE PRECIPITATION ....................................................................................................48 
2.3.4  EVAPOTRANSPIRATION ..........................................................................................................49 

2.4  HISTORY OF CMWD ....................................................................................................................49 
2.5  CMWD PHYSICAL SYSTEM - DISTRIBUTION AND TREATMENT ......................................50 



 
 

4 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

2.6  CMWD RESALE CUSTOMERS ...................................................................................................51 
2.6.1  GOLDEN STATE WATER COMPANY ........................................................................................51 
2.6.2  HERMITAGE MUTUAL WATER COMPANY ................................................................................51 
2.6.3  MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT ...........................................................................................52 
2.6.4  SENIOR CANYON MUTUAL WATER COMPANY .......................................................................52 
2.6.5  SIETE ROBLES MUTUAL WATER COMPANY ...........................................................................52 
2.6.6  SISAR MUTUAL WATER COMPANY ........................................................................................52 
2.6.7  TICO MUTUAL WATER COMPANY..........................................................................................52 
2.6.8  CITY OF VENTURA .................................................................................................................53 
2.6.9  VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT .......................................................................................53 

2.7  SERIVE AREA POPULATION .....................................................................................................53 
2.8  LAND USE .....................................................................................................................................54 
2.9  CMWD OPERATIONS ..................................................................................................................55 

2.9.1  OPERATING RULES AND REGULATIONS .................................................................................55 
2.9.2  WATER DELIVERY MEASUREMENTS ......................................................................................56 
2.9.3  WATER RATE SCHEDULE AND BILLING .................................................................................56 

2.10  PREVIOUS WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES ...............................................................................57 

SECTION 3 - SYSTEM WATER USE ...............................................................................................58 
3.1  DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS ..................................................................................................58 

3.1.1  UWMP REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................58 
3.1.2  AWMP REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................58 

3.2  CUSTOMER CLASSIFICATIONS ...............................................................................................60 
3.2.1  RESIDENTIAL .........................................................................................................................60 
3.2.2  MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ..........................................................................................61 
3.2.3  AGRICULTURAL .....................................................................................................................61 
3.2.4  AGRICULTURAL-RESIDENTIAL ...............................................................................................61 
3.2.5  BUSINESS ...............................................................................................................................61 
3.2.6  INDUSTRIAL ...........................................................................................................................61 
3.2.7  INTERDEPARMENTAL .............................................................................................................62 
3.2.8  INSTITUTIONAL/GOVERNMENT ..............................................................................................62 
3.2.9  RESALE ..................................................................................................................................62 
3.2.10  CLASSIFICATIONS UNAVAILABLE ........................................................................................62 

3.3  CURRENT WATER USES ............................................................................................................62 
3.4  WATER LOSSES ...........................................................................................................................65 
3.5  FUTURE WATER USES ................................................................................................................66 
3.6  WATER USE FOR LOWER INCOME HOUSING .........................................................................66 
3.7  WATER CONSERVATION ACT OF 2009 ...................................................................................67 

SECTION 4 – SYSTEM SUPPLIES ...................................................................................................68 
4.1  DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS ..................................................................................................68 

4.1.1  UWMP REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................68 
4.1.2  AWMP REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................69 



 
 

5 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

4.2  CURRENT WATER SUPPLIES ....................................................................................................71 
4.2.1  LOCAL SURFACE WATER .......................................................................................................71 
4.2.2  LOCAL GROUNDWATER .........................................................................................................80 
4.2.3  IMPORTED SURFACE WATER - STATE WATER PROJECT .........................................................85 
4.2.4  TRANSFERS AND EXCHANGES ................................................................................................88 
4.2.5  DESALINATED WATER ...........................................................................................................89 
4.2.6  RECYCLED WATER ................................................................................................................90 

4.3  WATER QUALITY ........................................................................................................................90 
4.4  PLANNED WATER SUPPLIES ....................................................................................................91 

4.4.1  LOCAL SURFACE WATER .......................................................................................................91 
4.4.2  LOCAL GROUNDWATER .........................................................................................................91 
4.4.3  ENHANCED DEMAND MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS ..................................................................92 
4.4.4  LOCAL AGREEMENTS .............................................................................................................92 
4.4.5  TRANSFERS AND EXCHANGES ................................................................................................92 
4.4.6  IMPORTED SURFACE WATER - STATE WATER PROJECT .........................................................92 
4.4.7  DESALINATED WATER ...........................................................................................................93 
4.4.8  RECYCLED WATER ................................................................................................................94 

4.5  FUTURE PROJECTS .....................................................................................................................95 
4.6  CLIMATE CHANGE .....................................................................................................................96 

4.6.1  INTRODUCTION ......................................................................................................................96 
4.6.2  POTENTIAL IMPACTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ...........................................................................96 
4.6.3  EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ON AGRICULTURAL WATER DEMAND...................................97 
4.6.4  MITITGATION AND ADAPTATION ............................................................................................97 
4.6.5  LOCAL STRATEGIES ...............................................................................................................98 

SECTION 5 - WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT ...............................................100 
5.1  DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................100 

5.1.1  UWMP REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................................100 
5.1.2  AWMP REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................................100 

5.2  LOCAL WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY .................................................................................101 
5.3  ASSESSMENT OF WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ...............................................................101 

5.3.1  RELIABILTIY ........................................................................................................................101 
5.3.2  BASIS OF WATER DATA .......................................................................................................102 
5.3.3  RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT ...................................................................................................102 

5.4  WATER QUALITY IMPACTS ON RELIABILITY ....................................................................106 

SECTION 6 - WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLANNING ..........................................108 
6.1  DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................108 

6.1.1  UWMP REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................................108 
6.1.2  AWMP REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................................108 

6.2  WATER WASTE PROHIBITIONS .............................................................................................109 
6.2.1  PRIORITIES OF WATER USE ..................................................................................................109 
6.2.2  WATER WASTE PROHIBITIONS ON CERTAIN USES ...............................................................109 



 
 

6 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

6.2.3 EXEMPTED WATER USES ......................................................................................................111 
6.2.4  VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES ...............................................................................................111 

6.3  STRATEGY FOR MANAGED WATER SUPPLY AND DEMAND ..........................................113 
6.3.1  ALLOCATION PRINCIPLES ....................................................................................................113 
6.3.2  WATER ALLOCATION PROGRAM ..........................................................................................114 
6.3.3  ALLOCATION ASSIGNMENTS TO WATER SERVICE CLASSIFICATIONS ...................................114 
6.3.4  ALLOCATION ADJUSTMENTS ................................................................................................119 
6.3.5  STANDARDS FOR A WATER ALLOCATION ADUSTMENT .......................................................120 
6.3.6  APPEALS PROCESS ...............................................................................................................120 
6.3.7  AVAILABILITY OF ALLOCATIONS ........................................................................................121 
6.3.8  ALLOCATIONS FOR NEW OR EXPANDED WATER USES  ........................................................121 

6.4  STAGED DEMAND REDUCTION PRINCIPLES .....................................................................121 
6.4.1  STAGED DEMAND REDUCTION PRINCIPLES ..........................................................................121 
6.4.2  WATER RESOURCE CONDITIONS AND ACTIONS ...................................................................122 
6.4.3  DEMAND REDUCTION GOALS AND MEASURES ....................................................................123 
6.4.4  STAGE ADJUSTMENTS TO ALLOCATIONS .............................................................................124 
6.4.5  CUSTOMER NOTIFICATION ...................................................................................................126 
6.4.6  WATER USE REDUCTION MONITORING................................................................................127 
6.4.7  WATER RATES AND CONSERVATION PENALTY ....................................................................127 
6.4.8  APPEALS FOR EXCEPTION TO STAGED ADJUSTMENTSS OF ALLOCATION .............................128 
6.4.9  CURRENT STAGE ..................................................................................................................128 

6.5  PREPARATION FOR INTERRUPTION OF WATER SUPPLY ................................................129 
6.5.1  CMWD ACTIONS .................................................................................................................129 
6.5.2  EXAMPLES OF EVENTS THAT MAY CAUSE INTERRUPTION OF SUPPLY .................................130 
6.5.3  PROHIBITIONS, PENALTIES, AND CONSUMPTION REDUCTION METHODS ..............................131 
6.5.4  ANALYSIS OF REVENUE IMPACTS FROM REDUCED SALES DURING SHORTAGES ..................131 
6.5.5  CMWD OPERATING RULES AND REGULATIONS ..................................................................132 

SECTION 7 - DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES ..............................................................133 
7.1  DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................133 

7.1.1  UWMP REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................................133 
7.1.2  AWMP REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................................133 

7.2  INTRODUCTION.........................................................................................................................134 
7.3  UWMP DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES ....................................................................135 

7.3.1  METERING ...........................................................................................................................135 
7.3.2  PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH ...................................................................................135 
7.3.3  WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AND STAFFING .................................137 
7.3.4  OTHER DMMS .....................................................................................................................137 

7.4  AWMP EFFICIENT WATER MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ..................................................139 
7.4.1  CRITICAL EWMPS .................................................................................................................141 
7.4.2  CONDITIONAL EWMPS ..........................................................................................................141 

REFERENCES ..................................................................................................................................147 



 
 

7 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

LIST OF TABLES                                                                                                               PAGE 

Table ES-1  Casitas MWD Service Area Population ........................................................................ 15 

Table ES-2  Past and Current Potable Water Uses 2000-2015 .......................................................... 17 

Table ES-3  Projected Potable Water Uses 2020-2040 ..................................................................... 18 

Table ES-4  Past and Current Water Supplies 2011-2015 ................................................................. 18 

Table ES-5  Planned Water Supplies 2020-2040 .............................................................................. 20 

Table ES-6  Projected Supply and Demand Comparison for Normal Water-Year for 2020-2040 ... 22 

Table ES-7  Projected Supply and Demand Comparison for Single Dry Water-Year  
for 2020-2040 .................................................................................................................................... 23 

Table ES-8  Projected Supply and Demand Comparison for Multiple Dry Water-Years  
for 2020-2040 .................................................................................................................................... 24 

Table ES-9  Projected Minimum Water Supply for 2016-2018 ........................................................ 25 

Table ES-10  Stage Conditions .......................................................................................................... 26 

Table 1-1  Local Organizations Notified ........................................................................................... 37 

Table 1-2  Organization Participation ................................................................................................ 38 

Table 2-1  Climate Data ..................................................................................................................... 49 

Table 2-2  Casitas MWD Service Area Population ........................................................................... 54 

Table 2-3  Acres of Irrigated Agriculture Within Service Area by Crop Type ................................. 55 

Table 2-4  Acres of Agriculture Within Service Area by Source of Water ....................................... 55 

Table 3-1  Past and Current Potable Water Uses 2000-2015 ............................................................ 64 

Table 3-2  Retail Water Uses for 2015 .............................................................................................. 65 

Table 3-3  Agricultural Water Use 2011-2015 .................................................................................. 66 

Table 3-4  Projected Potable Water Uses 2020-2040 ........................................................................ 67 

Table 4-1  Past and Current Water Supplies 2011-2015 ................................................................... 71 

Table 4-2  Groundwater Pumped 2011-2015 .................................................................................... 85 

Table 4-3  Planned Water Supplies 2020-2040 ................................................................................. 91 

Table 4-4  Groundwater Projected to be Pumped 2020-2040 ........................................................... 92 

Table 5-1  Basis of Water-Year Data ................................................................................................ 103 

Table 5-2  Projected Supply and Demand Comparison for Normal Water-Year for 2020-2040 ...... 104 

Table 5-3  Projected Supply and Demand Comparison for Single Dry Water-Year for 2020-2040 . ..104 



 
 

8 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

LIST OF TABLES (cont.)                                                                                                      PAGE 

Table 5-4  Projected Supply and Demand Comparison for Multiple Dry Water-Years  
for 2020-2040 .................................................................................................................................... .106 

Table 5-5  Projected Minimum Water Supply for 2016-2018 ........................................................... 106 

Table 6-1  Annual Distribution of Seasonal Allocation for Residential Accounts  ........................... 117 

Table 6-2  Stage Conditions .............................................................................................................. 123 

Table 6-3  Stage Action Schedule ..................................................................................................... 123 

Table 6-4  Stage Water Demand Reductions for Water Classifications ............................................ 124 

Table 6-5  Stage Actions and Water Demand Reduction Measures .................................................. 125 

Table 6-6  Estimated Budget Impact of Catastrophic Event ............................................................. 132 

Table 7-1  List of Efficient Water Management Practices ................................................................ 140 

Table 7-2  Status of Efficient Water Management Practices ............................................................. 142 

 

  



 
 

9 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

LIST OF FIGURES                                                                                                                     PAGE 
Figure 2-1  Vicinity Map ................................................................................................................... 44 

Figure 2-2  Casitas MWD Service Area ............................................................................................ 45 

Figure 2-3  Soils Within Ventura River Watershed ........................................................................... 46 

Figure 4-1  Ventura River Watershed ................................................................................................ 72 

Figure 4-2  Lake Casitas and Casitas Dam ........................................................................................ 78 

Figure 4-3  Lake Casitas Storage 2006-2016 .................................................................................... 80 

Figure 4-4  Lake Casitas Storage Model Based on the 1944-65 Drought Period .............................. 81 

Figure 4-5  Lake Casitas Storage Model Based on the 1965-1980 Recovery Period ........................ 81 

Figure 4-6  Ventura River Groundwater Basins ................................................................................ 83 

Figure 4-7  State Water Project Facilities .......................................................................................... 87 

 

 

  



 
 

10 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

APPENDICES                                                                                                                                                                           
Appendix A - Selected Definitions 

Appendix B - Urban Water Management Planning Act 

Appendix C - AWMP Act 

Appendix D – CMWD Notifications and Resolution for UWMP/AWMP 

Appendix E – UWMP Required Tables 

Appendix F – AWMP Required Worksheets 

Appendix G – CMWD Water Rates 

Appendix H – CMWD Water Supply and Demand Study 

Appendix I – Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Plan 

Appendix J – CMWD Consumer Confidence Report 

Appendix K – CMWD Water Conservation Resolutions 

Appendix L – CMWD CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 

Appendix M – Examples of CMWD Public Outreach Materials 

Appendix N – Public Comments Received 

Appendix O – UWMP Checklist by Subject 

 

  



 
 

11 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FREQUENTLY USED ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS 
AB Assembly Bill 
AF  acre-foot 
AFY acre-foot per year 
AWWA American Water Works Association 
AWMP Agricultural Water Management Plan 
BMP Best Management Practice 
CADDW California Division of Drinking Water 
CADWR State of California Department of Water Resources 
CCR Consumer Confidence Report 
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 
cfs cubic feet per second 
CII Commercial, Industrial, Institutional, water use sectors 
CIMIS California Irrigation Management Information System 
CMWD Casitas Municipal Water District (or Casitas MWD) 
CUWCC California Urban Water Conservation Council 
CVWD Carpinteria Valley Water District 
CWC California Water Code 
DMMs Demand Management Measures 
EWMP Efficient Water Management Practices 
gpcd gallons per capita per day 
gpm gallons per minute 
HCF hundred cubic feet 
NOAA National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
OBGMA Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Agency 
OVSD Ojai Valley Sanitary District 
r-gpcd residential gallons per capita per day 
RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board 
SB Senate Bill 
SWP State Water Project 
SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board 
UWMP Urban Water Management Plan 
USBR United States Bureau of Reclamation 
USEPA United States Environmental Protection Agency 
WSCP Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Definitions for selected terminology are provided in Appendix A. 
 
  



 
 

12 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
ES.1  INTRODUCTION 

The Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas MWD) is pleased to release this combined Urban Water 
Management Plan/Agricultural Water Management Plan (UWMP/AWMP). The Casitas MWD is 
required to prepare the UWMP as per requirements by the California Department of Water Resources. 
The Casitas MWD does not meet the requirements of an agricultural water supplier, but is voluntarily 
including elements of the AWMP in this document. The UWMP elements comply with the 
requirements of California Water Code (Section 10610-10656). The AWMP elements comply with the 
requirements of the SB X7-7 Water Conservation Act (California Water Code, Section I, Part 2.55, 
Division 6, Section 10608.48-10608.64), Agricultural Water Management Planning Act of 1986 
(California Water Code, Section I, Part 2.8, Division 6, Section 10800-10853), Agriculture Water 
Measurement Regulation (California Code of Regulations, Title 23, Section 597), and Governor 
Brown’s Executive Order B-29-15. Casitas MWD chose to prepare a combined UWMP/AWMP since 
there are many similar requirements for each document. 

This combined UWMP/AWMP meets the requirements for the UWMP. Urban water suppliers serving 
more than 3,000 customers or providing more than 3,000 AF of water annually must prepare an UWMP 
to promote water demand management and efficient water use. This UWMP provides planning 
information on the reliability and future availability of the Casitas MWD water supply. This UWMP is 
a public statement of the goals, objectives, and strategies needed to maintain a reliable water supply for 
the Casitas MWD’s customers. It is important to understand that this UWMP should be viewed as a 
long-term, general planning document, rather than as policy for supply and demand management. 
 
Primary objectives of this combined UWMP/AWMP include the following: 

 Summarize description of the Casitas MWD water system 

 Quantify anticipated water demands over a 20-year period 

 Identify and quantify water resources over a 20-year period 

 Summarize reliability of water resources for existing and future demands, in normal, dry, and 
multiple dry years, over a 20-year period 

 Summarize water conservation and efficient water use programs. 

This UWMP provides information on present and future water supplies and demands, and provides an 
assessment of Casitas MWD’s water resource needs. It serves as a long-range planning document for 
Casitas MWD’s water supply. Droughts, limited supplies, environmental demands - all of these factors 
must be taken into consideration to provide a safe and reliable water supply for western Ventura County. 
The intention of the UWMP is to demonstrate Casitas MWD’s water supply reliability over the next 25 
years, in 5-year increments. The plan addresses Casitas MWD’s water system and includes a description 
of water supply sources, magnitudes of historical and projected water use, and a comparison of water 
supply to water demands during a normal water-year, single-dry water-year, and multiple dry water-



 
 

13 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

years. It also describes Casitas MWD’s efforts to implement water conservation and water efficient 
uses for urban and agricultural water supplies. The combined UWMP/AWMP is Casitas MWD’s 
commitment to a long-term plan to ensure water reliability into the future. 
 
The California Agricultural Water Management Planning Act (Act) requires agricultural water 
suppliers to develop and adopt an AWMP (California Water Code, Section 10800-10853). The Casitas 
MWD does not meet the requirements of an agricultural water supplier, but is voluntarily including 
elements of the AWMP in this document. The AWMP is regarded as a guideline subject to revision, 
with each update incorporating new strategies and requirements in response to new legislation and other 
changing conditions. Similar to the UWMP requirements, the AWMP includes  
quantification of water supplies and demands, reliability, drought management, and summary of 
efficient water management practices (similar to demand management measures and best management 
practices). 
 
The Casitas MWD notified applicable local agencies and organizations regarding preparation of the 
UWMP/AWMP and planned public meeting dates and times. Casitas MWD encourages representatives 
from those organizations and the public to attend Casitas MWD’s public meetings. Casitas MWD 
provided notification via newsletter to customers, direct letter, Casitas MWD Facebook page, and via 
Casitas MWD website:  

http://www.casitaswater.org/calendar.php?id=11337943. 
 
Casitas MWD invited comments from organizations and the public as well. Casitas MWD held a 
community workshop on May 18, 2016 to provide a summary of the UWMP/AWMP and receive public 
comments and questions. Casitas MWD will hold a public hearing on June 22, 2016 in Casitas MWD’s 
Board Room. It is anticipated that the Board of Directors will adopt the UWMP/AWMP following the 
public hearing. The Casitas MWD will submit the adopted UWMP/AWMP to the California 
Department of Water Resources.  

ES.2  SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 

Casitas MWD lies in southern California's semi-arid coastal plain. Specifically, the Casitas MWD is 
located in western Ventura County (see Figure 2-1) where there is a history of drought, water supply 
shortages, and corresponding efforts to develop local water supplies. The Casitas MWD service area 
includes approximately 137.5 square miles. The area has and continues to be solely dependent upon 
local water supplies. Local rainfall contributes to the Ventura River Watershed by replenishing Lake 
Casitas, local groundwater sources, and the Ventura River. Figure 2-2 indicates the service area for 
Casitas MWD.  
 
The climate within Casitas MWD’ service area is Mediterranean, which is characterized by cool, wet 
winters and warm, dry summers. However, climate does vary significantly based on distance from the 
Pacific Ocean, elevation, area drainage, and slope aspect. Winter low temperatures can fall below 
freezing in inland areas and rise above 100 degrees Fahrenheit in the summer, affecting higher water 
demand from customers. Temperatures along the coast are moderated by the ocean and seldom reach 



 
 

14 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

the inland extremes. Average monthly temperatures range from 35.9 F (January low) to 91.5 F (August 
high). Maximum recorded temperature is 119 F (June 16, 1917), while the minimum recorded 
temperature is 13 F (January 6, 1913). Precipitation, as reported at Ojai, averages 21.2 inches annually. 
Nearly 96 percent of annual local rainfall occurs from October to April. Maximum recorded annual 
precipitation is 47.30 inches (1978), while the minimum recorded annual precipitation is 4.35 inches 
(1947). Maximum recorded daily precipitation is 9.05 inches (February 24, 1913). 
 
The western portion of Ventura County, California, which includes unincorporated portions of Ventura 
County, the City of Ojai, and the City of San Buenaventura, struggled with water shortage issues in the 
early to middle 1900’s. At the beginning of the 1900’s, western Ventura County began to experience 
growth in agriculture and population. The primary growth areas, the City of Ventura and Ojai Valley, 
relied on either diverting river flows or groundwater pumping to satisfy water demands. By the 1930’s, 
the local agriculture and cities began to experience drought conditions and question the reliability of 
their water supplies. The first half of the twentieth century experienced several drought periods and 
caused western Ventura County to consider various options to increase local water supply reliability. 
In 1952, formation of the Ventura River Municipal Water District (VRMWD, which later was renamed 
Casitas Municipal Water District, in 1971) was quick to follow with a request of the United States 
Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) to make a water requirement and water 
supply study for western Ventura County.  
 
By the fall of 1953, USBR investigators completed reconnaissance-level studies to determine the 
approximate long-range water requirements, comparison of the merits of available dam sites, and 
determination of the river diversion and storage capacity required to meet the long-term water needs of 
the area. Construction of the Ventura River Project (Project) was completed in 1959 and Lake Casitas 
filled for the first time in 1978. The key elements of the Project are Casitas Dam and Reservoir (Lake 
Casitas), the Robles Diversion and Canal on the Ventura River, and the water distribution system that 
consist of pipelines, pump plants, and storage tanks. The Project serves as a primary supply for many 
direct customers and as a supplemental, or backup supply, for groundwater users during times of 
drought. 
 
The main source of water supply for Casitas MWD is Lake Casitas, which has a full capacity of 254,000 
acre-feet of water. Casitas MWD also maintains and operates one (1) well with a capacity of 
approximately 300 acre-feet per year. Casitas MWD’s distribution system includes approximately 
ninety-seven (97) miles of main and distribution pipelines, nine (9) pumping plants, four (4) 
chlorination stations, and thirty million (30,000,000) gallons of treated water stored in fourteen (14) 
steel reservoirs. Casitas MWD meters all of its direct service customers, including meters on all 
connections to other water agencies. In 1995, Casitas MWD added a sixty-five million (65,000,000) 
gallon per day pressure filtration treatment plant. Casitas MWD further treats filtered water with 
chloramination for disinfection and additives for corrosion control. 
 
Population growth in the district paralleled population growth in southern California until 
approximately 1960. Population within the Casitas MWD’s service area in 1960 was approximately 
45,000. In 2010, the Casitas MWD served directly and indirectly a population of approximately 68,557. 



 
 

15 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

(CMWD, 2011) See Table ES-1 for details. Casitas MWD is the primary and or backup water supply 
for nine water purveyors within the Casitas MWD and for some individual agricultural customers with 
groundwater wells. Casitas MWD has nearly 3,200 retail customers in total with 2,925 direct urban 
customers, 249 agricultural meters, and 23 resale meters. 
 
The current population forecast for the Casitas MWD’s service area reflects a very low growth period 
through the year 2040. There is a large population within the Casitas MWD’s boundaries that are served 
by other water agencies. Casitas MWD’s largest customer, the City of Ventura, and the City of Ojai are 
projected to have a 0.5 percent annual increase in population during the period 2020 to 2040 according 
to data from the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG, 2016). Using conservative 
(high) estimates, the Casitas MWD projects the service area population to reach 72,063 by the year 
2020 and 79,622 by 2040 (see Table ES-1). The low population growth is likely to limit overall 
customer water demand in the future because most of this growth is likely to occur in resale agencies 
service area, which will allow other agencies groundwater sources to supplement the increased demand.  

TABLE ES-1 
CASITAS MWD SERVICE AREA POPULATION  

Population 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 
CMWD Service 
Area (1,2,3) 68,557 70,288 72,063 73,883 75,748 77,661 79,622

Notes: 
(1) CMWD, 2016. 
(2) Casitas MWD 2010 service area population from CMWD UWMP, 2011. 
(3) Casitas MWD service area population for 2015-2040 based on growth rate 0.5 percent per year (SCAG, 2016). 

Land use within the Casitas MWD service area includes agriculture, residential, and commercial 
properties. Land use within the CMWD service area is regulated by the City of Ojai and City of Ventura 
within their respective boundaries, and by the County of Ventura for the unincorporated area of the 
Casitas MWD. Agricultural customers within the Casitas MWD service area include approximately 
5,372 acres of irrigated crops. Irrigated crops in 2014 include avocados, hay, lemons, oranges, 
strawberries, tangerines, and walnuts. 

ES.3  SYSTEM WATER USE 

Total annual water demand includes water delivered to the various Casitas MWD customer 
classifications, minor losses in the distribution system due to leaks, and flushing of the system for water 
quality maintenance. The phrase “water demand” and “water use” will be used interchangeably 
throughout this document. Casitas MWD water demand can vary dramatically from year to year, 
ranging from 11,694 acre-feet in 1993 (wet water-year) to 24,416 acre-feet in 1989 (dry water-year). 
(CMWD, 2016) Water demand is closely tied to local precipitation, with the data showing a major 
reduction in water demand during wet years, compared to dry years.  
 



 
 

16 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

During dry water-years, resale and agricultural water demand for Casitas MWD water supply can 
increase dramatically when local groundwater sources become diminished or no longer available. 
During dry periods, resale and agricultural customers rely more on Casitas MWD’s surface water, and 
in some cases rely exclusively on water deliveries from Lake Casitas, until groundwater supplies are 
replenished by rainfall events. Depending on the severity and duration of the drought period, it could 
be anticipated that one or more resale agencies and or agricultural customers will have limited 
groundwater supply and may rely on Casitas MWD for the balance of essential water supply needs. 
 
Casitas MWD’s Lake Casitas reservoir is managed as a long term water supply with a 21-year safe 
yield of 20,840 acre-feet (current safe-yield) based on the historical 1944-1965 drought cycle under 
certain conditions, as highlighted in the “Water Supply and Use Status Report” (CMWD, 2004). In 
1989, Casitas MWD’s supply and demand studies indicated water demand was approaching the annual 
safe-yield and any significant increase above existing levels could ultimately lead to demand out-
stripping supplies. A continued water supply deficit could lead to future supply shortages during long-
term drought conditions. In 1992, Casitas MWD’ Water Efficiency and Allocation Program was 
adopted by the Casitas MWD’s Board of Directors. The Program was adopted to encourage efficient 
use of water, to reduce overall water demand, and, to ensure the safe annual yield of supply would not 
exceed the critical 21,920 acre-feet per year average (as it was determined at that time).  
 
Table ES-2 summarizes the Casitas MWD water demands for recent Fiscal Years 2000, 2005, 2010, 
and 2015. Table ES-2 indicates the 2000 demands were 19,389 AF (average water-year), including 
sales to other agencies of 7,186 AF (37%), agricultural sales of 9,115 AF (47%), and non-agricultural 
retail sales of 3,088 AF (16%). In comparison, Table ES-2 indicates that Casitas MWD water demands 
for 2015 (dry water-year) were 16,747 AF, including sales to other agencies of 6,192 AF (37%), 
agricultural sales of 8,048 AF (48%), and non-agricultural retail sales of 2,507 AF (15%). By 
comparison of 2000 demands and 2015 demands, Table ES-2 indicates that total demands decreased 
by nearly 14 percent, sales to other agencies decreased by 994 AF (14%), agricultural sales decreased 
by 1,067 AF (12%), and retail sales decreased by 581 AF (19%). Much of this decrease in water demand 
is the direct result of demand management measures implemented by the Casitas MWD and regional 
water agencies. In 2015, Casitas MWD total retail water demands were 10,554 AF, including 
agriculture sales (historically the category with highest water demand) of 8,048 AF (76%), and 
residential sales (including single-family and multiple-family accounts) of 1,512 AF (14%).  
 
As previously noted, local agricultural water demand is historically the highest water demand for 
Casitas MWD. In addition, agricultural water demand within the Casitas MWD service area can vary 
dramatically from year to year. Agricultural customer groups have a much stronger influence on Casitas 
MWD water demands during low rainfall periods. Agricultural customers have a higher rate of increase 
in water demand during low annual rainfall years because their primary groundwater sources become 
depleted quickly and they then must rely on Casitas MWD’s surface water supplies. Annual average 
agricultural water use within the service area was 7,425 AF for the period 2011-2015, including a low 
of 5,206 AF in 2011 to a high of 9,427 AF in 2014.  



 
 

17 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE ES-2 
PAST AND CURRENT POTABLE WATER USES 2000-2015 

Category (1) 2000 2005 2010 2015 

Sales to other agencies 7,186 7,118 6,482 6,192 

Agricultural sales (2) 9,115 8,939 6,398 8,048 

Retail sales (2) 3,088 2,821 2,427 2,507 

Total 19,389 18,877 15,307 16,747 

Notes: 
(1) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. Data does not include water losses. 
(2) Direct sales to CMWD customers. 

Table ES-3 summarizes the Casitas MWD projected water uses for the period 2020-2040. Table   ES-
3 indicates the total water demands for the period 2020 to 2030 are projected to be approximately 17,200 
AF (average water-year). For the period 2020 to 2030 (during average water-years), sales to other 
agencies are projected to be 6,200 AF, agricultural sales 8,000 AF, and non-agricultural retail sales of 
3,000 AF. For the period 2030 to 2040, total water demands are projected to be approximately 17,500 
AF. For the period 2030 to 2040, Table ES-3 indicates that sales to other agencies are projected to be 
6,500 AF, agricultural sales 8,000 AF, and non-agricultural retail sales of 3,000 AF. Casitas MWD 
estimates that agricultural sales and retail sales will remain fairly consistent for the period 2015 to 2040 
due to current and future demand management measures implemented within the service area. 
 
Average water demand is not anticipated to increase above the current safe-yield of 20,840 acre feet 
that is derived from the “Water Supply and Use Status Report”. (CMWD, 2004). Casitas MWD has 
taken additional steps to limit future demand including changes in the allocation program. The Ojai 
City Council adopted a growth management plan that restricted housing and population growth to less 
than 1 percent annually. 

ES.4 SYSTEM SUPPLIES 

Casitas MWD relies on surface water and groundwater sources to meet the water demands of the area. 
Table ES-4 summarizes the quantities of water supplies in the Casitas MWD water portfolio for Fiscal 
Years 2011-2015. Table ES-4 indicates that for the period 2011-2015, the Casitas MWD average water 
supply is 17,293 AF with a range from 14,745 AF (2011) to 20,457 AF (2014).  
 



 
 

18 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE ES-3 
PROJECTED POTABLE WATER USES 2020-2040 

Category (1) 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Sales to other 
agencies 6,200 6,200 6,500 6,500 6,500 

Agricultural sales (2) 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 

Retail sales (2) 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Total 17,200 17,200 17,500 17,500 17,500 
Notes: 
(1) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. Data does not include water losses. 
(2) Direct sales to CMWD customers. 

TABLE ES-4 
PAST AND CURRENT WATER SUPPLIES 2011-2015 

Water Supply Sources (1) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Local surface water (Lake Casitas) 14,678 15,233 18,233 20,415 17,339

Local groundwater (Mira Monte Well) 67 232 173 42 54

Imported surface water  0 0 0 0 0

Transfers in or out (2) 0 0 0 0 0

Exchanges in or out  0 0 0 0 0

Recycled water  0 0 0 0 0 

Desalination  0 0 0 0 0 

Other  0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 14,745 15,465 18,406 20,457 17,393
Notes:   
(1) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. Fiscal Years. 
(2) Transfer to Carpinteria Valley Water District. 

The primary source of water for the Casitas MWD is from the collection and storage of precipitation 
and runoff from the local Ventura River watersheds (Ventura River Project or “Project”). Precipitation 
in the Ventura River watershed is extremely unpredictable and characterized by long periods of little 
or no rainfall, followed by short periods of intense precipitation with high runoff peaks. Annual average 



 
 

19 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

precipitation within the watershed is approximately 14 inches (and 22 inches at Casitas Dam), with a 
range from 5 to 40 inches. Flow in the Ventura River fluctuates seasonally and from year to year as is 
typical with many southern California systems. Annual average flow of the Ventura River is 
approximately 13,600 acre-feet. The Ventura River is an interrupted stream made up of reaches that 
flow perennially (Lower Ventura River) with intervening reaches that flow intermittently.  
 
The Ventura River watershed is upstream of Casitas Dam and the Matilija watershed that is partially 
diverted from the Ventura River to storage behind Casitas Dam. The Project has been modeled several 
times in the past to determine a safe-yield of the Project storage. Recently, Casitas MWD has considered 
additional influences on water supply, resulting from the Biological Opinion for the Robles Fish 
Passage and the planning in progress to remove Matilija Dam. According to the peer reviewed Casitas 
MWD “Water Supply and Use Status Report” (2004), safe-yield of the Project during a 21-year drought 
period is approximately 20,840 acre-feet. All water extractions from Lake Casitas are made at Casitas 
Dam through the intake structure, pipelines, and treated to meet State water quality standards prior to 
the delivery to the first water customer. Water quality in Lake Casitas is typical for any deep lake. Key 
water quality issues that are addressed by Casitas MWD are algae blooms resulting in taste and odors, 
turbidity, dissolved oxygen levels, protection from human contamination and invasive species. Lake 
Casitas does provide a limited recreational opportunity, but does not allow body contact activities with 
the waters of Lake Casitas. Casitas MWD manages the recreational aspect of Lake Casitas and provides 
strict oversight to assure lake water quality is maintained at all times. 
 
Table ES-4 indicates that for the period 2011-2015 average surface water supplies is 17,180 AF with 
a range from 14,678 AF (2011) to 20,415 AF (2014). The quantity of Project water is dependent on 
local rainfall and runoff from the local watershed. As previously noted, the Ventura River watershed is 
prone to frequent periods of drought which significantly reduces local precipitation and runoff thereby 
decreasing inflow to Lake Casitas. Lake Casitas storage in April 2006 was 252,381 AF, while storage 
in April 2016 was 106,158 AF. This represents a reduction of over 146,000 AF over 10 years. 
 
Casitas MWD acquired the Mira Monte Mutual Water Company (MMMWC) in November 1982 along 
with its Mira Monte Well. Table ES-4 summarizes the volume of groundwater extracted by Casitas 
MWD for Fiscal Years 2011-2015. Table ES-4 indicates that for the period 2011-2015 average annual 
groundwater extracted is 114 AF with a range from 42 AF (2014) to 232 AF (2012).  
 
The Casitas MWD has both surface water and groundwater sources, which present very different water 
quality issues. Surface water comes from Lake Casitas (from the Ventura River watershed) and the 
groundwater is locally produced via Mira Monte Well. The Casitas MWD potable water meets all water 
quality requirements of the California Division of Drinking Water. 
 
Currently, Casitas MWD relies on local surface water and local groundwater for 100 percent of water 
supplies to meet water demands. Casitas MWD currently does not produce nor receive desalinated 
water, recycled water, transfers, or exchanges. 
 



 
 

20 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Casitas MWD will continue to rely on surface water and groundwater sources to meet the anticipated 
water demands of the service area. Table ES-5 summarizes the quantities of projected water supplies 
in the Casitas MWD water portfolio for the period 2020 to 2040. Table ES-5 indicates that for the 
period 2020-2040 projected water supplies will be 20,840 AFY. Table ES-5 indicates that local surface 
water will be approximately 20,540 AFY (98.5%) for the period 2020 to 2040. Table ES-5 indicates 
that for the period 2020 to 2040 average annual groundwater extracted will be approximately 300 AF 
(1.5%).  

TABLE ES-5 
PROJECTED WATER SUPPLIES 2020-2040 

Water Supply Sources (1) 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Local surface water (Lake Casitas) 20,540 20,540 20,540 20,540 20,540

Local groundwater (Mira Monte Well) 300 300 300 300 300

Imported surface water 0 0 0 0 0

Transfers in or out (2) 0 0 0 0 0

Exchanges in or out  0 0 0 0 0

Recycled water  0 0 0 0  0 

Desalination  0 0 0 0 0

Other  0 0 0 0  0 

TOTAL 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840
Notes:   
(1) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 
(2) Transfer to Carpinteria Valley Water District. 

Casitas MWD does not anticipate any specific future infrastructure projects that will develop more 
water for the system for the period 2020 to 2040. Casitas MWD plans to utilize the program 
management of the safe-yield of Lake Casitas to balance water supplies within the CMWD service area, 
understanding also that water demands placed on CMWD are likely to exceed safe-yield levels during 
periods of long-term drought. In addition, Casitas MWD anticipates implementation of additional 
demand management measures to offset an increase in population and reduce inefficient use of water. 
Casitas MWD will continue to support the water use allocation program with customer specific 
allocations. Casitas MWD does not anticipate producing nor receiving desalinated water, recycled 
water, transfers, or exchanges for the period 2020 to 2040. 
Current climate change projections suggest that California will continue to enjoy a Mediterranean 
climate with the typical seasonal pattern of relatively cool and wet winters and hot, dry summers. 
However, climate patterns are different now and may continue to change at an accelerated pace. 
Increases in global emissions of greenhouse gases are leading to serious consequences for California 



 
 

21 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

including, but not limited to the following: higher air and water temperatures, rising sea levels, 
increased droughts and floods, decreased amount and duration of state-wide snow pack, and extreme 
variability in weather patterns. These changes are anticipated to intensify over the 20-year planning 
horizon of this UWMP/AWMP. Even if all emissions of greenhouse gases ceased today, some of these 
consequences would be unavoidable because of the increase in greenhouse gases recorded over the last 
100 years and the fact that the climate system changes slowly. Many of these climate changes would 
affect the availability, volume, and quality of California water resources. 
 
As climate change continues to unfold in the coming decades, water agencies, may need to mitigate 
and adapt to new strategies, which may require reevaluating existing agency missions, policies, 
regulations, facilities, funding priorities, and other responsibilities. There will be more competition for 
scarce water supplies between people and the environment. Resolving this conflict will be one of the 
biggest challenges confronting water agencies. The goal of the Casitas MWD is to manage the available 
surface water and groundwater resources as efficiently as possible while meeting the requirements of 
the customers. It is worth noting, however, that the Casitas MWD control over local water supplies is 
limited; thus management practice changes will need to be adaptive in nature. 

ES.5 WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT 

Analysis of water supply reliability is one of the primary requirements of the Urban Water Management 
Plan This assessment includes an average water-year, single dry water-year, multiple dry water-years, 
and minimum three-year supply. In order to plan for a reliable water supply, Casitas MWD staff 
examined both the possibility of short-term and long-term shortages. A short-term water shortage could 
result from a disaster such as an earthquake, flood, or even a widespread power outage. A long-term 
water shortage would most likely result from a long period of drought in the region. 
 
A normal water-year can be defined as a year in the historical sequence that most closely represents 
median local runoff levels and patterns. The Casitas MWD selected Fiscal Year 2011 to represent the 
normal or average water-year. For the purposes of this assessment, the terms “normal” and “average” 
water-year will be used interchangeably. Fiscal Year 2011 is the most recent year that closely represents 
a normal water-year. Local precipitation for Fiscal Year 2011 is 24.8 inches. The Fiscal year 2011 total 
surface water delivery from Lake Casitas is 14,678 acre-feet. The minimum storage level of Lake 
Casitas in Fiscal year 2011 is 221,751 acre-feet. The actual water use in Fiscal Year 2011 is 13,549 
acre-feet. 
 
Table ES-6 summarizes the Casitas MWD projected normal water-year supply and demands for the 
period 2020-2040. For planning purposes, Casitas MWD projected that 100 percent of the safe-yield 
will be available for both Lake Casitas surface water at 20,540 acre-feet and 300 AF of Mira Monte 
Well groundwater. However, the Casitas MWD may extract more than the safe-yield in any one year 
(or years) to meet demands. For example, in 1989, the Casitas MWD extracted 26,180 AF from Lake 
Casitas to meet local demands. Casitas MWD chose to use a conservative (high) projection of water 
demand at 17,200 AFY (more than the recent average 16,000 AFY for years 2010-2015) for the period 
2020-2025, and 17,500 AFY for the period 2030-2040. Table ES-6 indicates that, for a normal water-



 
 

22 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

year during the period 2020-2025, Casitas MWD’s water supply will exceed water demand by 3,640 
AFY. For a normal water-year during the period 2030-2040, Table ES-6 indicates that Casitas MWD’s 
water supply will exceed water demand by 3,340 AFY.  
 
Lake Casitas is sized, constructed, and operated as both a primary water source and a backup water 
supply for the groundwater basins of western Ventura County. Lake Casitas is a long-term water storage 
facility, so precipitation (or lack of precipitation) in any single year does not change the projected safe-
yield of a long-term period. As previously noted, Casitas MWD selected Fiscal Year 2014 as the most 
recent year that closely represents a single dry water-year. Local precipitation for Fiscal Year 2014 is 
9.50 inches with over 82 percent recorded in February and March. The Fiscal Year 2014 total surface 
water delivery from Lake Casitas is 18,811 acre-feet. The minimum storage level of Lake Casitas in 
Fiscal Year 2014 is 131,511 acre-feet. The actual water use in Fiscal Year 2014 is 19,093 acre-feet. 

TABLE ES-6 
PROJECTED SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON FOR NORMAL WATER-YEAR FOR 
2020-2040 

  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 17,200 17,200 17,500 17,500 17,500

Difference (supply minus 
demand) (AFY) 3,640 3,640 3,340 3,340 3,340

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

Table ES-7 summarizes the Casitas MWD projected single dry water-year water supply and water 
demands for the period 2020-2040. For planning purposes, Casitas MWD projected that 100 percent of 
the safe-yield will be available for both Lake Casitas surface water at 20,540 acre-feet and 300 AF of 
Mira Monte Well groundwater. However, the Casitas MWD may extract more than the safe-yield in 
any one year (or years) to meet demands. For example, in 1989, the Casitas MWD extracted 26,180 AF 
from Lake Casitas to meet local demands. Casitas MWD chose to use a conservative (high) projection 
of water demand at 20,840 AFY for the period 2020-2040 (exceeding than the maximum demand during 
the period 2010-2015 of 19,093 AF in 2014). Table ES-7 indicates that, for a single dry water-year 
during the period 2020-2040, Casitas MWD’s water supply will be equivalent to water demand.  



 
 

23 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE ES-7 
PROJECTED SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON FOR SINGLE DRY WATER-YEAR 
FOR 2020-2040 

  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference (supply minus 
demand) (AFY) 0 0 0 0 0

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

The historical record provides information regarding ‘a multiple dry year’ occurrence in a drought 
period, which results in an escalation of water demands. During multiple dry years, surface flow in the 
Ventura River becomes non-existent and the groundwater in the Ventura River and Ojai Basins are 
diminished due to well extractions, natural drainage, and a lack of replenishment from rainfall. Water 
demands on Lake Casitas have been observed to escalate significantly due to multiple years of less than 
average rainfall and the transition from groundwater sources to the Lake Casitas supply. Further 
escalation in Lake Casitas demands resulted from the water demands of local agriculture that needed to 
supplement the lack of rainfall with an alternate water supply in order to continue to produce crops.  
 
As previously noted, Lake Casitas is a long-term water storage facility so precipitation (or lack of 
precipitation) in any three-year period, does not change the projected safe-yield of a long-term period. 
Casitas MWD selected Fiscal Years 1987-1988-1989 as the most recent three-year period that closely 
represents the multiple dry water-years. Local average precipitation for Fiscal Years 1987-1989 is 12.55 
inches. The average surface water delivery for Fiscal Years 1987-1989 is 23,289 acre-feet. The 
minimum storage level of Lake Casitas for Fiscal Years 1987-1989 is 160,587 acre-feet. The actual 
average water use in Fiscal Years 1987-1989 is 23,216 acre-feet. 

Table ES-8 summarizes the Casitas MWD projected multiple dry water-year water supply and water 
demands for the period 2020-2040. For planning purposes, Casitas MWD projected that 100 percent of 
the safe-yield will be available for both Lake Casitas surface water at 20,540 acre-feet and 300 AF of 
Mira Monte Well groundwater. However, the Casitas MWD may extract more than the safe-yield in 
any one year (or years) to meet demands. For example, in 1989, the Casitas MWD extracted 26,180 AF 
from Lake Casitas to meet local demands. Casitas MWD chose to use a conservative (high) projection 
of water demand at 20,840 AFY for the period 2020-2040 (exceeding the maximum demand during the 
period 2010-2015 of 19,093 AF in 2014). Table ES-8 indicates that, for the multiple dry water-years 
during the period 2020-2040, Casitas MWD’s water supply will be equivalent to water demand. 



 
 

24 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE ES-8 
PROJECTED SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON FOR MULTIPLE DRY WATER-
YEARS FOR 2020-2040 

   2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

First Year 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference (supply 
minus demand) (AFY) 0 0 0 0 0

Second Year 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference (supply 
minus demand) (AFY) 0 0 0 0 0

Third Year 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference (supply 
minus demand) (AFY) 0 0 0 0 0

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

The Casitas MWD evaluated minimum water supplies which would be available during a three-year 
period 2016-2018. For planning purposes, Casitas MWD projected that 100 percent of the safe-yield 
will be available for both Lake Casitas surface water at 20,540 acre-feet and 300 AF of Mira Monte 
Well groundwater. Therefore, the three-year minimum water supply is 20,840 AF for the period 2016 
to 2018 as summarized in Table ES-9. However, the Casitas MWD may extract more than the safe-
yield in any one year (or years) to meet demands. For example, in 1989, the Casitas MWD extracted 
26,180 AF to meet local demands. 

ES.6  WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLANNING 

The Casitas MWD has a variety of programs to respond to water shortage contingencies. These include 
prohibitions on water waste, water allocations for all customers, and staged demand reduction 
measures. The Casitas MWD has the authority to restrict the use of CMWD water during any 
emergency caused by drought, or other potential or existing water shortage. The Casitas MWD prohibits 
the wastage of CMWD water or the use of CMWD water during such periods for any purpose other 
than household uses or such other restricted uses as the CMWD determines to be necessary. The Casitas 



 
 

25 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

MWD may also prohibit use of CMWD water during such periods for specific uses which it finds to be 
nonessential. 

TABLE ES-9 
PROJECTED MINIMUM WATER SUPPLY FOR 2016-2018 

  2016 2017 2018

Available Water Supply (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840
Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

Casitas MWD Resolution 15-02 includes permanently prohibited uses (15 categories) of water that are 
in effect year round. Provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to all persons, corporations, public or 
private entities, governmental agencies or institutions, or any other direct water customers of the Casitas 
MWD. The water customers of other water purveyors shall be governed by the prohibitions that are 
adopted by the other water purveyors. 
 
Casitas MWD has developed water allocations for all its customers. Casitas MWD water allocations 
are assigned to properties or water purveyors, are not transferable from one property or water purveyor 
to another, and may not be sold or traded by Casitas MWD customers. Casitas MWD Board of Directors 
reserve the right to alter allocations for any customer class at any time and the term allocation shall not 
mean an entitlement or imply a water right. Each and every water service provided by Casitas MWD is 
metered and a basic water use allocation is established for each customer account that provides a 
reasonable amount of water for the customer's needs and property characteristics. Each Casitas MWD 
water service shall be assigned either a monthly water allocation in terms of units, or an annual water 
allocation in terms of units and acre-feet. The assignment of allocations shall be based on reasonable 
and necessary water use, the application of water conservation practices and standards, and other 
relevant factors associated with water use during Stage 1 conditions at Lake Casitas. Water allocations 
may change by action of the Casitas MWD Board of Directors based on the Lake Casitas storage level 
or trend, water use trends, and the performance by customer classification in meeting water 
consumption reduction goals. 
 
The primary source of water that is available to the Casitas MWD is the amount of water stored behind 
Casitas Dam, forming Lake Casitas. The quantity of water stored in Lake Casitas is dependent upon 
several factors, including: the local hydrology, watershed conditions, diversions from the Ventura 
River, lake evaporation, and water deliveries to beneficial uses. There may be times during which 
Casitas MWD must consider implementing staged water demand reductions to ensure a sustainable 
water supply and prevent a complete depletion of water supply in Lake Casitas. The Casitas MWD has 
assigned five stages of water storage in Lake Casitas that serve as a guidance to triggering the 
implementation of water use reduction goals and measures.  

The overarching goals of the Staged Demand Reduction Program are the following:  



 
 

26 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

 Conserving the water supply for the greatest priority and public benefit 

 Mitigating the effects of a water shortage on public health, safety, and economic activity. 

The General Manager shall report to the Board of Directors each year with an assessment of the current 
water storage in Lake Casitas and local groundwater basins, current water use trends, predicted weather 
conditions, and an evaluation of current water use reduction goals. The Casitas MWD Board of 
Directors may, at their sole discretion, declare that a specific stage condition of water supply in Lake 
Casitas exists and implement the appropriate demand reduction goals and measures in response to 
current and/or predicted water availability conditions. The resolutions will address a particular water 
shortage with the appropriate guidelines, procedures, regulations, and implementation of the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan. Provisions of the resolution shall be developed and implemented in a 
timely manner to provide water service during emergency conditions to all of Casitas MWD’s 
customers in a fair and equitable manner and in recognition of the given conditions. 
 
Casitas MWD has established the implementation of various Stages of action based on the amount of 
water in storage in Lake Casitas, as shown in Table ES-10.  

TABLE ES-10 
STAGE CONDITIONS 

Stage Stage Title Lake Casitas 
Storage (%) 

Lake Casitas Storage 
Action Level (AF) 

1   Water Conservation 100% to 50% 254,000 to 127,000 
2 Water Shortage Warning 50% to 40% 127,000 to 100,000 
3 Water Shortage Eminent 40% to 30% 100,000 to 75,000 
4    Severe Water Shortage 30% to 25% 75,000 to 65,000 
5 Critical Water Shortage 25% to 0% 65,000 to 3,000 

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. 

Demand reduction goals and measures begin with Stage 1, where reasonable and appropriate water 
allocation assignments are made to each Casitas MWD service connection. End water users are 
encouraged to implement Best Management Practices that conform to State requirements for water 
conservation and water use efficiency measures. Upon determination of a Stage 2 condition, and 
continuing through Stage 5 conditions, the primary action to achieve the demand reduction goal is the 
adjustment of allocations. Adjustments of allocations were made available for each classification during 
Stage 1 by a reduction of the allocation during the duration of the declared Stage condition.  

 

 

 



 
 

27 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

ES.7  DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 

Casitas MWD has a long history and strong commitment to water use efficiency. In 1992 the Casitas 
MWD Board of Directors adopted a series of ordinances, resolutions, and a Water Efficiency and 
Allocation Program (WEAP) in response to the increasing water demands and declining water storage 
in Lake Casitas experienced during the 1987-1991 drought period. The collective work in 1992 set the 
starting point for a system of water allocation assignments and demand response criteria that are based 
on the level of water storage in Lake Casitas. Casitas MWD Board of Directors adopted a Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan in 1992, by Resolution No. 92-11, that set water use reduction goals for the 
various stages of Lake Casitas storage. The Casitas MWD Board adopted Resolution 2014-0038 
(drought emergency regulations) that supplemented the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and limited 
the outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water. Casitas MWD Resolution 
15-02 includes permanently prohibited uses of water that are in effect year round. Provisions of this 
Ordinance apply to all persons, corporations, public or private entities, governmental agencies or 
institutions, or any other direct water customers of the Casitas MWD. The Casitas MWD Board 
approved Resolution 15-30 which authorized implementation of a Conservation Penalty. Casitas MWD 
recently updated the WEAP (2015). The purpose of the WEAP is to provide guidance on water supply 
and demand strategies that implement the following: 

 Conserve the water supply of the Ventura River Project, Lake Casitas and other water 
resources that are in the direct control of Casitas MWD, for the greatest public benefit 

 Mitigate the effects of a water shortage on public health and safety and economic activity 

 Allocate water use so that a reliable and sustainable supply of water will be available for 
the most essential purposes under all water storage conditions of Lake Casitas  

 Adapt to changing conditions of water supply demand and constraints. 

In addition, Casitas MWD is a signatory to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the 
California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC). This essentially declares Casitas MWD’s 
intent to implement all cost effective water conservation Best Management Practices (BMPs) as noted 
by the CUWCC.  
 
The UWMP Act currently requires wholesale agencies to provide narrative descriptions of metering, 
public education and outreach, conservation program coordination and staffing, and other demand 
management measures that significantly impact water use. 

Casitas MWD is a retail water agency, wholesale water agency, and an agricultural water agency. 
However, for the purposes of this UWMP, the Casitas MWD is considered a wholesale agency. The 
Casitas MWD will comply with the UWMP requirements as a wholesale agency. 

All of the Casitas MWD surface water supplies and ground water supplies are metered. Accuracy of 
the District’s meters is generally 98 percent to 102 percent. All of the Casitas MWD direct customers 
are metered. Casitas MWD has meters for all of the Resale customers. 



 
 

28 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

The extensive Casitas MWD public education and outreach program promotes the water conservation 
ethic and informs the public of the benefits derived from conserving a valuable resource. Implementing 
water conservation and demand management strategies will allow Casitas MWD to manage local water 
supplies throughout a long-term drought and avoid supply depletion. Section 7 summarizes many of 
the diverse public education and outreach activities implemented by Casitas MWD. 
 
Casitas MWD has a full-time Water Conservation Manager, full-time Water Conservation Specialist, 
full-time Water Conservation Analyst, and part-time Water Conservation Coordinator. Casitas MWD 
staff provide many water conservation services including: report preparation, response to customer 
questions, perform water use surveys, administer rebate programs, coordinate public information and 
outreach programs, plan and participate in special events and education programs, and conduct public 
speaking events. In addition, Casitas MWD also utilizes consulting firms to assist with the 
implementation of demand management measures. 
 
Casitas MWD provides water survey programs for single-family and multi-family residential customers 
for direct retail customers and for whole agency customers. The Casitas MWD’s direct survey program 
includes evaluating all indoor and outdoor water use. All water appliances are inspected. All toilets and 
faucets are inspected for leaks. A meter test is provided to check for leaks, landscape is thoroughly 
inspected for irrigation efficiency and plant type. These survey programs include distribution of low 
flow showerheads, toilet leak detection tablets, kitchen and faucet aerators, and rulers to measure toilet 
tank size. The customer is provided with a summary report on the improvements that can be completed 
both inside and outside the home to improve water use efficiency. The report also includes water and 
dollar savings, and a summary of rebate opportunities provided by Casitas MWD for appliances and 
smart irrigation controllers. 

Additional DMMs are summarized in Section 7 including residential plumbing retrofit, system water 
audits, large landscape program, high efficiency toilet and washing machine program, commercial 
programs, wholesale agency programs, conservation pricing, and school education program. 
 
The AWMP Act requires agricultural water suppliers to address Efficient Water Management Practices 
(EWMP) including two categories of measures: 1) critical activities, and 2) conditional activities. 
Critical activities are required to be implemented by agricultural water suppliers. Casitas MWD has 
implemented the critical EWMPs as required: 1) accurate measurement of water deliveries to individual 
farming operations, and 2) adopting a pricing structure for agricultural water customers based at least 
in part on quantity of water delivered. Conditional activities must be implemented by agricultural water 
suppliers if they are locally cost-effective and technically feasible. Each of these EWMPs are 
summarized in Section 7. 
 
  



 
 

29 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

SECTION 1 – INTRODUCTION 
1.1  PURPOSE 

The Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas MWD) is pleased to release this combined Urban Water 
Management Plan/Agricultural Water Management Plan (UWMP/AWMP). The Casitas MWD is 
required to prepare the UWMP as per requirements by the California Department of Water Resources. 
The Casitas MWD does not meet the requirements of an agricultural water supplier, but is voluntarily 
including elements of the AWMP in this document. The UWMP elements comply with requirements 
in California Water Code (Section 10610-10656). The AWMP elements comply with requirements of 
SB X7-7 Water Conservation Act (California Water Code, Section I, Part 2.55, Division 6, Section 
10608.48-10608.64), Agricultural Water Management Planning Act of 1986 (California Water Code, 
Section I, Part 2.8, Division 6, Section 10800-10853), Agriculture Water Measurement Regulation 
(California Code of Regulations, Title 23, Section 597), and Governor Brown’s Executive Order B-29-
15. Casitas MWD chose to prepare a combined UWMP/AWMP since there are many similar 
requirements for each document. 

Provided below is an introduction to both the Urban Water Management Planning Act and the 
Agricultural Water Management Planning Act. 

1.2  URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING ACT 

1.2.1  Summary 
This combined UWMP/AWMP meets the requirements for the UWMP as per California Water Code 
(Section 10610-10656) which requires urban water suppliers to prepare an UWMP to promote water 
conservation and efficient water use. This UWMP provides planning information on the reliability and 
future availability of the Casitas MWD water supply. This UWMP is a public statement of the goals, 
objectives, and strategies needed to maintain a reliable water supply for the Casitas MWD’s customers. 
It is important to understand that this UWMP should be viewed as a long-term, general planning 
document, rather than as policy for supply and demand management. 
 
Primary objectives of this UWMP include the following: 

 Quantify anticipated water demands over a 20-year period 

 Identify and quantify water resources over a 20-year period 

 Summarize reliability of water resources for existing and future demands, in normal, dry, and 
multiple dry years, over a 20-year period 

 Summarize water conservation and efficient water use programs. 

This UWMP provides information on present and future water supplies and demands, and provides an 
assessment of Casitas MWD’s water resource needs. It serves as a long-range planning document for 
Casitas MWD’s water supply. Droughts, limited supplies, environmental demands - all of these factors 



 
 

30 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

must be taken into consideration to provide a safe and reliable water supply for western Ventura County. 
The intention of the UWMP is to demonstrate Casitas MWD’s water supply reliability over the next 25 
years, in 5-year increments. The plan addresses Casitas MWD’s water system and includes a description 
of water supply sources, magnitudes of historical and projected water use, and a comparison of water 
supply to water demands during a normal water-year, single-dry water-year, and multiple dry water-
years. It also describes Casitas MWD’s efforts to implement water conservation strategies and water 
efficient uses for urban and agricultural water supplies. The combined UWMP/AWMP represents 
Casitas MWD’s commitment to a long-term plan to ensure water reliability into the future. A copy of 
the current Urban Water Management Planning Act is provided in A copy of the Agricultural Water 
Management Planning Act is provided in Appendix B. 

1.2.2  History 
In 1983, the California Legislature enacted the Urban Water Management Planning Act (AB 797; Water 
Code, Division 6, Part 2.6, Section 10610-10656). This Urban Water Management Planning Act 
requires water suppliers serving more than 3,000 customers, or water suppliers providing more than 
3,000 AF of water annually, to prepare an UWMP to promote water demand management and efficient 
water use. Currently, the Casitas MWD serves more than 3,000 customers and provides more than 3,000 
AF of water per year. The Urban Water Management Planning Act also required water suppliers to 
develop, adopt, and file an UWMP (or update) every five years until 1990. In 1990, the Legislature 
deleted this sunset provision (AB 2661). Accordingly, the UWMP must be updated a minimum of once 
every five years on or before December 31 in the years ending in 0 and 5. A copy of the current Urban 
Water Management Planning Act is provided in A copy of the Agricultural Water Management 
Planning Act is provided in Appendix B. 
 
The Legislature enacted two measures that modified the Urban Water Management Planning Act in 
1991. The first measure requires water suppliers to include an urban water shortage contingency 
analysis as part of its urban water management plan (AB 11). This measure also exempts the 
implementation of urban water shortage contingency plans from the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA). The second measure requires an UWMP to: describe and evaluate water recycling 
activities, to be updated once every five years, include an estimate of projected potable and recycled 
water use, and to describe activities relating to water audits and incentives (AB 1869). Another 
provision of this bill requires agricultural water suppliers to include in their informational reports and 
water management plans, a description of water recycling activities. 
 
In 1993, the Legislature enacted a measure, which allows members of the California Urban Water 
Conservation Council (CUWCC) to submit to the state a copy of their annual report to the Council to 
satisfy current reporting requirements relating to urban water management plans (AB 892). The 
Legislature enacted two measures in 1994. The first measure authorizes an urban water supplier to 
recover in its rates the costs incurred in preparing its plan and implementing the reasonable water 
conservation measures included in the plan (SB 1017). Any best water management practice that is 
included in the plan that is identified in the “Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water 
Conservation in California” (CUWCC, 2000) is deemed to be reasonable.  The second measure requires 



 
 

31 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

water suppliers to give greater consideration to recycled water in their urban management plans (AB 
2853). 
In 1995, the Legislature enacted two additional measures. The first measure requires urban water 
suppliers to include, as part of their urban water management plans, a prescribed water supply and 
demand assessment of the reliability of their water service to their customers during normal, dry, and 
multiple dry water years (AB 1845). The assessment shall compare total water supply sources available 
to the supplier with the total projected water use over the next 20 years, in 5-year increments. It also 
requires the supplier to provide the water service reliability assessment to any city or county within 
which it provides water within 60 days of the adoption of its urban water management plan. The second 
measure made the following changes to the Urban Water Management Plan Act (SB 1011): 

 Revised the components required to be included in the plan. 

 Required urban water suppliers to update their plans at least once every five years on or before 
December 31 in the years ending in 5 and 0. 

 Required urban water suppliers to include a prescribed water supply and demand assessment. 

 Required suppliers to encourage active involvement of diverse social, cultural, and economic 
elements of the population within the service area prior to and during preparation of the plan. 

 Required the urban water supplier, prior to adopting the plan, to make the plan available for 
public inspection and hold a public hearing thereon. 

 Deleted the provision requiring action alleging failure to adopt a plan to be commenced within 
18 months after commencement or urban water service after January 1, 1984. 

 Defined “demand management” and “recycled water,” revised the definition of “plan”, and 
deleted the definition of “conservation.” 

 Exempted suppliers who were implementing a conservation program from conducting a cost-
benefit analysis of those conservation programs. 

 Required the Department of Water Resources to submit a report to the Legislature 
summarizing the status of plans on or before December 31 in the years ending in 1 and 6. 

In September of 2000, the Legislature approved AB 2552, which required urban water suppliers to 
submit their UWMPs to cities and counties where the water supplier provides water. The intent of this 
new requirement was to help ensure that city and county planning agencies have reliable water supply 
information on which to make growth decisions.   
 
Additional changes approved in 2001 include AB 901, SB 221, SB 610, and SB 672. AB 901 required 
the UWMP to include information relating to the water quality of source supplies, and the manner in 
which the water quality affects water management strategies and supply reliability. This bill required 
the plan to describe plans to supplement a water source that may not be available at a consistent level 
of use. SB 221 prohibited a city or county from approving a residential subdivision of more than 500 
units unless the city council or the board of supervisors provides written verification from the area’s 
water service provider that a sufficient water supply is available for the development. SB 610 required 



 
 

32 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

additional information to be included as part of the UWMP for urban water supplies whose water supply 
includes groundwater. It required a city or county that determines that a development project is subject 
to the California Environmental Quality Act, to identify any public water system that may supply water 
for the project and to request that system to prepare a specific water supply assessment. It required 
urban water suppliers to include in the UWMP a description of all water supply projects and programs 
that may be undertaken to meet total projected water use. This Bill required the DWR to take into 
consideration whether an urban water supplier has submitted an updated UWMP, in determining 
eligibility for funds made available pursuant to any program administered by DWR. SB 672 required 
urban water suppliers to describe in the UWMP, water management tools and other options used by 
that agency to maximize resources and minimize the need to import water from other regions.  
 
There were many new requirements adopted by the State over the period 2005 to 2010, that must be 
included in this UWMP/AWMP including the following: 

 20x2020 analysis and compliance with Water Conservation Act of 2009 required of retail water 
suppliers. 

 Water supplier must give at least 60-days advance notice to any City or county within which the 
supplier provides water supplies to allow opportunity for consultation on the proposed plan. 

 Requires plan to include water use projections for single-family and multi-family residential 
housing needed for lower income and affordable households. 

 Conditions eligibility for a water management grant or loan by DWR, SWRCB, or California 
Bay-Delta Authority on compliance with water demand management measures. 

 Exempts projects funded by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 from the 
conditions placed on state funding for water management to urban water suppliers regarding 
implementation of water conservation measures that were implemented under AB 1420. 

 Water suppliers that are members of the CUWCC and comply with the amended MOU, will be 
in compliance with the UWMP water demand management measures.  

 Clarifies that "indirect potable reuse" of recycled water should be described and quantified in the 
plan. 

 Requires urban wholesale water suppliers to include in UWMPs an assessment of present and 
proposed future measures, programs, and policies to achieve water use reductions. 

 Grants urban water suppliers an extension for submission of UWMPs due in 2010 to July 1, 2011. 

  



 
 

33 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

1.2.3  Recent Changes to UWMP Act 
Recent changes to the UWMP include the following: 

 Water suppliers required to provide narratives describing their water demand management 
measures, as provided. Requires retail water suppliers to address the nature and extent of each 
water demand management measure implemented over the past 5 years, and describe the water 
demand management measures that the supplier plans to implement to achieve its water use 
targets. 

 Urban water suppliers required to submit their 2015 plan to the DWR by July 1, 2016. 

 The UWMP, or amendments to the plan, must be submitted electronically to the DWR. 

 Requires the UWMP, or amendments to the plan, to include any standardized forms, tables, or 
displays specified by the DWR. 

 Requires a plan to quantify and report on distribution system water loss. 

 Water use projections must display and account for the water savings estimated to result from 
adopted codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation and land use plans, when that 
information is available and applicable to an urban water supplier. 

 Urban water suppliers must include certain energy related information, including, but not 
limited to, an estimate of the amount of energy used to extract or divert water supplies. 

 Urban water suppliers must analyze and define water features that are artificially supplied with 
water, including ponds, lakes, waterfalls, and fountains, separately from swimming pools and 
spas. 

A copy of the current Urban Water Management Planning Act is provided in Appendix B. Copies of 
the required data tables are provided in Appendix E. 

1.3  AGRICULTURAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING ACT 

1.3.1  Summary 
The California Agricultural Water Management Planning Act (Act) requires agricultural water 
suppliers to develop and adopt an AWMP (California Water Code, Section 10800-10853). The Casitas 
MWD does not meet the requirements of an agricultural water supplier, but is voluntarily including 
elements of the AWMP in this document. In addition, the AWMP must achieve the requirements of 
additional state regulations including but not limited to the following: California Water Code, Section 
10608.48-10608.64; California Code of Regulations, Title 23, Section 597; and Executive Orders by 
the Governor of California. The AWMP must be updated every five years in the years ending in zero 
and five. As such, the AWMP is regarded as a guideline subject to revision, with each update 
incorporating new strategies and requirements in response to new legislation and other changing 
conditions. The AWMP will be submitted to the State of California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) and Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for approval. A copy of the Agricultural Water 
Management Planning Act is provided in Appendix C. 



 
 

34 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

1.3.2  History 
In 2012, 2013, 2014, and 2015 exceptionally dry conditions were experienced statewide. Annual 
precipitation in some of areas of the state dropped to their lowest point since record keeping began in 
the 1800s. Statewide reservoir storage is down significantly and the impact of four dry years in a row 
is felt everywhere.  
 
On January 17, 2014, with California facing water shortfalls following the driest year in recorded state 
history, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. proclaimed a State of Emergency and directed state officials 
to take all necessary actions to prepare for these drought conditions. In the State of Emergency 
declaration, Governor Brown directed state officials to assist farmers and communities that are 
economically impacted by dry conditions and to ensure the state can respond if Californians face 
drinking water shortages. The Governor also directed state agencies to use less water and hire more 
firefighters and initiated a greatly expanded water conservation public awareness campaign 
(http://www.saveourh2o.org/ ). 
 
Calendar year 2013 was California's driest year statewide based on records dating to the 1800s, and 
water conditions three months into a new year suggest the state's drought is pushing into its fourth 
consecutive year. The 2013-15 drought has resulted in increased public interest in Agricultural Water 
Management Plans (AWMPs) and water use efficiency. Due to the continuation of severe drought 
conditions, on April 1, 2015, through Executive Order B-29-151, Governor Brown directed agricultural 
water suppliers that supply water to more than 25,000 acres to include in their required 2015 agricultural 
water management plans a detailed drought management plan and quantification of water supplies and 
demands for the 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.  
 
Governor Brown further directed agricultural water suppliers, including U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
(USBR) contractors, which supply 10,000 to 25,000 acres of irrigated lands, to each develop an AWMP 
and submit it to DWR by July 1, 2016. The Executive Order requires that these plans also include a 
detailed drought management plan along with quantification of water supplies and demands for the 
2013, 2014, and 2015 years to the extent data is available. The Governor directed DWR to give priority 
in grant funding to this class of water suppliers for the development and implementation of the AWMPs. 
 
In addition, the SWRCB allows urban water agencies to subtract their agricultural customers water use 
from monthly reporting requirements if they prepare an AWMP. 
 
A copy of the Agricultural Water Management Planning Act is provided in Appendix C. 

1.3.3  Recent Changes to AWMP Act 
Recent changes to the AWMP include the following: 

 Removal of Agricultural Water Management Council (Council) MOU process as an 
Agricultural Water Management Plan (AWMP) submittal option, as the Council dissolved in 
the spring of 2013 and therefore no longer endorses plans.  



 
 

35 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

 Addition of Governor Brown’s Executive Order B-29-15 (April 1, 2015), directing all 
agricultural water suppliers to include a detailed drought management plan in their AWMP, 
and to include quantification of water supplies and demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015. The 
Executive Order also directed all agricultural water suppliers that provide water to 10,000 to 
25,000 irrigated acres to develop an AWMP and submit it by July 1, 2016. The Executive 
Order applies to all agricultural suppliers over the irrigated acreage threshold, including 
USBR contractors.  

A copy of the Agricultural Water Management Planning Act is provided in Appendix C. Copies of the 
required data worksheets are provided in Appendix F. 

1.4  PLAN COORDINATION 

The Casitas MWD’s UWMP/AWMP must include the following: 

 Retail suppliers shall conduct a public hearing to discuss adoption, implementation, and 
economic impact of water use targets. (CWC, 10608.26(a)) 

 Notify, at least 60 days prior to the public hearing, any city or county within which the supplier 
provides water that the urban water supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering 
amendments or changes to the plan. (CWC, 10621(b)) 

 Each urban water supplier shall update and submit its 2015 plan to the department by July 1, 
2016. (CWC, 10621(d)) 

 Provide supporting documentation that Water Shortage Contingency Plan has been, or will be, 
provided to any city or county within which it provides water, no later than 60 days after the 
submission of the plan to DWR. (CWC, 10635(b)) 

 Provide supporting documentation that the urban water supplier made the plan available for 
public inspection, published notice of the public hearing, and held a public hearing about the 
plan. (CWC, 10642) 

 The water supplier is to provide the time and place of the hearing to any city or county within 
which the supplier provides water.  (CWC, 10642) 

 Provide supporting documentation that the plan has been adopted as prepared or modified. 
(CWC, 10642) 

 Provide supporting documentation that the urban water supplier has submitted this UWMP to 
the California State Library. (CWC, 10644(a)) 

 Provide supporting documentation that the urban water supplier has submitted this UWMP to 
any city or county within which the supplier provides water no later than 30 days after adoption. 
(CWC, 10644(a)(1)) 

 The plan, or amendments to the plan, submitted to CADWR shall be submitted electronically. 
(CWC, 10644(a)(2)) 



 
 

36 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

 Provide supporting documentation that, not later than 30 days after filing a copy of its plan with 
the department, the supplier has or will make the plan available for public review during normal 
business hours. (CWC, 10645) 

 Every person that becomes an urban water supplier shall adopt an urban water management plan 
within one year after it has become an urban water supplier. (CWC, 10620(b)) 

 Coordinate the preparation of its plan with other appropriate agencies in the area, including 
other water suppliers that share a common source, water management agencies, and relevant 
public agencies, to the extent practicable. (CWC, 10620(d)(2)) 

 Provide supporting documentation that the water supplier has encouraged active involvement 
of diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of the population within the service area prior 
to and during the preparation of the plan. (CWC, 10642) 

Casitas MWD has coordinated its UWMP/AWMP planning efforts with a number of agencies (see list 
in Table 1-1) to ensure the accuracy of the data and issues presented in this plan. Table 1-2 lists the 
agencies that participated in the development of this UWMP/AWMP. Public comment was solicited on 
the Plan in the form of a community workshop and public hearing for the general public, taxpayers, 
water users, local governments, and state agencies.  

1.5  PLAN NOTIFICATION AND PARTICIPATION 

The Casitas MWD notified all the local agencies and organizations listed in Table 1-1 regarding 
preparation of the UWMP/AWMP and planned public meeting dates and times (see Appendix F 
Worksheet 1 for additional details). Casitas MWD encourages representatives from those 
organizations and the public to attend Casitas MWD’s public meetings (Table 1-2). The Casitas MWD 
mailed a letter on April 15, 2016 to all of the agencies listed in Table 1-1 below in accordance with the 
requirement to provide notice to all cities and counties at least 60 days prior to the public hearing (see 
Appendix E Table 10-1 for additional details). The letter also indicated that the Draft UWMP/AWMP 
would be available for public review prior to a community workshop on May 18, 2016, available at 
Casitas MWD’s website (www.casitaswater.org), and available at the Casitas MWD office located at 
1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, California, 93022. Casitas MWD invited comments from 
organizations and the public as well. Copies of public comments received are provided in Appendix 
N. 
 
Casitas MWD encouraged active involvement of diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of the 
population within the service area prior to and during the preparation of the Plan. Casitas MWD’s 
Winter 2016 newsletter was sent out in January 2016 to all 30,000 households within the Casitas MWD. 
This newsletter included the intention of Casitas MWD to hold a public hearing in June 2016 regarding 
the adoption of the 2016 UWMP/AWMP. Casitas MWD included an announcement in the customer 
billing statement for April 2016 for the community workshop and public hearing. Casitas MWD also 
posted an announcement to Casitas MWD’s website at www.casitaswater.org for the workshop and 
public hearing. Casitas MWD noticed and advertised the public hearing in accordance with all of the 



 
 

37 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

requirements of the UWMP/AWMP. In addition, Casitas MWD provided an announcement on all 
customer’s water bills regarding the meetings. 

TABLE 1-1 
LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS NOTIFIED 

 Carpinteria Valley Water District 
 Faria Beach Homeowner’s Association 
 Golden State Water Company 
 Hermitage Mutual Water Company 
 Meiners Oaks County Water District 
 City of Ojai – City Manager 
 Ojai Basin Groundwater Agency 
 Ojai Pixie Growers Association 
 Ojai Valley Land Conservancy 
 Ojai Valley Sanitary District 
 Ojai Valley News 
 Oak View Library 
 Rancho Del Cielo Mutual Water Company 
 Rincon Water & Road Works 
 Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company 
 Siete Robles Mutual Water Company 
 Sisar Mutual Water Company 
 Sulphur Mountain Road Water Association 
 Tico Mutual Water Company 
 Ventura County Supervisor, Steve Bennett 
 Ventura County Agricultural Commissioner 
 Ventura County Resource Conservation District 
 Ventura County Watershed Protection District 
 Ventura County Farm Bureau 
 City of Ventura –City Manager 
 Ventura Water 
 Ventura Local Agencies Formation Commission 
 Ventura River Water District 
 Ventura River Watershed Coordinator 
 

 
 
  



 
 

38 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 1-2 
ORGANIZATION PARTICIPATION  

Agency 
Notified of 

Plan 
Preparation 

Requested 
Copy of 

Draft Plan 

Commented 
on Draft 

Plan 

Notified of 
Public 

Meetings 

Attended 
Public 

Meetings 

Sent Copy 
of Final 

Plan 
California 
Department of 
Water Resources 

NA NA NA NA   

California State 
Water Resources 
Control Board 

NA NA NA NA   

California State 
Library NA NA NA NA   
Carpinteria Valley 
Water District       
Faria Beach 
Homeowner’s 
Association 

      

Golden State Water 
Company       
Hermitage Mutual 
Water Company       
Meiners Oaks 
County Water 
District 

      

City of Ojai      
Ojai Basin 
Groundwater 
Agency 

      

Ojai Pixie Growers 
Association       

Ojai Land 
Conservancy       

Ojai Valley News       
Ojai Valley Sanitary 
District       

Oak View Library  NA NA  NA 
Rancho Del Cielo 
Mutual Water 
Company 

      



 
 

39 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Notes: 
See Appendix F Worksheet 1 for additional details.  

Agency 
Notified of 

Plan 
Preparation 

Requested 
Copy of 

Draft Plan 

Commented 
on Draft 

Plan 

Notified of 
Public 

Meetings 

Attended 
Public 

Meetings 

Sent Copy 
of Final 

Plan 
Rincon Water & 
Road Works       
Senior Canyon 
Mutual Water 
Company 

      

Siete Robles Mutual 
Water Company       
Sisar Mutual Water 
Company       
Sulphur Mountain 
Road Water Assoc.       

Tico Mutual Water 
Company       
County of Ventura, 
Supervisor Bennett       

Ventura County 
Agricultural Comm.       

Ventura County 
Resource 
Conservation 
District 

      

Ventura County 
Watershed 
Protection District 

      

City of Ventura      
Ventura Water       
Ventura County 
Farm Bureau       

Ventura Local 
Agency Formation 
Commission  

      

Ventura River 
Water District       
Ventura River 
Watershed 
Coordinator 

      



 
 

40 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

1.6  PLAN ADOPTION AND SUBMITTAL 

In accordance with the UWMP and AWMP requirements, Casitas MWD also encourages 
involvement of public and community groups in document review and public comments. Casitas 
MWD notified applicable local, County, and State agencies and organizations of the intent to prepare 
this UWMP/AWMP and hold a public workshop. Casitas MWD provided notification via newsletter 
to customers, direct letter, Casitas MWD Facebook page, and via Casitas MWD website  

http://www.casitaswater.org/calendar.php?id=11337943.  

See Appendix D for a copy of the notification newsletter and letter. Casitas MWD held a community 
workshop on May 18, 2016 to provide a summary of the UWMP/AWMP and receive public comments 
and questions. Casitas MWD will hold a public hearing on June 22, 2016 in Casitas MWD’s Board 
Room. It is anticipated that the Board of Directors will adopt the UWMP/AWMP following the public 
hearing. Proof of this public hearing is provided in Appendix D, which contains a copy of the resolution 
adopting the 2016 Urban Water Management Plan/Agricultural Water Management Plan. The Casitas 
MWD will submit the adopted UWMP/AWMP to the California Department of Water Resources within 
the 30-day requirement.  

1.7  PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 

Following adoption of the UWMP/AWMP, Casitas MWD will utilize the UWMP/AWMP as a 
summary and resource for discussions regarding water demands, water supplies, and demand 
management. This UWMP/AWMP indicates that it is imperative for Casitas MWD to maximize its 
water resources, water use efficiencies, and minimize losses and inefficiencies because 100 percent of 
the water supply comes from local sources. This UWMP/AWMP document will assist Casitas MWD 
to address local water supply management issues. Implementing water conservation and demand 
management strategies will allow Casitas MWD to manage local water supplies throughout a long-term 
drought and avoid supply depletion. Details regarding the extensive Casitas MWD demand 
management programs are provided in Sections 6 and 7. 

1.8  REPORT FORMAT 

This UWMP/AWMP is divided into seven primary sections. Section 1 provides an introduction to the 
UWMP/AWMP. Section 2 describes the Casitas MWD’s service area. Section 3 defines the Casitas 
MWD’s water uses. Section 4 defines the Casitas MWD’s water supplies. Section 5 defines the Casitas 
MWD’s water supply reliability assessment. Section 6 summarizes the Casitas MWD’s water shortage 
contingency planning. Section 7 describes Casitas MWD’s demand management measures (i.e., water 
conservation and efficient water management practices). 
 
This combined UWMP/AWMP is based upon the information required by the Urban Water 
Management Planning Act and California Agricultural Water Management Planning Act, as 
coordinated by the California Department of Water Resources (CADWR). Format of this 
UWMP/AWMP follows the DWR’s Guidance Manuals for UWMP (2016) and AWMP (2015) to 
ensure and easily verify that the information presented here meets all of the DWR requirements. 



 
 

41 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

The Casitas MWD is a wholesale agency. Casitas MWD prepared this UWMP/AWMP in compliance 
with the UWMP requirements for a wholesale agency. 

1.9  AUTHORIZATION 

The Casitas MWD authorized Milner-Villa Consulting (MVC) to provide consulting services related 
to preparation of this UWMP under an Agreement dated September 23, 2015 and Change Order No. 1 
for preparation of the AWMP elements in accordance with California requirements. 

1.10  CONTACT INFORMATION 

A copy of the UWMP/AWMP will be available at Casitas MWD’s website at 
http://www.casitaswater.org and available at the Casitas MWD office located at 1055 Ventura 
Avenue, Oak View, California, 93022. Please direct any questions regarding this UWMP/AWMP to 
Ron Merckling, Water Conservation/Public Affairs Manager for Casitas MWD, (805) 649-2251 
extension 118, or rmerckling@CMWDwater.com. 



 
 

42 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

SECTION 2: SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 
2.1  DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS 

2.1.1 UWMP Requirements 
This section will include the following: 

 Describe the water supplier service area. (CWC, 10631(a)) 

 Describe the climate of the service area of the supplier. (CWC, 10631(a)) 

 Indicate the current population of the service area. (CWC, 10631(a)) 

 Provide population projections for 2020, 2025, 2030, 2035, and 2040 (optional). (CWC, 
10631(a)) 

 Describe other demographic factors affecting the supplier’s water management planning. 
(CWC, 10631(a)) 

2.1.2 AWMP Requirements 
Water Code §10826 (a) requires a description of the agricultural water supplier and the service area: 

“(a) Describe the agricultural water supplier and the service area, including all of the following: 

(1) Size of the service area. 

(2) Location of the service area and its water management facilities. 

(3) Terrain and soils. 

(4) Climate. 

(5) Operating rules and regulations. 

(6) Water delivery measurements or calculations. 

(7) Water rate schedules and billing. 

(8) Water shortage allocation policies.” (Water Code §10826(a)) 

The Water Code requires a description of these elements in the AWMP, but details are not specified. 
In this section, the Guidebook suggests a reasonable level of detail to assist the agricultural water 
supplier in preparing an AWMP that can be used for water management planning and providing 
information to address Water Code §10826 (b) requirements for a description of the quantity and quality 
of water resources of the agricultural water supplier. The Guidebook organizational outline groups 



 
 

43 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

descriptions into Physical Characteristics – elements (a)(1) to (a)(4), and Operational Characteristics – 
elements (a)(5) to (a)(8). See Section II of the AWMP Template. 

This section also provides a basis for evaluating structural or operational improvements as well as an 
area to provide the basic information about physical and operational aspects that may affect water 
management. 

This section is also an opportunity to provide some background information, such as the agricultural 
water supplier date of formation, source(s) of water supply (such as Central Valley Project (CVP), State 
Water Project (SWP), local surface or groundwater), or any other pertinent information. 

“Describe previous water management activities.” (Water Code §10826(d)). 

The Water Code does not specify which management activities need to be included. Useful information 
would include previous water management plans and program(s) under which the previous plan was 
developed, adoption date by the water supplier, approval or acceptance date (by the AWMC or USBR, 
respectively), management agency and representative, and other pertinent information, including any 
amendments and/or revision dates. 

2.2  DESCRIPTION OF CASITAS MWD 

2.2.1 Location 
Casitas MWD lies in southern California's semi-arid coastal plain. Specifically, the Casitas MWD is 
located in western Ventura County (see Figure 2-1) where there is a history of drought, water supply 
shortages, and corresponding efforts to develop local water supplies. The Casitas MWD service area 
includes approximately 137.5 square miles. The area has and continues to be solely dependent upon 
local water supplies. Local rainfall contributes to the Ventura River Watershed by replenishing Lake 
Casitas, local groundwater sources, and the Ventura River. Figure 2-2 indicates the service area for 
Casitas MWD. See Appendix F Worksheets No. 2-3 for additional details related to the Casitas MWD 
service area. 
 
2.2.2  Terrain and Soils 
 
The Casitas MWD service area lies primarily within the Ventura River watershed. This watershed has 
three distinct landform zones: the mountains and foothills of the Transverse Ranges, the broad valley 
floors, and the coastal zone. (VRWC, 2015) These zones define the watershed and influence its 
hydrology in many important ways, from how much and where it rains, to how much water it can store, 
to the biodiversity of its ecosystems. 
 
  



 
 

44 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FIGURE 2-1 
VICINITY MAP 

 
 
Mountains and foothills dominate the watershed. Only 35 square miles (15 percent) of the watershed 
are flat (with a slope of 10 percent or less). (VRWC, 2015) This includes the broad valley floors where 
most of the residences and farms are concentrated, and the coastal zone. The coastal zone includes the 
delta and coastline, the delta being the land at the mouth of the river formed over time by the deposition 
of sediments carried by the river. The delta surrounds and contains the Ventura River estuary, a dynamic 
zone of interaction between the fresh and salt waters of river and ocean and their hydrologic and 
biologic systems. 

 
 



 
 

45 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FIGURE 2-2 
CASITAS MWD SERVICE AREA  

 
 

Dramatically steep, folded and faulted, rocky and erodible: these are the notable geologic characteristics 
of the Ventura River watershed’s mountains. (VWRC, 2015) In just 10 miles (as the crow flies), the 
surface of the watershed rises from sea level to the top of Mount Arido at 6,010-foot elevation (gain of 
601 feet per mile). Even steeper is the elevation gain from downtown Ojai, at 746-foot elevation, to the 
top of Chief Peak at 5,560-foot elevation in just six miles (gain of 802 feet per mile). These dramatically 
steep mountains of the watershed squeeze more water out of the air, but shed that water quite quickly, 
making for fast-moving, “flashy” storm flows. 
 
 



 
 

46 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FIGURE 2-3 
SOILS WITHIN VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED 

 
 



 
 

47 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Geologically, the mountains are primarily comprised of 3-million to 70-million-year-old (Tertiary) 
sedimentary rocks—sandstones, siltstones, conglomerates, and shales originally deposited in horizontal 
layers. (VRWC, 2015) Although these bedrock sequences have been severely deformed by folding and 
faulting, they remain fairly well consolidated and have low permeability relative to the unconsolidated 
alluvial deposits of the valley floors. They are, however, highly erosive. 
 
The 15 percent of the watershed that is relatively flat is found largely along the broad valley floors 
associated with the Ventura River, its stream channels, alluvial fans, and river terraces. (VRWC, 2015) 
This includes the area of the City of Ojai, the orchards of the Ojai Valley’s east end, the valley floor of 
Upper Ojai, and the broad valley along the main stem of the Ventura River. These broad, flat valley 
floors are largely filled with relatively shallow unconsolidated alluvial deposits of silt, sand, gravel, 
cobbles, and boulders eroded from the surrounding mountains over millions of years.  
 
In the coastal zone, significant landforms include the Ventura River delta and the beach. The delta is 
the area of land where the Ventura River meets the Pacific Ocean. As fast-moving, sediment-filled 
floodwaters approach the ocean, they spread out and slow down, depositing boulders, cobble, and 
sediments. Over time, this deposition has built up a two-mile long, arc-shaped bulge in the coastline 
that extends from beyond Emma Wood State Beach above the river mouth to just short of the Ventura 
pier. 
 
Soils are classified by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) into one of four hydrologic soil groups—A, B, C, or D—based on the 
water infiltration rate when the soils are not protected by vegetation, are thoroughly wet, and are 
receiving precipitation from long-duration storms. (VRWC, 2015) Finer-grained soils (clays) have very 
low water-infiltration rates but a high water holding capacity compared with larger-grained soils (sands 
and small gravels) that exhibit the opposite characteristics. 
 
The map of the watershed’s hydrologic soil groups (see Figure 2-3) indicates that the areas of 
significant infiltration of water into the soil are the alluvial fan heads (near Senior, McNell, Thacher, 
and San Antonio creeks), as well as in Upper Ojai, and on land under and adjacent to the Ventura River 
itself. (VRWC, 2015) These areas, indicated as group “B” on the map, are generally composed of 
coarser sediments. 
 
Jurisdictions within the watershed area include the following: County of Ventura (49.1%), US Forest 
Service (47.7%), City of Ojai (1.9%), City of Ventura (1.2%), and Santa Barbara County (3.9%). 
(Walter, 2015). 

2.3  SERVICE AREA CLIMATE: 

The climate within Casitas MWD service area is Mediterranean, which is characterized by cool, wet 
winters and warm, dry summers. However, climate does vary significantly based on distance from the 
Pacific Ocean, elevation, area drainage, and slope aspect. Details regarding temperature, precipitation, 
effective precipitation, and evapotranspiration are provided below. 



 
 

48 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

2.3.1  Temperature 
Winter low temperatures can fall below freezing in inland areas and rise above 100 degrees Fahrenheit 
in the summer, affecting higher water demand from customers. Temperatures along the coast are 
moderated by the ocean and seldom reach the inland extremes. Coastal marine fog occurs throughout 
the year but usually is present from May until July, generally burning off in the inland areas, but may 
persist all day on the coast. Hot, dry easterly winds (locally known as Santa Ana’s) typically occur in 
the fall, which increases evapotranspiration (ET) and increases agricultural and landscape water use. 
Average monthly temperatures range from 35.9 F (January low) to 91.5 F (August high). (WRCC, 
2016) See Table 2-1 for additional data. See Appendix F Worksheets No. 8-9 for a summary of the 
climate characteristics. Maximum recorded temperature is 119 F (June 16, 1917), while the minimum 
recorded temperature is 13 F (January 6, 1913). (WRCC, 2016) 

2.3.2  Precipitation 
Precipitation, as reported by the United States National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
(NOAA), weather station No. 46399 located at Ojai, averages 21.2 inches annually. (WRCC, 2016) For 
comparison, the average precipitation at the NOAA Ventura station near the coast is 14.5 inches 
annually. Nearly 96 percent of annual local rainfall occurs from October to April. See Table 2-1 for 
additional data. See Appendix F Worksheets No. 8-9 for a summary of the climate characteristics. 
Maximum recorded annual precipitation is 47.30 inches (1978), while the minimum recorded annual 
precipitation is 4.35 inches (1947). (WRCC, 2016) Maximum recorded daily precipitation is 9.05 inches 
(February 24, 1913). 

2.3.3  Effective Precipitation 
Effective precipitation is the amount of precipitation that is actually added and stored in the soil. There 
are numerous methods for calculating effective precipitation including empirical-based (direct 
measurement) and formula-based (indirect estimate). All estimates of the effectiveness of precipitation 
depend on several factors such as the amount and intensity of precipitation, character and water holding 
capacity of the soil, and plant characteristics, etc. The estimated effective precipitation is calculated 
based on a formula-based method (USBR, 1967) for agricultural land. The formula uses an 
effectiveness percentage as applied to increments of monthly precipitation. For example, for the first 1 
inch of monthly precipitation, the effectiveness percentage is 90 to 100 percent. The effectiveness 
percentage decreases to 0 to 10 percent for monthly precipitation greater than 6 inches. The number of 
effective inches per month is converted to gallons based on the factor of 27,116 gallons per acre per 
inch of precipitation. (USGS, 2016) The estimated effective precipitation for the agricultural land 
within the Casitas MWD service area for the Fiscal Years 2011 to 2015 ranges from approximately 
3,479 AF (2013) to 7,504 AF (2011). See Appendix F Worksheet No. 42 for a summary of the 
estimated effective precipitation. 
 



 
 

49 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 2-1 
CLIMATE DATA 

Month 

Average Maximum 
Temperature 

(oF) (1) 

Average Minimum 
Temperature 

(oF) (1) 

Average 
Precipitation 
(inches) (1) 

2015 Evapotranspiration 
(inches) (2) 

January 66.6 35.9 4.92 2.22 
February 67.9 38.0 4.94 2.42 
March 70.1 39.9 3.53 3.94 
April 74.0 43.1 1.42 4.83 
May 77.4 46.9 0.40 5.99 
June 83.4 50.3 0.07 6.02 
July 90.9 54.5 0.02 6.50 
August 91.5 54.3 0.04 6.54 
September 88.7 52.1 0.27 5.19 
October 82.1 46.7 0.66 3.73 
November 74.7 40.3 1.82 2.38 
December 67.9 36.4 3.13 1.65 
Annual 77.9 44.9 21.22 51.39 

Notes: 
(1) Western Region Climate Center, Ojai Station No. 046399, 2016. 
(2) Casitas MWD, 2016. 

2.3.4 Evapotranspiration 
Evapotranspiration (ET or ETo) is defined as the water lost from an area through the combined effects 
of evaporation from the ground surface and transpiration from the vegetation. Sun, wind, temperature, 
and humidity are some of the factors that influence how much water various plants need for any given 
day. This information is helpful to our customers that have agriculture or large landscapes. It allows 
them to adjust their watering practices so they are the more efficient in the application of water. The 
District operates two weather stations with ET sensors (see Casitas MWD website: 
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=exapotranspiration-data-et). One weather station is in the 
Rincon area near the coast and the other station is in the Ojai Valley. The weather conditions can vary 
significantly further inland, which creates different water needs for those customers. The data collected 
from these stations is updated to the Casitas MWD website daily. 

The average annual ET for the Ojai Valley weather station is 51.39 inches as indicated in Table 2-1. 
Table 2-1 indicates that the 2015 ET for the months of May, June, July, and August are approximately 
6 inches per month. See Appendix F Worksheets No. 8-9 for a summary of the climate characteristics. 

2.4  HISTORY OF CASITAS MWD 

The western portion of Ventura County, California, which includes unincorporated portions of Ventura 
County, the City of Ojai, and the City San Buenaventura, struggled with water shortage issues in the 
early to middle 1900’s. At the beginning of the 1900’s, western Ventura County began to experience 



 
 

50 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

growth in agriculture and population. The primary growth areas, the City of Ventura and Ojai Valley, 
relied on either diverting river flows or groundwater pumping to satisfy water demands. By the 1930’s, 
the local agriculture and cities began to experience drought conditions and question the reliability of 
their water supplies. The first half of the twentieth century experienced several drought periods and 
caused western Ventura County to consider various options to increase local water supply reliability. 
 
In 1952, formation of the Ventura River Municipal Water District (VRMWD, which later was renamed 
Casitas Municipal Water District, in 1971) was quick to follow with a request of the United States 
Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) to make a water requirement and water 
supply study for western Ventura County. Customers of the VRMWD had been noting the progress of 
the Cachuma Project in Santa Barbara County and were pleased with the effective handling of the 
Cachuma Project. By March 1953, VRMWD and the USBR entered into a cooperative investigation 
contract. By the fall of 1953, USBR investigators completed reconnaissance-level studies to determine 
the approximate long-range water requirements, comparison of the merits of available dam sites, and 
determination of the river diversion and storage capacity required to meet the long-term water needs of 
the area (Bennett, 1967). The feasibility study also considered the recreational benefits that the project 
would have for the area. 
 
The USBR summarized the approach to estimating safe-yield for the Ventura River Project’s (Project) 
as follows: “In general, for smaller reservoirs the most intense drought is critical, while for larger 
reservoirs the drought with the greatest product of length times mean deficiency is critical. 
Reconnaissance studies indicated that for Casitas MWD Reservoir [now Lake Casitas] at 250,000 acre-
feet the greatest drought of record (length times mean deficiency) is critical”. (USBR, 1954) 
 
Construction of the Project was completed in 1959 and Lake Casitas filled for the first time in 1978, 
with demands for water developed to full safe-yield levels by 1990. The Project serves as a primary 
supply for many direct customers and as a supplemental, or backup supply, for groundwater users 
during times of drought. Additional details regarding the physical system of the Project are provided 
below in Section 2.5 and history of the Project are provided in Section 4.3. 

2.5  CMWD PHYSICAL SYSTEM - DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES AND WATER 
TREATMENT 

Casitas MWD’s water supply comes completely from local water sources. The main source of water 
supply for Casitas MWD is Lake Casitas, which has a full capacity of 254,000 acre-feet of water. The 
reservoir when full covers a surface area of 2,760 acres and has 32 miles of shoreline. It is 200 feet at 
its deepest spot. Source water for Lake Casitas is direct rainfall on the lake surface, local watershed 
runoff from Coyote and Santa Ana Creeks, and diversions from the Ventura River made through the 
Robles Diversion Facility and canal. Maximum diversion rate at the Robles Diversion Facility is 500 
cubic feet per second. See Appendix F Worksheets 2-6 for additional details regarding the Casitas 
MWD infrastructure. Additional details provided in Section 4. 
 



 
 

51 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Casitas MWD also maintains and operates one (1) well with a capacity of approximately 300 acre-feet 
per year. Water from the well exceeds the State’s maximum contaminate level for nitrate and is blended 
with Lake Casitas water to meet health and safety regulatory standards for nitrate before delivery to the 
Casitas MWD customers. Additional details provided in Section 4. 
 
Casitas MWD’s distribution system includes approximately ninety-seven (97) miles of main and 
distribution pipelines, nine (9) pumping plants, and thirty million (30,000,000) gallons of treated water 
stored in fourteen (14) steel reservoirs located throughout the Casitas MWD service area. Casitas MWD 
meters all of its direct service customers, including meters on all connections to other water agencies. 
Resale water agencies in the Casitas MWD service area meter their own customers. Balancing 
reservoirs placed throughout the system at various elevations presently regulate water system pressures 
within Casitas MWD’s distribution system. These elevations are determined from the requirements of 
various zones of service ranging from sea level to 1,500 feet above sea level. Because of the variations 
in terrain and microclimates in the Casitas MWD service area, the water requirements of individual 
customers vary widely within the various zones. Some areas of the Casitas MWD that have excessive 
pressures require pressure-reducing stations. The vast majority of customers are furnished between 50 
to 80 pounds per square inch pressure at their meters. See Appendix F Worksheets 2-6 for additional 
details regarding the Casitas MWD infrastructure. 
 
In 1995, Casitas MWD added a sixty-five million (65,000,000) gallon per day pressure filtration 
treatment plant that enables Casitas MWD to meet the regulations set forth in the State of California 
Surface Water Treatment Rules. The plant continues to meet its original water quality objectives. 
Casitas MWD further treats filtered water with chloramination for disinfection and additives for 
corrosion control, as directed by the State Department of Drinking Water. 

2.6  CMWD RESALE CUSTOMERS 

The following is a description of the various agencies that are resale classification customers of the 
Casitas MWD. 

2.6.1  Golden State Water Company 
The Golden State Water Company (GSWC) provides service to an area approximately equal to the 
limits of the City of Ojai. GSWC relies on groundwater extractions from the Ojai Groundwater Basin 
and supplements the groundwater supply with additional water from Casitas MWD service connections. 
Groundwater is the preferred and least expensive of the two water sources. GSWC has the highest water 
rates of any agency in the Casitas MWD service area, which has led to a reduction in water demand use 
by its customers. 

2.6.2  Hermitage Mutual Water Company 
The Hermitage Mutual Water Company (HMWC) provides service to a limited area in the foothills 
north of the Ojai Valley. The HMWC customer base is primarily agriculture with several large 
residential estates. The primary source of water is from wells in the Ojai Groundwater Basin and a 6-
inch supplemental connection to Casitas MWD. Water use is driven by agricultural water demands, 



 
 

52 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

attributed to local annual rainfall conditions and conditions in the Ojai Groundwater Basin. The HMWC 
water demands have remained fairly consistent from year to year, and can be expected to remain 
consistent in the future without any foreseen changes to land use.  

2.6.3  Meiners Oaks Water District 
The Meiners Oaks Water District (MOWD) provides water service to a limited area which is not 
expected to have an appreciable growth in water demands over the next twenty years. MOWD relies 
primarily on two wells in the Ventura River and has only relied on Casitas MWD during infrequent 
system emergencies (i.e., 1985 Wheeler Fire). Future demand increases on the Casitas MWD water 
supply would be dependent upon increased severe drought frequency. 

2.6.4  Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company 
The Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company (SCMWC) provides service to a limited area located in 
the east end of the Ojai Valley. The SCMWC customer base is a mix of residential, large residential, 
and agricultural land use. The primary source of water supply are three wells in the Ojai Groundwater 
Basin and diversions from a tunnel and creek source. SCMWC uses Casitas MWD water as a secondary 
source of water to buffer peak demands and as a drought contingency supply. The SCMWC water 
demands have remained fairly consistent from year to year, and can be expected to remain consistent 
in the future without any other foreseen changes to land use. System improvements could decrease 
reliance on the Casitas MWD water supply.  

2.6.5  Siete Robles Mutual Water Company 
The Siete Robles Mutual Water Company (SRMWC) provides service to a limited housing tract that is 
located southeast of the City of Ojai. The source of water for SRMWC is a well in the Ojai Groundwater 
Basin, and one service connection to Casitas MWD. SRMWC has been self-reliant on its well water 
except during high nitrate events or emergency well repair periods. Water demands within SRMWC 
are expected to remain consistent in the future without any foreseen changes to land use. 

2.6.6  Sisar Mutual Water Company 
The Sisar Mutual Water Company (SMWC) provides service to a limited area that is partially in the 
Casitas MWD boundary, located in the northeast area of the Upper Ojai Valley. SMWC has been self-
reliant on its water wells and on a one 4-inch connection to Casitas MWD as an emergency water 
source. Water use in SMWC has remained consistent over the past ten years and is expected to remain 
relatively constant in the future. 

2.6.7  Tico Mutual Water Company 
The Tico Mutual Water Company (TMWC) provides service to a limited area in Mira Monte. The 
TMWC customer base is small residential with limited prospects of water use expansion. The TMWC 
water source is one small water well in the Mira Monte area and one 2-inch service connection to 
Casitas MWD as a backup supply. Water use in TMWC has remained consistent over the past ten years 
and is expected to remain so in the future. 
 
 



 
 

53 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

 
2.6.8  City of Ventura 
The City of Ventura (City) service area is partially within the Casitas MWD boundary and partially 
outside of the Casitas MWD boundary. This Plan only considers the part of the City service area that is 
within the Casitas MWD boundary. The City has a portfolio of water resources that includes water well 
extractions in the Ventura River near Foster Park, rights to recycled water from the Ojai Valley Sanitary 
District treatment plant, several connections to a Casitas MWD pipeline, and groundwater sources from 
the east end of Ventura. The City and Casitas MWD have a 1995 water service agreement to secure a 
minimum of 6,000 acre-feet annual purchase of water from Casitas to the City. The City has indicated 
that there is a potential for specific projects and land use changes that will cause water purchases from 
Casitas MWD to increase from approximately 5,260 AF in 2015 to potentially 8,000 AF by 2025. (City 
of Ventura, 2015) 

2.6.9  Ventura River Water District 
The Ventura River Water District (VRWD) provides service to a limited area which is not expected to 
have an appreciable growth in water demands over the next twenty years. VRWD relies primarily on 
two wells in the Ventura River and only relies on Casitas MWD when groundwater sources become 
depleted. VRWD is proactive with its customers in requesting timely water use reductions to lessen the 
demand for Casitas MWD water. Future demand increases on the Casitas MWD water supply would 
be dependent upon increased drought frequency. 

2.7 SERVICE AREA POPULATION 

Population growth in the district paralleled population growth in southern California until 
approximately 1960. Population within the Casitas MWD’s service area in 1960 was approximately 
45,000. In 2010, the Casitas MWD served directly and indirectly a population of approximately 68,557. 
(CMWD, 2011) See Table 2-2, and Appendix E Table 3-1 for details. Casitas MWD is the primary 
and or backup water supply for nine water purveyors within the Casitas MWD and for some individual 
agricultural customers with groundwater wells. Casitas MWD has nearly 3,200 customers in total with 
2,925 direct urban customers, 249 agricultural meters, and 23 resale meters. 
 
The current population forecast for the Casitas MWD’s service area reflects a very low growth period 
through the year 2040. There is a large population within the Casitas MWD’s boundaries that are served 
by other water agencies. Casitas MWD’s largest customer, the City of Ventura, and the City of Ojai are 
projected to have a 0.5 percent annual increase in population during the period 2020 to 2040 according 
to data from the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG, 2016). This average annual 
population growth rate is approximately the same as for the whole of California as indicated by the 
California Department of Finance (2015) for the period 2015-2060. Using conservative (high) 
estimates, the Casitas MWD projects the service area population to reach 72,063 by the year 2020 and 
79,622 by 2040 (see Table 2-2 and Appendix E Table 3-1). These population increases are dependent 
on availability of Casitas MWD’s surface water supply and local groundwater. 



 
 

54 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 2-2 
CASITAS MWD SERVICE AREA POPULATION  

Population 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 
CMWD Service 
Area (1,2,3) 68,557 70,288 72,063 73,883 75,748 77,661 79,622

Notes: 
(1) CMWD, 2016. 
(2) Casitas MWD 2010 service area population from CMWD UWMP, 2011. 
(3) Casitas MWD service area population for 2015-2040 based on growth rate 0.5 percent per year (SCAG, 2016). 

The low population growth is likely to limit overall customer water demand in the future because most 
of this growth is likely to occur in resale agencies service area, which will allow other agencies 
groundwater sources to supplement the increased demand.  

2.8  LAND USE 

Land use within the Casitas MWD service area includes agriculture, residential, and commercial 
properties. Land use within the CMWD service area is regulated by the City of Ojai and City of Ventura 
within their respective boundaries, and by the County of Ventura for the unincorporated area of the 
Casitas MWD.  

Agricultural customers within the Casitas MWD service area include approximately 5,372 acres of 
irrigated crops. Irrigated crops in 2014 include avocados, hay, lemons, oranges, strawberries, 
tangerines, and walnuts (see Table 2-3 below for details). Table 2-4 indicates the number of irrigated 
acres within the Casitas MWD service area for the period 2011-2015 increased from 4,837 acres to 
5,354 (nearly 10 percent). This increase may have been due to agricultural customer’s greater reliance 
on Casitas MWD water during consecutive dry years. Table 2-4 also indicates the number of irrigated 
acres that received 100 percent Casitas MWD water as compared to the irrigated acres that receive 1 to 
99 percent Casitas MWD water for the period 2011-2015. During the period 2011-2015, the number of 
acres that received 100 percent Casitas MWD increased by 11 percent. Mini-sprinklers and drip 
irrigation are the most common methods of crop irrigation. See Appendix F, Worksheets 21-23 for 
additional details related to irrigated agriculture within the Casitas MWD service area.  

 



 
 

55 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 2-3 
ACRES OF IRRIGATED AGRICULTURE WITHIN SERVICE AREA BY CROP TYPE 

Crop Type Acres (1) 
Avocados 2,409 
Hay 340 
Lemons 453 
Miscellaneous fruit 357 
Oranges (Navel) 307 
Oranges (Valencia) 1,039 
Pasture 94 
Strawberries 40 
Tangerines 276 
Walnuts 57 

Total 5,372 
Notes: 
(1) Total irrigated acres for calendar year 2014. Source: CMWD, 2016.  

TABLE 2-4 
ACRES OF AGRICULTURE WITHIN SERVICE AREA BY SOURCE OF WATER 

Irrigated Acres (1) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Irrigated acres using 
100% CMWD water 2,996 2,960 2,931 3,174 3,361 

Irrigated acres using 1-
99% CMWD water 1,841 1,905 1,897 1,980 1,993 

Total 4,837 4,865 4,828 5,154 5,354 

Notes: 
(1) Total irrigated acres for calendar year 2014. Source: CMWD, 2016.  

2.9  CMWD OPERATIONS 

2.9.1  Operating Rules and Regulations 
Casitas MWD is responsible for operation of the Lake Casitas and the distribution system (see Section 
2.5 for details).  
 



 
 

56 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

A copy of the Casitas MWD’s Rates and Regulations for Water Service (2009) is available at the 
website:  
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/Rates%20&%20Regs%20Board%20Adopt
ed%2012%2016%202009.pdf . Copies of the Casitas MWD’s Rules and Regulations are also 
available upon request. See Appendix F, Worksheets 10-18 for additional details related to Casitas 
MWD policies. In addition, water shortage allocation policies for the Casitas MWD are provided in 
Section 6. Copies of these documents are available from Casitas MWD upon written request. 
 
The Casitas MWD prepared and regularly updates the Casitas Dam Emergency Action Plan and 
CMWD Emergency Response Plan (2004a). 

2.9.2  Water Delivery Measurements 
All of the Casitas MWD surface water supplies and ground water supplies are metered. The Casitas 
MWD utilizes turbine meters for meters 2 inches and larger. These meters have an accuracy of 98 
percent to 102 percent. For meters 2 inches and smaller, the Casitas MWD utilizes propeller meters See 
Appendix F, Worksheets 10-13 for additional details related to water allocation and delivery 
measurements. All of the Casitas MWD direct customers are metered. Casitas MWD has meters for all 
of the Resale customers. 

2.9.3  Water Rate Schedules and Billing 
The Casitas MWD currently has inclining block water rates (also known as conservation rate), where 
the cost per unit of water increases with the quantity of water used for all residential accounts. 
Customers are billed monthly for 100 percent of the volume of water used. A copy of the Casitas MWD 
current rate schedule is provided in Appendix G (and available on the Casitas MWD website: 
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/2013-4.pdf . 
 
The current commodity rate for agricultural customers is $0.624 to $0.904 per 100 cubic feet (HCF) 
depending on elevation of the property. The current commodity rate for agriculture-residential 
customers is $0.602 to $1.770 per HCF depending on usage and elevation of the property. The current 
commodity rate for all residential customers is $0.602 to $2.614 per HCF depending on usage and 
elevation of property. The current commodity rate for commercial, industrial, resale, other, temporary, 
and recreational customers is $$0.827 to $1.785 per HCF depending on customer category, usage, and 
elevation of the property. In addition, the Casitas MWD has an additional meter fee per customer meter 
size (see copy of rate schedule in Appendix G). The current monthly meter fee ranges from $23.34 per 
month (5/8 to 3/4 inch) to $812.42 (6-inch). See Appendix F, Worksheets 14-16 for additional details 
related to the CMWD rate structure and billing. 
 
The Casitas MWD has the legal authority to evaluate and set rates for its customers. Casitas MWD rates 
are subject to change. Casitas MWD is currently evaluating a change in waters rates. Casitas MWD 
may reduce the inclining block rate structure to one or two blocks. 
  



 
 

57 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

2.10  PREVIOUS WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

The Casitas MWD has prepared several applicable documents related to local water resources. One of 
the most notable documents is the Casitas MWD Urban Water Management Plan (adopted 2011). The 
UWMP includes similar elements as the AWMP including descriptions of the service area, water 
demands, water resources, water resources reliability, and demand management measures (also known 
as conservation measures or efficient water management practices). 
 
In addition to the UWMP, Casitas MWD has prepared additional documents related to local water 
resources management including, but not limited to, the following: 

CMWD. 2015. Water Efficiency and Allocation Program. Copy provided in Appendix K. 

CMWD. 2004. Water Supply and Use Status Report. Copy provided in Appendix H. 

CMWD. 1988. Ojai Groundwater Basin Study. Prepared by Murray, Burns, and Kienlen. 

CMWD. 2010. Operations Plan – Marion R. Walker Pressure Filtration Plant. 
 
Applicable documents prepared by other agencies related to local water resources management include, 
but not limited to, the following: 

Golden State Water Company. 2011. Urban Water Management Plan. Prepared by Kennedy/Jenks 
Consultants. 

Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Agency. 2014. 2011 and 2012 Annual Report. 

Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Agency. 2007. Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Plan (and 
updates). Copy provided in Appendix I. 

Ojai Valley Sanitary District. 1992. Reclaimed Water Feasibility-Marketing Study. Prepared by Boyle 
Engineering. 

Ventura County Watershed Protection District. 2014. County of Ventura 2013 Water Supply and 
Demand. Prepared by HydroMetrics. 

City of Ventura. 2015. Comprehensive Water Resources Report (and updates). Prepared by Michael 
Baker International. 

City of Ventura. 2011. Urban Water Management Plan. Prepared by Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 

City of Ventura. 2007. Feasibility Study on the Reuse of Ojai Valley Sanitary District Effluent- Final 
Facilities Planning Report. Prepared by Brown and Caldwell, et al. 

Ventura River Watershed Council. 2015. Ventura River Watershed Management Plan. 

Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County. 2014. Integrated Regional Watershed Management Plan 
(addendums included).  



 
 

58 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

SECTION 3 – SYSTEM WATER USES 
3.1  DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS 

3.1.1 UWMP Requirements 
This section will include the following: 

 Quantify past, current, and projected water use, identifying the uses among water use sectors. 
(CWC, 10631(e)(1)) 

 Report the distribution system water loss for the most recent 12-month period available. (CWC, 
10631(e)(3)(A)) 

 Include projected water use needed for lower income housing projected in the service area of 
the supplier. (CWC, 10631.1(a)) 

 Retail suppliers shall adopt a 2020 water use target using one of four methods. (CWC, 
10608.20(b)) 

 Retail suppliers shall provide baseline daily per capita water use, urban water use target, interim 
urban water use target, and compliance daily per capita water use, along with the bases for 
determining those estimates, including references to supporting data. (CWC, 10608.20(e)) 

 Retail suppliers’ per capita daily water use reduction shall be no less than 5 percent of base daily 
per capita water use of the 5 year baseline. This does not apply if the suppliers base GPCD is at 
or below 100. (CWC, 10608.22) 

 Retail suppliers shall meet their interim target by December 31, 2015. (CWC, 10608.24(a)) 

 If the retail supplier adjusts its compliance GPCD using weather normalization, economic 
adjustment, or extraordinary events, it shall provide the basis for, and data supporting the 
adjustment. (CWC, 10608.24(d)(2)) 

 Wholesale suppliers shall include an assessment of present and proposed future measures, 
programs, and policies to help their retail water suppliers achieve targeted water use reductions. 
(CWC, 10608.36) 

 Retail suppliers shall report on their progress in meeting their water use targets. The data shall 
be reported using a standardized form. (CWC, 10608.40) 

3.1.2 AWMP Requirements 
This section describes the water uses for agricultural, environmental, recreational, municipal and 
industrial, groundwater recharge, transfers and exchanges, and other water uses within the agricultural 
water supplier’s service area.  

Water Code §10826 (b) requires a description of the quantity of all underlying items, including the 
water uses identified under §10826 (b)(5). Section 10826 (b)(5) requires that the AWMP include a 
description of the following:  



 
 

59 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

“Water uses within the agricultural water supplier’s service area, including all of the following:  

(A) Agricultural.  

(B) Environmental.  

(C) Recreational.  

(D) Municipal and industrial.  

(E) Groundwater recharge.  

(F) Transfers and exchanges.  

(G) Other water uses”.  

The legislation also does not require a specific method, timescale, or other parameters for quantifying 
water uses under this element in this section. Additionally, Executive Order B-29-15 directs that 
AWMP include quantification of water supplies and demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent 
data are available.  

If available, it is suggested (but not required) that quantities of water used from each water source 
within the service area, for each water use type, be reported along with additional information that can 
be used in determining the overall water budget. This would allow for greater flexibility in water 
management planning.  

In order to provide a meaningful and consistent basis for water accounting in accordance with Water 
Code §10826 (b)(7), it is suggested that:  

 Information be reported using the same year(s) and timeframe for all water use types as listed 
under Water Code §10826 (b)(5).  

 Monthly or bi-monthly water usage data is provided for each water use type.  

 Data for each water use type can be presented in a similar format as shown in the Worksheets 
20 through 29. Depending upon the number of locations or complexity regarding each type of 
water use in the service area, this table can be expanded or summarized as necessary. For 
instance, for a particular water use type, if the same amount of water is required each year and/or 
each month, it would not provide more information to report monthly use for the past five years; 
reporting the consistent demand quantity and a notation to that effect would be essentially the 
same.  

If special management or usage areas have been identified in Section II of the AWMP, it would further 
assist in water management planning to provide a table of water use estimates, delineating the water 
use in each applicable area for each water use type (e.g., agriculture, environmental, and others).  

It is suggested that the AWMP also include a detailed description of their basis for reporting water 
quantities:  

1. What year(s) are used to describe the water quantities, and if there were any special conditions 
relevant to the determination of quantities (e.g., excessively wet year, water measurement system 
only partially implemented, couldn’t measure a particular source or use, or others).  



 
 

60 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

2. A Representative Year and/or the Plan Cycle year can be used as a basis for determining water 
quantities. 

CADWR encourages water supplier to use the same basis (year(s)) and timeframe (e.g., Water Year 
months, calendar year, or other) to report water quantities in all tables/descriptions in Sections III 
through IV of the AWMP (detailed in Sections 3.3 through 3.5 of this Guidebook). For example, the 
agricultural water supplier could use the first Plan Cycle year 1 (2012/2013) data and identify that data 
is based on the Water Year from October 2012 to September 2013.  

CADWR encourages agricultural water suppliers to report water quantities based on a Plan Cycle 
yearly-basis and include information for the past five years. In accordance with Executive Order B-29-
15, quantification of water demands is to be reported for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is 
available.  

If a Representative Year is used to describe and tabulate water uses and supplies, it should be defined 
and the year(s) it is based on identified. The Representative Year can be an average or a range of 
hydrological variation: Drought, normal, and wet years. The rationale/description of what constitutes a 
Representative Year(s) should be included in this section, if applicable (refer to Worksheet 19).  

If water uses are estimated instead of measured, CADWR encourages the agricultural water supplier to 
provide justification and documentation of calculations and data used for the estimation. This 
information can be summarized in the discussion pertaining to quantification of the specific supplies 
and/or uses with details included as an attachment in Section VIII. This information can also provide 
the basis for the Aggregated Farm Gate Delivery Report.  

For water management planning, it is often advantageous to estimate future water use demands. While 
not required, the agricultural water supplier can also include a description of any anticipated changes 
or trends in water demand within their service area in order to facilitate the AWMP’s use as a planning 
document. This could include changes in water use related to the following: 

 Changes in crop types resulting in different crop water use requirements than current conditions.  

 Expected market fluctuations that would affect the type and amount of crops grown.  

 Increased water use efficiency that would reduce water uses through reduced non-recoverable 
water.  

 Increased energy costs that would potentially reduce the amount of water used from higher 
energy sources (e.g., pumped groundwater); and/or,  

 Anticipated changes in land use (e.g., conversion of agricultural land to developed land).  

3.2  CUSTOMER CLASSIFICATIONS 

3.2.1  Residential 
Residential customers are typically single-family residences. The residential classification also includes 
a limited amount of multi-residential accounts. Casitas MWD is providing additional residential water 
allocations only if additional water supply is identified. Casitas MWD is also implementing water 



 
 

61 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

conservation best management practices that are likely to reduce water usage as well. Limited growth 
in new housing due to economic and land planning factors are also likely contributing factors to this 
decrease. The number of new customers over the last five years averaged five per year, most being 
residential customers and some agricultural-residential customers. Casitas MWD does not anticipate 
any growth in this category. 

3.2.2  Multiple-Family Residential 
The Casitas MWD recently added the customer category for multiple family. Data regarding annual 
use and trends are very limited at this time. 

3.2.3  Agricultural 
Agricultural classification includes customers with agricultural properties with total water use of greater 
than 50 units per month. The United States Bureau of Reclamation has classified approximately 12,500 
acres of land as irrigable lands within Casitas MWD district boundaries. Casitas MWD provides water 
service to nearly 5,400 acres irrigated lands (see Section 2 Table 2-4, and Appendix F Worksheets 
20-23 for details). Some agricultural lands are served by a private well or receive water from other 
water agencies. Based on Casitas MWD’s 2014 crop report data, Casitas MWD provides water directly 
to 3,361 acres and supplements groundwater use on approximately 1,993 acres of irrigated crop lands. 
Casitas MWD water is provided for primarily avocado and citrus orchards, and a limited amount of 
flowers, strawberries, apples and walnuts (see Section 2, Table 2-3 for details). Agricultural water 
demand will fluctuate depending on weather conditions, but generally demands an annual average of 
two and a half acre-feet per acre for inland areas and two acre-feet per acre on the coast. Agricultural 
water demand is not expected to increase over the next twenty years. Agricultural expansion requires 
approval and purchase of additional allocation, which is cost prohibitive for most agricultural interests. 
Casitas MWD recently had 5 acre-feet of agricultural water allocations purchased.  

3.2.4  Agricultural-Residential 
Agricultural properties with minor residential water use. Total water use must be less than 50 units per 
month. 

3.2.5 Business 
Businesses directly served by the Casitas MWD range from small restaurants, gas stations, beauty shops 
and small strip malls to two local golf courses. Casitas MWD is implementing water conservation best 
management practices that are likely to reduce some water usage. Casitas MWD does not anticipate 
any growth in this category. 

3.2.6  Industrial 
A limited number of industrial customers are served directly by the Casitas MWD. Industrial services 
are primarily oil field and gas production facilities. High-pressure water injection for oil recovery is the 
primary use of the industrial demand. The changes in the economics of the oil industry may result in 
greater oil pumping, which could result in greater water usage in this sector. Recently, a large oil 
producer converted a part of its Casitas MWD water demand to an alternative groundwater source and 



 
 

62 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

lessened the demand for Casitas MWD water. The industrial classification includes approximately 24 
acre-feet per year (0.3 percent) with 11 meters. 

3.2.7  Interdepartmental 
This classification is for the Casitas MWD’s own services, which includes the Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area, Dam tender’s house, and Casitas MWD’s office. This usage represents a small portion of Casitas 
MWD’s overall usage. 

3.2.8  Institutional/Government 
This classification includes government and non-profit organizations. Water demand in this category is 
not expected to change much since the number of customers is unlikely to change.  

3.2.9  Resale 
Within Casitas MWD’s boundaries there are nine other public and private water agencies known as 
resale customers (see Section 2.6 for details). Resale customers represent approximately 45 percent of 
Casitas MWD annual water demands. The majority of the resale agencies are primarily dependent upon 
available local groundwater as one of their main sources of water supply. The resale agencies rely on 
Casitas MWD as a primary supply, and/or supplemental supply, and/or drought contingency supply. 
 
The City of Ventura generally relies on Casitas MWD water to provide 100 percent of the water supply 
for the portion of the City within the CMWD service area. The City of Ventura forecasts purchases 
from Casitas MWD for the years 2015-2025 at 5,409 acre-feet per year. (City of Ventura, 2015) 

3.2.10  Classifications Unavailable 
Casitas MWD does not currently separate customer accounts with the category of “landscape”.  

3.3  CURRENT WATER USES 

Total annual water demand includes water delivered to the various Casitas MWD customer 
classifications, minor losses in the distribution system due to leaks, and flushing of the system for water 
quality maintenance. The phrases “water demand” and “water use” will be used interchangeably 
throughout this document. Casitas MWD water demand can vary dramatically from year to year. Casitas 
MWD water demand can range from 11,694 acre-feet in 1993 (wet water-year) to 24,416 acre-feet in 
1989 (dry water-year). (CMWD, 2016) Water demand is closely tied to local precipitation. During wet 
years, there is a major reduction in water demand compared to dry years.  
 
During dry water-years, resale and agricultural water demand for Casitas MWD water supply can 
increase dramatically when local groundwater sources become diminished or no longer available. 
During dry periods, resale and agricultural customers rely more on Casitas MWD’s surface water, and 
in some cases rely exclusively on water deliveries from Lake Casitas, until groundwater supplies are 
replenished by rainfall events. Depending on the severity and duration of the drought period, it could 
be anticipated that any one or more resale agencies and or agricultural customer will have limited 
groundwater supply and may rely on Casitas MWD for the balance of essential water supply needs. 
 



 
 

63 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Water consumption within the Casitas MWD service area has decreased slightly in recent years. Table 
3-1 includes a summary of total water demands for 2000-2015. Upon comparison of 2000 demands and 
2015 demands, Table 3-1 indicates that total demands decreased by nearly 14 percent, The Casitas 
MWD has promoted and coordinated extensive demand management programs including water 
allocations and public outreach (see Sections 6 and 7) which are likely drivers for the decrease in water 
demand. Other factors that may contribute to the decreased water demand include, but not limited to, 
minimal population growth and limited new water demands. 
 
The historical record of annual water deliveries from Lake Casitas is significantly impacted by drought 
conditions, especially during the multiple years of drought conditions that occurred from 1988 to 1991. 
By the early 1990’s, the number of new accounts added annually diminished considerably as the area 
became nearly built out. Locally, years with above average precipitation are associated with low water 
demand, and years with below average rainfall are associated with increases in water demand. Resale 
and agricultural customer groups have a much stronger influence on Casitas MWD water demands 
during low rainfall periods, as compared to the Casitas MWD residential customers that show very little 
response to weather conditions. Residential water demand represents a small portion of the overall 
demand within Casitas MWD service area. Agricultural customers have a higher rate of increase in 
water demand versus residential customers during low annual rainfall years because their primary 
groundwater sources become depleted quickly and they then must rely on Casitas MWD’s surface water 
supplies. Casitas MWD’s water demand has historically increased during drought conditions due to the 
nature of Casitas MWD being a backup water supply to local groundwater resources that quickly 
diminish during drought conditions. Casitas MWD’s Lake Casitas reservoir is managed as a long term 
water supply with a 21-year safe yield of 20,840 acre-feet based on the historical 1944-1965 drought 
cycle under certain conditions as highlighted in the “Water Supply and Use Status Report” (CMWD, 
2004). A copy of this report is provided in Appendix H. 
 
In 1989, Casitas MWD’s supply and demand studies indicated water demand was approaching the 
annual safe-yield and any significant increase above existing levels could ultimately lead to demand 
out-stripping supplies. A continued water supply deficit could lead to future supply shortages during 
long-term drought conditions. In 1992, Casitas MWD’ Water Efficiency and Allocation Program was 
adopted by the Casitas MWD’s Board of Directors to encourage efficient use of water to reduce overall 
water demand and to ensure the safe annual yield of supply would not exceed the critical 21,920 acre-
feet per year average (as it was determined at that time). Average demand is not anticipated to increase 
above the current safe-yield of 20,840 that is derived from the “Water Supply and Use Status Report”. 
(CMWD, 2004). Casitas MWD has taken additional steps to limit future demand, including changes in 
the allocation program. The Ojai City Council adopted a growth management plan that restricted 
housing and population growth to less than 1 percent annually through 2010. Census data reported in 
2011 indicated that the City of Ojai had a 5 percent decrease in population (for the 2000-2010 period).  
 
Table 3-1 summarizes the Casitas MWD water demands for recent Fiscal Years 2000, 2005, 2010, and 
2015. Table 3-1 indicates the 2000 demands were 19,389 AF (average water-year), including sales to 
other agencies of 7,186 AF (37%), agricultural sales of 9,115 AF (47%), and non-agricultural retail 
sales of 3,088 AF (16%). In comparison, Table 3-1 indicates that Casitas MWD water demands for 



 
 

64 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

2015 (dry water-year) were 16,747 AF; including sales to other agencies of 6,192 AF (37%), 
agricultural sales of 8,048 AF (48%), and non-agricultural retail sales of 2,507 AF (15%). See 
Appendix E Table 4-1 for additional details. By comparison of 2000 demands and 2015 demands, 
Table 3-1 indicates that total demands decreased by nearly 14 percent, sales to other agencies decreased 
by 994 AF (14%), agricultural sales decreased by 1,067 AF (12%), and retail sales decreased by 581 
AF (19%). Much of this decrease in water demand is the direct result of demand management measures 
implemented by the Casitas MWD and regional water agencies (as discussed in Section 7). 

TABLE 3-1 
PAST AND CURRENT POTABLE WATER USES 2000-2015 

Category (1) 2000 2005 2010 2015 

Sales to other agencies 7,186 7,118 6,482 6,192 

Agricultural sales (2) 9,115 8,939 6,398 8,048 

Retail sales (2) 3,088 2,821 2,427 2,507 

Total 19,389 18,877 15,307 16,747 

Notes: 
(3) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. Data does not include water losses. 
(4) Direct sales to CMWD customers. 

Table 3-2 summarizes the Casitas MWD retail water uses for 2015. In 2015, Casitas MWD total retail 
water demands were 10,554 AF, including agriculture sales (historically the category with highest water 
demand) of 8,048 AF (76%), and residential sales (including single-family and multiple-family 
accounts) of 1,512 AF (14%). Table 3-2 excludes sales to other agencies. 
 
Table 3-3 summarizes the agricultural water use for the period 2011-2015. As previously noted, local 
agricultural water demand is historically the highest water demand for Casitas MWD. In addition, 
agricultural water demand within the Casitas MWD service area can vary dramatically from year to 
year. Agricultural customer groups have a much stronger influence on Casitas MWD water demands 
during low rainfall periods. Agricultural customers have a higher rate of increase in water demand 
during low annual rainfall years because their primary groundwater sources become depleted quickly 
and they then must rely on Casitas MWD’s surface water supplies. Table 3-3 indicates that annual 
average agricultural water use within the service area was 7,425 AF for the period 2011-2015, including 
a low of 5,206 AF in 2011 to a high of 9,427 AF in 2014. For additional details related to agricultural 
water demands see Appendix F, Worksheets 20-22. 



 
 

65 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 3-2 
RETAIL WATER USES FOR 2015 

Category (1,2) 2015 Retail  
Water Use 

Percent of Retail 
Water Use 

Residential (3) 1,512 14 

Commercial 587 6 

Industrial 29 0.3 

Interdepartmental/Governmental 159 1.5 

Agriculture (4) 8,048 76 

Recreation 0 0 

Environmental 0 0 

Other (5) 219 2.1 

Total 10,554 100 
Notes: 
(1) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 
(2) Excludes sales to other agencies. 
(3) Includes accounts for single-family and multi-family residential. 
(4) Includes all agriculture accounts including accounts with domestic use on site. 
(5) Includes accounts for fire, temporary, transfers and exchanges, etc. 

3.4  WATER LOSSES 

Casitas MWD prepared a water audit as defined by the American Water Works Association. For Fiscal 
Year 2015, Casitas MWD estimated water losses at approximately 670 acre-feet. This annual water loss 
amount represents approximately 4 percent of sales. See Appendix E Table 4-4 for additional details. 
 



 
 

66 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 3-3 
AGRICULTURAL WATER USE 2011-2015 

Category 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Agricultural Sales (1) 5,206 6,295 8,151 9,427 8,048 

Notes: 
(1) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

3.5  PROJECTED WATER USES 

The Casitas MWD is not anticipating a significant change in population growth within its service area 
boundaries within the next twenty-five years. The low population growth is likely to limit overall 
customer water demand in the future because most of this growth is likely to occur in resale agencies 
service area, which will allow other agencies groundwater sources to supplement the increased demand. 
Resale agencies seeking additional water supplies from Casitas MWD will need to negotiate additional 
water allocations from Casitas MWD and or find other water supplies including additional groundwater 
sources, recycled water, and or implement additional water demand management programs. 
 
Table 3-4 summarizes the Casitas MWD projected water uses for the period 2020-2040 (see Appendix 
E Tables 4-2 and 4-3 for additional details). Table 3-4 indicates the period 2020 to 2030 total water 
demands are projected to be approximately 17,200 AF (average water-year). For the period 2020 to 
2030 (during average water-years), sales to other agencies are projected to be 6,200 AF, agricultural 
sales 8,000 AF, and non-agricultural retail sales of 3,000 AF. For the period 2030 to 2040, total water 
demands are projected to be approximately 17,500 AF. For the period 2030 to 2040, Table 3-4 indicates 
that sales to other agencies are projected to be 6,500 AF, agricultural sales 8,000 AF, and non-
agricultural retail sales of 3,000 AF. Casitas MWD estimates that agricultural sales and retail sales will 
remain fairly consistent for the period 2015 to 2040 due to current and future demand management 
measures implemented within the service area (as discussed in Section 7). 

3.6  WATER USE FOR LOWER INCOME HOUSEHOLDS 

As a wholesale agency, Casitas MWD is not required to include the projected water use for lower 
income households. 
 
  



 
 

67 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 3-4 
PROJECTED POTABLE WATER USES 2020-2040 

Category (1) 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Sales to other 
agencies 6,200 6,200 6,500 6,500 6,500 

Agricultural sales (2) 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 

Retail sales (2) 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Total 17,200 17,200 17,500 17,500 17,500 
Notes: 
(3) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. Data does not include water losses. 
(4) Direct sales to CMWD customers. 

3.7  WATER CONSERVATION ACT OF 2009 

In February 2008, former Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger introduced a seven-part comprehensive 
plan for improving the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. A key component of this plan was a goal to 
achieve a 20 percent reduction in per capita water use statewide by the year 2020 (also known as the 
20x2020 target). As a wholesale agency, Casitas MWD is not required to establish and meet targets for 
daily per capita water use in compliance with the 20x2020 target. In addition, wholesale agencies are 
not required to complete the SB X7-7 verification form. Details are provided in Section 7 regarding the 
present and proposed Casitas MWD measures, programs, and policies that may assist retail agencies 
within the Casitas MWD service area achieve 20x2020 water use reduction targets.  
 
However, Casitas MWD has been working diligently to comply with water conservation regulations 
imposed by State Water Resources Control Board and Governor Jerry Brown in 2015. Casitas MWD 
is required to meet a reduction in cumulative water demand of 32 percent upon comparison of current 
monthly demands with demands in 2013. This requirement took effect in June 2015. To date, the Casitas 
MWD has reduced water demands by over 777,000,000 gallons in 9 months (over 86,000,000 gallons 
per months) for a cumulative reduction of 21.9 percent. The Casitas MWD anticipates implementing 
additional demand management measures in the near future in order to achieve compliance with the 32 
percent water demand reduction requirement. Details regarding demand management measures are 
provided in Section 7. 
 
  



 
 

68 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

SECTION 4 – SYSTEM SUPPLIES 
4.1 DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS 

4.1.1 UWMP Requirements 

 Identify and quantify the existing and planned sources of water available for 2015, 2020, 2025, 
2030, 2035, and 2040 (optional). (CWC, 10631(b)) 

 Indicate whether groundwater is an existing or planned source of water available to the supplier. 
(CWC, 10631(b)) 

 Indicate whether a groundwater management plan has been adopted by the water supplier or if 
there is any other specific authorization for groundwater management.  Include a copy of the 
plan or authorization. (CWC, 10631(b)(1)) 

 Describe the groundwater basin. (CWC, 10631(b)(2)) 

 Indicate if the basin has been adjudicated and include a copy of the court order or decree and a 
description of the amount of water the supplier has the legal right to pump. (CWC, 10631(b)(2)) 

 For unadjudicated basins, indicate whether or not the department has identified the basin as 
overdrafted, or projected to become overdrafted. Describe efforts by the supplier to eliminate 
the long-term overdraft condition. (CWC, 10631(b)(2)) 

 Provide a detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the past five years. (CWC, 10631(b)(3)) 

 Provide a detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater that is 
projected to be pumped. (CWC, 10631(b)(4)) 

 Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-term or long-term 
basis. (CWC, 10631(d)) 

 Describe the expected future water supply projects and programs that may be undertaken by the 
water supplier to address water supply reliability in average, single-dry, and multiple-dry years. 
(CWC, 10631(g)) 

 Describe desalinated water project opportunities for long-term supply. (CWC, 10631(h)) 

 Retail suppliers will include documentation that they have provided their wholesale supplier(s) 
– if any - with water use projections from that source. (CWC, 10631(j)) 

 Wholesale suppliers will include documentation that they have provided their urban water 
suppliers with identification and quantification of the existing and planned sources of water 
available from the wholesale to the urban supplier during various water year types. (CWC, 
10631(j)) 

 For wastewater and recycled water, coordinate with local water, wastewater, groundwater, and 
planning agencies that operate within the supplier's service area. (CWC, 10633) 



 
 

69 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

 Describe the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the supplier's service area. Include 
quantification of the amount of wastewater collected and treated and the methods of wastewater 
disposal. (CWC, 10633(a)) 

 Describe the quantity of treated wastewater that meets recycled water standards, is being 
discharged, and is otherwise available for use in a recycled water project. (CWC, 10633(b)) 

 Describe the recycled water currently being used in the supplier's service area. (CWC, 10633(c)) 

 Describe and quantify the potential uses of recycled water and provide a determination of the 
technical and economic feasibility of those uses. (CWC, 10633(d)) 

 Describe the projected use of recycled water within the supplier's service area at the end of 5, 
10, 15, and 20 years, and a description of the actual use of recycled water in comparison to uses 
previously projected. (CWC, 10633(e)) 

 Describe the actions which may be taken to encourage the use of recycled water and the 
projected results of these actions in terms of acre-feet of recycled water used per year. (CWC, 
10633(f)) 

 Provide a plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier's service area. (CWC, 
10633(g)) 

4.1.2 AWMP Requirements 
Water Code §10826 requires that the AWMP:  

“(b) Describe the quantity and quality of water resources of the agricultural water supplier, 
including all of the following: 

(1) Surface water supply  
(2) Groundwater supply  
(3) Other water supplies  
(4) Source water quality monitoring practices  
(5) Drainage from the water supplier’s service area”  

The legislation does not specify the mechanisms or level of detail that would satisfy requirements for 
describing the quantity of water supplies. For each water source type, CADWR encourages agricultural 
water suppliers to include discussions on origin (there may be multiple origins for a particular water 
source—for example, groundwater supplies can be obtained from different groundwater basins), 
customers, and use limitations of each water supply source in either the AWMP Template or the 
Worksheets provided. 

Discuss the potential if possible for the district to obtain or utilize additional water supplies. These 
supplies could include transfers from another water agency or district, the use of recycled water and 
desalination of brackish groundwater or drainage water.  

If wholesale water supplies are received from another supplier or you provide water to another water 
user, the AWMP should make note of this. For water obtained from wholesale sources, the agricultural 



 
 

70 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

water supplier can include a reference to the wholesalers UWMP/AWMP and a brief summary of the 
water supply’s origin. 

The Water Code requires a description of the estimated or calculated quantities of water supplies for 
each of the three major categories of water supply sources used within the service area (surface water, 
groundwater, and ‘other’ water), as well as a description of the estimated or calculated quantities of 
drainage water leaving the service area. In order to provide a meaningful and consistent basis for water 
accounting, in accordance with Water Code §10826 (b)(7), the following is suggested:  

1. Information be reported using the same year(s) for all descriptions of water resources and uses, 
including: quantity and quality of water supplies from sources listed under Water Code§10826 (b); 
quantity and quality of the service area drainage; and, amounts of water used from each source. 

2. Provide monthly or bi-monthly water usage data for each water supply source and for the service 
area drainage. 

3. Data for each water supply source and the service area drainage be presented as shown in the 
Worksheets 20 through 29 or similar format(s). Depending upon the number of locations or 
complexity of each water supply source or service area drainage outlets, these tables can be 
expanded or summarized as necessary. For instance, for a particular water supply source, if the 
same amount of water is available each year and/or each month, it is not necessary to report monthly 
water supplies for the past five years; although a notation to that effect would be helpful. 
Conversely, if supplies are more complex (e.g., the service area drainage discharges to two different 
watersheds), multiple tables are advised. 

4. The average year water supply quantities and projects to increase water supplies are described 
for each water supply.  

5. The descriptions note any restrictions or operational constraints associated with the supplier’s 
water supplies, if applicable, for each water supply type.  

6. Information on water transfers and exchanges, both short- and long- term agreements and 
opportunities is provided.  

If quantities are estimated, the agricultural water supplier is encouraged to provide justification and 
documentation of calculations and data used for the estimation(s) in the AWMP.  

If special management or usage areas have been identified in Section II of the AWMP, a table or tables 
with water supply estimates for each water supply source available to each applicable area would further 
assist in water management planning. 

The Water Code requires that the AWMP: “Include an analysis, based upon available information, of 
the effect of climate change on future water supplies” [Water Code §10826 (c)] 

 

 



 
 

71 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

4.2  CURRENT WATER SUPPLIES 

Casitas MWD relies on surface water and groundwater sources to meet the water demands of the area. 
The following is a description of each water source, source limitations (physical or political), and water 
quality for each source. Table 4-1 summarizes the quantities of water supplies in the Casitas MWD 
water portfolio for Fiscal Years 2011-2015. Table 4-1 indicates that for the period 2011-2015, the 
Casitas MWD average water supply is 17,293 AF with a range from 14,745 AF (2011) to 20,457 AF 
(2014). In addition, see Appendix E Worksheets 30 and 34, and Appendix F Tables 6-1, 6-4, and 6-
8 for additional details. Each of the current water supply sources are summarized in the following 
sections. 

TABLE 4-1 
PAST AND CURRENT WATER SUPPLIES 2011-2015 

Water Supply Sources (1) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 
Local surface water (Lake Casitas) 14,678 15,233 18,233 20,415 17,339
Local groundwater (Mira Monte Well) 67 232 173 42 54
Imported surface water  0 0 0 0 0
Transfers in or out (2) 0 0 0 0 0
Exchanges in or out  0 0 0 0 0
Recycled water  0 0 0 0 0 
Desalination  0 0 0 0 0 
Other  0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 14,745 15,465 18,406 20,457 17,393

Notes:   
(3) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. Fiscal Years. 
(4) Transfer to Carpinteria Valley Water District. 

4.2.1  Local Surface Water 
4.2.1.1  Introduction 
The primary source of water for the Casitas MWD is from the collection and storage of precipitation 
and runoff from the local Ventura River watersheds. The Ventura River lies within the Transverse 
Ranges in western Ventura County and a small portion in eastern Santa Barbara County. The watershed 
encompasses 226 square miles (144,833 acres) and is 33.5 miles long from upper Matilija Canyon to 
the Pacific Ocean (see Figure 4-1). (Walter, 2015) The Ventura River is the watershed’s primary 
waterway. Matilija Creek and the North Fork of Matilija Creek converge to form the Ventura River 
approximately 15 miles from the Pacific Ocean. Its two principal tributaries are San Antonio Creek 
from the east and Coyote Creek from the west.  
 



 
 

72 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FIGURE 4-1 
VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED 



 
 

73 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Topography in the watershed is rugged with steep gradients ranging from 40 feet per mile at the mouth 
to 150 feet per mile at the headwaters. Elevation within the watershed ranges from 6,010 feet above sea 
level in Matilija Canyon to 0 feet above sea level at the Ventura River estuary. The gradient at Robles 
dam is 70 feet per mile, at highway 150 is 70 feet/mile, 50 feet/mile at confluence with San Antonio 
Creek, 40 feet/mile at Foster Park and 40 feet/mile from Foster Park to the ocean. (RWQCB, 2002) 
 
Precipitation in the Ventura River watershed is extremely unpredictable and characterized by long 
periods of little or no rainfall followed by short periods of intense precipitation with high runoff peaks. 
Annual average precipitation within the watershed is approximately 14 inches (and 22 inches at Casitas 
Dam), with a range from 5 to 40 inches. Additional local climate data provided in Section 2.3. 
Groundwater basins composed of alluvial aquifers are highly interconnected with the surface water 
system and are quickly recharged or depleted, according to surface flow conditions. Additional details 
regarding the Ventura River groundwater basins are provided in Section 4.5. 
 
Flow in the Ventura River fluctuates seasonally and from year to year as is typical with many southern 
California systems. Annual average flow of the Ventura River is approximately 13,600 acre-feet. The 
Ventura River is an interrupted stream made up of reaches that flow perennially (Lower Ventura River) 
with intervening reaches that flow intermittently. From headwaters to the Robles dam, the river is 
perennial (for a distance of approximately 10 km). The flow is intermittent from Robles Dam to the 
confluence with San Antonio Creek. Historically, there has been little or no surface flow in the river in 
the summer between Hollingsworth Ranch (8 miles above estuary) to the former Soper's Ranch (14 
miles inland). (RWQCB, 2002) There is a geologic discontinuity at Casitas Springs that causes 
groundwater to rise and feed a perennial stretch of the surface flow below San Antonio Creek. Surface 
flows in this reach comes from San Antonio Creek, Live Oaks Acres Creek, small springs and rising 
groundwater. Between the confluence with San Antonio Creek and Foster Park flow is perennial with 
some disruption at Foster Park by the groundwater extraction.  
 
The Lower Ventura River frequently has a perennial flow to the estuary due to rising groundwater and 
treated wastewater discharge. Another major influence on habitats is the seasonal and at times 
catastrophic winter floods that can significantly alter the path of the river channel, topography of the 
floodplain and delta, and location of estuarine wetlands. Floods that result in extensive damage have 
occurred about every 12 years. (RWQCB, 2002) The largest flood event between 1929 and 1971 
occurred in 1969 and was recorded at 58,000 cfs. Channel migration in 1978 and 1982 also caused 
damage even with lesser flows. Large floods temporarily remove most of the vegetation, greatly alter 
topography, and completely redefine the habitats and occurrence of vegetation.  

Local watersheds are primarily located in the Los Padres National Forest and lands purchased by the 
United States for protection of the water quality in Lake Casitas. The watersheds within the Forest area 
do accommodate a small number of residential homes with individual septic systems and minimal 
public access for recreation. Casitas MWD has also sought cooperative measures to prevent mining and 
other water quality impact activities in the Forest watersheds. Water quality from the Coyote and 
Matilija watersheds is not influenced by industrial or municipal waste discharges.  



 
 

74 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Developed land (excluding grazing) comprises only about 13 percent of the total land area in the 
watershed. Agriculture is the dominant land use. Citrus and avocados are the primary irrigated crops 
grown, and a significant area of land is used for cattle grazing. Conditions in the watershed remain 
natural and undeveloped, with 57 percent of its land area in protected status. Most of the watershed’s 
primary streams and drainages remain unchannelized. 

4.2.1.2  Supply Alternatives 
The western portion of Ventura County, California, which includes unincorporated portions of Ventura 
County, the City of Ojai, and the City San Buenaventura, struggled with water shortage issues in the 
early to middle 1900’s. At the beginning of the 1900’s, western Ventura County began to experience 
growth in agriculture and population. The primary growth areas, the City of Ventura and Ojai Valley, 
relied on either diverting river flows or groundwater pumping to satisfy water demands. By the 1930’s, 
the local agriculture and cities began to experience drought conditions and question the reliability of 
their water supplies. Western Ventura County cities and agriculture recognized that local groundwater 
sources and surface diversions alone were not reliable and were inadequate for both agricultural use 
and for municipal and industrial purposes. Development of an additional water supply was urgently 
needed in western Ventura County for stabilization of present agriculture and other economic activities, 
for new irrigated lands, for new industry, a rapidly expanding population, and for new economic 
opportunities. (USBR, 1954) 
 
In 1933, the State issued Bulletin No. 46, Ventura County Investigation, in response to the filing of 
applications to appropriate water from the extreme headwaters of Sespe Creek. This plan would import 
Sespe Creek water by way of a proposed tunnel to the Ventura River watershed. Bulletin No. 46 
identified that agriculture within the Ventura River Basin had grown to 4,535 acres. Bulletin No. 46 
considered, with the lack of any other data, that the 1892 through 1932 period was assumed to have 
established a normal or long-time average rainfall and run-off, and that all conclusions as to water 
supply were made on this assumption. It was further recognized in Bulletin No. 46, that Ventura County 
went through two successions of wet and dry cycles, each cycle persisting for approximately twenty 
years that were evenly divided between a wet or dry period.   
 
The conclusion of Bulletin No. 46 was that the Ventura River Basin would provide ample supply if the 
City of Ventura had the ability through its facilities to extract water from the Ventura River. Likewise, 
in the Ojai Valley, use of groundwater appeared to be more than sufficient to meet demand within the 
Ojai Groundwater Basin. Bulletin No. 46 did recognize that fluctuations in the water table were drastic 
with wet and dry cycles. However, when the water table was high, there was waste by seepage out of 
the Basin and it was suggested that spreading of water for basin recharge might come about as 
development increases.   
 
The Significance of Bulletin No. 46 was that there appeared to be plenty of water to meet the demands 
over the course of the study period. Bulletin No. 46 did not address the conditions that were experienced 
during the two ten-year dry cycles. This may have promoted local action to consider to appropriate 
additional water supplies from the Sespe Creek, which is in a different watershed and miles away from 
the Ventura River Basin. Bulletin No. 46 appears to oversimplify the comparison between the average 



 
 

75 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

water availability and the average demand for the forty-year period. However, Bulletin No. 46 
recommended actions that were developed in the following decade – primarily for more local water 
source (Matilija Dam) and recharging the Ojai Groundwater Basin during drought conditions. 
 
By 1940, the County of Ventura began a series of reconnaissance and water supply evaluation studies 
to consider a variety of dam site alternatives, and to develop a surface water supply on the Ventura 
River that could buffer the drought and augment groundwater supplies. The drought period of 1944 
through 1951 was first responded to by the Ventura County Flood Control District with a joint flood 
control and water storage-spreading project known as the Matilija Dam Project. The Matilija Dam was 
erected on the Matilija Creek and completed in 1948. By 1950, with little water stored behind the 
Matilija Dam and the continuation of drought conditions, the County of Ventura pursued additional 
investigations through consulting engineers and the State of California, as described in Bulletin No. 12 
(California, 1950). Bulletin No. 12 recommended development of surface water supplies to augment 
the local groundwater basins. Bulletin No. 12 went one step further in viewing the water needs and 
water quality issues of the entire Ventura County, by also suggesting water importation from the 
Colorado River and Feather River. This finding supported the County’s interest in development of 
additional water supplies including the California State Water Project to bring northern California water 
to southern California. Bulletin 12 states the following:  
 

“As has been stated, the security of existing developments and economies in Ventura County is 
threatened by water supply shortages which develop during periods of drought, by perennial 
lowering of ground water levels, and by the intrusion of sea water into pumped aquifers.  
Furthermore, the growth and enhancement of the economy of portions of the County have been 
impeded by the lack of firm water supplies. Elimination of present water resource problems and 
provision for indicated increased future water requirements of the County would require the 
development of additional water supplies”. (California, 1950, pages 3-59) 

4.2.1.3  Ventura River Project 
In 1952, formation of the Ventura River Municipal Water District (VRMWD; renamed Casitas 
Municipal Water District in 1971) was quick to follow with a request of the United States Department 
of Interior, Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) to make a water requirement and water supply study for 
western Ventura County. The people of the VRMWD had been noting the progress of the Cachuma 
Project in Santa Barbara County and were pleased with the effective handling of the Cachuma Project. 
By March 1953, VRMWD and USBR entered into a cooperative investigation contract. By the fall of 
1953, USBR investigators completed reconnaissance-level studies to determine the approximate long-
range water requirements, comparison of the merits of available dam sites, and determination of the 
river diversion and storage capacity required to meet the long-term water needs of the area. (Bennett, 
1967) The feasibility study also considered the recreational benefits that the project would have for the 
area. The USBR’s Feasibility Report (1954) recognized the need for water supply development, as 
stated in the following:  

1)  “Development of an additional firm water supply is urgently needed in the Ventura River Project 
Area. Although the overall safe yields of the ground-water basins are approximately in balance with 



 
 

76 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

the amounts used, maldistribution of the use in relation to the supply now exists. Consequently, 
additional quantities are needed to serve some areas of insufficient ground-water storage capacity. 
This situation applies particularly to the developed lands lying around the edge of the Ojai Valley 
where wells went dry during the recent drought”. 

2)  “The City of Ventura is in critical need of additional water supplies under conditions of present 
development”. 

3)  “Ventura County is receiving more than its proportionate share of the present population growth 
of the State. This is due to its favorable location, agriculture, industrial, and commercial activities, 
and climatic and scenic attractions. This growth is expected to continue”. 

As an Appendix to the USBR Report (1954), operational studies were developed for the Ventura River 
Project. In the Water Resources Appendix, the USBR describes the runoff characteristics of the Ventura 
River Basin as follows: 

“Runoff from stream in the Ventura River Basin is derived almost entirely from rainfall, 
consequently exhibits the same monthly and seasonal variations as the rainfall.  Since there is no 
accumulation of snow in the watershed, all streams diminish fairly rapidly in flow at the conclusion 
of the rainfall season. Small summer flows are maintained in the upper reaches of the larger 
watersheds by springs (Plate 15). Following severe storms, discharge in the Ventura River has been 
known to increase in a few hours from practically no flow to a rate of thousands of cubic feet per 
second. Seasonal runoff has varied from a maximum in excess of 400 percent of the mean to a 
minimum of less than 5 percent of the mean”.  

 
The USBR summarized the approach to safe-yield for the Ventura River Project (Project) as follows: 
“In general, for smaller reservoirs the most intense drought is critical, while for larger reservoirs the 
drought with the greatest product of length times mean deficiency is critical.” (USBR, 1954) The USBR 
determined in its analysis a safe yield and prediction of future water demands of 28,000 acre-feet 
annually that would be needed from the supplemental water supply. In the initial sizing of the Project, 
the USBR considered the Project requirement to provide an adequate water supply during the longest 
period of drought on record. The USBR determined that a 250,000 acre-foot capacity reservoir was 
needed to provide this level of annual demand.  
 
The Ventura River Project received overwhelming local support with voters approving to pay for the 
$6,400,000 cost by a 31 to 1 margin. The Project also received the support of many federal agencies 
and moved with a sense of urgency to be authorized by Congress, designed, and construction completed 
by 1959. The Project included a storage reservoir to be filled from erratic stream flows with the capacity 
to hold water over a period of several dry years; diversion works to divert water into the reservoir, and 
a conduit system to convey the water to points of use.  
 
The key elements of the Project are Casitas Dam and Reservoir (Lake Casitas), the Robles Diversion 
and Canal on the Ventura River, and the water distribution system that consist of pipelines, pump plants, 
and storage tanks. Figure 4-2 provides a photo of Lake Casitas with Casitas Dam located in middle left 
of photo. Since 1959, Casitas MWD has operated and maintained the Project under a repayment 



 
 

77 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

contract to the United States and in conformance with the guidelines, standard operating procedures, 
standards of the USBR. Casitas MWD was granted the perpetual right to use all water that becomes 
available through the construction and operation of the Project, subject to the satisfaction of vested 
rights. The Project was to be operated in conjunction with the Matilija Dam water supply. 
 
Construction of the Project was completed in 1959, Lake Casitas filled for the first time in 1978, while 
demands for water developed to full safe-yield levels by 1990. The safe-yield refers to a 21-year average 
water demand (currently 20,840 AFY). The late 1980’s and early 1990s drought resulted in water 
demands that exceeded the safe-yield levels temporarily, but due to conservation efforts and some 
industry changes those levels have rarely been reached again. The Project serves as a primary supply 
for many direct customers and as a supplemental, or backup supply, for groundwater users during times 
of drought. 

4.2.1.4 Post Construction 

The quantity of Project water is dependent on local rainfall and runoff from the Coyote watershed that 
is upstream of Casitas Dam and the Matilija watershed that is partially diverted from the Ventura River 
to storage behind Casitas Dam. The Project has been modeled several times in the past to determine a 
safe-yield of the Project storage, and recently Casitas MWD has considered additional influences on 
water supply resulting from the Biological Opinion for the Robles Fish Passage and the planning in 
progress to remove Matilija Dam. According to the peer reviewed Casitas MWD “Water Supply and 
Use Status Report” (2004), safe-yield of the Project during a 21-year drought period is approximately 
20,840 acre-feet.  
 
All water extractions from Lake Casitas are made at Casitas Dam through the intake structure, pipelines, 
and treated to meet State water quality standards prior to the delivery to the first water customer. Water 
quality in Lake Casitas is typical for any deep lake. Key water quality issues that are addressed by 
Casitas MWD are algae blooms resulting in taste and odors, turbidity, dissolved oxygen levels, 
protection from human contamination and invasive species. Lake Casitas does provide a limited 
recreational opportunity, but does not allow body contact activities with the waters of Lake Casitas. 
Casitas MWD manages the recreational aspect of Lake Casitas and provides strict oversight to assure 
lake water quality is maintained at all times. 
 
On September 28, 1982, the California State Water Resources Control Board issued to Casitas MWD 
a License for Diversion and Use of Water of the Ventura River and Coyote Creek in Ventura County. 
License No. 11834 establishes the date of August 16, 1954, as the priority for the water right and the 
amount of water to which the right is entitled and limited to the amount actually beneficially used for 
the stated purposes. The total amount of water to be placed to beneficial use (direct diversion plus 
withdrawal from storage) shall not exceed 28,500 AFY. 



 
 

78 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FIGURE 4-2 
LAKE CASITAS AND CASITAS DAM 

 

The period of 1959 through 1989 was a water use development period during which Casitas MWD 
made numerous water service connections to serve water to western Ventura County. By 1989, during 
the third year of a four-year drought period, water demands from Lake Casitas approached and exceeded 
the safe yield value of Lake Casitas. In 1990, Casitas MWD took specific actions to control the 
expansion of water use beyond a level experienced in 1989 and further evaluated the safe yield of the 
Project (CMWD, 1990).  
 
In 2003, Casitas MWD recognized two specific projects, the decommissioning of Matilija Dam and the 
application of a fish passage at Robles Diversion Dam, that were likely to impact water supply. Casitas 
MWD proceeded to evaluate the water supply impacts of each project, as described in the 2004 Water 
Supply and Use Report. The proposed decommissioning of Matilija Dam had gone through several 
years of study and consideration by federal, state, and local agencies and appeared to be on a rapid track 
to decommissioning. The storage capacity behind Matilija Dam had diminished by way of collective 
siltation and was further described as an obstruction to the migration of steelhead trout to the upper 
reaches of the Matilija Creek. The initial options for natural transport of sediments downstream of 
Matilija Dam pose a water quality and quantity threat to Casitas MWD’s diversions to Lake Casitas. 
As of 2015, efforts are continuing to find an appropriate project to attain the objectives of 
decommissioning the dam. 
 



 
 

79 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

The application of a fish passage facility at Robles Diversion Dam had specific conditions in the 
Biological Opinion, that water be taken from the diversion and provided downstream of the Robles 
Diversion for steelhead trout migration and passage. The Robles Fish Passage Facility was constructed 
at Robles Diversion Dam in 2005 and operational in 2006, at which time the full effect of the Biological 
Opinion became the standard operating procedure for flow at Robles Diversion Dam. The Biological 
Opinion may be subject to further revision upon determination of scientific data that would support 
changes to the current Biological Opinion, and any such revision may impact diversions to and safe 
yield of Lake Casitas. Presently, Casitas MWD’s “Water Use and Supply Status Report” estimates a 
360 AFY water demand excess over safe yield under the current Biological Opinion, so any additional 
impacts on water supply could further strain long term water supplies. 
 
Table 4-1 summarizes the quantities of water supplies in the Casitas MWD water portfolio for Fiscal 
Years 2011-2015. Table 4-1 indicates that for the period 2011-2015 average surface water supplies is 
17,180 AF with a range from 14,678 AF (2011) to 20,415 AF (2014). In addition, see Appendix E 
Worksheet 30, and Appendix F Table 6-8 for additional details. 
 
Figure 4-3 provides a summary of storage for Lake Casitas for the period April 2006 to April 2016. 
Figure 4-3 indicates that Lake Casitas storage in April 2006 was 252,381 AF, while storage in April 
2016 was 106,158 AF. This represents a reduction of over 146,000 AF over 10 years. 
 
Casitas MWD has evaluated the reliability of the Lake Casitas water supply and its vulnerability to 
climatic and seasonal variations in weather, changes in water demands, and changes to water supply 
operations. “The Water Supply and Use Status Report” (CMWD, 2004) considered the historical 
hydrology of the Ventura River for the period 1945 through 2003 and historical water demands for the 
period of 1983 through 2003. A copy of this report is provided in Appendix H. The hydrology periods 
studied revealed an extensive drought period, associated with the diminishment of local water supply 
as illustrated in Figure 4-4, followed by a series of wet years that result in the restoration of the Lake 
Casitas water supply as illustrated by Figure 4-5. The Report also reviewed historical water demands 
to provide an indication of water demand growth and the influence of climate on agricultural water use 
within Casitas MWD’s service area. 
 
The “Water Supply and Use Status Report” (CMWD, 2004) also evaluated the impact to water supplies 
that could result from federal requirements to release additional water for fisheries and the removal of 
Matilija Dam from the water system. The change in annual safe yield of the Ventura River Project was 
calculated to be 1,930 acre-feet per year, providing a resultant safe yield of 20,840 AFY.  
 



 
 

80 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FIGURE 4-3 
LAKE CASITAS STORAGE 2006-2016 

 

4.2.2  Local Groundwater 
In the Ventura River watershed there are three primary alluvial groundwater basins including: Ojai 
Valley Groundwater Basin/Upper Ojai Groundwater Basin, Upper Ventura River Groundwater Basin, 
and the Lower Ventura River Groundwater Basin. Each of these basins are summarized below. See 
Figure 4-6 for details of the local groundwater basins. Additional details regarding the Ventura River 
watershed are provided in Section 2.3 (climate) and Section 4.3.1 (topography and hydrology).  
 
Casitas MWD is the backup water supply to several groundwater purveyors of the Ventura River and 
Ojai groundwater basins. The groundwater basins are known to be in a depleted state following periods 
with multiple years of below average rainfall, as occurred during the 1986 through 1990 period. Once 
these basins have depleted, water demand shifts from the groundwater basins to the surface water supply 
of Lake Casitas. 
 



 
 

81 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FIGURE 4-4 
LAKE CASITAS STORAGE MODEL BASED ON THE 1944-1965 DROUGHT PERIOD 

 

FIGURE 4-5 
LAKE CASITAS STORAGE MODEL BASED ON THE 1965-1980 RECOVERY PERIOD 

 

Lake Casitas Storage Trend - Drought Period 
1944-1965 Hydrology 

BO Criteria - No Matilija Dam

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

19
44

19
45

19
46

19
47

19
48

19
49

19
50

19
51

19
52

19
53

19
54

19
55

19
56

19
57

19
58

19
59

19
60

19
61

19
62

19
63

19
64

Year

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

St
or

ag
e 

(A
F)

Lake Casitas Storage Trend - Recovery Period 
1965-1980 Hydrology 

BO Criteria - No Matilija Dam

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

19
65

19
66

19
67

19
68

19
69

19
70

19
71

19
72

19
73

19
74

19
75

19
76

19
77

19
78

19
79

Year

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

St
or

ag
e 

(A
F)



 
 

82 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

4.2.2.1  Upper Ventura River Groundwater Basin 
The Upper Ventura River Groundwater Basin (Basin No. 4-3.01) extends from Matilija Dam to Foster 
Park (north to south). The Basin includes approximately 11.6 square miles of area (7,410 acres). 
(California, 2004). See Figure 4-6 for details of the local groundwater basins. The Basin is mainly 
composed of thin alluvial deposits of 20 to 150 feet. Recharge to the Basin is primarily by percolation 
of flow in the Ventura River and, to a lesser extent, by percolation of rainfall to the valley floor and 
excess irrigation water. Total storage capacity for this Basin is estimated to be 10,000 to 35,000 AF. A 
groundwater basin’s total storage capacity (maximum) does not reflect the amount of available water; 
much of that water may not be usable or economically recoverable. Recharge by underflow is estimated 
to be approximately 3,500 AFY. (California, 2004) 
 
The Basin depth is extremely limited in some areas, making most wells in this reach of the river under 
the influence of surface water. Water levels fluctuate seasonally by 5 to 20 feet, but usually recover 
each year during the winter months. There are approximately 291 water supply wells in the Basin; 162 
are active wells. (Ventura County, 2015) Average usage above the Robles Dam over the years is 
approximately 2,800 acre-feet. (CMWD, 1988) A large portion of the extraction within this Basin is for 
local agricultural customers, only a portion of these customers rely on Casitas MWD in the case of a 
long term drought. 

4.2.2.2  Lower Ventura River Groundwater Basin 
The Lower Ventura River Groundwater Basin (Basin No. 4-3.02) is that portion of the Ventura River 
which extends from Foster Park to the Pacific Ocean (north to south). See Figure 4-6 for details of the 
local groundwater basins. Area within the Basin is approximately 8.3 square miles (5,300 acres). 
(California, 2004) Depth to the water bearing unit is 3 to 13 feet below ground surface in the floodplain 
and deeper as the ground surface elevation increases towards the edge of the basin. (Ventura County, 
2015) Limited information indicates that the total storage capacity for this Basin is approximately 
264,000 AF. (California, 2004) A groundwater basin’s total storage capacity (maximum) does not 
reflect the amount of available water; much of that water may not be usable or economically 
recoverable. Estimated available (recoverable) storage within the Basin is approximately 21,000 AF. 
(Panaro, 2016) 
 
Recharge of the Basin occurs via percolation of Ventura River water, precipitation to the valley floor, 
irrigation return flow, and subsurface inflow from the adjacent basins. This Basin had an average yield 
during the period of 1944-1983 of 7,493 acre-feet. (Barnett, 1989) There are approximately 29 water 
supply wells in the Basin; 14 are active wells. During this historic period, the City of Ventura extracted 
an average annual yield of 5,506 acre-feet and the other wells between Robles Dam and Foster Park 
extracted an average annual yield of 1,987 acre-feet. During dry water-years when the full groundwater 
yield is not available, additional water supply must be obtained from alternate sources such as Lake 
Casitas. The City of Ventura forecasts extractions from the Ventura River at Foster Park for 2015-2025 
years at 6,700 acre-feet per year. (City of Ventura, 2015). 
 



 
 

83 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FIGURE 4-6 
VENTURA RIVER GROUNDWATER BASINS 

 



 
 

84 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

4.2.2.3  Ojai Ground Water Basin 
The Ojai Groundwater Basin (Basin No. 4-2) is located in the Ventura River watershed in Ventura 
County. See Figure 4-6 for details of the local groundwater basins. The Ojai Basin lies under the City 
of Ojai and the Ojai Valley’s East End. Its surface area is 6,471 acres (10.1 sq. mi.). Source water for 
the Ojai Basin is local rainfall and runoff that is captured by the alluvium of the Ojai Valley. Thickness 
of the water-bearing alluvium is as much as 715 feet. During wet periods, artesian conditions or springs 
can occur in the southwestern part of Ojai Basin, when the elevation to which groundwater will 
naturally rise exceeds the ground surface elevation. The Ojai Basin has a total storage capacity of 
approximately 70,000 to 85,000AF, with an annual safe-yield of approximately 5,000 AF. (California, 
2004) A groundwater basin’s total storage capacity (maximum) does not reflect the amount of available 
water; much of that water may not be usable or economically recoverable.  
 
The Ojai Basin Ground Water Management Agency (OBGMA) was formed in 1992 to protect the Ojai 
Ground Water Basin. The Ojai Basin serves a large number of people and agricultural acres. There are 
approximately 337 water supply wells in the Basin, with 188 of them active. (Ventura County, 2015) 
Note, the OBGMA states there are 124 active wells in the Basin. (OBGMA, 2014) Wells in the Ojai 
Basin extract water to meet demands for tree crops (mostly citrus and avocados), residents, and 
businesses in the City of Ojai and surrounding areas. Water extracted from the Ojai Basin is used by 
agriculture (54 percent), Golden State Water Company (41 percent; serves potable water to the City of 
Ojai), and by individual residential and landscape irrigation (5 percent). Some water from the Ojai 
Basin is also naturally discharged to San Antonio Creek, supplying native habitats and the animals they 
support, as well as downstream water users. The Ojai Basin is quickly recharged during wet periods, 
and can be rapidly depleted during periods of drought. Average annual extraction from the Basin for 
the 10-year period 2003-2012 was 4,984 acre-feet. (OBGMA, 2014). Some water supplied by Casitas 
MWD, for example excess agriculture and landscape irrigation, also provides indirect recharge to the 
Basin. See Appendix I for a copy of the Groundwater Management Plan for the Basin. 

4.2.2.4 CMWD Groundwater Facilities 
In response to the additional need for water after the Casitas MWD action of 1990 to curb water use 
expansion, Casitas MWD re-activated the 300 acre feet per year Mira Monte Well. This well is located 
in the Upper Ventura River Groundwater Basin. See Figure 4-6 for details of the local groundwater 
basins. Water from this well contains levels of nitrate that exceed the maximum contaminate levels 
established by the State of California. In order to utilize this water, the Casitas MWD blends or dilutes 
the well water with water from Lake Casitas to reduce the nitrate level to meet drinking water standards. 
The well produced 54 acre-feet in 2015 and an average of 114 AFY over the period 2011-2015. Casitas 
MWD anticipates annual production of approximately 300 acre-feet annually for the period 2020-2040 
if no unforeseeable conditions arise. See Tables 4-2 and 4-3 for additional details. 
 
Casitas MWD acquired the Mira Monte Mutual Water Company (MMMWC) in November 1982 along 
with its Mira Monte Well. The MMMWC had gone out of business and deeded the well to Casitas 
MWD. The well was known to have high nitrate values. Treatment techniques to make it a stand-alone 
potable supply are cost prohibitive. Casitas MWD made improvements to blend the high-nitrate well 



 
 

85 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

water with Lake Casitas water, reducing the level of nitrate to meet drinking water standards, and 
amended the domestic water permit with the State Department of Health Services (now Department of 
Drinking Water). The well has demonstrated an ability to provide approximately 300 acre-feet per year 
of water supply. The blending process has been subject to interruption, which resulted in occasional 
shut-downs. The Casitas MWD replaced the pump and electrical motor controls, upgraded 
communication equipment, and modified monitoring and data reporting. 
 
Table 4-2 summarizes the volume of groundwater extracted by Casitas MWD for Fiscal Years 2011-
2015. Table 4-2 indicates that for the period 2011-2015 average annual groundwater extracted is 114 
AF with a range from 42 AF (2014) to 232 AF (2012). In addition, see Appendix E Table 6-1 
Appendix F Worksheet 34, and for additional details. 

TABLE 4-2 
GROUNDWATER PUMPED 2011-2015 

Well (AFY)  2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Mira Monte Well (1) 67 232 173 42 54

Percent of Total Water Supply  0.5 1.5 1.0 0.2 0.3
Notes:   
(1) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

4.2.3  Imported Surface Water - State Water Project 
4.2.3.1  Project Facilities 
The California State Water Project (SWP) is the largest state-built, multi-purpose water project in the 
country. It was authorized by the California State Legislature in 1959, with the construction of most 
initial facilities completed by 1973. The SWP is owned by the State of California and operated by the 
CADWR. The primary purpose of the SWP is to deliver water to 29 urban and agricultural water 
suppliers in Northern California, San Francisco Bay Area, San Joaquin Valley, Central Coast, and 
Southern California, including 20 million urban users and 750,000 acres of farmland. Of the contracted 
water supply, approximately 70 percent goes to urban users and 30 percent goes to agricultural users. 

SWP facilities originate in northern California at Lake Oroville on the Feather River. Figure 4-7 
illustrates the location of major SWP facilities. Storage released from Lake Oroville flows into the 
Feather River, goes downstream to its confluence with the Sacramento River, and then travels into the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta (Delta). Water is pumped from the Delta region to contractors in 
areas north and south of the San Francisco Bay and south of the Delta. SWP deliveries consist solely 
of untreated water. The SWP system currently consists of 700 miles of canals and pipelines, 33 storage 
facilities, 21 reservoirs and lakes, 5 hydro-electric power plants, 4 pumping-generating plants, and 20 
pumping plants. (CADWR, 2013b) 



 
 

86 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

While some SWP supplies are pumped from the northern Delta into the North Bay Aqueduct, the vast 
majority of SWP supplies are pumped from the southern Delta into the 444-mile-long California 
Aqueduct. The California Aqueduct conveys water along the west side of the San Joaquin Valley to 
Edmonston Pumping Plant, where water is pumped over the Tehachapi Mountains and the aqueduct 
then divides into the East and West Branches. In addition to delivering water to its contractors, the SWP 
is operated to improve water quality in the Bay-Delta region, control flood waters, provide recreation, 
power generation, and environmental enhancement.  

4.2.3.2  Reliability 
The CADWR "State Water Project Delivery Reliability Report" provides SWP contractors an 
assessment of the reliability of the SWP component of their overall supplies. “Water delivery 
reliability” is defined as the annual amount of water that can be expected to be delivered with a certain 
frequency. Water delivery reliability depends on three general factors: the availability of water, the 
ability to convey water to the desired point of delivery, and the magnitude of demand for the water. 
SWP delivery reliability is calculated using computer simulations based on 82 years of historical data. 
The CADWR Report (CADWR, 2013a) includes "Table A" which provides a projection of potential 
deliveries of imported surface water for the SWP contractors for the average water year scenario, single 
dry-year scenario, and multiple dry-year scenario. Table A contract amounts do not reflect actual 
deliveries a contractor should expect to receive.  

The CADWR Report (CADWR, 2013a) also discusses factors having the potential to affect SWP water 
delivery reliability including the following: 

 Restrictions on SWP and Central Valley Project (CVP) operations due to new regulations and 
legal findings to protect endangered species 

 Climate change and sea level rise, which is altering the hydrologic conditions in the State 

 Vulnerability of Delta levees to failure due to floods and earthquakes 

 Annual snowpack 

 Reservoir capacity. 

 



 
 

87 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

FIGURE 4-7 
STATE WATER PROJECT FACILITIES 

 

 

Source:  CA DWR. 



 
 

88 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Contractors’ requests for SWP water deliveries cannot always be met. In some years there are water 
shortages, and in other years, water surpluses. It was thought at the time that the SWP was constructed 
that the system could deliver about 50 percent of the allocations in a very dry year. Deliveries for the 
2003-2012 period averaged 2,226,000 AF (53 percent) for Table A allocations. (CADWR, 2013a) The 
2013 Reliability Report provided a projection of CADWR’s water delivery reliability of the SWP for 
the current scenario (year 2013) and future scenario (year 2033). In 2015, SWP contractors received 20 
percent of their SWP allocations. (CADWR, 2016) For the period 2006-2015, SWP contractors 
received an average of 49 percent of their SWP allocations. The last 100 percent allocation, difficult to 
achieve even in wet years due to pumping restrictions designed to protect threatened and endangered 
fish, was in 2006. 
 
The 2013 Reliability Report (CADWR, 2013a) indicated that the SWP, using existing facilities operated 
under current regulatory and operational constraints and future anticipated conditions, and with all 
contractors requesting delivery of their full Table A allocations in most years, could deliver 58 percent 
of Table A allocations on a long-term average basis. However, in a single dry-year (worst case 
scenario), CADWR estimated delivery of an average of only 11 percent of Table A allocations. In a 
four- year drought scenario, the CADWR estimated delivery of an average of 31 percent of Table A 
allocations.  

The 2013 Reliability Report (CADWR, 2013a) recognized continuing challenges to the ability of the 
SWP to deliver full contractual allocations of SWP water. Factors that affect the ability to estimate 
existing and future SWP water delivery reliability include the following: 

 Water availability at the source 
 Water rights with priority over the SWP 
 Climate change 
 Regulatory restrictions on SWP exports 
 Ongoing environmental and policy planning efforts 
 San Joaquin River/Sacramento River Delta levee failure. 

4.2.3.3 Local SWP Entitlement 
Three water agencies in western Ventura County have carried the cost for an entitlement to SWP water 
since 1972. Casitas MWD is the administrator of the Ventura County’s 20,000 AFY entitlement of 
SWP water, which is distributed to Casitas MWD, City of Ventura, and United Water Conservation 
District (5,000, 10,000, and 5,000 AFY, respectively). To date, the City of Ventura and Casitas MWD 
have not received any of the SWP entitlement into the respective service areas. 

4.2.4  Transfers and Exchanges 
Given the location of the Casitas MWD service area and the lack of physical connections to other water 
resources in California, there are limited opportunities for water transfers for Casitas MWD. The two 
opportunities that Casitas MWD may utilize are described in the following sections. 
 



 
 

89 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Water transfers and/or exchanges with other agencies in Ventura County may provide opportunities to 
shift away from the reliance on Lake Casitas’ water during times of depleted water storage in Lake 
Casitas. The City of Ventura has stated an ability to temporarily decrease purchases of the Casitas 
MWD water supply, i.e., during extremely low water storage levels at Lake Casitas, and utilize the 
credits the City has in the Fox Canyon Groundwater Basin. There has been recent (2015) uncertainty 
as to the availability of these water credits. The City of Ventura also may construct a permanent pipeline 
to the City of Oxnard to purchase SWP water from Calleguas Municipal Water District. The success of 
this approach to water transfer would be contingent upon the availability and reliability of other water 
resources, i.e. State water and local groundwater banks, during an extended drought period. During the 
last decade, the reliability of the State Water Project has been questioned and work is ongoing to 
improve reliability of the State Water supply (see Section 4.4 for additional details on the SWP).  

4.2.4.1  Local Groundwater Transfer 
In 1985, Casitas MWD made arrangements for an emergency transfer of groundwater from the Ojai 
Basin to Casitas MWD customers in the Ojai area. There can be conditions in which Lake Casitas is at 
minimum storage and local aquifers are replenished by a single rainfall event, and the needs of the Ojai 
area can only be met by inter-agency agreements to utilize the Ojai Basin. Casitas MWD has worked 
with many of the local groundwater agencies during times of emergencies to provide alternative 
emergency supplies. The proximity of system interconnections and political decisions make these types 
of arrangement physically possible. These periods are likely to be short term, or less than six months in 
duration.  

4.2.4.2  Transfer with Carpinteria Valley Water District 
Table 4-1 indicates that, for the period 2011 to 2015, Casitas MWD transferred 0 AF to other agencies. 
In addition, see Appendix E Worksheet 28 for additional details. Casitas MWD can transfer water to 
the Carpinteria Valley Water District (CVWD). An 8-inch piped connection exists between the CMWD 
and CVWD systems. If more flow is required than the capacity of the existing 8-inch pipeline can 
deliver, as was the case in 1987 to 1991 drought, then an overland pipe could be installed to convey the 
additional flow. An emergency water exchange agreement remains in place between Casitas MWD and 
CVWD. This transfer option is considered a limited potential water supply by both agencies. 
 
The Casitas MWD provided an annual average of 7.6 AF to CVWD for Casitas MWD customers for 
the period 2011-2015. The Casitas MWD transfers the CMWD water for sale to CMWD customers 
adjacent to the CVWD service area (an area without a CMWD pipeline). Therefore, the Casitas MWD 
considers this water part of the CMWD annual customer demands and not a transfer. 

4.2.5  Desalinated Water 
Casitas MWD currently does not produce nor receive desalinated water. Table 4-1 indicates that Casitas 
MWD does not currently receive desalinated water. 

 
 
 



 
 

90 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

  4.2.6  Recycled Water 
Casitas MWD currently does not produce nor receive any recycled water. Table 4-1 indicates that 
Casitas MWD does not receive recycled water. 

4.3  WATER QUALITY 

The Casitas MWD has both surface water and groundwater sources which present very different water 
quality issues. Surface water comes from Lake Casitas (from the Ventura River watershed) and the 
groundwater is locally produced via Mira Monte Well. The District meets all water quality requirements 
of the California Division of Drinking Water (CADDW, formerly Department of Public Health). A 
copy of a recent Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) is provided in Appendix J. Additional details 
related to water quality are provided in Appendix E Worksheets 36-39. 
 
The Marion R. Walker Filtration Plant is a high-rate in-line pressure filtration plant. Features include 
horizontal pressure filters, continuous real-time monitoring and alarm systems, and the application of 
chlorine. The filter plant clarifies and reduces turbidity in the water. Silt and other natural materials that 
are removed from the water are placed in drying beds and later hauled off to the landfill. 
The filtration plant also has a pilot plant attached. This is a small-scale treatment plant that simulates 
the full-scale treatment plant. It is used to evaluate variations in water quality testing and to offer 
different treatment options. 
 
A significant amount of water drains into the lake from the watershed, or travels over land before 
entering the rivers or canal that lead to the lake. Because of this Casitas MWD takes steps to preserve 
the watershed areas. The Ventura River Watershed Boundary encompasses miles of land stretching 
from the Santa Barbara County/Ventura County line, throughout the Las Padres National Forest to the 
service area boundary in Upper Ojai, and south through the City of Ventura to Mills Road. The Project 
Watershed is the area directly around the lake. The Teague Watershed encompasses approximately 
3,500 acres of land-most of it adjacent to the recreation area. There is a total of approximately 228 
square miles of watershed area throughout the Casitas MWD service area. In order to more closely 
supervise the quality of your water, the federal government started buying land in 1974 in what is now 
the Charles M. Teague Open Space Memorial Park (Teague Watershed). This land is being returned to 
its natural state as permanent open space. Most of the residents have left the area, except for those who 
have lifetime leases. Activities that could impact the quality of the water in the watershed are strictly 
prohibited within the Teague Watershed. Because the Teague Watershed is so important to the quality 
of the Lake Casitas water, a comprehensive inspection is completed every five years to identify and 
address any potential problems within the watershed. 
 
The Casitas MWD does not anticipate any current or future changes in the surface water and 
groundwater that would affect water quality. 

 

 



 
 

91 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

4.4  PLANNED WATER SUPPLIES 2020-2040 

Casitas MWD will continue to rely on surface water and groundwater sources to meet the anticipated 
water demands of the service area. Table 4-3 summarizes the quantities of projected water supplies in 
the Casitas MWD water portfolio for the period 2020-2040. Table 4-3 indicates that for the period 
2020-2040 available water supplies will be 20,840 AFY. Each of the planned water supply sources are 
summarized in the following sections. See Appendix E Table 6-9 for additional details. 

TABLE 4-3 
PLANNED WATER SUPPLIES 2020-2040 

Water Supply Sources (1) 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 
Local surface water (Lake Casitas) 20,540 20,540 20,540 20,540 20,540
Local groundwater (Mira Monte Well) 300 300 300 300 300
Imported surface water 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers in or out (2) 0 0 0 0 0
Exchanges in or out  0 0 0 0 0
Recycled water  0 0 0 0  0 
Desalination  0 0 0 0 0
Other  0 0 0 0  0 
TOTAL 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Notes:   
(3) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 
(4) Transfer to Carpinteria Valley Water District. 

4.4.1  Local Surface Water 
Table 4-3 indicates that Casitas MWD anticipates that local surface water from the Lake Casitas will 
provide an average of approximately 20,540 AFY for the period 2020-2040. Casitas MWD does not 
anticipate any changes or reductions to the Lake Casitas supply. 

4.4.2  Local Groundwater 
Casitas MWD anticipates that local while groundwater will provide an average of 300 AFY for the 
period 2020-2040 (see Tables 4-3 and 4-4). Casitas MWD does not anticipate any changes or reductions 
to the local groundwater supply. Table 4-4 summarizes the volume of groundwater projected to be 
extracted by Casitas MWD for the period 2020-2040. Table 4-3 indicates that for the period 2020-2040 
average annual groundwater extracted will be approximately 300 AF. In addition, see Appendix E 
Table 6-9 for additional details. 
 



 
 

92 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 4-4 
GROUNDWATER PROJECTED TO BE PUMPED 2020-2040 

Well (AFY) 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Mira Monte Well (1) 300 300 300 300 300

Percent of Total Water Supply  1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4
Notes:   

(1) Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

4.4.3  Enhanced Demand Management Programs 
Casitas MWD will continue to support the water use allocation program with customer specific 
allocations (see Section 6 for details). Casitas MWD will continue to support and expand the best 
management practices (BMPs) and water conservation measures with all of the customers within the 
service area. See Section 7 for details related to existing and future BMPs.   

4.4.4  Local Agreements 
Casitas MWD could develop a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for each local purveyor within 
the service area. These MOU could provide for the joint participation in programs including but not 
limited to the following: require a particular type of water waste ordinance be used; require the use of 
local water reserves before requesting water from Casitas MWD; require participation in a public 
relations program for water conservation. If an incentive were attached to the program, it may cause 
other systems to join. Casitas MWD plans to work with other water purveyors to consider a future plan 
with allocation assignments and surcharges for exceeding allocations.  

4.4.5  Transfers and Exchanges 
Table 4-4 indicates that, for the period 2020 to 2040, Casitas MWD projects 0 AFY to be transferred 
to other agencies. See Appendix E Table 6-9 for additional details. Casitas MWD does not anticipate 
any changes or reductions to this supply category. Casitas MWD anticipates providing an average of 
10 AFY to Carpinteria Valley Water District for CMWD customers (see Section 4.2.4.2 for details). 
The Casitas MWD considers this water part of the CMWD annual customer demands and not a transfer. 

4.4.6  Imported Surface Water - State Water Project 
As previously noted in Section 4.2.3, Casitas MWD administers the Ventura County entitlement to 
SWP water and has contracts with the City of Ventura, and United Water Conservation District 
(UWCD) to redistribute the 20,000 AF entitlement between these three agencies. The Casitas MWD 
entitlement to SWP water is 5,000 AF, based on 100 percent allocation of annual scheduled deliveries. 
As of the date of this Plan, Casitas MWD has not made a physical connection to the SWP that would 
allow SWP water to reach the Casitas MWD boundary. 
 
Casitas MWD’s service area, while holding 5,000 AF of annual SWP entitlement, is not able to receive 
those annual entitlements due to the lack of any physical connection (pipeline or canal) to the SWP to 
bring SWP water into the service area. Due to the cost of the physical connection, and cost of SWP 



 
 

93 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

water, Casitas MWD has not proceeded with the physical connection to the SWP. The Casitas MWD 
has been involved in several studies to bring SWP water to the service area. 
 
The preferred pipeline project estimated a total cost of $109 million dollars (nearly $200 million dollars 
in 2016). (CMWD, 1987) Casitas MWD’s cost would be a proportion of this overall cost that would be 
shared with the partnering agencies. For example, if three other major water purveyors were involved 
with this project, Casitas MWD’s cost would be approximately 25 percent of the total. Alternative 
methods to bring State Water to western Ventura County were also considered in a 1990 Study (CMWD 
et al, 1990). The alternative methods involved groundwater banking, interagency coordination, water 
transfers, and exchanges.  

4.4.7  Desalinated Water 
With population growth and the recent prolonged drought contributing to an increase in Californians' 
concerns about water scarcity, several communities and industries in California are looking towards 
desalination plants to convert saline water (e.g., seawater, brackish water or treated wastewater) into 
fresh water. Currently, there are only four ocean desalination plants in California actively producing 
water for municipal purposes (Carlsbad, Sand City, Santa Catalina Island, and San Nicolas Island). A 
few desalination plants remain idle or are currently being reactivated (i.e., City of Santa Barbara). In 
addition, there are a few desalination plants that provide water exclusively for commercial and 
industrial purposes (i.e., Monterey Aquarium and Diablo Canyon Power Plant). Since 2006, only two 
ocean desalination projects have been built: a small plant in Sand City with a capacity of 0.3 million 
gallons of water per day, and a much larger 50-million-gallon per day plant in Carlsbad. There are 9 
desalination plants proposed to be constructed in California.  
 
Casitas MWD is located approximately 10 miles (headquarters building) inland from the Pacific Ocean 
coastline of Ventura County, California. This proximity to the Pacific Ocean does provide an 
opportunity for the Casitas MWD to consider development of desalinated water supplies to supplement 
surface water supplies and to provide potential increased system reliability, most notably for coastal 
communities within the Casitas MWD service area. However, for CMWD to move forward with a 
desalination project a public consensus would need to be developed, followed by a feasibility study to 
determine whether the project will have a positive cost-benefit result. The City of Ventura and the 
Rincon beach communities, both customers of Casitas MWD, represent water service areas for which 
desalination water supplies could possibly be applicable. 
 
There may be opportunities for future joint-agency coordination to build a desalination plant to 
supplement local surface water and groundwater supplies. The City of Ventura’s growth projections 
and the ability of their water supplies to keep up with growth are two of the driving factors that may 
lead to desalination plan in the Casitas MWD and City of Ventura service areas. The production rate 
and location of a desalination plant would need to be addressed in a feasibility study. 
 
A desalination supply within the coastal communities would not be reliant upon the pumping and 
transmission pipelines from Casitas MWD, which are susceptible to short-term outages during storm 
events. Desalination would decrease demand on existing local water supplies. The Casitas MWD may 



 
 

94 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

determine that a desalination project would be feasible if a partnership was to be developed with the 
City of Ventura, land developers of the Rincon service area, local oil companies, or other agency or 
organization. 
 
The sole source of potable water for the Rincon coastal area is Lake Casitas. Potable water is pumped 
from the base of Casitas Dam through a single water transmission pipeline to the inland agricultural 
areas and to coastal communities.  There is an increased energy cost in serving this area because water 
must be pumped up a 900-foot lift. There are water reliability concerns for this area because in the past 
the main pipeline serving the area has been severed by landslides following a heavy rainstorm, which 
temporarily left coastal communities and industries without water supply. 
 
Use of desalinated water could aid in offsetting Casitas MWD’s reliance on their other available water 
supplies during drought periods, and allow for their more efficient management. Additionally, use of 
desalinated water could be used to improve water quality of new and existing potable water supplies. 
Seawater desalination alternatives potentially available to Casitas MWD include:  

 Construct a new seawater desalination facility within or adjacent to the CMWD’s service area 
 Participate in a local desalination project 
 Participate in a desalination facility outside of Ventura County and receive water by exchange. 

Currently, Casitas MWD does not plan to prepare a desalination feasibility study, does not plan to 
construct a desalination treatment plant, nor purchase desalinated water from any agency. 

4.4.8 Recycled Water 
Casitas MWD currently does not produce nor receive any recycled water. The Casitas MWD has not 
considered recycled water to meet future water demands. Acceptable uses of recycled water include 
irrigating crops, parks, and golf courses, as well as water needed for groundwater recharge, industrial 
processes, power plants, fire-fighting, and other similar uses. Increased use of recycled water for non-
potable uses could reduce the Casitas MWD’s reliance on Lake Casitas resources and reduce use of 
local groundwater supplies. 
 
Issues associated with the use of recycled water include:  

 Water quality as it relates to the end use - suitability of recycled water for irrigation of 
agriculture, irrigation of public parks, groundwater recharge, or other reuse  

 Regulatory requirements associated with the end use and the public’s contact with the 
recycled water 

 Cost for additional treatment beyond what the wastewater treatment plant already required to 
provide 

 Casitas MWD has no direct access to recycled water 

 Existing environmental demands for recycled water within Ventura River. 



 
 

95 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

The Ojai Valley Sanitary District (OVSD) and the City of Ventura provide wastewater collection and 
treatment within Casitas MWD’s boundaries. The OVSD provides treatment (located on north Ventura 
Avenue adjacent to the Ventura River) for approximately 3,000 acre-feet per year. The OVSD built a 
$30,000,000 tertiary treatment upgrade to its existing plant several years ago. The City of Ventura and 
OVSD have evaluated the potential for recycled water production and sale. (Ventura, 2007; OVSD, 
1992) The City of Ventura provides tertiary treatment for approximately 10,000 acre-feet per year at 
the Ventura Water Reclamation Facility (located at Ventura Harbor adjacent to the Santa Clara River) 
and has initiated several successful recycling projects. 
 
Wastewater treated by the OVSD is discharged back in the Ventura River for the benefit of the aquatic 
habitat and the endangered species including but not limited to Southern California Steelhead. Any 
additional treated water that could be utilized for any other purpose would require the completion of an 
Environment Impact Report. By agreement for the land use for the Ojai Valley Sanitation Plant, the 
City of Ventura has retained the first right to claim the OVSD treated effluent water. In addition, it is 
likely that any recycled water development from the City of Ventura facility will benefit the City of 
Ventura’s water portfolio. There appear to be no other opportunities for Casitas MWD to be directly 
involved and benefitted by recycled water, given the lack of any other opportunities to acquire recycled 
water. Table 4-1 indicates that Casitas MWD does not anticipate the sale of recycled water for the 
period 2020-2040. See also Appendix E Tables 6-3 to 6-5 for additional details. 

4.5 FUTURE WATER PROJECTS 

Casitas MWD currently does not have any specific future infrastructure projects that will develop more 
water for the system. Casitas MWD plans to utilize the program management of the safe-yield of Lake 
Casitas to balance water supplies within the Casitas MWD service area, understanding also that water 
demands placed on Casitas MWD are likely to exceed safe-yield levels during periods of long-term 
drought. In addition, Casitas MWD anticipates implementation of additional demand management 
measures to offset an increase in population and reduce inefficient use of water. 
 
There are additional water supply projects that were suggested in the 2010 UWMP that Casitas MWD 
has implemented and some that are in need of further investigation. Examples of such projects include: 

 San Antonio Recharge Basin - project completed 

 Resale water company system retrofit and/or rehabilitation to assist water agencies to rely less 
on Casitas MWD’s water – Casitas MWD has assisted Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company 
to improve reliability of groundwater resources 

 Renegotiate Agreement with City of Ventura – negotiations are in progress 

 Aggressive CMWD leak detection and repair program –program in progress 

 Excavate the north end of Lake Casitas during low water storage – not implemented, 
environmental and financial feasibility and justification assessment is needed. 

 



 
 

96 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

4.6 CLIMATE CHANGE 

4.6.1  Introduction 
Current climate change projections suggest that California will continue to enjoy a Mediterranean 
climate with the typical seasonal pattern of relatively cool and wet winters and hot, dry summers. 
However, climate patterns are different now and may continue to change at an accelerated pace. 
Increases in global emissions of greenhouse gases are leading to serious consequences for California 
including, but not limited to, the following:  higher air and water temperatures, rising sea levels, 
increased droughts and floods, decreased amount and duration of state-wide snow pack, and extreme 
variability in weather patterns. (CADWR, 2013b; CANRA, 2009) These changes are anticipated to 
intensify over the 20-year planning horizon of this UWMP/AWMP. Even if all emissions of greenhouse 
gases ceased today, some of these consequences would be unavoidable because of the increase in 
greenhouse gases recorded over the last 100 years and the fact that the climate system changes slowly. 
(PPIC, 2011) Many of these climate changes would affect the availability, volume, and quality of 
California water resources. 

4.6.2  Potential Impacts of Climate Change 
State and local water resources and water demands may be impacted by climate change via one or more 
processes including precipitation, air temperature, runoff, sea level change, and flooding. Rainfall 
variability is expected to increase, leading to more frequent droughts and floods. Runoff from state-
wide snowpack may be earlier and less predictable, and precipitation may fall as more rain and less 
snow. Air temperatures in California are anticipated to increase by 2 to 9 degrees Fahrenheit by the 
year 2100. (CANRA, 2009) Higher air temperatures may result in more rain and less state-wide snow, 
diminishing the reserves of water held in the Sierra Nevada snowpack. (CANRA, 2009) Spring runoff 
from state-wide snowpack is occurring earlier now than it did in the first part of the 20th century. This 
change in runoff could affect availability of spring and summer state-wide snowmelt from mountain 
areas, including State Water Project water from the Sacramento Delta and local rivers and streams. 
Total annual exports from the Delta for State and Federal contractors may also decrease by 20 to 25 
percent by the year 2100. (CCCC, 2009)  
 
Sea levels have risen by as much as 7 inches along the California coast over the last century. (CANRA, 
2009) According to some estimates, sea level is projected to rise an additional 2 to 5 feet by 2100. 
(PPIC, 2011; Pacific Institute, 2009; CA RNA, 2009; CAT, 2008) These sea level increases could 
significantly impact infrastructure within coastal areas and affect quantity and timing of State Water 
Project water exports from the Sacramento Delta. Effects of sea level rise in the Delta would be two-
fold: (1) problems with weak levees protecting the low-lying land, many already below sea level; and 
(2) increased salinity intrusion from the ocean which could degrade fresh water transfer supplies 
pumped at the southern edge of the Delta or require more fresh water releases to repel ocean salinity.  
 
In the CADWR Water Plan (CADWR, 2013b), an assessment of the impacts of global climate change 
on the State’s water supply was conducted using a series of computer models based on decades of 
scientific research. Model results for California indicate a significant likelihood of increased 
temperature, reduction in Sierra snow depth, early snow melt, and a rise in sea level. These changing 



 
 

97 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

hydrological conditions could affect future planning efforts which are typically based on historic 
conditions. Difficulties in water resources planning that may arise include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

 hydrological conditions, variability, and extremes that are different than what current water 
systems were designed to manage. 

 changes occurring too rapidly to allow sufficient time and information to permit managers to 
respond appropriately. 

 special efforts or plans to protect against surprises and uncertainties. 
 
As such, CADWR will continue to provide updated results from these models as further research is 
conducted and information becomes available. 

4.6.3  Effects of Climate Change on Agriculture’s Water Demand 
Climate change may increase daytime and nighttime temperatures and seasonal temperatures. This 
change may impact the length of the growing season. This general increase in temperatures coupled 
with greater variability and unpredictability in precipitation is expected to lead to increases in 
evapotranspiration resulting from warmer seasons, thereby creating an increase in demand for irrigation 
water and an increase in the year-to-year variability of demand. 
 
Temperate fruit and nut trees such as almonds, pistachios, and apples require adequate winter chill to 
produce economically viable yields. Increased daytime temperatures daytime, nighttime temperatures, 
and season temperatures may reduce winter chill hours thereby causing adverse effects on the yield of 
some crops. Some farmers are beginning to overcome this change by planting trees closer together and 
using new varieties. 
 
Studies are now underway to prepare farmers for the likely impacts of climate change. Such efforts 
include breeding varieties of fruit trees which can withstand the decreased winter chill hours, 
developing tools to aid the crops in coping with insufficient chill, and researching the temperature 
responses of particular orchard crops to better understand potential long-term effects. However, some 
solutions such as replanting orchards with altered crop varieties or the installation of aiding tools may 
not be feasible for many irrigators and may result in additional costs and temporary production losses. 

4.6.4 Mitigation and Adaptation 
Responding to climate change generally takes two forms: mitigation and adaptation. Mitigation is 
taking steps to reduce human contribution to the causes of climate change by reducing greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emissions. Adaptation is the process of responding to the effects of climate change by modifying 
our systems and behaviors to function in a warmer climate. (CADWR, 2013b) 
 
In the water sector, climate change mitigation is generally achieved by reducing energy use, becoming 
more efficient with energy use, and/or substituting renewable energy sources in place of fossil fuel 
based energy sources. Because water requires energy to move, treat, use, heat, and discharge, water 
conservation is also energy conservation. As each water supplier implements water conservation 



 
 

98 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

measures and determines its water conservation targets, it can also calculate conserved energy and 
GHGs not-emitted as a side benefit. Once a water supplier has calculated the water conserved by a 
BMP, it is straightforward to convert that volume to conserved energy, and GHGs not-emitted. 
Additionally, water suppliers may want to focus on implementing water conservation measures that 
conserve water but do so at a significant decrease in GHG emissions as compared with other measures. 
(CADWR, 2013b) 
 
Climate change means more than hotter days. Continued warming of the climate system has 
considerable impact on the operation of most water districts. Snow in the Sierra Nevada provides 65 
percent of California’s water supply. Predictions indicate that by 2050 the Sierra snowpack will be 
significantly reduced. Much of the lost snow will fall as rain, which flows quickly down the mountains 
during winter and cannot be stored in our current water system for use during California’s hot, dry 
summers. The climate is also expected to become more variable, bringing more droughts and floods. 
Water districts will have to adapt to new, more variable conditions. (CADWR, 2013b) 
 
Principles of climate change adaptation include the following: 

 The more mitigation that is completed now, the less adaptation we may have to do in the 
future, because climate impacts could be less severe. 

 Mitigation is much less expensive than adaptation. 

 Mitigation should happen globally. 

 Adaptation must happen locally. 

 Adaptation strategies should be implemented according to future conditions, regular 
assessment and recalibration. 

 Some adaptation strategies have benefits that can be realized today. 

4.6.5 Local Strategies 
As climate change continues to unfold in the coming decades, water agencies may need to mitigate and 
adapt to new strategies. This may require reevaluating existing agency missions, policies, regulations, 
facilities, funding priorities, and other responsibilities. Examples of mitigation and adaptation strategies 
include, but not limited to, the following: 

 Prepare long-term facility and sustainability master plans including specific elements for 
climate change adaptation. 

 Increase ground water recharge using additional surface water. 

 Promote additional water use efficiency for urban, commercial, and industrial best 
management practices. 



 
 

99 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

 Consider investing in: infrastructure that promotes adaptation strategies (such as ground 
water recharge, and recycled water) and existing principal facilities susceptible to impacts 
of climate change. 

 
Notwithstanding the above strategies for dealing with climate change, the reality is that current 
environmental regulations place a very high priority on releasing additional water for endangered 
species and the environment (i.e., Sacramento Delta and Ventura River). There will be more 
competition for scarce water supplies between people and the environment. Resolving this conflict will 
be one of the biggest challenges confronting water agencies.  
 
The goal of the Casitas MWD is to manage the available surface water and groundwater resources as 
efficiently as possible while meeting the requirements of the customers. It is worth noting, however, 
that the Casitas MWD control over local water supplies is limited; thus management practice changes 
will need to be adaptive in nature. 
 
  



 
 

100 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

SECTION 5: WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY 
5.1  DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS 

5.1.1  UWMP Requirements 
This section will include the following: 

 Describe water management tools and options to maximize resources and minimize the need to 
import water from other regions. (CWC, 10620(f)) 

 Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic shortage. 
(CWC, 10631(c)(1)) 

 Provide data for an average water-year, a single dry water-year, and multiple dry water-years. 
(CWC, 10631(c)(1)) 

 For any water source that may not be available at a consistent level of use, describe plans to 
supplement or replace that source. (CWC, 10631(c)(2)) 

 Provide information on the quality of existing sources of water available to the supplier and the 
manner in which water quality affects water management strategies and supply reliability. 
(CWC, 10634) 

 Assess the water supply reliability during normal, dry, and multiple dry water-years by 
comparing the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with the total projected 
water use over the next 20 years.  (CWC, 10635(a)) 

 Provide an estimate of the minimum water supply available during each of the next three water 
years based on the driest three-year historic sequence for the agency. (CWC, 10632(a)(2)) 

5.1.2  AWMP REQUIREMENTS 
The Water Code §10826 require that the AWMP:  

 “(b) Describe the quantity and quality of water resources of the agricultural water supplier, 
including all of the following:  

(7) Water accounting, including all of the following:  
(A) Quantifying the water supplier’s water supplies.  
(B) Tabulating water uses.  
(C) Overall water budget.”  

The Water Code does not specify the mechanisms or level of detail that would satisfy requirements for 
water accounting. This section provides a reasonable process and level of detail to assist the agricultural 
water supplier in preparing an AWMP that can be used for water management planning and for 
addressing Water Code §10826 (b)(7) requirements. Additionally, as noted above, in accordance with 
Executive Order B-29-15, quantification of water supplies and demands are to be reported for 2013, 
2014, and 2015, to the extent data is available. 
  



 
 

101 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Information presented in this document can be used to help complete the Water Code requirements for 
water accounting. As an overview of water supply use within the service area, annual amounts are 
appropriate; however, to provide more meaningful information to calculate the water budget annual 
amounts, additional water supply and use information (e.g., monthly/seasonal values, effective 
precipitation amounts, water losses, and others) can be included in this section. The additional 
information would also provide the agricultural water supplier with some data useful for estimating 
water use efficiency, if desired. 

5.2  LOCAL WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY 

This section of the Urban Water Management Plan provides a description of the water management 
tools and options used by Casitas MWD that will maximize resources and minimize the need to import 
water from other regions. This section assesses the Casitas MWD’s ability to provide reliable future 
water supplies in the event of any circumstance that may pose significant challenges. Section 4 provided 
a summary of the Casitas MWD water supplies. As noted in Table 4-1, 100 percent of the Casitas 
MWD water supplies are currently obtained from local resources. In addition, the Casitas MWD 
anticipates that 100 percent of the water resources for the period 2020-2040 will be obtained from local 
resources (see Table 4-4 for details). 

5.3  ASSESSMENT OF WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY 

5.3.1 Reliability 
Analysis of water supply reliability is one of the primary requirements of the Urban Water Management 
Plan (Water Code Section 10635(a)). This assessment includes: an average water-year, single dry 
water-year, multiple dry water-years, and three-year minimum supply. In order to plan for a reliable 
water supply Casitas MWD staff examined both the possibility of short-term and long-term shortages. 
A short-term water shortage could result from a disaster such as an earthquake, flood, or even a 
widespread power outage. A long-term water shortage would most likely result from a long period of 
drought in the region. 
 
The Urban Water Management Planning Act requires urban water suppliers to assess water supply 
reliability and vulnerability to seasonal and climatic shortage. Reliability is a measure of a water service 
system’s anticipated success in managing water shortages.   
 
Costs of demand management or supply augmentation options to reduce the frequency and severity of 
shortages, are now high enough that planners must look more carefully at the costs of unreliability to 
make the best possible estimate of the net benefit of taking specific actions, hence the term “reliability 
planning.” To plan for long-term water supply reliability, planners examine an increasingly wide array 
of supply augmentation and demand reduction options to determine the best courses of action for 
meeting water service needs.  Such options are generally evaluated using the water service reliability 
planning approach. Reliability planning requires information about the following: (1) expected 
frequency and severity of shortages; (2) how additional water management measures are likely to affect 



 
 

102 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

the frequency and severity of shortages; (3) how available contingency measures can reduce the impact 
of shortages when they occur.   
 
Casitas MWD determined that climate, and specifically precipitation, is the factor to most likely 
influence reliability of local water supplies for the period 2015-2040. Issues associated with climate 
change were summarized in Section 4.6. Other issues that may affect reliability of water supplies 
include, but not limited to, the following: future water quality of runoff from Matilija Creek associated 
with the proposed demolition of Matilija Dam, endangered species, invasive species, earthquakes, 
disastrous storm events, climate change, and lake water quality. Invasive species may impact Lake 
Casitas water quality and or infrastructure such as intake structures. Potential invasive species include, 
but not limited to, New Zealand Mud Snails, Quagga Mussels, and Zebra Mussels. 

5.3.2  Basis of Water Year Data 
As required, Casitas MWD determined the basis of water year data. These years represent the historical 
average water-year (average water-year), single driest water-year (single dry water-year), and driest 
multiple year period (multiple dry water-year). Table 5-1 summarizes the Casitas MWD basis of water-
year data. The “volume available” column in Table 5-1 represents the water supply expected if there 
were a repeat of the hydrology from that type of year. Casitas MWD selected 2011 as the average water-
year, 2014 as the single dry water-year, and 1987-1989 as the multiple dry water-year. As indicated in 
Table 5-1, Casitas MWD determined that the water supply available will be 20,840 AFY in all three 
base water-year types. See Appendix E Worksheet 7-1 for additional details. 

5.3.3 Reliability Assessment 
Casitas MWD prepared an assessment to determine water supply reliability. This assessment includes 
a comparison of the total projected water demand with the water supplies available for the following 
conditions: (1) normal/average water-year, (2) single dry water-year, (3) multiple consecutive dry 
water-years, and (4) three-year minimum water supply. Assessment results for each of these conditions 
are summarized below. 

5.3.3.1 Normal Water-Year 

A normal water-year can be defined as a year in the historical sequence that most closely represents 
median local runoff levels and patterns. The Casitas MWD selected Fiscal Year 2011 to represent the 
normal or average water-year. For the purposes of this assessment, “normal” and “average” water year 
will be used interchangeably. Fiscal Year 2011 is the most recent year that closely represents a normal 
water-year. Local precipitation for Fiscal Year 2011 is 24.8 inches. The Fiscal Year 2011 total surface 
water delivery from Lake Casitas is 14,678 acre-feet. The minimum storage level of Lake Casitas in 
Fiscal Year 2011 is 221,751 acre-feet. The actual water use in Fiscal Year 2011 is 13,549 acre-feet. 
 



 
 

103 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 5-1 
BASIS OF WATER YEAR DATA 

Water-Year Type Base Year(s) Volume Available (AFY) 

Average Water-Year 2011 20,840 

Single Dry Water-Year 2014 20,840 

Multiple Dry Water-Years 
1987
1988
1989

20,840 
20,840 
20,840 

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

Table 5-2 summarizes the Casitas MWD projected normal water-year supply and demands for the 
period 2020-2040. For planning purposes, Casitas MWD projected that 100 percent of the safe-yield 
will be available for both Lake Casitas surface water at 20,540 acre-feet (CMWD, 2004; copy provided 
in Appendix H) and 300 AF of Mira Monte Well groundwater. However, the Casitas MWD may extract 
more than the safe-yield in any one year (or years) to meet demands. For example, in 1989, the Casitas 
MWD extracted 26,180 AF from Lake Casitas to meet local demands. Casitas MWD chose to use a 
conservative (high) projection of water demand at 17,200 AFY (more than the recent average 16,000 
AFY for years 2010-2015) for the period 2020-2025, and 17,500 AFY for the period 2030-2040. Table 
5-2 indicates that, for a normal water-year during the period 2020-2025, Casitas MWD’s water supply 
will exceed water demand by 3,640 AFY. For a normal water-year during the period 2030-2040, Table 
5-2 indicates that Casitas MWD’s water supply will exceed water demand by 3,340 AFY. See 
Appendix E Worksheet 7-2 for additional details. 
 

5.3.3.2 Single Dry Water-Year 
Lake Casitas is sized, constructed, and operated as both a primary water source and a backup water 
supply for the groundwater basins of western Ventura County. Lake Casitas is a long-term water storage 
facility so precipitation (or lack of precipitation) in any single year does not change the projected safe-
yield of a long term period. As previously noted, Casitas MWD selected Fiscal Year 2014 as the most 
recent year that closely represents a single dry water-year. Local precipitation for Fiscal Year 2014 is 
9.50 inches with over 82 percent recorded in February and March. The Fiscal Year 2014 total surface 
water delivery from Lake Casitas is 18,811 acre-feet. The minimum storage level of Lake Casitas in 
Fiscal Year 2014 is 131,511 acre-feet. The actual water use in Fiscal Year 2014 is 19,093 acre-feet. 

 



 
 

104 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 5-2 
PROJECTED SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON FOR NORMAL WATER-YEAR FOR 
2020-2040 

  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 17,200 17,200 17,500 17,500 17,500

Difference (supply minus 
demand) (AFY) 3,640 3,640 3,340 3,340 3,340

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

Table 5-3 summarizes the Casitas MWD projected single dry water-year water supply and water 
demands for the period 2020-2040. For planning purposes, Casitas MWD projected that 100 percent of 
the safe-yield will be available for both Lake Casitas surface water at 20,540 acre-feet (CMWD, 2004; 
copy provided in Appendix H) and 300 AF of Mira Monte Well groundwater. However, the Casitas 
MWD may extract more than the safe-yield in any one year (or years) to meet demands. For example, 
in 1989, the Casitas MWD extracted 26,180 AF from Lake Casitas to meet local demands. Casitas 
MWD chose to use a conservative (high) projection of water demand at 20,840 AFY for the period 
2020-2040 (exceeding than the maximum demand during the period 2010-2015 of 19,093 AF in 2014). 
Table 5-3 indicates that, for a single dry water-year during the period 2020-2040, Casitas MWD’s water 
supply will be equivalent to water demand. See Appendix E Worksheet 7-3 for additional details. 

TABLE 5-3 
PROJECTED SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON FOR SINGLE DRY WATER-YEAR 
FOR 2020-2040 

  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference (supply minus 
demand) (AFY) 0 0 0 0 0

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

 
 



 
 

105 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

5.3.3.3 Multiple Dry Water-Years 
The historical record provides information regarding ‘a multiple dry year’ occurrence in a drought 
period, which results in an escalation of water demands. During multiple dry years, surface flow in the 
Ventura River becomes non-existent and the groundwater in the Ventura River and Ojai Basins are 
diminished due to well extractions, natural drainage, and a lack of replenishment from rainfall. Water 
demands on Lake Casitas have been observed to escalate significantly due to multiple years of less than 
average rainfall and the transition from groundwater sources to the Lake Casitas supply. Further 
escalation in Lake Casitas demands resulted from the water demands of local agriculture that needed to 
supplement the lack of rainfall with an alternate water supply in order to continue to produce crops.  
 
As previously noted, Lake Casitas is a long-term water storage facility so precipitation (or lack of 
precipitation) in any three-year does not change the projected safe-yield of a long term period. Casitas 
MWD selected Fiscal Years 1987-1988-1989 as the most recent three-year period that closely 
represents the multiple dry water-years. Local average precipitation for Fiscal Years 1987-1989 is 12.55 
inches. The average surface water delivery for Fiscal Years 1987-1989 is 23,289 acre-feet. The 
minimum storage level of Lake Casitas for Fiscal Years 1987-1989 is 160,587 acre-feet. The actual 
average water use in Fiscal Years 1987-1989 is 23,216 acre-feet. 

Table 5-4 summarizes the Casitas MWD projected multiple dry water-year water supply and water 
demands for the period 2020-2040. For planning purposes, Casitas MWD projected that 100 percent of 
the safe-yield will be available for both Lake Casitas surface water at 20,540 acre-feet (CMWD, 2004; 
copy provided in Appendix H) and 300 AF of Mira Monte Well groundwater. However, the Casitas 
MWD may extract more than the safe-yield in any one year (or years) to meet demands. For example, 
in 1989, the Casitas MWD extracted 26,180 AF from Lake Casitas to meet local demands. Casitas 
MWD chose to use a conservative (high) projection of water demand at 20,840 AFY for the period 
2020-2040 (exceeding the maximum demand during the period 2010-2015 of 19,093 AF in 2014). 
Table 5-4 indicates that, for the multiple dry water-years during the period 2020-2040, Casitas MWD’s 
water supply will be equivalent to water demand. See Appendix E Worksheet 7-3 for additional 
details. 
 
5.3.3.4 Minimum Water Supply for Next Three Years 
The Casitas MWD evaluated minimum water supplies which would be available during a three-year 
period. For planning purposes, Casitas MWD projected that 100 percent of the safe-yield will be 
available for both Lake Casitas surface water at 20,540 acre-feet (CMWD, 2004; copy provided in 
Appendix H) and 300 AF of Mira Monte Well groundwater. Therefore, the three-year minimum water 
supply is 20,840 AF resulting from surface water and groundwater as summarized in            Table 5-5 
(see Appendix E Worksheet 8-4 for details). However, the Casitas MWD may extract more than the 
safe-yield in any one year (or years) to meet demands. For example, in 1989, the Casitas MWD 
extracted 26,180 AF to meet local demands. 
 
 
 



 
 

106 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 5-4 
PROJECTED SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON FOR MULTIPLE DRY WATER-
YEARS FOR 2020-2040 

   2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

First Year 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference (supply 
minus demand) (AFY) 0 0 0 0 0

Second Year 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference (supply 
minus demand) (AFY) 0 0 0 0 0

Third Year 

Supply totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference (supply 
minus demand) (AFY) 0 0 0 0 0

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

TABLE 5-5 
PROJECTED MINIMUM WATER SUPPLY FOR 2016-2018 

  2016 2017 2018

Available Water Supply (AFY) 20,840 20,840 20,840
Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values in AF, rounded. 

5.4  WATER QUALITY IMPACTS ON RELIABILITY 

The water quality of Lake Casitas may significantly vary as the lake storage transitions from full stage 
to minimum pool. Surface water supply from Lake Casitas is treated by filtration and chloramination 
prior to the delivery to the distribution system. The treatment process ensures that the water meets all 
state and federal regulations. At lower levels of Lake Casitas storage there are specific lake water 
quality issues that will challenge Casitas MWD’s ability to treat and deliver potable water from Lake 



 
 

107 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Casitas. During a condition of low lake level, the water quality can change unfavorably due to the 
concentrating of nutrients resulting in the following: lake eutrophication, increased algae blooms, 
reduction in dissolved oxygen, and increased turbidity during storm events, that could significantly 
impact filtration treatment process and the rate of water production for the distribution system. Casitas 
MWD has also been concerned about the release of organic-laden silts from Matilija Dam that, if not 
properly mitigated during the Matilija Dam decommissioning, can add to the mass balance of nitrogen 
and phosphorous compounds and increased turbidity of water flowing into Lake Casitas.   
 
Specific actions that Casitas MWD has considered and implemented are lake management strategies 
such as algae control and hypolimnetic aeration system (2015). The level of the lake management 
implementation may increase as the problem intensifies during low storage conditions.  
 
Casitas MWD’s groundwater source represents only 300 acre-feet of water per year (1.5 percent) 
compared to the nearly 20,500 acre-feet (98.5 percent) from Lake Casitas. The well water is blended 
with lake water at a high ratio with surface water to ensure the maximum contamination level for nitrate 
is met. The resulting blended water is well below the maximum contamination level for nitrate. Drought 
impacts to the well water quality are not understood completely. Casitas MWD has an agreement with 
a neighboring water agency to cease pumping at a specific groundwater elevation. Over the past twenty 
years, the groundwater elevation has remained above the agreement level. Additional consideration for 
on-site treatment and additional blending may be required to mitigate the drought caused water quality 
in the Mira Monte Well. 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

108 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

SECTION 6: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY 
PLANNING 
6.1 DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS 

6.1.1 UWMP Requirements 
This section will include the following requirements: 

 Provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that specifies stages of action and an 
outline of specific water supply conditions at each stage. (CWC, 10632(a) and 10632(a)(1)) 

 Identify actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier in case of a catastrophic 
interruption of water supplies. (CWC, 10632(a)(3)) 

 Identify mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices during water shortages. 
(CWC, 10632(a)(4)) 

 Specify consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. (CWC, 10632(a)(5)) 

 Indicated penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable. (CWC, 10632(a)(6)) 

 Provide an analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions in the water shortage 
contingency analysis on the revenues and expenditures of the urban water supplier, and 
proposed measures to overcome those impacts. (CWC, 10632(a)(7)) 

 Provide a draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance. (CWC, 10632(a)(8)) 

 Indicate a mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use pursuant to the water 
shortage contingency analysis. (CWC, 10632(a)(9)) 

6.1.2 AWMP REQUIREMENTS 
The Drought Management Plan should detail how the water supplier would prepare for droughts and 
manage water supplies and allocations during drought conditions. Some components or actions may 
require detailed review of conditions, policy changes, and long term capital improvements. 
Additionally, as conditions change and new technology and knowledge becomes available, 
opportunities and constraints will change.  
 
A description of the water shortage allocation policies is required by the Water Code and will be a key 
component of the drought management plan. Water suppliers that have a Water Shortage Allocation 
Policy should attach a copy of the policy in Section VIII of the AWMP and describe the allocation plan 
in this section. If the supplier does not have such a policy, the agricultural water supplier can describe 
how reduced water supplies are allocated.  
 
In addition to the water shortage allocation policy, the drought management plan should consider 
describing the following components:  



 
 

109 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

 What hydraulic levels or conditions (reservoir levels, stream flows, groundwater, snowpack 
etc.) are monitored and measured to determine the water supply available and level of drought 
severity.  

 The district’s policy and process for declaring a water shortage and implementing the water 
shortage allocation and drought management plan.  

 Operational Adjustments- changes in district water management and district operations to 
respond to drought, including canal and reservoir operations and groundwater management.  

 Stages of Actions- include the stages of action and corresponding levels of drought severity that 
district will implement in response to the drought.  

 Coordination and Collaboration- include a description on how coordination and collaboration 
with other local districts and water agencies or regional groups will be used in drought response.  

 Revenues and Expenditures- describe how the drought and lower water allocations will affect 
the districts revenues and expenditures.  

6.2  WATER WASTE PROHIBITIONS 

6.2.1  Priorities of Water Use 
Casitas MWD recognizes the following priorities for potable water: 

 Public safety, health, and sanitation 
 Economic sustainability 
 Quality of life for the Casitas MWD's customers 

Within each of the customer classifications there may be water uses that are considered non-essential 
to public health and sanitation and may have no significant impact to the economic productivity of 
western Ventura County. The non-essential water uses may be asked at any time to be curtailed during 
times of extreme water shortages. Casitas MWD recognizes that the agricultural crops in western 
Ventura County are primarily tree orchards that require a substantial period of time before becoming 
productive, and if fallowed will experience several years of non-production. To maintain water supplies 
into the future that will meet the local water demands, Casitas MWD and the public may be faced with 
additional decisions on water use reductions that may impact the agricultural classification. 

6.2.2  Water Waste Prohibitions on Certain Uses 

The Casitas MWD has the authority to restrict the use of CMWD water during any emergency caused 
by drought, or other potential or existing water shortage. The Casitas MWD prohibits the wastage of 
CMWD water or the use of CMWD water during such periods for any purpose other than household 
uses or such other restricted uses as the CMWD determines to be necessary. The Casitas MWD may 
also prohibit use of CMWD water during such periods for specific uses which it finds to be nonessential. 



 
 

110 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Casitas MWD Resolution 15-02 includes permanently prohibited uses of water that are in effect year 
round (copy of Resolution 15-02 provided in Appendix K). Provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to 
all persons, corporations, public or private entities, governmental agencies or institutions, or any other 
direct water customers of the Casitas MWD. The water customers of other water purveyors shall be 
governed by the prohibitions that are adopted by the other water purveyors. The Casitas MWD water 
waste prohibitions include the following: 

1) General Waste: Indiscriminate running of water or washing with water which is wasteful and 
without reason or purpose. 

2) Washing of Exterior Surfaces: The washing of hard or paved surfaces, including but not 
limited to sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking areas, tennis courts, patios or alleys, except 
when necessary to alleviate safety or sanitary hazards or when broom or other waterless device 
will not suffice. If necessary, washing may only be done with a bucket or similar container, a 
hose equipped with a positive shut-off nozzle, a pressure washer, a low-volume high pressure 
water efficient water broom, or a cleaning machine equipped to recycle the water used. 

3) Cleaning of Structures and Vehicles: The washing of building exteriors, mobile homes, cars, 
boats or recreational vehicles without the use of a positive shut-off nozzle on either the hose or 
pressure washer. 

4) Watering/Irrigation Runoff Control: The watering of grass, lawn, groundcover, shrubbery, 
open ground, crops and trees, including agricultural irrigation, in a manner or to an extent which 
allows water to run off the area being watered. Every water user is deemed to have under their 
control, at all times, their water distribution lines and facilities, and to know the manner and 
extent of their water use and run off. 

5) Limits on Watering Hours: The watering or irrigating of outdoor ornamental landscapes and 
turf areas between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time on any day. 
This does not apply to irrigation systems that use drip irrigation and weather-based controllers 
or stream rotor sprinklers that meet a 70 percent efficiency standard. The General Manager may 
authorize exceptions, if the customer is not able to water between 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

6) Watering During Rainfall: The watering of grass, lawn, groundcover, shrubbery, open ground, 
crops and trees, including agricultural irrigation, at any time while it is raining. 

7) Drought Restrictions: Watering/irrigating during publicly declared curtailment period in a 
manner that is not compliant with drought restrictions. 

8) Plumbing Leaks: The escape of water through leaks, breaks, or malfunctions within the water 
user's plumbing or distribution system, for a substantial period of time within which such break 
or leak should reasonably have been discovered and corrected. 

9) Fountains and Decorative Water Features: The operation of any ornamental fountain using 
water from the Casitas MWD's domestic water system unless water for such use is re-circulated. 



 
 

111 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

10) Cooling: The use of water in mechanical equipment purchased and installed after the adoption 
of this Ordinance that utilizes a single pass cooling system. Water used for all cooling purposes 
shall be re-circulated. 

11) Drinking Water Served Upon Request Only: Eating and drinking establishments, including 
but not limited to restaurants, hotels, cafes, cafeterias, bars, clubs or other public places where 
food or drinks are sold or served, are prohibited from providing drinking water to customers 
unless expressly requested. Affected establishments must prominently display notice informing 
their customers of this requirement using clear and easily understood language. 

12) Restaurant Non-water Conserving Dish Wash Spray Valves: Food preparation 
establishments, such as restaurants or cafes, are prohibited from using non-water conserving 
dish wash spray valves.  

13) Providing Option to Not Launder Linen and Towels Daily: Hotels, motels, vacation rentals 
and other commercial lodging establishments must provide customers the option of not having 
towels and linen laundered daily. Commercial lodging establishments must prominently display 
notice of this option in each bathroom using clear and easily understood language. 

14) Commercial Car Wash Systems: Installation of non-recirculating water systems is prohibited 
in new or renovations of commercial conveyor car washes systems. 

15) Turf Irrigation Restrictions: Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours 
following measurable precipitation. 

6.2.3  Exempted Water Uses 
1) All water use associated with the operation and maintenance of fire suppression equipment or 

employed by the Casitas MWD for water quality flushing and sanitation purposes shall be 
exempt from the provisions of this Ordinance. 

2) Use of water supplied by gray water or rainwater collection system is also exempt; however, 
use of water from these systems is not exempt from the applicable regulations of the State and 
local jurisdictions governing the use of such water. 

3) Supervised testing, adjusting, or repairing of irrigation systems is allowed any time for no more 
than five (5) minutes per station. 

6.2.4 Violations and Penalties. 
1) Any person, who uses, causes to be used, or permits the use of water in violation of this 

Ordinance is guilty of an offense punishable as provided herein. 

2) Enforcement of Violation. Complaints of water waste will be investigated and enforced by the 
Casitas MWD in the form of a notice of violation. The following officers and employees of the 
Casitas MWD are hereby designated and authorized to issue citations for enforcement of this 
Ordinance: 

A. Operations and Maintenance Manager 
B. Public Affairs/Water Resource Manager 
C. Water Conservation Coordinator 



 
 

112 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

D. Utility Workers 
E. Employees designated by the General Manager. 

3) Notice of Violation. A Casitas MWD notice to the water customer of a violation of this 
Ordinance will be issued by either a telephone call, mail, hand-delivery, or posting at the 
entrance of the violator's premises. The Casitas MWD will issue a written notice that state the 
time, place, and general description of the violation or repeat of violation, as well as a time 
frame in which the violation must be corrected. Casitas MWD staff may use discretion when 
determining the correction time.  

4) Consequence of Violation. Administrative fines and water service actions may be levied and 
applied for each violation of a provision of this Ordinance as follows: 

A. Penalties: Penalties for failure to comply with any provision of the ordinance are as 
follows: 

1. First Violation: The Casitas MWD will issue a written notice to the water customer 
and attach a copy of this Ordinance. 

2. Second Violation: If the first violation is not corrected within the time frame 
specified by the Casitas MWD, or if a second violation occurs within the following 
twelve (12) months after the first violation notice, a second notice of violation will 
be issued and an administrative fine of one hundred dollars ($100.00) shall be 
levied for the second violation of this Ordinance. 

3. Third Violation: A third violation within the following twelve (12) months after 
the date of issuance of the second notice of violation is punishable by an 
administrative fine of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00). 

4. Fourth and Subsequent Violations: Each day that a violation of this Ordinance 
occurs beyond the remedy allowance provided in the third notice of violation is a 
separate offense, subject to any or all of the following penalties: 

a. Water service may be turned off or flow may be restricted. Where water 
service is turned off or flow restricted, it shall be turned on or unrestricted 
upon correction of the violation and the payment of the reestablishment 
charges, staff time, and material purchases per the Casitas MWD Rates and 
Regulations for Water Service in effect at the time. 

b. A fine of not more than $600 or imprisonment in the county jail for not more 
than 30 days, or both the fine and imprisonment, may be imposed upon 
conviction under Section 71644 of the California Water Code, or fines/ 
penalties as defined and allowable under Section 53069.4 of the Government 
Code may be imposed. 

B. Payment of Administrative Fines: The water customer is responsible for the full payment 
of administrative fines. Each administrative fine shall be applied in the customer's regular 
water billing. Payment of the administrative fine will be the final responsibility of the 
individual named on the water account. Non-payment of fines will be subject to the same 
remedies as non-payment of basic water rates, in accordance with the Casitas MWD 
Rates and Regulations for Water Service. 



 
 

113 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

C. Appeal: Any customer against whom a penalty is levied pursuant to this Ordinance shall 
have the right to appeal as follows: 

1. The customer request for an appeal consideration must be in writing, legible, and 
received by the General Manager within ten (10) calendar days of the issuance of 
the notice of violation to the customer. Any determination not timely appealed shall 
be deemed final. The written request for appeal consideration shall include: 

a. A description of the issue, 
b. Evidence supporting the appeal, and 
c. A request for resolution of the dispute. 

2. The General Manager will review the material submitted and make an independent 
determination of the issue, which shall be mailed to the customer within fifteen 
(15) calendar days of receipt of the request for appeal. 

3. The General Manager's determination may be appealed in writing within ten (10) 
calendar days of the mailing of the notice of determination. The appeal of the 
General Manager's determination shall be heard and considered by the Board of 
Directors at an upcoming regular meeting of the Board. Notice of the hearing shall 
be mailed to the customer at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date of the 
appeal hearing. The Board may, in its discretion affirm, reverse, or modify the 
determination. The Board's determination is final. 

For additional details related to Casitas MWD water waste prohibitions, see Resolution 15-02 in 
Appendix K. 

6.3  STRATEGY FOR MANAGED WATER SUPPLY AND DEMAND 

6.3.1 Allocation Principles 
Casitas MWD has developed water allocations for all its customers. When the allocation ordinance was 
adopted in 1992, the ordinance set the allocation of all customers at 80 percent of 1989 usage. 
Allocation assignment is the connection of the individual customer water use to the Lake Casitas safe-
yield. As Casitas MWD has deemed water is available for allocating to new or expanded use, Casitas 
MWD has created a waiting list and offered the opportunity to purchase limited water allocations to 
waiting list applicants. An example of water becoming available is the adaption of the Mira Monte Well 
to the Casitas MWD system, providing 300 acre-feet of new water to be allocated within the service 
area. For the Program, the allocation becomes the point at which excess water use charges are applied 
to the customer’s water bill, encouraging the customer to reduce water use to a level that is at or below 
the allocation. 
 
Casitas MWD water allocations are assigned to properties or water purveyors, are not transferable from 
one property or water purveyor to another, and may not be sold or traded by Casitas MWD customers. 
Casitas MWD Board of Directors reserve the right to alter allocations for any customer class at any 
time and the term allocation shall not mean an entitlement or imply a water right. 
The communities and rural agricultural areas of western Ventura County recognize that there is a 
reliance on limited local groundwater and surface water supply to serve all of the beneficial uses within 



 
 

114 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

the Casitas MWD, and there is a local responsibility required to sustain those supplies during extended 
drought periods. The continuous implementation of water conservation education and measures (Best 
Management Practices) has had a significant influence on the beneficial use and sustainability of local 
water supplies. Ongoing water conservation efforts can ease the impact on normal activities during 
drought periods, but may not completely eliminate the need for reductions in water use during periods 
when Lake Casitas water supplies are severely impacted by extended drought.  
 
The main mechanism to respond to water supply conditions is to rely on informed customers working 
in partnership with Casitas MWD to limit water use to no more than the assigned water allocation and 
support the water use limitations with appropriate conservation penalties for water use in excess of the 
assigned, or adjusted, allocation.  

6.3.2  Water Allocation Program 
Each and every water service provided by Casitas MWD is metered and a basic water use allocation is 
established for each customer account that provides a reasonable amount of water for the customer's 
needs and property characteristics. The following principles are to be followed for the Casitas MWD 
water allocations: 

 Each Casitas MWD water service shall be assigned either a monthly water allocation in the 
terms of units or an annual water allocation in terms of units and acre-feet. 

 Allocation shall not mean an entitlement or imply water rights in favor of the customer. 

 The assignment of allocations shall be based on reasonable and necessary water use, the 
application of water conservation practices and standards, and other relevant factors associated 
with water use during Stage 1 conditions at Lake Casitas (see details related to Casitas MWD 
Stage Demand Reduction in Section 6.4). 

 The Casitas MWD Board of Directors reserve the right to make individual allocation 
assignments and to change water allocations at any time within each classification based on the 
changes to the availability of water stored in Lake Casitas, changes in water use that appears to 
compromise the reliability of the Lake Casitas water supply, and changes in water conservation 
practices and standards. 

 Water allocations provided by Casitas MWD are assigned to property or water purveyors and 
are not transferrable from one property or water purveyor to another. 

 Casitas MWD's water allocations shall not be sold, exported, bartered or traded by or between 
Casitas MWD's customers. 

 Casitas MWD water allocated shall not be transported from the property or by any agency 
served to any other property or agency without prior written agreement with Casitas MWD. 

6.3.3  Allocation Assignments to Water Service Classifications 
Casitas MWD has established the definitions of water customer classifications as provided by the 
Casitas MWD Rates and Regulations for Water Service, and has made specific allocation assignments 
to each and every water account by either (1) written agreement, (2) the application of historical water 



 
 

115 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

use data, or (3) the application of documented water use standards. Where deemed necessary, Casitas 
MWD may perform site specific water use audits and survey to determine the appropriate level of 
allocation to be assigned to anyone service connection or customer. Water allocations may change by 
action of the Casitas MWD Board of Directors based on the Lake Casitas storage level or trend, water 
use trends, and the performance by customer classification in meeting water consumption reduction 
goals. 
 
The following subsections describe the method used to assign the water allocation for each 
classification of water service at Stage 1 condition: 

6.3.3.1  Business 

The following applies to “Business” accounts: 
1) Water allocation shall be specified as an annual allocation based on a fiscal year (July 1st to 

June 30th). 

2) Allocation assigned by recorded agreement. 

3) Where not defined by recorded agreement, the lesser of the historical water consumption 
recorded for either 80 percent of the Fiscal Year 1989-1990 water use or the Fiscal Year 2012-
2013 water use. An exception can be determined when usage is at or near zero during one of 
these periods. Estimated usage will be based on reasonable usage that does not include 
unauthorized expansion of facilities. 

6.3.3.2  Fire 

There is no water allocation for the “Fire” account classification. This water use is for emergency only, 
and not a part of a continuing annual water use. 

6.3.3.3  Industrial 

The following applies to “Industrial” accounts: 
1) Water allocation shall be specified as an annual allocation based on a fiscal year (July 1st to 

June 30th). 

2) Allocation assigned by recorded agreement. 

3) Where not defined by recorded agreement, the lesser of historical water consumption recorded 
for either the 80% of the Fiscal Year 1989-1990 water use or the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 water 
use. An exception can be determined when usage is at or near zero during one of these periods. 
Estimated usage will be based on reasonable usage that does not include unauthorized expansion 
of facilities. 

6.3.3.4  Interdepartmental 

The following applies to “Interdepartmental” accounts: 
1) Water allocation shall be specified as an annual allocation based on a fiscal year (July 1st to 

June 30th). 



 
 

116 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

2) The annual allocations for individual Interdepartmental classification services shall be based on 
the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 water use. An exception can be determined when usage is at or near 
zero during one of these periods. Estimated usage will be based on reasonable usage that does 
not include unauthorized expansion of facilities. 

6.3.3.5  Irrigation (Commercial Agriculture) 

The following applies to “Irrigation” accounts: 
1) Water allocation shall be specified as an annual allocation based on a fiscal year (July 1st to 

June 30th). 

2) Qualifying acreage for each Irrigation account shall be limited to acreage that can he identified 
as under irrigation prior to March 1, 1992. There will be no allocation for irrigation acreage that 
has been expanded after March 1, 1992, except as otherwise approved in written and recorded 
agreement between Casitas MWD and the property owner. Casitas MWD's records and mapping 
will be the standard for the identification of lands in irrigation prior to March 1, 1992. 

3) Allocation assignments to lands served by multiple meter services shall consider the proportion 
of the allocation that each meter is intended to serve. The aggregation of meter readings and 
allocations from multiple meters shall not be allowed.  

4) The Stage 1 water allocation assigned to each Irrigation water account is the greater volume of 
either (1) the water use recorded at each meter service during Fiscal Year 2012-2013 or (2) 
eighty (80) percent of recorded water volume metered to the account in Fiscal Year 1989-1990, 
neither of which shall exceed a water volume of 3 acre-feet per acre applied to the qualifying 
acreage. 

5) The residential water use for Agricultural/Domestic classification that is directly associated with 
the irrigation shall he considered as Irrigation for purpose of allocation assignments and meeting 
the demand reduction requirements for Irrigation. 

6.3.3.6  Multiple-Family Residential 

The following applies to “Multiple-family residential” accounts: 
1) Stage 1 water allocations are assigned to each existing Multiple-Family Residential account by 

either a recorded agreement or based on the standards set in 1992 by Casitas MWD. 

2) The Multiple-Family Residential water allocation for each account shall he distributed by either 
a monthly or hi-monthly scheduling of the allocation. 

3) A part of the Multiple-Family Residential allocation is provided for health and sanitation and 
shall be set at 120 units per year per dwelling, distributed evenly as 10 units per month for 
each dwelling. 

4) The essential water use portion of the allocation is not subject to adjustment by the Staged 
Demand Reduction Program, unless otherwise deemed by the Board to be a necessity during 
extreme water supply conditions or during emergencies. 



 
 

117 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

5) The part of the Multiple-Family Residential allocation that is in excess of the essential allocation 
shall be specified as a monthly allocation and distributed proportionally to reflect varying 
seasonal water use, as indicated in Table 6-1: 

TABLE 6-1 
ANNUAL DISTRIBUTION OF SEASONAL ALLOCATION FOR RESIDENTIAL 
ACCOUNTS 

Month Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 
Percent of 
Total 
Annual 
Allocation 

0.17 0.17 0.13 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.10 0.10 0.12

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. 

The part of the Multiple-Family Residential allocation that is in excess of the essential allocation 
is subject to adjustment by the Staged Demand Reduction Program.  

 
6) Where not previously assigned a residential allocation, a residential allocation shall be based on 

the following: 

a) The essential health and sanitation portion of the residential allocation shall be set at 120 
units per year per year per dwelling, and distributed evenly as 10 units each month of 
the year. 

b) Non-essential portion of the annual residential allocation shall be based on a maximum 
limit of 1.99 acres (86,684 square feet) of irrigated landscape area and set as follows: 

i. For the first 5,000 square feet of landscape area, 15 gallons per square foot 
ii. For the next 10,000 square feet of landscape area, 10 gallons per square foot 

iii. For the next increment up to 71,684 square feet of landscape area, 3 gallons per 
square foot. 

6.3.3.7  Other 
The following applies to “Other” accounts: 

1) Water allocation shall be specified as an annual allocation based on a fiscal year (July 1st to 
June 30th). 

2) Allocation assigned by recorded agreement 

3) Where not defined by recorded agreement, the lesser of historical water consumption of either 
the 80 percent of the 1989-1990 water use, or the Fiscal-Year 2012-2013 water use. An 
exception can be determined when usage is at or near zero during one of these periods. 
Estimated usage will be based on reasonable usage that does not include unauthorized expansion 
of facilities. 



 
 

118 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

6.3.3.8  Resale 
The following applies to “Resale” accounts: 

1) Water allocation shall be specified as an annual allocation based on a fiscal year (July 1st to 
June 30th). 

2) The Stage 1 allocation for each individual Resale customer shall be mutually agreed to by each 
water agency and Casitas MWD, be incorporated into a memorandum of understanding (MOU), 
and assigned to provide water to supplement the Resale agency's primary source of water 
supply. An annual adjustment to the allocation assignment may be a condition of the MOU. 

3) An objective of a MOU is to achieve parity between the Resale agency customers and Casitas 
MWD customers in applying similar overall water use restrictions and financial penalties in 
each Stage. 

4) The Resale agency shall determine the reliability of its water sources and ensure that the annual 
water requirements from Casitas MWD do not exceed their annual water allocation from 
CMWD. 

5) The allocation assignment from Casitas MWD shall not be used by the Resale agency for growth 
within the Resale service area, unless additional allocation for growth is authorized by written 
agreement with CMWD. 

6) The Resale agency shall implement water conservation measures in accordance with the State's 
or California Urban Water Conservation Council's Best Management Practices, responsibly 
maintain water system metering and pipeline systems to reduce water losses, and when 
necessary or when asked to do so, implement water demand reduction measures similar to or 
more restrictive than those imposed by Casitas MWD to assure the continued availability of 
water for health and safety purposes. 

6.3.3.9  Residential 

The following applies to “Residential” accounts: 
1) Stage 1 water allocations are assigned to each existing Residential account by either a recorded 

agreement or based on the standards set in 1992 by Casitas MWD. 

2) The Residential water allocation for each account shall be distributed by either a monthly or bi-
monthly scheduling of the allocation. 

3) A part of the Residential Allocation is provided for health and sanitation and shall be set at 120 
units per year, distributed evenly as 10 units per month for each dwelling.  

4) The essential water use portion of the allocation is not subject to adjustment by the Staged 
Demand Reduction Program, unless otherwise deemed by the Board to be a necessity during 
extreme water supply conditions or during emergencies. 

5) The part of the Residential Allocation that is in excess of the essential allocation shall be 
specified as a monthly allocation and distributed proportionally to reflect varying seasonal water 
use, as indicated in Table 6-1. The part of the Residential Allocation that is in excess of the 
essential allocation is subject to adjustment by the Staged Demand Reduction Program. 



 
 

119 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

6) Where not previously assigned a residential allocation, a residential allocation shall be based on 
the following: 

a) The essential health and sanitation portion of the residential allocation shall be set at 120 
units per year per year per dwelling, distributed evenly as 10 units each month of the 
year. 

b) Non-essential portion of the annual residential allocation shall be based on a maximum 
limit of 1.99 acres (86,684 square feet) of irrigated landscape area and set as follows: 

i. For the first 5,000 square feet of landscape area, 15 gallons per square foot; 
ii. For the next 10,000 square feet of landscape area, 10 gallons per square foot 

iii. For the next increment up to 71,684 square feet of landscape area, 3 gallons per 
square foot. 

6.3.3.10  Temporary 

The following applies to “Temporary” accounts: 

1) There is no water allocation assigned for the Temporary classification. Temporary water service 
is not property related on a permanent basis. 

2) Temporary water use is limited for a short-term of six months or less, for such purposes as 
construction projects, or short-term water supply emergencies, or temporary backup water to 
non-metered agricultural parcels. 

3) Temporary meters that are issued to serve supplemental commercial irrigation shall be 
temporarily allocated water based on the allocation assignment provided at the time of the 
application for the Temporary service, based on the same water use standards as provided for 
the Irrigation classification, and reduced by Stage conditions. The allocation does not extend 
beyond the period of the temporary water service application of six (6) months, unless the 
Casitas MWD Board of Directors approves a limited continuance of the temporary service. 

6.3.4 Allocation Adjustments. 
A Casitas MWD customer may request the reconsideration of their initial assigned Stage 1 water 
allocation where the request does not include a consideration for either an expansion in the area of use 
or new construction. The customer shall submit a water allocation adjustment application in order to 
have their request considered by the General Manager of the Casitas MWD. The information contained 
on the application may be subject to an audit and, if necessary, additional documentation may be 
required in order to substantiate the requested adjustment. 
 
Adjustments to water allocations that have been assigned through a recorded Water Service Agreement 
between the property owner, or prior property owner, and Casitas MWD must proceed through an 
amendatory agreement, will be subject to the capital facility charges for the amount of water provided 
as the allocation adjustment, and subject to the availability of water allocations.  
Adjustments to water allocations will not be granted in amounts that exceed 80 percent of the FY 1989-
90 metered usage of water by the meter service account without prior Board approval. 



 
 

120 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

6.3.5  Standards for a Water Allocation Adjustment 
Water allocation adjustments may be considered by Casitas MWD during initiation of the WEAP that 
appropriately assigns a Stage 1 allocation, to ensure that the needs of the water customer are reasonably 
balanced against the purpose of this Plan. Water allocations may be considered for adjustment for the 
following: 

 Correction of irrigable area square footage 
 Correction of number of dwelling units (Multi-family accounts only) 
 Exemption granted for a licensed in-home childcare or elderly care facility. 

Water allocations will not be adjusted to accommodate the following: 

 Pools, ponds, spas, or hot tubs 

 In-home businesses or hobbies that use an increased amount of water 

 Gardens and orchards 

 Homeowner's Association requirements for turf areas in excess of that water allocation specified 
by Casitas MWD for a Residential classification 

 Where an allocation has been assigned through a recorded agreement. 

Agricultural Irrigation Allocation Adjustment Standards include the following: 

 Limited to acreage planted in commercial agricultural production prior to March 1, 1992. 
Casitas MWD shall also consider the assignment of an appropriate allocation to lands that are 
verified as being in a crop rotation status, or temporarily in a fallowed state, having been in a 
planted status prior to March 1, 1992.  

 Comparative (same crop type and average use of various parcels) crop usage in Fiscal Year 
20I2-2013 for full irrigation, not to exceed 3 AF/acre/year, which is located within a 1-mile 
circumference of the parcel seeking the appeal for a change in water allocation. 

6.3.6  Appeals Process 
Customers that are denied an adjustment of water allocation may request a review of the request by 
submitting a written appeal to the Casitas Water Resources Manager stating the nature of the appeal. 
The appeal shall be reviewed by the Casitas Water Resources Manager and a recommendation shall be 
reported to the General Manager. The decision of the General Manager shall be reported to the customer 
in written form. If the customer is not satisfied with the General Manager's decision, the customer must 
request within 10 days that the appeal be placed on the agenda of the Casitas MWD Board of Directors. 
The determination by the Casitas MWD Board shall be final. 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

121 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

6.3.7  Availability of Allocations 
The determination of supplies being available for issuance of new allocations of water shall be made 
upon staff recommendation at a regular Casitas MWD Board of Directors meeting. The determination 
that water is or is not available shall be within the determination of the Casitas MWD Board. The 
determination that a supply is available shall be based upon more detailed information about existing 
supplies, the availability of new supplies, new water supply projects, or contracts or proposed contracts 
for additional supplies where, in the opinion of the Casitas MWD Board, the supply of water is definite 
enough to provide the assurance to the County of Ventura that there is a forty-year supply. 

6.3.8  Allocation for New or Expanded Water Uses 
A customer may request a change to a water allocation assignment for the purposes of obtaining new 
or expanded use of water that is associated with a new building permit, new or existing conditional use 
permit, or agricultural irrigation acreage expansion. The approval of an addition or change to the water 
allocation for new and/or expanded water allocation is subject to Casitas MWD's discretion on the limits 
of available water allocation and subject to the charges for new and/or expanded water allocation. 
 
When the Board of Directors determine that additional new water supplies are available, either from 
the safe yield of the existing Casitas MWD project supply or additional new supplies, supplies shall be 
allocated in accordance with the following criteria: 

 No single property owner or applicant for the given type of service (municipal, industrial or 
agricultural) shall receive a new water allocation greater than 10 percent of the total new 
available supply or the minimum standard residential allocation, whichever is greater. If the 
applicant's allocation requirements are not fully met, the applicant may maintain a position of 
priority until more water is available. 

 All applicants seeking an allocation shall provide Casitas MWD with a detailed description of 
the project, the use of water for which the water is sought, and information on peak flow and 
annual water requirements. Casitas MWD shall determine meter size and amount of allocation 
based upon reasonable and necessary needs and Casitas MWD's Rates and Regulations. 

 The amount of water to be allocated shall be at Casitas MWD's sole discretion. The assignment 
of an allocation shall be limited to the availability of water from the Lake Casitas safe yield, 
and be based on current water demand factors as adopted by the Casitas MWD and as amended. 
The amount of water required for the project may be calculated and submitted for the 
consideration of Casitas MWD by a civil engineer, registered in the State of California, 
representing the project proponent. 

6.4  STAGED DEMAND REDUCTION PRINCIPLES 

6.4.1  Staged Demand Reduction Principles 
The primary source of water that is available to the Casitas MWD is the amount of water stored behind 
Casitas Dam, forming Lake Casitas. The quantity of water stored in Lake Casitas is dependent upon 
several factors including but not limited to the following: local hydrology, watershed conditions, 



 
 

122 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

diversions from the Ventura River, lake evaporation, and water deliveries to beneficial uses. There may 
be times during which Casitas MWD must consider implementing staged water demand reductions to 
ensure a sustainable water supply and prevent a complete depletion of water supply in Lake Casitas. 
The Casitas MWD has assigned five stages of water storage in Lake Casitas that serve as a guidance to 
triggering the implementation of water use reduction goals and measures. The overarching goals of the 
Staged Demand Reduction Program are the following:  

 Conserving the water supply for the greatest priority and public benefit 

 Mitigating the effects of a water shortage on public health, safety, and economic activity. 

6.4.2  Water Resource Conditions and Actions. 
The General Manager shall report to the Board of Directors each year with an assessment of the current 
water storage in Lake Casitas and local groundwater basins, current water use trends, predicted weather 
conditions, and an evaluation of current water use reduction goals. The time of the reporting can be 
each April, as the rainfall season is ending and water resources can be evaluated at the maximum for 
the year, or as Lake Casitas storage reaches a change in Stage action level.  
 
The Casitas MWD Board of Directors may, at their sole discretion, declare that a Stage condition of 
water supply in Lake Casitas exists and implement the appropriate demand reduction goals and 
measures in response to current and/or predicted water availability conditions. The resolutions will 
serve to address a particular water shortage with the appropriate guidelines, procedures, regulations, 
and implementation of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan. Provisions of the resolution shall be 
developed and implemented in a timely manner to provide water service during emergency conditions 
to all of Casitas MWD’s customers in a fair and equitable manner and in recognition of the given 
conditions. 
 
Casitas MWD has established the implementation of various Stages of action based on the amount of 
water in storage in Lake Casitas, as shown in Table 6-2 (see also Appendix E Table 8-1). As previously 
noted in Section 4.2, the safe-yield from the Lake Casitas Project is 20,840 acre-feet. 
An action to declare and implement a Stage may be by either an action by Casitas MWD Board based 
on unanticipated changing lake supply conditions or by the following schedule in Table 6-3. 



 
 

123 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 6-2 
STAGE CONDITIONS 

Stage Stage Title Lake Casitas 
Storage (%) 

Lake Casitas Storage 
Action Level (AF) 

1 Water Conservation 100% to 50% 254,000 to 127,000 
2 Water Shortage Warning 50% to 40% 127,000 to 100,000 
3 Water Shortage Eminent 40% to 30% 100,000 to 75,000 
4 Severe Water Shortage 30% to 25% 75,000 to 65,000 
5 Critical Water Shortage 25% to 0% 65,000 to 3,000 

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. 

TABLE 6-3 
STAGE ACTION SCHEDULE 

Target Dates  

June – April Monitor water demands, rainfall, reservoir level trend, groundwater 
trends, and diversion and runoff amounts.  

Early April 
Staff presents water status report and a recommendation to the Casitas 
MWD Board. Publish a notice of a public hearing if changes are 
recommended.  

Late April Casitas MWD Board formally declares a Stage, and/or water shortage 
emergency, adopts recommendations for demand reduction actions. 

May Customer Notification of change in Stage, allocation, and conservation 
surcharge. 

June Stage demand reduction actions are effective and are implemented. 

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. 

6.4.3  Demand Reduction Goals and Measures. 
Demand reduction goals and measures begin with Stage 1, where reasonable and appropriate water 
allocation assignments are made to each Casitas MWD service connection. End water users are 
encouraged to implement Best Management Practices that conform to State requirements for water 
conservation and water use efficiency measures. Upon determination of a Stage 2 condition, and 
continuing through Stage 5 conditions, the primary actions to achieve the demand reduction goal is the 
adjustment of allocations. Adjustments in allocations were made available for each classification during 
Stage 1 by a reduction of the allocation during the duration of the declared Stage condition. See Table 
6-4 for staged water demand reductions by customer classification. 



 
 

124 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

6.4.4  Stage Adjustments to Allocations. 
The five stages of storage in Lake Casitas (see Table 6-2) and the initial guideline for water allocation 
adjustments for each classification at each Stage are presented in Table 6-4. Upon recommendation of 
the General Manager and approval of the Board of Directors at the onset of a specific Stage, the Casitas 
MWD shall apply appropriate demand reduction factors to the allocations for each customer 
classification, as deemed necessary. The Board retains the sole discretion to make allocation changes 
as a result of declaring a change in Stage, or during any Stage, that are more or less severe than that 
provided in Table 6-4. Examples of applying this discretion may include, but not be limited to, the 
change in any water resource conditions or the demand reduction goals are not being attained by the 
customer classification. 

TABLE 6-4 
STAGE WATER DEMAND REDUCTIONS FOR WATER CLASSIFICATIONS 
 
Demand Reduction Stage (1) 1 (2) 2 3 4 5 
Volume range of Lake Casitas 254,000 

to 
127,000 

127,000 
to 

100,000 

100,000 
to 

75,000 

75,000 
to 

65,000 

65,000 
to 

3,000 
Percent Lake Casitas storage 100% - 

50% 
50% - 
40% 

40% - 
30% 

30% - 
25% 

25% - 
0% 

Water use reduction response goal 20% 20% 30% 40% 50% 
Residential and Multiple-family Residential 
         Essential use 
         Non-essential use 

 
0% 
20% 

 
0% 
20% 

 
0% 
50% 

 
0% 
80% 

 
0% 

100% 
Business 20% 20% 30% 40% 50% 
Industrial 20% 20% 30% 40% 50% 
Other 20% 20% 30% 40% 50% 
Resale 20% 20% 30% 40% 50% 
Irrigation 20% 20% 30% 40% 50% 
Interdepartmental 20% 20% 30% 40% 50% 

Notes:   
(1) Source, CMWD, 2016. 
(2) Initial Stage 1 Allocations include a 20% reduction from the 1989-1990 demands. 

Essential use allocations will remain the same and not adjusted, except as otherwise determined by the 
Casitas MWD Board to be a necessity to preserve water supply during extreme conditions. Measures 
to achieve the demand reduction goal may be selected from a menu of options as provided in Table 6-
5, or should water supply conditions become worse than anticipated the Casitas MWD Board may adopt 
more stringent requirements as deemed necessary. 
  



 
 

125 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 6-5 
STAGE ACTIONS AND WATER DEMAND REDUCTION MEASURES 

Water 
Shortage 
Condition 

Key CMWD 
Communications 

And Actions 

Customer Demand 
Reduction Measures 

Penalties and Rates 

Stage 1 
 
Supply Range: 
100%-50% 
 
Demand 
Reduction: 
0% 
 
(80% of 1989 use) 

 Initiate public information and 
advertising campaign.  
 Publicize ways to reduce water 

consumption. 
 Coordinate conservation actions 

with other water purveyors and 
cities. 

 Perform water audits and 
promote water efficient 
use/conversions. 

 Conduct water workshops. 
 Temporary staffing for public 

inquiries, as needed. 

 Water Conservation 
practices requested of all 
customer classifications. 

 Adhere to Water Wise 
Prohibition Ordinance. 

 Adhere to assigned 
water allocation or less. 

 Consider and implement 
conservation penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation. 

 Consider rates for 
revenue stabilization 
and cost of service. 

Stage 2 
 
Supply Range: 
50%-40% 
 
Demand 
Reduction from 
Stage 1 
Allocation: 
20% 

 Declare Stage 2 
 Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
 Intensify public information 

campaign. 
 Optimize existing water 

resources. 
 Intensify leak detection. 
 Develop appeals staffing. 
 Consult with major customers to 

develop conservation plans and 
water use audits. 

 

 Continue all Stage 1 
measures. 

 Landscape watering 
restricted to two (2) 
watering days per week. 

 Require water audits for 
large water users; 
implement 
recommendations of the 
water audits. 

 Businesses display 
“save water” signage. 

 Increase public 
information. 

 Consider and implement 
conservation penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation. 

 Consider rates for 
revenue stabilization 
and cost of service. 

Stage 3 
 
Supply Range: 
40%-30% 
 
Demand 
Reduction from 
Stage 1 
Allocation: 
30% 

 Declare Stage 3 
 Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
 Expand and intensify public 

information campaign. 
 Provide regular briefing, publish 

monthly consumption report. 
 Hire additional temporary staff in 

customer service, conservation, 
and water distribution. Water 
waste enforcement. 
 Consider moratorium on new 

service connections. 

 Continue with Stage 1 
and 2 measures. 

 Reduced water 
allocations. 

 Landscape watering 
restricted to one (1) 
watering day per week. 

 No landscape changes 
unless xeriscape. 

 Consider and implement 
conservation penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation. 

 Consider rates for 
revenue stabilization 
and cost of service. 



 
 

126 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Water 
Shortage 
Condition 

Key CMWD 
Communications 

And Actions 

Customer Demand 
Reduction Measures 

Penalties and Rates 

Stage 4 
 
Supply Range: 
30%-25% 
 
Demand 
Reduction from 
Stage 1 
Allocation: 
40% 

 Declare Stage 4 
 Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
 Continue to provide regular 

media briefings. 
 Scale up appeals. 
 Open drought information center. 

 Continue with Stage 1 
through 3 measures. 

 Reduced water 
allocations. 

 Landscape watering 
restricted to one (1) 
watering day per week. 

 Implement restrictive 
irrigation delivery 
schedule. 

 Minimal water for large 
landscapes. 

 Consider prohibition of 
filling swimming pools 
and fountains. 

 Implement restrictive 
irrigation delivery 
schedule and quantities 
greater than 60%. 

 Consider and implement 
conservation penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation. 

 Consider rates for 
revenue stabilization 
and cost of service. 

Stage 5 
 
Supply Range: 
25%-0% 
 
Demand 
Reduction from 
Stage 1 
Allocation: 
50% 

 Declare Stage 5 
 Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
 Minimize outdoor water use and 

non-essential uses. 
 Implement aggressive public 

outreach and education program. 
 Implement crisis communications 

plan. 
 Coordinate with State and local 

agencies to address enforcement 
challenges. 
 Water Shortage Emergency 

declaration to be considered. 

 Continue with Stage 1 
through 4 measures. 

 Reduced water 
allocations. 

 Rescind temporary 
meters issued. 

 No turf irrigation. 
 Implement restrictive 

irrigation delivery 
schedule and quantities 
greater than 50%. 

 Consider and implement 
conservation penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation. 

 Consider rates for 
revenue stabilization 
and cost of service. 

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. 

6.4.5  Customer Notification 
The customers of each and every classification shall be notified in a timely and appropriate manner of 
any and all actions to declare and implement Demand Reduction Stage. The methods of communication 
to the customer shall be through direct mailings, public meetings, and billing information that provides 
the customer the comparison of water use with allocation. 

 



 
 

127 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

6.4.6  Water Use Reduction Monitoring 
During the implementation of the Program, Casitas MWD will perform water use monitoring 
procedures. Casitas MWD monitors water use throughout the Casitas MWD service area through 
SCADA at the Casitas Dam source, all pump plants and reservoirs.  In addition, all service connection 
to the Casitas MWD distribution system are metered and monitored on a month or bi-monthly basis. 
Casitas MWD can detect irregularly high water use within a pressure zone and inquiry and identify the 
location of the irregular water use. Significant customer increases in water use are investigated by 
Casitas MWD staff. In general, monitoring of water use is performed during each stage as follows, but 
may be intensified if conditions warrant. 

6.4.6.1 Stages 1 through 4 

Water supply conditions, production data and reservoir elevations are recorded daily. Daily and 
monthly totals are supplied through the Engineering Department and incorporated into the Water 
Supply Report. Monthly reports include usage and total allocations for each customer category. A list 
of individual customers whose usage exceeds their allocation is submitted to the Water Conservation 
Supervisor for monitoring and outreach to assist the customer in attaining the water use reduction goals. 

6.4.6.2  Stage 5 

Water use monitoring will occur as in Stages 1 through 4, and water production data from the Casitas 
Dam will be reported to the General Manager on a daily basis. 

6.4.7  Water Rates and Conservation Penalty 
The Casitas MWD Board of Directors shall annually consider the setting or adjustment of water rates 
that reflect the cost of water service, consistent with State law. Casitas MWD has implemented a four 
tier inclining rate structure for the Residential and Multiple-family Residential classifications that 
represents the proportional cost of service that is attributable to the parcel that is served water. 
 
The Casitas MWD Board of Directors shall annually set the Conservation Penalty for each classification 
that will be applied to each individual customer billing for each unit of water that is in excess of the 
customer's allocation, or the adjusted allocation pursuant to a change in Stage. The Conservation 
Penalty is a regulatory fee that is imposed to curtail the potential for adverse effects of excessive water 
consumption. Upon determination of a change in Stage, or at such time the Board deems that the 
customer response does not appear to attain the desired demand reduction goals, the Board may consider 
the modification of the Conservation Penalty. Revenues recovered from the Conservation Penalty will 
supplement Casitas MWD's water conservation costs and provide revenue for water shortage related 
projects. Implementing changes to the WEAP (2015, copy provided in Appendix K) will require utility 
billing system software changes to incorporate the Stage allocations as directed by the Board, as well 
as including the water use information and Conservation Penalty into the normal billing process. 
 
The Casitas MWD Board of Directors approved Resolution 15-30 which authorized implementation of 
a Conservation Penalty, imposed as a regulatory charge, be set at $1.00 per each unit of water use that 
is in excess of the individual customer’s assigned monthly water allocation to each Casitas MWD 
Residential and Multi-Residential account. This Conservation Penalty will be billed monthly for 



 
 

128 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Residential and Multi-Residential accounts. A conservation penalty, imposed as a regulatory charge, of 
$0.25 be applied to each unit of water use that is in excess of the assigned annual allocation to individual 
customers of the Agricultural, Agricultural-domestic, Industrial, Business, Interdepartmental, Other, 
and Resale accounts. This Conservation Penalty will be billed at the end of the fiscal year to each 
individual customer that has accrued an excess water use. A copy of Resolution 15-30 is provided in 
Appendix K. 

6.4.8  Appeals for Exception to Staged Adjustments of Allocation 
A Casitas MWD customer may request consideration of an exception to the staged adjustments of 
allocation based on the following findings being present: 

 The Staged adjustment would cause a condition affecting the health, sanitation, fire protection, 
or safety of the applicant or the public. 

 Strict application of the allotment provisions imposes a severe or undue hardship on a particular 
business, or renders it infeasible for a business or class of business to remain in operation. 

 Hospitals and health care facilities using industry best management practices are eligible for an 
exception. 

 The business has already implemented environmental sustainability measures reducing water 
consumption to the maximum extent possible. 

An exception must be presented to the Casitas MWD in writing with supporting documentation or 
substantial evidence demonstrating the need for an exemption. The exemption application will be 
reviewed, approved or denied, by the Casitas Water Resources Manager. Customers that are denied an 
exemption may request a review of the request by submitting a written appeal to the Casitas MWD 
Water Resources Manager stating the nature of the appeal. The appeal shall be reviewed by the Casitas 
MWD Water Resources Manager and a recommendation shall be reported to the General Manager. The 
decision of the General Manager shall be reported to the customer in written form. If the customer is 
not satisfied with the General Manager's decision, the customer must request within 10 days that the 
appeal be placed on the agenda of the Casitas MWD Board of Directors. The determination by the 
Casitas MWD Board of Directors shall be final. 

6.4.9  Current Stage 
The Casitas MWD Board of Directors approved Resolution 16-XX on April 27, 2016, which authorized 
staff to implement Stage 3 measures. A copy of Resolution 16-XX is provided in Appendix K. Casitas 
MWD will select from a menu of options to achieve the Stage 3 demand reduction goal as provided in 
Table 6-5. 
  



 
 

129 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

6.5  PREPARATION FOR INTERRUPTION IN WATER SUPPLY 

This section of the UWMP/AWMP provides the actions to be taken by the urban water supplier to 
prepare for, and implement during a catastrophic interruption of water supplies, including but not 
limited to a regional power outage, an earthquake, or other disaster. 

6.5.1  Casitas MWD Actions 
The Casitas MWD has prepared a Water Shortage Contingency Plan (Resolution 92-11), that addresses 
emergencies under short-term catastrophic events, and long-term water shortages that may occur as a 
result of a prolonged drought. A water shortage emergency may be determined to exist in the event of 
a short-term interruption of water supply or as a result of long-term diminishment of the Lake Casitas 
water supply. A short-term interruption of water supply can be the result of earthquakes, regional power 
outages, landslides, or other major and minor events that impact Casitas MWD water facilities or 
supply. These events are more often a short term interruption of water supplies until the water system 
can be restored to the customers. A long-term or service area-wide condition may be the result of 
drought conditions or a reduction in local water supplies that will require long-term water supply-
demand management. The Casitas MWD response to a short-term interruption of water supply may 
cause the implementation of the Casitas MWD Emergency Action Plan that is structured under the 
State's Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS), in coordination with federal, state and 
county emergency response planning that provides the framework for an organized response to 
catastrophic events. 
 
Catastrophic events include non-drought related events. In the occurrence of a catastrophic event 
involving facilities and/or water service area sources, Casitas MWD personnel must respond to the 
emergency in an organized and methodical manner. Casitas MWD has as its resource tool for 
emergency response the Casitas Dam Emergency Action Plan and the Casitas MWD Emergency 
Response Plan (2004a). Each plan has been prepared and practiced with federal, state, and county 
emergency response agencies to provide a coordinated response to emergency conditions. Casitas 
MWD has also performed vulnerability assessments for each facility and have improved facilities to 
lessen the potential impacts of catastrophic events. The Casitas Dam is of special interest and 
coordination with the United States Bureau of Reclamation due to its importance and risk. Each 
emergency plan provides specific levels of response for various conditions, making the response fit 
appropriately to the degree of the emergency, and providing for an escalation or de-escalation of the 
response to match conditions found in the event area. The emergency plan will be implemented at the 
local level, damage assessments conducted and reported, and if warranted, actions will be taken by 
Casitas MWD during and following the emergency event, and Casitas MWD may request additional 
assistance through the Ventura County Office of Emergency Services.  

A key element to the Casitas MWD Emergency Response Plan (2004a) is the Communications section, 
which provides the pubic communications strategy, water quality notification plan, and directions for 
public and agency notifications in the event of a water emergency. In the event of a catastrophic 
interruption of water supply, the respective emergency plan will be implemented and the affected areas 
notified of water supply outages and/or water quality actions. Casitas MWD notification plan considers 



 
 

130 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

the use of, the Casitas MWD website and Facebook page, direct telephone notification, media outlets 
(radio and television), posting individual service hang tags, and notification over the emergency 
broadcast network. Casitas MWD keeps and updates the contact information on an annual basis, or as 
the customer of record changes. 

The Casitas MWD water system relies on Lake Casitas as the main source of water supply and the 
groundwater basin agencies as the backup water sources to Lake Casitas. It should be noted that the 
groundwater supplies are generally limited in storage capacity and ability to instantaneously deliver 
water to the Casitas MWD system, and interagency agreement is sought for specific and limited 
emergency conditions. Casitas MWD does have interconnection with most groundwater agencies in the 
Casitas MWD service area. Beyond the Lake Casitas source, Casitas MWD has approximately 22 
million gallon of water storage in the distribution system to provide approximately three days of reserve 
water supply. Casitas MWD also has four portable water tanks (water buffalos), 500 gallons each, for 
placing in residential areas during isolated water outages. Casitas MWD may also employ contract 
water trucks to provide water to residential areas during major water outages. Casitas MWD will 
respond to water outages with a pipeline repair crew, contract pipeline crews, engineers, water quality 
and customer service personnel, and may request assistance from local, state, and federal agencies, as 
warranted. 

6.5.2  Examples of Events That May Cause Interruption of Water Supply 
Examples of short-term and long-term events that may result in a local water supply interruption 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 Earthquake 

 Power outage 

 Chemical/toxic spill in Lake Casitas 

 California Department of Drinking Water determination groundwater basin is contaminated 

 Sudden deterioration of water quality in Lake Casitas 

 Interruption of service due to pipeline break, loss of pumping plant, chlorination station, etc. 

 Immediate hazard to public health 

 Extensive local drought reducing levels in Lake Casitas 

 Uncontrolled watershed burn resulting in flooding, thereby impacting water served from lake 
Casitas MWD due to one or more of the following: 

 High turbidity 
 Bacteriological quality 
 High organic content 
 Damage to distribution system. 

 



 
 

131 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

6.5.3  Prohibitions, Penalties and Consumption Reduction Methods 
In the event of a short-term emergency for which Casitas MWD has a definite plan and schedule to 
restore its system to pre-disaster condition, Casitas MWD may implement water use restrictions in 
accordance with the adopted Water Efficiency and Allocation Program (copy provided in Appendix 
K). Casitas MWD may further make requests of agricultural and resale accounts to move to alternate 
water sources and curtail water demands. If the emergency conditions persist, Casitas MWD may 
consider a shift to a more restrictive Stage of the Water Allocation and Efficiency Program, applying 
limits to water use allocations and incentive rates to meet water use goals during the emergency. 
Additional restrictions may be considered and implemented upon direction from the Casitas MWD 
Board to include, but not limited to, prohibiting the use of potable water for street cleaning. Additional 
action may include, but not limited to, the installation of flow restrictors or the shutoff of service in 
order to maintain enough water supply in the system for health and safety purposes.  

6.5.4  Analysis of Revenue Impacts from Reduced Sales During Shortages 
An analysis is required of the impact of reduced sales resulting from a catastrophic water shortage, on 
the revenues and expenditures of the urban water supplier. In addition, the analysis must include the 
proposed measures to respond to such impact, such as development of reserves and rate adjustments.  
 
In order to estimate a financial budget in the event of a local disaster, Casitas MWD evaluated the 
hypothetical scenario of the loss of 50 percent of the water supply. As noted in Section 5, the Casitas 
MWD water supply for a normal water-year is 20,840 AF. Annual commodity income from Casitas 
MWD sales of 20,840 acre-feet of water is approximately $6,060,000 (Casitas MWD FY 2013 rates), 
and the fixed water service charge income of $1,600,000. Total revenue from water sales and service 
charges is approximately $7,660,000 (see Table 6-6). In the event of a catastrophic interruption of 
water supply, Casitas MWD water sales could potentially be reduced by 50 percent of a normal water-
year. This scenario may result in a reduced revenue total of approximately $3,830,000, and expenses 
of approximately $5,203,000. In this hypothetical scenario, Casitas MWD could see a budget deficit of 
approximately $1,373,000 per year, as indicated in Table 6-6. For Casitas MWD, the key reduction in 
costs are directly associated with the reduction in chemical purchase due to less water to treat and 
provide as potable water, and less energy to pump water to the various zones of service. In each case, 
the reduction in water sales is in direct relation to the reduction in chemical and electrical power 
purchases.  
 
Casitas MWD has unrestricted reserves of $14,710,000 in designated funds for cash flow, storm 
damage, variation in water sales, and capital improvements. The Casitas MWD Board of Directors 
could direct a portion of these funds be used to balance the budget. Casitas MWD could also consider 
an increase in water rates, after assessing the resultant benefit that may or may not be generated by such 
an action. Such an increase in rates may result in less water demand and generate no more additional 
revenue to offset the budget deficit. 
 



 
 

132 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 6-6 
ESTIMATED BUDGET IMPACT OF CATASTROPHIC EVENT 

 Normal Supply Supply Deficit of 50 Percent 
Water Supply 20,840 AF 10,420 AF
Percentage of Normal 100 50
Revenue: 
   Commodity Charges $6,060,000 $3,030,000
   Service Charges $1,600,000 $800,000

Total $7,660,000 $3,830,000
 
Expenses: 
   Salaries/ benefits $2,938,000 $2,938,000
   Fixed Services/Supplies $1,348,000 $1,348,000
   Variable Services/Supplies $1,834,000 $917,000

Total $6,120,000 $5,203,000
 

Budget Surplus (Deficit) $1,540,000  ($1,373,000)
Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016. All values estimated. 

6.5.5  CMWD Operating Rules and Regulations 
Casitas MWD is responsible for operation of the Lake Casitas, treatment plant, and the distribution 
system (see Section 2.5 for details). A copy of the Casitas MWD’s Rates and Regulations for Water 
Service (2009) is available at the website:  
 
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/Rates%20&%20Regs%20Board%20Adopt
ed%2012%2016%202009.pdf.  
 
Copies of the Casitas MWD’s Rules and Regulations are also available upon request. See Appendix 
F, Worksheets 10-18 for additional details related to Casitas MWD policies. In addition, water 
shortage allocation policies for the Casitas MWD are provided in Section 6. Copies of these 
documents are available from Casitas MWD upon written request. 
 
The Casitas MWD prepared and maintains an Emergency Response Plan (2004a). The Emergency 
Response Plan includes extensive details for responding to numerous events such as catastrophic 
earthquakes, hydrological failure, sabotage, vandalism, bomb threat, water quality contamination, and 
a terrorist threat. Casitas MWD staff train regularly in order to properly respond to events and minimize 
the interruption of water supply. 
 
 
  



 
 

133 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

SECTION 7: DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 
7.1 DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS 

7.1.1 UWMP Requirements 
This section will include the following: 

 Retail suppliers shall provide a description of the nature and extent of each demand management 
measure implemented over the past five years. The description will address specific measures 
listed in Code, including water waste prevention ordinances, metering, conservation pricing, 
public education and outreach, water loss control, conservation program coordination and 
staffing, and other demand management measures that significantly impact water use. (CWC, 
10631(f)(1)) 

 Wholesale suppliers shall describe specific demand management measures listed in Code, 
including metering, public education and outreach, conservation program coordination and 
staffing, distribution system asset management program, supplier assistance program, and other 
demand management measures that significantly impact water use. (CWC, 10631(f)(2)) 

 CUWCC members may submit their 2013-2014 CUWCC BMP annual reports in lieu of, or in 
addition to, describing the DMM implementation in their UWMPs. This option is only allowable 
if the supplier has been found to be in full compliance with the CUWCC MOU. (CWC, 
10631(i)) 

7.1.2 AWMP Requirements 
This section will include the following: 

 AWMP must include demand management policies and incentives in addition to the water 
shortage allocation plan to lower on farm water use.  

 Water Code §10826 (e) requires that certain water use efficiency information be included in the 
AWMP per §10608.48. Sections 10608.48 (a) through 10608.48(f) are related to the EWMPs 
of the AWMP. Sections 10608.48 (a) to 10608.48 (c) require implementation of EWMPs. 
Section 10608.48 (d) requires a report of which EWMPs have been implemented, an estimate 
of efficiency improvements, and documentation that non-implemented EWMPs were either not 
locally cost-effective or technically feasible. Section 10608.48 (e) specifies how to report the 
information.  

 Implementation of critical EWMPs (Water Code §10608.48 (b)) are required of all agricultural 
water suppliers. Other EWMPs (Conditional), listed in Water Code §10608.48 (c), are required 
only if they are locally cost-effective and technically feasible. CADWR also encourages the 
agricultural water supplier to report on how implementation of EWMPs may have affected or is 
anticipated to affect operations. 

 



 
 

134 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

7.2  INTRODUCTION 

Casitas MWD has a long history and strong commitment to water use efficiency. In 1992 the Casitas 
MWD Board of Directors adopted a series of ordinances, resolutions, and a Water Efficiency and 
Allocation Program (WEAP) in response to the increasing water demands and declining water storage 
in Lake Casitas experienced during the 1987-1991 drought period. The collective work in 1992 set the 
starting point for a system of water allocation assignments and demand response criteria that are based 
on the level of water storage in Lake Casitas. Casitas MWD Board of Directors adopted a Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan in 1992, by Resolution No. 92-11, that set water use reduction goals for the 
various stages of Lake Casitas storage. Casitas MWD Board adopted Resolution 2014-0038 drought 
emergency regulations, that supplemented the Water Shortage Contingency Plan, limited the outdoor 
irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water. Casitas MWD Resolution 15-02 includes 
permanently prohibited uses of water that are in effect year round. Provisions of this Ordinance applies 
to all persons, corporations, public or private entities, governmental agencies or institutions, or any 
other direct water customers of the Casitas MWD (copy of Resolution 15-02 provided in Appendix K). 
The Casitas MWD Board approved Resolution 15-30 which authorized implementation of a 
Conservation Penalty (copy provided in Appendix K). 
 
Casitas MWD recently updated the WEAP (2015, copy provided in Appendix K). The purpose of the 
WEAP is to provide guidance on water supply and demand strategies that implement the following: 

 Conserve the water supply of the Ventura River Project, Lake Casitas and other water resources 
that are in the direct control of Casitas MWD, for the greatest public benefit. 

 Mitigate the effects of a water shortage on public health and safety and economic activity. 

 Allocate water use so that a reliable and sustainable supply of water will be available for the 
most essential purposes under all water storage conditions of Lake Casitas.  

 Adapt to changing conditions of water supply demand and constraints.  

The WEAP describes the water demand reduction strategies and measures to address future water 
shortage conditions, promote water conservation and the efficient use of water, and the application of 
a conservation penalty to customers who waste water. 
 
In addition, Casitas MWD is a signatory to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the 
California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC). This essentially declares Casitas MWD’s 
intent to implement all cost effective water conservation Best Management Practices (BMPs) as noted 
by the CUWCC. A copy of the most recent approved CUWCC BMP Coverage Report is provided in 
Appendix L. 
 
The next two sections (Sections 7.3 and 7.4) summarize the conservation measures as required by the 
UWMP and AWMP, respectively. 
 
 



 
 

135 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

7.3  UWMP DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 

The UWMP Act currently requires wholesale agencies to provide narrative descriptions of metering, 
public education and outreach, conservation program coordination and staffing, distribution system 
asset management program, supplier assistance program, and other demand management measures that 
significantly impact water use. 

Casitas MWD is a retail water agency, wholesale water agency, and an agricultural water agency. 
However, for the purposes of this UWMP, the Casitas MWD is considered a wholesale agency. The 
Casitas MWD will comply with the UWMP requirements as a wholesale agency. 

7.3.1  Metering 
All of the Casitas MWD surface water supplies and ground water supplies are metered. Accuracy of 
the District’s meters is generally 98 percent to 102 percent. All of the Casitas MWD direct customers 
are metered. Casitas MWD has meters for all of the resale customers. 

7.3.2  Public Education and Outreach 
The extensive Casitas MWD public education and outreach program promotes the water conservation 
ethic and informs the public of the benefits derived from conserving a valuable resource. Implementing 
water conservation and demand management strategies will allow Casitas MWD to manage local water 
supplies throughout a long-term drought and avoid supply depletion. Many of the diverse public 
education and outreach activities are summarized below. 

Casitas MWD distributed bi-annual newsletters that include information on water conservation to all 
30,000 residents within the Casitas MWD. The newsletters include information on water conservation, 
workshops, and other water-related news. Two additional bill stuffers are sent out each year as well to 
ensure that there is a quarterly contact with customers. Every bill statement has a water conservation 
message on it. Examples of public information are provided in Appendix M.  

The Casitas MWD website (http://www.casitaswater.org/ ) is updated regularly with water 
conservation videos, articles, and program updates. Press releases or media contacts are made each 
quarter. Casitas MWD also posts conservation messages and announcements to Facebook 
(https://www.facebook.com/fbsitecasitasmunicipalwaterdistrict/ ). 
Customer water bills include information on previous usage. Casitas MWD recently removed all of the 
landscape turf from the main office and replaced it with drought tolerant plants. The office is located 
on a main road within the Casitas MWD service area. The high visibility for the drought tolerant 
plantings sets a significant example for customers.  

The Casitas MWD prepares an annual Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) that is designed to inform 
customers about the quality of water and services provided. The Casitas MWD CCR also includes water 
conservation elements. A copy of the current CCR is provided in Appendix J.  

Casitas MWD has a speaker’s bureau program that is advertised in the newsletters. Casitas MWD staff 
members attend multiple community meetings throughout the year and discuss water conservation 



 
 

136 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

issues as part of their presentations. The Casitas MWD staff offers give-a-ways at community events 
such as free toilet flappers, low flow showerheads, and faucet aerators. 

Some additional public education and outreach activities include the following: 

 Provided water conservation information to all new customers within the Casitas MWD 

 Coordinated active public information program including: news media outreach to radio, 
television, newspapers, social media; and advertising on radio, television, newspapers, and 
social media 

 Provided free water audits to residential, commercial, industrial, institutional, and agricultural 
customers within the service area 

 Conducted water use efficiency workshops (approximately three per year) 

 Provided free leak detection kits, low flow showerheads, low flow faucet aerators, and toilet 
flappers 

 Provided rebates to residential and commercial customers for High Efficiency Washing 
Machines, High Efficiency Toilets, and Smart Irrigation Controllers 

 Actively enforce Casitas MWD water waste enforcement program 

 Implemented updated water allocation program that provides penalties to individual customers 
that exceed their assigned allocations 

 Posted banners throughout the service area 

 Water Conservation – Landscape Sign program that recognizes individuals and businesses with 
aesthetically pleasing landscapes that are drought tolerant. 

Casitas MWD has been an active participant in the Ventura County Watershed Coalition’s preparation 
of the Integrated Regional Water Management Plan. This effort included developing a list of all 
potential projects among regional water agencies and organizations that could benefit from seeking 
regional cooperation. Casitas MWD, in conjunction with Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company, 
received a grant through the Ventura County Watershed Coalition for Proposition 50 regional grant 
funds. The grant will be used to improve the reliability of Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company’s 
groundwater resources so they would rely less on Casitas MWD’ surface water supply. This project 
will improve conjunctive use of local groundwater and surface water supplies. Casitas MWD received 
additional grants including, but not limited to, the following:  

 Proposition 1 Drought grant funding for Aeration Project 

 Proposition 1 Drought grant funding for Turf Removal grant led by City of Ventura 

 Proposition 84 grant funding for VC-RULE (Ventura County Regional Landscape Survey and 
Retrofit program led by City of Oxnard. 



 
 

137 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Casitas MWD also participated in the development of the Ventura County-wide landscape water 
efficiency website http://www.venturacountygardening.com/ . This website promotes native and 
drought tolerant plants on a regional basis and makes it easier for residents to plan water efficient 
landscapes. The website offers visitors the ability to maintain a plant database, browse numerous garden 
plans, and provides information on a large number of native and drought tolerant plants to include plant 
requirements for sun, soil, and water.  

7.3.3  Water Conservation Program Coordination and Staffing 
Casitas MWD has a full-time Water Conservation Manager, full-time Water Conservation Specialist, 
full-time Water Conservation Analyst, and part-time Water Conservation Coordinator. Casitas MWD 
staff provide many water conservation services including report preparation, respond to customer 
questions, perform water use surveys, administer rebate programs, coordinate public information and 
outreach programs, plan and participate in special events and education programs, and conduct public 
speaking. In addition, Casitas MWD also utilizes consulting firms to assist with the implementation of 
demand management measures. 

7.3.4  Other DMMs 
7.3.4.1  Water Survey Programs 

Casitas MWD provides water survey programs for single-family and multi-family residential customers 
for direct retail customers and for whole agency customers. The Casitas MWD’s direct survey program 
includes evaluating all indoor and outdoor water use. All water appliances are inspected. All toilets and 
faucets are inspected for leaks. A meter test is provided to check for leaks, landscape is thoroughly 
inspected for irrigation efficiency and plant type. These survey programs include distribution of low 
flow showerheads, toilet leak detection tablets, kitchen and faucet aerators, and rulers to measure toilet 
tank size. The customer is provided with a summary report on the improvements that can be completed 
both inside and outside the home to improve water use efficiency. The report also includes water and 
dollar savings, and a summary of rebate opportunities provided by Casitas MWD for appliances and 
smart irrigation controllers. 

7.3.4.2  Residential Plumbing and Retrofit 
Casitas MWD provides free low flow showerheads, faucet aerators, toilet flappers, leak detection kits, 
and shower timers to all residents within the service area. Casitas MWD advertises these fixtures in the 
newsletter, on the website, and at the customer service counter. 

7.3.4.3  Distribution Asset Management Program 
Casitas MWD’s distribution asset management program is a multifaceted program including system 
water audit, leak detection, and leak repair. The program includes the utilization of sound testing to 
check for mainline leaks on a routine basis; annual testing of customer meters and master meter testing 
to include repairs and replacements as needed; recording of flushing and leak repair losses; metering of 
all water uses; and measurement of master meters at each pump zone to determine if leaks occur in any 
geographic area. Pressure management for water loss minimization is limited to service needs in hilly 
areas. 
 



 
 

138 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

7.3.4.4  Large Landscape Conservation Programs and Incentives 
Casitas MWD has six dedicated irrigation meters. Casitas MWD only has a few dozen customers with 
large landscape accounts. Casitas MWD has joined several other agencies in Ventura County in an 
implementation grant through the Proposition 84 bond that will provide for county-wide landscape 
program. Each survey included an evaluation of the irrigation efficiency, area of landscape, area of turf, 
and distribution uniformity, observed leaks, timer settings, irrigation time settings, and the development 
of a water budget. A copy of the landscape report is provided to each customer. 

7.3.4.5  High-Efficiency Washing Machine Rebate Program 
Casitas MWD joined the Smart Rebate program operated by the CUWCC. Casitas MWD provides 
advertising but leaves the processing of rebates to the CUWCC. 

7.3.4.6  Conservation Programs for Commercial, Industrial and Institutional 
Casitas MWD has contacted all of the highest usage commercial/industrial/institutional (CII) customers 
and offered and provided surveys to those customers. The CII surveys include an inspection and an in-
depth analysis of water usage at each facility evaluating all water use devices and processes. Final 
reports with recommendations and calculated benefits are provided to each customer. All CII customers 
are offered high efficiency washing machine rebates and high efficiency toilet rebates. Smart irrigation 
controller rebates are also offered to CII customers. Free showerheads, faucet aerators and toilet 
flappers are also provided. 

7.3.4.7  Supplier Assistance Programs 
Casitas MWD provides its retail water agencies with water conservation assistance. Casitas MWD 
participates with the SMART rebates program through the CUWCC. Casitas MWD also offers its smart 
irrigation controller rebates to the nine retail agencies. Casitas MWD’s Water Conservation Manager 
has contacted retail agencies about water conservation programs available. There are only a few retail 
agencies of the nine that have CII customers but Casitas MWD has offered surveys to some of the larger 
CII customers in those agencies.  

7.3.4.8  Conservation Pricing 
The Casitas MWD currently has volume-based pricing for all accounts. Customers are billed monthly 
for 100 percent of the volume of water used. The Casitas MWD has the legal authority to evaluate and 
set rates for its customers. A copy of the Casitas MWD current rate schedule is provided in Appendix 
G and available on the Casitas MWD website: 
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/2013-4.pdf . 

The commodity rate for Agricultural accounts is $0.624 to $0.904 per 100 cubic feet (HCF) depending 
on elevation of the property. The commodity rate for Agriculture-Residential accounts is $0.602 to 
$1.770 per HCF depending on usage and elevation of the property. The commodity rate for all 
Residential accounts is $0.602 to $2.614 per HCF depending on usage and elevation of property. The 
commodity rate for Commercial, Industrial, Resale, Other, Temporary, and Recreational accounts is 
$0.827 to $1.785 per HCF depending on customer category, usage, and elevation of the property. In 
addition, the Casitas MWD has an additional meter fee per customer meter size (see copy of rate 
schedule in Appendix G). The monthly meter fee ranges from $23.34 per month (5/8 to 3/4 inch) to 
$812.42 (6-inch).  



 
 

139 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

The Casitas MWD currently has inclining block water rates for many of customer accounts. Inclining 
block rates are also known as conservation rate, where the cost per unit of water increases with the 
quantity of water used. Currently, Residential accounts and Residential-Agricultural accounts (up to 50 
units) are charged based on an inclining block rate.  
 
Conservation rate structure for water service is similar to utility rate structures in place for electricity 
and natural gas. In a conservation block rate structure, the unit price increases with each successive 
block, resulting in an increase in the incremental and the average cost of water with increased customer 
usage or conservation block rate structures. The block (quantity) shift points are generally based upon 
the unique demand characteristics of each user class and are focused on user demand points to enhance 
water usage awareness. Conservation block rate tends to decrease water usage, (i.e., promote water 
conservation), due to the economic disincentive to waste water. Conservation pricing may also include 
seasonal rates and/or excess-use surcharges to reduce demands during summer periods. 

7.3.4.9  Water Waste Prohibition 
Casitas MWD has an adopted Water Waste Prohibition, see Appendix K, Resolution 15-02. 

7.3.4.10  Residential High Efficiency Toilet Replacement Programs 
Casitas MWD has a high efficiency toilet (HET) program targeting residential and CII customers. 
Casitas MWD’s program provides rebate incentives for retrofitting non-efficient devices with HET 
using 1.28 gallons per flush or less. 

7.3.4.11 School Education Programs 
Casitas MWD has a school education program that provides state approved curriculum on water 
conservation for local classrooms. Casitas MWD also provides educational materials to kindergarten 
through high school teachers upon request. Casitas MWD coordinates with the Ojai Rotary Club to 
provide water conservation classrooms on a boat in Lake Casitas. 

7.4 AWMP EFFICIENT WATER MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 

The AWMP Act requires agricultural water suppliers to address Efficient Water Management Practices 
(EWMP) including two categories of measures: 1) critical activities, and 2) conditional activities. 
Critical activities are required to be implemented by agricultural water suppliers. Critical activities 
include two requirements: 1) accurate measurement of water deliveries to individual farming 
operations, and 2) adopting a pricing structure for agricultural water customers based at least in part on 
quantity of water delivered. Conditional activities must be implemented by agricultural water suppliers 
if they are locally cost-effective and technically feasible. Table 7-1 lists EWMPs as required by the 
AWMP Act. 
 
Casitas MWD is not required to implement the EWMPs since the Casitas MWD is voluntarily 
addressing the AWMP requirements and the service area includes less than 10,000 acres of agriculture. 



 
 

140 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 7-1 
LIST OF EFFICIENT WATER MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 

Critical EWMP 

1 Measure the volume of water delivered to customers with sufficient accuracy 

2 Adopt a pricing structure for water customers based on at least in part on quantity 
delivered 

Conditional EWMP 

1 Facilitate alternate land use for lands with exceptionally high water duties or whose 
irrigation contributes to significant problems, including drainage 

2 Facilitate use of available recycled water that otherwise would not be used beneficially, 
meets all health and safety criteria, and does not harm crops or soil 

3 Facilitate the financing of capital improvements for on-farm irrigation systems 

4 Implement an incentive pricing structure 

5 Expand line or pipe distribution systems, and construct regulatory reservoirs to increase 
distribution system flexibility and capacity, decrease maintenance, and reduce seepage 

6 Increase flexibility in water ordering by, and delivery to, water customers within 
operational limits 

7 Construct and operate supplier spill and tailwater recovery systems 

8 Increase planned conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater within the supplier 
service area 

9 Automate canal control structures 

10 Facilitate or promote customer pump testing and evaluation 

11 Designate a water conservation coordinator 

12 Provide for the availability of water management services to water users 

13 Evaluate the policies of agencies that provide the supplier with water to identify the 
potential for institutional changes to allow for more flexible water deliveries and storage.

14 Evaluate and improve the efficiencies of the supplier’s pumps 

Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016.  



 
 

141 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Table 7-2 provides a summary of the implementation status of each of the EWMPs. Table 7-2 is 
followed by a narrative providing details of the efforts by Casitas MWD related to the implementation 
of each of the EWMPs. 

7.4.1  Critical EWMPs 
7.4.1.1  Water Measurement 
All of the Casitas MWD meters for surface water supplies and ground water supplies are metered. 
Accuracy of the District’s meters is generally 98 percent to 102 percent. All of the Casitas MWD 
customers are metered. 

7.4.2 Volume-Based Pricing 
The Casitas MWD currently has volume-based pricing for all accounts. Customers are billed monthly 
for 100 percent of the volume of water used. A copy of the Casitas MWD current rate schedule is 
provided in Appendix G (and available on the Casitas MWD website: 
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/2013-4.pdf . 

The commodity rate for Agricultural accounts is $0.624 to $0.904 per 100 cubic feet (HCF) depending 
on elevation of the property. The commodity rate for Agriculture-Residential accounts is $0.602 to 
$1.770 per HCF depending on usage and elevation of the property. The commodity rate for all 
Residential accounts is $0.602 to $2.614 per HCF depending on usage and elevation of property. The 
commodity rate for Commercial, Industrial, Resale, Other, Temporary, and Recreational accounts is 
$$0.827 to $1.785 per HCF depending on customer category, usage, and elevation of the property. In 
addition, the Casitas MWD has an additional meter fee per customer meter size (see copy of rate 
schedule in Appendix G). The monthly meter fee ranges from $23.34 per month (5/8 to 3/4 inch) to 
$812.42 (6-inch).  

7.4.2 Conditional EWMPs 
7.4.2.1  Alternative Land Use 
The Casitas MWD could encourage alternative land use by agricultural customers within the service 
area. Alternative land uses could include alternative crop types and or fallowing of land. However, there 
are limited known properties with exceptionally high irrigation factors or whose irrigation contributes 
to significant problems located within the Casitas MWD boundaries. The County of Ventura is the 
agency responsible for land use policies and changes. 

7.4.2.2  Recycled Water 
Casitas MWD currently does not produce nor receive any recycled water. The Casitas MWD has 
considered recycled water to meet future water demands. The Ojai Valley Sanitary District (OVSD) 
and the City of Ventura provide wastewater collection and treatment within Casitas MWD’s 
boundaries. Section 4.4.5 provided additional details related to future use of recycled water within the 
Casitas MWD service area. 
  



 
 

142 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

TABLE 7-2 
STATUS OF EFFICIENT WATER MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 

Critical EWMP 
1 – Water 
Measurement Implemented 

2 – Volume-based 
pricing Implemented 

Conditional EWMP 
1 – Alternate Land 
Use Being Evaluated 

2 – Recycled Water 
Use Not anticipated during current planning period 

3 – On-Farm Irrigation 
Capital Improvements Implemented 

4 – Incentive Pricing 
Structure Implemented for Residential and Residential-Agricultural accounts 

5 – Infrastructure 
Improvements Implemented 

6 – Order/Delivery 
Flexibility Implemented 

7 – Supplier Spill and 
Tailwater Systems Not applicable 

8 – Conjunctive Use Implemented 
9 – Automated Canal 
Controls Implemented 

10 – Customer Pump 
Test/Evaluation Implemented 

11 – Water 
Conservation 
Coordinator 

Implemented 

12 – Water 
Management Services Implemented 

13 – Identify 
Institutional Changes Implemented 

14 – Supplier Pump 
Improved Efficiency Implemented 
Notes:   
Source, CMWD, 2016.  

 



 
 

143 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

7.4.2.3  On-Farm Irrigation Capital Improvements 
The Casitas MWD has an agricultural irrigation efficiency program which offers financial incentives 
to local farmers for improving the efficiency of on-farm irrigation systems. Casitas MWD has a low-
interest loan program for farmers to improve irrigation systems. The program assists farmers by 
providing them with technical assistance and reimbursing them for a percentage of the cost of 
equipment required for irrigation system retrofits that improve irrigation efficiency. Examples of new 
equipment include, but not limited to, the following: drip/micro irrigation, soil moisture sensors, 
tensiometers, etc. 

7.4.2.4  Incentive-Pricing Structure 
The Casitas MWD currently has inclining block water rates for many of customer accounts. Inclining 
block rates are also known as conservation rate, where the cost per unit of water increases with the 
quantity of water used. Currently, Residential accounts and Residential-Agricultural accounts (up to 50 
units) are charged based on an inclining block rate. The conservation rate for Agriculture-Residential 
accounts is $0.602 to $1.770 per HCF depending on usage and elevation of the property. The 
conservation rate for all Residential accounts is $0.602 to $2.614 per HCF depending on usage and 
elevation of property. All other customers are charged a volume-based rate depending on customer 
category and elevation of the property. The Casitas MWD has the legal authority to evaluate and set 
rates for its customers. See Appendix G for a copy of current water fees and charges. 

7.4.2.5  Infrastructure Improvements 
The Casitas MWD has a Capital Improvement Plan. This Plan identifies a schedule for new facilities 
and equipment, major maintenance of existing facilities and equipment, and replacement projects. 

7.4.2.6  Order/Delivery Flexibility 
The Casitas MWD operates the entire distribution system, including agricultural and urban customer 
demands, based on instantaneous water demands. The Casitas MWD does not currently require 
customers to place orders for delivery of water. The Casitas MWD does not currently require lead times 
for delivery of water. The Casitas MWD currently does not have customer allocations in place. 
Therefore, the Casitas MWD currently provides flexibility for meeting all customer water demands. 

7.4.2.7  Supplier Spill and Tailwater Systems 
The Casitas MWD delivers water to all of its customers through a distribution pipeline system that is 
not prone to the operational spills common to the canal delivery systems that serve many of the State’s 
agricultural water users. Casitas MWD’s agriculture customers generally produce minimal spill water 
and tailwater as the result of efficient irrigation practices. The Casitas MWD does not have any spill 
water or tailwater systems. Agricultural customers may implement spill water and tailwater capture 
practices on their private property.  

7.4.2.8  Conjunctive Use 
Conjunctive use of groundwater and surface water is the planned balanced use of both types of water, 
so that the supplies and use of both these types of water can be maximized. The Casitas MWD currently 
practices conjunctive use of its groundwater and surface water. Casitas MWD utilizes groundwater 
when it is available to supplement local surface water from Lake Casitas. Casitas MWD encourages 
customers to use local groundwater when available. Casitas MWD received a grant to improve the 
reliability of Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company’s groundwater resources so they would rely less 



 
 

144 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

on Casitas MWD’ surface water supply. This project will improve conjunctive use of local groundwater 
and surface water supplies. 

7.4.2.9  Automated Canal Controls 
The Casitas MWD delivers water to all of its customers through a distribution pipeline system. The 
Casitas MWD operations utilize SCADA controls on the distribution system including pipelines, 
meters, valves, pump stations, and reservoirs.  

7.4.2.10  Customer Pump Test/Evaluation 
The Casitas MWD encourages customers with irrigation pumps to contact Southern California Edison 
which offers free hydraulic pump tests. For information on pumps and SCE's Pump Test Program, 
contact SCE, 800-336-2822, or visit the following website: on.sce.com/pumptest . 

7.4.2.11  Water Conservation Coordinator 
Casitas MWD has a full-time Water Conservation Manager, full-time Water Conservation Specialist, 
full-time Water Conservation Analyst, and part-time Water Conservation Coordinator. Casitas MWD 
staff provide many water conservation services including report preparation, respond to customer 
questions, perform water use surveys, administer rebate programs, coordinate public information and 
outreach programs, plan and participate in special events and education programs, and conduct public 
speaking events. In addition, Casitas MWD also utilizes consulting firms to assist with the 
implementation of demand management measures. 

7.4.2.12   Water Management Services to Customers 
7.4.2.12.1 Wholesale Agency Assistance Programs 
The Casitas MWD is a wholesaler and participates in regional programs. The Casitas MWD has 
participated in planning and programs concerning water demand management issues and urban water 
management in Ventura County and the State of California. Additional benefits of participation include 
enhanced water resource flexibility in the event of operational disruption, extended drought, or other 
emergency. Selected examples of regional participation include the following organizations: 

 Ventura River Watershed Council 
 Association of Water Agencies of Ventura County 
 Ventura County Watershed Coalition, IRWMP. 

It is recommended that the Casitas MWD continue to participate in these organizations to reinforce 
relationships with other member agencies to enhance water resource flexibility and proper response to 
operational disruption, extended drought, or other emergency. 
 
7.4.2.12.2 Public Information Programs 

The extensive Casitas MWD public information program promotes the water conservation ethic and 
informs the public of the benefits derived from conserving a valuable resource. See Section 7.3.2 for 
details. 
  



 
 

145 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

7.4.2.12.3 Real-Time Crop Irrigation Information 

The Casitas MWD included a link to the Soule Park Golf Course weather station on the web page,  
http://data.weatherreach.com/StationDetail?StationID=68&TableTimeInt=60 . The weather page 
includes local and current air temperature, humidity, wind, evapotranspiration, precipitation, estimated 
irrigation requirement, and historical data. Additional irrigation information is made available to local 
farmers upon request. Casitas MWD regularly maintains the weather station instrumentation to ensure 
accuracy of information. 

7.4.2.12.4 Provide Water Delivery Information to the Water Users 

The Casitas MWD provides water usage reports to water users upon request and are encouraged to 
request data as needed. 

7.4.2.12.5  On-Farm Evaluations 

The Casitas MWD supports the availability of on-farm irrigation and drainage system evaluations. The 
Casitas MWD contract with the Ventura County Resource Conservation District’s mobile laboratory 
for irrigation evaluation. As part of program participation, farmers are provided with free irrigation 
system audits/evaluations, which include recommendations for implementation of applicable best 
management practices and water use efficiency improvements. A potential future element of this 
program could provide financial incentives to farmers who choose to implement the recommendations 
made as part of the irrigation system audits/evaluation process. 

7.4.2.13 Identify Institutional Changes 

The Casitas MWD is responsible for production of all local surface water. Therefore, the Casitas MWD 
has not had to contend with issues pertaining to water delivery and storage flexibility related to surface 
water. 
 
The Casitas MWD actively attempts to identify programs that allow for voluntary transfers of water 
within and outside of its sphere of influence that facilitate greater water supply flexibility and storage. 
This includes evaluation and implementation of programs involving imported surface water and local 
surface water. 
 
The Casitas MWD is engaged in a wide range of activities to ensure that customers continue to have a 
reliable supply of water in future years. These activities include, but not limited to, the following: Water 
Efficiency and Allocation Program, Water Supply and Demand Study (2004), Integrated Regional 
Water Management Planning, Urban Water Management Planning, Water Shortage Contingency 
Planning, and Demand Management Measures are all strategies employed by the Casitas MWD for 
sustaining adequate water supplies and managing local water demands. 

7.4.2.14 Supplier Pump Improved Efficiency 

The District's water loss control program includes main replacement, system water audits, system leak 
detection and repair, meter testing and replacement, valve exercising, and main flushing. 
 



 
 

146 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

The Casitas MWD’s efforts include the following actions:  

 The Casitas MWD continues to meet current standards for apparent water losses of below 5 
percent, as determined by an in-house water audit protocol. 

 Estimated economic values of water loss will be generated using recent expense data and an 
avoided cost model (AWWA). 

 Identified real losses will be analyzed and a determination will be made as to the cost 
effectiveness of potential water loss reduction actions. If any individual or group of actions are 
determined to be cost effective, the Casitas MWD will begin a program to implement such 
actions. 

 All reported leaks, including the Casitas MWD side or customer’s side, are currently addressed 
immediately. If a customer's use increases by 50 percent, after reading the meter, then the 
District flags the account and the customer is contacted to let them know they may have leak. 

 
  



 
 

147 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

REFERENCES 
R. Barnett. 1989. Water Supply and Demand Study: Status Report. 

State of California. California Code of Regulations. “Water Recycling Criteria.” Title 22, Division 4, 
Chapter 3. Environmental Health. Section 60301. 

State of California. California Code of Regulations. Title 23, Section 597. 

State of California. California Water Code. "Water Conservation". Division 6, Part 2.55, Sections 
10608.00 to 10608.64. 

State of California. California Water Code. "Urban Water Management Planning". Division 6, Part 
2.6, Sections 10610 to 10650. 

State of California. California Water Code. Section 10800-10853.  

State of California. California Government Code. Section 6066. 

State of California. 2004. California’s Groundwater - Bulletin No. 118. 

State of California. 1950. Bulletin No. 12. 

State of California. 1933. Bulletin No. 46.  

State of California Department of Finance. 2014. State and County Population Projections – July 1, 
2010-2060. Website: http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/projections/view.php. 

State of California Department of Water Resources (CA DWR). 2016. Guidebook for Urban Water 
Suppliers – 2015. 

CADWR. 2015. A Guidebook to Assist Agricultural Water Suppliers to Prepare a 2015 Agricultural 
Water Management Plan. 

CADWR. 2013. The State Water Project Delivery Reliability Report 2012. 

CADWR. 2013a. California Water Plan Update 2013. 

State of California Natural Resources Agency (CANRA). 2009. California Climate Adaptation 
Strategy. 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board – Los Angeles Region. 2002. State of the 
Watershed – Report on Surface Water Quality - The Ventura River Watershed. 



 
 

148 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

California Climate Change Center (CCCC). 2009. Using Future Climate Projections to Support Water 
Resources Decision Making in California. 

Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD). 2016. Data provided by CMWD staff. 

CMWD. 2011. 2010 Urban Water Management Plan. 

CMWD. 2013. Rates and Regulations for Water Service. 

CMWD. 2004. Water Supply and Use Status Report. 

CMWD. 2004a. Emergency Response Plan. 

CMWD. 2010. Operations Plan – Marion R. Walker Pressure Filtration Plant. 

CMWD, City of Ventura, and United Water Conservation District (UWCD). 1992. Final Program 
Environmental Impact Report for Joint Agencies Water Supply Project. Prepared by Woodward-
Clyde. 

CMWD, City of Ventura, and UWCD. 1991. Alternatives Evaluation Study for a Joint Agency Water 
Supply Project. Prepared by Boyle Engineering. 

CMWD, City of Ventura, and UWCD. 1991. Alternatives Selection Study for a Joint Agency Water 
Supply Project. Prepared by Boyle Engineering. 

CMWD. 1990. Technical Evaluation of Safe-Yields of Ventura River Project and Local Groundwater 
Basins. Prepared by R. Barnett and Don Kienlen. 

CMWD. 1990. Optimization Study of State Water Importation. Prepared by Kennedy/Jenks/Chilton. 

CMWD. 1988. Evaluation of Alternatives Involving a Castaic Lake Delivery Point, Importation of 
State Project Water to Ventura County. [preparer] 

CMWD. 1988. Ojai Groundwater Basin Study. Prepared by Murray, Burns, and Kienlen. 

CMWD. 1987. Feasibility of Importing State Project Water into Ventura County. Prepared by James 
M. Montgomery Consulting Engineers. 

CMWD. 1975. Feasibility Study for Importation of State Project Water. Prepared by Engineering 
Science. 

CMWD. Undated. The Ventura River Project. 

Climate Action Team (CAT). 2009. Draft Biennial Report. 



 
 

149 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Golden State Water Company. 2011. Urban Water Management Plan. Prepared by Kennedy/Jenks 
Consultants. 

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). 2008. Climate Change and Water.  

Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Agency. 2014. 2011 and 2012 Annual Report. 

Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Agency. 2007. Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Plan (and 
updates). 

Ojai Valley Sanitary District. 1992. Reclaimed Water Feasibility-Marketing Study. Prepared by Boyle 
Engineering. 

Pacific Institute. 2016. Existing and Proposed Desalination Plants in California. Website-  
http://pacinst.org/publication/key-issues-in-seawater-desalination-proposed-facilities/ 

Pacific Institute. 2009. The Impacts of Sea Level Rise on the California Coast. 

Panaro, David. 2016. Telephone conversation regarding local groundwater, June. 

Public Policy Institute of California (PPIC). 2011. Managing California's Water - From Conflict to 
Reconciliation. 

Stamm, Gilbert G. 1967. Problems and Procedures in Determining Water Supply Requirements for 
Irrigation Projects. Chapter 40 in, Irrigation of Agricultural Lands, Hagan et al. American Society 
Agronomy. Wisconsin, USA. 

United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR). 1968. A Report on the Feasibility of Water Supply 
Development. 

USBR. 1954. A Report on the Feasibility of Water Supply Development. 

United States Environmental Protection Agency. 2000. Water Conservation Plan Guidelines.  Copy 
obtained via the USEPA internet site. 

United States Geological Survey. 2016. Rain and Precipitation. Website –.  
http://water.usgs.gov/edu/earthrain.html 

Ventura County, Watershed Protection District. 2015. 2014 Annual Report of Groundwater 
Conditions. 

Ventura County, Watershed Protection District. 2014. County of Ventura 2013 Water Supply and 
Demand. Prepared by HydroMetrics. 



 
 

150 

FINAL 

CMWD UWMP AND AWMP - 2016 UPDATE 

Ventura County, Watershed Protection District. 2010. Groundwater Budget and Approach to a 
Groundwater Management Plan Upper and Lower Ventura River Basin. Prepared by Daniel P. 
Stevens and Associates. 

Ventura County. 1994. Water Management Plan. 

City of Ventura. 2015. Comprehensive Water Resources Report (and updates). Prepared by Michael 
Baker International. 

City of Ventura. 2011. Urban Water Management Plan. Prepared by Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 

City of Ventura. 2007. Feasibility Study on the Reuse of Ojai Valley Sanitary District Effluent- Final 
Facilities Planning Report. Prepared by Brown and Caldwell, et al. 

Ventura River Watershed Council. 2015. Ventura River Watershed Management Plan. Prepared by 
Lorraine Walter. 

Vickers, Amy. 2000. Handbook of Water Use and Conservation. 

Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County. 2014. Integrated Regional Watershed Management Plan. 
(and addenda). 

Western Regional Climate Center. 2016. Precipitation and temperature data. Website – 
http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/cliMAIN.pl?ca6399. Ojai Station No. 046399. 

 



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

APPENDICES 
 

 
A  Definitions for Selected Terminology 
B  UWMP Act and Related Regulations 
C  AWMP Act and Related Regulations 
D  CMWD Notifications and Resolutions for UWMP/AWMP 
E  UWMP Required Tables 
F  AWMP Required Worksheets 
G  CMWD Water Rates 
H  CMWD Water Supply and Demand Study 
I  Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Plan 
J  CMWD Consumer Confidence Report 
K  CMWD Water Conservation Resolutions 
L  CMWD CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 
M  Examples of CMWD’s Public Outreach Materials 
N  Public Comments Received 
O  UWMP Checklist by Subject 
 



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix A 
Definitions of Selected Terminology 



projects\UWMP\App A‐terms.docx 

APPENDIX A 

DEFINITIONS FOR SELECTED TERMINOLOGY 

Selected abbreviations were defined in the Table of Contents. Provided below are definitions of selected 
acronyms and terms used throughout this document. 

acre-foot. The amount of water needed to cover an acre one-foot deep (approximately 325,900 gallons). 
An acre-foot can support the annual indoor and outdoor needs of between one and two households per 
year, and, on average, 3 acre-feet are needed to irrigate 1 acre of farmland; enough to cover a football 
field 1 foot deep. 

appropriation. The right to withdraw water from its source. 

aquifer. A geologic formation of sand, rock and gravel through which water can pass and which can store, 
transmit and yield significant quantities of water to wells and springs. 

audit (end-use). A systematic accounting of water uses by end users (residential, commercial, industrial, 
or agricultural), often used to identify potential areas for water reduction, conservation, or efficiency 
improvement. 

audit (system). A systematic accounting of water throughout the production, transmission, and 
distribution facilities of the system.  

available supply. The maximum amount of reliable water supply, including surface water, groundwater, 
and purchases under secure contracts. 

average-day demand. A water system's average daily use based on total annual water production (total 
annual gallons or cubic feet divided by 365); multiple years can be used to account for yearly variations. 

avoided cost. The savings associated with undertaking a given activity (such as demand management) 
instead of an alternative means of achieving the same results (such as adding supply); can be used to 
establish the least-cost means of achieving a specified goal. Can be measured in terms of incremental 
cost. 

baseline. An established value or trend used for comparison when conditions are altered, as in the 
introduction of water conservation measures. The average per capita water use for the following baseline 
periods and calculated in accordance with Methodologies for Calculating Baseline and Compliance 
Urban Per Capita Water Use, DWR 2011: (1) A 10 to 15-year continuous period used to calculate 
baseline daily per capita water use per CWC Section 10608.20; (2) A continuous 5-year period used to 
determine whether the 2020 urban water use target meets the legislation’s minimum water use reduction 
requirement per CWC Section 10608.22. 

beneficial use. A use of water resources that benefits people or nature. State law may define beneficial 
use.  

benefit-cost analysis. A comparison of total benefits to total costs, usually expressed in monetary terms, 
used to measure efficiency and evaluate alternatives. See also cost-effectiveness and avoided-cost.  

best management practices. A measure or activity that is beneficial, empirically proven, cost-effective, 
and widely accepted in the professional community. The BMPs were historically identical to the Demand 
Management Practices (DMMs) found in the Water Code, but revisions to both the BMPs and the DMMs 
have now made them different sets of practices.  

block. A quantity of water for which a price per unit of water (or billing rate) is established. 



projects\UWMP\App A‐terms.docx 

budget (water-use). An accounting of total water use or projected water use for a given location or 
activity. 

capital facilities. Physical facilities used in the production, transmission, and distribution of water. 

CII. The combination of commercial, institutional, and industrial water use sectors. 

CIMIS. A network of automated weather 

stations that provide real time weather data to estimate reference evapotranspiration (ETo). The stations 
are owned and operated cooperatively between the California Department of Water Resources and local 
agencies. 

commodity charge. See variable charge. 

compliance daily per capita water use/compliance gpcd. The gross water use during the final year of the 
reporting period, reported in gallons per capita per day. 2015 and 2020 are both compliance years. This 
term is used in the context of SB X7-7, The Water Conservation Act of 2009. 

conservation (water). Any beneficial reduction in water losses, waste, or use. 

conservation pricing. Water rate structures that help achieve beneficial reductions in water usage. See 
nonpromotional rates. 

consumptive use. Use that permanently withdraws water from its source. 

cost-effectiveness. A comparison of costs required for achieving the same benefit by different means. 
Costs are usually expressed in dollars, but benefits can be expressed in another unit (such as a quantity of 
water).  See net benefits. 

CUWCC. Council. A membership organization dedicated to urban water conservation throughout 
California by supporting and integrating innovative technologies and practices; encouraging effective 
public policies; advancing research, training, and public education; and building on collaborative 
approaches and partnerships.  

customer class. A group of customers (residential, commercial, industrial, wholesale, agricultural, and so 
on) defined by similar costs of service or patterns of water usage. 

decreasing-block (or declining-block) rate. A pricing structure for which the dollar amount charged per 
unit of water (such as dollars per gallon) decreases with the amount water usage.  

demand forecast. A projection of future demand that can be made on a systemwide or customer-class 
basis. 

demand management measures. Measures, practices, or incentives deployed by water utilities to 
permanently reduce the level or change the pattern of demand for a utility service. 

demographic. Having to do with population or socioeconomic conditions. 

disadvantaged community. A community with an annual median household income that is less 

than 80 percent of the statewide annual median household income. 

discount rate. A percentage that is used to adjust a forecast of expenditures to account for the time value 
of money or opportunity costs; it can be based on the utility's cost of capital. 

distribution facilities. Pipes, treatment, storage and other facilities used to distribute drinking water to 
end-users. Transmission canals and pipelines not used for delivering water directly to retail customers 
should not be included as part of the distribution system. 

drought. A sustained period of inadequate or subnormal precipitation that can lead to water supply 
shortages, as well as increased water usage. 



projects\UWMP\App A‐terms.docx 

efficient water management practices. See also “demand management measures” but required for AWMP. 
See also “best management practices”. 

end use. Fixtures, appliances, and activities that use water. 

end user. Residential, commercial, industrial, governmental, or institutional water consumer. 

escalation rate. A percentage that is used to adjust a forecast of expenditures to account for the increasing 
value of a good or service over time (apart from the discount rate and inflationary effects). 

evapotranspiration. Water losses from the surface of soils and plants.  

exchanges. Water exchanges are typically water deliveries by one water user to another water user, with 
the receiving water user returning the water at a specified time, or when the conditions of the parties’ 
agreement are met. Water exchanges can be strictly a return of water on a basis agreed upon by the 
participants or can include payment and the return of water. For purposes of UWMP reporting, this is 
considered a “Wholesale Use,” even if the agency is not considered a wholesale water agency as per the 
definition in CWC 10608.12 (p) and (r). Agencies will make their own determination as to whether water 
sent to another agency is a sale, transfer, or exchange. 

fixed charge. The portion of a water bill that does not vary with water usage.  

fixed costs. Costs associated with water services that do not vary with the amount of water produced or 
sold. 

gpcd. The unit of measure used for reporting baseline and target per capita water consumption. This term 
is used in the context of SB X7-7, The Water Conservation Act of 2009. 

graywater. Reuse, generally without treatment, of domestic type wastewater for toilet flushing, garden 
irrigation and other nonpotable uses. Excludes water from toilets, kitchen sinks, dishwashers, or water 
used for washing diapers. 

gross water use. The volume of water entering a supplier’s distribution system over a 12-month period. 
This volume may be adjusted based on changes in system storage, sales to other agencies, recycled water 
use, agricultural water use, and industrial process water use. This term is used in the context of SB X7-7, 
The Water Conservation Act of 2009.  

groundwater. Water that occurs beneath the land surface and fills partially or wholly pore spaces of the 
alluvium, soil or rock formation in which it is situated.  Does not include water produced with oil in the 
production of oil and gas or in a bona fide mining operation. 

groundwater basin. A groundwater reservoir defined by all the overlying land surface and the underlying 
aquifers that contain water stored in the reservoir. Boundaries of successively deeper aquifers may differ 
and make it difficult to define the limits of the basin. 

groundwater overdraft. The condition of a groundwater basin in which the amount of water withdrawn by 
pumping exceeds the amount of water that recharges the basin over a period of years during which water 
supply conditions approximate average. 

groundwater recharge. The action of increasing groundwater storage by natural conditions or by human 
activity. 

groundwater table. The upper surface of the zone of saturation (all pores of subsoil filled with water), 
except where the surface if formed by an impermeable body. 

hydrologic region. A geographical division of the state based on the local hydrologic basins. The 
California Department of Water Resources divides California into 10 hydrologic regions that correspond 
to the state’s major water drainage basins. 



projects\UWMP\App A‐terms.docx 

imported water. Water that has originated from one hydrologic region and is transferred to another 
hydrologic region. 

increasing-block (or inclining-block) rate. A pricing structure for which the dollar amount charged per 
unit of water (such as dollars per gallon) increases with the amount water usage.  

incremental cost. The additional cost associated with adding an increment of capacity. 

instream flow. River and stream waters that maintain stream quality, aquatic life, and recreational 
opportunities. 

integrated resource planning. An open and participatory planning process emphasizing least-cost 
principles and a balanced consideration of supply and demand management options for meeting water 
needs. 

interim urban water use target. The 2015 urban water use target that is the midpoint between the supplier's 
10 to 15-year baseline GPCD and their 2020 target GPCD. 2015 UWMPs will compare the interim water 
use target to the actual water use of 2015. This term is used in the context of SB X7-7, The Water 
Conservation Act of 2009. 

irrigation scheduling. An automated method for optimizing outdoor water use by matching the watering 
schedule to plant needs. 

large-volume user. A water customer, usually industrial or wholesale, whose usage is substantial relative 
to other users; large-volume users may present unique peaking or other demand characteristics. 

leak detection. Methods for identifying water leakage in pipes and fittings. 

life span. The expected useful life of a supply-side or demand-side project, measure, or practice. (The life 
span may not be identical to useful life for tax purposes.) 

load management. Methods for managing levels and patterns of usage in order to optimize system 
resources and facilities.  

losses (water). Metered source water less revenue-producing water and authorized unmetered water uses. 

low water-use landscaping. Use of plant materials that are appropriate to an area's climate and growing 
conditions (usually native and adaptive plants). See also xeriscape. 

lower income. Persons and families whose income does not exceed the qualifying limits for lower income 
families as established and amended from time to time pursuant to Section 8 of the United States Housing 
Act of 1937. In the event the federal standards are discontinued, the department shall, by regulation, 
establish income limits for lower income households for all geographic areas of the state at 80 percent of 
area median income, adjusted for family size and revised annually. 

market penetration. The extent to which an activity or measure is actually implemented compared to all 
potential uses or markets. 

marginal-cost pricing. A method of rate design where prices reflect the costs associated with producing 
the next increment of supply. 

master metering. A large meter at a point of distribution to multiple uses or users that could be further 
submetered. Includes metered wholesale sales. 

maximum-day demand. Total production for the water system on its highest day of production during a 
year. 

meter. An instrument for measuring and recording water volume.  

mixed-use meter. A meter measuring water use for more than one type of end use (such as indoor and 
outdoor use). 



projects\UWMP\App A‐terms.docx 

net benefits. The numerical difference between total benefits and total costs, both of which must be 
expressed in the same unit (usually dollars). See cost-effectiveness. 

net present value. The present value of benefits less the present value of costs. 

NOAA. A federal agency focused on the condition of the oceans and atmosphere. NOAA provides 
weather data that may be useful to urban water suppliers when describing the climate of their service area.  

nominal dollars. Forecast dollars that are not adjusted for inflation. 

nonaccount water. Metered source water less metered water sales. 

nonconsumptive use. Water withdrawn and returned to the source. 

nonpromotional rates. Rates that do not encourage additional consumption by water users. 

nonresidential customer. A commercial, industrial, or agricultural utility customer. 

normalization. Adjustment of a variable to a "normal" level based on averaging over an accepted period 
of time; used in forecasting. 

opportunity cost. The value of a foregone opportunity that cannot be pursued because resources are taken 
up by a chosen activity. 

peak demand. The highest point of total water usage experienced by a system, measured on an hourly and 
on a daily basis. 

per-capita use. Total use divided by the total population served. 

per-capita residential use. Residential use divided by the total population served. 

Potable Water. Water intended for human consumption, delivered through a Public Water System, and 
regulated by a State or local health agency. 

precipitation rate (sprinkling). The surface application rate for landscape watering, usually expressed in 
inches per hour. 

present value. Future expenditures expressed in current dollars by adjusting for a discount rate that 
accounts for financing costs. 

pressure regulator. A post-meter device used to limit water pressure. 

price elasticity of demand. A measure of the responsiveness of water usage to changes in price; measured 
by the percentage change in usage divided by the percentage change in price. 

primary treatment. Removing solids and floating matter from wastewater using screening, skimming and 
sedimentation (settling by gravity). 

public water systems. A system for the provision of water for human consumption through pipes or other 
constructed conveyances that has 15 or more service connections or regularly serves at least 25 
individuals daily at least 60 days out of the year. Public water systems are regulated by the State Water 
Resources Control Board, Drinking Water Program. 

rationing. Mandatory water-use restrictions sometimes used under drought or other emergency conditions. 

raw water. Water that is untreated and used in its natural state. This may also be called “Source Water.” 
Some urban water agencies supply raw water to customers for non-potable uses. 

real dollars. Forecast dollars that are adjusted for inflation. 

recycled water. Municipal wastewater that has been treated to a specified quality, enabling it to be reused 
for a beneficial purpose. 



projects\UWMP\App A‐terms.docx 

retail water use/demand. The sale of water directly to customers for end use. These include, single family, 
multi-family, landscape, or CII. The following sectors may be reported as either a wholesale or retail 
demand, the determination is made by the supplier: Groundwater recharge, saline intrusion barrier, 
agricultural, wetlands or wildlife habitat. 

rGPCD. Residential Gallons per Capita per Day. This is used in drought reporting to SWRCB for 
purposes of complying with the Governor’s drought declarations and executive orders in 2014 and 2015 
and is solely the estimated residential water use in a service area divided by population. This differs from 
the GPCD used in UWMPs, which is the total water use within a service area divided by the population. 

retrofit. Replacement of parts in an existing plumbing fixture or water-using appliance in order to improve 
its operational efficiency. 

revenue-producing water. Water metered and sold. 

reuse (water). Beneficial use of treated wastewater. See also recycled water. 

Safe Drinking Water Act. Federal drinking water quality legislation administered by the USEPA through 
state primacy agencies. 

safe yield. The maximum reliable amount that can be withdrawn from a source without compromising 
quality or quantity, as defined by hydrological studies; can be based on acceptable withdrawals during a 
critical supply period or drought with a specific probability of occurrence. 

SB X7-7. The Water Conservation Act of 2009 that provides for a 20% statewide reduction of urban per 
capita water use by the year 2020. The Act includes requirements for determining baselines and targets, 
among other things.  

SB X7-7 Verification Form. A set of tables that present the calculations used by a retail supplier or 
Regional Alliance for developing baselines and targets. These tables are required for retail suppliers and 
Regional Alliances.  

seasonal rate. A pricing structure for which the dollar amount charged per unit of water (such as dollars 
per gallon) varies by season of use; higher rates usually are charged in the season of peak demand. 

secondary treatment. The biological portion of wastewater treatment which uses the activated sludge 
process to further clean wastewater after primary treatment. Generally, a level of treatment that produces 
85 percent removal efficiencies for biological oxygen demand and suspended solids. Usually carried out 
through the use of trickling filters or by the activated sludge process. 

sectors. Classifications of water use that are clearly distinct from other water uses. 

sensitivity analysis. An analysis of alternative results based on variations in assumptions; a "what if" 
analysis. 

service territory. The geographic area served by a water utility. 

SGMA. Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014. Three California legislative bills that provide 
a framework for long-term sustainable groundwater management. Local and regional authorities will form 
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) that oversee the preparation and implementation of a local 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan. More information can be found at 
http://water.ca.gov/groundwater/sgm/index.cfm 

source-of-supply. Facilities used to extract and/or store raw water prior to transmission and distribution.  

source meter. A meter used to record water withdrawn from a surface water or groundwater source, or 
purchased from a wholesale supplier. 

supply management. Measures deployed by the utility that improve the efficiency of production, 
transmission, and distribution facilities. 



projects\UWMP\App A‐terms.docx 

submetering. Metering for units comprising a larger service connection, such as apartments in a 
multifamily building. 

surcharge. A special charge on a water bill used to send customers a specific pricing signal and recover 
costs associated with a particular activity. 

surface water augmentation. The planned placement of recycled water into a surface water reservoir that 
is used as a source of domestic drinking water supply.  

SWRCB. A state agency whose mission is to preserve, enhance, and restore the quality of California’s 
water resources and drinking water for the protection of the environment, public health, and all beneficial 
uses, and to ensure proper water resource allocation and efficient use, for the benefit of present and future 
generations. Some key programs that are managed by SWRCB that pertain to UWMPs include: 
Emergency Drought Regulations, Drinking Water Program, Wastewater, and Water Recycling. 

system (water). A series of interconnected conveyance facilities owned and operated by a drinking water 
supplier; some utilities operate multiple water systems. 

tables. DWR has specified the use of standardized tables for reporting UWMP data. Use of these tables is 
required in the 2015 UWMP, to the extent that the information is available. However, water agencies may 
include the standardized tables in an appendix and present adapted versions of the standardized tables in 
the body of the Plan, if that is better adapted to the agency’s records and/or better reflects the information 
available to the agency.  

target. The target per capita water use calculated for 2020 and 2015 as per Methodologies for Calculating 
Baseline and Compliance Urban Per Capita Water Use, DWR 2011. This term is used in the context of 
SB X7-7, The Water Conservation Act of 2009.  

target method. The water supplier selects one of four different target methods when determining their 
2020 Urban Water Use Target. See the Methodologies document (DWR 2011) and Appendix E, SB X7-7 
Verification Form for details. This term is used in the context of SB X7-7, The Water Conservation Act of 
2009. 

take-or-pay. A contract provision obligating a purchaser to pay for a commodity whether or not delivery 
is taken. 

tariff. The schedule of a utility's rates and charges.  

tertiary treatment. The treatment of waste water beyond the secondary or biological stage. Normally 
implies the removal of nutrients, such as phosphorous and nitrogen, and a high percentage of suspended 
solids. 

transfers. The CWC defines a water transfer as a temporary or long-term change in the point of diversion, 
place of use, or purpose of use due to a transfer, sale, lease, or exchange of water or water rights. A water 
transfer can be a temporary or permanent sale of water or a water right by the water right holder, a lease 
of the right to use water from the water right holder, or a sale or lease of a contractual right to water 
supply. Water transfers can also take the form of long-term contracts for the purpose of improving long-
term supply reliability. For purposes of UWMP reporting, this is considered a “Wholesale Use,” even if 
the agency is not considered a wholesale water agency as per the definition in CWC 10608.12 (p) and (r). 
Agencies will make their own determination as to whether water sent to another agency is a sale, transfer, 
or exchange. 

transmission facilities. Pipes used to transport raw or treated water to distribution facilities. 

treated water. Water treated to meet drinking water standards. 

unaccounted-for water. The amount of nonaccount water less known or estimated losses and leaks. 



projects\UWMP\App A‐terms.docx 

uniform rate. A pricing structure for which the dollar amount charged per unit of water (such as dollars 
per gallon) does not vary with the amount of water usage.  

universal metering. Metering of all water-service connections. 

unmetered water. Water delivered but not measured for accounting and billing purposes. 

urban retail water supplier. A water supplier, either publicly or privately owned, that directly provides 
potable municipal water to more than 3,000 end users or that supplies more than 3,000 acre-feet of 
potable water annually at retail for municipal purposes. The terms “Water Supplier” and “Water Agency” 
are used interchangeably in this document. 

urban wholesale water supplier. A water supplier, either publicly or privately owned, that provides more 
than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually at wholesale for potable municipal purposes. Water Agency – This 
term can refer to either an urban retail water supplier or an urban wholesale water supplier. The terms 
“Water Agency” and “Water Supplier” are used interchangeably in this document. 

user class. See customer class. 

variable charge. The portion of a water bill that varies with water usage; also known as a commodity 
charge.  

variable cost. Costs associated with water service that vary with the amount of water produced or sold. 

water demand/use. Water conveyed through a distribution system that is used by a water agency and its 
customers for any purpose, including non-potable water uses, water losses, and other non-revenue water. 
The terms “Water Demand” and “Water Use” will be used interchangeably in this document.  

water right. A property right or legal claim to withdraw/divert a specified amount of water in a specified 
time frame for a beneficial use. 

water supplier. This term can refer to either an urban retail water supplier or an urban wholesale water 
supplier. The terms “Water Agency” and “Water Supplier” are used interchangeably in this document. 

water use sector. Classifications of water use that are clearly distinct from other water uses.  

wastewater. Water that has been previously used by a municipality, industry, or agriculture and has 
suffered a loss of quality as a result. 

wastewater treatment plant. A municipal or public service district which provides treatment of collected 
wastewater. 

watershed. A regional land area, defined by topography, soil, and drainage characteristics, within which 
raw waters collect and replenish supplies. 

weather-adjusted. Water demand, revenues, or other variables adjusted to a "normal" weather year; also 
known as weather normalization. 

wholesale water wse/demand. Generally large quantities of water not for municipal end uses. Wholesale 
uses include: sales, transfers, or exchanges to other agencies. The following sectors may be reported as 
either a wholesale or retail demand, the determination is made by the supplier: Groundwater recharge, 
saline intrusion barrier, agricultural, wetlands or wildlife habitat. 

worksheets. DWR has specified the use of standardized worksheets for reporting AWMP data. 

WSCP. Water Shortage Contingency Plan. A strategic plan developed by and for a water supplier to 
prepare and respond to water shortages. The CWC provides specific requirements for a WSCP. 

xeriscape. Landscaping that involves seven principles: proper planning and design; soil analysis and 
improvement; practical turf areas; appropriate plant selection; efficient irrigation; mulching; and 
appropriate maintenance. 



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix B 
UWMP Act and Related Regulations 

  



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 2 
 

 
 
California Water Code Division 6, Part 2.6. 

Chapter 1. General Declaration and Policy §10610‐10610.4 
Chapter 2. Definitions §10611‐10617 
Chapter 3. Urban Water Management Plans 

Article 1. General Provisions §10620‐10621 
Article 2. Contents of Plans §10630‐10634 
Article 2.5. Water Service Reliability §10635 
Article 3. Adoption And Implementation of Plans §10640‐10645 

Chapter 4. Miscellaneous Provisions §10650‐10656 
 
 

Chapter 1. General Declaration and Policy 

SECTION 10610-10610.4  

10610.  This part shall be known and may be cited as the "Urban Water Management Planning 
Act." 

10610.2.  (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following: 

   (1) The waters of the state are a limited and renewable resource subject to ever-
increasing demands. 

   (2) The conservation and efficient use of urban water supplies are of statewide 
concern; however, the planning for that use and the implementation of those 
plans can best be accomplished at the local level. 

(3) A long-term, reliable supply of water is essential to protect the productivity of 
California's businesses and economic climate. 

   (4) As part of its long-range planning activities, every urban water supplier should 
make every effort to ensure the appropriate level of reliability in its water 
service sufficient to meet the needs of its various categories of customers 
during normal, dry, and multiple dry water years. 

   (5) Public health issues have been raised over a number of contaminants that 
have been identified in certain local and imported water supplies. 

   (6) Implementing effective water management strategies, including groundwater 
storage projects and recycled water projects, may require specific water 
quality and salinity targets for meeting groundwater basins water quality 
objectives and promoting beneficial use of recycled water. 

   (7) Water quality regulations are becoming an increasingly important factor in 
water agencies' selection of raw water sources, treatment alternatives, and 
modifications to existing treatment facilities. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 3 
 

   (8) Changes in drinking water quality standards may also impact the usefulness of 
water supplies and may ultimately impact supply reliability. 

   (9) The quality of source supplies can have a significant impact on water 
management strategies and supply reliability. 

(b) This part is intended to provide assistance to water agencies in carrying out their 
long-term resource planning responsibilities to ensure adequate water supplies to 
meet existing and future demands for water. 

10610.4. The Legislature finds and declares that it is the policy of the state as follows: 

(a) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of water shall be 
actively pursued to protect both the people of the state and their water 
resources. 

(b) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of urban water 
supplies shall be a guiding criterion in public decisions. 

(c) Urban water suppliers shall be required to develop water management plans to 
actively pursue the efficient use of available supplies. 

 

Chapter 2. Definitions 

SECTION 10611-10617  

10611.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the definitions of this chapter govern the 
construction of this part. 

10611.5. “Demand management" means those water conservation measures, programs, and 
incentives that prevent the waste of water and promote the reasonable and efficient 
use and reuse of available supplies. 

10612.  "Customer" means a purchaser of water from a water supplier who uses the water for 
municipal purposes, including residential, commercial, governmental, and industrial 
uses. 

10613.  "Efficient use" means those management measures that result in the most effective use 
of water so as to prevent its waste or unreasonable use or unreasonable method of 
use. 

10614.  "Person" means any individual, firm, association, organization, partnership, business, 
trust, corporation, company, public agency, or any agency of such an entity. 

10615.  "Plan" means an urban water management plan prepared pursuant to this part. A plan 
shall describe and evaluate sources of supply, reasonable and practical efficient uses, 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 4 
 

reclamation and demand management activities. The components of the plan may 
vary according to an individual community or area's characteristics and its capabilities 
to efficiently use and conserve water. The plan shall address measures for residential, 
commercial, governmental, and industrial water demand management as set forth in 
Article 2 (commencing with Section 10630) of Chapter 3. In addition, a strategy and 
time schedule for implementation shall be included in the plan. 

10616.  "Public agency" means any board, commission, county, city and county, city, regional 
agency, district, or other public entity. 

10616.5. "Recycled water" means the reclamation and reuse of wastewater for beneficial use. 

10617.  "Urban water supplier" means a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing 
water for municipal purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers 
or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually. An urban water supplier 
includes a supplier or contractor for water, regardless of the basis of right, which 
distributes or sells for ultimate resale to customers. This part applies only to water 
supplied from public water systems subject to Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 
116275) of Part 12 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code. 

 

Chapter 3. Urban Water Management Plans 

Article 1. General Provisions  
 
SECTION 10620-10621  

10620.     (a) Every urban water supplier shall prepare and adopt an urban water management 
plan in the manner set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 10640). 

(b) Every person that becomes an urban water supplier shall adopt an urban water 
management plan within one year after it has become an urban water supplier. 

(c) An urban water supplier indirectly providing water shall not include planning 
elements in its water management plan as provided in Article 2 (commencing with 
Section 10630) that would be applicable to urban water suppliers or public 
agencies directly providing water, or to their customers, without the consent of 
those suppliers or public agencies. 

 (d)  (1) An urban water supplier may satisfy the requirements of this part by 
participation in areawide, regional, watershed, or basinwide urban water 
management planning where those plans will reduce preparation costs and 
contribute to the achievement of conservation and efficient water use. 

(2) Each urban water supplier shall coordinate the preparation of its plan with 
other appropriate agencies in the area, including other water suppliers that 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 5 
 

share a common source, water management agencies, and relevant public 
agencies, to the extent practicable. 

(e) The urban water supplier may prepare the plan with its own staff, by contract, or in 
cooperation with other governmental agencies. 

(f) An urban water supplier shall describe in the plan water management tools and 
options used by that entity that will maximize resources and minimize the need to 
import water from other regions. 

10621.     (a) Each urban water supplier shall update its plan at least once every five years on or 
before December 31, in years ending in five and zero, except as provided in 
subdivision (d). 

(b) Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall, at 
least 60 days before the public hearing on the plan required by Section 10642, 
notify any city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies that the 
urban water supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering amendments or 
changes to the plan. The urban water supplier may consult with, and obtain 
comments from, any city or county that receives notice pursuant to this 
subdivision. 

(c) The amendments to, or changes in, the plan shall be adopted and filed in the 
manner set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 10640). 

(d) Each urban water supplier shall update and submit its 2015 plan to the department 
by July 1, 2016. 

Article 2. Contents of Plan 
 
SECTION 10630-10634  

10630.  It is the intention of the Legislature, in enacting this part, to permit levels of water 
management planning commensurate with the numbers of customers served and the 
volume of water supplied. 

10631.  A plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter that shall do all of the following: 

(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including current and projected 
population, climate, and other demographic factors affecting the supplier's water 
management planning. The projected population estimates shall be based upon 
data from the state, regional, or local service agency population projections within 
the service area of the urban water supplier and shall be in five-year increments to 
20 years or as far as data is available. 

(b) Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of 
water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision (a). If groundwater is identified as an existing or planned source of 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 6 
 

water available to the supplier, all of the following information shall be included in 
the plan: 

(1) A copy of any groundwater management plan adopted by the urban water 
supplier, including plans adopted pursuant to Part 2.75 (commencing with 
Section 10750), or any other specific authorization for groundwater 
management. 

(2) A description of any groundwater basin or basins from which the urban water 
supplier pumps groundwater. For basins that a court or the board has 
adjudicated the rights to pump groundwater, a copy of the order or decree 
adopted by the court or the board and a description of the amount of 
groundwater the urban water supplier has the legal right to pump under the 
order or decree. For basins that have not been adjudicated, information as to 
whether the department has identified the basin or basins as overdrafted or 
has projected that the basin will become overdrafted if present management 
conditions continue, in the most current official departmental bulletin that 
characterizes the condition of the groundwater basin, and a detailed 
description of the efforts being undertaken by the urban water supplier to 
eliminate the long-term overdraft condition. 

(3) A detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the past five years. The 
description and analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably 
available, including, but not limited to, historic use records. 

(4) A detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater 
that is projected to be pumped by the urban water supplier. The description 
and analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably available, 
including, but not limited to, historic use records. 

(c)   (1) Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or 
climatic shortage, to the extent practicable, and provide data for each of the 
following: 

(A) An average water year. 

(B) A single-dry water year. 

(C) Multiple-dry water years. 

(2) For any water source that may not be available at a consistent level of use, 
given specific legal, environmental, water quality, or climatic factors, describe 
plans to supplement or replace that source with alternative sources or water 
demand management measures, to the extent practicable. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 7 
 

(d) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-term or 
long-term basis. 

(e)  (1) Quantify, to the extent records are available, past and current water use, over 
the same five-year increments described in subdivision (a), and projected 
water use, identifying the uses among water use sectors, including, but not 
necessarily limited to, all of the following uses: 

(A) Single-family residential. 

(B) Multifamily. 

(C) Commercial. 

(D) Industrial. 

(E) Institutional and governmental. 

(F) Landscape. 

(G) Sales to other agencies. 

(H) Saline water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, or conjunctive use, 
or any combination thereof. 

(I) Agricultural. 

   (J) Distribution system water loss. 

(2) The water use projections shall be in the same five-year increments 
described in subdivision (a). 

(3) (A) For the 2015 urban water management plan update, the distribution 
system water loss shall be quantified for the most recent 12-month period 
available. For all subsequent updates, the distribution system water loss 
shall be quantified for each of the five years preceding the plan update. 

(B) The distribution system water loss quantification shall be reported in 
accordance with a worksheet approved or developed by the department 
through a public process. The water loss quantification worksheet shall be 
based on the water system balance methodology developed by the 
American Water Works Association. 

(4) (A) If available and applicable to an urban water supplier, water use 
projections may display and account for the water savings estimated to 
result from adopted codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation and 
land use plans identified by the urban water supplier, as applicable to the 
service area. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 8 
 

(B) To the extent that an urban water supplier reports the information 
described in subparagraph (A), an urban water supplier shall do both of 
the following: 

   (i) Provide citations of the various codes, standards, ordinances, or 
transportation and land use plans utilized in making the projections. 

   (ii) Indicate the extent that the water use projections consider savings 
from codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation and land use 
plans. Water use projections that do not account for these water 
savings shall be noted of that fact. 

   (f) Provide a description of the supplier's water demand management measures. 
This description shall include all of the following: 

(1) (A) For an urban retail water supplier, as defined in Section 10608.12, a 
narrative description that addresses the nature and extent of each water 
demand management measure implemented over the past five years. 
The narrative shall describe the water demand management measures 
that the supplier plans to implement to achieve its water use targets 
pursuant to Section 10608.20. 

 (B) The narrative pursuant to this paragraph shall include descriptions of the 
following water demand management measures: 

(i) Water waste prevention ordinances. 

(ii) Metering. 

(iii) Conservation pricing. 

(iv) Public education and outreach. 

(v) Programs to assess and manage distribution system real loss. 

(vi) Water conservation program coordination and staffing support. 

(vii) Other demand management measures that have a significant impact 
on water use as measured in gallons per capita per day, including 
innovative measures, if implemented. 

 (2) For an urban wholesale water supplier, as defined in Section 10608.12, a 
narrative description of the items in clauses (ii), (iv), (vi), and (vii) of 
subparagraph (B) of paragraph (1), and a narrative description of its 
distribution system asset management and wholesale supplier assistance 
programs. 

(g) Include a description of all water supply projects and water supply programs that 
may be undertaken by the urban water supplier to meet the total projected water 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 9 
 

use, as established pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 10635. The urban water 
supplier shall include a detailed description of expected future projects and 
programs that the urban water supplier may implement to increase the amount of 
the water supply available to the urban water supplier in average, single-dry, and 
multiple-dry water years. The description shall identify specific projects and 
include a description of the increase in water supply that is expected to be 
available from each project. The description shall include an estimate with regard 
to the implementation timeline for each project or program. 

(h) Describe the opportunities for development of desalinated water, including, but not 
limited to, ocean water, brackish water, and groundwater, as a long-term supply. 

(i)  For purposes of this part, urban water suppliers that are members of the California 
Urban Water Conservation Council shall be deemed in compliance with the 
requirements of subdivision (f) by complying with all the provisions of the 
"Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in 
California," dated December 10, 2008, as it may be amended, and by submitting 
the annual reports required by Section 6.2 of that memorandum. 

(j)  An urban water supplier that relies upon a wholesale agency for a source of water 
shall provide the wholesale agency with water use projections from that agency 
for that source of water in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is 
available. The wholesale agency shall provide information to the urban water 
supplier for inclusion in the urban water supplier's plan that identifies and 
quantifies, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of water as 
required by subdivision (b), available from the wholesale agency to the urban 
water supplier over the same five-year increments, and during various water-year 
types in accordance with subdivision (c). An urban water supplier may rely upon 
water supply information provided by the wholesale agency in fulfilling the plan 
informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and (c). 

10631.1.  (a) The water use projections required by Section 10631 shall include projected water 
use for single-family and multifamily residential housing needed for lower income 
households, as defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code, as 
identified in the housing element of any city, county, or city and county in the 
service area of the supplier. 

(b) It is the intent of the Legislature that the identification of projected water use for 
single-family and multifamily residential housing for lower income households will 
assist a supplier in complying with the requirement under Section 65589.7 of the 
Government Code to grant a priority for the provision of service to housing units 
affordable to lower income households. 

 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 10 
 

10631.2. (a) In addition to the requirements of Section 10631, an urban water management plan 
may, but is not required to, include any of the following information: 

(1) An estimate of the amount of energy used to extract or divert water supplies. 

(2) An estimate of the amount of energy used to convey water supplies to the 
water treatment plants or distribution systems. 

(3) An estimate of the amount of energy used to treat water supplies. 

(4) An estimate of the amount of energy used to distribute water supplies through 
its distribution systems. 

(5) An estimate of the amount of energy used for treated water supplies in 
comparison to the amount used for nontreated water supplies. 

(6) An estimate of the amount of energy used to place water into or withdraw 
from storage. 

(7) Any other energy-related information the urban water supplier deems 
appropriate. 

(b) The department shall include in its guidance for the preparation of urban water 
management plans a methodology for the voluntary calculation or estimation of 
the energy intensity of urban water systems. The department may consider 
studies and calculations conducted by the Public Utilities Commission in 
developing the methodology. 

 

10631.5. (a)  (1) Beginning January 1, 2009, the terms of, and eligibility for, a water 
management grant or loan made to an urban water supplier and awarded or 
administered by the department, state board, or California Bay-Delta Authority 
or its successor agency shall be conditioned on the implementation of the 
water demand management measures described in Section 10631, as 
determined by the department pursuant to subdivision (b). 

(2) For the purposes of this section, water management grants and loans include 
funding for programs and projects for surface water or groundwater storage, 
recycling, desalination, water conservation, water supply reliability, and water 
supply augmentation. This section does not apply to water management 
projects funded by the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 (Public Law 111-5). 

(3) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), the department shall determine that an urban 
water supplier is eligible for a water management grant or loan even though 
the supplier is not implementing all of the water demand management 
measures described in Section 10631, if the urban water supplier has 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 11 
 

submitted to the department for approval a schedule, financing plan, and 
budget, to be included in the grant or loan agreement, for implementation of 
the water demand management measures. The supplier may request grant or 
loan funds to implement the water demand management measures to the 
extent the request is consistent with the eligibility requirements applicable to 
the water management funds. 

(4) (A) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), the department shall determine that an 
urban water supplier is eligible for a water management grant or loan 
even though the supplier is not implementing all of the water demand 
management measures described in Section 10631, if an urban water 
supplier submits to the department for approval documentation 
demonstrating that a water demand management measure is not locally 
cost effective. If the department determines that the documentation 
submitted by the urban water supplier fails to demonstrate that a water 
demand management measure is not locally cost effective, the 
department shall notify the urban water supplier and the agency 
administering the grant or loan program within 120 days that the 
documentation does not satisfy the requirements for an exemption, and 
include in that notification a detailed statement to support the 
determination. 

(B) For purposes of this paragraph, "not locally cost effective" means that the 
present value of the local benefits of implementing a water demand 
management measure is less than the present value of the local costs of 
implementing that measure. 

(b) (1) The department, in consultation with the state board and the California Bay-
Delta Authority or its successor agency, and after soliciting public comment 
regarding eligibility requirements, shall develop eligibility requirements to 
implement the requirement of paragraph (1) of subdivision (a). In establishing 
these eligibility requirements, the department shall do both of the following: 

(A) Consider the conservation measures described in the Memorandum of 
Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California, and 
alternative conservation approaches that provide equal or greater water 
savings. 

(B) Recognize the different legal, technical, fiscal, and practical roles and 
responsibilities of wholesale water suppliers and retail water suppliers. 

 (2) (A) For the purposes of this section, the department shall determine whether 
an urban water supplier is implementing all of the water demand 
management measures described in Section 10631 based on either, or a 
combination, of the following: 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 12 
 

   (i) Compliance on an individual basis. 

   (ii) Compliance on a regional basis. Regional compliance shall require 
participation in a regional conservation program consisting of two or 
more urban water suppliers that achieves the level of conservation or 
water efficiency savings equivalent to the amount of conservation or 
savings achieved if each of the participating urban water suppliers 
implemented the water demand management measures. The urban 
water supplier administering the regional program shall provide 
participating urban water suppliers and the department with data to 
demonstrate that the regional program is consistent with this clause. 
The department shall review the data to determine whether the urban 
water suppliers in the regional program are meeting the eligibility 
requirements. 

   (B) The department may require additional information for any 
determination pursuant to this section. 

(3) The department shall not deny eligibility to an urban water supplier in 
compliance with the requirements of this section that is participating in a 
multiagency water project, or an integrated regional water management plan, 
developed pursuant to Section 75026 of the Public Resources Code, solely 
on the basis that one or more of the agencies participating in the project or 
plan is not implementing all of the water demand management measures 
described in Section 10631. 

(c) In establishing guidelines pursuant to the specific funding authorization for any 
water management grant or loan program subject to this section, the agency 
administering the grant or loan program shall include in the guidelines the 
eligibility requirements developed by the department pursuant to subdivision (b). 

(d) Upon receipt of a water management grant or loan application by an agency 
administering a grant and loan program subject to this section, the agency shall 
request an eligibility determination from the department with respect to the 
requirements of this section. The department shall respond to the request within 
60 days of the request. 

(e) The urban water supplier may submit to the department copies of its annual 
reports and other relevant documents to assist the department in determining 
whether the urban water supplier is implementing or scheduling the 
implementation of water demand management activities. In addition, for urban 
water suppliers that are signatories to the Memorandum of Understanding 
Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California and submit biennial reports to 
the California Urban Water Conservation Council in accordance with the 
memorandum, the department may use these reports to assist in tracking the 
implementation of water demand management measures. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 13 
 

(f) This section shall remain in effect only until July 1, 2016, and as of that date is 
repealed, unless a later enacted statute, that is enacted before July 1, 2016, 
deletes or extends that date. 

 

10631.7. The department, in consultation with the California Urban Water Conservation Council, 
shall convene an independent technical panel to provide information and 
recommendations to the department and the Legislature on new demand management 
measures, technologies, and approaches. The panel shall consist of no more than 
seven members, who shall be selected by the department to reflect a balanced 
representation of experts. The panel shall have at least one, but no more than two, 
representatives from each of the following: retail water suppliers, environmental 
organizations, the business community, wholesale water suppliers, and academia. The 
panel shall be convened by January 1, 2009, and shall report to the Legislature no later 
than January 1, 2010, and every five years thereafter. The department shall review the 
panel report and include in the final report to the Legislature the department's 
recommendations and comments regarding the panel process and the panel's 
recommendations. 

 

10632.  (a) The plan shall provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that includes 
each of the following elements that are within the authority of the urban water 
supplier: 

(1) Stages of action to be undertaken by the urban water supplier in response to 
water supply shortages, including up to a 50 percent reduction in water 
supply, and an outline of specific water supply conditions that are applicable 
to each stage. 

(2) An estimate of the minimum water supply available during each of the next 
three water years based on the driest three-year historic sequence for the 
agency's water supply. 

(3) Actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier to prepare for, and 
implement during, a catastrophic interruption of water supplies including, but 
not limited to, a regional power outage, an earthquake, or other disaster. 

(4) Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices during 
water shortages, including, but not limited to, prohibiting the use of potable 
water for street cleaning. 

(5) Consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. Each urban 
water supplier may use any type of consumption reduction methods in its 
water shortage contingency analysis that would reduce water use, are 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 14 
 

appropriate for its area, and have the ability to achieve a water use reduction 
consistent with up to a 50 percent reduction in water supply. 

(6) Penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable. 

(7) An analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions described in 
paragraphs (1) to (6), inclusive, on the revenues and expenditures of the 
urban water supplier, and proposed measures to overcome those impacts, 
such as the development of reserves and rate adjustments. 

(8) A draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance. 

(9) A mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use pursuant to the 
urban water shortage contingency analysis. 

(b) Commencing with the urban water management plan update due July 1, 2016, for 
purposes of developing the water shortage contingency analysis pursuant to 
subdivision (a), the urban water supplier shall analyze and define water features 
that are artificially supplied with water, including ponds, lakes, waterfalls, and 
fountains, separately from swimming pools and spas, as defined in subdivision (a) 
of Section 115921 of the Health and Safety Code. 

 

10633.  The plan shall provide, to the extent available, information on recycled water and its 
potential for use as a water source in the service area of the urban water supplier. The 
preparation of the plan shall be coordinated with local water, wastewater, groundwater, 
and planning agencies that operate within the supplier's service area, and shall include 
all of the following: 

 (a) A description of the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the supplier's 
service area, including a quantification of the amount of wastewater collected and 
treated and the methods of wastewater disposal. 

 (b) A description of the quantity of treated wastewater that meets recycled water 
standards, is being discharged, and is otherwise available for use in a recycled 
water project. 

 (c) A description of the recycled water currently being used in the supplier's service 
area, including, but not limited to, the type, place, and quantity of use. 

 (d) A description and quantification of the potential uses of recycled water, including, 
but not limited to, agricultural irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat 
enhancement, wetlands, industrial reuse, groundwater recharge, indirect potable 
reuse, and other appropriate uses, and a determination with regard to the 
technical and economic feasibility of serving those uses. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 15 
 

 (e) The projected use of recycled water within the supplier's service area at the end 
of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description of the actual use of recycled water in 
comparison to uses previously projected pursuant to this subdivision. 

 (f) A description of actions, including financial incentives, which may be taken to 
encourage the use of recycled water, and the projected results of these actions in 
terms of acre-feet of recycled water used per year. 

 (g) A plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier's service area, 
including actions to facilitate the installation of dual distribution systems, to 
promote recirculating uses, to facilitate the increased use of treated wastewater 
that meets recycled water standards, and to overcome any obstacles to achieving 
that increased use. 

 

10634.  The plan shall include information, to the extent practicable, relating to the quality of 
existing sources of water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments 
as described in subdivision (a) of Section 10631, and the manner in which water quality 
affects water management strategies and supply reliability. 

 

Article 2.5. Water Service Reliability 
 
SECTION 10635  

10635.     (a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management 
plan, an assessment of the reliability of its water service to its customers during 
normal, dry, and multiple dry water years. This water supply and demand 
assessment shall compare the total water supply sources available to the water 
supplier with the total projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-year 
increments, for a normal water year, a single dry water year, and multiple dry 
water years. The water service reliability assessment shall be based upon the 
information compiled pursuant to Section 10631, including available data from 
state, regional, or local agency population projections within the service area of 
the urban water supplier. 

(b) The urban water supplier shall provide that portion of its urban water management 
plan prepared pursuant to this article to any city or county within which it provides 
water supplies no later than 60 days after the submission of its urban water 
management plan. 

(c) Nothing in this article is intended to create a right or entitlement to water service or 
any specific level of water service. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 16 
 

(d) Nothing in this article is intended to change existing law concerning an urban 
water supplier's obligation to provide water service to its existing customers or to 
any potential future customers. 

Article 3. Adoption and Implementation of Plans 
 
SECTION 10640-10645  

10640.  Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall prepare 
its plan pursuant to Article 2 (commencing with Section 10630).    The supplier shall 
likewise periodically review the plan as required by Section 10621, and any 
amendments or changes required as a result of that review shall be adopted pursuant 
to this article. 

10641.  An urban water supplier required to prepare a plan may consult with, and obtain 
comments from, any public agency or state agency or any person who has special 
expertise with respect to water demand management methods and techniques. 

10642.  Each urban water supplier shall encourage the active involvement of diverse social, 
cultural, and economic elements of the population within the service area prior to and 
during the preparation of the plan. Prior to adopting a plan, the urban water supplier 
shall make the plan available for public inspection and shall hold a public hearing 
thereon. Prior to the hearing, notice of the time and place of hearing shall be published 
within the jurisdiction of the publicly owned water supplier pursuant to Section 6066 of 
the Government Code. The urban water supplier shall provide notice of the time and 
place of hearing to any city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies. 
A privately owned water supplier shall provide an equivalent notice within its service 
area. 

After the hearing, the plan shall be adopted as prepared or as modified after the 
hearing. 

10643.  An urban water supplier shall implement its plan adopted pursuant to this chapter in 
accordance with the schedule set forth in its plan. 

10644.     (a)   (1) An urban water supplier shall submit to the department, the California State 
Library, and any city or county within which the supplier provides water 
supplies a copy of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. Copies of 
amendments or changes to the plans shall be submitted to the department, 
the California State Library, and any city or county within which the supplier 
provides water supplies within 30 days after adoption. 

(2) The plan, or amendments to the plan, submitted to the department pursuant 
to paragraph (1) shall be submitted electronically and shall include any 
standardized forms, tables, or displays specified by the department. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 17 
 

(b)   (1) Notwithstanding Section 10231.5 of the Government Code, the department 
shall prepare and submit to the Legislature, on or before December 31, in the 
years ending in six and one, a report summarizing the status of the plans 
adopted pursuant to this part. 

The report prepared by the department shall identify the exemplary elements 
of the individual plans. The department shall provide a copy of the report to 
each urban water supplier that has submitted its plan to the department. The 
department shall also prepare reports and provide data for any legislative 
hearings designed to consider the effectiveness of plans submitted pursuant 
to this part. 

(2) A report to be submitted pursuant to paragraph (1) shall be submitted in 
compliance with Section 9795 of the Government Code. 

(c)   (1) For the purpose of identifying the exemplary elements of the individual plans, 
the department shall identify in the report water demand management 
measures adopted and implemented by specific urban water suppliers, and 
identified pursuant to Section 10631, that achieve water savings significantly 
above the levels established by the department to meet the requirements of 
Section 10631.5. 

(2) The department shall distribute to the panel convened pursuant to Section 
10631.7 the results achieved by the implementation of those water demand 
management measures described in paragraph (1). 

(3) The department shall make available to the public the standard the 
department will use to identify exemplary water demand management 
measures. 

10645.  Not later than 30 days after filing a copy of its plan with the department, the urban water 
supplier and the department shall make the plan available for public review during 
normal business hours. 

 

Chapter 4. Miscellaneous Provisions 

SECTION 10650-10656  

10650.  Any actions or proceedings to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul the acts or 
decisions of an urban water supplier on the grounds of noncompliance with this part 
shall be commenced as follows: 

(a) An action or proceeding alleging failure to adopt a plan shall be commenced within 
18 months after that adoption is required by this part. 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 18 
 

(b) Any action or proceeding alleging that a plan, or action taken pursuant to the plan, 
does not comply with this part shall be commenced within 90 days after filing of 
the plan or amendment thereto pursuant to Section 10644 or the taking of that 
action. 

10651.  In any action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul a plan, or an 
action taken pursuant to the plan by an urban water supplier on the grounds of 
noncompliance with this part, the inquiry shall extend only to whether there was a 
prejudicial abuse of discretion. Abuse of discretion is established if the supplier has not 
proceeded in a manner required by law or if the action by the water supplier is not 
supported by substantial evidence. 

10652.  The California Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) 
of the Public Resources Code) does not apply to the preparation and adoption of plans 
pursuant to this part or to the implementation of actions taken pursuant to Section 
10632. Nothing in this part shall be interpreted as exempting from the California 
Environmental Quality Act any project that would significantly affect water supplies for 
fish and wildlife, or any project for implementation of the plan, other than projects 
implementing Section 10632, or any project for expanded or additional water supplies. 

10653.  The adoption of a plan shall satisfy any requirements of state law, regulation, or order, 
including those of the State Water Resources Control Board and the Public Utilities 
Commission, for the preparation of water management plans or conservation plans; 
provided, that if the State Water Resources Control Board or the Public Utilities 
Commission requires additional information concerning water conservation to 
implement its existing authority, nothing in this part shall be deemed to limit the board or 
the commission in obtaining that information. The requirements of this part shall be 
satisfied by any urban water demand management plan prepared to meet federal laws 
or regulations after the effective date of this part, and which substantially meets the 
requirements of this part, or by any existing urban water management plan which 
includes the contents of a plan required under this part. 

10654.  An urban water supplier may recover in its rates the costs incurred in preparing its plan 
and implementing the reasonable water conservation measures included in the plan. 
Any best water management practice that is included in the plan that is identified in the 
"Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California" is 
deemed to be reasonable for the purposes of this section. 

10655.  If any provision of this part or the application thereof to any person or circumstances is 
held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this part 
which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application thereof, and to this 
end the provisions of this part are severable. 

10656.  An urban water supplier that does not prepare, adopt, and submit its urban water 
management plan to the department in accordance with this part, is ineligible to receive 
funding pursuant to Division 24 (commencing with Section 78500) or Division 26 



Appendix A Urban Water Management Planning Act Final  

A ‐ 19 
 

(commencing with Section 79000), or receive drought assistance from the state until the 
urban water management plan is submitted pursuant to this article. 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 2 
 

 
California Water Code Division 6, Part 2.55. 
 

Chapter 1. General Declarations and Policy §10608‐10608.8 
Chapter 2. Definitions §10608.12 
Chapter 3. Urban Retail Water Suppliers §10608.16‐10608.44 
Chapter 4. Agricultural Water Suppliers §10608.48 
Chapter 5. Sustainable Water Management §10608.50 
Chapter 6 Standardized Data Collection §10608.52 
Chapter 7 Funding Provisions §10608.56‐10608.60 
Chapter 8 Quantifying Agricultural Water Use Efficiency §10608.64 

 
 
Chapter 1.  General Declarations and Policy 
 
SECTION 10608-10608.8 
 
10608.  The Legislature finds and declares all of the following: 
 

(a) Water is a public resource that the California Constitution protects against waste 
and unreasonable use. 
 

(b) Growing population, climate change, and the need to protect and grow California's 
economy while protecting and restoring our fish and wildlife habitats make it 
essential that the state manage its water resources as efficiently as possible. 
 

(c) Diverse regional water supply portfolios will increase water supply reliability and 
reduce dependence on the Delta. 
 

(d) Reduced water use through conservation provides significant energy and 
environmental benefits, and can help protect water quality, improve streamflows, 
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

 
(e) The success of state and local water conservation programs to increase efficiency 

of water use is best determined on the basis of measurable outcomes related to 
water use or efficiency. 

 
(f) Improvements in technology and management practices offer the potential for 

increasing water efficiency in California over time, providing an essential water 
management tool to meet the need for water for urban, agricultural, and 
environmental uses. 

 
(g) The Governor has called for a 20 percent per capita reduction in urban water use 

statewide by 2020. 
 

(h) The factors used to formulate water use efficiency targets can vary significantly 
from location to location based on factors including weather, patterns of urban and 
suburban development, and past efforts to enhance water use efficiency. 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 3 
 

(i) Per capita water use is a valid measure of a water provider's efforts to reduce 
urban water use within its service area. However, per capita water use is less 
useful for measuring relative water use efficiency between different water 
providers. Differences in weather, historical patterns of urban and suburban 
development, and density of housing in a particular location need to be 
considered when assessing per capita water use as a measure of efficiency. 

 
10608.4. It is the intent of the Legislature, by the enactment of this part, to do all of the following: 
 

(a) Require all water suppliers to increase the efficiency of use of this essential 
resource. 

 
(b) Establish a framework to meet the state targets for urban water conservation 

identified in this part and called for by the Governor. 
 
(c) Measure increased efficiency of urban water use on a per capita basis. 
 
(d) Establish a method or methods for urban retail water suppliers to determine 

targets for achieving increased water use efficiency by the year 2020, in 
accordance with the Governor's goal of a 20-percent reduction. 

 
(e) Establish consistent water use efficiency planning and implementation standards 

for urban water suppliers and agricultural water suppliers. 
 
(f)  Promote urban water conservation standards that are consistent with the 

California Urban Water Conservation Council's adopted best management 
practices and the requirements for demand management in Section 10631. 

 
(g) Establish standards that recognize and provide credit to water suppliers that made 

substantial capital investments in urban water conservation since the drought of 
the early 1990s. 

 
(h) Recognize and account for the investment of urban retail water suppliers in 

providing recycled water for beneficial uses. 
 
(i) Require implementation of specified efficient water management practices for 

agricultural water suppliers. 
 
(j) Support the economic productivity of California's agricultural, commercial, and 

industrial sectors. 
 
(k) Advance regional water resources management. 

 
10608.8.  (a)    (1) Water use efficiency measures adopted and implemented pursuant to this 

part or Part 2.8 (commencing with Section 10800) are water conservation 
measures subject to the protections provided under Section 1011. 

 
(2) Because an urban agency is not required to meet its urban water use target 

until 2020 pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 10608.24, an urban retail 
water supplier's failure to meet those targets shall not establish a violation of 
law for purposes of any state administrative or judicial proceeding prior to 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 4 
 

January 1, 2021. Nothing in this paragraph limits the use of data reported to 
the department or the board in litigation or an administrative proceeding. This 
paragraph shall become inoperative on January 1, 2021. 

 
(3) To the extent feasible, the department and the board shall provide for the use 

of water conservation reports required under this part to meet the 
requirements of Section 1011 for water conservation reporting. 

 
(b) This part does not limit or otherwise affect the application of Chapter 3.5 

(commencing with Section 11340), Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 11370), 
Chapter 4.5 (commencing with Section 11400), and Chapter 5 (commencing with 
Section 11500) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code. 

 
(c) This part does not require a reduction in the total water used in the agricultural or 

urban sectors, because other factors, including, but not limited to, changes in 
agricultural economics or population growth may have greater effects on water 
use. This part does not limit the economic productivity of California's agricultural, 
commercial, or industrial sectors. 

 
(d) The requirements of this part do not apply to an agricultural water supplier that is a 

party to the Quantification Settlement Agreement, as defined in subdivision (a) of 
Section 1 of Chapter 617 of the Statutes of 2002, during the period within which 
the Quantification Settlement Agreement remains in effect. After the expiration of 
the Quantification Settlement Agreement, to the extent conservation water 
projects implemented as part of the Quantification Settlement Agreement remain 
in effect, the conserved water created as part of those projects shall be credited 
against the obligations of the agricultural water supplier pursuant to this part. 

 

 

Chapter 2 Definitions 
 
SECTION 10608.12  
 
10608.12. Unless the context otherwise requires, the following definitions govern the 

construction of this part: 
 

(a) "Agricultural water supplier" means a water supplier, either publicly or privately 
owned, providing water to 10,000 or more irrigated acres, excluding recycled 
water. "Agricultural water supplier" includes a supplier or contractor for water, 
regardless of the basis of right, that distributes or sells water for ultimate resale to 
customers. "Agricultural water supplier" does not include the department. 

 
(b) "Base daily per capita water use" means any of the following: 
 

(1) The urban retail water supplier's estimate of its average gross water use, 
reported in gallons per capita per day and calculated over a continuous 10-
year period ending no earlier than December 31, 2004, and no later than 
December 31, 2010. 

 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 5 
 

(2) For an urban retail water supplier that meets at least 10 percent of its 2008 
measured retail water demand through recycled water that is delivered within 
the service area of an urban retail water supplier or its urban wholesale water 
supplier, the urban retail water supplier may extend the calculation described 
in paragraph (1) up to an additional five years to a maximum of a continuous 
15-year period ending no earlier than December 31, 2004, and no later than 
December 31, 2010. 

 
(3) For the purposes of Section 10608.22, the urban retail water supplier's 

estimate of its average gross water use, reported in gallons per capita per 
day and calculated over a continuous five-year period ending no earlier than 
December 31, 2007, and no later than December 31, 2010. 

 
(c) "Baseline commercial, industrial, and institutional water use" means an urban retail 

water supplier's base daily per capita water use for commercial, industrial, and 
institutional users. 

 
(d) "Commercial water user" means a water user that provides or distributes a product 

or service. 
 
(e) "Compliance daily per capita water use" means the gross water use during the 

final year of the reporting period, reported in gallons per capita per day. 
 
(f) "Disadvantaged community" means a community with an annual median 

household income that is less than 80 percent of the statewide annual median 
household income. 

 
(g) "Gross water use" means the total volume of water, whether treated or untreated, 

entering the distribution system of an urban retail water supplier, excluding all of 
the following: 

 
(1) Recycled water that is delivered within the service area of an urban retail 

water supplier or its urban wholesale water supplier. 
 
(2) The net volume of water that the urban retail water supplier places into long-

term storage. 
 
(3) The volume of water the urban retail water supplier conveys for use by 

another urban water supplier. 
 
(4) The volume of water delivered for agricultural use, except as otherwise 

provided in subdivision (f) of Section 10608.24. 
 

(h) "Industrial water user" means a water user that is primarily a manufacturer or 
processor of materials as defined by the North American Industry Classification 
System code sectors 31 to 33, inclusive, or an entity that is a water user 
primarily engaged in research and development. 

 
(i) "Institutional water user" means a water user dedicated to public service. This type 

of user includes, among other users, higher education institutions, schools, courts, 
churches, hospitals, government facilities, and nonprofit research institutions. 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 6 
 

 
(j) "Interim urban water use target" means the midpoint between the urban retail water 

supplier's base daily per capita water use and the urban retail water supplier's 
urban water use target for 2020. 

 
(k) "Locally cost effective" means that the present value of the local benefits of 

implementing an agricultural efficiency water management practice is greater than 
or equal to the present value of the local cost of implementing that measure. 

 
(l) "Process water" means water used for producing a product or product content or 

water used for research and development, including, but not limited to, continuous 
manufacturing processes, water used for testing and maintaining equipment used 
in producing a product or product content, and water used in combined heat and 
power facilities used in producing a product or product content. Process water 
does not mean incidental water uses not related to the production of a product or 
product content, including, but not limited to, water used for restrooms, 
landscaping, air conditioning, heating, kitchens, and laundry. 

 
(m) "Recycled water" means recycled water, as defined in subdivision (n) of Section 

13050, that is used to offset potable demand, including recycled water supplied 
for direct use and indirect potable reuse, that meets the following requirements, 
where applicable: 

 
(1) For groundwater recharge, including recharge through spreading basins, 

water supplies that are all of the following: 
 

(A) Metered. 
 

(B) Developed through planned investment by the urban water supplier or a 
wastewater treatment agency. 

 
(C) Treated to a minimum tertiary level. 

 
(D) Delivered within the service area of an urban retail water supplier or its 

urban wholesale water supplier that helps an urban retail water supplier 
meet its urban water use target. 

 
(2) For reservoir augmentation, water supplies that meet the criteria of paragraph 

(1) and are conveyed through a distribution system constructed specifically 
for recycled water. 

    
(n) "Regional water resources management" means sources of supply resulting from 

watershed-based planning for sustainable local water reliability or any of the 
following alternative sources of water: 

 
(1) The capture and reuse of stormwater or rainwater. 
 
(2) The use of recycled water. 
 
(3) The desalination of brackish groundwater. 

 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 7 
 

(4) The conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater in a manner that is 
consistent with the safe yield of the groundwater basin. 

 
(o) "Reporting period" means the years for which an urban retail water supplier 

reports compliance with the urban water use targets. 
 
(p) "Urban retail water supplier" means a water supplier, either publicly or privately 

owned, that directly provides potable municipal water to more than 3,000 end 
users or that supplies more than 3,000 acre-feet of potable water annually at retail 
for municipal purposes. 

 
(q) "Urban water use target" means the urban retail water supplier's targeted future 

daily per capita water use. 
 
(r) "Urban wholesale water supplier," means a water supplier, either publicly or 

privately owned, that provides more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually at 
wholesale for potable municipal purposes. 

 
 

Chapter 3 Urban Retail Water Suppliers 
 
SECTION 10608.16-10608.44  
 
10608.16.(a) The state shall achieve a 20-percent reduction in urban per capita water use in 

California on or before December 31, 2020. 
 

(b) The state shall make incremental progress towards the state target specified in 
subdivision (a) by reducing urban per capita water use by at least 10 percent on 
or before December 31, 2015. 

 
10608.20.(a) (1) Each urban retail water supplier shall develop urban water use targets and an 

interim urban water use target by July 1, 2011. Urban retail water suppliers 
may elect to determine and report progress toward achieving these targets on 
an individual or regional basis, as provided in subdivision (a) of Section 
10608.28, and may determine the targets on a fiscal year or calendar year 
basis. 

 
(2) It is the intent of the Legislature that the urban water use targets described in 

paragraph (1) cumulatively result in a 20-percent reduction from the baseline 
daily per capita water use by December 31, 2020. 

 
(b) An urban retail water supplier shall adopt one of the following methods for 

determining its urban water use target pursuant to subdivision (a): 
 
(1) Eighty percent of the urban retail water supplier's baseline per capita daily 

water use. 
 
(2) The per capita daily water use that is estimated using the sum of the following 

performance standards: 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 8 
 

(A) For indoor residential water use, 55 gallons per capita daily water use as 
a provisional standard. Upon completion of the department's 2016 report 
to the Legislature pursuant to Section 10608.42, this standard may be 
adjusted by the Legislature by statute. 

 
(B) For landscape irrigated through dedicated or residential meters or 

connections, water efficiency equivalent to the standards of the Model 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance set forth in Chapter 2.7 
(commencing with Section 490) of Division 2 of Title 23 of the California 
Code of Regulations, as in effect the later of the year of the landscape's 
installation or 1992. An urban retail water supplier using the approach 
specified in this subparagraph shall use satellite imagery, site visits, or 
other best available technology to develop an accurate estimate of 
landscaped areas. 

 
(C) For commercial, industrial, and institutional uses, a 10-percent reduction 

in water use from the baseline commercial, industrial, and institutional 
water use by 2020. 

 
(3) Ninety-five percent of the applicable state hydrologic region target, as set 

forth in the state's draft 20x2020 Water Conservation Plan (dated April 30, 
2009). If the service area of an urban water supplier includes more than one 
hydrologic region, the supplier shall apportion its service area to each region 
based on population or area. 

 
(4) A method that shall be identified and developed by the department, through a 

public process, and reported to the Legislature no later than December 31, 
2010. The method developed by the department shall identify per capita 
targets that cumulatively result in a statewide 20-percent reduction in urban 
daily per capita water use by December 31, 2020. In developing urban daily 
per capita water use targets, the department shall do all of the following: 
 
(A) Consider climatic differences within the state. 
 
(B) Consider population density differences within the state. 
 
(C) Provide flexibility to communities and regions in meeting the targets. 
 
(D) Consider different levels of per capita water use according to plant water 

needs in different regions. 
 
(E) Consider different levels of commercial, industrial, and institutional water 

use in different regions of the state. 
 
(F) Avoid placing an undue hardship on communities that have implemented 

conservation measures or taken actions to keep per capita water use low. 
 

(c) If the department adopts a regulation pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (b) 
that results in a requirement that an urban retail water supplier achieve a 
reduction in daily per capita water use that is greater than 20 percent by 
December 31, 2020, an urban retail water supplier that adopted the method 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 9 
 

described in paragraph (4) of subdivision (b) may limit its urban water use target 
to a reduction of not more than 20 percent by December 31, 2020, by adopting 
the method described in paragraph (1) of subdivision (b). 

 
(d) The department shall update the method described in paragraph (4) of subdivision 

(b) and report to the Legislature by December 31, 2014. An urban retail water 
supplier that adopted the method described in paragraph (4) of subdivision (b) 
may adopt a new urban daily per capita water use target pursuant to this updated 
method. 
 

(e) An urban retail water supplier shall include in its urban water management plan 
due in 2010 pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) the baseline 
daily per capita water use, urban water use target, interim urban water use target, 
and compliance daily per capita water use, along with the bases for determining 
those estimates, including references to supporting data. 
 

(f) When calculating per capita values for the purposes of this chapter, an urban retail 
water supplier shall determine population using federal, state, and local population 
reports and projections. 
 

(g) An urban retail water supplier may update its 2020 urban water use target in its 
2015 urban water management plan required pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing 
with Section 10610). 

 
(h) (1) The department, through a public process and in consultation with the 

California Urban Water Conservation Council, shall develop technical 
methodologies and criteria for the consistent implementation of this part, 
including, but not limited to, both of the following: 

 
(A) Methodologies for calculating base daily per capita water use, baseline 

commercial, industrial, and institutional water use, compliance daily per 
capita water use, gross water use, service area population, indoor 
residential water use, and landscaped area water use. 

 
(B) Criteria for adjustments pursuant to subdivisions (d) and (e) of Section 

10608.24. 
 

(2) The department shall post the methodologies and criteria developed pursuant 
to this subdivision on its Internet Web site, and make written copies available, 
by October 1, 2010. An urban retail water supplier shall use the methods 
developed by the department in compliance with this part. 

 
(i)    (1) The department shall adopt regulations for implementation of the provisions 

relating to process water in accordance with subdivision (l) of Section 
10608.12, subdivision (e) of Section 10608.24, and subdivision (d) of Section 
10608.26. 

 
(2) The initial adoption of a regulation authorized by this subdivision is deemed to 

address an emergency, for purposes of Sections 11346.1 and 11349.6 of the 
Government Code, and the department is hereby exempted for that purpose 
from the requirements of subdivision (b) of Section 11346.1 of the 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 10 
 

Government Code. After the initial adoption of an emergency regulation 
pursuant to this subdivision, the department shall not request approval from 
the Office of Administrative Law to readopt the regulation as an emergency 
regulation pursuant to Section 11346.1 of the Government Code. 

 
(j)    (1) An urban retail water supplier is granted an extension to July 1, 2011, for 

adoption of an urban water management plan pursuant to Part 2.6 
(commencing with Section 10610) due in 2010 to allow the use of technical 
methodologies developed by the department pursuant to paragraph (4) of 
subdivision (b) and subdivision (h). An urban retail water supplier that adopts 
an urban water management plan due in 2010 that does not use the 
methodologies developed by the department pursuant to subdivision (h) shall 
amend the plan by July 1, 2011, to comply with this part. 

 
(2) An urban wholesale water supplier whose urban water management plan 

prepared pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) was due and 
not submitted in 2010 is granted an extension to July 1, 2011, to permit 
coordination between an urban wholesale water supplier and urban retail 
water suppliers. 

 
10608.22.  Notwithstanding the method adopted by an urban retail water supplier pursuant to 

Section 10608.20, an urban retail water supplier's per capita daily water use 
reduction shall be no less than 5 percent of base daily per capita water use as 
defined in paragraph(3) of subdivision (b) of Section 10608.12. This section does not 
apply to an urban retail water supplier with a base daily per capita water use at or 
below 100 gallons per capita per day. 

 
10608.24.(a) Each urban retail water supplier shall meet its interim urban water use target by 

December 31, 2015. 
 

(b) Each urban retail water supplier shall meet its urban water use target by  
December 31, 2020. 

 
(c) An urban retail water supplier's compliance daily per capita water use shall be the 

measure of progress toward achievement of its urban water use target. 
 

(d)  (1) When determining compliance daily per capita water use, an urban retail water 
supplier may consider the following factors: 

 
(A) Differences in evapotranspiration and rainfall in the baseline period 

compared to the compliance reporting period. 
(B) Substantial changes to commercial or industrial water use resulting from 

increased business output and economic development that have occurred 
during the reporting period. 
 

(C) Substantial changes to institutional water use resulting from fire 
suppression services or other extraordinary events, or from new or 
expanded operations, that have occurred during the reporting period. 

 
(2) If the urban retail water supplier elects to adjust its estimate of compliance 

daily per capita water use due to one or more of the factors described in 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 11 
 

paragraph (1), it shall provide the basis for, and data supporting, the 
adjustment in the report required by Section 10608.40. 

 
(e) When developing the urban water use target pursuant to Section 10608.20, an 

urban retail water supplier that has a substantial percentage of industrial water 
use in its service area may exclude process water from the calculation of gross 
water use to avoid a disproportionate burden on another customer sector. 

 
(f)   (1) An urban retail water supplier that includes agricultural water use in an urban 

water management plan pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) 
may include the agricultural water use in determining gross water use. An 
urban retail water supplier that includes agricultural water use in determining 
gross water use and develops its urban water use target pursuant to paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (b) of Section 10608.20 shall use a water efficient standard 
for agricultural irrigation of 100 percent of reference evapotranspiration 
multiplied by the crop coefficient for irrigated acres. 

 
(2) An urban retail water supplier, that is also an agricultural water supplier, is not 

subject to the requirements of Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 
10608.48), if the agricultural water use is incorporated into its urban water 
use target pursuant to paragraph (1). 

 
10608.26.(a) In complying with this part, an urban retail water supplier shall conduct at least one 

public hearing to accomplish all of the following: 
 

(1) Allow community input regarding the urban retail water supplier's 
implementation plan for complying with this part. 

 
(2) Consider the economic impacts of the urban retail water supplier's 

implementation plan for complying with this part. 
 
(3) Adopt a method, pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 10608.20, for 

determining its urban water use target. 
 

(b) In complying with this part, an urban retail water supplier may meet its urban water 
use target through efficiency improvements in any combination among its 
customer sectors. An urban retail water supplier shall avoid placing a 
disproportionate burden on any customer sector. 
 

(c) For an urban retail water supplier that supplies water to a United States 
Department of Defense military installation, the urban retail water supplier's 
implementation plan for complying with this part shall consider the conservation of 
that military installation under federal Executive Order 13514. 

 
(d)  (1) Any ordinance or resolution adopted by an urban retail water supplier after the 

effective date of this section shall not require existing customers as of the 
effective date of this section, to undertake changes in product formulation, 
operations, or equipment that would reduce process water use, but may 
provide technical assistance and financial incentives to those customers to 
implement efficiency measures for process water. This section shall not limit 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 12 
 

an ordinance or resolution adopted pursuant to a declaration of drought 
emergency by an urban retail water supplier. 

 
(2) This part shall not be construed or enforced so as to interfere with the 

requirements of Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 113980) to Chapter 13 
(commencing with Section 114380), inclusive, of Part 7 of Division 104 of the 
Health and Safety Code, or any requirement or standard for the protection of 
public health, public safety, or worker safety established by federal, state, or 
local government or recommended by recognized standard setting 
organizations or trade associations. 

 
10608.28.(a) An urban retail water supplier may meet its urban water use target within its retail 

service area, or through mutual agreement, by any of the following: 
 

(1) Through an urban wholesale water supplier. 
 
(2) Through a regional agency authorized to plan and implement water 

conservation, including, but not limited to, an agency established under the 
Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency Act (Division 31 
(commencing with Section 81300)). 

 
(3) Through a regional water management group as defined in Section 10537. 
 
(4) By an integrated regional water management funding area. 
 
(5) By hydrologic region. 
 
(6) Through other appropriate geographic scales for which computation methods 

have been developed by the department. 
 

(b) A regional water management group, with the written consent of its member 
agencies, may undertake any or all planning, reporting, and implementation 
functions under this chapter for the member agencies that consent to those 
activities. Any data or reports shall provide information both for the regional water 
management group and separately for each consenting urban retail water supplier 
and urban wholesale water supplier. 

 
10608.32. All costs incurred pursuant to this part by a water utility regulated by the  

Public Utilities Commission may be recoverable in rates subject to review and 
approval by the Public Utilities Commission, and may be recorded in a memorandum 
account and reviewed for reasonableness by the Public Utilities Commission. 

 
 
 
10608.36. Urban wholesale water suppliers shall include in the urban water management plans 

required pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) an assessment of 
their present and proposed future measures, programs, and policies to help achieve 
the water use reductions required by this part. 

 
10608.40. Urban water retail suppliers shall report to the department on their progress in 

meeting their urban water use targets as part of their urban water management plans 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 13 
 

submitted pursuant to Section 10631. The data shall be reported using a 
standardized form developed pursuant to Section 10608.52. 

 
10608.42.(a) The department shall review the 2015 urban water management plans and report 

to the Legislature by July 1, 2017, on progress towards achieving a 20-percent 
reduction in urban water use by December 31, 2020. The report shall include 
recommendations on changes to water efficiency standards or urban water use 
targets to achieve the 20-percent reduction and to reflect updated efficiency 
information and technology changes. 

 
(b) A report to be submitted pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be submitted in 

compliance with Section 9795 of the Government Code. 
 
10608.43. The department, in conjunction with the California Urban Water Conservation 

Council, by April 1, 2010, shall convene a representative task force consisting of 
academic experts, urban retail water suppliers, environmental organizations, 
commercial water users, industrial water users, and institutional water users to 
develop alternative best management practices for commercial, industrial, and 
institutional users and an assessment of the potential statewide water use efficiency 
improvement in the commercial, industrial, and institutional sectors that would result 
from implementation of these best management practices. The taskforce, in 
conjunction with the department, shall submit a report to the Legislature by April 1, 
2012, that shall include a review of multiple sectors within commercial, industrial, and 
institutional users and that shall recommend water use efficiency standards for 
commercial, industrial, and institutional users among various sectors of water use. 
The report shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 
(a) Appropriate metrics for evaluating commercial, industrial, and institutional water 

use. 
 
(b) Evaluation of water demands for manufacturing processes, goods, and cooling. 
 
(c) Evaluation of public infrastructure necessary for delivery of recycled water to the 

commercial, industrial, and institutional sectors. 
 
(d) Evaluation of institutional and economic barriers to increased recycled water use 

within the commercial, industrial, and institutional sectors. 
 
(e) Identification of technical feasibility and cost of the best management practices to 

achieve more efficient water use statewide in the commercial, industrial, and 
institutional sectors that is consistent with the public interest and reflects past 
investments in water use efficiency. 

 
10608.44. Each state agency shall reduce water use at facilities it operates to support urban 

retail water suppliers in meeting the target identified in Section 10608.16. 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 14 
 

Chapter 4 Agricultural Water Suppliers 
 
SECTION 10608.48  
 
10608.48.(a) On or before July 31, 2012, an agricultural water supplier shall implement efficient 

water management practices pursuant to subdivisions (b) and (c). 
 

(b) Agricultural water suppliers shall implement all of the following critical efficient 
management practices: 

 
(1) Measure the volume of water delivered to customers with sufficient accuracy 

to comply with subdivision (a) of Section 531.10 and to implement  
paragraph (2). 

 
(2) Adopt a pricing structure for water customers based at least in part on 

quantity delivered. 
 

(c) Agricultural water suppliers shall implement additional efficient management 
practices, including, but not limited to, practices to accomplish all of the following, 
if the measures are locally cost effective and technically feasible: 

 
(1) Facilitate alternative land use for lands with exceptionally high water duties or 

whose irrigation contributes to significant problems, including drainage. 
 

(2) Facilitate use of available recycled water that otherwise would not be used 
beneficially, meets all health and safety criteria, and does not harm crops or 
soils. 

 
(3) Facilitate the financing of capital improvements for on-farm irrigation systems. 

 
(4) Implement an incentive pricing structure that promotes one or more of the 

following goals: 
 

(A) More efficient water use at the farm level. 
 
(B) Conjunctive use of groundwater. 
 
(C) Appropriate increase of groundwater recharge. 
 
(D) Reduction in problem drainage. 
 
(E) Improved management of environmental resources. 
 
(F) Effective management of all water sources throughout the year by 

adjusting seasonal pricing structures based on current conditions. 
 

(5) Expand line or pipe distribution systems, and construct regulatory reservoirs 
to increase distribution system flexibility and capacity, decrease maintenance, 
and reduce seepage. 

 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 15 
 

(6) Increase flexibility in water ordering by, and delivery to, water customers 
within operational limits. 

 
(7) Construct and operate supplier spill and tailwater recovery systems. 

 
(8) Increase planned conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater within 

the supplier service area. 
 

(9) Automate canal control structures. 
 
(10) Facilitate or promote customer pump testing and evaluation. 

 
(11) Designate a water conservation coordinator who will develop and implement 

the water management plan and prepare progress reports. 
 

(12) Provide for the availability of water management services to water users. 
These services may include, but are not limited to, all of the following: 

 
(A) On-farm irrigation and drainage system evaluations. 
 
(B) Normal year and real-time irrigation scheduling and crop 

evapotranspiration information. 
 
(C) Surface water, groundwater, and drainage water quantity and quality 

data. 
 
(D) Agricultural water management educational programs and materials for 

farmers, staff, and the public. 
 

(13) Evaluate the policies of agencies that provide the supplier with water to 
identify the potential for institutional changes to allow more flexible water 
deliveries and storage. 

 
(14) Evaluate and improve the efficiencies of the supplier's pumps. 

 
(d) Agricultural water suppliers shall include in the agricultural water management 

plans required pursuant to Part 2.8 (commencing with Section 10800) a report on 
which efficient water management practices have been implemented and are 
planned to be implemented, an estimate of the water use efficiency improvements 
that have occurred since the last report, and an estimate of the water use 
efficiency improvements estimated to occur five and 10 years in the future. If an 
agricultural water supplier determines that an efficient water management practice 
is not locally cost effective or technically feasible, the supplier shall submit 
information documenting that determination. 

 
(e) The data shall be reported using a standardized form developed pursuant to 

Section 10608.52. 
(f) An agricultural water supplier may meet the requirements of subdivisions (d) and 

(e) by submitting to the department a water conservation plan submitted to the 
United States Bureau of Reclamation that meets the requirements described in 
Section 10828. 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 16 
 

 
(g) On or before December 31, 2013, December 31, 2016, and December 31, 2021, 

the department, in consultation with the board, shall submit to the Legislature a 
report on the agricultural efficient water management practices that have been 
implemented and are planned to be implemented and an assessment of the 
manner in which the implementation of those efficient water management 
practices has affected and will affect agricultural operations, including estimated 
water use efficiency improvements, if any. 

 
(h) The department may update the efficient water management practices required 

pursuant to subdivision (c), in consultation with the Agricultural Water 
Management Council, the United States Bureau of Reclamation, and the board. 
All efficient water management practices for agricultural water use pursuant to this 
chapter shall be adopted or revised by the department only after the department 
conducts public hearings to allow participation of the diverse geographical areas 
and interests of the state. 

 
(i)    (1) The department shall adopt regulations that provide for a range of options that 

agricultural water suppliers may use or implement to comply with the 
measurement requirement in paragraph (1) of subdivision (b). 

 
(2) The initial adoption of a regulation authorized by this subdivision is deemed to 

address an emergency, for purposes of Sections 11346.1 and 11349.6 of the 
Government Code, and the department is hereby exempted for that purpose 
from the requirements of subdivision (b) of Section 11346.1 of the 
Government Code. After the initial adoption of an emergency regulation 
pursuant to this subdivision, the department shall not request approval from 
the Office of Administrative Law to readopt the regulation as an emergency 
regulation pursuant to Section 11346.1 of the Government Code. 

 
 
Chapter 5 Sustainable Water Management 
 
Section 10608.50 
 
10608.50.(a) The department, in consultation with the board, shall promote implementation of 

regional water resources management practices through increased incentives and 
removal of barriers consistent with state and federal law. Potential changes may 
include, but are not limited to, all of the following: 

 
(1) Revisions to the requirements for urban and agricultural water management 

plans. 
 
(2) Revisions to the requirements for integrated regional water management 

plans. 
 
(3) Revisions to the eligibility for state water management grants and loans. 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 17 
 

(4) Revisions to state or local permitting requirements that increase water supply 
opportunities, but do not weaken water quality protection under state and 
federal law. 

 
(5) Increased funding for research, feasibility studies, and project construction. 
 
(6) Expanding technical and educational support for local land use and water 
management agencies. 
 

(b) No later than January 1, 2011, and updated as part of the California Water Plan, 
the department, in consultation with the board, and with public input, shall propose 
new statewide targets, or review and update existing statewide targets, for 
regional water resources management practices, including, but not limited to, 
recycled water, brackish groundwater desalination, and infiltration and direct use 
of urban stormwater runoff. 

 
 
Chapter 6 Standardized Data Collection 
 
SECTION 10608.52  
 
10608.52.(a) The department, in consultation with the board, the California Bay-Delta Authority 

or its successor agency, the State Department of Public Health, and the Public 
Utilities Commission, shall develop a single standardized water use reporting 
form to meet the water use information needs of each agency, including the 
needs of urban water suppliers that elect to determine and report progress 
toward achieving targets on a regional basis as provided in subdivision (a) of 
Section 10608.28. 

 
(b) At a minimum, the form shall be developed to accommodate information sufficient 

to assess an urban water supplier's compliance with conservation targets 
pursuant to Section 10608.24 and an agricultural water supplier's compliance with 
implementation of efficient water management practices pursuant to subdivision 
(a) of Section 10608.48. The form shall accommodate reporting by urban water 
suppliers on an individual or regional basis as provided in subdivision (a) of 
Section 10608.28. 

 

 
Chapter 7 Funding Provisions 
 
Section 10608.56-10608.60 
 
10608.56.(a) On and after July 1, 2016, an urban retail water supplier is not eligible for a water 

grant or loan awarded or administered by the state unless the supplier complies 
with this part. 

 
(b) On and after July 1, 2013, an agricultural water supplier is not eligible for a water 

grant or loan awarded or administered by the state unless the supplier complies 
with this part. 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 18 
 

 
(c) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the department shall determine that an urban 

retail water supplier is eligible for a water grant or loan even though the supplier 
has not met the per capita reductions required pursuant to Section 10608.24, if 
the urban retail water supplier has submitted to the department for approval a 
schedule, financing plan, and budget, to be included in the grant or loan 
agreement, for achieving the per capita reductions. The supplier may request 
grant or loan funds to achieve the per capita reductions to the extent the request 
is consistent with the eligibility requirements applicable to the water funds. 

 
(d) Notwithstanding subdivision (b), the department shall determine that an 

agricultural water supplier is eligible for a water grant or loan even though the 
supplier is not implementing all of the efficient water management practices 
described in Section 10608.48, if the agricultural water supplier has submitted to 
the department for approval a schedule, financing plan, and budget, to be 
included in the grant or loan agreement, for implementation of the efficient water 
management practices. The supplier may request grant or loan funds to 
implement the efficient water management practices to the extent the request is 
consistent with the eligibility requirements applicable to the water funds. 

 
(e) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the department shall determine that an urban 

retail water supplier is eligible for a water grant or loan even though the supplier 
has not met the per capita reductions required pursuant to Section 10608.24, if 
the urban retail water supplier has submitted to the department for approval 
documentation demonstrating that its entire service area qualifies as a 
disadvantaged community. 

 
(f) The department shall not deny eligibility to an urban retail water supplier or 

agricultural water supplier in compliance with the requirements of this part and 
Part 2.8 (commencing with Section 10800), that is participating in a multiagency 
water project, or an integrated regional water management plan, developed 
pursuant to Section 75026 of the Public Resources Code, solely on the basis that 
one or more of the agencies participating in the project or plan is not implementing 
all of the requirements of this part or Part 2.8 (commencing with Section 10800). 

 
10608.60.(a) It is the intent of the Legislature that funds made available by Section 75026 of the 

Public Resources Code should be expended, consistent with Division 43 
(commencing with Section 75001) of the Public Resources Code and upon 
appropriation by the Legislature, for grants to implement this part. In the 
allocation of funding, it is the intent of the Legislature that the department give 
consideration to disadvantaged communities to assist in implementing the 
requirements of this part. 

 
(b) It is the intent of the Legislature that funds made available by Section 75041 of the 

Public Resources Code, should be expended, consistent with Division 43 
(commencing with Section 75001) of the Public Resources Code and upon 
appropriation by the Legislature, for direct expenditures to implement this part. 

 
 
 



Appendix B Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (SB X7‐7) Final  

B ‐ 19 
 

Chapter 8 Quantifying Agricultural Water Use Efficiency 
 
SECTION 10608.64  
 
10608.64. The department, in consultation with the Agricultural Water Management Council, 

academic experts, and other stakeholders, shall develop a methodology for 
quantifying the efficiency of agricultural water use. Alternatives to be assessed shall 
include, but not be limited to, determination of efficiency levels based on crop type or 
irrigation system distribution uniformity. On or before December 31, 2011, the 
department shall report to the Legislature on a proposed methodology and a plan for 
implementation. The plan shall include the estimated implementation costs and the 
types of data needed to support the methodology. Nothing in this section authorizes 
the department to implement a methodology established pursuant to this section. 

 

 



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
Appendix C 

AWMP Act and Related Regulations 



B.5 Legislative History, Current Legislation and Regulations, 
and Related Programs 

A.  Legislative History 
1.  Agricultural Water Management Planning Act of 1986 (AB 1658)  

AB 1658 (1986) required all agricultural water suppliers delivering over 50,000 acre-feet of water 
per year to prepare an Information Report and identify whether the district has a significant 
opportunity to conserve water or reduce the quantity of saline or toxic drainage water through 
improved irrigation water management. The legislation applied to the 80 largest agricultural water 
suppliers in California. The districts that had a significant opportunity to conserve water or reduce 
drainage were required to prepare water management plans. The legislation required that DWR 
provide funding to the water suppliers to prepare informational reports and for the preparation of 
water management plans. This legislation was required to sunset on January 1, 1993. 

2.  AB 3616 Agricultural Efficient Water Management Act of 1990  
This legislation required DWR to establish an advisory committee consisting of state, federal, and 
local agencies; agricultural communities, California university system; environmental and public 
interest groups; and other interested parties to develop a list of efficient water management 
practices for agricultural water suppliers. In addition, then California Governor Pete Wilson 
directed the AB 3616 Advisory Committee to develop a Memorandum of Understanding between 
the agricultural and environmental communities and other interested parties to further address 
efficient use of agricultural water in California. 

3. Water Code §531.1 - AB 1404 (2007) Water Measurement Information 
The AB 1404 requires agricultural water suppliers to submit to DWR an annual report that includes 
measured aggregated farm-gate deliveries data on a monthly or bi-monthly basis. The submittals 
are also to include farm-gate measurement programs or practices to document implementation of 
“Best Professional Practices” (BMPs). If water measurement is not locally cost-effective, then the 
agricultural water supplier may provide supporting documentation to DWR. 

B.  Executive Orders 

On May 20, 2013, with near record-low precipitation in California, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 
issued an Executive Order to streamline approvals for voluntary water transfers to assist 
California's agricultural industry, stating that agriculture is vital to the health of California's 
economy. 

On January 17, 2014, Governor Brown proclaimed a State of Emergency given the historic drought 
conditions in California. In the State of Emergency declaration, Governor Brown directed state 
officials to assist farmers and communities that are economically impacted by dry conditions and 

139 

 



to ensure the state can respond if Californians face drinking water shortages. The Governor also 
directed state agencies to use less water and hire more firefighters and initiated a greatly 
expanded water conservation public awareness campaign. 

On April 1, 2015, Governor Brown announced actions that will save water, increase enforcement 
to prevent wasteful water use, streamline the state's drought response and invest in new 
technologies that will make California more drought resilient following the lowest snowpack ever 
recorded and with no end to the drought in sight. The Executive Order also directed agricultural 
water suppliers to include a detailed drought management plan in their agricultural water 
management plans, and directed agricultural water suppliers that provide10,000 to 25,000 
irrigated acres to develop and submit to DWR such plans. 

C. Current Legislation and Regulations 

1. SB X7-7 Water Conservation (Steinberg, Statute of 2009) 

2. Agricultural Water Measurement 
 (Title 23 California Code of Regulations, §597 et seq., 2011)  

D.  Related Programs  

1. California Water Plan Update 
 http://www.waterplan.water.ca.gov/cwpu2013/index.cfm 

2. California Agricultural Water Management Council Efficient Water 
Management Practices (EWMPs) 

3. Integrated Regional Water Management Plans 
http://www.water.ca.gov/irwm/index.cfm 

4. Bureau of Reclamation Water management/conservation plans (CVPIA).  
For the most current Standard Criteria, see: 
http://www.usbr.gov/mp/watershare/documents/Water_mgmt/index.html 

5. Bureau of Reclamation RRA Plans  
http://www.usbr.gov/rra/ 

6. Bureau of Reclamation 2008 Conservation Efficiency Standards  
 (PL 102-575)  
 http://www.usbr.gov/mp/cvpia/title_34/public_law_complete.html 

 

140 

 

http://www.waterplan.water.ca.gov/cwpu2013/index.cfm
http://www.water.ca.gov/irwm/index.cfm
http://www.usbr.gov/mp/watershare/documents/Water_mgmt/index.html
http://www.usbr.gov/rra/
http://www.usbr.gov/mp/cvpia/title_34/public_law_complete.html


B.6 Text of the Water Code Pertaining to Agricultural Water 
Suppliers 

[Indentations added for clarity] 

Chapter 4.  Agricultural Water Suppliers 
10608.48.  

(a) On or before July 31, 2012, an agricultural water supplier shall implement efficient water 
management practices pursuant to subdivisions (b) and (c). 

(b) Agricultural water suppliers shall implement all of the following critical efficient management 
practices: 

(1) Measure the volume of water delivered to customers with sufficient accuracy to comply 
with subdivision (a) of Section 531.10 and to implement paragraph (2). 

(2) Adopt a pricing structure for water customers based at least in part on quantity 
delivered. 

(c) Agricultural water suppliers shall implement additional efficient management practices, 
including, but not limited to, practices to accomplish all of the following, if the measures are locally 
cost effective and technically feasible: 

(1) Facilitate alternative land use for lands with exceptionally high water duties or whose 
irrigation contributes to significant problems, including drainage. 

(2) Facilitate use of available recycled water that otherwise would not be used beneficially, 
meets all health and safety criteria, and does not harm crops or soils. 

(3) Facilitate the financing of capital improvements for on-farm irrigation systems. 

(4) Implement an incentive pricing structure that promotes one or more of the following 
goals: 

(A) More efficient water use at the farm level. 

(B) Conjunctive use of groundwater. 

(C) Appropriate increase of groundwater recharge. 

(D) Reduction in problem drainage. 

(E) Improved management of environmental resources. 

(F) Effective management of all water sources throughout the year by adjusting 
seasonal pricing structures based on current conditions. 

141 

 



(5) Expand line or pipe distribution systems, and construct regulatory reservoirs to increase 
distribution system flexibility and capacity, decrease maintenance, and reduce seepage. 

(6) Increase flexibility in water ordering by, and delivery to, water customers within 
operational limits. 

(7) Construct and operate supplier spill and tailwater recovery systems. 

(8) Increase planned conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater within the supplier 
service area. 

(9) Automate canal control structures. 

(10) Facilitate or promote customer pump testing and evaluation. 

(11) Designate a water conservation coordinator who will develop and implement the 
water management plan and prepare progress reports. 

(12) Provide for the availability of water management services to water users. These 
services may include, but are not limited to, all of the following: 

(A) On-farm irrigation and drainage system evaluations. 

(B) Normal year and real-time irrigation scheduling and crop evapotranspiration 
information. 

(C) Surface water, groundwater, and drainage water quantity and quality data. 

(D) Agricultural water management educational programs and materials for 
farmers, staff, and the public. 

(13) Evaluate the policies of agencies that provide the supplier with water to identify the 
potential for institutional changes to allow more flexible water deliveries and storage. 

(14) Evaluate and improve the efficiencies of the supplier’s pumps. 

(d) Agricultural water suppliers shall include in the agricultural water management plans required 
pursuant to Part 2.8 (commencing with Section 10800) a report on which efficient water 
management practices have been implemented and are planned to be implemented, an estimate 
of the water use efficiency improvements that have occurred since the last report, and an estimate 
of the water use efficiency improvements estimated to occur five and 10 years in the future. If an 
agricultural water supplier determines that an efficient water management practice is not locally 
cost effective or technically feasible, the supplier shall submit information documenting that 
determination. 

(e) The data shall be reported using a standardized form developed pursuant to Section 10608.52. 

142 

 



(f) An agricultural water supplier may meet the requirements of subdivisions (d) and (e) by 
submitting to the department a water conservation plan submitted to the United States Bureau of 
Reclamation that meets the requirements described in Section 10828. 

(g) On or before December 31, 2013, December 31, 2016, and December 31, 2021, the department, 
in consultation with the board, shall submit to the Legislature a report on the agricultural efficient 
water management practices that have been implemented and are planned to be implemented 
and an assessment of the manner in which the implementation of those efficient water 
management practices has affected and will affect agricultural operations, including estimated 
water use efficiency improvements, if any. 

(h) The department may update the efficient water management practices required pursuant to 
subdivision (c), in consultation with the Agricultural Water Management Council, the United States 
Bureau of Reclamation, and the board. All efficient water management practices for agricultural 
water use pursuant to this chapter shall be adopted or revised by the department only after the 
department conducts public hearings to allow participation of the diverse geographical areas and 
interests of the state. 

(i)  

(1) The department shall adopt regulations that provide for a range of options that 
agricultural water suppliers may use or implement to comply with the measurement 
requirement in paragraph (1) of subdivision (b). 

(2) The initial adoption of a regulation authorized by this subdivision is deemed to address 
an emergency, for purposes of Sections 11346.1 and 11349.6 of the Government Code, and 
the department is hereby exempted for that purpose from the requirements of subdivision 
(b) of Section 11346.1 of the Government Code. After the initial adoption of an emergency 
regulation pursuant to this subdivision, the department shall not request approval from the 
Office of Administrative Law to readopt the regulation as an emergency regulation 
pursuant to Section 11346.1 of the Government Code. 

 

Chapter 5.  Sustainable Water Management 
10608.50.  

(a) The department, in consultation with the board, shall promote implementation of regional 
water resources management practices through increased incentives and removal of barriers 
consistent with state and federal law. Potential changes may include, but are not limited to, all of 
the following: 

(1) Revisions to the requirements for urban and agricultural water management plans. 

(2) Revisions to the requirements for integrated regional water management plans. 

143 

 



(3) Revisions to the eligibility for state water management grants and loans. 

(4) Revisions to state or local permitting requirements that increase water supply 
opportunities, but do not weaken water quality protection under state and federal law. 

(5) Increased funding for research, feasibility studies, and project construction. 

(6) Expanding technical and educational support for local land use and water management 
agencies. 

(b) No later than January 1, 2011, and updated as part of the California Water Plan, the 
department, in consultation with the board, and with public input, shall propose new statewide 
targets, or review and update existing statewide targets, for regional water resources 
management practices, including, but not limited to, recycled water, brackish groundwater 
desalination, and infiltration and direct use of urban stormwater runoff. 

10608.64. The department, in consultation with the Agricultural Water Management Council, academic 
experts, and other stakeholders, shall develop a methodology for quantifying the efficiency of agricultural 
water use. Alternatives to be assessed shall include, but not be limited to, determination of efficiency levels 
based on crop type or irrigation system distribution uniformity. On or before December 31, 2011, the 
department shall report to the Legislature on a proposed methodology and a plan for implementation. The 
plan shall include the estimated implementation costs and the types of data needed to support the 
methodology. Nothing in this section authorizes the department to implement a methodology established 
pursuant to this section. 

 

PART 2.8.  AGRICULTURAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLANNING 
Chapter 1. General Declarations and Policy 

 
10800. This part shall be known and may be cited as the Agricultural Water Management Planning Act. 

10801. The Legislature finds and declares all of the following: 

(a) The waters of the state are a limited and renewable resource. 
(b) The California Constitution requires that water in the state be used in a reasonable and 
beneficial manner. 
(c) Urban water districts are required to adopt water management plans. 
(d) The conservation of agricultural water supplies is of great statewide concern. 
(e) There is a great amount of reuse of delivered water, both inside and outside the water service 
areas. 
(f) Significant noncrop beneficial uses are associated with agricultural water use, including 
streamflows and wildlife habitat. 

144 

 



(g) Significant opportunities exist in some areas, through improved irrigation water management, 
to conserve water or to reduce the quantity of highly saline or toxic drainage water. 
(h) Changes in water management practices should be carefully planned and implemented to 
minimize adverse effects on other beneficial uses currently being served. 
(i) Agricultural water suppliers that receive water from the federal Central Valley Project are 
required by federal law to prepare and implement water conservation plans. 
(j) Agricultural water users applying for a permit to appropriate water from the board are required 
to prepare and implement water conservation plans. 

10802. The Legislature finds and declares that all of the following are the policies of the state: 

(a) The conservation of water shall be pursued actively to protect both the people of the state and 
the state’s water resources. 
(b) The conservation of agricultural water supplies shall be an important criterion in public 
decisions with regard to water. 
(c) Agricultural water suppliers shall be required to prepare water management plans to achieve 
conservation of water. 

 

Chapter 2. Definitions 
10810. Unless the context otherwise requires, the definitions set forth in this chapter govern the 
construction of this part. 

10811. “Agricultural water management plan” or “plan” means an agricultural water management plan 
prepared pursuant to this part. 

10812. “Agricultural water supplier” has the same meaning as defined in Section 10608.12. 

10813. “Customer” means a purchaser of water from a water supplier who uses water for agricultural 
purposes. 

10814. “Person” means any individual, firm, association, organization, partnership, business, trust, 
corporation, company, public agency, or any agency of that entity. 

10815. “Public agency” means any city, county, city and county, special district, or other public entity. 

10816. “Urban water supplier” has the same meaning as set forth in Section 10617. 

10817. “Water conservation” means the efficient management of water resources for beneficial uses, 
preventing waste, or accomplishing additional benefits with the same amount of water. 

 

 

145 

 



Chapter 3. Agricultural Water Management Plans 
Article 1. General Provisions 

10820.  

(a) An agricultural water supplier shall prepare and adopt an agricultural water management plan 
in the manner set forth in this chapter on or before December 31, 2012, and shall update that plan 
on December 31, 2015, and on or before December 31 every five years thereafter. 

(b) Every supplier that becomes an agricultural water supplier after December 31, 2012, shall 
prepare and adopt an agricultural water management plan within one year after the date it has 
become an agricultural water supplier. 

(c) A water supplier that indirectly provides water to customers for agricultural purposes shall not 
prepare a plan pursuant to this part without the consent of each agricultural water supplier that 
directly provides that water to its customers. 

10821.  

(a) An agricultural water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall notify each 
city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies that the agricultural water supplier 
will be preparing the plan or reviewing the plan and considering amendments or changes to the 
plan. The agricultural water supplier may consult with, and obtain comments from, each city or 
county that receives notice pursuant to this subdivision. 

(b) The amendments to, or changes in, the plan shall be adopted and submitted in the manner set 
forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 10840). 

 

Article 2. Contents of Plans 
10825.  

(a) It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting this part to allow levels of water management 
planning commensurate with the numbers of customers served and the volume of water supplied. 

(b) This part does not require the implementation of water conservation programs or practices that 
are not locally cost effective. 

10826. An agricultural water management plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter. The plan 
shall do all of the following: 

(a) Describe the agricultural water supplier and the service area, including all of the following: 

(1) Size of the service area. 
(2) Location of the service area and its water management facilities. 

146 

 



(3) Terrain and soils. 
(4) Climate. 
(5) Operating rules and regulations. 
(6) Water delivery measurements or calculations. 
(7) Water rate schedules and billing. 
(8) Water shortage allocation policies. 

(b) Describe the quantity and quality of water resources of the agricultural water supplier, 
including all of the following: 

(1) Surface water supply. 
(2) Groundwater supply. 
(3) Other water supplies. 
(4) Source water quality monitoring practices. 
(5) Water uses within the agricultural water supplier’s service area, including all of the 
following: 

(A) Agricultural. 
(B) Environmental. 
(C) Recreational. 
(D) Municipal and industrial. 
(E) Groundwater recharge. 
(F) Transfers and exchanges. 
(G) Other water uses. 

(6) Drainage from the water supplier’s service area. 
(7) Water accounting, including all of the following: 

(A) Quantifying the water supplier’s water supplies. 
(B) Tabulating water uses. 
(C) Overall water budget. 

(8) Water supply reliability. 

(c) Include an analysis, based on available information, of the effect of climate change on future 
water supplies. 

(d) Describe previous water management activities. 

(e) Include in the plan the water use efficiency information required pursuant to Section 10608.48. 

10827. Agricultural water suppliers that are members of the Agricultural Water Management Council, and 
that submit water management plans to that council in accordance with the “Memorandum of 
Understanding Regarding Efficient Water Management Practices By Agricultural Water Suppliers In 
California,” dated January 1, 1999, may submit the water management plans identifying water demand 

147 

 



management measures currently being implemented, or scheduled for implementation, to satisfy the 
requirements of Section 10826. 

10828.  

(a) Agricultural water suppliers that are required to submit water conservation plans to the United 
States Bureau of Reclamation pursuant to either the Central Valley Project Improvement Act (Public 
Law 102-575) or the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982, or both, may submit those water 
conservation plans to satisfy the requirements of Section 10826, if both of the following apply: 

(1) The agricultural water supplier has adopted and submitted the water conservation plan 
to the United States Bureau of Reclamation within the previous four years. 

(2) The United States Bureau of Reclamation has accepted the water conservation plan as 
adequate. 

(b) This part does not require agricultural water suppliers that are required to submit water 
conservation plans to the United States Bureau of Reclamation pursuant to either the Central 
Valley Project Improvement Act (Public Law 102-575) or the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982, or 
both, to prepare and adopt water conservation plans according to a schedule that is different from 
that required by the United States Bureau of Reclamation. 

10829. An agricultural water supplier may satisfy the requirements of this part by adopting an urban water 
management plan pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) or by participation in areawide, 
regional, watershed, or basinwide water management planning if those plans meet or exceed the 
requirements of this part. 

Article 3. Adoption and Implementation of Plans 
10840. Every agricultural water supplier shall prepare its plan pursuant to Article 2 (commencing with 
Section 10825). 

10841. Prior to adopting a plan, the agricultural water supplier shall make the proposed plan available for 
public inspection, and shall hold a public hearing on the plan. Prior to the hearing, notice of the time and 
place of hearing shall be published within the jurisdiction of the publicly owned agricultural water supplier 
pursuant to Section 6066 of the Government Code. A privately owned agricultural water supplier shall 
provide an equivalent notice within its service area and shall provide a reasonably equivalent opportunity 
that would otherwise be afforded through a public hearing process for interested parties to provide input 
on the plan. After the hearing, the plan shall be adopted as prepared or as modified during or after the 
hearing. 

10842. An agricultural water supplier shall implement the plan adopted pursuant to this chapter in 
accordance with the schedule set forth in its plan, as determined by the governing body of the agricultural 
water supplier.  

10843.  

148 

 



(a) An agricultural water supplier shall submit to the entities identified in subdivision (b) a copy of 
its plan no later than 30 days after the adoption of the plan. Copies of amendments or changes to 
the plans shall be submitted to the entities identified in subdivision (b) within 30 days after the 
adoption of the amendments or changes. 

(b) An agricultural water supplier shall submit a copy of its plan and amendments or changes to the 
plan to each of the following entities: 

(1) The department. 
(2) Any city, county, or city and county within which the agricultural water supplier 
provides water supplies. 
(3) Any groundwater management entity within which jurisdiction the agricultural water 
supplier extracts or provides water supplies. 
(4) Any urban water supplier within which jurisdiction the agricultural water supplier 
provides water supplies. 
(5) Any city or county library within which jurisdiction the agricultural water supplier 
provides water supplies. 
(6) The California State Library. 
(7) Any local agency formation commission serving a county within which the agricultural 
water supplier provides water supplies. 

10844.  

(a) Not later than 30 days after the date of adopting its plan, the agricultural water supplier shall 
make the plan available for public review on the agricultural water supplier’s Internet Web site. 

(b) An agricultural water supplier that does not have an Internet Web site shall submit to the 
department, not later than 30 days after the date of adopting its plan, a copy of the adopted plan 
in an electronic format. The department shall make the plan available for public review on the 
department’s Internet Web site. 

10845.  

(a) The department shall prepare and submit to the Legislature, on or before December 31, 2013, 
and thereafter in the years ending in six and years ending in one, a report summarizing the status 
of the plans adopted pursuant to this part.  

(b) The report prepared by the department shall identify the outstanding elements of any plan 
adopted pursuant to this part. The report shall include an evaluation of the effectiveness of this 
part in promoting efficient agricultural water management practices and recommendations 
relating to proposed changes to this part, as appropriate. 

(c) The department shall provide a copy of the report to each agricultural water supplier that has 
submitted its plan to the department. The department shall also prepare reports and provide data 

149 

 



for any legislative hearing designed to consider the effectiveness of plans submitted pursuant to 
this part. 

(d) This section does not authorize the department, in preparing the report, to approve, 
disapprove, or critique individual plans submitted pursuant to this part. 

 

Chapter 4. Miscellaneous Provisions 
10850.  

(a) Any action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul the acts or decisions of an 
agricultural water supplier on the grounds of noncompliance with this part shall be commenced as 
follows: 

(1) An action or proceeding alleging failure to adopt a plan shall be commenced within 18 
months after that adoption is required by this part. 

(2) Any action or proceeding alleging that a plan, or action taken pursuant to the plan, 
does not comply with this part shall be commenced within 120 days after submitting the 
plan or amendments to the plan to entities in accordance with Section 10844 or the taking 
of that action. 

(b) In an action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul a plan, or an action taken 
pursuant to the plan by an agricultural water supplier, on the grounds of noncompliance with this 
part, the inquiry shall extend only to whether there was a prejudicial abuse of discretion. Abuse of 
discretion is established if the agricultural water supplier has not proceeded in a manner required 
by law, or if the action by the agricultural water supplier is not supported by substantial evidence. 

10851. The California Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) of the 
Public Resources Code) does not apply to the preparation and adoption of plans pursuant to this part. This 
part does not exempt projects for implementation of the plan or for expanded or additional water supplies 
from the California Environmental Quality Act. 

10852. An agricultural water supplier is not eligible for a water grant or loan awarded or administered by 
the state unless the supplier complies with this part. 

10853. No agricultural water supplier that provides water to less than 25,000 irrigated acres, excluding 
recycled water, shall be required to implement the requirements of this part or Part 2.55 (commencing with 
Section 10608) unless sufficient funding has specifically been provided to that water supplier for these 
purposes. 

SEC. 5. This act shall take effect only if Senate Bill 1 and Senate Bill 6 of the 2009–10 Seventh Extraordinary 
Session of the Legislature are enacted and become effective. 

150 

 



B.7 California Code of Regulations, Title 23, §597 et seq. Agricultural Water Measurement  

http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/sb7/committees/ag/a2/ 
 
§597.  Agricultural Water Measurement 
Under the authority included under California Water Code §10608.48(i)(1), the 
Department of Water Resources (Department) is required to adopt regulations that 
provide for a range of options that agricultural water suppliers may use or implement to 
comply with the measurement requirements in paragraph (1) of subdivision (b) of 
§10608.48. 

 

For reference, §10608.48(b) of the California Water Code states that: 
 

Agricultural water suppliers shall implement all of the following 
critical efficient management practices: 

 

(1) Measure the volume of water delivered to customers with 
sufficient accuracy to comply with subdivision (a) of Section 
531.10 and to implement paragraph (2). 

 
(2) Adopt a pricing structure for water customers based at least in 
part on quantity delivered. 

 

For further reference, §531.10(a) of the California Water Code requires that: 
 

(a) An agricultural water supplier shall submit an annual report to 
the department that summarizes aggregated farm-gate delivery 
data, on a monthly or bi-monthly basis, using best professional 
practices. 

Notes: 
(1) Paragraphs (1) and (2) of §10608.48(b) specify agricultural water suppliers' 
reporting of aggregated farm-gate water delivery and adopting a volumetric water 
pricing structure as the purposes of water measurement. However, this article only 
addresses developing a range of options for water measurement. 

 

(2) Agricultural water suppliers reporting agricultural water deliveries measured 
under this article shall use the “Agricultural Aggregated Farm – Gate Delivery 
Reporting Format for Article 2” (Rev. 6-20-12), developed for this article and 
hereby incorporated by reference. 

151 

 

http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/sb7/committees/ag/a2/


 
(3) The Department shall report on the availability of new commercially 
available water measurement technologies and impediments to 
implementation of this article when reporting to the Legislature the status of 
adopted Agricultural Water Management Plans in plan submittal years 
2012, 2015 and every five years thereafter as required by California Water 
Code §10845. The Department shall also report the findings to the California 
Water Commission. 

 

Note:  Authority cited: Section 10608.48, Water Code.  Reference: Sections 531.10, 10608.48 
(b), 10608.48 (i), 10608.52 (b) and 10845 Water Code. 

 
§597.1.  Applicability 

 
(a) An agricultural water supplier providing water to 25,000 irrigated acres or 
more, excluding acres that receive only recycled water, is subject to this article. 

 
(b) A wholesale agricultural water supplier providing water to another agricultural 
water supplier (the receiving water supplier) for ultimate resale to customers is subject 
to this article at the location at which control of the water is transferred to the receiving 
water supplier. However, the wholesale agricultural water supplier is not required to 
measure the receiving agricultural water supplier's deliveries to its customers. 

 
(c) A water supplier providing water to wildlife refuges or habitat lands where (1) the 
refuges or habitat lands are under a contractual relationship with the water supplier, and 
(2) the water supplier meets the irrigated acreage criteria of Water Code §10608.12(a), is 
subject to this article. 

 
(d) An agricultural water supplier providing water to less than 10,000 irrigated 
acres, excluding acres that receive only recycled water, is not subject to this 
article. 

 
(e) An agricultural water supplier providing water to 10,000 or more irrigated acres but 
less than 25,000 irrigated acres, excluding acres that receive only recycled water, is not 
subject to this article unless sufficient funding is provided specifically for that purpose, as 
stated under Water Code §10853. 

 
(f) A canal authority or other entity that conveys or delivers water through facilities 
owned by a federal agency is not subject to this article. 

 
(g) Pursuant to Water Code §10608.8(d), an agricultural water supplier “that is a party to 
the Quantification Settlement Agreement, as defined in subdivision (a) of Section 1 of 
Chapter 617 of the Statutes of 2002, during the period within which the Quantification 
Settlement Agreement remains in effect,” is not subject to this article. 

 
(h) Pursuant to Water Code §10608.12(a), the Department is not subject to this article. 

152 

 



 

 
 
Note:  Authority cited: Section 10608.48, Water Code.  Reference: Sections 10608.12 (a), 
10608.48 (d), 10608.48 (f), 10828, and 10853 Water Code. 

 

§597.2.  Definitions 
 

(a) For purposes of this article, the terms used are defined in this section. 
 

(1) “Accuracy” means the measured volume relative to the actual volume, expressed as a 
percent. The percent shall be calculated as 100 x (measured value – actual value) / actual 
value, where “measured value” is the value indicated by the device or determined through 
calculations using a measured value by the device, such as flow rate, combined with a 
duration of flow, and “actual value” is the value as determined through laboratory, design 
or field testing protocols using best professional practices. 
 

(2)  “Agricultural water supplier,” as defined in Water Code §10608.12(a), means a 
water supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing water to 10,000 or more 
irrigated acres, excluding acres that receive only recycled water. “Agricultural water 
supplier” includes a supplier or contractor for water, regardless of the basis of right, which 
distributes or sells water for ultimate resale to customers. “Agricultural water supplier” 
does not include the Department. 
 

(3) "Approved by an engineer" means a California-registered Professional Engineer has 
reviewed, signed and stamped the plans, design, testing, inspection, and/or 
documentation report for a measurement device as described in this article. 
 

(4) “Best professional practices” means practices attaining to and maintaining accuracy 
of measurement and reporting devices and methods described in this article, such as 
operation and maintenance procedures and practices recommended by measurement 
device manufacturers, designers, and industry professionals. 
 

(5) “Customer” means the purchaser of water from an agricultural water supplier who 
has a contractual arrangement with the agricultural water supplier for the service of 
conveying water to the customer delivery point. 
 

(6) “Delivery point” means the location at which the agricultural water supplier transfers 
control of delivered water to a customer or group of customers. In most instances, 
the transfer of control occurs at the farm-gate, which is therefore, a delivery point. 
 
(7) “Existing measurement device,” means a measurement device that was installed in 
the field prior to the effective date of this article. 
 

(8) “Farm-gate,” as defined in Water Code §531(f), means the point at which water is 
delivered from the agricultural water supplier’s distribution system to each of its 
customers. 

 

153 

 



 
(9)    “Irrigated acres,” for purposes of applicability of this article, is calculated as the 
average of the previous five-year acreage within the agricultural water supplier’s service 
area that has received irrigation water from the agricultural water supplier. 
 

(10)  “Manufactured device” means a device that is manufactured by a commercial 
enterprise, often under exclusive legal rights of the manufacturer, for direct off- 
the-shelf purchase and installation. Such devices are capable of directly measuring flow 
rate, velocity, or accumulating the volume of water delivered, without the need for 
additional components that are built on-site or in-house. 
 

(11)  “Measurement device” means a device by which an agricultural water supplier 
determines the numeric value of flow rate, velocity or volume of the water passing a 
designated delivery point. A measurement device may be a manufactured 
device, on-site built device or in-house built device. 
 
(12)  "New or replacement measurement device" means a measurement device installed 
after the effective date of this article. 
 

(13)  “Recycled water” is defined in subdivision (n) of §13050 of the Water Code as 
water that, as a result of treatment of waste, is suitable for a direct beneficial use or a 
controlled use that would not otherwise occur, and is therefore considered a valuable 
resource. 
 

(14)  “Type of device” means a measurement device that is manufactured or built to 
perform similar functions. For example, rectangular, v-notch, and broad crested weirs are 
one type of device. Similarly, all submerged orifice gates are considered one type of 
device. 

 

Note:  Authority cited: Section 10608.48, Water Code.  Reference: Sections 10608.12 (a), 
10608.12 (m), 10608.48, and 10813 Water Code. 

 
§597.3  Range of Options for Agricultural Water Measurement 

 
An agricultural water supplier subject to this article shall measure surface water and groundwater 
that it delivers to its customers pursuant to the accuracy standards in this section. The supplier 
may choose any applicable single measurement option or combination of options listed in 
paragraphs (a) or (b) of this section. Measurement device accuracy and operation shall be 
certified, tested, inspected and/or analyzed as described in §597.4 of this article. 

 
(a) Measurement Options at the Delivery Point or Farm-gate of a Single Customer 

 
An agricultural water supplier shall measure water delivered at the delivery point 
or farm-gate of a single customer using one of the following measurement options. 
The stated numerical accuracy for each measurement option is for the volume 
delivered. If a device measures a value other than volume, for example, flow rate, 

154 

 



 

velocity or water elevation, the accuracy certification must incorporate the 
measurements or calculations required to convert the measured value to volume as 
described in §597.4(e). 

 

(1) An existing measurement device shall be certified to be accurate to within 
±12% by volume. 

 
and, 

 
(2) A new or replacement measurement device shall be certified to be accurate to 
within: 

 

(A) ±5% by volume in the laboratory if using a laboratory certification; (B) 

±10% by volume in the field if using a non-laboratory certification. 

(b) Measurement Options at a Location Upstream of the Delivery Points or Farm-gates 
of Multiple Customers 

 

(1) An agricultural water supplier may measure water delivered at a location upstream of 
the delivery points or farm-gates of multiple customers using one of the measurement 
options described in §597.3(a) if the downstream individual customer’s delivery points 
meet either of the following conditions: 

 

(A) The agricultural water supplier does not have legal access to the delivery 
points of individual customers or group of customers needed to install, 
measure, maintain, operate, and monitor a measurement device. 

 

Or, 
 

(B) An engineer determines that, due to small differentials in water level or large 
fluctuations in flow rate or velocity that occur during the delivery season at a 
single farm-gate, accuracy standards of measurement options in §597.3(a) cannot 
be met by installing a measurement device or devices (manufactured or on-site 
built or in-house built devices with or without additional components such as 
gauging rod, water level control structure at the farm- gate, etc.). If conditions 
change such that the accuracy standards of measurement options in §597.3(a) at 
the farm-gate can be met, an 
agricultural water supplier shall include in its Agricultural Water Management 
Plan, a schedule, budget and finance plan to demonstrate progress to measure 
water at the farm-gate in compliance with §597.3(a) of this article. 

 

(2) An agricultural water supplier choosing an option under paragraph (b)(1) of this 
section shall provide the following current documentation in its Agricultural Water 
Management Plan(s) submitted pursuant to Water Code §10826: 

 
 

155 

 



(A) When applicable, to demonstrate lack of legal access at delivery points of 
individual customers or group of customers downstream of the point of 
measurement, the agricultural water supplier’s legal counsel shall certify to the 
Department that it does not have legal access to measure water at customers 
delivery points and that it has sought and been denied access from its 
customers to measure water at those points. 

 
(B) When applicable, the agricultural water supplier shall document the water 
measurement device unavailability and that the water level or flow conditions 
described in §597.3(b)(1)(B) exist at individual customer’s delivery points 
downstream of the point of measurement as approved by an engineer. 

 

(C) The agricultural water supplier shall document all of the following 
criteria about the methodology it uses to apportion the volume of water 
delivered to the individual downstream customers: 

 

(i)  How it accounts for differences in water use among the individual 
customers based on but not limited to the duration of water delivery to the 
individual customers, annual customer water use patterns, irrigated 
acreage, crops planted, and on-farm irrigation system, 

 

and; 
 

(ii) That it is sufficient for establishing a pricing structure based at least in 
part on the volume delivered, 

 

and; 
 

(iii) That it was approved by the agricultural water supplier’s governing 
board or body. 

 

Note:  Authority cited: Section 10608.48, Water Code.  Reference: Sections 531.10, 10608.48 (i) 
(1), and 10826 Water Code. 

 

§597.4  Accuracy Certification, Records Retention, Device Performance, and Reporting 
 

(a) Initial Certification of Device Accuracy 
The accuracy of an existing, new or replacement measurement device or type of 
device, as required in §597.3, shall be initially certified and documented as follows: 

 

(1) For existing measurement devices, the device accuracy required in section 597.3(a) 
shall be initially certified and documented by either: 

 
(A) Field-testing that is completed on a random and statistically 
representative sample of the existing measurement devices as described in 
§597.4(b)(1) and§597.4(b)(2). Field-testing shall be performed by individuals 
trained in the use of field-testing equipment, and documented in a report 
approved by an engineer. 

156 

 



Or, 
 

(B) Field-inspections and analysis completed for every existing measurement 
device as described in §597.4(b)(3). Field-inspections and analysis shall be 
performed by trained individuals in the use of field inspection and analysis, and 
documented in a report approved by an engineer. 

 

(2) For new or replacement measurement devices, the device accuracy required 
in sections 597.3 (a)(2) shall be initially certified and documented by either: 

 

(A) Laboratory Certification prior to installation of a measurement device as 
documented by the manufacturer or an entity, institution or individual that tested 
the device following industry-established protocols such as the National Institute 
for Standards and Testing (NIST) traceability standards. Documentation shall 
include the manufacturer’s literature or the results of laboratory testing of an 
individual device or type of device. 
Or, 
(B) Non-Laboratory Certification after the installation of a measurement device in 
the field, as documented by either: 
 

(i)  An affidavit approved by an engineer submitted to the agricultural water 
supplier of either (1) the design and installation of an individual device at a 
specified location, or (2) the standardized design and installation for a group of 
measurement devices for each type of device installed at specified locations. 
Or, 
 
(ii) A report submitted to the agricultural water supplier and approved by an 
engineer documenting the field-testing performed on the installed measurement 
device or type of device, by individuals trained in the use of field testing 
equipment. 

 

(b) Protocols for Field-Testing and Field-Inspection and Analysis of Existing Devices 
 

(1) Field-testing shall be performed for a sample of existing measurement devices 
according to manufacturer’s recommendations or design specifications and following best 
professional practices. It is recommended that the sample size be no less than 
10% of existing devices, with a minimum of 5, and not to exceed 100 individual devices 
for any particular device type. Alternatively, the supplier may develop its own sampling 
plan using an accepted statistical methodology. 
 

(2) If during the field-testing of existing measurement devices, more than one quarter 
of the samples for any particular device type do not meet the criteria pursuant to 
§597.3(a), the agricultural water supplier shall provide in its Agricultural Water 

 
 

157 

 



Management Plan, a plan to test an additional 10% of its existing devices, with a 
minimum of 5, but not to exceed an additional 100 individual devices for the particular 
device type. This second round of field-testing and corrective actions shall be 
completed within three years of the initial field-testing. 

 
(3) Field-inspections and analysis protocols shall be performed and the results shall 
be approved by an engineer for every existing measurement device to demonstrate 
that the design and installation standards used for the installation of existing 
measurement devices meet the accuracy standards of §597.3(a) and operation and 
maintenance protocols meet best professional practices. 

 

(c) Records Retention 
 

Records documenting compliance with the requirements in §597.3 and §597.4 shall be 
maintained by the agricultural water supplier for ten years or two Agricultural Water 
Management Plan cycles. 

 

(d) Performance Requirements 
 

(1) All measurement devices shall be correctly installed, maintained, operated, 
inspected, and monitored as described by the manufacturer, the laboratory or the 
registered Professional Engineer that has signed and stamped certification of the 
device, and pursuant to best professional practices. 

 

(2) If an installed measurement device no longer meets the accuracy requirements of 
§597.3(a) based on either field-testing or field-inspections and analysis as defined in 
sections 597.4 (a) and (b) for either the initial accuracy certification or during 
operations and maintenance, then the agricultural water supplier shall take appropriate 
corrective action, including but not limited to, repair or replacement to achieve the 
requirements of this article. 

 

(e) Reporting in Agricultural Water Management Plans 
 

Agricultural water suppliers shall report the following information in their Agricultural 
Water Management Plan(s): 

 
(1) Documentation as required to demonstrate compliance with §597.3 (b), as outlined in 
section §597.3(b)(2), and §597.4(b)(2). 
 

(2) A description of best professional practices about, but not limited to, the (1) 
collection of water measurement data, (2) frequency of measurements, (3) method for 
determining irrigated acres, and (4) quality control and quality assurance procedures. 
 

(3) If a water measurement device measures flow rate, velocity or water elevation, and 
does not report the total volume of water delivered, the agricultural water supplier must 
document in its Agricultural Water Management Plan how it converted the 
 

158 

 



measured value to volume. The protocols must follow best professional practices 
and include the following methods for determining volumetric deliveries: 

 
(A) For devices that measure flow-rate, documentation shall describe 
protocols used to measure the duration of water delivery where volume is 
derived by the following formula: Volume = flow rate x duration of delivery. 

 

(B) For devices that measure velocity only, the documentation shall describe 
protocols associated with the measurement of the cross-sectional area of 
flow and duration of water delivery, where volume is derived by the 
following formula: Volume = velocity x cross-section flow area x duration 
of delivery. 

 

(C) For devices that measure water elevation at the device (e.g. flow over a 
weir or differential elevation on either side of a device), the documentation 
shall describe protocols associated with the measurement of elevation that 
was used to derive flow rate at the device. The documentation will also 
describe the method or formula used to derive volume from the measured 
elevation value(s). 

 

(4) If an existing water measurement device is determined to be out of compliance 
with §597.3, and the agricultural water supplier is unable to bring it into compliance 
before submitting its Agricultural Water Management Plan in December 2012, the 
agricultural water supplier shall provide in its 2012 plan, a schedule, budget and 
finance plan for taking corrective action in three years or less. 

 

Note:  Authority cited: Section 10608.48, Water Code.  Reference: Sections 531.10, 10608.48 (i) 
(1), and 10826 Water Code. 
  

159 

 



B.7 Text of the Governor’s Executive Orders Pertaining to 
Agricultural Water Suppliers 

May 20, 2013 
Executive Order B-21-13 

 
… 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Governor of the State of California, do hereby issue this 
Order to become effective immediately. 
 
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Department of Water Resources (DWR) and the State Water Resources 
Control Board (SWRCB) take immediate action to address the dry conditions and water delivery limitations, by 
doing the following: 
 
1. Expedite processing of one-year water transfers for 2013 and assist water transfer proponents and suppliers 
as necessary, provided that the transfers will not harm other legal users of water and will not unreasonably 
affect fish, wildlife, or other in-stream beneficial uses. 
2. The SWRCB shall expedite review and processing of water transfer petitions in accordance with applicable 
provisions of the Water Code. 
3. The DWR shall expedite and facilitate water transfer proposals in accordance with applicable provisions of 
the Water Code. 
4. The DWR shall coordinate State Water Project operations, in cooperation with Central Valley Project 
operations, to alleviate critical impacts to San Joaquin Valley agriculture. 
5. The DWR shall continue to analyze trends in groundwater levels in the San Joaquin Valley, together with 
impacts of groundwater extraction on land subsidence. 
6. The DWR and the SWRCB shall make all efforts to coordinate with relevant federal agencies, water districts, 
and water agencies to expedite the review and approval of water transfers in California. 
 
This order is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or benefits, substantive or procedural, enforceable 
at law or in equity, against the State of California, its agencies, departments, entities, officers, employees, or 
any other person. 
 
I FURTHER DIRECT that as soon as hereafter possible, this Executive Order be filed in the Office of the 
Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and notice be given to this Executive Order.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Great Seal of the State of California to 
be affixed this 20th day of May 2013. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
EDMUND G. BROWN JR. 
Governor of California 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
DEBRA BOWEN 
Secretary of State   

161 

 



January 17, 2014 
A PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY 

 
… 
 
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:  
 
1.State agencies, led by the Department of Water Resources, will execute a statewide water conservation 
campaign to make all Californians aware of the drought and encourage personal actions to reduce water 
usage. This campaign will be built on the existing Save Our Water campaign (www.saveourh20.org) and will 
coordinate with local water agencies. This campaign will call on Californians to reduce their water usage by 20 
percent.  
… 
 
4.The Department of Water Resources and the State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board) will 
expedite the processing of water transfers, as called for in Executive Order B-21-13. Voluntary water transfers 
from one water right holder to another enables water to flow where it is needed most. 
 
5.The Water Board will immediately consider petitions requesting consolidation of the places of use of the State 
Water Project and Federal Central Valley Project, which would streamline water transfers and exchanges 
between water users within the areas of these two major water projects.  
 
6.The Department of Water Resources and the Water Board will accelerate funding for water supply 
enhancement projects that can break ground this year and will explore if any existing unspent funds can be 
repurposed to enable near-term water conservation projects. 
 
7.The Water Board will put water right holders throughout the state on notice that they may be directed to 
cease or reduce water diversions based on water shortages. 
 
8.The Water Board will consider modifying requirements for reservoir releases or diversion limitations, where 
existing requirements were established to implement a water quality control plan. These changes would enable 
water to be conserved upstream later in the year to protect cold water pools for salmon and steelhead, maintain 
water supply, and improve water quality. 
 
9.The Department of Water Resources and the Water Board will take actions necessary to make water 
immediately available, and, for purposes of carrying out directives 5 and 8, Water Code section 13247 and 
Division 13 (commencing with section 21000) of the Public Resources Code and regulations adopted pursuant 
to that Division are suspended on the basis that strict compliance with them will prevent, hinder, or delay the 
mitigation of the effects of the emergency. Department of Water Resources and the Water Board shall maintain 
on their websites a list of the activities or approvals for which these provisions are suspended. 
 
… 
11.The Department of Water Resources will evaluate changing groundwater levels, land subsidence, and 
agricultural land fallowing as the drought persists and will provide a public update by April 30 that identifies 
groundwater basins with water shortages and details gaps in groundwater monitoring. 
 
12.The Department of Water Resources will work with counties to help ensure that well drillers submit required 
groundwater well logs for newly constructed and deepened wells in a timely manner and the Office of 
Emergency Services will work with local authorities to enable early notice of areas experiencing problems with 
residential groundwater sources. 
 
13.The California Department of Food and Agriculture will launch a one-stop website 
(www.cdfa.ca.gov/drought) that provides timely updates on the drought and connects farmers to state and 
federal programs that they can access during the drought.  
… 
 
 
I FURTHER DIRECT that as soon as hereafter possible, this Proclamation be filed in the Office of the 
Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and notice be given of this Proclamation. 

162 

 

http://www.saveourh20.org/


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Great Seal of the State of California to 
be affixed this 17th day of January, 2014. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
EDMUND G. BROWN JR.,  
Governor of California 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
DEBRA BOWEN, 
Secretary of State   

163 

 



April 25, 2014 
A PROCLAMATION OF A CONTINUED STATE OF EMERGENCY 

… 
 
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 
 
1. The orders and provisions contained in Proclamation No. 1-17-2014, dated January 17, 2014, remain in full 
force and effect except as modified herein. 
 
2. The Department of Water Resources and the State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board) will 
immediately and expeditiously process requests to move water to areas of need, including requests involving 
voluntary water transfers, forbearance agreements, water exchanges, or other means. If necessary, the 
Department will request that the Water Board consider changes to water right permits to enable such voluntary 
movements of water. 
 
… 
 
5. All state agencies that distribute funding for projects that impact water resources, including groundwater 
resources, will require recipients of future financial assistance to have appropriate conservation and efficiency 
programs in place. 
 
… 
 
9. The Department of Water Resources will expedite the consideration and, where appropriate, the 
implementation, of pump-back delivery of water through the State Water Project on behalf of water districts.  
 
… 
 
11. The Department of Water Resources will conduct intensive outreach and provide technical assistance to 
local agencies in order to increase groundwater monitoring in areas where the drought has significant impacts, 
and develop updated contour maps where new data becomes available in order to more accurately capture 
changing groundwater levels. The Department will provide a public update by November 30 that identifies 
groundwater basins with water shortages, details remaining gaps in groundwater monitoring, and updates its 
monitoring of land subsidence and agricultural land fallowing. 
 
… 
 
13. The Department of Water Resources and the Water Board, in coordination with other state agencies, will 
provide appropriate assistance to public agencies or private water companies in establishing temporary water 
supply connections to mitigate effects of the drought. 
 
… 
 
15. Pursuant to the drought legislation I signed into law on March 1, 2014, by July 1, 2014, the California 
Department of Food and Agriculture, in consultation with the Department of Water Resources and Water 
Board, will establish and implement a program to provide financial incentives to agricultural operations to invest 
in water irrigation treatment and distribution systems that reduce water and energy use, augment supply, and 
increase water and energy efficiency in agricultural applications.  
 
… 
 
19. For several actions called for in this proclamation, environmental review required by the California 
Environmental Quality Act is suspended to allow these actions to take place as quickly as possible. Specifically, 
for actions taken by state agencies pursuant to directives 2, 3, 6¬-10, 13, 15, and 17, for all actions taken 
pursuant to directive 12 when the Office of Planning and Research concurs that local action is required, and for 
all necessary permits needed to implement these respective actions, Division 13 (commencing with section 
21000) of the Public Resources Code and regulations adopted pursuant to that Division are hereby suspended. 
The entities implementing these directives will maintain on their websites a list of the activities or approvals for 
which these provisions are suspended. This suspension and that provided in paragraph 9 of the January 17, 

165 

 



2014 Proclamation will expire on December 31, 2014, except that actions started prior to that date shall not be 
subject to Division 13 for the time required to complete them. 
 
20. For several actions called for in this proclamation, certain regulatory requirements of the Water Code are 
suspended to allow these actions to take place as quickly as possible. Specifically, for actions taken pursuant 
to directive 2, section 13247 of the Water Code is suspended. The 30-day comment period provided in section 
1726(f) of the Water Code is also suspended for actions taken pursuant to directive 2, but the Water Board will 
provide for a 15-day comment period. For actions taken by state agencies pursuant to directives 6 and 7, 
Chapter 3 of Part 3 (commencing with section 85225) of the Water Code is suspended. The entities 
implementing these directives will maintain on their websites a list of the activities or approvals for which these 
provisions are suspended. 
 
I FURTHER DIRECT that as soon as hereafter possible, this Proclamation shall be filed in the Office of the 
Secretary of State and that widespread publicity and notice be given to this Proclamation.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Great Seal of the State of California to 
be affixed this 25th day of April, 2014 
 
 
__________ 
EDMUND G. BROWN JR. 
Governor of California 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
DEBRA BOWEN 
Secretary of State   

166 

 



April 1, 2015 
Executive Order B-29-15 

… 
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 
1.   The orders and provisions contained in my January 17, 2014 Proclamation, my April 25, 2014 
Proclamation, and Executive Orders B-26-14 and B-28-14 remain in full force and effect except as 
modified herein. 
… 
INCREASE ENFORCEMENT AGAINST WATER WASTE 
… 
12.  Agricultural water suppliers that supply water to more than 25,000 acres shall include in their 
required 2015 Agricultural Water Management Plans a detailed drought management plan that 
describes the actions and measures the supplier will take to manage water demand during drought. The 
Department shall require those plans to include quantification of water supplies and demands for 2013, 
2014, 2015 to the extent data is available. The Department will provide technical assistance to water 
suppliers in preparing the plans. 
 
13.  Agricultural water suppliers that supply water to 10,000 to 25,000 acres of irrigated lands shall 
develop Agricultural Water Management Plans and submit the plans to the Department by July 1, 2016. 
These plans shall include a detailed drought management plan and quantification of water supplies and 
demands in 2013, 2014, and 2015, to the extent that data is available. The Department shall give priority 
in grant funding to agricultural water suppliers that supply water to 10,000 to 25,000 acres of land for 
development and implementation of Agricultural Water Management Plans. 
… 
This Executive Order is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or benefits, substantive or 
procedural, enforceable at law or in equity, against the State of California, its agencies, departments, 
entities, employees, or any other person. 
 
I FURTHER DIRECT that as soon as hereafter possible, this Order shall be filed in the Office of the Secretary 
of State and that widespread publicity and notice be given to this Order.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Great Seal of the State of California to 
be affixed this 1st day of April, 2015 
 
 
__________ 
EDMUND G. BROWN JR. 
Governor of California 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
ALEX PADILLA 
Secretary of State   

167 

 



 
Figure 3  Aggregated Farm-gate Delivery Reporting Form 
 

 

168 

 



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix D 
CMWD Notifications and Resolutions for UWMP/AWMP 





April 15, 2016 

Ojai Valley Land Conservancy 
P.O. Box 1092 
Ojai, CA 93024 
 
Subject:  Casitas Municipal Water District’s 2016 Urban Water Conservation Plan-Agricultural Water 
Management Plan 

Dear Ojai Valley Land Conservancy, 

The Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas) is developing its 2016 Urban Water Management Plan 
(UWMP). This plan is being prepared in accordance with the California Urban Water Management 
Planning Act (Water Code §§ 10610 et seq.), which requires that we submit a new plan every five years. 
The UWMP is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate 
their water supply, water reliability, and water conservation efforts. In addition, Casitas will be including 
data in the UWMP to also meet the requirements of an Agricultural Water Management Plan (AWMP). 
Casitas will combine the information in one UWMP-AWMP document. 

Casitas invites your comments or suggestions on our UWMP-AWMP. Casitas will hold a public 
workshop on Wednesday May 18, 2016, 5:30 p.m to 7:30 p.m. regarding the public review draft of the 
UWMP-AWMP. The workshop will include a summary of the UWMP-AWMP and an opportunity for the 
public to ask questions. Casitas will also hold a public hearing to adopt the UWMP-AWMP on 
Wednesday June 22, 2016, 3:00 p.m. in the regular meeting of the Board of Directors. Both the 
workshop and public hearing will be held at Casitas’ Board Room, 1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, 
California, 93022. Please be sure to check our website at casitaswater.org to confirm meeting dates and 
times as they may change.  

A copy of the UWMP-AWMP will be available prior to the meetings at Casitas’ main office located at the 
1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, California 93022 and at www.casitaswater.org.  

If you have any questions regarding Casitas’ UWMP-AWMP please feel free to contact me at (805) 649-
2251 Ext 118 or at rmerckling@casitaswater.com. 

Sincerely, 

Ron Merckling 
Water Conservation and Public Affairs Manager 



 



Lake Casitas Recreation Area
11311 Santa Ana Road Ventura, CA
93001
General Information: 8056492233
Reservations: 8056491122
 
Casitas Municipal Water District  Office
1055 Ventura Ave Oak View, CA 93022
Phone: 8056492251 Fax: 8056494485

 

Home Lake Level Contact Water Conservation Lake Casitas Recreation Area

Home Calendar Urban Water / Agricultural Water Management Plan Meeting

Calendar
Urban Water / Agricultural Water Management Plan Meeting
18th May, 2016
Urban Water / Agricultural Water Management Plan Meeting

Please join us to discuss all the updates for Lake Casitas Urban Water/ Agricultural Water
Management Plans. This meeting will help give everybody a better understating of the water
management work that goes on at Casitas MWD.

When: Saturday, May 18, 2016 from 5:30 PM to 7 PM

Where: Board Room at Casitas’ main office

To RSVP by email, please click here or call (805) 6492251 ext. 105

http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=lake-level
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=contact
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=lake-casitas-recreation-area
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/calendar.php?view=month
mailto:bsandoval@casitaswater.com




 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix E 
UWMP Required Tables 



Water Supplier is also a member of a RUWMP

Water Supplier is also a member of a Regional 

Alliance

Regional Urban Water Management Plan (RUWMP)                        

Table 2‐2: Plan Identification  

NOTES:

Individual UWMP

Name of RUWMP or Regional Alliance                   

if applicable                                           
drop down list

Select 

Only One
Type of Plan



Agency is a wholesaler

Agency is a retailer

UWMP Tables Are in Calendar Years

UWMP Tables Are in Fiscal Years

Unit AF

NOTES: 

Table 2‐3: Agency Identification                                               

Type of Agency (select one or both)

Fiscal or Calendar Year (select one)

If Using Fiscal Years Provide Month and Date that the Fiscal Year Begins 

(mm/dd)

Units of Measure Used in UWMP (select from Drop down)

7/1



Supplier has informed more than 10 other water suppliers of water supplies 

available in accordance with CWC 10631.  Completion of the table below is 

optional.  If not completed include a list of the water suppliers that were 

informed.

Provide page number for location of the list.

Supplier has informed 10 or fewer other water suppliers of water supplies 

available in accordance with CWC 10631.  

Complete the table below.

NOTES:  list of agencies notified included in Section 1, Section 1.5, Table 1‐2

Table 2‐4 Wholesale: Water Supplier Information Exchange (select one)      

Water Supplier Name (Add additional rows as needed)

See UWMP Section 1, Section 1.5, Table 1‐2



2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040(opt)

70,288 72,063 73,883 75,748 77,661 79,622

Table 3‐1 Wholesale: Population ‐ Current and Projected

Population 

Served

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016



Use Type                            
(Add additional rows as needed)

Drop down list

May select each use multiple times

These are the only use types that will be recognized 

by the WUE data online submittal tool 

Additional Description

(as needed)

Level of Treatment 

When Delivered
Drop down list

Volume

Sales to other agencies Drinking Water 6,192

Agricultural irrigation Drinking Water 8,048

Retail demand for use by agencies 

that are primarily wholesalers with a 

small volume of retail sales

2,507

16,747

 Table 4‐1 Wholesale: Demands for Potable and Raw Water ‐ Actual

2015 Actual

NOTES: Data from CMWD 2015 Consumption Report.

TOTAL



Use Type (Add additional rows as needed)

Drop down list

May select each use multiple times

These are the only Use Types that will be recognized by the 

WUEdata online submittal tool.

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 ( opt)

Sales to other agencies 6,200 6,200 6,500 6,500 6,500

Agricultural irrigation 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

Retail demand for use by agencies that are 

primarily wholesalers with a small volume of 

retail sales

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

17,200 17,200 17,500 17,500 17,500

 Table 4‐2 Wholesale: Demands for Potable and Raw Water ‐ Projected

Additional Description     

(as needed)

Projected Water Use                                      
Report To the Extent that Records are Available

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016

TOTAL



2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040(opt)

Potable and Raw Water
From Tables 4‐1 and 4‐2

16,747 17,200 17,200 17,500 17,500 17,500

Recycled Water Demand*
From Table 6‐4

0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL WATER DEMAND 16,747 17,200 17,200 17,500 17,500 17,500

Table 4‐3 Wholesale: Total Water Demands

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016

*Recycled water demand fields will be blank until Table 6‐4 is complete. 



Reporting Period Start Date 

(mm/yyyy) 
Volume of Water Loss*

2014 669.927

NOTES: value in AFY; CMWD staff, 2016

Table 4‐4  Wholesale:  12 Month Water Loss Audit Reporting

* Taken from the field "Water Losses" (a combination of apparent losses 

and real losses) from the AWWA worksheet.



Groundwater Type
Drop Down List

May use each category multiple 

times

Location or Basin Name 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Alluvial Basin Ventura River GW Basin 67 232 173 42 54

67 232 173 42 54

 Table 6‐1 Wholesale: Groundwater Volume Pumped

Supplier does not pump groundwater.                                                                                                                    

The supplier will not complete the table below.

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016

TOTAL



W
as
te
w
at
e
r 

Tr
ea
te
d

D
is
ch
ar
ge
d
 

Tr
ea
te
d
 

W
as
te
w
at
e
r

R
ec
yc
le
d
 

W
it
h
in
 

Se
rv
ic
e 
A
re
a

R
ec
yc
le
d
 

O
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 

Se
rv
ic
e 
A
re
a

V
al
le
y 
Sa
n
it
ar
y 
D
i
V
en

tu
ra
 R
iv
e
r

N
o
. 0
0
1

C
A
0
0
5
3
9
6
1

R
iv
e
r 
o
r 
cr
e
e
k 

o
u
tf
al
l

Ye
s

Te
rt
ia
ry

1
,6
1
7

1
,6
1
7

0
1
5
8

1
,6
1
7

1
,6
1
7

0
1
5
8

N
O
TE
S:
 D
at
a 
p
ro
vi
d
ed

 b
y 
B
ra
d
sh
aw

 P
ru
it
, O

V
SD

, 2
0
1
6

To
ta
l

Ta
b
le
 6
‐3
 W

h
o
le
sa
le
: 
 W

as
te
w
at
e
r 
Tr
e
at
m
e
n
t 
an

d
 D
is
ch
ar
ge

 W
it
h
in
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 A
re
a 
in
 2
0
1
5

W
as
te
w
at
e
r 

Tr
e
at
m
e
n
t 

P
la
n
t 
N
am

e

D
is
ch
ar
ge

 

Lo
ca
ti
o
n
 N
am

e 

o
r 
Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
r

D
is
ch
ar
ge

 

Lo
ca
ti
o
n
 

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n

W
as
te
w
at
e
r 

D
is
ch
ar
ge

 ID
 

N
u
m
b
er
   
   

(o
p
ti
o
n
a
l)

M
et
h
o
d
 o
f 

D
is
p
o
sa
l

D
ro
p
 d
o
w
n
 li
st

D
o
es
 T
h
is
 P
la
n
t 

Tr
ea
t 
W
as
te
w
at
e
r 

G
en

er
at
e
d
 O
u
ts
id
e
 

th
e
 S
er
vi
ce
 A
re
a?

Tr
e
at
m
e
n
t 
Le
ve
l

D
ro
p
 d
o
w
n
 li
st

2
0
1
5
 v
o
lu
m
e
s

W
ho

le
sa

le
 s

up
pl

ie
r n

ei
th

er
 d

is
tri

bu
te

s 
no

r p
ro

vi
de

s 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
l t

re
at

m
en

t t
o 

re
cy

cl
ed

 w
at

er
.  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Th

e 
su

pp
lie

r w
ill 

no
t c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

.

A
d
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l r
o
w
s 
a
s 
n
ee
d
ed



N
am

e 
o
f 
R
ec
ei
vi
n
g 
Su
p
p
lie
r 
o
r 
D
ir
ec
t 

U
se
 b
y 
W
h
o
le
sa
le
r

Le
ve
l o
f 
Tr
ea
tm

en
t 
   
   
   
   
   

D
ro
p
 d
o
w
n
 li
st

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0
 

(o
p
t)

C
as
it
as
 M

u
n
ic
ip
al
 W

at
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ta
b
le
 6
‐4
 W

h
o
le
sa
le
: 
 C
u
rr
en

t 
an

d
 P
ro
je
ct
ed

 R
et
ai
le
rs
 P
ro
vi
d
e
d
 R
ec
yc
le
d
 W

at
er
 W

it
h
in
 S
er
vi
ce
 A
re
a

N
O

TE
S
: 

C
M

W
D

 s
ta

ff
, 

20
16

R
ec
yc
le
d
 w
at
er
 is
 n
o
t 
d
ir
e
ct
ly
 t
re
at
ed

 o
r 
d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 b
y 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
lie
r.
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
Th
e
 

su
p
p
lie
r 
w
ill
 n
o
t 
co
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 t
ab
le
 b
e
lo
w
.  

To
ta
l

A
d
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l r
o
w
s 
a
s 
n
ee
d
ed



N
am

e 
o
f 
R
ec
ei
vi
n
g 
Su
p
p
lie
r 
o
r 
D
ir
ec
t 

U
se
 b
y 
W
h
o
le
sa
le
r

2
0
1
0
 P
ro
je
ct
io
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5

2
0
1
5
 a
ct
u
al
 u
se

C
as
it
as
 M

u
n
ic
ip
al
 W

at
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t

0
0

To
ta
l

0
0

Ta
b
le
 6
‐5
 W

h
o
le
sa
le
: 
 2
0
1
0
 U
W
M
P
 R
ec
yc
le
d
 W

at
er
 U
se
 P
ro
je
ct
io
n
 C
o
m
p
ar
e
d
 t
o
 2
0
1
5
 A
ct
u
al

R
ec
yc
le
d
 w
at
er
 w
as
 n
o
t 
u
se
d
 o
r 
d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 b
y 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
lie
r 
in
 2
0
1
0
, n
o
r 

p
ro
je
ct
e
d
 f
o
r 
u
se
 o
r 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 in
 2
0
1
5
.  
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Th
e
 w
h
o
le
sa
le
 s
u
p
p
lie
r 
w
ill
 n
o
t 
co
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 t
ab
le
 b
e
lo
w
. 

N
O
TE
S:
 C
M
W
D
 s
ta
ff
, 2
0
1
6

A
d
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l r
o
w
s 
a
s 
n
ee
d
ed



Drop Down 

Menu
If Yes, Agency Name

Table 6‐7 Wholesale: Expected Future Water Supply Projects or Programs

No expected future water supply projects or programs that provide a quantifiable increase to the agency's water 

supply. Supplier will not complete the table below.

Some or all of the supplier's future water supply projects or programs are not compatible with this table and are 

described in a narrative format.                                                                                                   

Joint Project with other 

agencies?

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016

Name of Future 

Projects or Programs

Description

(if needed)

Planned 

Implementation 

Year

Planned for Use in 

Year Type
Drop Down list

Expected 

Increase in  

Water Supply to 

Agency 

Provide page location of narrative in the UWMP

Add additional rows as needed



Water Supply

Drop down list

May use each category multiple times.These 

are the only water supply categories that will 

be recognized by the WUEdata online 

submittal tool 

Actual 

Volume

Water 

Quality
Drop Down List

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Surface water Lake Casitas 17,339 Raw Water 20,540

Groundwater Well 1 54
Drinking 

Water
300

17,393 20,840

 Table 6‐8  Wholesale: Water Supplies — Actual

Additional Detail on       

Water Supply

2015

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016

Total

Add additional rows as needed



D
ro
p
 d
o
w
n
 li
st

M
a
y 
u
se
 e
a
ch
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 t
im

es
.  

Th
es
e 
a
re
 t
h
e 
o
n
ly
 w
a
te
r 
su
p
p
ly
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
es
 

th
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
co
g
n
iz
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
W
U
Ed
a
ta
 

o
n
lin
e 
su
b
m
it
ta
l t
o
o
l 

R
ea
so
n
ab
ly
 

A
va
ila
b
le
 

V
o
lu
m
e

To
ta
l R
ig
h
t 
o
r 

Sa
fe
 Y
ie
ld
 

(o
p
ti
o
n
a
l)
 

R
ea
so
n
ab
ly
 

A
va
ila
b
le
 

V
o
lu
m
e

To
ta
l R
ig
h
t 
o
r 

Sa
fe
 Y
ie
ld
 

(o
p
ti
o
n
a
l)
 

R
ea
so
n
ab
ly
 

A
va
ila
b
le
 

V
o
lu
m
e

To
ta
l R
ig
h
t 
o
r 

Sa
fe
 Y
ie
ld
 

(o
p
ti
o
n
a
l)
 

R
ea
so
n
ab
ly
 

A
va
ila
b
le
 

V
o
lu
m
e

To
ta
l R
ig
h
t 
o
r 

Sa
fe
 Y
ie
ld
 

(o
p
ti
o
n
a
l)
 

R
ea
so
n
ab
ly
 

A
va
ila
b
le
 

V
o
lu
m
e

To
ta
l R
ig
h
t 
o
r 

Sa
fe
 Y
ie
ld
 

(o
p
ti
o
n
a
l)
 

Su
rf
ac
e 
w
at
er

La
ke
 C
as
it
as

2
0
,5
4
0

2
0
,5
4
0

2
0
,5
4
0

2
0
,5
4
0

2
0
,5
4
0

2
0
,5
4
0

2
0
,5
4
0

2
0
,5
4
0

2
0
,5
4
0

2
0
,5
4
0

G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
er

W
el
l 1

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

2
0
,8
4
0

2
0
,8
4
0

2
0
,8
4
0

2
0
,8
4
0

2
0
,8
4
0

2
0
,8
4
0

2
0
,8
4
0

2
0
,8
4
0

2
0
,8
4
0

2
0
,8
4
0

N
O
TE
S:
 C
M
W
D
 s
ta
ff
, 2
0
1
6

 T
ab

le
 6
‐9
  W

h
o
le
sa
le
: 
W
at
e
r 
Su
p
p
lie
s 
—
 P
ro
je
ct
e
d

A
d
d
it
io
n
al
 D
et
ai
l o
n
 

W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
ly

P
ro
je
ct
e
d
 W

at
e
r 
Su
p
p
ly

R
ep
o
rt
 T
o
 t
h
e 
Ex
te
n
t 
P
ra
ct
ic
a
b
le

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0
 (o
p
t)

To
ta
l

A
d
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l r
o
w
s 
a
s 
n
ee
d
ed

W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
ly
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  



% of Average Supply

Average Year 2011 100%

Single‐Dry Year 2014

Multiple‐Dry Years 1st Year  1987

Multiple‐Dry Years 2nd Year 1988

Multiple‐Dry Years 3rd Year 1989

Multiple‐Dry Years 4th Year Optional  NR

Multiple‐Dry Years 5th Year Optional  NR

Multiple‐Dry Years 6th  Year Optional  NR

20840

NR

NR

NR

NOTES: NR = not required; CMWD staff, 2016

Agency may use multiple versions of Table 7‐1 if different water sources have different base years and the 

supplier chooses to report the base years for each water source separately. If an agency uses multiple versions 

of Table 7‐1, in the "Note" section of each table, state that multiple versions of Table 7‐1 are being used and 

identify the particular water source that is being reported in each table. Suppliers may create an additional 

worksheet for the additional tables.

20840

20840

20840

20840

Table 7‐1 Wholesale: Basis of Water Year Data

Year Type

Base Year     
If not using a 

calendar year, 

type in the last 

year of the fiscal,  

water year, or 

range of years, for 

example, water 

year 1999‐2000, 

use 2000

Available Supplies if 

Year Type Repeats

Quantification of available supplies is not 

compatible with this table and is provided 

elsewhere in the UWMP.                               

Location __________________________

Quantification of available supplies is provided 

in this table as either volume only, percent 

only, or both.

Volume Available  



  2020 2025 2030 2035
2040 

(Opt)

Supply totals

(autofill from Table 6‐9)
20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals

(autofill fm Table 4‐3)
17,200 17,200 17,500 17,500 17,500

Difference 3,640  3,640  3,340  3,340  3,340 

Table 7‐2 Wholesale: Normal Year Supply and Demand Comparison 

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016



  2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 (Opt)

Supply totals 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Table 7‐3 Wholesale: Single Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016



  2020 2025 2030 2035
2040 

(Opt)

Supply totals 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Demand totals 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840 20,840

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals NR NR NR NR NR

Demand totals NR NR NR NR NR

Difference #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!

Supply totals NR NR NR NR NR

Demand totals NR NR NR NR NR

Difference #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!

Supply totals NR NR NR NR NR

Demand totals NR NR NR NR NR

Difference #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!

Table 7‐4 Wholesale: Multiple Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison 

First year 

Second year 

Third year 

NOTES: NR = not required; CMWD staff, 2016

Fourth year 

(optional) 

Fifth year 

(optional)

Sixth year 

(optional) 



Supply Reduction1
Water Supply Condition 

(Narrative description)

1 20% Lake Casitas storage at 254,000 AF

2 20% Lake Casitas storage at 127,000 AF

3 30% Lake Casitas storage at 100,000 AF

4 40% Lake Casitas storage at 75,000 AF

5 50% Lake Casitas storage at 65,000 AF

Table 8‐1 Wholesale

Stages of Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Stage 

Complete Both

1 One stage in the Water Shortage Contingency Plan must address a water shortage of 50%.

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016

Add additional rows as needed



2016 2017 2018

Available Water Supply 20,840 20,840 20,840

Table 8‐4 Wholesale: Minimum Supply Next Three Years

NOTES: CMWD staff, 2016



City Name        60 Day Notice Notice of Public Hearing

City of Ojai        
City of Ventura

County Name
Drop Down List

60 Day Notice Notice of Public Hearing

Ventura County   

NOTES: list of agencies notified included in Section 1

Table 10‐1 Wholesale: Notification to Cities and Counties (select one)        

Supplier has notified more than 10 cities or counties in accordance 

with CWC 10621 (b) and 10642. 

Completion of the table below is not required.  Provide a 

separate list of the cities and counties that were notified.                 

Supplier has notified 10 or fewer cities or counties. 

Complete the table below. 

Provide the page or  location of this list in the UWMP.

Add additional rows as needed

Add additional rows as needed



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 Appendix F 
AWMP Required Worksheets

 



N
o
ti
fi
e
d
 o
f 
A
W
M
P
 

P
re
p
ar
at
io
n

R
e
q
u
e
st
e
d
 C
o
p
y 
o
f 

D
ra
ft

C
o
m
m
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 

D
ra
ft
/A

ct
io
n
 T
ak
e
n
 

b
y 
Su
p
p
lie
r

N
o
ti
fi
e
d
 o
f 
P
u
b
lic
 

M
e
e
ti
n
gs

A
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 P
u
b
lic
 

M
e
e
ti
n
gs

C
o
p
y 
o
f 
A
d
o
p
te
d
 

A
W
M
P
/ 
A
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 

Se
n
t

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

X

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

X
4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

[D
at
e
]

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

[D
at
e
]

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

X

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

N
/A

N
/A

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

N
/A

[D
at
e
]

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

[D
at
e
]

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

[D
at
e
]

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

X
[D
at
e
]

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

X
[D
at
e
]

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

[D
at
e
]

4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

X
4
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

[D
at
e
]

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
o
f 
W
at
er
 R
es
o
u
rc
es

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

[D
at
e
]

St
at
e 
W
at
er
 R
es
o
u
rc
es
 C
o
n
tr
o
l B
o
ar
d

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

6
/8
/2
0
1
6
 a
n
d
 

6
/1
5
/2
0
1
6

N
/A

N
/A

5
/1
3
/2
0
1
6

N
/A

N
/A

5
/1
3
/2
0
1
6

N
/A

[D
at
e
]

"D
at
e
" 
m
e
an

s 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
o
te
n
ti
al
 In

te
re
st
e
d
 P
ar
ti
e
s

C
A
 S
ta
te
 L
ib
ra
ry

LA
FC
O
 V
en

tu
ra
 C
o
u
n
ty

Ti
co
 M

u
tu
al
 W

at
er
 C
o
m
p
an
y

V
en

tu
ra
 C
o
u
n
ty
 A
gr
ic
u
lt
u
ra
l C
o
m
m
.

C
it
y 
o
f 
V
en

tu
ra

V
en

tu
ra
 C
o
u
n
ty
 F
ar
m
 B
u
re
au

V
en

tu
ra
 R
iv
er
 W

at
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t

R
an
ch
o
 D
el
 C
ie
lo
 M

u
tu
al
 W

at
er
 C
o
m
p
an
y

R
in
co
n
 W

at
er
 &
 R
o
ad

 W
o
rk
s

Se
n
io
r 
C
an
yo
n
 M

u
tu
al
 W

at
er
 C
o
m
p
an
y

Si
et
e 
R
o
b
le
s 
M
u
tu
al
 W

at
er
 C
o
m
p
an
y

Su
lp
h
u
r 
M
o
u
n
ta
in
 R
o
ad

 W
at
er
 A
ss
o
c.

O
ja
i B
as
in
 G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
er
 A
ge
n
cy

O
ja
i P
ix
ie
 G
ro
w
er
s 
A
ss
o
ci
at
io
n

O
ja
i L
an
d
 C
o
n
se
rv
an
cy

O
ja
i V

al
le
y 
Sa
n
it
ar
y 
D
is
tr
ic
t

O
ak
 V
ie
w
 L
ib
ra
ry

C
M
W
D
 W

eb
si
te

C
o
u
n
ty
 o
f 
V
en

tu
ra
, S
u
p
er
vi
so
r 
B
en

n
et
t

V
en

tu
ra
 C
o
u
n
ty
 W

at
er
sh
ed

 P
ro
te
ct
io
n
 D
is
tr
ic
t

V
en

tu
ra
 C
o
u
n
ty
 R
es
o
u
rc
e 
C
o
n
se
rv
at
io
n
 D
is
tr
ic
t

W
o
rk
sh
e
e
t 
1
.  
Su
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 
C
o
o
rd
in
at
io
n
, A

d
o
p
ti
o
n
, a
n
d
 S
u
b
m
it
ta
l A

ct
iv
it
ie
s

Si
sa
r 
M
u
tu
al
 W

at
er
 C
o
m
p
an
y

O
ja
i V

al
le
y 
N
ew

s

V
en

tu
ra
 R
iv
er
 W

at
er
sh
ed

 C
o
o
rd
in
at
o
r

V
en

tu
ra
 W

at
er

C
ar
p
in
te
ri
a 
V
al
le
y 
W
at
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t

Fa
ri
a 
B
ea
ch
 H
o
m
eo

w
n
er
’s
 A
ss
o
ci
at
io
n

G
o
ld
en

 S
ta
te
 W

at
er
 C
o
m
p
an
y

H
er
m
it
ag
e 
M
u
tu
al
 W

at
er
 C
o
m
p
an
y

M
ei
n
er
s 
O
ak
s 
 W

at
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t

C
it
y 
o
f 
O
ja
i



Worksheet 2.  Water Supplier History and Size

Date of Formation  

 CMWD is authorized 

and Dam construction 

began in 1956

Source of Water 

Surface Water:           

Lake Casitas 

Local Surface Water Lake Casitas 

Local Groundwater Mira Montes Well

Wholesaler

USBR

SWP

Service Area Gross 

Acreage 

Service Area Irrigated 

Acreage

Note: Additional rows/columns can be added as applicable.

5,372 acres

circa 137.50 sq mi without service 

area in ocean



Change to Service Area  [Delete 

non‐applicable row(s)] Estimate of Magnitude

Effect on the Water 

Supplier

Reduced Service Area Size  none NA

Increased Service Area Size  none NA

New Governmental Entity   none NA

Other [Define/Identify] none NA

Note: Additional rows/columns can be added as applicable.

Worksheet 3.  Expected Changes to Service Area



System Used 

Number of 

Miles

Unlined Canal

Lined Canal 5.25 miles

Pipelines 91 miles

Drains

Note: Additional rows/columns can be added as applicable.

Worksheet 4.  Water Conveyance and Delivery System



Worksheet 5.  Water Supplier Reservoirs

Number 2

Total 

Capacity 

(AF)

Casita Dam/Lake 

capacity is 254,000 AF     

Matilija Dam and 

reservoir capacity 2473 

AF



System

yes there is 

spill way

District Operated 

Tailwater/Spill 

Recovery

Distric has a 

spill but has 

not been used 

since 1998

Grower Operated 

Tailwater/Spill 

Recovery None

Worksheet 6.  Tailwater/Spill Recovery System



Topography 

Characteristic % of the District

Effect on Water 

Operations and 

Drainage 

NA [Percent] NA

[Text] [Percent] NA

Soil 

Characteristic/ 

Classification % of the District

Effect on Water 

Operations and 

Drainage

Percolation Rate 

(inches/hour)

NA [Percent] [Text] [Fraction]

N/A

Worksheet 7.  Landscape Characteristics



Climate Characteristic Value (1)
Average Annual Precipitation 

(inches) (1) 21.21

Annual Minimum 

Precipitation (inches) (1) 4.35

Annual Maximum 

Precipitation (inches) (1) 47.3

Average Annual Minimum 

Temperature (oF) (2) 44.9

Average Annual Maximum 

Temperature (oF) (2) 77.9

Note: Additional rows/columns can be added as applicable.

Worksheet 8.  Summary Climate Characteristics

Notes: 

(2) Station data obtained from Western Region Climate Center, 

(1) Data from Western Region Climate Center



Month/Time

Average 

Precipitation, 

Inches (1)

Average Reference 

Evapotranspiration 

(Eto), Inches (2)  total 

for the month in 2015 

in red

Average 

Minimum 

Temperature, 
o
F 

(1)

Average 

Maximum 

Temperature, 
oF (1)

January 4.92 2.22 35.9 66.6

February 4.94 2.42 38 67.9

March 3.53 3.94 39.9 70.1

April 1.42 4.83 43.1 74

May 0.4 5.99 46.9 77.4

June 0.07 6.02 50.3 83.4

July 0.02 6.50 54.5 90.9

August 0.04 6.54 54.3 91.5

September 0.27 5.19 52.1 88.7

October 0.66 3.73 46.7 82.1

November 1.82 2.38 40.3 74.7

December 3.13 1.65 36.4 67.9

Annual Average 21.22 51.39 44.9 77.9

Wet Season (3) 20.42 21.15 280.3 503.3

Dry Season (4) 0.80 30.24 258.1 431.9

Extreme Conditions 

(if applicable) Last 4 years have been drier condition than normal

Other [Identify] NA NA NA NA

Notes:

(2) Data obtained from California Department of Water Resources, CIMIS, Santa Paula Station (XXX), 2015.

(3) October to April

(4) May to September

Worksheet 9.  Detailed Climate Characteristics*

(1) Data from Western Region Climate Center, 



Type

Check if 

Used

Percent of 

System 

Supplied 

On Demand X 100

Modified 

Demand

Rotation

Other

Worksheet 10.  Supplier Delivery System

Note: Additional rows/columns can be added as applicable.



(Check if applicable) Allocation

Basis of Water 

Allocation Flow Volume

Seasonal 

Allocations Normal Year 

Percent of Water 

Deliveries (%)

Area within the 

service area

Amount of land 

owned X

Riparian rights

Other

Note: Additional rows/columns can be added as applicable.

Allowcations  are based on several factors see below

Category tha the account falls on 

Lake levels are also determinates factors of allocations

Stage of shortage

written agreements

application of historical water use data

application of documented water use standards

site audits and surveys

residental allacations are on a monthly basis

agriculture, CII, and resale allocations are all on annual basis

Worksheet 11.  Water Allocation Policy



Operations Hours/Days

Water orders NA

Water shut‐off NA

Note: Additional rows/columns can be added as applicable.

Worksheet 12.  Actual Lead Times



Measurement Device

Frequency of Calibration 

(Months)

Frequency of 

Maintenance 

(Months)

Estimated Level of 

Accuracy (%)

Orifices (meter gates)      

Propeller Meters

≤ 2 inches are propelller 

meters, 2≥ are measuring 

chambers +/‐2%

Weirs

Flumes

Verturi Meters

Pump, Run Time

Pump, KWH

Positive Displacement (ag.)

turbine meters CMWD >2 inches +/‐2%

Worksheet 13.  Water Delivery Measurements



Water Charge Basis Check if Used 

Percent of 

Water 

Deliveries (%)  Description

Volume of Water 

Delivered X 100

Rate and Duration 

of Water Delivered

Acre

Crop

Land Assessment

Other

Worksheet 14.  Water Rate Basis



Type of Billing Check if Used Description 

Declining

Uniform (1) X

Increasing 

Block Rate (2) X

Increasing 

Block Rate (3) X

Other (4) X

Notes: 

1) agriculture only customers

2) agriculture‐residential customers

3) residential only customers

4) business, industrial, resale, other, temporary, and recreation customers

$0.602‐$2.614

$0.827‐$1.785

$0.602‐$1.770

Worksheet 15.  Rate Structure

$0.624‐$0.904



Frequency Check if Used

Weekly

Biweekly

Monthly X

Bimonthly

Semiannually

Annually

Worksheet 16.  Frequency of Billing



Worksheet 17.  Decreased Water Supplies Allocations

Allocation Method

80% of 89 

Usage

By crop

Citrus and 

Avocados 2AF per Acre planted

First come first 

served

Area in district Within District

Other

No specific policy Allocation is set to only Ag in district boundaries



Worksheet 18.  Enforcement Methods of Allocation Policies

Enforcement Method Check if used

Fines X

Water Shut‐off  

Other  

No specific policy  



Description

Representative 

year(s) based upon  2011

First month of 

representative year 7/1

Last month of 

representative year 6/30

Notes:

Safeyield 8880 AF for AG

Worksheet 19.  Representative Year

(1) approximates year with average annual 

precipitation



Planning Cycle

Source

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

Agricultural Water  

Supplier Delivered

   Surface Water (1) 5,139 5,139 6,063 7,978 9,385 8,048

   Groundwater 0 0 0 0 0 0

   Other (define) 0 0 0 0 0 0

subtotal 5,139 5,139 6,063 7,978 9,385 8,048 5206 6295

Other Water 

Supplies Used

   Surface Water 0 0 0 0 0 0

   Groundwater 0 0 0 0 0 0

   Other (define) 0 0 0 0 0 0

subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 5,139 5,139 6,063 7,978 9,385 8,048 36,613

Notes: Calculations were based on adding ag and ag domestic from July of X year through June of the following year

(1) All surface water and groundwater is blended prior to distribution.

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 20.  Annual Agricultural Water Use (AF) (Fiscal Year)



Crop

100% on 

Casitas water

Casitas Water 

is backup 

supply Total Acreage

Irrigation 

Method

Planting 

Month

Harvest 

Month

ET 

crop(AF/A

c) Min

ET 

crop(AF/Ac) 

Max

Cultural 

Practices(AF/Ac)

Leaching 

Requirement (AF/Ac)

Total Crop Water 

Needs (AF)

Navels 102.2 204.2 306.5 mini sprinkler, m NA NA 0.70 0.40 NA NA

Valencia 433.9 605.1 1,039.0 mini sprinkler, sp NA NA 0.70 0.40 NA NA

Tangerines 116.7 159.8 276.4 Mini Sprinkler, drip irrigation, fan jet  0.70 0.40 NA NA

Lemons 260.5 192.8 453.3 Mini sprinkler, Drip irrigation  0.70 0.40 NA NA

Walnuts 57.0 0.0 57.0 Drip irrigation NA NA

Avacados 1,745.6 663.2 2,408.8 Mini Sprinkler, fan jet, drip tape, drip li 0.70 0.40 NA NA

Strawberries 40.0 0.0 40.0 Drip Irrigation, m NA NA NA NA

Hay 317.7 22.0 339.7 Sprinkler, set lin NA NA 1.00 1.00 NA NA

Misc. Fruit 245.5 111.1 356.6 Drip line, micro s NA NA NA NA

Pasture 73.6 20.5 94.1 Sprinkler NA NA 0.95 0.95 NA NA

TOTAL 3,392.8 1,978.7 5,371.5 NA NA 5.45 3.95

Notes:

Worksheet 21.  Agricultural Crop Data For 2014



Planning Cycle

Rep. Year ‐ 

2011

1st Year ‐ 

2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2013

4th Year ‐ 

2014

5th Year ‐ 

2015

Total Irrigated Acres

irrigated acres using 100% 

CMWD Water 2,996 2,996 2,960 2,931 3,174 3,361

irrigated acres using 1‐99% 

CMWD Water 1,841 1,841 1,905 1,897 1,980 1,993

Total Irrigated Acres using 

CMWD water 4,837 4,837 4,865 4,828 5,154 5,354

Notes:

Notes:

(1) Data available through December 31 2014; 2015 land use forthcoming

Data comes from crop report and it is in calandar year 

Worksheet 22.  Irrigated Acres



Planning 

Cycle

Cropping System

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

Single‐Cropped 

Acres NA NA NA NA NA NA

Inter‐Cropping 

Acres NA NA NA NA NA NA

Double‐Cropping 

Acres NA NA NA NA NA NA

Worksheet 23.  Multiple Crop Information

NA ‐ data not available



Planning Cycle

Environmental 

Resources

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

From Supplier

Vernal pools 0 0 0 0 0 0

Streams 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lakes or 

reservoirs 0 0 0 0 0 0

Riparian 

Vegetation 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other [Identify] 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0

All Sources

Vernal pools 0 0 0 0 0 0

Streams 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lakes or 

reservoirs 0 0 0 0 0 0

Riparian 

Vegetation 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other [Identify] 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0

Notes: 

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 24.  Environmental Water Uses (AF)



Planning Cycle

Recreational Facility

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

Public Parks 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

City Pool 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Recreational Facility 77.71 77.71 77.74 72.28 79.28 47.82

TOTAL 77.71 77.71 77.74 72.28 79.28 47.82

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 25.  Recreational Water Uses (AF)



Planning Cycle

Municipal/ Industrial Entity

Rep. Year ‐ 2010‐

2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 2014‐

2015

Municipal Entity 8,349 8,349 8,554 8,105 9,686 8,669

Industrial Entity 61 61 38 23 22 29

TOTAL 8,410 8,410 8,592 8,128 9,708 8,698

Notes: 

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 26.  Municipal/Industrial Water Uses (AF)

All Comm, Residential, Public, Landscape

Data Source Casitas ‐Consumption Report  data in Fiscal Year. Total minus AG an



Planning Cycle

Location/ 

Groundwater 

Basin

Method 

of 

Recharge

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

Commitments/D

edicated 0 0 0 0 0 0

Voluntary/Oppo

rtunistic 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0

Notes: 

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available..

Worksheet 27.  Groundwater Recharge Water Uses (AF)



From What 

Agency To What Agency

Type (Ag to M&I, M&I to 

Ag, or Ag to Ag) Volume (AF)

2011  

CMWD CVWD M&I to Ag 0

 

1st  Year ‐ 2011  

CMWD CVWD M&I to Ag 0

 

2nd  Year ‐ 2012  

CMWD CVWD M&I to Ag 0

3rd  Year ‐ 2013

CMWD CVWD M&I to Ag 0

4th Year ‐ 2014

CMWD (1) CVWD M&I to Ag 0

5th Year ‐ 2015

CMWD (1) CVWD M&I to Ag 0

Notes: 

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water supplies and demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Notes: 

Worksheet 28.  Transfers and Exchanges Water Uses

(1) Casitas MWD delivered 2.05 AF in FY 2014 and 35.9 AF in FY2015 to 

Carpinteria Valley Water District for Casitas MWD customers. The Casitas MWD 

considers this water part of the Casitas MWD annual customer demands and not 

a transfer.



Planning Cycle

Water Use

Rep. Year ‐ 2010‐

2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

Temporary / 

Construction 

meters NA NA NA NA NA NA

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0

Notes: 

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 29.  Other Water Uses (AF)



Planning 

Cycle

Source

Diversion 

Restriction

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015 Anticipated Changes

Pre‐1914 water rights NA 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA

CVP class I water 

contract NA 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA

SWP water contract NA 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA

Other imported water 

surface water NA 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA

Local surface water ‐

Lake Casitas NA 14,678 14,678 15,233 18,223 20,415 17,340

reduction due to 

conservation measures

Upslope drain water NA 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA

Transfers /Exchanges NA 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA

TOTAL 14,678 14,678 15,233 18,223 20,415 17,340

Notes: 

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water supplies for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 30.  Surface Water Supplies (AF)



Source Restrictions*

Name of 

Agency 

Imposing 

Restrictions

Operational 

Constraints

Groundwater none NA NA

Lake Casitas none NA NA

Notes: 

Worksheet 31.  Restrictions on Water Sources

*Examples of possible restrictions are amount of water supplied by 

DWR, USBR; environmental laws.



Basin Name Size(Sq. Mi.)

Usable 

Capacity(AF)

Safe 

Yield(AF/Yr)

Ojay Valley 10.1 85,000 5,026

Upper Ojai Valley 4.4 5,681 unavailable

Upper Ventura River 14.6 35,118 9482

Lower Ventura River 9.5 8,743 2,130

Carpinteria 12 39,000 4,000

Note: 

Worksheet 32.  Groundwater Basins



Ojai Basin, 

Written By

Year  2007

Upper Ojai Basin, 

Written By NA

Year 

Ventura River 

Basin, Written By NA

Year 

Carpinteria 

Basin, Written By Carpinteria Valley Water District

Year  1996

Worksheet 33.  Groundwater Management Plan

Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Agency



Planning Cycle

Groundwater Basin

Diversion 

Restriction

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

Anticipated 

Changes

District Pumping 67.21 67.21 231.70 173.09 42.40 54.10 none

Private Pumping na na na na na na none

TOTAL 67 67 232 173 42 54 none

Notes: 

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water supplies for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 34.  Groundwater Supplies (AF)



Surface/Subsurface 

Drainage Path Planning Cycle End Use

Inside/ Outside 

Service Area

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 

2012‐2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

Note: 

Worksheet 35.  Drainage Discharge (AF)



Worksheet 36.  [Lake Casitas] Water Supply Quality

Planning Cycle

Parameter Units

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 2012‐

2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

TDS mg/L 340 340 330 320 370 400

Se ug/L Non ‐detect Non ‐detect Non ‐detect Non ‐detect Non ‐detect Non ‐detect

B ug/L 93.3 93.3 91.2 91.0 98.5 93.9

Mo Not Sampled Not Sampled Not Sampled Not Sampled Not Sampled Not Sampled

As ug/L Non ‐detect Non ‐detect 2 Non ‐detect Non ‐detect 2

Na mg/L 26 26 24 26 29 30

Cl mg/L 15 15 13 13 15 15

Pesticide* ug/L * * * * * *

Herbicide*   ug/L * * * * * *

Fertilizer(NO3) mg/L 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 1.0 1.3

Glyphosate ug/L Non ‐detect Not Sampled Non ‐detect Non ‐detect Non ‐detect Non ‐detect

Worksheet 36.  [Mira Monte Well] Water Supply Quality

Planning Cycle

Parameter Units

Rep. Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

1st Year ‐ 

2010‐2011

2nd Year ‐ 

2011‐2012

3rd Year ‐ 2012‐

2013

4th Year ‐ 

2013‐2014

5th Year ‐ 

2014‐2015

TDS mg/L 410 410 420 (1) (1)

Se ug/L Non ‐detect Non ‐detect Non ‐detect (1) (1)

B ug/l 102 102 102 (1) (1)

Mo Not Sampled Not Sampled Not Sampled (1) (1)

As ug/L Non ‐detect Non ‐detect Non ‐detect (1) (1)

Na mg/L 55 55 54 (1) (1)

Cl mg/L 61 61 66 (1) (1)

Pesticide* ug/L * * * * (1) (1)

Herbicide* ug/L * * * * (1) (1)

Fertilizer(NO3) mg/L 57.1 57.1 55.7 (1) (1)

(1) Well is currently turned off

*The lake (Lake Casitas) source is sampled for volatile organic compounds every three years (2013 and 2016); 

results are ND. Lake Casitas has a waiver for synthetic organic compound sampling.

*Mira Monte Well is sampled for volatile organic compounds every three years (2013 and due 2016); results are ND. Sampling 

for synthetic organic compounds has been waived except for Atrazine and Simazine (2012 sampling with results of ND).



Drainage Reuse Limitations (Check)

Analyte

Detected 

(Check)

Increased 

Leaching

Blending 

Supplies

Restricted 

Area of Use

Restricted 

Crops Other

TDS NA NA NA NA NA NA

Se NA NA NA NA NA NA

B NA NA NA NA NA NA

Mo NA NA NA NA NA NA

As NA NA NA NA NA NA

Na NA NA NA NA NA NA

Cl NA NA NA NA NA NA

Pesticide NA NA NA NA NA NA

Herbicide NA NA NA NA NA NA

Fertilizer(NO3) NA NA NA NA NA NA

Other NA NA NA NA NA NA

Note: 

Worksheet 37.  Drainage Reuse Effects



Water Source

Monitoring 

Location

Measurement/ 

Monitoring 

Method or 

Practice Frequency

Mira Monte 03 

(5610024‐003)

Casitas main 

building

Note:  Additional rows/columns can be added as applicable.

Worksheet 38.  Water Quality Monitoring Practices

Monitoring frequency and 

methods are done according to 

state & federal requirements



Monitoring 

Program

Analyses 

Performed

Frequency of 

Analysis

none NA NA

Note:  Additional rows/columns can be added as applicable.

Worksheet 39.  Water Quality Monitoring Programs for Surface/Sub‐Surface Drainage



So
u
rc
e

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o
v

D
ec

To
ta
l

C
V
P
 C
la
ss
 1
 C
o
n
tr
ac
ts
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
re
‐1
9
1
4
 R
ig
h
ts
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

SW
P
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Lo
ca
l S
u
rf
ac
e 
W
at
er
 

5
7
0

6
8
0

5
2
0

8
5
3

1
,5
9
6

2
,0
3
4

1
,8
8
4

1
,9
7
3

1
,7
2
1

1
,1
9
5

7
9
7

1
,0
1
8

1
4
,8
4
1

U
p
sl
o
p
e 
D
ra
in
 W

at
er
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Tr
an
sf
er
s 
&
 E
xc
h
an
ge
s 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

R
ec
yc
le
d
 W

at
er
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

G
ro
u
n
d
w
at
er
(M

ir
a 
M
o
n
te
 W

el
l )

0
.2
9

0
.1
0

0
.0
9

0
.4
8

0
.3
1

1
.2
0

7
.0
9

8
.9
5

9
.1
0

1
8
.1
3

7
.4
1

1
0
.7
5

6
3
.9
0

To
ta
l

5
7
0
.2
9

6
8
0
.1
0

5
2
0
.0
9

8
5
3
.4
8

1
,5
9
6
.3
1

2
,0
3
5
.2
0

1
,8
9
1
.0
9

1
,9
8
1
.9
5

1
,7
3
0
.1
0

1
,2
1
3
.1
3

8
0
4
.4
1

1
,0
2
8
.7
5

1
4
,9
0
4
.9
0

N
o
te
s:
 

P
er
 E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 O
rd
er
 B
‐2
9
‐1
5
, r
ep

o
rt
 w
at
er
 s
u
p
p
lie
s 
fo
r 
2
0
1
3
, 2
0
1
4
, a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
 t
o
 t
h
e 
ex
te
n
t 
d
at
a 
is
 a
va
ila
b
le

W
o
rk
sh
e
e
t 
4
0
.  
Su
rf
ac
e
 a
n
d
 O
th
e
r 
W
at
e
r 
Su
p
p
lie
s 
Fo
r 
2
0
1
1
 (
A
F)



Pumped by the Water 

Supplier Pumped within Service Area by Customers

Month

Upper Ventura River 

basin Basin 2 Basin 3 Basin 1 Basin 2 Basin 3 TOTAL

January 0.292 0 0 0 0 0 0.29

February 0.098 0 0 0 0 0 0.10

March 0.092 0 0 0 0 0 0.09

April 0.475 0 0 0 0 0 0.48

May 0.314 0 0 0 0 0 0.31

June 4.196 0 0 0 0 0 4.20

July 7.088 0 0 0 0 0 7.09

August 8.954 0 0 0 0 0 8.95

September 9.096 0 0 0 0 0 9.10

October 18.127 0 0 0 0 0 18.13

November 7.413 0 0 0 0 0 7.41

December 10.753 0 0 0 0 0 10.75

TOTAL 66.90 0 0 0 0 0 66.90

Notes: 

Worksheet 41.  Groundwater Supplies Summary For 2011 (AF)



Month Rep. Year ‐ 2011

1st  Year ‐ 

2011 (1)

2nd  Year ‐ 

2012 (1)

3rd  Year ‐ 

2013 (1)

4th Year ‐ 

2014 (1)

5th Year ‐ 

2015 (1)

July 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aug 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sep 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Oct 883.57 883.57 489.74 369.99 106.32 0.00

Nov 695.22 695.22 739.54 986.98 284.94 365.74

Dec 1,860.71 1,860.71 106.32 879.88 161.61 1,744.76

Jan 233.90 233.90 501.83 586.44 0.00 626.73

Feb 1,506.61 1,506.61 0.00 0.00 1,665.75 382.75

Mar 1,809.00 1,809.00 1,331.35 558.24 1,175.34 263.67

Apr 0.00 0.00 950.05 0.00 114.83 102.07

May 412.52 412.52 0.00 97.81 0.00 221.15

June 102.07 102.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 102.07

TOTAL 7,503.61 7,503.61 4,118.83 3,479.34 3,508.78 3,808.94

Notes:

(1) Effective precipitation values based on formula by Stramm, Gilbert, USBR, 1967.

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water supplies for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 42.  Effective Precipitation Summary (AF)



Month Rep. Year ‐ 2011

1st  Year ‐ 

2011 (1)

2nd  Year ‐ 

2012 (1)

3rd  Year ‐ 

2013 (1)

4th Year ‐ 

2014 (1)

5th Year ‐ 

2015 (1)

July 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Aug 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sep 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Oct 883.57 883.57 489.74 369.99 106.32 0.00

Nov 695.22 695.22 739.54 986.98 284.94 365.74

Dec 1,860.71 1,860.71 106.32 879.88 161.61 1,744.76

Jan 233.90 233.90 501.83 586.44 0.00 626.73

Feb 1,506.61 1,506.61 0.00 0.00 1,665.75 382.75

Mar 1,809.00 1,809.00 1,331.35 558.24 1,175.34 263.67

Apr 0.00 0.00 950.05 0.00 114.83 102.07

May 412.52 412.52 0.00 97.81 0.00 221.15

June 102.07 102.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 102.07

TOTAL 7,503.61 7,503.61 4,118.83 3,479.34 3,508.78 3,808.94

Notes:

(1) Effective precipitation values based on formula by Stramm, Gilbert, USBR, 1967.

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water supplies for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 42.  Effective Precipitation Summary (AF)



Planning Cycle

Rep. Year ‐ 

2011

1st  Year ‐ 

2011

2nd  Year ‐ 

2012

3rd  Year ‐ 

2013

4th Year ‐ 

2014

5th Year ‐ 

2015

Applied Water (from 

Worksheet 20) 5,206 5,206 6,295 8,151 9,427 8,102

Note:

(1) Total only includes surface water and ground water delivered to agricultural customers by CMWD.

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 43.  Applied Water (AF)



Planning Cycle

Water Use

Rep. Year ‐ 

2011

1st  Year ‐ 

2011

2nd  Year ‐ 

2012

3rd  Year ‐ 

2013

4th Year ‐ 

2014

5th Year ‐ 

2015

Crop Water Use (1) (from Worksheets 20‐21) 5,139 5,139 6,063 7,978 9,385 8,048

1

Crop Evapotranspiration 

Min 5.45 5.45 5.45 5.45 5.45 5.45

2 Leaching NA NA NA NA NA NA

3 Cultural practices NA NA NA NA NA NA

Conveyance & Storage 

System (2)

4 Conveyance seepage NA NA NA NA NA NA

5 Conveyance evaporation NA NA NA NA NA NA

6

Conveyance operational 

spills NA NA NA NA NA NA

7 Reservoir evaporation NA NA NA NA NA NA

8 Reservoir seepage NA NA NA NA NA NA

Environmental Use 

(Consumptive)

9

Environmental use – 

wetlands (from Worksheet 

24) 0 0 0 0 0 0

10

Environmental use – Other 

(from Worksheet 24) 0 0 0 0 0 0

11

Riparian vegetation (from 

Worksheet 24) 0 0 0 0 0 0

12

Recreational use (from 

Worksheet 25) 77.71 77.71 77.74 72.28 79.28 47.82

Municipal and Industrial

13

Municipal (from 

Worksheet 26) 8,349 8,349 8,554 8,105 9,686 8,669

14

Industrial (from Worksheet 

26) 61 61 38 23 22 29

Outside the District

15

Transfers or Exchanges out 

of the service area (from 

Worksheet 28) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Conjunctive Use

16

Groundwater recharge  

(from Worksheet 27) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other (from Worksheet 29) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 13,632 13,632 14,738 16,184 19,178 16,799

Notes:

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

(1) Includes District pumping and private pumping.

(2) Calculated

Worksheet 44.  Quantify Water Use (AF)



Planning Cycle

Rep. Year ‐ 

2011

1st  Year ‐ 

2011

2nd  Year ‐ 

2012

3rd  Year ‐ 

2013

4th Year ‐ 

2014

5th Year ‐ 

2015

1

Surface drain water 

leaving the service 

area 0 0 0 0 0 0

2

Subsurface drain 

water leaving the 

service area 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Notes:

Worksheet 45.  Quantify Water Leaving the District (AF)



Planning Cycle

Rep. Year ‐ 

2011

1st  Year ‐ 

2011

2nd  Year ‐ 

2012

3rd  Year ‐ 

2013

4th Year ‐ 

2014

5th Year ‐ 

2015

Flows to saline 

sink 0 0 0 0 0 0

Flows to perched 

water table 0 0 0 0 0 0

System Losses 

(calculated) 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 889 1,000

Total 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 889 1,000

Notes:

Worksheet 46.  Irrecoverable Water Losses* (AF)



Planning Cycle

Water Supplies

Rep. Year ‐ 

2011

1st  Year ‐ 

2011

2nd  Year ‐ 

2012

3rd  Year ‐ 

2013

4th Year ‐ 

2014

5th Year ‐ 

2015

1 Surface Water*

(summary total from 

Worksheet 40) 14,678 14,678 15,233 18,223 20,415 17,340

2

Groundwater 

(summary total from 

Worksheet 41) 67.21 67.21 231.70 173.09 42.40 54.10

3

Annual Effective 

Precipitation 

(summary total from 

Worksheet 42) 7,504 7,503.61 4,118.83 3,479.34 3,508.78 3,808.94

4 Water purchases 0 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal 22,249 22,249 19,584 21,875 23,966 21,203

Notes:

*Subtract water purchases if included in totals; water purchases will be included on line 4.

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water supplies for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 47.  Quantify Water Supplies (AF)



Planning Cycle

Water Accounting

Rep. Year ‐ 

2011

1st  Year ‐ 

2011

2nd  Year ‐ 

2012

3rd  Year ‐ 

2013

4th Year ‐ 

2014

5th Year ‐ 

2015

1

Subtotal of Water 

Supplies 

(Worksheet 47) 22,249 22,249 19,584 21,875 23,966 21,203

2

Subtotal of Water 

Uses (Worksheet 

44) 13,632 13,632 14,738 16,184 19,178 16,799

3

Drain Water 

Leaving Service 

Area (Worksheet 

45) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Excess Deep 

Percolation (1) 8,617 7,511 3,400 2,698 7,167 4,404
   

Notes:

(1) General estimate as calculated from sum of lines 2 and 3, then subtracted from line 1.

Per Executive Order B‐29‐15, report water supplies and demands for 2013, 2014, and 2015 to the extent data is available.

Worksheet 48.  Budget Summary (AF)



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix G 
CMWD Water Rates 

 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

EXCERPT OF RATES AND REGULATIONS FOR WATER SERVICE  

Volume Rate   Units of  

water* 

Gravity (Served without pumping) 
Rate per Unit* 

Pumped (Most customers) 
Rate per Unit* 

9.3.1 RATE SCHEDULE — CLASS 1 SERVICE 

Customer Type  Effective Effective 

Residential      

     Bi-monthly Lifeline 

     Bi-monthly Usage 

     Bi-monthly Usage 

     Bi-monthly Usage 

Business 

Industrial 

Resale 

Other 

Temporary 

Recreation 

  July 1, 2013  July 1, 2013  

0-20 Units 

21-34 Units 

35-100 Units 

Over 101 Units 

$0.602 

$1.064 

$1.489 

$2.334 

$1.336 

$1.336 

$0.827 

$1.336 

$1.506 

$1.336  

 $0.882 

$1.344 

$1.770 

$2.614 

$1.617 

$1.617 

$1.488 

$1.617 

$1.785 

$1.617  

 

9.3.3 RATE SCHEDULE — CLASS 3 SERVICE 

 Ag-Residential 

    Monthly Lifeline 

    Monthly Usage 

    Monthly Usage 

 Irrigation (AG) 

 

0-10 Units 

11-17 Units 

18-50 Units 

51 units + 

 

$0.602 

$1.064 

$1.489 

$0.624 

 

 

 

$0.882 

$1.344 

$1.770 

$0.904 

  

 

 

9.4.2 RATE SCHEDULE — SERVICE CHARGES 

Meter Service Charge  Effective as of July 1, 2012  

Meter Size Monthly                                                Bi-Monthly————--                                          

 5/8”-3/4” 

1” 

1 1/2” 

2” 

2 1/2” 

3” 

4” 

6” 

Over 6” 

        $23.34                                                 $40.62 

        $34.86                                                 $63.66 

        $63.66                                                 $121.25 

        $98.22                                                 $190.38 

        $150.05                                               N/A 

        $207.65                                               $409.23 

        $368.92                                               $731.78 

        $812.42                                               $1,618.76 

        $2.82751 per gpm                                $5.65502 per gpm  

*One unit equals 100 cubic feet or 748 gallons. 

20-30 
 
50 
 
120 

 
160 
 
300 
 
320 
 
1000 
 
2000 

Over 2000 

Max Cap. GPM 



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix H 
CMWD Water Supply and Demand Study

 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

WATER SUPPLY AND USE STATUS REPORT 

December 7,2004 

Prepared by Staff of the Casitas Municipal Water District: 
Steven E. Wickstrum, Principal Civil Engineer 
Leo Lentsch, Fisheries Biologist and Steelhead Enhancement Program Manager 

Reviewed by: John J. Johnson, General Manager, Casitas Municipal Water District 

Peer Review By: MBK Engineers - Mark Van Camp 
Entrix - David Blankenhorn 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Purpose . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 
Background . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  i . . 

Definitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 
Previous Water Supply and Use Studies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 
Recent Water SupplyIUse Changes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 

Current Water Supply and Use Study . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Water Supply 4 

Water Use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 
Balancing Use with Supply . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 

Findings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Critical Drought Period (1945- 1965) 4 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Reservoir Recovery Period (1 966- 1980) 4 
Balancing Water Use with Available Supplies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 

Other Factors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 
Concl~isions and Recommendations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8 

Appendix A . Casitas MWD Water Supply Predictions 

Appendix B . Casitas MWD Water Deliveries and Use Predictions 

Appendix C . Casitas MWD Water Allocation Assignments 

Appendix D . System Losses 

Appendix E . Peer Reviews 
District Comments to the Peer Reviews 
Peer Review by MBK Engineers 
Peer Review by Entrix 



Table No. 

INDEX OF TABLES 

Predicted available Water Supply and Water Use - Drought Period 9 
Predicted available Water Supply and Water Use - Recovery Period 10 
Comparisons for the Level of Reductions in Water Use to Balance 1 1  
Variability of Diversions for Study Conditions I2 

Predicted Water Supply - Drought Period, 1959 Criteria with Matilija Dam A14 
Predicted Water Supply - Drought Period, 1959 Criteria without Matilija Dam A 15 
Predicted Water Supply - Drought Period, BO Criteria with Matilija Dam A16 
Predicted Water Supply - Drought Period, BO Criteria without Matilija Dam A 17 
Predicted Water Supply - Recovery Period, 1959 Criteria with Matilija Dam A 18 
Predicted Water Supply - Recovery Period, 1959 Criteria without Matilija Dam A 19 
Predicted Water Supply - Recovery Period, BO Criteria with Matilija Dam A20 
Predicted Water Supply - Recovery Period, BO Criteria without Matilija Dam A2 I 

Casitas Water Deliveries to the System and Rainfall 
Water Deliveries Adjustment - City of Ventura Agreement 
Water Year Ranking - Rainfall Totals 
Trendline Comparison 
Dry Period Escalation of Deliveries 
Estimated Water Delivery based on Polynomial Trend and Escalating Trend 
Deliveries Verification 
Trend and Actual Water Deliveries Comparison - 1966 through 2003 
Estimated Water use for the Recovery Study Period - 1966 through 1980 

District Allocation Assignments C4 

Water Deliveries, Metered Use and System Losses D3 



INDEX OF FIGURES 

Figure No. 

A1 
A2 
A3 
A4 
A5 
A6 

B1 
B2 
B3 
B4 
B5 
B6 
B7 
B8 
B9 
B 10 
B l l  
B 12 
B 13 
B 14 

Lone-term precipitation patterns as recorded at the Matilija Gage 1868-200 1 
Ventura River Watershed (Entrix) 
Key Elements of the Ventura River Water Supply 
Potential Effect of Matilija Reservoir Operations on Ventura River Flows 
Comparisons of the Storage Volume in Lake Casitas - Drought Period 
Comparisons of the Storage Volume in Lake Casitas - Recovery Period 

Casitas Water Deliveries to the System and Rainfall (1975 to 2003) 
Historical Deliveries, Agricultural Water Sales and Rainfall (1976 to 2002) 
Historical Agricultural and Residential Water Sales and Rainfall (1 976 to 2002) 
Historical Gravity and Pumped Resale Water Sales and Rainfall ( 1 976 to 2002) 
Historical Business, Industry and Other Water Sales and Rainfall (1976 to 2002) 
Adjustments to Annual Water Deliveries - City of Ventura Agreement 
Average Water Deliveries based on 10-inch Rainfall Increments ( 1976 to 2002) 
Average Water Deliveries based on 10-inch Rainfall Increments ( 1984 to 2002) 
Escalating Trend for 1984 to 1990 Dry Period 
Escalating Trend for 1986 to 1990 Dry Period 
Estimated Water Deliveries for Period 1945 thru 1965 
Deliveries Verification - Comparison of Trend Equations and Actual Deliveries 
Trend Estimated Water Deliveries and Actual Deliveries - 1966 thru 2003 
Estimated Water Deliveries for Recovery Period - 1966 thru 1980 B 15 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

WATER SUPPLY AND USE STATUS REPORT 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the status of water supply and use for the 
Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas) and suggest strategies for meeting water use in the 
future. 

BACKGROUND 

Quantifying water supply and use patterns in the Ventura River Basin can be a complicated task. 
To aide in the understanding of these patterns and their implications to water management activities, 
this section provides useful definitions of water supply and use terms, describes previous water 
supply and use studies, and summarizes recent changes to water supply and use within the district. 

Water Supply: Quantity of water managed by Casitas. 
This term refers to the quantity of surface water and groundwater resources managed by Casitas 
within the Ventura River Basin. 

Safe Yield: Rate at which the available water supply can be "safely" depleted. 
This term was defined by Meinzer (1) as "the rate at which water can be withdrawn from an aquifer 
for human use without depleting the supply to such an extent that the withdrawal at this rate is 
harmful to the aquifer itself, or to the quantity of water, or is no longer economically feasible." The 
calculation of safe yield for Casitas is based on the storage volume of Lake Casitas (the aquifer), the 
surface water and groundwater supply managed by Casitas, and the length of time that the water 
supply needs to last (i.e. longest drought on record). The safe yield value is an interpolated value 
that is held constant over the period of the critical drought, bringing the level of storage to the 
desired minimum volume. 

Water Use: Quantity of water delivered from Lake Casitas to the conveyance system, as measured 
at the start of the system at Casitas Dam. 
This term is used to describe the volume of water that is directly taken from the available water 
supply. Casitas measures the rate of water use by quantifying the amount of water delivered to the 
water distribution system from Lake Casitas. The measurement of water use is performed through 
the use of accurate flow tube sensors. 

Metered Water Sales: Quantity of water that is metered and sold at the individual service 
connections in the water distribution system. 

Page 1 



This term refers to the summation of the quantity water measured through water service connections 
within the Casitas district. The metered water sales are categorized by the type of customer (i.e. 
residential, business, resale, and agriculture) and summarized on an annual basis. 

Water Allocation: Quantity of water assigned to service connections. 
This term refers to the primary tool used by Casitas to manage the quantity of water used by 
customers (i.e. metered water sales). Service connections are assigned an allocation (limited 
quantity of water). Residential, business, industrial, resale, and interdepartmental service 
connections have individual allocations. Agricultural service connections are combined into a 
single allocation for the entire group. The allocation program was designed as a price-driven water 
conservation measure that provides for a base cost that escalates once metered water sales exceed 
service connection allocations. 

PREVIOUS WATER SUPPLY AND USE STUDIES 

The ability of local water supplies to meet demands was evaluated by the Bureau of Reclamation, in 
the 1954 evaluation of Ventura River Project, and later by the District during the 1989 drought 
period. Each of these evaluations considered the ability of Lake Casitas storage, under the 
hydrology determined as the most critical drought period of record, to meet the water demands of 
the District's service area. The critical drought period of record is considered to have occurred 
during 1944 through 1965. The findings of each report are summarized in a memorandum prepared 
by Richard Barnett, dated June 7, 1989, were as follows: 

1) The safe yield of Lake Casitas without an integrated Matilija Dam was 21,500 acre-feet, and 
2 1,920 with Matilija Dam as a part of the system; 

2) The estimated total water supplies in the District service area was 30,907 acre-feet and the 
water demands for the same service area were approximately 30,320 acre-feet; 

3) The District should consider implementing a variety of alternatives for balancing water 
supply and demand. 

In 1989, the District's service area was in the middle of a short-term drought that began in 1987 and 
ended in March 1992. The Ventura River and Ojai groundwater basins were being depleted and 
Lake Casitas water storage dropped to near fifty percent capacity. The District-wide water usage 
was beginning to escalate because of the lack of rainfall and the depletion of groundwater supplies. 
The Casitas Municipal Water District recognized that water use was very rapidly approaching the 
availability of supply (Barnett Memorandum, June 7, 1989) and that the District needed to apply 
strategies to meet future water needs. The District moved to a temporary moratorium on providing 
new water service connections. The moratorium continued for approximately two years until an 
additional 300 acre-feet of water was developed from Mira Monte Well. The Mira Monte Well 
supply, therefore, was available for issuance of new water service connections. 

During the 1990's, the drought pattern ended with the occurrence of three heavy rainfall years 
(1992, 1995, and 1998). Lake Casitas and the groundwater basins filled to full capacity. The 
District continued to issue new service connections on the basis of water made available from the 
Mira Monte Well supply. The addition of new water service connections in the District's service 
area grew slowly, averaging approximately 25 new service connections each year for the 1990's. 

Page 2 



One major water use change occurred in 1991. The City of San Buenaventura reduced their use of 
Casitas water due of the lack of filtration treatment of Lake Casitas water supplies. The City 
purchased 9,510 acre-feet during 1989 and reduced water purchases to only 1,370 acre-feet in 1992. 
The reduction in metered water sales by the City continued until 1997, when the District finally met 
the filtration requirements. The City and the District came to agreement that the annual metered 
water sales to the City from Casitas supplies would be a minimum of 6,000 acre-feet. 

In 1997, the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) listed anadromous steelhead in Southern 
California as endangered under the Endangered Species Act. The Ventura River Basin has been 
identified as important spawning habitat for Southern California steelhead. A result of this listing 
was the requirement for the District to construct a fish passage facility at the Robles Diversion Dam 
and change the Robles Diversion operational release criteria to one that provided additional 
downstream release of flows for fish passage. The issuance of the Biological Opinion (BO) by the 
NMFS in March 2003 set into place the revised operational criteria for the Robles Diversion Dam 
and Fish Passage Facility. The change of operational criteria for the Robles Diversion Facility has 
caused Casitas to take immediate management actions to ensure the protection of long-term water 
supplies. 

On April 23,2003, Casitas suspended the issuance of new water service connections. The 
suspension has remained in effect through June 8,2004. It will remain in effect as long as deemed 
necessary by the Casitas Board of Directors. Since suspending new service connections, Casitas 
has implemented water conservation measures, evaluated potential supplies of additional water, and 
initiated an evaluation of water supply and use within the district. The purpose of this narrative is 
to present results of the water supplyluse analysis. 

Another significant potential change to Casitas water supplies is the future disposition of Matilija 
Dam. This facility is presently being evaluated for the potential decommissioning and removal. 
Sediment deposition in the Matilija Reservoir has reduced the water storage volume behind Matilija 
Dam to approximately 600 acre-feet. NMFS has made the determination that the dam structure is a 
barrier to steelhead migration. The goals of the project proponents are to promote the migration of 
steelhead to the upper reaches of the Matilija Creek and enhance movement of sediment to Ventura 
County beaches. The removal of the Matilija Dam could impact water supply and water quality for 
both the short term and long term. It is important, therefore, for Casitas to have a clear 
understanding of these potential impacts. 

CURRENT WATER SUPPLY AND USE STUDY 

This study evaluated the: (1) potential impact of the Robles BO operating criteria and the removal 
of Matilija Dam on the Casitas water supply, (2) the effect of predicted water use on the Casitas 
water supply, and (3) levels of reductions in water use required to balance water supply and use. 
The study applies hydrology information from 1945 through 1965 as the critical drought period and 
information from 1966 through 1980 as the reservoir recovery period. These periods have empirical 
hydrology information that provide an opportunity to model different operating scenarios for the 
Robles Diversion Facility. 

Page 3 



The Casitas water supply was evaluated with a reservoir routing model. It included application of 
the Robles BO Operating Criteria and the 1959 Trial Operating Criteria for Robles Diversion 
Facility during the drought and reservoir recovery periods. The evaluation also considered the 
benefit of Matilija Dam to water supply. The methods, assumptions, and summaries that were 
applied and developed for the water supply evaluations are outlined in Appendix A. 

Predictions for Casitas water use were developed for the drought and reservoir recovery periods. 
Empirical information on the quantity of water delivered to the conveyance system was limited to 
the post 1959 period. Therefore, a model to predict Casitas water use for the drought (1 945- 1965) 
and reservoir recovery (1966-1980) periods was developed. The predicted water use is based on 
recent historical trends o water use in the District's service area and annual rainfall records for both 
periods. The methods, assumptions, and summaries that were applied and developed for the water 
use predictions are outlined in Appendix B. 

BALANCING USE WITH SUPPLY 

To determine the level of reduction required to balance water use (Appendix B) with water supply 
(Appendix A), for any operational scenarios that predicted a water shortage, four different scenarios 
were evaluated. These included: (1) a constant percent reduction in use, (2) a staged reduction in 
use, (3) an inverse staged reduction in use, and (4) a volume reduction in use. Implementation of 
any reduction in use, at this point, would rely on the Casitas Allocation Program. Casitas adopted 
the water allocation program to primarily provide water use guidelines and reductions in the event 
of a prolonged drought. Appendix C provides an assessment of the current level of allocation 
issued by the District and direction on further action on this program. 

FINDINGS 

The critical drought study period represents the longest drought on record. Within the Ventura 
River Basin the longest drought on record occurred between the 1945 and 1965 water years. A 
numerical summary of the analytical results for the critical drought period is provided in Table 1. 

Water Supply and Safe Yield: With the Matilija Dam remaining in operation, the reservoir routing 
model predicted the annual Lake Casitas safe yield for the 1959 Trial Operating Criteria and the 
Biological Opinion Operating Criteria at 22,770 and 21,630 acre-feet, respectively. The reduction 
of the annual safe yield, when moving from the 1959 Operating Criteria to the Robles BO Operating 
Criteria, is approximately 1,140 acre-feet. The total difference of safe yield volume of water that 
would accumulate through the change in operational criteria at Robles Diversion Dam over the 21- 
year critical dry period is 23,940 acre-feet. In the event Matilija Dam is decommissioned and 
removed, the available supply under the Robles BO Operating Criteria will be further reduced by 

Page 4 



790 acre-feet. Under this scenario, the annual safe yield supply for the drought period would be 
20,840 acre-feet. The difference between the annual safe yield available supplies under the 1959 
Trial Operating Criteria with Matilija Dam and the Robles BO Operating Criteria without Matilija 
Dam is 1,930 acre-feet. 

Predicted Water Use. Predicted water use patterns for this study period illustrated that consecutive 
dry year water demands could place stress water supplies in Lake Casitas. Based on the rainfall 
patterns of the critical drought period, the predicted average annual water use is 21,200 acre-feet, as 
shown on Table B6. The maximum to minimum values of predicted annual water use, based on 
consecutive dry year trend equation, is 27,057 and 15,610 acre-feet, respectively. 

Comparison between Water Supply and Water Use. Water supplies exceeded water use, throughout 
the study period, in all but one operational scenario: Robles BO operating criteria without benefit of 
Matilija (Table 1). In this case, water use could exceed supplies by approximately 360 acre-feet per 
year. Over the 2 1 -year study period, this annual difference could accumulate to a deficiency of 
supply in the amount of 7,560 acre-feet. 

The recovery period represents the hydrologic patterns immediately following the critical drought 
study period. For this analysis, it occurred from the time Lake Casitas would be at its lowest 
storage volume (as a result of drought conditions) until the reservoir was at full storage capacity. 
This time period was occurred form the 1965 through the 1980 water years. In actual perspective, 
this was the actual period that Lake Casitas went from a newly created lake to full capacity. A 
numerical summary of the analytical results for the reservoir recovery period is provided in Table 2. 

Water Supply and Yield: Yield, for this study period, was determined by iteratively applying a 
constant rate of depletion to the water supply in Lake Casitas until a value was reached where the 
reservoir filled at the same point in time as the D20 study (February 1980). This approach was 
applied to each of the operational scenarios. Under the wetter conditions of this study period, the 
yield values vary from a maximum of 24,180 acre-feet under the 1959 Trial Operating Criteria with 
Matilija Dam, to a minimum of yield value of 19,780 acre-feet under the BO Operating Criteria 
without Matilija Dam. 

Predicted Water Use. The higher rainfall years represented in the recovery study period tended to 
reduce water use within the District's service area. The average annual predicted water use for the 
period is 18,820 acre-feet, as shown on Table B9. The maximum to minimum range of predicted 
water use, based on consecutive dry year trend equation, are 22,704 and 15,249 acre-feet, 
respectively. These reduction in predicted water use, from that experienced during the drought 
cycle, is primarily due to lower quantities of water used for agriculture. For orchard crops, less 
water is required from Lake Casitas during the wet periods. 

Comparison between Water Supply and Water Use. Under all four of the operational criteria 
conditions studied for the reservoir recovery period, the available yield (water supply) values are 
higher than the predicted water use values. The conclusion that could be developed is that under 
actual use conditions, the storage of Lake Casitas may restore to full capacity in less time than with 
theoretical yield values. The rate at which the reservoir fills would be diminished by moving from 

Page 5 



the historical 1959 Operational Criteria to the Robles BO Operating Criteria, and is further 
diminished with the loss of Matilija Dam. The risk of having Lake Casitas fill at a slower rate is 
that the reservoir may not achieve full storage capacity before onset of another long-term drought 
period. 

BALANCING WATER USE WITH AVAILABLE SUPPLIES 

The application of the Biological Opinion Criteria, at this time, is in place and will be the method 
by which the District operates the Robles Diversion Dam and Fish Passage Facility. The loss of 
reservoir storage resulting from the decommissioning of Matilija Dam or the sediment deposition of 
the remaining storage volume appears to be inevitable. Given these conditions, the District must 
continue to balance water use with the available water supply. In addition to the many options that 
have been prescribed by past studies and staff recommendations, this evaluation has further 
reviewed the application of mandatory reductions to water use during the study period. 

Reduced Water Use through Conservation and/or Mandatory Use Curtailment. The District 
reviewed four different methods of water use reduction (Table 3). The key differences between the 
methods are the level of reduction and the time at which each reduction was applied. The goal of 
the reduction is to bring the average annual water use during the critical dry period to as close to the 
safe yield level of supply availability found with the Robles BO Operating Criteria (20,869 acre- 
feet) without the benefit of Matilija Reservoir. 

The four different magnitudes and sequences of water use reductions were applied to the supply in 
such a manner that resulted in depleting Lake Casitas to minimum pool storage by the end of the 
critical dry period. The patterns of each water use reduction are presented in Table 3, along with 
the summaries for the safe yield and predicted water use values. 

Prior to the implementation of any of these programs, the District should carefully consider the 
acceptability of water use reduction impacts to the water user, the realistic ability to attain such 
reductions, and the desirable frequency of causing the reductions. It is important to distinguish 
between curtailment and conservation. Conservation measures should focus on the long-term and 
lasting efficiencies that do not affect the quality of life. Curtailment measures focus on short term, 
temporary actions that may impact quality of life. The course of the District should consider the 
acceptability of the impacts on the quality of life cause by either conservation or curtailment. 

OTHER FACTORS 

During the study, there were several other issues that deserved acknowledgement and consideration 
by the District. These issues were not included in the development of the study's data or 
computations, but may be relevant points to include in the development of strategies and assessment 
of risks for managing the District's water supplies. 

Minimum Lake Elevation. All studies on the Lake Casitas safe yield considered the extraction of 
water from Lake Casitas to a minimum pool. There may be some impacts that could arise when 
minimum pool is approached in Lake Casitas, such as: 

Page 6 



Water Quality - the degree of the water quality impacts are unknown at this time. There 
is a potential for concentrating salts, organics, elements (manganese andlor boron) and 
nutrients as the water volume diminishes to minimum pool. Warm, shallow water may 
also promote the growth of algae, which in turn could lead to taste and odor problems in 
the drinking water supply. Storm runoff events into the minimum pool may have 
elevated turbidity that may exceed the capability of existing water treatment plant. Plant 
growth in the exposed beach areas of the lake may add to organic loading as the lake 
recovers its storage and the plant materials decay. 

Water Delivery to the Distribution System -a certain level of water storage in Lake 
Casitas in order to adequately supply water to the distribution system. The District will 
have to consider other pump facilities (and associated costs), perhaps even barge pumps 
set into the lake, in order to move water through the treatment plant into the distribution 
system. 

Recreation - the recreational opportunities are likely to be diminished at minimum pool. 
Boating and fishing would likely be curtailed, and the lack revenue generation from 
these activities may impact the District's ability to maintain recreation. 

The study has indicated that the change of the minimum pool setting has a direct relationship to the 
safe yield value. For each 20,000 acre-feet of storage above minimum pool it is desired to add to 
the lake storage, there is a 1,000 acre-foot reduction impact to the safe yield value. The reduction of 
the safe yield of Lake Casitas in order to lessen the chance of impacts of minimum pool may not be 
the District's preferred solution. 

Losses at Robles Diversion Dam. The District is in the process of constructing the fish passage 
facility. There may be inherent operational problems at the facility that could interfere with ability 
to divert water to Lake Casitas. These factors have not been quantified and were not included in the 
study conditions for diversion. The key problems that may occur are (1) the loss of water transfer 
through the fish screens, the plugging of the fine meshed screen that is used to protect fish from 
entering the Robles-Casitas Canal, and (2) silt deposition in the diversion facility that may be 
associated with the loss of Matilija Dam. This may be a target area for the District to document and 
develop data during future operations of the Robles Diversion and Fish Passage Facility. 

Increase in Groundwater Extractions above Robles Diversion Dam. The study included the level of 
groundwater extraction that has historically occurred above Robles Diversion Dam. If there is an 
increase in the amount of groundwater extractions, there may be some impact to the amount of 
water available for diversion to Lake Casitas. 

Socio-economic Impacts Associated with Water Use Reductions. The study has developed the 
values for safe yield and water use, and further reviewed the trends from applying water reductions. 
There are several issues that the decision-makers must consider when applying the water reduction 
measures. What level of water use reduction is attainable? What are the acceptable and 
unacceptable impacts to the water user's lifestyle and economic interest (agriculture, oil industry, 
tourism, and the residences of the service area)? Are the requests for water use reduction frequent 
andfor of long duration? These are questions that should be addressed as the District moves 
forward with the management of water supplies. 

Page 7 



Variability of Supply. The Ventura River system is a highly variable water system with erratic and 
unpredictable periods of drought and rainfall. It should be noted that there is a large variation in the 
annual diversions, and thus the ability to restore supply, in both the drought and recovery periods. 
Table 4 provides a summary of the mean annual diversions, the range and confidence interval (CI) 
for diversions, under various study conditions. The water supply is highly variable in its occurrence 
over time. Small changes to climate or the natural sequences of rainfall events from the actual 
events of both periods can have an impact on the availability of water supply. 

System Losses: Water losses occur within the Casitas water distribution system. Theoretically, the 
difference between water deliveries to the conveyance system and metered water sales represents 
system losses. Appendix D provides an explanation of water losses within the distribution system. 
Appendix D also provides an explanation of the significant differences between terms used by 
Casitas, and their relationship to actual data that is recorded by Casitas. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

The methods and model presented in this study provide decision-makers a tool for determining the 
level and timing of water use reductions needed to ensure a safe water supply. Water supply and 
use in the Casitas Municipal Water District has reached a balance and may be moving towards 
imbalance with the recently proposed changes to the water supply system. 

During the course of developing the reservoir model and applying the individual runoff data, staff 
noted the sensitivity of the regional hydrology to each storm event or series of rainfall events. 
Given this potential for variation, it needs to be noted that small changes in hydrological patterns 
could result in different conclusions from this study. 

In order to continue to meet future water demands and drought-proof the Casitas Municipal Water 
District service area, Casitas should actively develop and pursue a water conservation management 
program and while developing and implementing a strategy to secure alternative water supplies. 
Casitas should also perform a thorough accounting of the service connection allocations issued to 
date and propose to make adjustments to those allocations, where adjustments can be reasonably 
made, to benefit long-term water supply and continued water use by the customer. 

Page 8 



Table 1. Predicted available water supply and water use for the Casitas Municipal Water 
District based on hydrologic conditions for the longest drought on record in the Ventura 
River Basin (1945-1965 water years). 

Robles BO Predicted 
Water Supply and Use 

Drought Period 

1959 

(1945-1965 WY) 
Average Annual Volume of water1 (AF/YR) 

Operating Criteria 
With 1 Without 

Ventura River Supply 
Ventura River Flows (Inflow to Robles Facility) 
Water Loss (Robles Facility Operations) 
Water Bypassed at Robles Facility 
Water Diverted to Lake Casitas 

Lake Casitas Supply 
Water Captured from Tributaries 
Net Water Loss (Evaporation-Rainfall) 

District Supply and Use: 21 - Year Period 
Safe Yield: Available supply2 

Operating Criteria 
With 1 Without 

Matilija 

1 ,  , 
Venture River Flows (Inflow to Robles Facility) 
Water Loss (Robles Facility Operations) 
Water Bypassed at Robles Facility 
Water Diverted to Lake Casitas 

16,850 
(1,290) 

7,560 
8,000 

6,000 
(2,630) 

Lake Casitas Supply 
Water Captured from Tributaries 
Net Water Loss (Evaporation-Rainfall) 

Difference between supply and use 1 32,970 1 23,310 1 

Matilija 

353,850 
(27,090) 
158,760 
168,000 

District Supply and Use: 21 - Year Period 
Safe Yield: Available Supply2 

(Lake Casitas plus Mira Monte Well) 
Water Use: Deliveries to Water Distribution Svstem 

16,850 
(1,290) 

8,020 
7,540 

6,000 
(2,630) 

20,840 

21,200. 
(360) 

(Lake Casitas plus Mira Monte Well) 
22,310 21,630 

126,000 
(55,230) 

Page 9 

Matilija 

Water Use: Deliveries to Water Distribution System 
Difference between supply and use 

Total Volume of water1 (AF) 
Ventura River Su~Div 

353,850 
(27,090) 
168,420 
158,340 

478,170 

445,200 

I 

Matilija 1 

16,850 
(1,290) 

8,700 
6,860 

6,000 
(2,630) 

126,000 
(55,230) 

I I I 

16,850 
(1,290) 

9,490 
6,070 

6,000 1 
(2,630) 

21,200 
1,570 

353,850 
(27,090) 
182,700 
144,060 

468,510 

445,200 

1 Predicted values were based on methods outlined in Appendix A and B. Values presented in 
this table were rounded to the closest 10 AF. Furthermore, they are subject to revision following 
peer review. 
2:These estimates were based on the same hydrologic period used in the Kienlen D20 study: 
October 1, 1944 through October 1, 1966. The safe yield was calculated by setting an annual 
extraction value that forced the reservoir to decrease from 237,890 AF to 4,800 for this period. 

353,850 
(27,090) 
199,290 
127,470 

126,000 
(55,230) 

21,200 
1,110 

126,000 
(55,230) 

454,230 

445,200 

21,200 
430 

437,640 

445,200 



Table 2. Predicted available water supply and water use for the Casitas Municipal Water 
District based on hydrologic conditions for the period immediately following the longest 
drought on record in the Ventura River Basin (1966-1980 water years). 

Robles BO 
Operating Criteria 
With 1 Without I 

Predicted 
Water Supply and Use 

Recovery Period 
(1966-1980 WY) 

Average Annual Volume of water1 (AF/YR) 
Ventura River Supply 

1959 
Operating Criteria 
With 1 Without 

Water captured from Tributaries 
Net Water Loss (Evaporation-Rainfall) 

this table were rounded to the closest 10 AF. Furthermore, they are subject to revision following 
peer review. 
2: These estimates were based on the same hydrologic period used in the Kienlen D20 study to 
fill the reservoir: October 1966 through February 1980. The yield was calculated by setting an 
annual extraction value that allowed the reservoir to increase from 4,800 AF to 254,000 AF within 
this period. 

Matilija 

District Supply and Use: 15- Year Period 
Yield: Available supply2 

(Lake Casitas plus Mira Monte Well) 

Page 10 

325,500 
(55,050) 

Matilija 

--- 
Ventura River Flows (Inflow to Robles Facility) 
Water Loss (Robles Facility Operations) 
Water Bypassed at Robles Facility 
Water Diverted to Lake Casitas 

Lake Casitas Supply 
Water Captured from Tributaries 
Net Water Loss (Evaporation-Rainfall) 

District Supply and Use: 15- Year Period 
p 

(Lake Casitas plus Mira Monte Well) 
Water Use: Deliveries to Water Distribution System 
Difference between supply and use 

362,700 

45,590 
(1,690) 
22,850 
21,050 

21,700 
(3,670) 

23,500 

18,820 
4,680 

683,850 
(25,350) 
- 342,750 
315,750 

45,590 
(1,690) 
22,100 
21,800 

21,700 
(3,670) 

24,180 

18,820 
5,360 

325,500 
(55,050) 

282,300 

Mati l~ja 

352,500 

Difference between supply and use 

Matilija 

1 

45,590 
(1,690) 
25,000 
18,900 

21,700 
(3,670) 

---- 

21,180 

18,820 
2,360 

---- 

683,850 
(25,350) 
375,000 
283,500 

Ventura River Supply 
Ventura River Flows (Inflow to Robles Facility) 
Water Loss (Robles Facility Operations) 
Water Bypassed at Robles Facility 

325,500 
(55,050) 

45,590 
(1,690) 
26,460 
17,440 

21,700 
(3,670) 

19,780 

18,820 - 

960 

683,850 
.(25,350) 
396,900 
261,600 

683,850 
(25,350) 
- 331,500 - 

325,500 
(55,050) . 

317,700 

1 Predicted values were based on methods outlined in Appendix A and B. Values presented in 

80,400 

296,700 

Water Diverted to Lake Casitas 
Lake Casitas SUDDIY 

70,200 

327,000 

35,400 14,400 



Table 3. Comparisons for the level of reductions in water use needed to balance water 
supply and use during a critical drought period without the benefit of Matilija Reservoir. 

I All Years I 
I I I I I I 

I I I I I I 

1. Changes to the level of use reduction correspond with periods when Lake Casitas would drop below 127,000 

and 65,000 Af of storage. 

Page 11 



Table 4. Variability of Diversions for Study Conditions - Drought and Recovery Periods 

1 

I I 

1959 Criteria 1 7,996 I *6,087 

Annual Diversion Rate (Acre-ft) 

Drought Period 

1 Robles BO Criteria 1 6,861 1 *5,169 

With Ma 

1 Recovery Period 
I I 

Mean 

Difference 

Robles BO Criteria ]8,905 *9,953 

95%CI 

I I 

Difference 1 2,895 1 *1,924 

1,134 Â±95 

lija 
Range 

Without Matilija 
Range Mean 95%CI 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Appendix A - Casitas MWD Water Supply Predictions 

Introduction 

The reliability of water storage in Casitas Reservoir to adequately meet water use patterns 
through drought periods is dependent on the hydrology of the Ventura River Basin and 
the water use demands placed on reservoir storage. It is not possible to predict future 
weather patterns, and thus the hydrology, to an exact degree. The observation of recent 
weather and hydrology of the basin may provide adequate information that can be applied 
to a reservoir routing study. Determining the reliability of a water storage reservoir 
requires the review of relevant historical hydrology of the drainage basin and the 
assumption that the hydrology will repeat itself, in some manner, on a reliable basis 
(Figure Al). Further, determining the reliability of a water storage reservoir must also 
consider and apply system changes and influences that have or will occur in the 
foreseeable future. 

Long-term Precipitation Pattern 
Matilija Dam Gage 

80.00 
- . - . -  - .Annual Precipitation 1 
-7-Year Running Mean 

Calendar Year 

Figure Al .  Long-term precipitation pattern as recorded at the Matilija Gage 1868-2001. 

The District has compiled, to the best of their knowledge, the assumptions and historical 
data to develop a reservoir routing model that will consider the changes and influences 
that are foreseen at this time. 

Page A1 



Appendix A 

Background 

Water Supply Predictions 

The Ventura River watershed encompasses approximately 228 square miles in western 
Ventura County as illustrated in Figure A2. The area is subject to a Mediterranean type 
climate, with long periods of no rainfall followed by short periods of intense rainfall and 
high runoff peaks (1). The hydrology of the Ventura River system has been well 
documented since the early 1900's. 

In the early 1940's, the agricultural communities in the Ventura River basin realized the 
inability of the local groundwater supplies to support water uses during drought periods. 
The first move to supplementing groundwater supplies was construction of Matilija Dam 
in the late 1940's. It was not long before the community leaders determined that the 
Matilija Dam project had limited value to water supplies and replenishment of the Ojai 
groundwater basin, particularly during long-term drought conditions. The next step, that 
the local communities pursued, to develop reliable water supplies was the construction of 
the Ventura River Project, under the guidance and initial funding of the United States 
Bureau of Reclamation. 

The key components of the Ventura River Project were the Robles Diversion Dam, 
Robles-Casitas Canal, Casitas Dam, Casitas Reservoir, and the water distribution system 
(pipelines, pump plants, and steel reservoirs). Casitas Reservoir provides 254,000 acre- 
feet of reservoir water storage while Robles diversion system provides a maximum of 
500 cubic feet per second conveyance capacity from the Ventura River to Casitas 
Reservoir. Figure A3 presents a representation of the river and water delivery system. 
The Casitas Reservoir and Robles diversion system became operable in January 1959. 
Since the initial operation of the Robles Diversion Dam and canal, the District operated 
diversions and downstream releases in accordance with a given set of guidelines, 
formally referred to as the 1959 Trial Operating Criteria (hereafter 1959 Operating 
Criteria) for the Robles Diversion Dam. The operating criteria provided for a minimum 
of 20 cfs bypass, when more than 20 cfs was available at Robles Diversion Dam, and 
criteria for bypassing less than 20 cfs when downstream aquifers were in full condition. 

In 1998, the listing of the steelhead as an endangered species, and the desire to return the 
species to the Ventura River, led to changes in the operating criteria for Robles Diversion 
Dam (Robles Biological Opinion Operating Criteria: hereafter Robles BO Operating 
Criteria). In 2002, there developed an interest in the removal of Matilija Dam and 
restoration of steelhead migration to all mainstem reaches of the Ventura River. The 
County of Ventura is presently considering the full-scale removal of Matilija Dam. 

Water Supply Prediction Components 

An adequate water supply study must identify the periods and provide adequate data, 
andlor relatively sound basis for assumptions, to apply to the reservoir routing for each 

Page A2 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

LpNF BoUndaV Cahada Larga Creek ~ C O U ~ ~ Y  Boundary Figure 2-1 
Stream Coyote Creek LÃ‘ City Boundary Ventura River 

Road Matili~a Creek Ã‘ water ~ o d y  Watershed Zones 1 
~~ght-duty road = N F O ~  MatlI~ja C-eek U ventura River Watershed 
Seconcary highway -- San Antonio Creek - Primary hichwav IB̂ B Ventura River 

Figure A2. Ventura River Watershed (excerpt from the Habitat Conservation Plan - Entrix) 

Page A3 



Appendix A Water Supply Precliction-i 

\ 

MATILIJA MATILIJA CREEK ABOVE MATILIJA DAM *'>% 

NORTH FORK 

USGS STATION # 4 5 0 0  , RESERVOIR MATILIJA CREEK 

1 6 MI U/S OF MATILIJA DAM + *  I 

- 5 -  
MATILIJA DAM ', ' ' x ,  

NORTH FORK MATILIJA CREEK 

MATILIJA CREEK AT MATILIJA HOT SPRINGS z:., USGS STATION # 6000 
USGS STATION # 5 5 0 0  0 8  MI U/S OF MATILIJA CREEK 
0 4 5  MI D/S OF MATILIJA DAM 

\ + MATILIJA GAGES 
SYNIT-IESIZED HYDROLOGY FOR 

ACCRETIONL: MATILIJA CREEK AN0 NORTH FORK 

EXTRACTIONS 

2 
- > 

, S-! OJAI 

I a * 
DIRECT INFLOW' G b ~ $  

(' 
NET EVAPORATION 

^ 
.Ĝ- - 

SANTA ANA 

COYOTE 
CREEK 

CREEK I 

LAKE  ASI IT AS -- 
254,000 A F  - ,. -- 

I I 

MAIN 

t, 
DELIVERIES TO 

CONVEYANCE SYSTEM I /  

(WATER U S E ) k f l ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  1 

\ ,  \\ ^ 
, METERED WATER SALES 
J J d l V  

ROBLES DIVERSION DAM & 
FISH PASSAGE FACILTY 

FOSTER PARK 
BRIDGE 

a 
$ 

CITY OF SAN 
BUENAVENTURA 

PACIFIC OCEAN 

OJAI GROUNDWATER BASIN 

Figure A3. KEY ELEMENTS OF THE VENTURA RIVER WATER SUPPLY 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

period. The outline provided in this appendix provides the supply data and assumptions 
that were applied in the reservoir routing analysis. 

There are two specific periods that the District is concerned with in the reservoir routing 
and determination of supply reliability. The first period is the longest period of drought. 
Assuming the reservoir is at full capacity, test the ability of the reservoir to withstand the 
longest drought of recent record. The second period is the recovery period of the 
reservoir from minimum storage level, after the reservoir has experienced the longest 
drought period, to full stage and ready for the next drought sequence. 

The District has identified the period of 1944 through 1965 as the longest period of 
drought. The hydrology of the period is well documented. Other factors such as the 
current demands for the water supply are represented by the data gathered for the period. 
Such data will have to be extrapolated from current conditions to meet the hydrology of 
the study period. 

The period of 1946 to 1980 has been identified as the recovery period. It is known that 
the Ventura River hydrology during the 1959 to 1978 period contributed to the initial 
filling of Casitas Reservoir to full capacity. Other factors and data, such as the demand 
for water supply and evaporation rates, may not be available from the study period or are 
not representative of current levels of influence. These factors must be reasonably 
developed from current data and trends, and then applied to the reservoir routing study. 
Many of these factors have been developed during prior studies and should be considered 
for this study. 

Water Supply Prediction Methods 

The analysis of water supply for Casitas Municipal Water District was derived from the 
methods used by Kienlen in the late 1980s and early 1990 to evaluate a series of 
alternatives for utilizing water supplies in the Ventura River Basin (Murray, Bums and 
Kienlen 1990). These methods developed a water balance model for the Ventura River 
Basin and Lake Casitas that accounted for: 1) surface flows in the Ventura River, Matilija 
Creek, North Fork Matilija Creek, Coyote Creek, and Santa Ana Creek; 2) groundwater 
and surface water extraction above Robles diversion; 3) flow accretion above Robles 
Diversion; 4) operational efficiency of the Robles Diversion; 5) evaporation and rainfall 
at Lake Casitas; and 6) an estimate of the available supply from Lake Casitas on an 
annual basis expressed as annual yield. For this analysis, the approach used by Kienlen 
for the D20 study was used as a basis for the calculations in this analysis. Since Kienlen 
performed the D20 analysis additional water supplies have been developed, new 
operational criteria for Robles have been established, methods have been refined, and 
understanding the role of Matilija Reservoir to Casitas water supply has become more 
important. Therefore, the methods and/or assumptions used in the Kienlen D20 analysis 
were modified as appropriate based on current and/or relevant information and methods. 

Page A5 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Ventura River Inflow to Robles 

This is an estimate of the volume of water flowing into the Robles facility. It is based on 
the hydrologic records from USGS gauging stations, operational criteria for Matilija 
Reservoir, an estimate of the volume of accretion flow between the gages and robles, and 
an estimate of the volume of water that is depleted between the gages and Robles. 

In review of the data from each gaging station and understanding that the Matilija Dam 
changed flows entering the Robles Diversion Dam location, the model had to consider 
development of the Ventura River hydrology with and without the influence of Matilija 
Dam. Records of flow above Matilija Dam had been gathered until 1969, at which time 
the station had been destroyed and not replaced. The synthesis of the hydrology has been 
determined by developing an unencumbered flow (no Matilija Dam) at the Matilija Creek 
at Matilija Hot Springs station and then combining with the flow recorded at the North 
Fork Matilija Creek station. Where no records of flow were gathered for above Matilija 
Dam (the period of 1969 to 1980), a correlation was used to develop the unencumbered 
flow. The correlations are described in the equations outlined in the following sections. 
This method provided the baseline hydrology for the upper Ventura River without the 
influence of the Matilija Dam, which is one of the conditions that was later applied to the 
scenarios of this study. From the baseline hydrology and the operational criteria for 
Matilija Dam, a second hydrology was synthesized for the condition of Matilija Dam in 
operation for the entire study period. To provide accurate estimates for these values, 
calculations were based on daily values. 

The combination of the synthesized hydrology for the Matilija Creek with the records for 
North Fork of the Matilija Creek has provided the flow values for water at the confluence 
of the Matilija Creek and the North Fork Matilija Creek. The term used for the 
combination of the records is "Matilija Gages". To develop the quantity of water that is 
available at the Robles Diversion Dam, the factors for accretion, upstream flow depletion 
and facility losses are applied to the "Matilija Gages" hydrology record. 

Drought Period Hydrology - October 1 1944 through September 30 1965 

1) Matilija Creek hydrology 
a. Empirical USGS gage records 

i. #5500: Matilija Hot Springs - October 1 1944 - May 3 1 1948 
ii. #4500: Above Matilija - June 1 1948 - September 30 1965 

2) North Fork Matilija Creek hydrology 
a. Empirical USGS gage records 

i. #6000: October 1 1944 - September 30 1965 

Reservoir Recovery Period Hydrology - October 1 1965 through September 30 1980 

1) Matilija Creek hydrology 
a. Empirical USGS gage records 

Page A6 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

i. #4500: October 1 1965 - September 30 1969 
ii. #5500: October 1 1973 - October 3 1 1973 

b. Daily flows predicted from NF Matilija daily USGS records 
i. Loss at Matilija Reservoir = 0.1 167% 

01) Added to Annual AF estimate for #5500 
ii. Equation: #5500 = ((Annual AF 5500lAnnual AF 4500)*#4500) 

iii. Estimated: October 1 1969 - September 30 1973 
iv. Estimated: November 1 1973 - September 30 1980 

2) North Fork Matilija Creek hydrology 
a. Empirical USGS gage records 

i. #6000: October 1 964 - September 30 1973 
ii. #6000: November 1 1973 - September 30 1978 

b. Flows predicted from Matilija Creek USGS daily records 
i. Equation: #6000 = (0.00003*(#5500A2))+(0.3 l58*#55OO) 

ii. Estimated: October 1 1973 - October 3 1 1973 

Matilija Reservoir Operations: Influence and Benefit 

1) Storage Capacity 
a. Maximum storage: 650 AF 
b. Minimum storage: 250 AF 

2) Operational Criteria 
a. Fill with storm events and available flows 
b. Reduce to minimum storage once full 

i. Generally post storm events (Figure A2) 
ii. Release up to 100- 150 cfs 

5000.0 
w- 
0 - 
& 4000.0 - - -Robles Inflow With Matilija 
0 

3000.0 - 
0 I 

Robles Inflow Without Matilija 
-- 

- -  - 
, , , l l ~ ~ i i  

C M C M C M  
in in in 

0 1 0 1 0 1  C $ t D  
CM 

C M C M C M  

C M C M C M  
i n i n i n  

0 1 0 1 :  
$ 5 2  
- - % G  .. .. 

Date 
- - -- 

Figure A4. Potential effect of Matilija Reservoir operations on Ventura River flows. 

Page A7 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Flow Accretion 
This is an estimate of the volume of water that is gained between the USGS gauging 
stations and the Robles Diversion. Accretion flows would generally occur in association 
with storm events. 

1) Variable - associated with rain events 

2) Applied to average daily combined flow at Matilija and North fork Matilija Creek 
gages 

3) Correction Factors: Applied to estimated average daily flow 
a. 0.05 increase applied to combined records from #5500 and #6000 gages 
b. 0.1 1 increase applied to combined records from #4500 and #6000 gages 

Flow Depletion /Extraction 
This is an estimate of the volume of water that is depleted between the gauges and Robles 
diversion. The volume of these depletions are generally related to water extractions via 
wells and surface diversions to beneficial water use, and replenishment of the 
groundwater aquifer. 

1) Characteristics: variable on a monthly basis 
i. . . 

11. . . . 
111. 
iv. 
V. 

vi. 
vii. ... 

Vlll. 
ix. 
X. 

xi. 
xii. 

October: 7.58% of annual extraction volume 
November: 5.35% of annual extraction volume 
December: 4.34% of annual extraction volume 
January: 4.75% of annual extraction volume 
February: 0.328% of annual extraction volume 
March: 4.94% of annual extraction volume 
April: 7.01% of annual extraction volume 
May: 10.41 % of annual extraction volume 
June: 14.06 % of annual extraction volume 
July: 1 6.1 8% of annual extraction volume 
August: 12.10% of annual extraction volume 
September: 9.99% of annual extraction volume 

b. Related to substrate perrneabilitylgroundwater recharge and extraction 
c. Dependent upon direct diversions 

2) Annual Estimates were used from the Kienlen D20 study 
a. Drought period: 

i. Up to 2800 @/yr 
ii. Average of 2,168 AFIyr for 1944-1965 period (1 1.8% of gages) 

b. Wet period: 
i. Up to 2,800 AFIyr 

ii. Average of 1,628 AF/yr for 1966 - 1980 period (3.7% of gages) 
c. Applied to average daily combined flow values from Matilija and North 

fork Matilija Creek gages 

Page A8 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Robles Diversion Operations 

This is an estimate of the volume of water flowing out of the Robles facility. It is based 
on the volume of water flowing into the facility (described above), water losses 
associated with facility operations, the volume of water available for diversion, diversion 
operational criteria, and the volume of water that bypasses the facility. To provide 
accurate estimates for these values, calculations were based on daily values. 

Facility Losses 
This is the volume of water loss from operating the diversion. It reduces the volume of 
water available for diversion. It is assumed that the majority of this volume of water goes 
subsurface and recharges groundwater aquifers. 

1) Estimates used from Kienlen D20 Study 
a. Drought period: average 1,321 AF (7.7% of inflow) 
b. Wet period: average 1,628 AF (3.7% of inflow) 
c. Applied to average daily flow coming into the Robles facility 

2) BOR (1959) estimated operational loss for the diversion at 5% 

Water Available for Diversion 
This is an estimate of the volume of water coming into the Robles Facility minus the 
volume of water loss due to operating the facility. 

Volume of Water Diverted 
This is the volume of water diverted into the Robles/Casitas Canal based on the 1959 and 
Robles BO operating criteria. 

1) 1959 Operating Criteria estimates: 
a. Operating period 

i. October 1 through June 30 
ii. Initiated after surface flows occur at Santa Ana Blvd Bridge 

iii. Diversion cease when storage volume in Lake Casitas reaches 
248,616 acre-feet (2 feet from spill elevation) 

b. Diversion volume 
i. Maximum diversion: 500 cfs . . 

11. Minimum diversion: 5 cfs 
c. Minimum release (if available) 

i. Surface flow at Santa Ana Blvd. Bridge: release 3 cfs 
1. Assume after 2nd storm, and 
2. Drought period: Cumulative Robles inflow >11,000 AFIyr 

. . 3. Recovery period: Cumulative Robles inflow >26,000 AFIyr 
11. No surface flow at Santa Ana Blvd. Bridge: release 20 cfs 

1. Kienlen study assumed 20 cfs releasehypass at all times 

Page A9 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

2) Robles BO operating criteria estimates 
a. Operating period 

i. Fish passage operating period criteria 
1. January 1 - June 3 0 
2. Initiate after lst storm event 

. . 3. Initiate if sandbar has breached 
11. 1959 operating criteria 

1. Apply whenever fish passage criteria are not met 

. . . 2. Initiated after October 1 
111. General criteria 

1. Diversions cease when the storage volume in Lake Casitas 
is 248,616 acre-feet (2 feet below spill elevation) 

b, Diversion volumes 
i. Maximum diversion: 500 cfs . . 

11. Minimum criteria: 5 cfs 
c. Fish releases (if available) 

(This is the quantity of water released off of the diversion canal to 
satisfy fish requirements outlined in the Robles BO and based on the 
volume of water flowing into the Robles Facility) 

i. Ratcheted release over 12 day period from 171 cfs to 30 cfs . . 
11. Associated with storm events ... 

111. Reduced fish releases would occur if Lake Casitas storage volume 
drops to < 100,000 AF and again at <65,000 AF through 
agreement and based on an equitable sharing of the temporary 
reduction in water allocations to customers (i.e. demonstrated 
reduction in water use) 

iv. Will cease if Lake Casitas storage volume is < 17,000 AF and until 
it reaches a volume of 65,000 AF 

d. Minimum release (if available) 
i. 30 cfs after first storm event and until June 30 

Volume of Water Bypassed. 
This is the total volume of water that bypasses the Robles Diversion facility. It includes 
the volume of water that is not diverted and bypasses the facility as well as the volume of 
water that is released from the RoblesICasitas canal for steelhead migration in the 
Ventura River. 

1) Estimation 
a. Kienlen D20 study: bypass = Total inflow - loss - diversions 
b. Drought period: 50.7% of inflow 
c. Wet period: 52.9% of inflow 
d. Entire period: 52.1% of inflow 

Page A10 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Lake Casitas Supply 
The supply of water in Lake Casitas is dependent upon inflows from the RoblesICasitas 
canal, Santa Ana Creek, Coyote Creek, and unnamed tributaries as well as reductions 
associated with evaporation. 

Volume from RoblesICasitas Canal 
This is the volume of water diverted to Lake Casitas from the Robles Diversion. It is 
based on the calculations described above. 

Santa Ana Creek 
This analysis used estimates from the Kienlen D20 study. 

Coyote Creek 
This analysis used estimates from the Kienlen D20 study 

Unnamed Tributaries 
This analysis used estimates from the Kienlen D20 study. 

Net Evaporation 
This analysis used estimates from the Kienlen D20 study. 

Mira Monte Well Supply 

Annual yield estimated at 300 AF per year. 

Safe Yield: Drought Period - Casitas Municipal Water District 

Safe yield is a risk management tool used to estimate the volume of water that can be 
withdrawn from a water supply to the extent that the withdrawal is not harmful to 
recreation, water quality, or physical facilities. Methods for this assessment were based 
on the previous safe yield studies conducted by the BOR and Kienlen. However, this 
study accounted for three additional supply factors that were not included in the Kienlen 
analysis: 1) under the 1959 operating criteria minimum releases could be 3 cfs under 
specific conditions; 2) Mira Monte well supply; and Matilija Reservoir supply. 

1) Estimates based of Kienlen D20 study variables and values: 
a. Timeframe: 2 1 years - 1945- 1965 water years 
b. Minimum pool: approximately 4800 AF (based on D20 study) 
c. Monthly Distribution of Yield: 

i. October: 7.12% of annual yield . . 
11. November: 6.07% of annual yield . . . 

111. December: 6.09% of annual yield 
iv, January: 6.69% of annual yield 
v. February: 4.5% of annual yield 

vi. March: 6.4 1 % of annual yield 

Page A1 1 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

vii. April: 7.59% of annual yield 
viii. May: 9.55% of annual yield 

ix. June: 10.99 % of annual yield 
x. July: 13.2% of annual yield 

xi. August: 12.04% of annual yield 
xii. September: 9.75% of annual yield 

2) Water supply from the Mira Monte well was included in the safe yield estimate: 
a. 300AFperyear 
b. Applied at a constant rate for each month 

3) Water supply from Matilija Reservoir was estimated. 

4) Safe yield estimates made for four scenarios 
a. 1959 Operating Criteria 

i. With and without Matilija 
b. Robles BO Operating Criteria 

i. With and Without Matilija 

Yield: Recovery Period - Casitas Municipal Water District 

Yield is used to estimate the volume of water that can be withdrawn from a water supply 
to the extent that the withdrawal allows the reservoir to fill in a timely fashion. Methods 
for this assessment were based on the timeframe in which the reservoir filled following 
the longest period on record from previous studies conducted by Kienlen. However, this 
study accounted for three additional supply factors that were not included in the Kienlen 
analysis: 1) under the 1959 operating criteria minimum releases could be 3 cfs under 
specific conditions; 2) Mira Monte well supply; and Matilija Reservoir supply. 

2) Estimates based of Kienlen D20 study variables and values: 
a. Timeframe: 15 years - 1966-1980 water years 
b. Initial pool: approximately 4800 AF (based on D20 study) 
c. Monthly Distribution of Yield: 

i. October: 7.12% of annual yield 
ii. November: 6.07% of annual yield 

iii. December: 6.09% of annual yield 
iv. January: 6.69% of annual yield 
v. February: 4.5% of annual yield 

vi. March: 6.41 % of annual yield 
vii. April: 7.59% of annual yield 

viii. May: 9.55% of annual yield 
ix. June: 10.99 % of annual yield 
x. July: 13.2% of annual yield 

xi. August: 12.04% ofannual yield 
xii. September: 9.75% of annual yield 

Page A1 2 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

2) Water supply from the Mira Monte well was included in the safe yield estimate: 
a. 300 AF per year 
b. Applied at a constant rate for each month 

3) Water supply from Matilija Reservoir was estimated. 

4) Safe yield estimates made for four scenarios 
c. 1959 Operating Criteria 

i. With and without Matilija 
d. Robles BO Operating Criteria 

i. With and Without Matilij a 

Water Supply Prediction Results 

The following Tables and Figures present summary information from the analysis 
described above. 

Page A13 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Table A l .  Predicted water supply for the 1945-1965-drought period based on the 1959 operating criteria and with the benefit of Matilija Reservoir. 

1 

Page A14 

Predicted Water Supply (AF) 

Total 

Mean 

360775 

17180 

36249 

1726 

43081 

2051 

353943 

16854 

27254 

1298 

158779 

756 1 

16791 1 

7996 

126025 

6001 

55309 

2634 97060 

4781 70 

22770 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Table A2. Predicted water supply for the 1945-1965-drought period based on the 1959 operating criteria and without the benefit of Matilija Reservoir, 

1 

Page A 15 

Predicted Water Supply (AF) 

Total 

Mean 

360735 

171 78 

36240 

1726 

43081 

2051 

353895 

16852 

27250 

1298 

168422 

8020 

158223 

7534 

126025 

6001 

55309 

2634 96449 

468489 

22309 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Table A3. Predicted water supply for the 1945-1 965-drought period based on the Robles BO operating criteria and with the benefit of Matilija Reservoir. 

water 
Year 

1945 
1946 

1965 

Total 

Page A16 

Predicted Water Supply (AF) 

Mean 

8501 

360775 

21635 
21 635 
21635 
21635 
21 635 
21 635 
21 635 
21 635 
21 635 
21 635 

Ventura River 

17180 

1947 
1948 
1949 
1950 
1951 
1952 
1953 
1954 
1955 
1956 

935 

36249 

District 

Available 
supply 

21 635 
- 21635 - 

Flows Above Robles Diversion Lake Casitas 

1726 

Gages 
19222 
23289 

Robles Operations 

Tributaries 

6812 
3377 

194068 
168880 
14437 1 
121834 
97906 

128698 
109290 
92241 
69766 ] 
5561 8 

12435 
2822 
3564 
4785 
1810 

58089 
10343 
9916 
51 39 

10412 

849 
97 

173 
276 

50 
4764 

704 
679 
285 
726 

1935 

43081 

Inflow 

17531 
21842 

205 1 

Accretion 

96 1 
1 164 

Net 
Loss 

471 1 
4529 

622 
171 
392 
526 
199 

6390 
1 138 
1091 
565 

1145 

4932 
1 167 
1839 
2748 
602 

28626 
5838 
4778 
3183 
5532 

7500 

353943 

Extraction 

2652 
261 1 

Loss 

1350 
1682 

Storage 
Volume 

224636 
21 1763 - 

16854 

2035 
1728 
1712 
1722 
1356 
261 1 
2342 
2183 
2002 
2131 

578 

27254 

Bypass 

10206 
10547- 

11021 
1264 
2243 
3589 
652 

61868 
9139 
8823 
3702 
9426 

4255 
3901 
3537 
3145 
2682 
3582 
2940 
2599 
2078 1 
1773 

524 1 
0 

232 
565 

0 
28478 
2597 
3366 
234 

3168 

1298 

Diversion 

5976 
9614 

2654 
48 

131 
1378 

89 
27231 
2270 
3520 
703 

5792 

3544 

182600 

8695 

3379 

144090 

6861 

4537 

126025 

6001 

636 

55309 

2634 

481 7 21 635 

454335 

9697 1 21 635 





Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Table A5. Predicted water supply for the 1966-1980-recovery period based on the 1959 operating criteria and with the benefit of Matilija Reservoir. 

Predicted Water Supply (AF) 

Total 687544 34377 37939 683982 25307 331662 32701 2 325670 55067 2377102 362655 

Page A 18 

Mean 45836 2292 2529 45599 1687 221 1 1 21801 2171 1 3671 158473 241 77 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Table A6. Predicted water supply for the 1966-1980-recovery period based on the 1959 operating criteria and without the benefit of Matilija Reservoir. 

I Predicted Water Supply (AF) 

Page A 19 

Total 

Mean 

687478 

45832 

54326 

3622 

37934 

2529 

687478 

45832 

51378 

3425 

342858 

22857 

31 5755 

21050 

325670 

21711 

55067 

3671 

2291 661 

152777 

352455 

23497 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Page A20 

Table A7. Predicted water supply for the 1966-1980-recovery period based on the Robles BO operating criteria and with the benefit of Matilija Reservoir. 

water 
Year 

1966 
1967 
1968 
1969 
1970 
1971 
1972 
1973 
1974 
1975 
1976 - 
1977 
1978 
1979 
1980 

Total 

Mean 

Predicted Water Supply (AF) 

District 

Available 
supply 

21 184 
21 184 
21184 
21 184 
21 184 
21184 
21 184 
21 184 
21184 
21 184 
21 184 
21184 
21 184 
21 184 
21 184 

31 7760 

21 184 

Flows 

Gages 
55445 
56372 
8024 

171353 
16807 
20184 
10739 
58322 
18424 
23671 
971 1 
4977 

135760 
27918 
69835 

687544 

45836 

Lake Casitas 
Ventura River 

Tributaries 

21289 
27258 
2392 

78737 
4662 
7225 
5394 

33070 
741 7 

10670 
3239 
1056 

73222 
1 1740 
38299 

325670 

2171 1 

Above Robles 

Accretion 

2772 
281 9 
40 1 

8568 
840 

1009 
537 

291 6 
92 1 

1 184 
486 
249 

6788 
1396 
3492 

34377 

2292 

Inflow 

55771 
56423 
5889 

177128 
14922 

, 18712 
9230 

58484 
1691 9 
22197 
8029 
3301 

139933 
2651 4 
70527 

683982 

45599 

Diversion 

Extraction 

2446 
2767 
2536 
2793 
2725 
2481 
2046 
2754 
2426 
2658 
2167 
1925 
2615 
2800 
2800 

37939 

2529 

Net 
Loss 

1387 
2437 
1765 
4630 
3767 
3640 
3345 
4342 
3936 
3940 
3584 
31 64 
5366 
4872 
4892 

55067 

367 1 

Storage 
Volume 

36443 
79612 
62024 

175431 
163732 
155997 
1 4344 1 
178309 
1 68952 
166838 
150121 
129207 
239268 
242051 
239269 

2330695 

155380 

Diversion 

35687 
37784 

1221 
58553 
6520 
751 6 
461 9 

24099 
6140 
9885 
282 1 

589 
58383 
14269 
15493 

283581 

18905 

Robles 

Loss 

2064 
2088 
218 

6554 
552 
692 
34 1 

2164 
626 
82 1 
297 
122 

5178 
981 

2610 

25307 

1687 

Operations 

Bypass 

18020 
16551 
4450 

112021 
7850 

10504 -- 
4269 

32221 
10153 
1 1490 
491 1 
2590 

76373 
1 1264 
52424 

375094 

25006 



Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Page A2 1 

Table A8. Predicted water supply for the 1966-1980-recovery period based on the Robles BO operating criteria and without the benefit of Matilija Reservoir. 

water 
Year 

1966 
1967 
1968 
1969 
1970 
1971 
1972 
1973 
1974 
1975 
1976 
1977 

1979 
1980 

Total 

Mean 

Predicted Water Supply (AF) 

District 

Available 
supply 

19775 
19775 
19775 
19775 
19775 
19775 
19775 
19775 
19775 
19775 
19775 
19775 

Flows 

Gages 
55495 
56267 
8040 

171355 
16800 
20191 
10730 
58322 
18421 
23675 
9930 
481 7 

1978135694 
27929 
69813 

687478 

45832 

Lake Casitas 
Ventura River 

Tributaries 

21 289 
27258 
2392 

78737 
4662 
7225 
5394 

33070 
741 7 

10670 
3239 
1056 

Above Robles 

Accretion 

2775 
281 3 
402 

8929 
1848 
2221 
1 180 
641 5 
2026 
2604 
1092 
530 

14926 
3072 
349 1 

54326 

3622 

Inflow 

55832 
56313 
5906 

177130 
14915 
18719 
922 1 

58484 
1691 6 
22201 
8259 
31 33 

139863 
26526 
70500 

683918 

45595 

73222 
I 1 740 
38299 

325670 

21711 

Diversion 

Extraction 

2437 
2767 
2536 
2793 
2725 
248 1 
2046 
2754 
2426 
2658 
2167 
1925 
2615 
2800 
2803 

37934 

2529 

Net 
Loss 

1387 
2437 
1765 
4630 
3767 
3640 
3345 
4342 
3936 
3940 
3584 
3164 --- 

Robles 

Loss 

2066 
2084 
21 9 

6554 
552 
693 
34 1 

21 64 
626 
82 1 
306 
1 16 

5175 
98 1 

2609 

25305 

1687 

Storage 
Volume 

37022 
78056 
61296 

173461 
160696 
153876 
142637 
177592 
167422 
164412 
148531 
128772 

5366 
4872 
4892 

55067 

3671 

Operations 

Bypass 

2251 0 
18095 
5032 

112706 
101 29 
10589 
4230 

32465 
12084 
13301 
552 1 
2683 - 

78146 
15573 
53978 

397043 

26470 

23601 3 
2351 79 
238762 

2303725 

Diversion 

31256 
361 35 

655 
57871 
4234 
7437 
4649 

23855 
4205 
8079 
2433 

- 334 
56542 
9971 

13914 

261 570 

17438 153582 19775 





Appendix A Water Supply Predictions 

Lake Casitas Total Storage - 15 Year Recovery Period 

- Robles 60 Criteria without Matilija - 19,780 AF Yield 

Robles BO Criteria with Matilija - 21,180 AF Yield 

- 1959 Criteria without Matilija - 23,500 AF Yield 

1959 Criteria with Matilija - 24,180 AF Yiled 

! Year 

Figure A6. Comparisons of the storage volume in Lake Casitas based on different operating and yield scenarios for the recovery 
period following the longest drought on record. 

Page A23 



Appendix B Water Delivery and Use Predictions 

Appendix B - Casitas MWD Water Delivery and Use Predictions 

The information that is available for the 1945 through 1965 study period is limited to the rainfall 
and hydrology occurrences in the Ventura River. The Ventura River Project that brought about 
Lake Casitas and the District's service facilities did not become operational until 1959. Water 
deliveries from Lake Casitas and customer use during this study period are not available and 
would not have been at the same level as today. Therefore, the study must predict water 
deliveries based on present water use and the study period's hydrology. 

The following was considered in the development of the water delivery for the study period: 

The critical drought period is 1945 through 1965; 
Each year is based on Water Year hydrology data; 
Good data source for hydrology and annual rainfall exists for the study period; 
Rainfall data used in this evaluation has been gathered at the Santa Ana weather station, 
from 1944 to 1959. and the Lake Casitas Recreation Area weather station from 1959 to 
present; 
Limited water delivery data for the study period - the District began delivery of water 
from Lake Casitas in 1959. 
Water use data during the study period should reflect current level and trends of water 
delivery and use. 
Factors that tend to influence the amount of water deliveries are rainfall patterns, 
irrigation use, municipal and industrial use, resale use, and groundwater availability. 
Growth may be a factor in the water deliveries and use. The initial years of District 
(1 959-1977), the trend of water use was primarily based on growth and development. 
During the last 20 years, slow growth has been more representative of the deliveries and 
use trends. 
The District does have detailed data on the hydrology, annual rainfall, water delivery and 
use for the period 1959 to 2002. 

10. The ~is t r ic t ' s  data for the annual water delivery is in Calendar year format, need to 
convert data to a water year format in order to apply deliveries to the Supply model. 

1 1. Consider the adjustment of the deliveries where unusual anomalies exist in the data. (The 
City of San Buenaventura, period 1991 to 1997, to reflect the current agreement to 
purchase 6,000 acre-feet on an annual basis. This period's actual deliveries to the City 
were temporarily reduced to below 6,000 acre-feet due to water quality reasons.) 

12. The District deliveries include water delivered from Casitas Dam to the main conveyance 
system and the deliveries from the Mira Monte Water Well. 

Historical Data 

The Casitas Municipal Water District has an extensive collection of water use and hydrology 
data that can be applied to the water supply and use analysis. The data, in some cases, needed to 
be converted into a water year calendar time sequence in order be consistent with all other data 
and the time sequence used in the analysis. 

Page B 1 



Appendix B Water Delivery and Use Predictions 

The following is a representation of the historical data that has been assembled from District 
records for the analysis. 

Table B1 - lists the water deliveries from Casitas Dam and the Mira Monte Well are presented in 
a water year calendar format. Also presented are the rainfall totals for each water year. 

Figure Bl - illustrates the relationship between the District's deliveries and annual rainfall. It is 
noted that there appears to be a direct correlation between rainfall and the level of deliveries 
made by the District. 

Figures B2 through B5 were developed to further define and explain the annual variance in water 
delivery. The District has compiled water use data for each of its major user types and larger 
customers. The user trends also illustrate the influence of rainfall and at times, the loss of 
alternative water supplies (i.e. groundwater supplies) on the use patterns. The review of 
individual use does validate the delivery-rainfall relationship that is illustrated in Figure Bl .  

Figure B2 - illustrates the water sales patterns for the District's agricultural customers. There 
appears to be a direct correlation between rainfall and the amount of water sales made to the 
District's agricultural customers. The District serves water to approximately 5,600 acres of 
orchard cropland and supplements agricultural groundwater use during periods of drought. 
When rainfall does not occur, water sales from the District's distribution system supplement the 
lack of rainfall. The figure also illustrates the coincidence of agricultural water sales with the 
deliveries from Casitas Dam. 

Figure B3 - illustrates the water sales pattern for direct residential customers of the District. As a 
comparative illustration, the water sales pattern of the agricultural customers is presented. It 
appears that the residential water sales do not appear to be influenced by annual rainfall 
variations. It also appears that the growth pattern has been gradual over the recorded 26-year 
period. 

Figure B4 - illustrates the water sales pattern for the two types of resale customers and any 
relationship between the sales and annual rainfall. The Resale Pumped customer is primarily to 
other water agencies, such as Ventura River County Water District and Southern California 
Water Company, that also rely on groundwater supplies to meet demands within their water 
service areas. The Resale Pumped customers have demanded Lake Casitas supplies generally 
when they are not able to meet all demands from their groundwater supplies (Ventura River and 
Ojai). A specific increase in demands from Lake Casitas is noted in the 1989 to 1991 period. 
The rise in demand was approximately 1300 acre-feet from the base demand in 1989 to the 
maximum demand in 199 1. This change is primarily due to the depletion of groundwater 
supplies during the drought period. 

Figure B4 - provides an insight to the water sales pattern of Resale Gravity. The primary 
customer in the Resale Gravity is the City of San Buenaventura (Ventura). The City has 
alternative groundwater supplies from the Ventura River and the groundwater basins in the 
eastern section of the City. The City has a series of agreements with the District concerning 
water service. The City has agreed to annually certify that water delivered from the Casitas 

Page B2 



Appendix B Water Delivery and Use Predictions 

system does not supply customers that are outside of the boundaries of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District. The district boundaries are not contiguous with the City's boundaries, and 
therefore, many sections of the City of are not a part of the original financial setting for 
repayment of contracts for the Ventura River Project (Lake Casitas). This became an issue in 
1990. at the height of a drought period. The City decided to become more reliant on its 
alternative supplies and drastically reduced its demand on Lake Casitas. The District's water 
sales to the City went from a high of 9.5 10 acre-feet in 1989 to a minimum purchase 1,370 acre- 
feet in 1992, and less than 2,000 acre-feet in each of the following years. until 1997. In 1995, the 
City and the District agreed to guarantee a stable purchase from the District. In this agreement, 
the City agreed to purchase at a minimum 6,000 acre-feet annually from Lake Casitas. The City 
began to meet the minimum demand in 1997 and have continued to do so since that time. 

Figure B4 illustrates the water demand fluctuations that resulted from the abovementioned series 
of events. Besides the municipal and industrial use of the water within the City, the City has a 
sphere of water service influence that includes oil production. The oil production in this area 
requires water injection to force the oil out of the geologic formations. The period between the 
mid 1980's to the mid 1990's experienced a reduction in oil production, and thus a reduction in 
water demand. The City's in-District water use plummeted from a high of 10,886 acre-feet in 
1987 to a low of 7,037 acre-feet in 2002. The City also has plans to develop its water well 
facilities on the Ventura River. It is likely that the City will be able to maintain a balance of 
deliveries from Lake Casitas with the use within the common City-District boundaries. 

Figure B5 illustrates the historical sales to the Business, Industry, and Other customer types of 
the District. For the Industry customers, the sales patterns do not appear to be influence by 
rainfall patterns. The Business and Other customers are primarily irrigated golf courses, public 
and private schools, and recreational areas, and may be influenced by rainfall patterns. There are 
some Business and Other customers that rely on Lake Casitas supply to supplement rainfall in 
the irrigation of large turf areas that are associated with these customers. In general, the annual 
water delivery for each of these customers is generally less than 800 acre-feet and the annual 
variation of demand is seldom greater than 200 acre-feet. There does not appear to be a growth 
trend in the annual demands from these three customer types. 

Water Deliveries Adjustment - City of San Buenaventura 

Figure B4 illustrates that there may be several factors that have may have influenced the City of 
Ventura's water use, other than the influence of annual rainfall events. Several of those factors 
have been resolved by the agreement of a minimum water demand from Lake Casitas. In the 
recent years, the City has maintained its minimum demand on Lake Casitas at approximately 
6,000 acre-feet. To develop a current Lake Casitas demand trend that may be extrapolated to 
other study periods, there must be an adjustment of the historical water use data to reflect the 
current level of demand by the City of Ventura. In Table B2, the water sales to the City of 
Ventura, for the period of 1991 to 1997, were adjusted to reflect the minimum City of Ventura 
demand on Lake Casitas of 6,000 acre-feet. The adjustment amount for the City of Ventura was 
also added to the District's deliveries to main conveyance, and further listed under the column 
entitled "Adjusted WY Deliveries to Main Conveyance." Figure B6 illustrates the adjustment to 
the annual water deliveries. 

Page B3 



Appendix B Water Delivery and Use Predictions 

The period prior to 1990 has not been adjusted primarily because the city did not exceed its in- 
District demand by the deliveries from Lake Casitas. It should be noted that given a future 
extensive dry period. and/or re-emergence of the oil industry, the City of Ventura demands could 
potentially increase back to the water deliveries recorded in the 1980's. 

Trending Deliveries 

From the review of historical data, it appears that the annual rainfall is a key factor that has 
influenced the District water deliveries. It is also apparent that multiple years of dry conditions 
cause an escalation of the delivery occurring in any one year. In Table B3, the annual rainfall 
totals and corresponding water deliveries are ranked from lest rainfall to most recorded rainfall. 
The rainfall data has been gathered at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area and assumed to be a 
representative influence for the majority of the District's customers. Table B3 lists the data for 
the 1976 to 2002 and the 1984 to 2002 periods. The later period being more representative of 
current water use and growth trends. 

The rainfall data is further separated and compared for each 10-inch increment of rainfall. The 
average of rainfall and deliveries for each 10-inch increment and each period is calculated in 
Table B3 and illustrated in Figures B7 and B8. A polynomial trend line has developed from the 
graphical representation of the average deliveries for each period. Table B4 uses the trend line 
from the 1984 to 2002 period and sequential 10-inch rainfall totals to determine the delivery 
from each rainfall total. The polynomial trend line equation from the 1984 to 2002 period was 
selected for the linear trend calculations. 

In the study period, there are several consecutive dry years. The rainfall and delivery data in 
Table B 1 and Figure B 1, for the period of 1984 to 1990 demonstrates that when the system 
experiences multiple and consecutive dry rainfall years (less than 20 inches), the delivery for the 
following year tends to escalate with each consecutive dry year. Table B5 presents the rainfall 
and deliveries for the 1984 to 1990 period. Figures B9 and B 10 illustrate the delivery data and 
linear trend line for the escalation of multiple consecutive dry years. In Figure B 10, a shorter 
period of time is evaluated, removing the heavy rainfall of 1986 from influence on the trend line. 
Each year in Table B 10 was assigned a consecutive dry year multiplier number, and from the 
trend lines, the deliveries for each year are calculated and compared to the actual delivery data. 
The slope of line (1,377) from 1986 to 1990 escalating trend line equation, Figure B10, was 
selected as a representative equation for application to multiple consecutive dry years found in 
the study period (1 945- 1965). 

Modeling Deliveries for the Critical Dry Period 

The objective of the close review of rainfall-delivery response and the development of trend line 
equations and escalation factors is to be able to predict deliveries for a period of time during 
which no delivery record exists. In Table B6, the annual rainfall at the Lake Casitas Recreation 
area is listed for each year of the study period. The polynomial trend equation 

Page B4 



Appendix B Water Delivery and Use Predictions 

is applied to each annual rainfall and the water delivery is calculated and recorded for each year. 
For each year during which the annual rainfall is less than 20 inches, a consecutive year 
multiplier and the escalation slope are applied to the linear trend equation in 

y=1.7488x2 - 2 6 9 . 1 ~  + 24300 + (Dry Year Multiplier)(1.377). 

The water deliveries from each equation are shown in Table B6. Figure B 1 1 illustrates the 
predicted water deliveries for each equation and the annual rainfall for each year of the study 
period. 

The derivation of an equation to predict a finite number has risk in the confidence that the 
number would be comparable to actual results. In Table B7, the actual water deliveries for the 
period 1984 to 1990 is compared to the delivery numbers that are generated from the polynomial 
and escalating trend equations. As expected, the actual deliveries fall between the two equation 
lines during the period, as shown in Figure B 12. The development of trend deliveries for the 
period of 1966 through 2003, Table B8 and Figure B 13, illustrates a higher confidence of 
following actual use in the last ten years of historical data. 

The deliveries that have been derived in Table B6 are accounted against the available Lake 
Casitas supply to determine the impacts on Lake Casitas. 

Modeling Deliveries the Recovery Period 

The supply and demand study for the critical dry period takes the water surface elevation of Lake 
Casitas to minimum pool. The modeling needs to demonstrate the ability of the hydrology to 
recover Lake Casitas storage to full capacity, during the wet trend period and under each of the 
two diversion operating criteria. There is an importance to restore the full capacity of Lake 
Casitas prior to the onset of another critical dry period. The actual occurrence following 1965, 
the end of the critical dry period, Lake Casitas reached full storage capacity in 1978. The 
modeling of the recovery period should include the hydrology experienced during the 1966 to 
1978 period and compare the capacity response of Lake Casitas for each of the diversion 
operational criteria. 

For the recovery period, the deliveries were determined from the same trend equations that were 
used in the critical dry period study. During this recovery period, 1977 was the only year 
receiving the additional escalating factor. Table B9 provides the prediction of water deliveries 
for the 1966 to 1978 period, and the actual deliveries made by the District. It is noted that the 
actual deliveries are much less than the predicted value, primarily because the actual water uses 
from Lake Casitas were in development and had not matured to the current level of use. The 
predicted deliveries are based on the current level of water use. Figure B 14 illustrates the 
predicted deliveries for each year of the recovery period. The deliveries that are derived in Table 
B9 are accounted against the available supply in Lake Casitas for the recovery period. 

Page B5 



Table B1 - Casitas Water Deliveries to the System 
and Rainfall at Lake Casitas Recreation Area 

Figure B1 - Casitas Water Deliveries to the System and Rainfall (1975 to 2003) 

1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 

Water Year 

Page B6 



Figure 8 2  - Historical Deliveries, Agricultural Water Sales and Rainfall 
(1976 to 2002 WY) 

1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 

WATER USE PERIOD (YEARS) 

Figure B3 -Historical Agricultural and Residential Water Sales and Rainfall 
(WY1976 to 2002) 

1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 
WATER USE PERIOD (YEARS) 

Page B7 



Figure B4 - Historical Gravity and Pumped Resale Water Sales and Rainfall 
(WY 1976 to 2002) 

I 70 -+-Resale Pumped Water Sales I 

-A- Resale Gravity Water Sales ~ 

1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 

WATER USE PERIOD (YEARS) 

Figure B5 - Historical Business. Industry and Otherwater Sales and Rainfall 
(WY 1976 to 2002) 

2000 70 

1800 

60 

1600 
9 z 

ii 1400 50 < 
!A 2 

1200 w 
a: 

a 
!A 

40 U 

1000 
UJ 

3 
Q 2 800 

3 
30 2 

!A _1 
_1 3 600 iL a 

20 

400 %. 
10 

200 

0 0 

1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 

WATER USE PERIOD (YEARS) 

Page B8 



Table B2 -Water Deliveries Adjustment -City of Ventura 
Agreement for Minimum 6,000 AF Annual Purchase 

Adjusted "Adjusted WY 
Water Rainfall at Deliveries Water Sales to Deliveries Deliveries 
Year LCRA to Main City of Ventura for the to Main 

Conveyance City of Ventura Conveyance 
(in.) (AF) (AF) (AF) (AF) 

Figure B6 -Adjustment to Annual Water Deliveries - City of Ventura Agreement 

Water Year 

"Adjusted deliveries includes the difference between the City of Ventura's actual purchase of Lake Casitas water and 
the requirement for the annual purchase by the City of 6,000 AF from Casitas. City purchases during the 1990's were 
reduced due to water treatment deficiencies and other. In those years where 6,000AF were not purchased, the additional 
purchase to get 6,000 AF was added to the actual deliveries and stated in the "Adjusted Deliveies to Main Conveyance 
column. 

Page B9 



"able B3 - Casitas Municipal Water District Deliveries -Water Year Ranking 
Rainfal Totals for Periods 1976 to 2002 and 1984 to 2002 

Rainfall Increments Water 

0-10 inches Rainfall 1990 
1987 
1999 
1989 
1977 
1994 
1985 

10-20 inches Rainfall 1984 
1996 
1981 
1976 
1988 
1982 
2000 
1991 
2003 

20-30 inches Rainfall 1997 
1979 
2001 
1992 
1986 

30-40 inches Rainfall 1980 
1993 

40-50 inches Rainfall 1983 
1995 
1978 

50 inches Rainfall 1998 

verage for 0 10 inches Rainfall 

veiage for 10 20 inches Rainfall 
veiage for 20-30 inches Rainfall 
veiage for 30 40 inches Rainfall 
verage for 40 50 inches Rainfall 
vp~age for gieater than 50 inches Rainfall 

'eriod 1976 to 2002 
rainfall at Deliveries to 

eriod 1984 to 2002 
rainfall at Deliveries to I Main C t i e y e n c e  

System 

Water Year 

Notp the adjustment for the City of Ventura Agreement is included in the deliveries for the period 1990 1997 

Figure B7 - Average Water Deliveries based on 10-inch Rainfall Increments 
1976 to 2002 period 

0 00 10 00 2000 30 00 40 00 50 00 60 00 70 00 
Rainfall (inches) 

Figure 68 -Average Water Deliveries based on 10-Inch Rainfall 
Increments 1984 t o  2002 Period 

0.1 I \ I I [ I 
0 00 10 00 20 00 30 00 40 00 50 00 60 00 70 00 

Rainfall (inches) 

- - 

Table B4 - Trendline Comparison 
Deliveries Deliveries 

Rainfall 1976 2002 1984 2002 

21 585 21 784 
18 935 19618 
16 908 17 801 

40 15 506 16334 

Page B I O  



Table B5 - Dry Period Escalation of Deliveries 

Water 

Year 

Figure B9 - Escalating Trend for 1984 to 1990 Dry Period 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Sequential Water Years 

Figure B10 - Escalating Trend for 1986 to 1990 Dry Period 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 

Sequential Water Years 

Consec. 

Dry 

Rainfall at 

(Inches) 

Fig. 9 

Trendline 

Applied to 

Rainfall 

-Linear (Deliveries) 
- 

Deliveries to 

Main Conveyence 

System 

Water Year 

Fig. 10 

Trendline 

Applied to 

Rainfall 

Page B11 



Table B6 - Estimated Water Delivery Based on Polynomial Trend and Escalating Trend Equations for Period 1945 thru 1965 

Year 

1945 
I946 

1947 
1948 
1949 
1950 
1951 
1952 
1953 
1954 
1955 
I956 
1957 
1958 
1959 
I960 
1961 
1962 
I963 
I964 
I965 

Total 
Average 

Rainfall at Consec. 
LCRA Dry Year 

Multiplier 

Water Deliveries 
Consec. 

Polynomial Dry Year 
Trend Eqn. Trend Eqr 

m m 

I 

Notes: 

30,000 

25,000 

El" 
20,000 

(0 : 
Ill 

15,000 
w 
n 
Hi 
LU 

10,000 
3 

5,000 

0 

Figure B11 -Estimated Water Deliveries for Period 1945 thru 1965 
-. - .- .- . -7 

iter Deliveries for ~ o l ~ n o i n i a ~ ~ r c n o  Eq~ation 
ater Deliveries for Consecutive Dry Year Trend Equation 
infall (WY) 

1940 1945 1950 1955 1960 1965 

WATER YEARS 

Polynomial Trend Equation Delivery - polynomial equation based on rainfall and historical water use data for the period of 1984 through 2002, with the adjustment of Resale Gravity during the 1991 through 
1997 period remaining at a constant 6,000 AF demand throughout period of study. City would use alternate well supplies to supplement loss of Ventura River supply during the study period. 

Consecutive Dry Year Trend Equation Delivery - use of polynomial trend equation to determine annual water demand, upon first year of less than 20 inches of rainfall add 1377 AF demand to the trend 
water demand. For the second consecutive year under 20 inches of rainfall, add 2 times 1377 AF to polynomial trend, for the third consecutive year, add three times 1377 AF to polynomial trend. 
Similar escalation applied to each of the following consecutive yuears of less than 20 inches of rainfall. Use of consecutive dry year multiplier to escalate delivery for each water year. 



Deliveries Verification - apply the polynomial trend equation and the multiple dry year trend equation 
to the historical rainfall data for the period WY 1984 through WY 1990. 
Compare the application of trend equations to historical water delivery data for the same period. 

The multiple dry year trend equation data followed the actual delivery data, except for the 
1990 water year. In 1990, extremely dry year, there may have been an additional reduction in 
deliveries to the City of Ventura (Resale Gravity) because of alternative supply use. 
With only 8.86 inches of rainfall in the fourth year of a drought, deliveries would have been 
expected to rise above the previous year's deliveries. 

Table 07 - Deliveries Verification Multiple Dry 
Polynomial Dry Yr. Year Trend 

Figure B12 - Deliveries Verification - Conparison of Trend Equations and Actual 
Deliveries 

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 
Water Year 

Page 013 



Table B8 - Trend and Actual Water Delivery Comparison -1966 through 2003 

1 Water Deliveries 1 
Figure B13- Trend Estimated Water Deliveries and Actual Deliveries - 1966 thru 2003 Consec. 

Rainfall at Consec. Polynomial Dry Year Actual 
Year 1 LCRA lDry Year Trend Eqn. Trend Eqn 

Multiplier p.FJ 1 1 I I I I I 
-Water Deliveries for Polynomial Trend Equation 
+Water Deliveries for Consecutive Dry Year Trend Equation 
-Actual Deliveries for 1965 to 1978 Period 

1985 1990 
WATER YEARS 

Note that the period 1978 thru 1980 was a rare multiple wet year occurrence that is not reflected in the trend equations. Therefore, the Estimated water deliveries are higher than Actual deliveries 

Page 6 14 



Fable B9 - Recovery Study Period - 1966 through 1980 

Water Deliveries 
Consec. 

Rainfall at Consec. Polynomial Dry Year Actual 
Year 1 LCRA lDry Year Trend Eqn. Trend Eqn 

(inches) Multiplier rn 1 &FJ 1 rn 
Figure B14- Estimated Water Deliveries for Recovery Period 1966 thru 1980 

-Water Deliveries for Polynomial Trend Equation 
+Water Deliveries for Consecutive Dry Year Trend Equation 

+Actual Deliveries for 1965 to 1978 Period 

1965 1967 1969 1971 1973 1975 1977 1979 
WATER YEARS 

Note that the period 1978 thru 1980 was a rare multiple wet year occurrence that is not reflected in the trend equations. Therefore, the Estimated water deliveries are higher than Actual deliveries. 

Page B15 



Appendix C Water Allocation Assi,. "nments 

Appendix C - Casitas MWD Water Allocation Assignments 

In the aftermath of the District's water shortage emergency of 1989, the District 
developed a method for implementing a reduction of water use during times of drought. 
The method considered priorities for water service, equality among similar types of 
customers. water rate incentives to keep water use from overwhelming available water 
supplies. and the manner in which the District would meet the additional demands for 
new water service. The concepts contained in the methods emerged as the District's 
Water Allocation Program. 

The allocation program is a price-driven water conservation measure that can provide a 
base water use at a reasonable cost rate and escalates water cost rates once the base use 
(allocation) is exceeded by the customer. The application of the allocation program 
provides the customer the financial decision to pay more for their water use or conserve 
water. Without the application of the price-driven structure, the allocation has no bearing 
on limiting the actual water use that is applied by individual customers. It should be 
noted that, to date, the District has not implemented the price-driven allocation structure. 

The District has assigned water allocations to various users types and individual 
customers. The initial water allocations were based on the water use from 1989, less 
twenty percent of that 1989 annual metered use. The District assigned individual 
allocation to each customer in the residential, business, industrial, resale, and 
interdepartmental classifications of service. The agricultural classification was assigned 
an overall allocation based on eighty percent of the total agricultural metered use of 1989. 
A summary of the allocation assignment is presented in the Standard Current Allocation 
Status, dated November 12, 199 1. 

In 1992, the District made available 300 acre-feet of water to be allocated in a limited and 
controlled manner. The additional water came from the reactivation of the Mira Monte 
Well and the installation of blending pipeline. The well had historically provided 
approximately 300 acre-feet to the Mira Monte Mutual Water Company, but use had been 
discontinued in the early 1980's because of elevated nitrate content in the well water. 
From 1992 to April 23,2003, the District issued limited water allocations to new and 
existing customers. 

In 2003, the District made 7 acre-feet of allocations available for assignment to new 
customers. The allocations came from the removal of the last fourteen homes from the 
Teague Memorial Watershed. Prior to April 2004, the District had assigned the 7 acre- 
feet. 

In this review of the allocation status, it was found that tracking of the allocations is made 
difficult by the changes that occurred in tracking systems and personnel responsibilities. 
In comparing the initial 1991 allocation to the District's accounting records for total 
allocation as of May 3, 2004, there are several discrepancies in the data. This is an area 
that needs further attention by staff prior to the application of the allocation program 
stages. The comparison for the individual user types is presented in Table C 1. There are 

May 25,2004 Page C 1 



Appendix C Water Allocation Assignments 

three distinct user types in Table Cl  that have extreme changes in allocations from 1991 
to present. Also presented in Table C l  is the fiscal year 2002-2003 water use data for 
each user type. This data provides an indication of the level of use and a comparison to 
the allocation assignment for each user type. 

The first user type is the Agriculture-Domestic (AD). AD accounts are the agricultural 
accounts that also have a residence on the same property. These customers are billed at 
the residential rate for the base amount of water use and billed at the agricultural rate for 
all water use above the base usage. In 1991, this user type was considered a part of the 
agricultural user type, and included in the 8,880 acre-foot allocation for the agricultural 
user type. The District's Administration records does separate the AD from the 
Agricultural (AG) user type, but the listed totals from the combination of the two types 
does not equal the initial 199 1 allocation assignment for AG. The District's 
Administration records should reflect the 8,880 acre-feet of original allocation 
assignment and any additional allocation assignments that occurred after1 992. 

The second noted change is in the Interdepartmental (DI) user type category. This 
particular category is an accounting of the District's metered water use at the Lake 
Casitas Recreation Area, flushing points, main office, and other District facilities. The 
use number for 1989 may have also included drought water transfers to the City of Santa 
Barbara. A recent review of the accounting of the calendar year 1989 metered use for 
Interdepartmental is 190.35 acre-feet, not the 354 acre-feet expressed in the 1991 
"Standard Current Allocation Status". The allocation assignment appears to need further 
consideration, given the discrepancy between the 1991 allocation assignment and current 
District records. 

The third change is in the Residential allocation assignment, where allocations have 
increased by 472 acre-feet since 1991. This change appears to be high and a verification 
of the change is recommended. The change of 472 acre-feet could mean that as many as 
1004 minimum allocation changes would have to been made over that last 12 years. This 
number appears to be high and should be reviewed further by staff. One specific change 
that did occurred in the residential allocation block was the change of the Taorrnina 
Community's single 0.47 allocation into 73 individual 0.47 allocations. This change 
occurred when the District took over the Taorrnina service area and the service moved 
from a single master water meter, with one 0.47 acre-foot allocation, to 73 single water 
meters at each residence, each with an individual 0.47 allocation. 

In summary, it appears that there is a need for the District to perform a detailed 
accounting of the allocation assignments. 

May 25,2004 Page C2 



STANDARD 
CURRENT ALLOCATION 

STATUS 

Customer Type 

Agriculture 

Residential 

Business 

I n d u s t r i a l  

Interdepartmental 

O t h e r s  

Pumped 

Gravity 'EiE&auE, 

L o s s e s  

Tc-CdJ. R e l e a s e s  

November "1 , 

O c t o b e r  1 
1989 - Allocation 

11,096 10,051 (-9) 

Current 
Allocation 

1OfO8l/8, 880* 

1,238 

575 

13 0 

282 

170 

7 6 3  

7,090 





INTER-DEPARTMENTAL 
M E M O R A N D U M  

June 6 ,  1 9 9 4  
DATE: 

General Manage: 
TO: 

Conservation Supervisor  
FROM: 

A"location T o t a l s  - Mira  Monte Well 
SUBJECT: 

Attached t o  t h i s  memo i s  a  l i s t  02 customers who have 
purchased a l l o c a t i o n s  from t h e  water  m a d e  a v a i l a b l e  by t h e  
Mira Monte w e l l  p r o j e c t .  The f i r s t  l i s t  s o r t s  and t o t a l s  
t h e  a l l o c a t i o n s  b y  customer c1ass i . f i ca t ion .  The second l is t  
s o r t s  and t o t a l s  t h e  a l l o c a t i o n s  by agency. 



T o t a l  : 

B u s i n e s s  

T o t a l :  

~ e s i d e n t i a l  

C u c c i a  
Farmont  Corp.  
Happy V a l l e y  F o u n d a t i o n  
Happy V a l l e y  S c h o o l  
O j a i  V a l l e y  S c h o o l  

Droney 
E r i c k s o n  ( J o h n )  
F a n n o n t  Corp .  

F r u c h e y  
German 
H a b i t a t  f o r  h u m a n i t y  
H a r t  
Humphrey 
K l e i n  
K r e i t z e r s  
Mangum 
M a r i e t t a  
M i l e s  
Necochea 
O q u i s t  
P a t t e r s o n  
P e e t s  
P r a i n  
Reves  
~ i c h a r d s o n  ( G i l b e r t )  
Rob inson  
Ross  (Hamm-J) 
S a n d e r s  
s h e n n a n  
Tenpenny 
Vork 
Waibridge 
' 1  barren 
. wesr . 

WELL 



Agency 

as: :as 

Total : 

Meiners Oaks 

Total : 

Rincon Road and Uater 

Senior Canyon 

Lasflam 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cue: i a 
E-ickson ( J o n n )  
Farmon': dorp. 

Fruchey 

German 
Habitat for humanity 

Happy Valley Foundation 
happy Val ley School 
Hart 

Hurphrey 
Klein 
Marietta 
Miles 
Necochea 
O j a i  Vallev School 
Patterson 
Peets 

Reyes 
Richardson ( G i  lbert ) 

Robinson 
Rot I 
Ross (Ham-J) 
Sanders 
Sherman 
Vork 
Uarren 

Krei tiers 
Mangum 
Oquist 
Prain 

T enoenny 
Ua l br i dge 

Hudson 

Ues t 

:lass (T-) 
- - - - - - - - - - - -  
Business 
Resioen-ria: 
Resiaentia: 
Residential 
Business 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
ResidentiaI 
Resiaential 
Residential 

Residential 
Bus i ness 
Business 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Bus i ness 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Agriculture 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 

Residential 
Residential 

Residential 
Residential 

Residential 
Resioent~al 

culture 

aen~ial 

A.F. Allocation 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
Â¥ .3C 
0.1" 

- 9 8  
.98 

2.98 

i .98 

1 . 9 8  
1.98 

1 . 9 8  

0 . 9 9  
? . 9 8  

0.17 
0 . 9 9  
K.00 
0.17 
0.47 

0 . 9 9  
0.99 

0 . 4 7  
0 . 9 9  

6.50 
0.47 
0.47 

0.9'5 
0 . 4 7  

0 . 4 7  

10.0  
2 . 0 0  
0 . 4 7  
0 .47 
0.47 

0 . 4 7  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

52.69 



Hi ra Monte Uel l Allocations 
Totals -asin! June 199- 

CUCC i E 

Droney 

Erickson (John) 

farmon: Core. 

F ruchey 

Gorman 

Habitat f o r  humanity 

Happy Valley Foundat 

Happy Valley School 

Hart 

Hudson 

Humpdrey 

Klein 

Krei rzers 

langun 

Marietta 

Mi Les 

Necochea 

Ojai Valley School 

oquist 

Patterson 

Peers 

Prain 

Reyes 

Ricnardson (Gilbert) 

Rooinson 

Roll 

ROSS (Ham-;) 

Sanaers 

Sherman 

enpenny 

Residential 

Res i dent 

Bus 1 ness 
Resident 
Resident 
Res ident 
Res ident 
Res ident 
Resident 

Residential 

Residential 

Residential 

Bus iness 

Business 

Residential 

Agriculture 

Residential 

Residential 

Residential 

Residential 

Residential 

Residential 

Residential 

Business 

Residential 

Residential 

Residential 

Resident 

Res iaent 

Resident 

Res i dent 

Agriculture 

Resiaential 

Residential 

Residential 

Residential 



Mira Monte Well  AL1oca:ions 
Totals as of June IWn 

Ua I bri age Residential 017-0- 180-580 C.99 

Ua r ren Residential 061 -0-055-605 0.47 

Ues t Residential 029-0-020-080 0.47 



Appendix D 

Appendix D - Svstem Losses 

System Losses 

There have been several terms used in the past to  describe the rate of water consumption. The 
terms most cornrnonlv used are "Safe Yield". "Deliveries to Main Convevance Svstem". and 
"Metered Water Sales". Quite often. these terms have been used in an interchangeable fashion 
without the clear understanding of the difference between these terms and their relationships. 
The following are definitions for each term. 

Safe Yield - defined by Meinzer ( 1 )  as "the rate at which water can be withdrawn from an 
aquifer for human use without depleting the supply to such an extent that withdrawal at this rate 
is harmful to the aquifer itself, or to the quality of the water, or is no longer economically 
feasible " The concept of safe yield has received considerable criticism and there has been 
suggestion that the term be abandoned because of its frequent interpretation as a permanent 
limitation on the permissible withdrawal (2). 

Safe yield must be recognized as a quantity determined for a set of controlling conditions and 
subject to change as a result of changing economic or  physical conditions (3).  The controlling 
conditions in determining the safe yield may include precipitation, evaporation, water quality. 
inflows and outflows over the term of a selected period of time. 

The safe yield quantity is a theoretical constant value that is derived from stochastic evaluation 
of the hydrology The assumption that is made in stochastic hydrology methods is that the time- 
hydrology sequence for a known period will repeat itself with some decree of reliability. 

Deliveries to Main Convevance Svstem - The Casitas Municipal Water District continuously 
measures the rate of water delivered from Casitas Dam to the start of the distribution system. 
The delivery measurements are performed through the use of accurate flow tube sensors that are 
located at the discharge side of each filter vessel. Each flow tube sensor is regularl!~ calibrated 
for accuracy, The collected flow tube data is transformed to quantities (acre-feet) of water 
delivered from Lake Casitas, each and every day of the year. 

For the purposes of this study, the terms "Water Use" and "Deliveries" are synonymous with the 
term "deliveries to main conveyance system" The study is referencing the water that is directly 
taken from the Lake Casitas supply 

Metered Water Sales - Metered water sales is the summation of all individual water service 
meters in the water distribution and piping system. In the Casitas Municipal Water District water 
distribution system. at each point of connection by the consumer. the District has installed 
individual water meters to continuously measure each consumer's water use Each meter in the 
District is calibrated and read bi-monthly to  assure operation of the meters. It should be noted 
that meters can stop reading flow due to a mechanical malfunction, but rarely do meters record a 
hkher - value than the actual usage. 

Differences between Terms From the definitions. it is established that the value for safe yield 
is developed through siochastic hydrolorn - - evaluations and it is a theoreticai value. and :hat  he 

Page D 1 



Appendix D Svstem Losses 

deliveries (or water use} and metered water sales are developed through continuous monitoring 
of actual annual water consumption. 

The difference between deliveries and metered water sales values is commonly referred to as a 
"system loss". In any water distribution system. there are several factors that can collectivelv 
attribute t o  the loss of water. These factors include. but are not limited to pipeline and service 
lateral leaks, pump packme leakage. meter failures and/or loss of meter accuracy. accounting 
errors- and water theft. Even slight errors in meter calibrations or accounting can masnifi the 
losses that are calculated for an entire year. 

In Table D 1 are the deliveries and metered water sales recorded by the Casitas Municipal Water 
District for the period of 1976 through 2002, and the system losses that are a result of the 
difference between the deliveries and metered water sales. It is noted that with the exception of 
1992. 1996. and 2000, the loss of water in the Casitas distribution system is generally less than 
ten percent of the annual deliveries to the system. Given that the higher loss years were not 
associated with disaster years and loss of pipelines during storm events, the loss is likely 
attributed to  calibration and/or accounting errors. 

The District has maintained an annual evaluation of the distribution system to assure that the 
pipelines are sound and as leak-free as possible. Indeed, the pipelines have been maintained in 
good condition. There have been occasional pipeline and service line leaks. followed by 
immediate response to repair by District staff. 

May 25.  20U4 



Table 

Average losses I976 to 1990 
Average losses 1999 to 2002 

Average 
Maximum 
Minimum 

Note that (A%) :s  a system gain. 

7 820 
24 4'6 
1 1  -40 

16 895 92 5 
23 589 I 3 840 
10 703 1 (7E3)  



Appendix E - Peer Reviews 

Upon completion of the initial draft of the Casitas Water Supply and Use Report, the District 
contracted with Entrix and MBK Engineers to perform an independent peer reviews and evaluations 
of the report. A written peer review has been prepared by each contractor and submitted to the 
District. Copies of each peer review are included in this section of the report. The District has 
considered each peer review and provided a written statement regarding the peer review issues. The 
written statement on each of the review issues is included in this section of the report. In some cases 
the comments have resulted in changes to the report, while other comments may have been further 
clarified or discounted by the District. 



District Comment to the Peer Reviews 

The District has reviewed each and every recommendation and comment contained in each peer 
review. The following are the District's actions and responses to each of the issues that were 
developed from the two peer reviews: 

MBK Engineers 

General 
1) Monthly depletion factor allows Robles inflow to become a negative number, considering 

limiting to a minimum of zero. 
District comment - The negative inflows are a result o f  the formulas m developing the 
river hydrology, influenced by the assumptions made for theflow accretion above 
Robles Diversion Dam. The negative numbers result when noflow conditions are 
present above Robles Diversion Dam, generally during the months of J I I I ~  thru 
October. The range from -0.1 to -0.2 cfs, with one maxin7~1n7 one-day negative number 
of -3.0 cfs noted for the 1966-1980period. The occurrence of a negati~~e number vi the 
model is infrequent and occurs duringperiods that do not influence the quanfqj o f  
water available for diversion to Lake Casitas. Agreed that the n7ii~imumflow should be 
no less than zero, but mmor changes to the model suggested by MBK does not impact 
the resulting numbers for available supply at Lake Casitas. No adjustments to these 
numbers have been made by the District. 

Recommend using monthly evaporation rate applied to end of month lake surface area, 
more accurately reflect evaporation from Lake Casitas for varying storage levels. 

District comment - For consistency purposes, the District used the evaporation rates 
from the D-20 study. Agreed that the evaporation ratefrom afilll reservoir is different 
than thatfrom a near empty reservoir, but the evaporation ratesfiom the reservoir m 
the D-20 study and a similar reservoir levels in each o f  the scenarios should be 
comparable and very near equal. Minor ad]ustn~ents as suggested 1 ~ 7 1 1  not result m 
any significant changes to the trends or lake storage values. No adjustments to these 
numbers are made by the District. 

Report 
1) Recommend adding a table contents to the report. 

District comment - A  Table of Contents will be added to the final report. 

2) Recommend clarifying the synthesis of Matilija Creek hydrology. 
District comment - the final report shall include the reasoning and logic behmd the 
synthesis - of the Matilija Creek hydrology. 

3) Explain more thoroughly the flow accretion methodology, identifying that these factors 
are multipliers. 

District comment - The method for accretion is explained in Appendix A. Add to the 
description of accretion that the water gained is from nzinor watersheds located 
between the USGS gaging stations and Robles Diversion Dam. Clarification of many 



factors in this report is gained by showing the location of the gaging stations on the 
maps. 

4) Recommend showing locations of each gaging station on the map. 
District comment - The map will be revised to show the locations o f  the k e ~ ~  gaging 
stations in the upper Matilija Creek and Ventura River. The description if these 
locations will also assist in the expZanation of the synthesis ofMatilija Creek 
hydrology. The final report win have the locations of the Matiljja Creek- stations. 

5 )  Recommend renaming the column heading currently labeled as "Matilija Gages" to the 
more accurate "Matilija Creek below North Fork Matilija Creek". 

District comment -Rather than confusing the report with the naming ofye1 afourth 
labeled station (non-existent station) being generatedfrom the synthesis ofMatil7ja 
Creek hydrology, the report will describe the resz~ltj~tg synthesis o f  the Mcitilijo Creek 
hydrology as combining to "Matilija Gages". The vse of the term "Matiliju Gages" 
is further clarzfied by the added discussion regarding the synthesis o f  the MatiI~jo 
Creek hydrology. The heading on the tables will remain the same. 

6) On graphs A19 and A20, consider eliminating the symbols on the graph lines Difficult to 
differentiate lines. 

District Comment - the lines in Figures A5 and A6 hcn'e been revised, minus the line 
symbols. The final report will contain the revised figures. 

Overall Approach 
1) Need to explain the differences in Tables A1 to A4 start and end points of the drought period 

and recovery period, and why they differ for each scenario. 
District Comment - The Peer Reviewer is comparing the start-endpoints of the D-20 
study with the start-endpoints used in the present analysis. The approach taken in the 
report was to start the hydrology with the begimzing of a water year, October 1945 as 
in the start of the drought cycle, and end the drought cycle at the end o f  a water year, 
September 30, 1965. The D-20 report hydrology sequence started in May 1944 with ct 

full level of storage in Lake Casitas. During the period of May 1944 to October 1944 
there were no diversion or rainfall events that would h o e ,  under the different 
scenarios ofRobZes operating criteria and/or loss of Matilva Dam, caused a change 
in the rateof decline in Lake Casitas storage levels. The initial starting level of Lake 
Casitas storage begins with the same storage for October 1, 1994 contained in the D- 
20 study. 

The storage volumes for Lake Casitas stated in each of the tables is a water year-end 
value. So by varying the scenario with Robles Operating criteria and with without 



Matilija Dam), the water year-end value will vary. The District believes that the 
period assignment made in the present analysis is appropriate and does not s k m  the 
resultant safe yield estimates. 

2) Include more information on how he Mira Monte well supply was applied to the supply 
numbers 

District comment - Under the sections "Safe Yield: Drought Period" and "Yield. 
Recovery Period", the application of the Mira Monte Well szppb is described a-s 
having been included in the safe yield estimate. The rate of application is slated as 
being 300 acre-feet per year, constant rate for each month. N o  further explanation i s  
provided zn the final report. 

3) Recovery period, if a shorter recovery period occurs, a lower safe yield value than presented 
would be required to recover the lake in the shorter time. The effect of the length of the 
recovery period on predicted safe yield could be addressed in a sensitivity analysis. 

District Comment - The analysis performed by the District considered the hydrolog)' 
and water use patterns that are likely to occur during the recovery period under each 
scenario for Robles andMatilija Dam and by these occurrences, running the sequence 
out untilfull storage capacity is reached at Casitas Dam. The risk is in fhe We171 thai 
the recovery cycle is not prolonged to the full term necessary to restore Lake Casitas 
storage capacity, i. e. the drought cycle restarts in year 8 of the recoveiy period 
instead of starting in year 15. This should be a key point fir further consideration, bid 
not a part of this analysis. 

Water Supply 
1) Useful to provide a description of the methods used to derive the factors and assumptions 

used in both the D20 study and this analysis. 
District Comment - The methowor each of the factors is outlined 7r7 Appendix A. 
The description of development of the factors would detract from the actual purpose o f  
the analysis, therefore the District has provided the factors and assumptions without 
the description of the factor development. 

Other 
2) Minimum Pool - District should monitor conditions at various stages in lake Casitas and use 

this data to assist in managing potential effects in the future should concerns arise 
District Comment - So noted. As later discussed with the reviewer, a definite outcome 
of this analysis should be the heightened awareness of the impacts of lowering lake 
storage and the need to monitor andplan for the eventuaZity of these occurrence and 
minimize the impacts to the water users. 

3) Water Loss at Robles associated with the fish screens - sediment at base of screens is most 
likely problem that will reduce efficiency of the screens. Loss of max. 1,000 AFIday if 
diversions through fish screens are completely impaired. District should monitor conditions 
in the channel and after each storm to determine potential impact. 



District Comment - So noted. The value of this assessment stresses the importance of 
good operation and maintenance practices at Rubles Diversion Dam and how other 
factors (i. e. i n c o m q  water impuritzes such as plant material or sediment) cozild 
impact the ability to divert water to Lake Casitas, and thereby impact enfailable water. 
supply in Lake Casitas. 

4) Increased groundwater extraction - largest impact to the District's supply would likely occur 
during early storm events prior to recharge of the unconfined aquifer upstream of Robles Not 
likely to have significant impact. 

District Comment - So noted. Present water rights are limited at this time and 
recharge of the upper groundwater basin is not likely to differ much given the//aBsh1> 
nature of the upper Ventura RiverLMatilija Creek system. 

Water Demand 
1) Over-prediction of water use for the period of 1970 to 2003, in comparing the actual water use 

with the predictive equation. Provides a factor of safety in evaluating water use versus 
supply. 

District Comment - The reference to over-estimation is evident in Table B8. One o f  
the primary objectives in the development of the water zise patternsfor each cycle was 
to adequately predict water use based on the present-day levels o f  demand. It was 
recognized very early on thatfrom 1959 through the mid-1980s the water usefrom 
Lake Casitas was in a development stage. Therefore, the actual water tise datafrom 
this development period could not be relied upon to make an estimate the of present 
day water use applied to the model scenarios. In comparing the predicted water use 
to the actual water usefor the period of 1984 to 2003, there is an over-estimation o f  
6,168 acre feet for the twenty-year period, an annual average o f  294 acre-feet. Given 
the correlations and variability of water use based on the high variability o f  rainfall 
events, and their influence on the agricultural water use within the District, the 
District feels that the methods applied to predict water use, and the resulting data, 
provide a sound basis for this study. 

2) Recommend a discussion of the maximum obligation to the City of Ventura and oil industry, 
that may add to the water use at a future date. 

District Comment - The City of San Buenmentura and the Casitas Municipal Water 
District do have a contract that requires the City to annually purchase a mmmiiim of 
6,000 acre-feet of Lake Casitas water. The City must also certify that the amount of 
water purchased from Casitas matches, or is less than, the water consumption wthm 
the joint Casitas-City boundaries. This limits the City purchase to no more than this 
area's annual water consumption. The water use trends considered the C ~ ~ J I ' S  wafer 
use escalation that occurred during the drought of the late 1980Js, so th~& type of 
escdakon related to weather factors is considered in the model. The placement of 
long-term and permanent demands, such as an insurgence of oil production, m a y J  
require additional consideration because it was not predicted by the current model 
and not included in this final report. 



Water Conservation 
1) The report should explain the objective of these measures and indicate the intent of these 

measures is not provide a comprehensive evaluation of potential water conservation and 
reduction measures for the District. 

Dzstrzct Comment - I t  was not the intent o f  this study' to develop andpresent detailed 
and focused water conservation measures. Rather, m Table 3, the report presentsfour 
concepts on the level o f  reduction needed to balance water supply and demand d~iring 
the critical drought period, given the scenario o f  the BO criteria and without the 
benefit ofMatilija Dam. It is likely that detailed and focus water conser1~at~on 
measures and water use planning will result from the details of this report. 



â‚¬NG/NEE 
Water Resources * Flood Control * Water Rights 

JOSEPH D. COUNTRYMAN. P.E 
GILBERT Cosio. JR.. RE. 
MARC VAN CAMP. P.E. 

November 1,2004 

Mr. Steve Wickstrum 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
113 11 Santa Ana Road 
Ventura, CA 93001 

CONSULTANTS: 
JOSEPH I. BURNS. RE. 
DONALD E. KIENLEN. P.E. 

Subject: Review of "Casitas Municipal Water District Water Supply and Use Status 
Report'' 

Dear Steve: 

We have completed our review of the report entitled "Casitas Municipal Water District 
Water Supply and Use Status Report" (report). Based on our review, we believe overall the 
report is well done and technically accurate. There are a few relatively minor items which we 
suggest correcting before finalizing the report. However, applying these suggested corrections is 
not anticipated to greatly affect the results or findings of the report. 

The remainder of this correspondence details the findings of our review. We have 
divided our review into two components. The first part of our review focuses on the analysis 
performed (modeling) to support the findings in the report. The second portion of our review 
focuses on the report itself and the presentation of the findings from the analysis. 

Analysis 

Overall, the analysis supporting this report was appropriately applied and is technically 
accurate. We commend the preparers on the systematic approach taken in modeling the different 
scenarios. As a reviewer, this made the methods, approach, and quality of the work easier to 
verify. This clarity is also important for the eventual acceptance of this work by others. 

Particularly noteworthy is the methodology utilized for predicting the water deliveries. 
With this innovative methodology, not only are the predicted deliveries based on rainfall 
patterns, but also the longer-term hydrology (drought sequence). It is one thing to recognize this 
trend, but this analysis incorporates these trends into a predictive tool. This level of 
sophistication is uncomm-on, even in tools developed by professional full-time modeling 
personnel. 

We had some questions and concerns of a relatively minor nature regarding the technical 
analysis supporting the report. These are as follows: 



Steve Wickstrum 
Water Supply and Use Status Report Peer Review 

November 1,2004 
Page 2 

The monthly depletion factor allows the Robles inflow to become a small negative 
number during some periods. Please consider limiting the Robles inflow to a minimum 
of zero, since negative inflows do not physically make sense. 

The Lake Casitas net water loss (evaporation minus rainfall) should not be the same for 
all scenarios, since the storage levels in Lake Casitas are different for each of these 
scenarios and evaporation depends upon surface area, and thus storage. We recommend 
using a monthly evaporation rate (in inches) that can be applied to the end-of-month 
surface area of Lake Casitas. This will more accurately reflect the expected evaporation 
from the Lake and will shows the differences in evaporative losses between the different 
scenarios. We would be happy to provide guidance with the evaporation rates, if this 
path is pursued. 

Report 

We conclude that, overall, this is a concise, clearly written report that identifies the key 
issues of the water supply and its use by the District. The report provides the main methodology 
and primary results without adding unnecessary details of the analysis to the main body of the 
report. The appendices are properly organized and presented, so the reader can review the 
additional details of the analysis, if desired. 

There are a few areas of the report which we believe require clarification. As such, we 
have recommended clarification or corrective action to these sections. These are detailed, as 
follows: 

A table of contents in the front of the report would allow portions of the report to be 
quickly accessed as a reference. We recommend adding a table of contents to the report. 

It is not entirely clear how the Matilija Creek hydrology was synthesized for the period of 
time without an operable Matilija Creek gage (i.e., when neither USGS #4500 nor #5500 
were operable). The report mentions that USGS #5500 was prorated by the annual 
volume of USGS #4500. Shouldn't this reference to USGS #4500 actually be to USGS 
#6000, the North Fork Matilija Creek gage? It is also not clear how the annual volumes 
could be prorated when one of the gages was not operable. The ratio changes from water 
year to water year, so we assume that these are not long-term average volumes used in 
prorating. We recommend that this section be clarified in the analysis and report. 

We recommend that the flow accretion methodology used in this study be explained more 
thoroughly. There are two factors applied depending upon which Matilija Creek gage 
was operable. We assume this is due to geographical differences between the two gages. 
Judging from the accretion multipliers applied, USGS #4500 must be further upstream. 
We recommend showing the locations of all three USGS gages used in this study on a 
map. Identifying that these factors are multipliers should also be explained in the report. 



Steve Wickstrum 
Water Supply and Use Status Report Peer Review 

November 1,2004 
Page 3 

In the summary tables A1-A8, we recommend renaming the column heading currently 
labeled as "Matilija Gages" to the more accurate "Matilija Creek below North Fork 
Matilija Creek". 

For the graphs on page A19-A20, please consider eliminating the symbols on the graph 
lines. It is very difficult to differentiate between the plotting lines with the relative 
density of these symbols and the closeness of the lines themselves 

As mentioned in our review, we believe this is a well written and organized report that 
can be completed with the minor modifications we have suggested. We hope this review allows 
you to proceed with your analysis, results, and report in their desired capacities. If you have any 
questions regarding our review or its findings, please contact me at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 
MBK ENGINEERS A 

M&C Van Camp 

BT/bt 
2400lSTEVE WICKSTRUM 1 1 .01.2004.DOC 



Since 1984 - Environmental Excellence 
ENTRIX, Inc. 
2140 Eastrnan Avenue, Suite 200 
Ventura, CA 93003 
(805) 644-5948 
(805) 658-0612 Fax 

November 18,2004 

Mr. Steve Wickstrurn 
Principal Civil Engineer 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
1055 North Ventura Avenue 
Oakview, CA 93022 

Re: Peer Review of the Casitas Water Supply and Use Report 

Dear Mr. Wickstrurn, 

ENTRIX, Inc. (ENTRIX) has prepared this letter report to present the results of the peer 
review of the preliminary draft Casitas Water Supply and Use Report (Report) dated June 1 1, 
2004. The Report's objective is to assess the Casitas Municipal Water District's (District) 
water supply given recent and future changes in water supply and demand including water 
releases associated with the Robles BO and the potential decommissioning of Matilija Dam. 
The Report is to be used by the District's governing body to assist in making decisions 
regarding future water management. 

The objective of this peer review is to determine whether the Report accurately projects 
future water supply and water demand conditions and to evaluate the applicability and 
appropriateness of the methods utilized to make these projections. 

This review presents a brief overview of the Report, a description of the methods used in the 
review, and the review results. The results of the review are organized into four primary 
categories: 1) the overall approach of the analysis; 2) the water supply analysis; 3) the water 
demand analysis; and, 4) the conservation and reduction measures required to balance water 
supply and use. 

Overview of the Draft Casitas Water Supply and Use Report 

The Report was developed to assess the potential impacts to the District's water supply 
associated with the recently adopted operating criteria specified in the Biological Opinion for 
the Robles Fish -- Ladder -- and with the potential removal of Matilija Dam. The Report also 
evaluates the effect of predicted water use on the District water supply, and conservation and 
reduction measures required to balance water supply and use. The study evaluated four 
separate operating scenarios: 

Water supply and use during the critical drought period, defined as between water years 
1 945 hrough 1965, with Matilija Dam; LLLL 

LLLL 
LLLL 
LLLL 



Mr. Wickstrum 
Principal Civil Engineer 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
November 18,2004 
Page 2 

Water supply and use during the same critical drought period without Matilija Dam; 

Water supply and use during the reservoir recovery period, defined as between water 
years 1966 through 1980, with Matilija Dam; and, 

Water supply and use during the same reservoir recovery period without Matilija Dam. 

The results of the Report indicate that the predicted water supply exceeds the estimated water 
demand for all modeled scenarios, with the exception of critical drought period under the 
Robles BO operating criteria without the benefit of Matilija Dam. This scenario, which is the 
most likely, could result in a deficit of approximately 360 acre-feet per year. 

Review Methods 

The review considered the draft Report, supporting documentation such as spreadsheets used 
to develop the water supply and bypass estimates, and the Water Supply and Demand Status 
Report prepared by the District's Engineering Department Manager on June 7, 1989. The 
review consisted of an evaluation of the overall approach used to determine safe yield and the 
methods, assumptions, and results used in developing the water supply and water demand 
estimates. The project team involved in the review consisted of the following personnel: 

David Blankenhorn, R.G. - Mr. Blankenhorn served as the project manager and was 
responsible for reviewing all aspects of the Report. He is a State of California Registered 
Geologist with over 9 years of experience working on various hydrology projects. Mr. 
Blankenhorn has significant experience in conducting hydrologic studies in Southern 
California including the Ventura River Watershed. He was the lead hydrologist in the 
preparation of the Ventura River HCP for which he evaluated surface water and 
groundwater hydrology within the lower Ventura River basin and the effects of water 
diversions and groundwater withdrawl on surface water flows. In addition, Mr. 
Blankenhorn conducted an evaluation of surface water flows and guidelines for water 
releases at the Robles Diversion in support of the Biological Assessment prepared by 
ENTRDC. 

Dr. Daniel Tormey, R.G. - Dr. Tormey assisted in the overall review and evaluation of 
the Report. He has analyzed water supply issues for withdrawal from the San Joaquin- 
Sacramento Riverdelta, and locally in the Ventura County area. He has extensive 
experience analyzing hydrology and sediment transport in California coastal streams and 
the Sierra Nevada. Dr. Torrney has also conducted a water supply and water demand 
study in support of a wellfield design for a proposed golf course in the Sacramento area. 



Mr. Wickstrum 
Principal Civil Engineer 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
November 18,2004 
Page 3 

Woody Trihey - Mr. Trihey assisted in the review of the design for the fish screen and 
evaluated potential impacts to the District water diversions following installation of the 
screen. He is a hydraulic engineer with significant hydrology and fish passage 
enhancement experience including the evaluation of fish screens. 

Dr. Gretchen Greene - Dr. Greene reviewed and evaluated the overall approach of the 
Report and the methodology used in the water demand analysis. She is a Senior 
Economist with significant experience in evaluating future water demand. 

The review focused on four primary areas: 1) the overall approach of the analysis; 2) the 
water supply analysis; 3) the water demand analysis; and, 4) the conservation and reduction 
measures required to balance water supply and use. The Report was evaluated to determine 
the applicability and appropriateness of the methods and assumptions utilized in its 
preparation. The review of the water supply analysis included an evaluation of the mean 
daily flow data used in the water supply analysis, flow losses and additions between the 
existing stream gauges and the Robles Diversion, estimates of storage and release from 
Matilija Dam, bypass flows at Robles Diversion associated with the 1959 and BO operating 
criteria, losses in the Robles Diversion canal, losses at Lake Casitas, and input from 
tributaries to Lake Casitas. The evaluation of the water demand analysis included a review of 
the methodology used to predict future water use and a comparison to historic demand data, 
In addition, the water supply reduction/conservation measures required to balance water 
supply and use were reviewed to determine the level of reduction associated with each 
method. 

Review Results 

The results of the review are described below. The discussion is organized into the four 
primary review areas: 1) the overall approach of the analysis; 2) the water supply analysis; 3) 
the water demand analysis; and, 4) the conservation- and reduction measures required to 
balance water supply and use. The comments do not include details such as spelling and 
typographical errors as it is assumed that the document will be edited prior to the final draft. 

Overall Approach 

The overall approach of the study is sound. The study uses a planning scenario the longest 
drought on record in-the Ventura River Basin which was between 1944 and 1965. The safe 
yield for this period is determined using empirical stream gage data in conjunction with the 
recent and potential changes in operating conditions associated with the Robles BO and the 
potential decommissioning of Matilija Dam. The water demand is predicted based on recent 
use data. The study also evaluates the recovery period following the drought between 1966 
and 1980 to determine the safe yield until the reservoir recovers to full storage capacity. 



Mr. Wickstrum 
Principal Civil Engineer 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
November 18,2004 
Page 4 

Several issues, however, need to be clarified in the document as follows: 

In the drought period analysis (Tables A1 to A4), the starting storage in Lake Casitas in 
year 1945 ranges between approximately 223,000 to 226,000 acre-feet (AF) and the 
minimum storage is fixed at approximately 4,800 AF. Based on discussions with the 
District, the starting and ending volumes for each scenario were derived using the storage 
values utilized in the D20 study at the beginning (October 1, 1944) and ending 
(September 30, 1965) of the analysis in order to be consistent with that study. Since these 
valueseffect the safe yield estimates for each scenario, the document should explain the 
basis for these values since they differ from the maximum usable storage capacity of 
250,000 AF specified in the 1989 memo and the minimum storage capacity of 100 AF 
used in the D20 study which reportedly corresponds to the estimated storage volume in 
December 1965 rather than September 1965. In addition, the document should explain 
why these values vary between each modeled scenario. 

In the recovery period analysis (Tables A5 to A8), the starting storage in Lake Casitas in 
year 1966 ranges between approximately 36,000 to 38,000 AF and the maximum storage 
ranges between approximately 237,000 and 239,000 AF. As with the drought period 
analysis, the District indicated that the starting and ending volumes for each scenario 
were derived using the storage values utilized in the D20 study at the beginning (October 
1, 1965) and ending (September 30, 1980) of the analysis in order to be consistent with 
that study. Since these values effect the safe yield estimates for each scenario, the 
document should explain the basis for these values since they differ from the maximum 
usable storage capacity of 250,000 AF specified in the 1989 memo and the minimum 
storage capacity of 100 AF used in the D20 study. In addition, the document should 
explain why these values vary between each modeled scenario. 

Based on discussions with the District, the water supplylsafe yield estimates provided in 
Tables A through AS include the supply provided by the Mira Monte well. However, 
the Report does not clearly specify that the supply from this well is included in the 
analysis. Accordingly, a column should be included in these tables to account for the 
supply from this well or a note should be added to the tables to indicate that the supply 
from this well is included in the analysis. 

The study results indicate that the lowest safe yield values occur during the recovery 
periods under the Robles BO operating criteria (21,180 AF with Matilija and 19,780 AF 
without Matilija). Although the predicted water demand for this period is less than the 
estimated safe yield, the predicted safe yield for this period would appear to be the 
limiting factor on water use allocation. The lower safe yield values for the recovery 
period appear to be caused by increased bypass flows associated with the Robles BO 
operating criteria and the constraint of the modeling approach which limits the number of 



Mr. Wickstrum 
Principal Civil Engineer 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
November 18,2004 
Page 5 

years (15 years) to achieve full capacity. If a shorter time is allowed for recovery, 
corresponding to a shorter period between droughts, the safe yield value would be lower 
than presented in the Report. The effect of the length of the recovery period on predicted 
safe yield could be addressed in a sensitivity analysis. 

The issues described above affect the principal objective of the Report which is to predict 
safe yield and future water use allocation. Accordingly, these areas should be clearly 
explained to assist in planning efforts. 

Water Supply 

The water supply assumptions and methodology appear sound and empirical data is used 
where available to model or validate the water supply under the different operating scenarios. 
However, the analysis relies heavily on the assumptions and factors developed as part of the 
D20 study. The basis for these assumptions was not available for review; therefore, it was 
not possible to verify their accuracy/applicability of these factors. It would be useful to 
provide a description of the methods used to derive these factors. 

The assumptions and methodology used for the supply model need to be described in greater 
detail to allow for easier understanding and comprehension of the analysis. Following an 
initial review of the document, a meeting was held on September 29, 2004 to clarify the 
methods and assumptions used to develop the water supply estimates. The meeting was 
attended by Steve Wickstrum, Leo Lentsch, and Chip Blankenhorn. A copy of the issues 
discussed in the meeting is provided in Attachment A. 

The Report also describes several concerns that could affect water supply which were not 
quantitatively captured in the analysis. These concerns include the following: 

Impacts associated with operations near minimum pool in Lake Casitas. Operations 
under these conditions could affect water quality, water delivery, and recreation. 

Water loss at Robles Dam associated with decreased efficiency of water transfer through 
the fish screens and plugging of the fish screens with fine sediment. 

Increased groundwater extraction above Robles Diversion Dam which may result in 
increased flow of . surface .- water to groundwater, thereby reducing inflow to Lake Casitas. 

A brief discussion of these issues is provided below 

Minimum pool impacts. It seems that the most important planning issue is related to the 
water delivery and distribution infrastructure. If not previously addressed by the District, the 
District should determine the stages at which the infrastructure could be affected and develop 



Mr. Wickstrum 
Principal Civil Engineer 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
November 18,2004 
Page 6 

a contingency plan in the event that this occurs. With regards to water quality and recreation, 
the District should monitor conditions at various stages in Lake Casitas and use this data to 
assist in managing potential affects in the future should the concerns arise. 

Water loss at Robles associated with the fish screens. ENTRLX reviewed the fish screen 
design and contacted the design engineer (Tim Duller at Wood-Rogers) to evaluate this issue. 
Based on a review of the design and discussions with the design engineer, it appears that the 
existing trash rack should be sufficient to trap large debris moving into the diversion canal. 
The fish screens include a traveling brush cleaning system which should prevent clogging due 
to brush. The design engineer indicated that the screen was designed to maintain an approach 
velocity of approximately 0.4 ft/s and a minimum sweeping velocity of approximately 0.8 fils 
in accordance with California Department of Fish and Game requirements. However, the 
design engineer indicated that the sweeping velocity would likely be greater than 0.8 ft/s and 
could be up to 1.5 fi/s. Based on the existing information, the flow velocities appear to be 
sufficient to transport silts and clays in suspension, but may not be sufficient to transport 
sands, if present. A thorough analysis of potential impacts would need to consider the 
suspended sediment concentration and particle sizes in suspension. The slot spacing of the 
fish screen is 1.75 rnm which is within the coarse sand range and is likely greater than the 
particle sizes that would be in suspension. If an impact were to occur, it would likely be due 
to sediment deposition at the base of the fish screen and the existing design accommodates 
for approximately 1 foot of deposition by offsetting the base of the screen 1 foot from the 
bottom of the canal. There is a potential for this area to be filled during the seasonal 
operation period which could impact the diversion efficiency and/or the diversion operation if 
sediment removal is required. The maximum impact on water diversions would be the loss 
of approximately 1,000 AFIday which is the equivalent to a water diversion rate of 500 cfs 
(the maximum capacity of the diversion canal) over a 24-hour period. This situation could 
occur if the entire screen is clogged with sediment andlor debris or the diversion needs to 
shut-down for maintenance to remove sedimentldebris. The District should monitor 
conditions in the channsi during and after each storm event to determine any potential 
impact. 

Increased groundwater extraction above Robles diversion dam. Increased groundwater 
extraction would result in a decrease of the water table elevation and would result in greater 
infiltration to the subsurface. The greatest use of groundwater would likely occur during the 
dry season when the diversion is not typically in operation. Assuming that the water table is 
lowest at the end of the dry season, the largest impact to the District's supply would likely 
occur during early storm events prior to recharge of the unconfined aquifer situated upstream 
of Robles. The aquifer in this portion of the basin typically fills relatively quickly, so 
increased losses would not likely have a significant impact on water supply at Robles. 



Mr. Wicks tm 
Principal Civil Engineer 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
November 18,2004 
Page 7 

Water Demand 

The water demand analysis utilizes a correlation between water use and precipitation to 
develop a polynomial equation to predict future water demand. The basis for this correlation 
is sound in that historic data indicates that water use varies significantly with precipitation, 
primarily because agricultural use is the dominant water user and crops require less irrigation 
when there is high precipitation. The goodness of fit ( R ~  value) for the water demand- 
precipitation correlation is approximately 0.97, which indicates a strong correlation between 
these variables. 

The predicted water demand equation also includes a dry year multiplier to account for 
increased water demand associated with consecutive years with less than 20-inches of 
rainfall. Such a factor makes intuitive sense, since one would expect increasing water 
demand as a drought advances. The dry year multiplier was developed using the slope of a 
best fit line correlating recorded water use during the 1986 to 1990 drought. The multiplier is 
applied by multiplying the number of years with less than 20-inches of rainfall following an 
initial year with less than 20-inches of rainfall. The goodness of fit ( R ~  value) for the dry 
year multiplier correlation is approximately 0.56, which indicates a relatively poor correlation 
between variables. The use of the dry year multiplier is good in that it adds a factor of safety 
to the water use-precipitation equation, but the relatively poor correlation indicates that other 
factors may be controlling the variation in water demand. In addition, the data used to 
develop the dry year multiplier includes the actual water use by the City of Ventura (City) 
between 1986 and 1990 which ranged between 7,737 and 8,875 AF. The dry year multiplier 
could be refined by adjusting the water use data to include only the minimum requirement to 
the City of 6,000 AF/year. However, this adjustment is unlikely to improve the correlation. 

An evaluation of the predicted water demand and actual demand between 1970 and 2003 
indicates that in general this equation overpredicts the actual annual demand by an average of 
approximately 1,300 AF. The data also indicates that actual water use exceeded the predicted 
demand in eight years over this period. Although water use is sometimes underpredicted by 
the equation, the total surplus between the predicted and actual demand between 1970 and 
2003 is approximately 44,750 AF. 

The predicted water demand for each model scenario utilizes the average water use for the 
drought period (21,200 AF) and for the recover)' period (18,820 AF). The model water 
demand for eachyeari-derived from the annual precipitation data for these periods. Based 
on the comparison of the predicted versus actual water demand, these values likely 
overestimate the water use for these periods which provides a factor of safety in evaluating 
water use versus supply. 



Mr. Wickstrum 
Principal Civil Engineer 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
November 1 8,2004 
Page 8 

One of the issues that was discussed in the meeting held on September 29, 2004 was the 
supply obligation to the City of Ventura. As discussed in the report, the minimum obligation 
to the City is 6,000 AF per year; however, the maximum obligation is not specified. The 
Report states that water use by the City could increase significantly if oil production increases 
andlor if there is an extensive dry-period. A discussion of the maximum obligation to the 
City should be included in the document to assist in determining the potential affects on 
water supply and demand in the future. 

Water Conservation and Reduction Measures : 

The Report discusses several water conservation and reduction measures that could be 
implemented to balance safe yield with predicted water use. However, the focus of these 
measures is not clearly described. Based on discussions with the District, the objective of 
these measures is to evaluate options which could be implemented to balance the predicted 
safe yield with the predicted water use for the critical drought period under the Robles BO 
operating criteria without the benefit of Matilija Dam. This scenario, which is the most 
likely, could result in a deficit of approximately 360 acre-feet per year. Accordingly, the 
Report evaluates options which would provide a reduction of approximately 360 AFIyear. 
The Report should explain the objective of these measures and indicate that the intent of 
these measures is not to provide a comprehensive evaluation of potential water conservation 
and reduction measures for the District. 

Closure 

ENTRIX appreciates the opportunity to perform this work for the District. Please call Dan 
Torrney or Chip Blankenhorn at (805) 644-5948 with any questions or comments. 

Sincerely, 

ENTRIX, Inc. 

David B. Blankenhorn, R.G. Daniel Torrney, Ph.D., R.G. 
Senior Project Engine~lGeologist Principal 



ATTACHMENT A 
SEPTEMBER 29,2004 MEETING MEMO 



MEMO ENTRIX, Inc. 
2140 Eastman Avenue, Suite 200 

Venture, CA 93003 
(805) 644-5948 

To: Steve Wickstrum, Casitas Municipal Water District 

From: Chip Blankenhorn, ENTRIX 

Date: September 29,2004 

Re : Initial Questions/Comments 

The purpose of this memo is to outline initial questions/comments on the Water Supply and Use 
Status Report dated June 11, 2004. After your review, I would like to discuss these with you 
prior to preparing our draft peer review report. The questions/comrnents are separated water 
supply and water demandluse as follows: 

I. Water Supply 

In general, the water supply estimates utilize factors developed as part of the Kienlen 
D20 study, but the report does not discuss the derivation of these factors. Accordingly, it 
is difficult to evaluate the applicability of these factors. These factors include the 
following: 

Reservoir Recovery Period Hydrology: 

- Item l b  is described as "daily flows predicted from NF Matilija daily USGS 
records". I am presuming that this is a typo since the header is for Matilija Creek 
hydrology and gages #4500 and #5500 are situated on Matilija Creek. 

- Item lbi (loss factor at Matilija Reservoir) - how was this factor derived? 

- Item lbii - estimation of daily flows for #5500 are calculated by adjusting the 
flows at #4500 by a ratio of the annual water supply at each gage. Does this ratio 
represent the average over the overlapping period of record? 

- Item 2bi - how was the equation for #6000 derived? 

MatilijapReservoir Operations - how were the max. and min. storage capacity 
estimates derived? 

Flow Accretion -how were these factors derived? 

Flow depletiodextraction - how were these factors derived? 

Robles Diversion Operations - how were the facility losses derived and is there more 
recent data to assist in this estimation? 



Volume of water bypassed - how were these factors derived and how were they 
utilized in the study? If we are accounting for inflow from gage data, diversions at 
Robles, and bypass flows associated with the fish releases, then it seems like we can 
directly calculate annual bypass flows. 

Lake Casitas: 

- How were the estimates from the tributaries derived and what are the estimates 
from the D20 study (not provided)? 

- Also, with regards to net evaporation, the USBR study utilized an estimate of 
3.08 feetlyear and the D20 study used 1.9 feetlyear. Is more recent data available 
to update this factor? Also, does the surface area that this factor is applied to 
vary annually based on storage levels or is an average value used? 

- It does not appear that sedimentation in Lake Casitas was addressed with regards 
to impacts on storage? Is there data available to estimate the approximate rate of 
sedimentation which can be used to evaluate potential impacts? 

Water UseDemand 

In general, it appears that it is primarily agricultural water use that changes in response to 
precipitation. Also, there appears to be a slight increasing trend in residential water demand 
between 1976 and 2002 and a relatively steep demand in gravity water sales between 1997 
and 2002. Accordingly, it might be more useful to model these variables separately and sum 
them to assist in predicting future demand. 

Water sales to the City seem to be a wildcard as future use may revert to pre-1990 if the oil 
production increases andlor there is an extensive dry-period. What are the obligations to the 
city beyond the 6000 AF/year minimum? 



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix I 
Ojai Basin Groundwater Management Plan 

 













































 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix J 
CMWD Consumer Confidence Report 

 



C
on

tin
ue

d
 o

n 
p

ag
e 

6 
➢

P
a

g
e

 3
P

a
g

e
 6

Ca
si

ta
s 

Ke
ep

s 
Yo

ur
W

at
er

 S
af

e
C

as
ita

s 
st

riv
es

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

yo
u 

w
ith

 
w

at
er

 t
ha

t 
m

ee
ts

 o
r 

ex
ce

ed
s 

al
l f

ed
er

al
 

an
d 

st
at

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r 

sa
fe

 w
at

er
. 

T
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

yo
u 

re
ce

iv
e 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

qu
al

ity
 d

rin
ki

ng
 w

at
er

, w
e 

te
st

 b
ey

on
d 

w
ha

t 
st

at
e 

an
d 

fe
de

ra
l 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

m
an

da
te

. T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 

of
 o

ur
 m

on
ito

ri
ng

 f
or

 t
he

 p
er

io
d 

of
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
4 

or
 

th
e 

m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

 
te

st
in

g 
pe

ri
od

 
re

qu
ire

d.
Es

te
 in

fo
rm

e 
co

nt
ie

ne
 in

fo
rm

ac
io

n 
m

uy
 im

po
rt

an
te

 s
ob

re
 s

u 
ag

ua
 b

eb
er

. 
T

ra
du

zc
al

o 
6 

ha
bl

e 
co

n 
al

gu
ie

n 
qu

e 
lo

 
en

tie
nd

a 
bi

en
. P

ar
a 

la
 in

fo
rm

ac
io

n 
lla

m
e 

po
r 

fa
vo

r 
80

5-
64

9-
22

51
.

Bo
ar

d 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

re
 o

pe
n 

to
 t

he
 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 a

re
 h

el
d 

on
 t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
an

d 
fo

ur
th

 W
ed

ne
sd

ay
s 

of
 e

ac
h 

m
on

th
 a

t 
3:

00
 p

.m
. 

at
 t

he
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

m
ai

n 
of

fic
e,

 
10

55
 V

en
tu

ra
 A

ve
., 

O
ak

 V
ie

w
, 

C
A

, 
93

02
2.

 F
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

n 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

ts
 o

ut
lin

ed
 h

er
e 

an
d 

fo
r 

m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t C

as
ita

s 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

ist
ric

t, 
vi

sit
 u

s 
at

 o
ur

 
W

eb
 s

ite
:

w
w

w
.c

as
ita

sw
at

er
.o

rg
, 

or
 c

al
l 

Su
sa

n 
M

cM
ah

on
, 

W
at

er
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

Su
pe

rv
iso

r,
 a

t 8
05

-6
49

-2
25

1 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

12
0.

Yo
ur

 T
ap

 W
at

er
 Is

 S
af

e 
to

 D
rin

k
In

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ta

p 
w

at
er

 is
 s

af
e 

to
 d

rin
k,

 t
he

 U
.S

. 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 
(U

SE
PA

) 
an

d 
th

e 
St

at
e 

W
at

er
 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
C

on
tr

ol
 B

oa
rd

 (
SW

RC
B)

 D
iv

isi
on

 o
f D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 
pr

es
cr

ib
e 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 th

at
 li

m
it 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f c
er

ta
in

 c
on

ta
m

in
an

ts
 

in
 w

at
er

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 p
ub

lic
 w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 S

W
RC

B 
D

iv
isi

on
 o

f 
D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

lso
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

lim
its

 fo
r c

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

 in
 

bo
tt

le
d 

w
at

er
 th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
.

D
rin

ki
ng

 w
at

er
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ot

tle
d 

w
at

er
, m

ay
 b

e 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 c
on

ta
in

 a
t l

ea
st

 sm
al

l a
m

ou
nt

s o
f s

om
e 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

. 
T

he
 p

re
se

nc
e 

of
 c

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ne

ce
ss

ar
ily

 in
di

ca
te

 t
ha

t 
w

at
er

 p
os

es
 a

 h
ea

lth
 r

isk
. M

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
co

nt
am

in
an

ts
 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l h
ea

lth
 e

ffe
ct

s c
an

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

ca
lli

ng
 th

e 
U

SE
PA

’s
 

Sa
fe

 D
rin

ki
ng

 W
at

er
 H

ot
lin

e 
 (1

- 8
00

-4
26

-4
79

1)
.

Do
 Y

ou
 K

no
w

 th
e

So
ur

ce
 o

f Y
ou

r W
at

er
?

T
he

 C
as

ita
s 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
ist

ric
t 

is 
su

pp
lie

d 
by

 a
 b

le
nd

 
of

 g
ro

un
d 

w
at

er
 a

nd
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 t
ha

t 
is

 t
re

at
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

it 
is 

di
st

ri
bu

te
d 

to
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

.  
T

he
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 c
om

es
 f

ro
m

 L
ak

e 
C

as
ita

s,
 l

oc
at

ed
 n

ea
r 

th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 H

ig
hw

ay
 1

50
 a

nd
 S

an
ta

 
A

na
 R

oa
d,

 a
nd

 t
he

 g
ro

un
d 

w
at

er
 is

 d
ra

w
n 

fr
om

 t
he

 M
ira

 M
on

te
 

W
el

l. 
 M

os
t 

of
 t

he
 w

at
er

sh
ed

 is
 fe

de
ra

lly
 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
to

 l
im

it 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 

la
ke

.  
Fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
w

e 
in

sp
ec

t 
th

e 
w

at
er

sh
ed

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
ba

sis
.

Fo
r 

m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 

yo
u 

m
ay

 
re

vi
ew

 
th

e 
19

95
 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 
Su

rv
ey

 a
nd

 t
he

 2
01

1 
up

da
te

, 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 o

ur
 m

ai
n 

of
fic

e 
in

 O
ak

 V
ie

w
.

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

is 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

os
t 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 t

o 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 n
ot

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 a
ny

 d
et

ec
te

d 
co

nt
am

in
an

ts
: 

bo
at

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
(r

ep
ai

r 
an

d 
re

fin
is

hi
ng

), 
pe

tr
ol

eu
m

 p
ip

el
in

es
 a

nd
 re

cr
ea

tio
n.

 T
he

re
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
no

 c
on

ta
m

in
an

ts
 d

et
ec

te
d 

in
 

th
e 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 t

he
 la

ke
 is

 s
til

l 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 t
o 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 l
oc

at
ed

 n
ea

r 
th

is
 

m
aj

or
 s

ou
rc

e 
of

 o
ur

 d
ri

nk
in

g 
w

at
er

. T
he

 
po

te
nt

ia
l s

ou
rc

es
 o

f c
on

ta
m

in
an

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

w
ag

e 
di

sp
os

al
 s

ys
te

m
s;

 li
ve

st
oc

k 
an

d 
w

ild
lif

e 
gr

az
in

g;
 li

m
ite

d 
pe

st
ic

id
e 

an
d 

he
rb

ic
id

e 
us

e;
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
 th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

ar
ea

; 
un

au
th

o r
iz

ed
 d

um
pi

ng
; 

lim
ite

d 
gr

ow
th

 o
f 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 o

r 
ur

ba
n 

ar
ea

s;
 tr

af
fic

 a
cc

id
en

ts
; a

nd
 s

pi
lls

.
T

he
 2

00
2 

D
ri

nk
in

g 
W

at
er

 S
ou

rc
e 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
ir

a 
M

on
te

 W
el

l i
s 

al
so

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 a

t 
ou

r 
of

fic
e.

 T
hi

s 
w

el
l 

is 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 t
o 

be
 m

os
t 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 t

o 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 fe
rt

ili
ze

rs
 a

nd
 

an
im

al
 g

ra
zi

ng
, w

hi
ch

 r
ai

se
 n

itr
at

e 
le

ve
ls 

in
 th

e 
w

at
er

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 
th

e 
M

ir
a 

M
on

te
 W

el
l m

ay
 b

e 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 t
o 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

ur
ba

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
se

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 h

av
e 

no
t 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

w
el

l.

Na
tu

re
 a

nd
 M

an
 In

fl u
en

ce
Yo

ur
 W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y

T
he

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f d

rin
ki

ng
 w

at
er

 (
bo

th
 t

ap
 w

at
er

 a
nd

 b
ot

tle
d 

w
at

er
) 

in
cl

ud
e 

riv
er

s,
 la

ke
s,

 s
tr

ea
m

s,
 p

on
ds

, r
es

er
vo

irs
, s

pr
in

gs
, 

an
d 

w
el

ls.
 A

s w
at

er
 tr

av
el

s o
ve

r t
he

 su
rf

ac
e 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

, i
t d

iss
ol

ve
s 

na
tu

ra
lly

-o
cc

ur
rin

g 
m

in
er

al
s 

an
d,

 in
 s

om
e 

ca
se

s,
 r

ad
io

ac
 tiv

e 
m

at
er

ia
l, 

an
d 

ca
n 

pi
ck

 u
p 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f a

ni
m

al
s 

or
 h

um
an

 a
ct

iv
ity

.
C

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

pr
es

en
t i

n 
so

ur
ce

 w
at

er
 in

cl
ud

e:
1.

 M
ic

ro
bi

al
 c

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
vi

ru
se

s 
an

d 
ba

ct
er

ia
, 

th
at

 m
ay

 c
om

e 
fr

om
 s

ew
ag

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

pl
an

ts
, 

se
pt

ic
 s

ys
te

m
s,

 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l l
iv

es
to

ck
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

, a
nd

 w
ild

lif
e.

2.
 I

no
rg

an
ic

 c
on

ta
m

in
an

ts
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

sa
lts

 a
nd

 m
et

al
s,

 t
ha

t 
ca

n 
be

 n
at

ur
al

ly
-o

cc
ur

ri
ng

 o
r 

re
su

lt 
fr

om
 u

rb
an

 s
to

rm
w

at
er

 
ru

no
ff;

 in
du

st
ria

l o
r 

do
m

es
tic

 w
as

te
w

at
er

 d
isc

ha
rg

es
, o

il 
an

d 
ga

s 
pr

od
uc

tio
n,

 m
in

in
g,

 o
r 

fa
rm

in
g.

3.
 P

es
tic

id
es

 a
nd

 h
er

bi
ci

de
s 

th
at

 m
ay

 c
om

e 
fr

om
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 

of
 s

ou
rc

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
, 

ur
ba

n 
st

or
m

 w
at

er
 r

un
of

f, 
an

d 
re

sid
en

tia
l u

se
s.

4.
 O

rg
an

ic
 c

he
m

ic
al

 c
on

ta
m

in
an

ts
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
sy

nt
he

tic
 a

nd
 

vo
la

til
e 

or
ga

ni
c 

ch
em

ic
al

s,
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

by
-p

ro
du

ct
s 

of
 i

nd
us

tr
ia

l 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

an
d 

pe
tr

ol
eu

m
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n,
 a

nd
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

co
m

e 
fr

om
 

ga
s 

st
at

io
ns

, 
ur

ba
n 

st
or

m
 w

at
er

 r
un

of
f, 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
an

d 
se

pt
ic

 s
ys

te
m

s.
5.

 R
ad

io
ac

tiv
e 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

, t
ha

t c
an

 b
e 

na
tu

ra
lly

-o
cc

ur
rin

g 
or

 b
e 

th
e 

re
su

lt 
of

 o
il 

an
d 

ga
s 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
m

in
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s h

as
 n

o 
ur

ba
n 

or
 in

du
st

ria
l w

at
er

 ru
no

ff 
an

d 
ve

ry
 

fe
w

 r
es

id
en

ts
 s

til
l l

iv
e 

in
 t

he
 w

at
er

sh
ed

. T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

oi
l, 

ga
s 

or
 

m
in

in
g 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

 o
ur

 w
at

er
sh

ed
.

Ch
lo

ra
m

in
e 

Di
si

nf
ec

tio
n

A
ll 

pu
bl

ic
 d

ri
nk

in
g 

w
at

er
 m

us
t 

be
 d

is
in

fe
ct

ed
 t

o 
pr

ev
en

t 
w

at
er

-b
or

ne
 d

is
ea

se
s.

 C
as

ita
s 

di
si

nf
ec

ts
 t

he
 w

at
er

 b
y 

ad
di

ng
 

ch
lo

ri
ne

 a
nd

 a
 s

m
al

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f a

m
m

on
ia

 t
o 

th
e 

w
at

er
 t

o 
fo

rm
 

ch
lo

ra
m

in
es

. C
hl

or
am

in
e 

di
sin

fe
ct

io
n 

is 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
SW

RC
B 

D
iv

isi
on

 o
f D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

U
S 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

A
ge

nc
y.

 M
an

y 
U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

 a
nd

 C
an

ad
ia

n 
ci

tie
s 

ha
ve

 u
se

d 
ch

lo
ra

m
in

es
 f

or
 d

ec
ad

es
 t

o 
di

si
nf

ec
t 

w
at

er
. 

T
he

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
of

 S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
w

at
er

 t
o 

ne
ar

ly
 

18
 m

ill
io

n 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 u

sin
g 

ch
lo

ra
m

in
es

 fo
r 

di
sin

fe
ct

io
n 

sin
ce

 1
98

4.
 C

hl
or

am
in

es
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f u

nw
an

te
d 

di
sin

fe
ct

io
n 

by
-p

ro
du

ct
s 

in
 o

ur
 w

at
er

. D
isi

nf
ec

tio
n 

by
-p

ro
du

ct
s 

ar
e 

fo
rm

ed
 w

he
n 

ch
lo

rin
e 

m
ix

es
 w

ith
 n

at
ur

al
ly

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
or

ga
ni

c 
m

at
er

ia
l i

n 
w

at
er

. C
ur

re
nt

ly
, r

eg
ul

at
ed

 d
isi

nf
ec

tio
n 

by
-p

ro
du

ct
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

tr
ih

al
om

et
ha

ne
s 

an
d 

ha
lo

ac
et

ic
 a

ci
ds

. C
hl

or
am

in
es

 s
to

p 
th

e 
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
se

 b
y-

pr
od

uc
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

 c
hl

or
am

in
at

ed
 

w
at

er
 h

as
 l

es
s 

of
 a

 c
hl

or
in

e 
ta

st
e 

an
d 

od
or

 t
ha

n 
ch

lo
ri

na
te

d 
w

at
er

. C
hl

or
am

in
es

 d
o 

no
t 

po
se

 a
 h

ea
lth

 h
az

ar
d 

to
 t

he
 g

en
er

al
 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 C

hl
or

am
in

at
ed

 w
at

er
 is

 s
af

e 
fo

r 
dr

in
ki

ng
, 

ba
th

in
g,

 
co

ok
in

g 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

no
rm

al
 u

se
s.

 T
w

o 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
gr

ou
ps

 o
f p

eo
pl

e,
 

ho
w

ev
er

, d
o 

ne
ed

 to
 ta

ke
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

w
ith

 c
hl

or
am

in
at

ed
 w

at
er

 
- k

id
ne

y 
di

al
ys

is 
pa

tie
nt

s 
an

d 
tr

op
ic

al
 fi

sh
 h

ob
by

ist
s.

Di
al

ys
is

 P
at

ie
nt

s 
Ha

ve
 S

pe
ci

al
 N

ee
ds

K
id

ne
y 

pa
tie

nt
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

ha
rm

ed
 f

ro
m

 d
ri

nk
in

g,
 c

oo
ki

ng
 o

r 
ba

th
in

g 
in

 c
hl

or
am

in
at

ed
 w

at
er

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 is

 a
 p

ro
bl

em
 th

at
 

ne
ed

s t
o 

be
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls 
w

ho
 a

re
 u

nd
er

go
in

g 
di

al
ys

is 
tr

ea
tm

en
t o

n 
ar

tif
ic

ia
l k

id
ne

y 
m

ac
hi

ne
s.

 C
hl

or
am

in
es

 m
us

t n
ot

 b
e 

pr
es

en
t 

in
 t

he
 w

at
er

 u
se

d 
in

 d
ia

ly
sis

 m
ac

hi
ne

s.
 C

hl
or

am
in

es
 c

an
 

be
 r

em
ov

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 fi
ltr

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

. W
e 

ha
ve

 w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

 
th

e 
SW

RC
B 

D
iv

isi
on

 o
f D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 e

ve
ry

on
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 w
ith

 tr
ea

tm
en

t o
f d

ia
ly

sis
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

is 
al

er
te

d 
to

 th
e 

fa
ct

s 
ab

ou
t c

hl
or

am
in

at
ed

 w
at

er
.

Ch
lo

ra
m

in
es

 a
nd

 Y
ou

r A
qu

ar
iu

m
 o

r F
is

hp
on

d
C

hl
or

am
in

es
 a

re
 t

ox
ic

 t
o 

fis
h 

or
 a

ni
m

al
s 

th
at

 u
se

 g
ill

s 
to

 
br

ea
th

. W
hi

le
 c

hl
or

in
e 

w
ill

 e
va

po
ra

te
 ra

th
er

 q
ui

ck
ly

 fr
om

 st
an

di
ng

 
w

at
er

, 
it 

m
ay

 t
ak

e 
w

ee
ks

 f
or

 c
hl

or
am

in
es

 t
o 

di
sa

pp
ea

r.
 T

hu
s 

it 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
de

ch
lo

ri
na

te
 w

at
er

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
aq

ua
ri

um
s 

an
d 

fis
hp

on
ds

. W
e 

su
gg

es
t 

us
in

g 
a 

fil
te

r 
sy

st
em

 o
r 

a 
de

ch
lo

ri
na

tin
g 

ag
en

t 
so

ld
 a

t 
m

os
t 

pe
t 

st
or

es
 fo

r 
fr

es
h 

an
d 

sa
ltw

at
er

 a
qu

ar
iu

m
s 

an
d 

fis
hp

on
ds

. A
no

th
er

 o
pt

io
n 

is 
to

 in
st

al
l a

 h
ig

h-
qu

al
ity

 g
ra

nu
la

r 
ac

tiv
at

ed
 c

ar
bo

n 
(G

A
C

) 
fil

te
r 

in
 y

ou
r 

ho
m

e.
 T

he
 c

hl
or

am
in

e 
re

sid
ua

l i
n 

w
at

er
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

fis
h 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ke

pt
 b

el
ow

 0
.1

 p
ar

ts
 p

er
 

m
ill

io
n.

 C
on

ta
ct

 y
ou

r 
lo

ca
l p

et
 s

to
re

 o
r 

fis
h 

sh
op

 fo
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
as

sis
ta

nc
e.

Ch
lo

ra
m

in
es

 A
re

 S
af

e 
fo

r
Pl

an
ts

 a
nd

 S
w

im
m

in
g 

Po
ol

s
C

hl
or

am
in

es
 w

ill
 n

ot
 a

ffe
ct

 t
he

 c
hl

or
in

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 y
ou

r 

ba
ck

ya
rd

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

. Y
ou

 s
til

l n
ee

d 
to

 a
dd

 c
hl

or
in

e 
to

 r
et

ar
d 

al
ga

e 
an

d 
ba

ct
er

ia
l g

ro
w

th
. C

hl
or

am
in

es
 h

av
e 

no
 a

ffe
ct

 o
n 

pl
an

ts
, 

ve
ge

ta
bl

es
 o

r 
fr

ui
t 

tr
ee

s.
 F

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 c

hl
or

am
in

es
 

ca
ll 

80
5-

64
9-

22
51

, e
xt

. 1
20

. Fl
uo

rid
e

C
as

ita
s 

do
es

 n
ot

 a
dd

 fl
uo

rid
e,

 b
ut

 t
he

re
 is

 s
om

e 
flu

or
id

e 
in

 
th

e 
w

at
er

 t
ha

t 
is

 n
at

ur
al

ly
 o

cc
ur

ri
ng

. 
 T

hi
s 

le
ve

l w
as

 t
es

te
d 

at
 

0.
4 

m
g/

L 
in

 t
he

 la
ke

 s
ou

rc
e 

du
rin

g 
20

14
. F

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 fl

uo
rid

e 
ch

ec
k 

th
e 

D
iv

isi
on

 o
f D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

’s
 F

lu
or

id
at

io
n 

w
eb

si
te

 f
or

 m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 f
lu

or
id

at
io

n,
 o

ra
l 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 

cu
rr

en
t 

is
su

es
: h

tt
p:

//w
w

w
.w

at
er

bo
ar

ds
.c

a.
go

v/
dr

in
ki

ng
_w

at
er

/
ce

rt
lic

/d
rin

ki
ng

w
at

er
/F

lu
or

id
at

io
n.

sh
tm

l

Le
ad

 a
nd

 C
op

pe
r

T
he

 la
te

st
 r

es
ul

ts
 fr

om
 C

as
ita

s’
 le

ad
 a

nd
 c

op
pe

r 
te

st
in

g 
w

er
e 

be
lo

w
 t

he
 a

ct
io

n 
le

ve
ls

. 
 I

f 
pr

es
en

t, 
el

ev
at

ed
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 

le
ad

 c
an

 
ca

us
e 

se
ri

ou
s 

he
al

th
 p

ro
bl

em
s,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 f

or
 p

re
gn

an
t 

w
om

en
 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
ch

ild
re

n.
  

Le
ad

 i
n 

dr
in

ki
ng

 w
at

er
 i

s 
pr

im
ar

ily
 f

ro
m

 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 l

in
es

 a
nd

 
ho

m
e 

pl
um

bi
ng

.  
C

as
ita

s 
is 

re
sp

on
sib

le
 fo

r 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

dr
in

ki
ng

 w
at

er
, b

ut
 c

an
no

t 
co

nt
ro

l t
he

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls 

us
ed

 
in

 p
lu

m
bi

ng
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s.
  W

he
n 

yo
ur

 w
at

er
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

sit
tin

g 
fo

r 
se

ve
ra

l h
ou

rs
, y

ou
 c

an
 m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 le
ad

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
by

 
flu

sh
in

g 
yo

ur
 ta

p 
fo

r 
30

 s
ec

on
ds

 to
 2

 m
in

ut
es

 b
ef

or
e 

us
in

g 
w

at
er

 
fo

r 
dr

in
ki

ng
 o

r 
co

ok
in

g.
  I

f y
ou

 a
re

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 le
ad

 in
 y

ou
r 

w
at

er
, y

ou
 m

ay
 w

ish
 t

o 
ha

ve
 y

ou
r 

w
at

er
 t

es
te

d.
  I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 

le
ad

 in
 d

rin
ki

ng
 w

at
er

, t
es

tin
g 

m
et

ho
ds

, a
nd

 s
te

ps
 y

ou
 c

an
 t

ak
e 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

ex
po

su
re

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 S
af

e 
D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 
H

ot
lin

e 
or

 a
t h

tt
p:

//w
w

w
.e

pa
.g

ov
/s

af
ew

at
er

/le
ad

.  
El

ev
at

ed
 le

ve
ls 

of
 c

op
pe

r 
ca

n 
oc

cu
r 

w
he

n 
co

rr
os

iv
e 

w
at

er
 c

au
se

s 
le

ac
hi

ng
 o

f 
co

pp
er

 p
lu

m
bi

ng
. 

 T
o 

pr
ev

en
t 

th
is

 C
as

ita
s 

ha
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

a 
co

rr
os

io
n-

co
nt

ro
l p

la
n 

by
 a

dd
in

g 
a 

sm
al

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

ph
os

ph
at

e 
to

 th
e 

w
at

er
 to

 lo
w

er
 th

e 
co

rr
os

iv
ity

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
e 

co
pp

er
 le

ve
ls.

Im
po

rt
an

t H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
So

m
e 

pe
op

le
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

or
e 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 t

o 
co

nt
am

in
an

ts
 

in
 d

ri
nk

in
g 

w
at

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
  

Im
m

un
o-

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

 p
er

so
ns

 s
uc

h 
as

 p
er

so
ns

 w
ith

 c
an

ce
r 

un
de

rg
oi

ng
 

ch
em

ot
he

ra
py

, p
er

so
ns

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
un

de
rg

on
e 

or
ga

n 
tr

an
sp

la
nt

s,
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 H

IV
/A

ID
S 

or
 o

th
er

 im
m

un
e 

sy
st

em
 d

iso
rd

er
s,

 s
om

e 
el

de
rl

y,
 a

nd
 i

nf
an

ts
 c

an
 b

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 a

t 
ri

sk
 f

ro
m

 i
nf

ec
tio

ns
. 

T
he

se
 p

eo
pl

e 
sh

ou
ld

 s
ee

k 
ad

vi
ce

 a
bo

ut
 d

rin
ki

ng
 w

at
er

 fr
om

 th
ei

r 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

  U
SE

PA
/C

en
te

rs
 fo

r D
ise

as
e 

C
on

tr
ol

 (C
D

C
) 

gu
id

el
in

es
 o

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
ea

ns
 to

 le
ss

en
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 in
fe

ct
io

n 
by

 
C

ry
pt

os
po

rid
iu

m
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 m
ic

ro
bi

al
 c

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
Sa

fe
 D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 H
ot

lin
e 

at
 1

-8
00

-4
26

-4
79

1.
 

Un
re

gu
la

te
d 

Co
nt

am
in

an
t M

on
ito

rin
g

U
nr

eg
ul

at
ed

 c
on

ta
m

in
an

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

he
lp

s 
U

SE
PA

 a
nd

 t
he

 
SW

RC
B 

D
iv

isi
on

 o
f D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
re

 c
er

ta
in

 
co

nt
am

in
an

ts
 o

cc
ur

 a
nd

 w
he

th
er

 t
he

 c
on

ta
m

in
an

ts
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
re

gu
la

te
d.

 C
as

ita
s 

sa
m

pl
ed

 fo
r 

un
re

gu
la

te
d 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

20
13

; s
ee

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
fo

r 
sa

m
pl

in
g 

re
su

lts
.

Ne
w

 A
er

at
io

n 
Sy

st
em

 P
la

nn
ed

 fo
r 2

01
5

A
 n

ew
 a

er
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

in
 L

ak
e 

C
as

ita
s 

du
rin

g 
su

m
m

er
 o

f 2
01

5.
 T

he
 n

ew
 s

ys
te

m
 w

ill
 in

je
ct

 o
xy

ge
n 

in
to

 
th

e 
de

ep
er

 p
or

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 la

ke
 n

ea
r 

th
e 

da
m

. I
t i

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 th

at
 

th
e 

ne
w

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ill

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

he
lp

 p
re

ve
nt

 
so

m
e 

of
 t

he
 t

as
te

 a
nd

 o
do

r 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

th
at

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
du

rin
g 

su
m

m
er

 a
nd

 fa
ll.

A 
ne

w
 a

er
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

in
 

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s d

ur
in

g 
su

m
m

er
 o

f 2
01

5.



TE
R

M
S 

U
SE

D
 IN

 T
H

IS
 R

EP
O

R
T:

M
ax

im
um

 C
on

ta
m

in
an

t L
ev

el
 (M

C
L)

: T
he

 h
ig

he
st

 le
ve

l o
f a

 
co

nt
am

in
an

t t
ha

t i
s 

al
lo

we
d 

in
 d

rin
kin

g 
wa

te
r. 

Pr
im

ar
y 

M
CL

s 
ar

e 
se

t a
s 

cl
os

e 
to

 th
e 

PH
G

s 
(o

r M
CL

G
s)

 a
s 

is
 e

co
no

m
ic

al
ly

 a
nd

 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

ca
lly

 fe
as

ib
le

. S
ec

on
da

ry
 M

CL
s 

ar
e 

se
t t

o 
pr

ot
ec

t t
he

 
od

or
, t

as
te

, a
nd

 a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

of
 d

rin
kin

g 
wa

te
r.

M
ax

im
um

 C
on

ta
m

in
an

t 
Le

ve
l G

oa
l (

M
C

LG
): 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f a

 
co

nt
am

in
an

t i
n 

dr
in

kin
g 

wa
te

r b
el

ow
 w

hi
ch

 th
er

e 
is 

no
 k

no
wn

 o
r 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 ri
sk

 to
 h

ea
lth

. M
CL

G
s 

ar
e 

se
t b

y 
th

e 
U.

S.
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

-
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Ag
en

cy
 (U

SE
PA

).
M

ax
im

um
 R

es
id

ua
l D

is
in

fe
ct

an
t L

ev
el

 (M
R

D
L)

: T
he

 h
ig

he
st

 
le

ve
l o

f a
 d

is
in

fe
ct

an
t a

llo
we

d 
in

 d
rin

ki
ng

 w
at

er
. T

he
re

 is
 c

on
-

vin
cin

g 
ev

id
en

ce
 th

at
 a

dd
itio

n 
of

 a
 d

isi
nf

ec
ta

nt
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 
co

nt
ro

l o
f m

icr
ob

ia
l c

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

.
M

ax
im

um
 R

es
id

ua
l D

is
in

fe
ct

an
t 

Le
ve

l G
oa

l (
M

R
D

LG
): 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f a

 d
rin

kin
g 

wa
te

r b
el

ow
 w

hi
ch

 th
er

e 
is 

no
 k

no
wn

 o
r e

x-
pe

ct
ed

 ri
sk

 to
 h

ea
lth

. M
RD

LG
s 

do
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 d
isi

nf
ec

ta
nt

s 
to

 c
on

tro
l m

icr
ob

ia
l c

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

.
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Le

ve
l:  

He
al

th
 b

as
ed

 a
dv

iso
ry

 le
ve

ls 
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 b
y 

Th
e 

St
at

e 
Bo

ar
d*

 fo
r c

he
m

ica
ls 

in
 d

rin
kin

g 
wa

te
r t

ha
t l

ac
k 

M
CL

s.
Pr

im
ar

y 
D

ri
nk

in
g 

W
at

er
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 (
PD

W
S)

: 
M

C
Ls

 a
nd

 
M

R
D

Ls
 f

or
 c

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

 t
ha

t 
af

fe
ct

 h
ea

lth
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 t
he

ir 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
po

rti
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, 

an
d 

w
at

er
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 G
oa

l (
PH

G
): 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f a

 c
on

ta
m

in
an

t i
n 

dr
in

k-
in

g 
w

at
er

 b
el

ow
 w

hi
ch

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

kn
ow

n 
or

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ris

k 
to

 
he

al
th

. P
HG

s 
ar

e 
se

t b
y 

th
e 

Ca
lifo

rn
ia

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Ag
en

cy
. 

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

A
ct

io
n 

Le
ve

l (
A

L)
: T

he
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 c
on

ta
m

i-
na

nt
 w

hi
ch

, if
 e

xc
ee

de
d,

 tr
ig

ge
rs

 tr
ea

tm
en

t o
r o

th
er

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
wh

ich
 a

 w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
 m

us
t f

ol
lo

w.
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

D
rin

ki
ng

 W
at

er
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 (S
D

W
S)

: M
CL

s f
or

 co
n-

ta
m

in
an

ts
 th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 ta
st

e,
 o

do
r, 

or
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

dr
in

kin
g 

wa
te

r. 
Co

nt
am

in
an

ts
 w

ith
 S

DW
Ss

 d
o 

no
t a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

he
al

th
 a

t t
he

 
M

CL
 le

ve
ls.

Tr
ea

tm
en

t T
ec

hn
iq

ue
: A

 re
qu

ire
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f a
 c

on
ta

m
in

an
t i

n 
dr

in
kin

g 
wa

te
r.

U
C

M
R

 3
: 

U
nr

eg
ul

at
ed

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
C

on
ta

m
in

an
t 

R
ul

e 
(T

hi
rd

 
ro

un
d)

.  
Th

is
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

he
lp

s 
th

e 
EP

A 
an

d 
Th

e 
St

at
e 

Bo
ar

d*
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
wh

er
e 

ce
rta

in
 c

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

 o
cc

ur
 a

nd
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
co

nt
am

in
an

ts
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
re

gu
la

te
d.

K
ey

 T
o 

Ta
bl

e 
(A

C
R

O
N

YM
S)

N
A

 =
 N

ot
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
D

 =
 N

on
e 

De
te

ct
ed

N
L 

= 
No

tif
ica

tio
n 

Le
ve

l
N

S 
= 

No
 S

am
pl

e
N

TU
 =

 N
ep

he
lo

m
et

ric
 T

ur
bi

di
ty

 U
ni

ts
 (a

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f t

ur
bi

di
ty

)
pp

t =
 P

ar
ts

 p
er

 tr
illi

on
, o

r n
an

og
ra

m
s 

pe
r l

ite
r (

ng
/L

)
pC

i/L
 =

 P
ico

cu
rie

s 
pe

r l
ite

r (
a 

m
ea

su
re

 o
f r

ad
ia

tio
n)

pp
m

 =
 P

ar
ts

 p
er

 m
illi

on
, o

r m
illi

gr
am

s 
pe

r l
ite

r (
m

g/
L)

pp
b 

= 
Pa

rts
 p

er
 b

illi
on

, o
r m

icr
og

ra
m

s 
pe

r l
ite

r (
ug

/L
)

TT
 =

 T
re

at
m

en
t T

ec
hn

iq
ue

uS
/c

m
 =

 M
ic

ro
 S

ie
m

en
s 

pe
r 

C
en

tim
et

er
 (

a 
m

ea
su

re
 o

f 
sp

ec
ific

 c
on

du
ct

an
ce

)

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

Fo
ot

no
te

s:
a)

 T
he

 S
ta

te
 a

llo
ws

 u
s t

o 
m

on
ito

r f
or

 so
m

e 
co

nt
am

in
an

ts
 le

ss
 

th
an

 o
nc

e 
pe

r y
ea

r b
ec

au
se

 th
e 

co
nc

en
tra

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
se

 
co

nt
am

in
an

ts
 d

o 
no

t c
ha

ng
e 

fre
qu

en
tly

. S
om

e 
of

 o
ur

 d
at

a,
 

th
ou

gh
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e,

 a
re

 m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 y

ea
r o

ld
.

b)
 9

9.
6 

%
 o

f t
he

 s
am

pl
es

 te
st

ed
 fo

r t
ur

bi
di

ty
 w

er
e 

be
lo

w 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
TT

 le
ve

l o
f 0

.2
 N

TU
. T

ur
bi

di
ty

 is
 a

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

th
e 

clo
ud

in
es

s 
of

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 is

 a
 g

oo
d 

m
ea

su
re

 o
f w

at
er

 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 fi
ltr

at
io

n 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

.
c)

 D
ur

in
g 

20
14

 C
as

ita
s 

co
lle

ct
ed

 1
59

 s
am

pl
es

 fo
r t

ot
al

 c
ol

i-
fo

rm
 b

ac
te

ria
 te

st
in

g 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
To

ta
l C

ol
ifo

rm
 R

ul
e.

 
To

ta
l C

ol
ifo

rm
 b

ac
te

ria
 w

er
e 

no
t d

et
ec

te
d 

in
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

se
 

sa
m

pl
es

. 
d)

 M
ira

 M
on

te
 W

el
l i

s 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

M
CL

 fo
r n

itr
at

es
, h

ow
ev

er
 

th
e 

we
ll w

at
er

 is
 b

le
nd

ed
 w

ith
 la

ke
 C

as
ita

s 
wa

te
r w

ith
 th

e 
re

su
ltin

g 
ni

tra
te

 le
ve

l a
ve

ra
gi

ng
 1

.9
 p

pm
. 

e)
 C

as
ita

s h
as

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

a 
co

rro
sio

n 
co

nt
ro

l p
la

n 
by

 a
dd

-
in

g 
a 

sm
al

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f p

ho
sp

ha
te

 to
 th

e 
wa

te
r t

o 
lo

we
r 

co
rro

siv
ity

 a
nd

 re
du

ce
 c

op
pe

r l
ev

el
s.

f) 
El

ev
at

ed
 m

an
ga

ne
se

 le
ve

ls
 c

re
at

ed
 ta

st
e/

od
or

 is
su

es
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
fa

ll 
se

as
on

 o
f 2

01
4;

 th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

 w
as

 c
au

se
d 

by
 lo

w 
le

ve
ls 

of
 d

iss
ol

ve
d 

ox
yg

en
 in

 th
e 

la
ke

.
g)

 T
he

se
 re

su
lts

 a
re

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
de

te
ct

io
n 

lim
its

 fo
r r

ep
or

tin
g 

an
d 

ca
n 

on
ly 

be
 u

se
d 

as
 a

n 
es

tim
at

e.
 F

or
 va

na
di

um
 sa

m
-

pl
in

g 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t l
ev

el
 (i

n 
pp

b)
 fo

r t
he

 la
ke

 w
as

 1
.2

 (N
D 

fo
r 2

01
4)

, t
he

 w
el

l w
as

 0
.7

8 
an

d 
th

e 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
 s

ys
te

m
 

wa
s 

1.
2.

* 
CA

 S
ta

te
 W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
tro

l B
oa

rd

Ca
si

ta
s 

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

20
15

 (2
01

4 
D

at
a)

Pr
im

ar
y 

He
al

th
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

C
O

N
S

TI
TU

E
N

TS
 

M
C

L 
 

P
H

G
, (

M
C

LG
) 

LA
K

E
 C

A
S

IT
A

S
 T

R
E

A
TE

D
 W

A
TE

R
 

M
IR

A
 M

O
N

TE
 W

E
LL

 
D

IS
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 S

Y
S

TE
M

 
Y

ea
r 

Te
st

ed
a  

S
ou

rc
e 

of
 C

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n

 
(M

R
D

L)
 

(M
R

D
LG

) 
LE

V
E

L/
A

V
E

R
A

G
E

 
R

A
N

G
E

 
A

V
E

R
A

G
E

 
R

A
N

G
E

 
A

V
E

R
A

G
E

 
R

A
N

G
E

 
 

Tu
rb

id
ity

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t t

ec
hn

iq
ue

 (T
T)

b  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 F

ilte
r E

ffl
ue

nt
 T

ur
bi

di
ty

 (N
TU

)b   
1 

N
TU

 
N

A 
hi

gh
es

t v
al

ue
 =

 0
.4

0 
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
20

14
 

N
A 

So
il 

ru
no

ff
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
95

%
 <

 0
.2

 N
TU

 
 

 99
.6

%
 o

f t
ur

bi
di

ty
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 <
 0

.2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 M
IC

R
O

B
IO

LO
G

IC
A

Lc  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 T

ot
al

 C
ol

ifo
rm

 B
ac

te
ria

 
   

> 
1 

po
sit

ive
 s

am
pl

e/
m

on
th

 
(0

) 
 

 
 

 
0 

0 
20

14
 

N
A 

N
at

ur
al

ly
 p

re
se

nt
 in

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t

 E
. C

ol
i B

ac
te

ria
 

   
> 

1 
po

sit
ive

 s
am

pl
e/

m
on

th
 

(0
) 

 
 

 
 

0 
0 

20
14

 
N

A 
H

um
an

 a
nd

 a
ni

m
al

 fe
ca

l w
as

te
 IN

O
R

G
A

N
IC

 C
H

E
M

IC
A

LS
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ba

riu
m

 (p
pm

) 
1 

2 
N

D
 

N
A 

0.
1 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

20
14

 
20

13
 

D
is

ch
ar

ge
s 

of
 o

il 
dr

illi
ng

 w
as

te
s 

an
d 

fro
m

 m
et

al
 re

fin
er

ie
s;

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 e

ro
si

on
 o

f n
at

ur
al

 d
ep

os
its

Fl
uo

rid
e 

(p
pm

) 
2.

0 
1 

0.
4 

N
A 

0.
4 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

20
14

 
20

13
 

Er
os

io
n 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 d

ep
os

its
; w

at
er

 a
dd

iti
ve

 w
hi

ch
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
st

ro
ng

 te
et

h;
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 fr
om

 fe
rti

liz
er

 a
nd

 a
lu

m
in

um
 fa

ct
or

ie
s

N
ic

ke
l (

pp
b)

 
10

0 
12

 
N

D
 

N
A 

28
 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

20
14

 
20

13
 

Er
os

io
n 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 d

ep
os

its
; d

is
ch

ar
ge

 fr
om

 m
et

al
 fa

ct
or

ie
s

N
itr

at
e 

as
 N

03
 (p

pm
)d  

45
 

45
 

1.
0 

N
A 

44
.0

 
41

.3
-4

5.
9 

N
D

 
N

D
-2

.6
 

20
14

 
20

14
 

R
un

of
f a

nd
 le

ac
hi

ng
 fr

om
 fe

rti
liz

er
 u

se
; l

ea
ch

in
g 

fro
m

 ta
nk

s 
an

d 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

se
w

er
ag

e;
 e

ro
si

on
 fr

om
 n

at
ur

al
 p

ro
du

ct
s

 D
IS

IN
FE

C
TI

O
N

 B
Y

-P
R

O
D

U
C

TS
 A

N
D

 D
IS

IN
FE

C
TA

N
T 

R
E

S
ID

U
A

LS
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 C

hl
or

am
in

es
 (p

pm
) 

[4
.0

] 
[4

.0
]  

 
 

 
 

2.
6 

1.
0-

3.
9 

20
14

 
N

A 
D

rin
ki

ng
 w

at
er

 d
is

in
fe

ct
an

t a
dd

ed
 fo

r t
re

at
m

en
t

 T
rih

al
om

et
ha

ne
s 

(p
pb

) 
80

 
N

A 
 

 
 

 
36

.9
 

24
.8

-5
2.

2 
20

14
 

N
A 

By
-p

ro
du

ct
 o

f d
rin

ki
ng

 w
at

er
 d

is
in

fe
ct

io
n

 H
al

oa
ce

tic
 a

ci
ds

 (p
pb

) 
60

 
N

A 
 

 
 

 
22

 
8-

33
 

20
14

 
N

A 
By

-p
ro

du
ct

 o
f d

rin
ki

ng
 w

at
er

 d
is

in
fe

ct
io

n
 IN

D
IV

ID
U

A
L 

TA
P

  
R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
P

H
G

 
# 

of
 s

am
pl

es
 

H
om

es
  

   
Le

ve
l d

et
ec

te
d 

at
 

Y
ea

r
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 F

O
R

: 
A

ct
io

n 
Le

ve
l 

 
co

lle
ct

ed
 

ab
ov

e 
A

L 
   

 9
0t

h 
pe

rc
en

til
e 

Te
st

ed
 a

 L
E

A
D

 A
N

D
 C

O
P

P
E

R
 

 
 

 
 

 L
ea

d 
(p

pb
) 

15
 

0.
2 

23
 

0 
N

D
 

20
14

 
N

A 
In

te
rn

al
 c

or
ro

si
on

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 p
lu

m
bi

ng
 s

ys
te

m
s;

 d
isc

ha
rg

es
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
fro

m
 in

du
st

ria
l m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
rs

; e
ro

sio
n 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 p

ro
du

ct
s

 C
op

pe
r (

pp
m

)e 
1.

3 
0.

3 
23

 
0 

1.
0 

20
14

 
N

A 
In

te
rn

al
 c

or
ro

si
on

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
at

er
 p

lu
m

bi
ng

 s
ys

te
m

s;
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
er

os
io

n 
of

 n
at

ur
al

 d
ep

os
its

; l
ea

ch
in

g 
fro

m
 w

oo
d 

pr
es

er
va

tiv
es

C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
T

S
 

S
ta

te
 M

C
L

  
P

H
G

/N
L

 
L

A
K

E
 C

A
S

IT
A

S
 T

R
E

A
T

E
D

 W
A

T
E

R
 

M
IR

A
 M

O
N

T
E

 W
E

L
L

 
D

IS
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 
Y

e
a
r 

T
e
s
te

d
a
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
C

o
n

ta
m

in
a
ti

o
n

 
 

 
L

E
V

E
L

/A
V

E
R

A
G

E
 

R
A

N
G

E
 

A
V

E
R

A
G

E
 

R
A

N
G

E
 

A
V

E
R

A
G

E
 

R
A

N
G

E
 

T
ur

bi
di

ty
(N

T
U

) 
5 

N
A

 
2.

0 
N

A
 

0.
4 

N
A

 
 

 
20

14
 

20
13

 
S

oi
l r

un
-o

ff

T
ot

al
 D

is
so

lv
ed

 S
ol

id
s 

(p
pm

) 
10

00
 

N
A

 
38

0 
N

A
 

42
0 

N
A

 
 

 
20

14
 

20
13

 
R

un
-o

ff/
le

ac
hi

ng
 f

ro
m

 n
at

ur
al

 d
ep

os
its

S
pe

ci
fic

 C
on

du
ct

an
ce

 (
uS

/c
m

) 
16

00
 

N
A

 
56

3 
N

A
 

67
9 

N
A

 
 

 
20

14
 

20
13

 
S

ub
st

an
ce

s 
th

at
 f

or
m

 io
ns

 in
 w

at
er

; 
se

aw
at

er
 in

flu
en

ce

C
hl

or
id

e 
(p

pm
) 

50
0 

N
A

 
19

 
N

A
 

66
 

N
A

 
 

 
20

14
 

20
13

 
R

un
-o

ff/
le

ac
hi

ng
 f

ro
m

 n
at

ur
al

 d
ep

os
its

; 
se

aw
at

er
 in

flu
en

ce

S
ul

fa
te

 (
pp

m
) 

50
0 

N
A

 
14

1 
N

A
 

40
 

N
A

 
 

 
20

14
 

20
13

 
R

un
-o

ff 
/le

ac
hi

ng
 f

ro
m

 n
at

ur
al

 d
ep

os
its

; 
in

du
st

ria
l w

as
te

s

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

U
C

M
R

 3
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
hl

or
at

e 
(p

pb
) 

80
0 

N
A

 
N

D
 

N
D

 
17

6 
65

-2
90

 
N

D
 

N
D

 
20

13
 

20
13

 
A

 d
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
by

-p
ro

du
ct

M
ol

yb
de

nu
m

 (
pp

b)
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

3.
3 

3.
1-

3.
4 

 
N

D
-1

.9
 

3.
4 

3.
2-

3.
5 

20
13

 
20

13
 

A
 n

at
ur

al
ly

-o
cc

ur
in

g 
el

em
en

t f
ou

nd
 in

 o
re

s 
an

d 
pr

es
en

t i
n 

pl
an

ts
, 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

an
im

al
s 

an
d 

ba
ct

er
ia

S
tr

on
tiu

m
 (

pp
b)

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
70

3 
66

0-
75

0 
52

0 
47

0-
57

0 
72

3 
67

0-
77

0 
20

13
 

20
13

 
A

 n
at

ur
al

ly
-o

cc
ur

in
g 

el
em

en
t

V
an

ad
iu

m
 (

pp
b)

g  
50

 
N

A
 

S
ee

 f
oo

tn
ot

e 
g 

 
S

ee
 f

oo
tn

ot
e 

g 
 

S
ee

 f
oo

tn
ot

e 
g 

 
20

13
 

20
13

 
A

 n
at

ur
al

ly
-o

cc
ur

in
g 

el
em

en
ta

l m
et

al

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
T

S
 (

U
N

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
E

D
) 

P
H

G
/N

L
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
lk

al
in

ity
 (

T
ot

al
 a

s 
C

aC
O

3 
pp

m
) 

N
A

 
N

A
 

12
0 

N
A

 
16

0 
N

A
 

 
 

20
14

 
20

13
 

A
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 t

o 
ne

ut
ra

liz
e 

ac
id

B
or

on
 (

pp
b)

 
N

A
 

(1
00

0)
 

20
0 

N
A

 
10

0 
N

A
 

 
 

20
14

 
20

13
 

A
 n

at
ur

al
ly

-o
cc

ur
rin

g 
el

em
en

t

C
al

ci
um

 (
pp

m
) 

N
A

 
N

A
 

49
 

N
A

 
52

 
N

A
 

 
 

20
14

 
20

13
 

A
 n

at
ur

al
ly

-o
cc

ur
rin

g 
el

em
en

t

M
ag

ne
si

um
 (

pp
m

) 
N

A
 

N
A

 
22

 
N

A
 

15
 

N
A

 
 

 
20

14
 

20
13

 
A

 n
at

ur
al

ly
-o

cc
ur

rin
g 

el
em

en
t

P
ot

as
si

um
 (

pp
m

) 
N

A
 

N
A

 
3 

N
A

 
N

D
 

N
A

 
 

 
20

14
 

20
13

 
A

 n
at

ur
al

ly
-o

cc
ur

rin
g 

el
em

en
t

T
ot

al
 H

ar
dn

es
s 

(p
pm

) 
N

A
 

N
A

 
27

3 
N

A
 

19
1 

N
A

 
 

 
20

14
 

20
13

 
“H

ar
dn

es
s”

 is
 th

e 
su

m
 o

f p
ol

yv
al

en
t c

at
io

ns
 p

re
se

nt
 in

 th
e 

 
 

  
 

 
 

(1
3.

1 
gr

ai
ns

/g
al

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

w
at

er
, g

en
er

al
ly

 m
ag

ne
si

um
 a

nd
 c

al
ci

um
.  

T
he

 c
at

io
ns

 a
re

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

us
ua

lly
 n

at
ur

al
ly

 o
cc

ur
in

g.

S
od

iu
m

 (
pp

m
) 

N
A

 
N

A
 

26
 

N
A

 
54

 
N

A
 

 
 

20
14

 
20

13
 

“S
od

iu
m

” 
re

fe
rs

 t
o 

th
e 

sa
lt 

pr
es

en
t 

in
 t

he
 w

at
er

 a
nd

 is
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 n

at
ur

al
ly

 o
cc

ur
rin

g.

 
La

ke
 o

r
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

W
el

l
 

S
ys

te
m

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
Ae

st
he

tic
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

f

 
La

ke
 

W
el

l



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix K 
CMWD Water Conservation Resolutions 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 16- 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AND IMPLEMENTING  
A STAGE 3 WATER SUPPLY CONDITION 

FOR ALL CASITAS CUSTOMERS 
 

WHEREAS, during the drought experienced in the Ventura River watershed during the 
period of 1987 through 1990, the annual water demands from Lake Casitas escalated and 
temporarily exceeded the safe yield of the Lake Casitas water supply and water stored in Lake 
Casitas diminished from a full condition to approximately 50.2 percent of full lake capacity; and 

WHEREAS, in 1990, the Casitas Municipal Water District (“Casitas”) concluded that the 
long-term demand upon Lake Casitas shall not exceed the safe yield of Lake Casitas and other 
Casitas sources of water supply; and  

WHEREAS, in 1992, Casitas adopted Ordinance 92-7, the Water Efficiency and Allocation 
Program (WEAP), and Resolution 92-11, the Water Shortage Contingency Plan, which was 
implemented in the Casitas Rates and Regulations for Water Service for all Casitas customers; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the application of water allocations, water conservation measures and 
progressive restrictions on water use set forth by the adopted Ordinance 92-7, the Water 
Efficiency and Allocation Program (WEAP), and Resolution 92-11, the Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan, are intended to provide to the water consumer an effective and immediately 
available means of conserving water in a manner that is essential to ensure a reliable and 
sustainable minimum supply of water for the public health, safety, and welfare and to preserve 
valuable limited water supply, avoid depleting water storage to an unacceptably low level, and 
thereby lessen the possibility of experiencing severe critical water shortages if dry conditions 
continue or worsen; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2004, Casitas evaluated the safe yield of the Ventura River Project under 
the changed conditions imposed by the 2003 Biological Opinion, pursuant to the Federal 
Endangered Species Act, for the operations of the Robles Diversion and the inclusion of the 
change in water supply with the eventual removal of Matilija Dam, concluding that the safe 
yield of the Ventura River Project is significantly reduced as a result of these changing 
conditions and that alternative demand reduction measures may be required to balance long-
term water supplies and water demands while meeting the needs of the environment; and  
 

WHEREAS, in 2005, Casitas prepared and adopted the 2005 Urban Water Management 
Plan that summarized information on present and future water resources and demands, 
provided water supply planning, provided water shortage contingency planning, and described 



Casitas efforts to implement water conservation and efficient water uses for all Casitas’ water 
customers; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2006, Casitas implemented operational measures at the Robles Diversion 
and Fish Passage Facility to comply with the 2003 Biological Opinion for the restoration of the 
endangered steelhead trout in the Ventura River, and that the implementation of said 
operational measures lessened the quantities of water that could be diverted to and stored in 
Lake Casitas for beneficial uses, and thereby reducing the safe yield of the Ventura River 
Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2009, the State of California enacted the Urban Water Management 
Planning Act (SB7X X) that legislated requirements for long-term water resources planning to 
ensure adequate water supplies to meet existing and future demands for water; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 22, 2011, in accordance with California Water Code §10620–10656, 
Casitas adopted the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan that further defined stages of action 
to achieve the balance between water supplies and demand through an equitable distribution 
of the existing water supplies, and to establish consumption limits in its water shortage 
contingency plan that would reduce water use; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Casitas 2010 Urban Water Management Plan established that a Level 
Two Alert may result with conditions that cause a lowering of water stored in Lake Casitas to be 
at or near the 50% full; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2014, the Governor of California proclaimed a State of 
Emergency to exist throughout California due to severe drought conditions that have persisted 
since 2012 and further proclaimed on April 25, 2014 that a Continued State of Emergency exists 
throughout California due to the ongoing drought; and 

WHEREAS, the Governor’s proclamation called upon all Californians to reduce their 
water usage by 20 percent; and 

WHEREAS, the Governor’s proclamation called upon local urban water suppliers and 
municipalities to implement any local water shortage contingency plans immediately in order to 
avoid or forestall outright restrictions that could become necessary later in the drought season; 
and 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2014, the Casitas Board proclaimed by Resolution 14-14 that 
drought conditions are stressing the groundwater and surface water supplies in western 
Ventura County to levels not seen in decades, and reaffirmed the Casitas 1992 Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan that sets a goal of a 20 percent voluntary reduction in water use; and 



WHEREAS, on July 15, 2014, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted 
Resolution No. 2014-0038 that implemented emergency regulations and actions to further 
reduce water demands of urban customers by the implementation of specific water waste 
prohibitions and required the implementation of water supplier’s approved Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan at a stage that requires mandatory water use restrictions on outdoor 
irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water; and 

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2014, Casitas adopted modifications to the Water Waste 
Prohibition Ordinance and the Casitas Water Shortage Contingency Plan to comply with the 
directives of the State Water Resources Control Board Resolution No. 2014-0038; and 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2015, the Governor of California issued Executive Order B-29-15, 
ordering that the State Water Resources Control Board impose restrictions to achieve a 
statewide 25% reduction in potable urban water usage through February 28, 2016, to lead a 
statewide initiative to collectively replace 50 million square feet of lawns and ornamental turf 
with drought tolerant landscapes, impose restrictions to require that commercial, industrial, 
and institutional properties immediately implement water efficiency measures to reduce 
potable water usage in an amount consistent with the statewide 25% reduction in water use, 
prohibit irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf on public street medians, and prohibit 
irrigation with potable water outside of newly constructed homes and buildings that is not 
delivered by drip or microspray systems, and direct urban water suppliers to develop rate 
structures and other pricing mechanisms, including but not limited to surcharges, fees, and 
penalties, to maximize water conservation consistent with statewide water restrictions; and 

WHEREAS, on April 11, 2015, the volume of water stored in Lake Casitas had declined to 
50 percent of total storage capacity and the Board of Directors declared that a Stage 2 
condition exists at Lake Casitas; and 

WHEREAS, on June 10, 2015, the Casitas Board of Directors adopted revisions to the 
Water Efficiency and Allocation Program and directed staff to implement the Program that sets 
a goal of a 20 percent mandatory reduction in water use during the Stage 2 water supply 
condition at Lake ; and  

WHEREAS, the General Manager has reported to the Board of Directors by 
memorandum dated April 4, 2016, that during the winter months of 2016 the Ventura River 
watershed continued to experience below normal rainfall that is a continuation of drought 
conditions that are likely to extend through the remainder of calendar year 2016, and possibly 
into future years; and 

WHEREAS, the releases of water from Lake Casitas to the Casitas main conveyance 
system totaled 17,246 acre-feet, which is less than the annual safe yield of Lake Casitas (20,850 



Acre-feet per year), such that on April 22, 2016, the storage level of water in Lake Casitas has 
declined to 41.7 percent and will continue to decline to less than 40 percent during the summer 
of 2016, until adequate rainfall and runoff reoccur in the local watersheds; and  

WHEREAS, as the drought continues, groundwater sources will become depleted and 
the remaining Lake Casitas water supply will become a primary source of water to supplement 
uses that otherwise rely on local groundwater sources; and 

WHEREAS, the Casitas Water Efficiency and Allocation Program identifies a decline to 
forty (40) percent of storage available in Lake Casitas as the Stage 3 condition and subject to 
water demand reduction measures to preserve the Lake Casitas water supply during a 
continuation of the drought; and 

WHEREAS, Article X, Section 2 of the California Constitution declares that the general 
welfare requires that water resources be put to beneficial use, that waste or unreasonable use 
or unreasonable method of use of water be prevented and that conservation of water be fully 
exercised with a view to the reasonable and beneficial use thereof; and 

WHEREAS, California Water Code, Section 375, authorizes a water supplier to adopt and 
enforce a comprehensive water conservation program to reduce water consumption and 
conserve water supplies; and 

WHEREAS, California Water Code, Section 71611 provides that a district may sell water 
under its control, without preference, to cities, other public corporations and agencies, and 
persons, within the district for use within the district. 

WHEREAS, California Water Code Section 71640 authorizes the governing body of a 
municipal water district to restrict the use of district water during any emergency caused by 
drought, or other threatened or existing water shortage, and may prohibit the wastage of 
district water or the use of district water during such periods for any purpose other than 
household uses or such other restricted uses as the district determines to be necessary, and 
may prohibit use of district water during such periods for specific uses which it finds to be 
nonessential; and 

WHEREAS, California Water Code Section 71642 authorizes the governing body of a 
municipal water district to find the existence or threat of a drought emergency or other 
threatened or existing water shortage, and that finding is prima facie evidence of the fact or 
matter so found, and such fact or matter shall be presumed to continue unchanged unless and 
until a contrary finding is made by the board by resolution or ordinance; and 



WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code section 71641 and Government Code section 6061, 
the [District] must publish in a newspaper of general circulation any ordinance setting forth the 
restrictions, prohibitions, and exclusions determined to be necessary under Water Code section 
71640 within 10 days after its adoption; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: by of the Casitas Municipal Water District as 
follows: 

1) Pursuant to Water Code section 71642, and for the reasons set forth herein, the Board 
continues with the determination of the existence or threat of a drought emergency or 
other water shortage condition; and 
 

2) Pursuant to California Water Code Section 71611 and under the authority of Water 
Code Section 71640, any water that is delivered from Lake Casitas and the Casitas 
distribution system that is used outside the District boundaries is considered an 
unreasonable use and an unreasonable method of use; and  
 

3) Casitas hereby declares that a Stage 3 water supply condition exists within the service 
area of the Casitas Municipal Water District; and 
 

4) The Board of Directors hereby directs staff to take the following actions that are 
described in the 2015 Water Efficiency and Allocation Program for a Stage 3 condition in 
Lake Casitas, in the specified time, that include: 

a) Effective upon adoption of this Resolution: 
i. Continue with the Stage 1 and Stage 2 measures; and  

ii. Expand and intensify the public information campaign within Casitas 
Municipal Water District that a mandatory reduction in water use is 
required during Stage 3 water supply conditions. 

iii. Implement measures to inform and educate all water users within Casitas 
Municipal Water District as to methods for achieving the reduction in 
water use. 

iv. Increase the current level of public outreach. 
v. Develop a budget to support water conservation and Public outreach 

efforts.  
 

b) Prior to July 1, 2016, bring forward to the Board of Directors recommendations 
to consider a moratorium or controlled issuance of new water service 
connection and allocations. 

 



c) Effective July 1, 2016, implement the following Stage 3 actions and measures:  
i. Reduce the initial allocation of every customer by an additional ten (10) 

percent;  and 
ii. Maintain the same conservation penalties as adopted by the Board of 

Directors on July 22, 2015; and 
iii. Restrict landscape irrigation watering to one day a week, such day to be 

specified by Casitas. 
 

5) The Stage 3 water supply condition shall be presumed to continue unchanged unless 
and until a contrary finding is made by the Board by resolution or ordinance. 

ADOPTED this 27th  day of April, 2016 

____________________________________ 
Peter Kaiser, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Jim Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 





















































 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix L 
CMWD CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 



Name: Email:

Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale7076

RMERCKLING@CASITASWATER.COMRON MERCKLING

BMP Section Monetary Amount for 
Financial Incentives

Monetary Amount for 
Equivalent Resources

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach 8975.00

BMP 1.1 Operation Practices 4000

BMP 2.2 School Education Program 13175

BMP 3 Residential 12878.16

BMP 5 Landscape 2528.8

BMP 4 CII 400

BMP 1.2 Wate Loss Control 1407.50

BMP 5 Landscape 250

BMP 4 CII 10778

b) Technical Support

d) Water Shortage Allocation

Adoption Date: 6/10/2015

File Name:

e) Non signatory Reporting of BMP implementation by non-signatory Agencies

Large retail agencies are members of CUWCC (City of Ventura and Golden State - Ojai). Other retail water agencies are 
too small to afford to join.

f) Encourage CUWCC Membership List Efforts to Recuit Retailers

a) Financial Investments and Building Partnerships

c) Retail Agency

Comments:

At Least As effective As No

NoExemption

BMP 1.1 Wholesale Agency Assistance Programs

CUWCC BMP Wholesale Coverage Report 2014

Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



7076 Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale

Completed Standard Water Audit Using AWWA Software? Yes

AWWA File provided to CUWCC? Yes

Copy of AWWA-WAS-v5-09152014.xls

AWWA Water Audit Validity Score?   84

Complete Training in AWWA Audit Method   Yes

Complete Training in Component Analysis Process?   Yes

Component Analysis?   Yes

Repaired all leaks and breaks to the extent cost effective?   Yes

Locate and Repar unreported leaks to the extent cost effective?   Yes

Maintain a record keeping system for the repair of reported leaks, including time of 
report, leak location, type of leaking pipe segment or fitting, and leak running time from 

report to repair. Yes

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2014

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.2 Water Loss Control ON TRACK

Provided 7 Types of Water  Loss Control Info

Leaks Repairs Value Real 
Losses

Value Apparent 
Losses

Miles Surveyed Press Reduction Cost Of 
Interventions

Water Saved 
(AF)

31437 272054 2 False

Comments:

At Least As effective As No

NoExemption



7076 Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale

Numbered Unmetered Accounts No

Metered Accounts billed by volume of use Yes

Number of CII Accounts with Mixed Use
Meters

Conducted a feasibility study to assess merits of a 
program to provide incentives to switch mixed-use 
accounts to dedicated landscape meters? 

No

Feasibility Study provided to CUWCC? No

Completed a written plan, policy or program to test, 
repair and replace meters

Yes

Comments:

Date:

Uploaded file name:

At Least As effective As No

NoExemption

BMP 1.3 Metering With Commodity

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2014

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



7076 Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale Wholesale

The list of retail agencies your agency assists with public outreach

Agency Name ID number

Casitas Municipal Water District Retail 37

Golden State Water Company - Ojai 5042

p Public Outreach Program List Number

2
3
5
1
8
2

Newsletter articles on conservation 2

Website 22

Flyers and/or brochures (total copies), bill stuffers, messages printed on bill, 
information packets

6

Total 30

Number Media Contacts Number

Newspaper contacts 11

Television contacts 1

News releases 1

Total 13

Annual Budget Category Annual Budget Amount

Postage 8500

Newsletter 9500

Website 2000

Graphic Design 900

Total Amount: 20900

Does your agency perform Public Outreach programs? Yes

Casitas Municipal Water District Retail,Golden State Water Company - Ojai

Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes

Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes

Did at least one website update take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes

Public Information Program Annual Budget

There is not enough space here to mention all of the agencies and contact information. There are eight 
small water agencies that are not council members.

The name of agency, contact name and email address if not CUWCC Group 1 members

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

2014

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



Description of all other Public Outreach programs 

Public Outreah Additional Programs

Facebook postings

Comments:

0NoExemption

At Least As effective As No

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

2014

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



7076 Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale Wholesale

Materials meet state education framework requirements?

Resource Action materials, Also purchase materials from Bete-Channing, and Culver.

Materials distributed to K-6?

Channing Bete Color Book, My Book About Water and Channing Bete Water Conservation, A Coloring and Activities 
Book. Some additional work books for 5th and 6th Grade per teacher requests are provided as well.

 Materials distributed to 7-12 students? (Info Only)

Annual budget for school education program: 13175.00

Description of all other water supplier education programs 

Water Conservation Kits with classroom instruction and activities. Staff participation with some classrooms, and 
coloring and activities books on request.

Agencies Name ID number

Casitas Municipal Water District Retail 37

Golden State Water Company - Ojai 5042

Casitas Municipal Water District Retail,Golden State Water Company - Ojai

YesDoes your agency implement School Education  programs?

The list of retail agencies your agency assists with public outreach

Karen Waln, City of Ventura, kwaln@ventura.ca.us and eight other smaller agencies.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Resource Action Water Survey Kit to include classroom instruction

Comments:

0NoExemption

At Least As effective As No

BMP 2.2 School Education Programs

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2014

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



Name: Email:

Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale7076

cmcintosh@casitaswate.comCinnamon McIntosh

BMP Section Monetary Amount for 
Financial Incentives

Monetary Amount for 
Equivalent Resources

BMP 3 Residential 15750

BMP 2.2 School Education Program 14294.7

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach 15210

BMP 1.1 Operation Practices 608.41

BMP 4 CII 2000

b) Technical Support

d) Water Shortage Allocation

Adoption Date: 10/1/2003

File Name:

e) Non signatory Reporting of BMP implementation by non-signatory Agencies

Two largest retail agencies Golden State and City of Ventura are currently members of the CUWCC. The other mutual 
water companies have very small operations.

f) Encourage CUWCC Membership List Efforts to Recuit Retailers

a) Financial Investments and Building Partnerships

c) Retail Agency

Comments:

At Least As effective As No

NoExemption

BMP 1.1 Wholesale Agency Assistance Programs

CUWCC BMP Wholesale Coverage Report 2013

Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



7076 Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale

Completed Standard Water Audit Using AWWA Software? Yes

AWWA File provided to CUWCC? Yes

Casitas_wholesale_ AWWA_Audit_13_14.xls

AWWA Water Audit Validity Score?   92

Complete Training in AWWA Audit Method   Yes

Complete Training in Component Analysis Process?   Yes

Component Analysis?   Yes

Repaired all leaks and breaks to the extent cost effective?   Yes

Locate and Repar unreported leaks to the extent cost effective?   Yes

Maintain a record keeping system for the repair of reported leaks, including time of 
report, leak location, type of leaking pipe segment or fitting, and leak running time from 

report to repair. Yes

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2013

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.2 Water Loss Control ON TRACK

Provided 7 Types of Water  Loss Control Info

Leaks Repairs Value Real 
Losses

Value Apparent 
Losses

Miles Surveyed Press Reduction Cost Of 
Interventions

Water Saved 
(AF)

27 35 0

Comments:

At Least As effective As No

NoExemption



7076 Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale

Numbered Unmetered Accounts No

Metered Accounts billed by volume of use Yes

Number of CII Accounts with Mixed Use
Meters

0

Conducted a feasibility study to assess merits of a 
program to provide incentives to switch mixed-use 
accounts to dedicated landscape meters? 

Yes

Feasibility Study provided to CUWCC? Yes

Completed a written plan, policy or program to test, 
repair and replace meters

Yes

Comments:

Date:

Uploaded file name:

12/13/2013

Copy2_of_BMP1_3_Feasibility_Tool.xls

At Least As effective As Yes

Wholesale accounts are for meters to retail agencies so this is not applicable.

NoExemption

BMP 1.3 Metering With Commodity

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2013

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



7076 Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale Wholesale

The list of retail agencies your agency assists with public outreach

p Public Outreach Program List Number

3
1
2
9
4
0

Newsletter articles on conservation 2

Website 11

General water conservation information 22

Flyers and/or brochures (total copies), bill stuffers, messages printed on bill, 
information packets

6

Total 41

Number Media Contacts Number

Newspaper contacts 10

Radio contacts 1

Television contacts 4

News releases 1

Total 16

Annual Budget Category Annual Budget Amount

Postage 8500

Newsletter 7500

Website 2000

Graphic Design 900

Total Amount: 18900

Public Outreah Additional Programs

Facebook postings

Does your agency perform Public Outreach programs? Yes

Golden State Water Company - Ojai

Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes

Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes

Did at least one website update take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes

Public Information Program Annual Budget

There is not enough space here to mention all of the agencies and contact information. There are eight 
small water agencies that are not council members.

The name of agency, contact name and email address if not CUWCC Group 1 members

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

2013

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



Description of all other Public Outreach programs 

Comments:

0NoExemption

At Least As effective As No

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

2013

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



7076 Casitas Municipal Water District Wholesale Wholesale

Materials meet state education framework requirements?

Resource Action provides kits and instructions that meet state education framework requirements.

Materials distributed to K-6?

Materials from Resource Action are distributed to K-6.

 Materials distributed to 7-12 students? (Info Only)

Annual budget for school education program: 15883.00

Description of all other water supplier education programs 

Resource Action programs Living Wise Kit. Casitas also conducted a few presentations and participated at Ojai Day 
event where children were engaged in conservation education activities as well.

Golden State Water Company - Ojai

YesDoes your agency implement School Education  programs?

The list of retail agencies your agency assists with public outreach

City of Ventura (member but not listed in drop down menu) Karen Waln kwaln@venturawater.net; Meiners Oaks Water 
District Michael Hollbrands mikeh20@meinersoakswater.com; Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company, Larry Catlett, 
lcatlettscm@gmail.com; Ventura River Water District, Bert Rapp, bert@venturariverwd.com; Casitas Mutual Water 
Company, Tom Reed, reed.tom@sbcglobal.net; Tico Mutual Water Company, Francis Fitting, ffitting@sbcglobal.net; 
Hermitage Mutual Water Company, Roger Essick, rogeressick@gmail.com; Sisar Mutual Water Company, Rod 
Thompson, rodthompson1@verizon.net; and Siete Robles Mutual Water Company, Jan Martinez, 
janmartinez@jacobsandjacobs.com

Yes

Yes

Yes

Casitas did not distribute 7-12 materials directly.

Comments:

0NoExemption

At Least As effective As No

BMP 2.2 School Education Programs

CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2013

Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

ON TRACK



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix M 
Examples of CMWD’s Public Outreach Materials 

 



1
0
5
5
 V

en
tu

ra A
ve.

O
ak V

iew
, C

A
 9

3
0
2
2

8
0
5
-6

4
9
-2

2
5
1

w
w

w
.casitasw

ater.o
rg

Y
our B

oard in A
ction

B
ill H

icks, D
ivision I

Jam
es W

. W
ord, D

ivision II
Pete K

aiser, D
ivision III

M
ary B

ergen, D
ivision IV

R
uss B

aggerly, D
ivision V

The 
C

asitas 
B

oard 
of 

D
irectors 

is 
scheduled 

to 
m

eet at 3:00 p.m
. in the board 

room
 located in the m

ain of-
fi ce at 1055 V

entura A
ve., 

O
ak V

iew
, on the 2

nd and 4
th 

W
ednesday of every m

onth.

W
in

te
r 

2
0

1
6

Join the C
asitas M

unicipal W
ater 

D
istrict Facebook page to get the 

latest updates on w
ater conserva-

tion and the Lake C
asitas Recreation A

rea at: w
w

w
.facebook.

com
/fbsitecasitasm

unicipalw
aterdistrict.

T
h

e
 C

a
si

ta
s 

S
p

e
a

k
e

rs
 B

u
re

a
u

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
an

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r c

us
to

m
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 le

ar
n 

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t w

at
er

 is
su

es
 in

 th
e 

W
es

te
rn

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

ar
ea

. P
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t R

on
 M

er
ck

lin
g,

 W
at

er
 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 A
ff 

ai
rs

 M
an

ag
er

, 8
05

-6
49

-2
25

1, 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

11
8,

 to
 in

vi
te

 a
 s

pe
ak

er
 to

 y
ou

r 
ne

xt
 c

om
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
 o

r o
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l m

ee
tin

g.
 

Pl
ea

se
 v

is
it 

th
e 

W
at

er
 W

is
e 

G
ar

de
ni

ng
 in

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
eb

si
te

 a
t 

w
w

w
.v

en
tu

ra
.w

at
er

sa
vi

ng
pl

an
ts

.c
om

.

F
re

e
 L

a
n

d
sc

a
p

e
 C

la
ss

e
s

P
R

S
R

T
 S

T
D

U
.S

. P
O

S
T

A
G

E
 

P
A

ID
O

X
N

A
R

D
, C

A
P

E
R

M
IT

 N
O

. 2
0
2
0

Pl
ea

se
 jo

in
 u

s 
th

is
 y

ea
r, 

fo
r o

ur
 fr

ee
 w

at
er

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

, s
o 

yo
u 

ca
n 

le
ar

n 
m

or
e 

ab
ou

t h
ow

 to
 s

av
e 

w
at

er
 a

nd
 m

on
ey

. W
or

ks
ho

ps
 a

re
 

sc
he

du
le

d 
fr

om
 9

:0
0 

a.
m

. t
o 

no
on

:

•
 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
D

es
ig

n 
fo

r F
ir

e 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 –
 Y

ou
 d

o 
no

t n
ee

d 
a 

m
oo

ns
ca

pe
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 y
ou

r h
om

e 
fr

om
 fi 

re
. Y

ou
 c

an
 h

av
e 

a 
be

au
tif

ul
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

a 
fi r

e 
sa

fe
 z

on
e.

 T
hi

s 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

w
ill

 fo
cu

s 
on

 
“F

ire
sc

ap
in

g”
 –

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 d

es
ig

n 
in

 w
ild

fi r
e 

ar
ea

s.
 S

at
ur

da
y,

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
27

, 2
01

6

•
 

O
rc

ha
rd

 a
nd

 O
ak

s 
Ca

re
 –

 W
ith

 e
xt

re
m

e 
w

ea
th

er
 a

nd
 in

va
si

ve
 in

se
ct

s,
 it

 s
ee

m
s 

m
or

e 
di
ffi  

cu
lt 

th
an

 e
ve

r 
to

 k
ee

p 
ou

r t
re

es
 h

ea
lth

y.
 F

in
d 

ou
t w

ha
t y

ou
 c

an
 d

o 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 y
ou

r t
re

es
 b

y 
at

te
nd

in
g 

th
is

 fu
n 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

iv
e 

w
or

ks
ho

p.
 S

at
ur

da
y,

 M
ay

 14
, 2

01
6

•
 

Ra
in

w
at

er
 C

ap
tu

re
 a

nd
 G

ra
yw

at
er

 - 
Le

ar
n 

ho
w

 to
 in

st
al

l a
 s

m
al

l s
ca

le
 s

ys
te

m
 th

at
 m

ee
ts

 a
ll 

co
un

ty
 h

ea
lth

 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. S
at

ur
da

y,
 A

ug
us

t 1
3,

 2
01

6

Pl
ea

se
 R

SV
P 

ea
rly

 a
t r

m
er

ck
lin

g@
ca

si
ta

sw
at

er
.c

om
 o

r (
80

5)
 6

49
-2

25
1 E

xt
en

si
on

 11
8.

W
or

ks
ho

ps
 w

ill
 b

e 
he

ld
 a

t O
ak

 V
ie

w
 P

ar
k 

&
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Ce
nt

er
 (f

or
m

er
ly

 th
e 

O
ak

 V
ie

w
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 S

ch
oo

l) 
lo

ca
te

d 
at

 5
55

 M
ah

on
ey

 A
ve

nu
e.

 A
tt

en
de

es
 a

re
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 p
ar

k 
in

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
ts

 in
st

ea
d 

of
 th

e 
st

re
et

.

C
a
si

ta
s’

 G
ra

y
w

a
te

r 
W

o
rk

sh
o

p

O
n

e
 E

l 
N

in
o

 Y
e

a
r 

is
 U

n
li

k
e

ly
 

to
 F

il
l 

L
a

k
e

 C
a

si
ta

s
La

rg
e 

ra
in

fa
ll 

th
is

 w
in

te
r i

s 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 fi 
ll 

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s.

 W
ha

t 
do

es
 th

is
 m

ea
n 

fo
r W

es
te

rn
 

Ve
nt

ur
a 

Co
un

ty
 w

at
er

 c
us

to
m

er
s?

 
Co

nt
in

ue
d 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

eff
 o

rt
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 h
el

p 
su

st
ai

n 
ou

r 
lo

ca
l w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 fo
re

-
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

. 

En
te

rin
g 

in
to

 th
is

 w
in

te
r, 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f w
at

er
 s

to
re

d 
in

 L
ak

e 
Ca

si
ta

s 
de

cl
in

ed
 to

 a
 fi 

ft
y 

ye
ar

 lo
w

 
of

 10
0,

00
0 

ac
re

-fe
et

. 

O
ne

 a
cr

e 
fo

ot
 is

 ro
ug

hl
y 

a 
fo

ot
ba

ll 
fi e

ld
 fi 

lle
d 

w
ith

 o
ne

 fo
ot

 
of

 w
at

er
. I

t w
ill

 ta
ke

 a
bo

ut
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

of
 h

is
to

ric
 la

rg
e 

El
 N

in
o 

w
at

er
 in

fl o
w

s 
in

to
 L

ak
e,

 w
hi

ch
 a

v-
er

ag
e 

60
,0

00
 a

cr
e-

fe
et

 to
 fi 

ll 
La

ke
 

Ca
si

ta
s.

  

U
nt

il 
La

ke
 C

as
ita

s 
re

co
ve

rs
 

to
 fu

ll 
ca

pa
ci

ty
, t

he
 d

ro
ug

ht
 w

ill
 

co
nt

in
ue

 fo
r W

es
te

rn
 V

en
tu

ra
 

Co
un

ty
, w

hi
ch

 re
lie

s 
ex

cl
us

iv
el

y 
on

 th
e 

lim
ite

d 
lo

ca
l w

at
er

 re
-

so
ur

ce
s 

– 
su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 in
 L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

an
d 

gr
ou

nd
 w

at
er

 in
 o

ur
 

lo
ca

l b
as

in
s.

 “
Ca

si
ta

s’
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
ha

ve
 

do
ne

 a
 g

re
at

 jo
b 

at
 re

du
ci

ng
 

w
at

er
 u

se
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
is

 
dr

ou
gh

t p
er

io
d.

 It
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t 

th
at

 w
at

er
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 

to
 b

e 
vi

gi
la

nt
 e

ve
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ra
in

y 
se

as
on

.  
Sh

ou
d 

th
is

 w
in

te
r 

no
t p

ro
du

ce
 fu

ll 
w

at
er

 re
so

ur
ce

 
re

co
ve

ry
, a

ll 
cu

st
om

er
s 

ar
e 

go
in

g 
to

 b
e 

as
ke

d 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 w
ith

 
w

at
er

 u
se

 re
du

ct
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
s,

” 
de

cl
ar

ed
 R

on
 M

er
ck

lin
g,

 P
ub

lic
 

A
ff 

ai
rs

/R
es

ou
rc

e 
M

an
ag

er
 fo

r 
Ca

si
ta

s.

S
ta

te
 W

a
te

r 
R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 M

a
n

d
a

te
s 

to
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

Th
e 

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

Co
nt

ro
l B

oa
rd

 
(S

W
RC

B)
 h

as
 e

xt
en

de
d 

th
e 

st
at

ew
id

e 
dr

ou
gh

t e
m

er
-

ge
nc

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
6.

 
Fo

r C
as

ita
s’

 d
ire

ct
 c

us
to

m
-

er
s,

 a
 c

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

32
% 

w
at

er
 re

du
ct

io
n 

m
an

da
te

 
ca

n 
be

 e
xp

ec
te

d.
  F

or
 m

os
t 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

bu
si

ne
ss

, a
nd

 in
st

i-
tu

tio
na

l c
us

to
m

er
s 

th
is

 m
ea

ns
 

si
gn

ifi 
ca

nt
 o

ut
do

or
 w

at
er

 u
se

 

re
du

ct
io

ns
.  

Fo
r C

as
ita

s 
cu

st
om

-
er

s,
 w

at
er

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 s

ur
-

ch
ar

ge
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 b
as

ed
 

on
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f w

at
er

 
st

or
ed

 in
 L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

af
te

r 
A

pr
il 

1, 
20

16
.

If
 th

er
e 

is
 li

tt
le

 w
at

er
 s

up
-

pl
y 

re
co

ve
ry

 in
 L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

20
16

 w
in

te
r s

to
rm

s,
 

w
at

er
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

-
du

ce
d 

fu
rt

he
r f

or
 a

ll 
cu

st
om

-
er

s.
 C

as
ita

s’
 h

ig
he

st
 p

rio
rit

y 
is

 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

fo
r 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y.
 

L
a
k
e
 C

a
si

ta
s 

- 
a
t 

h
is

to
ri

c 
lo

w
s



P
a

g
e

 3
P

a
g

e
 2C
a

si
ta

s 
W

o
rk

in
g

 o
n

 U
rb

a
n

 
W

a
te

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 U
p

d
a

te
Ca

si
ta

s 
pl

an
s 

to
 

ho
ld

 a
 p

ub
lic

 w
or

ks
ho

p 
on

 th
e 

dr
af

t U
rb

an
 

W
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 (U

W
M

P)
 th

is
 

co
m

in
g 

M
ay

. C
as

ita
s 

is
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

ub
m

it 
an

 
up

da
te

d 
U

W
M

P 
to

 th
e 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 e
ve

ry
 

fi v
e 

ye
ar

s.
  T

he
 p

la
n 

is
 a

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 w
at

er
 

su
pp

lie
s,

 d
em

an
ds

, 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n,
 a

nd
 o

ve
ra

ll 
w

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
lia

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 2

5 
ye

ar
s.

  

Th
e 

U
W

M
P 

up
da

te
 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r p

ub
lic

 re
vi

ew
 p

rio
r 

to
 th

e 
M

ay
 w

or
ks

ho
p.

 
Th

e 
fi n

al
 p

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
at

 a
 p

ub
lic

 
he

ar
in

g 
in

 J
un

e 
of

 2
01

6.
 

M
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 w
w

w
.

ca
si

ta
sw

at
er

.o
rg

. A
ny

on
e 

in
te

re
st

ed
 in

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l u

pd
at

es
 c

an
 c

al
l 

Ro
n 

M
er

ck
lin

g 
at

 (8
05

) 
64

9-
22

51
 e

xt
en

si
on

 11
8 

or
 e

m
ai

l a
t r

m
er

ck
lin

g@
ca

si
ta

sw
at

er
.c

om

C
o

m
in

g
 S

o
o

n
 –

 E
-p

a
y 

fo
r 

C
a

si
ta

s’
 D

ir
e

c
t 

C
u

st
o

m
e

rs
W

a
te

r 
W

a
st

e
rs

 N
o

w
 S

u
b

je
c

t 
to

 F
in

e
s

N
o 

on
e 

lik
es

 to
 g

et
 a

 fi 
ne

 a
nd

 
Ca

si
ta

s’
 s

ta
ff 

 ta
ke

s 
no

 p
le

as
ur

e 
in

 g
iv

in
g 

th
em

. T
he

 s
er

io
us

ne
ss

 
of

 th
e 

dr
ou

gh
t n

ow
 m

ak
es

 
it 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 is
su

e 
fi n

es
 to

 
pr

ev
en

t w
at

er
 w

as
te

 s
o 

w
e 

ca
n 

pr
ot

ec
t t

he
 li

m
ite

d 
lo

ca
l w

at
er

 
su

pp
ly

. C
as

ita
s’

 W
at

er
 W

as
te

 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 s
ta

te
s 

th
at

 a
 fi 

rs
t 

vi
ol

at
io

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

w
ar

ni
ng

. S
ub

se
qu

en
t v

io
la

tio
ns

 
w

ill
 in

cu
r fi

 n
es

 u
p 

to
 $

60
0,

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 in
ci

de
nt

.

R
e

p
o

rt
 W

a
te

r 
W

a
st

e
Ca

si
ta

s’
 s

ta
ff 

 d
ep

en
ds

 o
n 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 to

 a
ss

is
t w

ith
 

ge
tt

in
g 

ev
er

yo
ne

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 C

as
ita

s’
 w

at
er

 w
as

te
 

or
di

na
nc

e 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 o
ur

 li
m

ite
d 

lo
ca

l w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
s.

 If
 

yo
u 

se
e 

an
yo

ne
 v

io
la

tin
g 

Ca
si

ta
s’

 w
at

er
 w

as
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

pl
ea

se
 c

al
l C

as
ita

s’
 h

ot
lin

e 
at

 (8
05

) 6
49

-2
25

1 E
xt

en
si

on
 

12
8 

or
 v

is
it 

ou
r w

eb
si

te
 a

t w
w

w
.c

as
ita

sw
at

er
.o

rg
 a

nd
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

 a
no

ny
m

ou
s 

re
po

rt
in

g 
fo

rm
. P

le
as

e 
be

 s
ur

e 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

ad
dr

es
s 

of
 w

at
er

 w
as

te
; d

at
e 

an
d 

tim
e 

of
 

w
at

er
 w

as
te

; i
f p

os
si

bl
e 

pl
ea

se
 s

en
d 

a 
ph

ot
o;

 a
nd

 ty
pe

 o
f 

w
at

er
 w

as
te

 fr
om

 th
e 

lis
t b

el
ow

: 

S
 

O
ut

do
or

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
lim

ite
d 

to
 tw

o 
da

ys
 p

er
 w

ee
k

S
 

Le
ak

s 
m

us
t b

e 
fi x

ed
 b

y 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

w
ne

rs
 w

ith
in

 a
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 p

er
io

d 
of

 ti
m

e 
(u

su
al

ly
 4

8 
ho

ur
s)

S
 

Fo
un

ta
in

s 
an

d 
w

at
er

 fe
at

ur
es

 m
us

t h
av

e 
a 

re
-

ci
rc

ul
at

in
g 

w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m

S
 

N
o 

ou
td

oo
r i

rr
ig

at
io

n 
fr

om
 10

 a
m

 to
 6

 p
m

S
 

Ke
ep

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
ru

no
ff 

 fr
om

 s
pi

lli
ng

 o
n 

to
 s

tr
ee

ts
 

an
d 

si
de

w
al

ks

S
 

U
se

 a
 h

os
e 

no
zz

le
 s

hu
t-o
ff 

s 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

 w
he

n 
cl

ea
ni

ng
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

or
 h

an
d 

w
at

er
in

g 
la

nd
sc

ap
es

S
 

Sw
ee

p,
 d

on
’t 

w
as

h 
si

de
w

al
ks

, d
riv

ew
ay

s,
 a

nd
 

pa
rk

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 a

 h
os

e 
ex

ce
pt

 fo
r s

af
et

y 
an

d 
sa

ni
ta

ry
 

re
as

on
s.

S
 

N
o 

irr
ig

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

ra
in

fa
ll 

or
 fo

r 4
8 

ho
ur

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ra
in

fa
ll.

S
 

Re
st

au
ra

nt
s 

m
us

t n
ot

 s
er

ve
 d

rin
ki

ng
 w

at
er

 
un

le
ss

 re
qu

es
te

d 
by

 th
e 

cu
st

om
er

S
 

Re
st

au
ra

nt
s 

m
us

t u
se

 w
at

er
 s

av
in

g 
di

sh
 w

as
h 

sp
ra

y 
va

lv
es

S
 

H
ot

el
s 

an
d 

m
ot

el
s 

m
us

t g
iv

e 
gu

es
ts

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
to

 d
ec

lin
e 

da
ily

 b
ed

 li
ne

n 
an

d 
to

w
el

 c
ha

ng
es

S
 

N
o 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 “

si
ng

le
 p

as
s 

co
ol

in
g 

sy
st

em
s”

 
in

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 re

qu
es

tin
g 

ne
w

 w
at

er
 s

er
vi

ce

S
 

N
o 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

on
-re

ci
rc

ul
at

in
g 

w
at

er
 

sy
st

em
s 

at
 c

ar
 w

as
he

s 
an

d 
la

un
dr

y 
sy

st
em

s

 A
lth

ou
gh

 
cu

st
om

er
s 

ca
n 

no
w

 
m

ak
e 

pa
ym

en
ts

 o
nl

in
e 

at
 w

w
w

.c
as

ita
sw

at
er

.
or

g,
 it

 is
 a

bo
ut

 to
 

be
co

m
e 

ea
si

er
 to

 
m

ak
e 

a 
pa

ym
en

t. 
Ca

si
ta

s’
 d

ire
ct

 
cu

st
om

er
s 

w
ill

 s
oo

n 
be

 a
bl

e 
si

gn
-u

p 
fo

r 
m

on
th

ly
 e

m
ai

ls
 th

at
 w

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 o

nl
in

e 
lin

k 
fo

r e
as

y 
bi

ll 
pa

ym
en

t. 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 u
pd

at
es

 o
n 

th
is

 p
ro

gr
am

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 a

n 
up

co
m

in
g 

bi
ll 

in
se

rt
. 

O
nc

e 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 is

 
la

un
ch

ed
, c

us
to

m
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 s
ig

n-
up

 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

by
 

vi
si

tin
g 

Ca
si

ta
s’

 w
eb

si
te

 
un

de
r t

he
 Q

ui
ck

 L
in

ks
 

ta
b 

“M
ak

e-
A

-P
ay

m
en

t.”

 A
ny

 C
as

ita
s 

cu
st

om
er

 w
ith

 b
ill

in
g 

re
la

te
d 

qu
es

tio
ns

 is
 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 v
is

it 
th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 o

r t
o 

ca
ll 

fo
r 

cu
st

om
er

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

at
 

(8
05

) 6
49

-2
25

1.

 ll
vi

si
tin

g
Ca

si
ta

s’
w

eb
si

te



       OUTDOOR WATER RESTRICTIONS ARE IN EFFECT 

The Casitas Municipal Water District has established prohibitions on water waste to        

help manage Casitas’ potable water supply and to minimize the effects of drought 

within Casitas’ urban service area.  

Mandatory Water Restrictions to Include the following: 

 
 

- Limit of Two days per week 

outdoor irrigation 

- No outdoor irrigation from 10 

am to 6 pm 

 

Sweep, don’t wash sidewalks, 

driveways, and parking areas 

except for safety and sanitary 

purposes 

 

Keep irrigation on the landscape 

Not on sidewalks or streets 

  

Hose nozzle shut-offs are required 

at all times  

- Cleaning vehicles 

- Hand watering landscape 

areas 

 

 

Please adjust irrigation timer and sprinkler heads to meet the mandatory restrictions 

 

 

 

Please call (805) 649-2251 Ext. 128 or report on website  www.casitaswater.org  the address, 

time, date, and type of water waste witnessed 

 

 

Violations and Penalties 

 
Notices of water waste violations will be by telephone, mail, hand-delivery, or posting at premises. A written notice will be 

issued stating time, place and general description of violation or repeat of violation, as well as a time frame to correct the 

violation. Penalties for failure to comply with mandatory watering restrictions are as follows: 

 

- First violation – Written notice to customer by a hang tag at customer’s address 

- Second violation – If corrective action is not taken within the given time frame provided for the first violation or a 

second violation occurs within the preceding 12 months after the first violation, second notice of violation will be 

issued with a fine of $100 

- Third violation – A third violation within the preceding twelve months after the second notice is punishable by an 

administrative fine of $250 

- Fourth & Subsequent violations – Each day of violation beyond the remedy allowance provided in the third notice 

of violation will be subject to discontinuance of water service. A fine of not more than $600 or imprisonment in 

county jail for not more than 30 days, or both fine and imprisonment may be imposed upon conviction. 

 

Please visit Casitas’ website at www.casitaswater.org to find out about additional information on water conservation, 

landscape classes, and rebates.  Or, Call (805) 649-2251 Ext. 110 to schedule a free home water survey. 



BUSINESS & OTHER 

WATER RESTRICTIONS NOW IN EFFECT 
The Casitas Municipal Water District has established prohibitions on water waste to 

help manage Casitas’ potable water supply and to minimize the effects of drought 

within Casitas’ urban service area.  

Mandatory Water Restrictions to Include the following: 

 

- Limit of two days per week 

outdoor irrigation 

- Limit irrigation hours to 10 

am to 6 pm 

 

Sweep, don’t wash sidewalks, 

driveways, and parking areas 

except for safety and sanitary 

purposes 

 

Keep irrigation on the landscape 

Not on sidewalks or streets 

 

Hose nozzle shut-offs are 

required at all times when 

- Cleaning vehicles 

- Hand watering landscape 

areas 

 

• Eating and drinking establishments provide drinking 

water served upon request only 

• Food preparation establishments prohibition against 

non-water conserving dish wash sprays 

• Provide option to not launder linen and towels daily 

at hotels, motels, and other lodging establishments 

• Fountains and decorative water features must be 

recirculated 

 

 

Please adjust irrigation timer and sprinkler heads to meet the mandatory outdoor restrictions 

 

Large Landscaped areas greater than 3 acres may request a variance for the two day watering restriction conditioned 

upon a 20% overall reduction in usage from 2013 monthly usage. Contact Casitas to inquire about a conditional 

variance. (Large landscapes include areas such as golf courses, parks, schools, and cemeteries. 

 

 

Violations and Penalties 

 

Notices of water waste violations will be by telephone, mail, hand-delivery, or posting at premises. A written notice will 

be issued stating time, place and general description of violation or repeat of violation, as well as a time frame to 

correct the violation. Penalties for failure to comply with mandatory watering restrictions are as follows:  

 

 First violation – Written notice to customer by a hang tag at customer’s address 

 Second violation – If corrective action is not taken within the given time frame provided for the first violation or a 

second violation occurs within the preceding 12 months after the first violation, second notice of violation will be 

issued with a fine of $100 

 Third violation – A third violation within the preceding twelve months after the second notice is punishable by an 

administrative fine of $250 

 Fourth & Subsequent violations – Each day of violation beyond the remedy allowance provided in the third notice of 

violation will be subject to discontinuance of water service. A fine of not more than $600 or imprisonment in county jail 

for not more than 30 days, or both fine and imprisonment may be imposed upon conviction. 

 

Please visit Casitas’ website at www.casitaswater.org to find out about additional information on water conservation, 

landscape classes, and rebates or call (805) 649-2251 Ext. 110. 



Restricciones del uso del Agua
El Distrito Municipal de Agua de Casitas (The Casitas Municipal Water District) ha 

establecido restricciones respecto al desperdicio de agua.  Esto es para controlar el agua potable 
de Casitas y para reducir los efectos de la sequía dentro de las áreas de servicio de Casitas. 

Violaciones y Penalidades

Avisos de violaciones por desperdiciar agua se harán por teléfono, por correo, por entrega directa, o 
poniendo el aviso en las propiedades.  El aviso escrito especifi cará la hora, el lugar y descripción en general 
de la violación, repe  ción de la violación, así como el  empo que se espera para que la corrijan. Las 
penalidades por no cumplir con estas restricciones son las siguientes:
t Primera violación - Por escrito y se pondrá el aviso en el domicilio/propiedad 
t Segunda violación - De no corregirse el problema durante el  empo que se le dio en la primera 

violación o si ocurre una segunda violación entre los 12 meses de cuando ocurrió la primera violación, se 
dará un segundo aviso con una multa de $100
t Tercera violación - Una tercera violación entre los doce meses del segundo aviso recibirá una multa 

de $250
t Cuarta & más violaciones - Por cada día después de la solución permi  da y después del tercer 

aviso, estará sujeto a que se le cancele/discon  núe el servicio de agua.  Podría recibir una multa de no 
más de $600 ó encarcelamiento por no más de 30 días, o de ser encontrado culpable se le podría imponer 
ambas.

Por favor, visite nuestra página www.casitaswater.org para obtener más información en como 
conservar agua, clases en mantenimiento de jardines, y reembolsos o llame al (805) 649-2251 Ext. 110 y 
pida una cita para una encuesta/evaluación gratuita de como conservar agua.

Las Restricciones Obligatorias de Agua incluirán lo siguiente:

S Riegue antes de las 10 a.m. 
o después de las 6 p.m.  
S Se permite regar solo dos 
días por semana.

S No lave las banquetas/
aceras, ni las áreas de 
estacionamiento, mejor use la 
escoba a excepción si es por 
seguridad y salubridad. 

S Riegue el jardín, no en las 
banquetas/aceras, ni la calle.

S Se requiere manguera con 
interruptor:
 t para lavar autos
 t Regar el jardín a mano

S Si ve que están desperdiciando agua, por favor, llame 
al (805) 649-2251 Ext. 128 ó reportelo en la página del 
Internet www.casitaswater.org  provea el domicilio, la 
hora, la fecha y el  po de desperdicio de agua.



Lake Casitas Recreation Area
11311 Santa Ana Road Ventura, CA
93001
General Information: 8056492233
Reservations: 8056491122
 
Casitas Municipal Water District  Office
1055 Ventura Ave Oak View, CA 93022
Phone: 8056492251 Fax: 8056494485

 

Home Lake Level Contact Water Conservation Lake Casitas Recreation Area

Home Water Conservation Water Conservation Tips

Water Conservation Tips
1. Water your lawn only when it needs it. Step on your grass. If it springs back when you lift

your foot, it doesn't need water. So set the sprinklers for longer interval times or days in
between watering. Saves 750 to 1,500 gallons a month. Also, make sure your sprinklers
are not watering the sidewalks

2. Fix leaky faucets and plumbing joints. Saves 20 gallons a day for every leak fixed.

3. Don't run the hose while washing your car. Use a bucket of water and a quick hose rinse
at the end. Saves 150 gallons each time. For a twocar family that's up to 1,200 gallons
a month

4. Install watersaving showerheads or flow restrictors. Saves 500 to 800 gallons a month.

5. Watch your water use when brushing your teeth, doing dishes by hand, shaving to make
sure you are not letting water run freely down the drain.

6. When washing your dishes or clothes only do full loads in the washing machine and
dishwasher. Saves 300 to 800 gallons a month.

7. Slightly shorter showers. One to twominutes less in the shower can save up to 700
gallons a month.

8. Use a broom instead of a hose to clean driveways and sidewalks. Saves 150 gallons or
more each time. At once a week, that's more than 600 gallons a month.

9. Don't use your toilet as an ashtray or wastebasket. Saves 400 to 600 gallons a month.
10. Capture tap water. While you wait for hot water to come down the pipes, catch the flow in

a watering can to use later on house plants or your garden. Saves 200 to 300 gallons a
month.

http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=lake-level
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=contact
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=lake-casitas-recreation-area
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=water-conservation


Home Lake Level Contact Water Conservation Lake Casitas Recreation Area

Home Water Conservation Water Conservation Links

Water Conservation Links
2004 Water Supply and Demand Study

1989 Water Supply and Demand Study

Agricultural Irrigation Improvement Recommendations for Western Ventura County Farmers

Free water conservation devices

Water Conservation Programs

Water Conservation Rebate

Irrigation Contoller Rebate

Waterwise Information for Residents:
Be Water Wise  Metropolitan Water District's Water Conservation Page (for LA area residents)

Water Saver Home Tour  California Urban Water Conservation Council Water Saver Home.
Take a tour of water saving opportunities in your home.

Saving Water in your Swimming Pool  Money saving tips from Marin Water District.

Software for Environmental Awareness  Save an amazing amount of water money while
protecting the environment. (Selfextracting zipfile 0.9 Mb)

WaterWiser Drip Calculator  Measure and estimate water wasted due to leaks. 

Waterwise Information for Businesses:
Water Savings Calculator: Multihousing Laundry Association  For common area laundry
rooms. http://www.laundrywise.com/

Global Environmental Management Initiative: Water Sustainability Tool  Information useful to
businesses interested in saving water. http://www.gemi.org/

Waterwise information for Landscape Maintenance:
Water Right  Irrigation information from the Center for Irrigation Technology.

EPA Water Efficiency Measures for Landscaping  Landscaping tips during nondrought
conditions.

Be Water Wise Plant Database: Find beautiful plants that use minimal water.

 

http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=lake-level
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=contact
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=lake-casitas-recreation-area
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/1492872017WaterStudy.pdf
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/4499854691989SupplyDemandStudy.pdf
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/981991149AgriculturalIrrigationImprovement.pdf
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=free-water-conservation-devices
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=conservation-programs
http://www.cuwcc.org/Resources/Conservation-at-Home-and-Work/Smart-Rebates-Program
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=smart-irrigation-controller-rebates
http://www.bewaterwise.com/
http://www.h2ouse.org/
http://www.marinwater.org/
http://www.marinwater.org/
http://www.awwa.org/awwa/waterwiser/dripcalc.cfm
http://www.laundrywise.com/
http://www.gemi.org/
http://www.wateright.org/
http://www.epa.gov/owm/water-efficiency/landtips.htm
http://www.bewaterwise.com/Gardensoft/advanced_search.aspx


Home Lake Level Contact Water Conservation Lake Casitas Recreation Area

Home Water Conservation Conservation Programs

Conservation Programs
Casitas MWD offers many water Conservation programs to assist both residential
and commercial customers.
Casitas offers free water surveys to all residential customers that live within the district. This service is
open to residents living within Casitas MWD's district and not just to Casitas' direct customers. The
district includes the upper Ojai, Rincon, and East Ventura, please call if you need to verify if you live in
the district. Casitas also provides rebates for high efficiency washing machines, high efficiency toilets,
and other devices. Please contact Ron Merckling, Water Conservation Manager at (805) 6492251
Extension 118 for further information.

Water conservation Services for agricultural customer
Casitas plans to offer in the summer of 2012 distribution uniformity evaluations to agricultural
customers. Those customers with the highest water usage per acre will be given first priority. Please
contact Ron Merckling, Water Conservation Manager for more information at (805) 6492251 Extension
118.

Water conservation for teachers and students
Casitas provides state approved curriculum that teaches students about water conservation. Free
educational materials are available to teachers and students. Please contact Ron Merckling Water
Conservation Manager at (805) 6492251 Extension 118 for additional details.

Creating Your Own Waterwise Landscape
Here are some basic waterwise landscaping suggestions that will help you arrive at beautiful
landscape solutions that work in the Southern California's climate.

1. Limit nonfunctional turf.

2. Ask your local nursery for suggestions on native plant species that will meet your landscape needs
the most effectively.

3. Install proper irrigation systems throughout your yard, conventional sprinklers are best for turf, while
lowvolume irrigation, such as drip, is best for trees, shrubs and perennials.

4. Group plants with similar water needs. Maximize the use of

lowwateruse plants especially in sunny, dry and windy areas. Plants that need more water should be
used sparingly and planted close to the house in either shady areas or placed in containers.

5. Improve the texture of the soil, if needed, by adding amendments. Amendments can either increase
water retention or improve drainage, depending on the soil composition.

6. Use a thick layer of mulch around your plants to help the soil retain moisture. Mulch also inhibits
weeds.

7. Plant trees to lower air and soil temperatures. This reduces plant and soil moisture loss.

8. Use low, spreading shrubs and trees to cover large slopes rather than shallowrooted groundcovers.
Minimize water runoff with drip irrigation

http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=lake-level
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=contact
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=lake-casitas-recreation-area
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=water-conservation


Home Lake Level Contact Water Conservation Lake Casitas Recreation Area

Home Water Conservation Smart Irrigation Controller Rebates

Smart Irrigation Controller Rebates
The goal of the irrigation controller rebate program is to increase irrigation efficiency and promote
healthy and attractive landscaping within Casitas' district boundaries. It saves water and lowers your
bill.

A new generation of irrigation controllers are now available that automatically adjust irrigation
scheduling based on actual site and weather conditions. They stop irrigating when it rains and apply
more water when it is dry. They will automatically cycle and soak to reduce runoff on slopes

Casitas is offering up to $250 rebates for qualifying irrigation controllers.

NOTE: As of October 1st, 2011, the Smart Irrigation Controller Rebate requirements and amounts
will be changing. The new Rebate amount will be $250. Applicants will be required to demonstrate
an average summer use in excess of 25 units of water per month. A site visit by Casitas staff will
also be required.

Application process:

Review terms and conditions

Select and install qualifying irrigation controller, shown on Makes and Models list, according to
manufacture's directions. Contact manufacture for installation, programming questions and for a
list of distributors that may have a list of professional installers if you choose not to install
yourself.

Complete application with attached receipt and deliver it to Casitas MWD, 1055 Ventura
Avenue, Oak View, California 93022. Casitas reserves the right to inspect for proper installation.

 Online or PDF Application

 Approved Makes and Models List

 Brochure

http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=lake-level
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=contact
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=lake-casitas-recreation-area
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/Terms%20and%20Conditions.doc
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/Conservation/Application.pdf
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/859761689Makes%20and%20Models%20List%20-2.doc
http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/controllerbrochure.pdf


Home Lake Level Contact Water Conservation Lake Casitas Recreation Area

Home Water Conservation Free Water Conservation Devices

Free Water Conservation Devices
Casitas MWD provides the following water conservation devices for free to all customers living in the
service area. Customers can pick up these devices between 8:00 and 4:30 p.m. at the District's main
office located at 1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, California.

 

EARTH SHOWERHEAD

(Massage Showerhead) This showerhead will provide an effective
spray but use much less water.

 

KITCHEN AERATOR WITH SWIVEL

Swivel action for effective cleaning, both with aerated jet and wide
spray.

 

1.5 GALLONSPERMINUTE BATHROOM FAUCET AERATOR

Flows at only 1.5 gpm, but delivers the force of gallons more. Easy to
install.

http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=lake-level
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=contact
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=lake-casitas-recreation-area
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=water-conservation


Lake Casitas Recreation Area
11311 Santa Ana Road Ventura, CA
93001
General Information: 8056492233
Reservations: 8056491122
 
Casitas Municipal Water District  Office
1055 Ventura Ave Oak View, CA 93022
Phone: 8056492251 Fax: 8056494485

 

 

TOILET FLAPPER

Toilet flappers will begin to leak with age. It is important to maintain
them. These sturdy universal flappers install easily in to your toilet
tank.

 

DYE TABLETS

(Packet with 2 tablets) Drop these blue dye tablets into your toilet
tank to check for toilet leaks.

SHOWER SHUTOFF VALVE

Install this device above your showerhead so that you can easily
turnoff your shower while lathering. This will limit the number of
minutes that your shower will be running, which will add to many
gallons of water savings per day.

 

http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php


Lake Casitas Recreation Area
11311 Santa Ana Road Ventura, CA
93001
General Information: 8056492233
Reservations: 8056491122
 
Casitas Municipal Water District  Office
1055 Ventura Ave Oak View, CA 93022
Phone: 8056492251 Fax: 8056494485

 

Home Lake Level Contact Water Conservation Lake Casitas Recreation Area

Home Water Conservation Landscape Suggestions

Landscape Suggestions
Landscaping water requirements represent over fifty percent of residential water needs. Homes and
businesses have a great opportunity to save more of our limited local water supply by planting drought
tolerant plants and installing and maintaining efficient irrigation systems.

Water Wise Gardening in Ventura County – This webresource offers you a personalized database that
you develop for your specific landscape needs. You can populate your database using the vast
selection of plants and garden plans that will help you design a beautiful and drought tolerant
landscape that is specifically designed for Ventura County. All the homes and plans depicted are from
Ventura County. Plant lists include details on needs for sun and water and attributes such as butterfly or
bird attraction.

Are you adjusting your irrigation controller at least twice a year?

An easy way to remember to adjust your irrigation controller sprinkler is to turn it back in the fall when
you change your clock for daylight savings time and spring it forward in the spring. Also, take the time
to see if all of your sprinkler heads are working properly. Look for broken, bent or sunken sprinkler
heads and clogged nozzles.

 

 

 

http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=lake-level
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=contact
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=lake-casitas-recreation-area
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.ventura.watersavingplants.com/ventura1.php


Home Lake Level Contact Water Conservation Lake Casitas Recreation Area

Home Report Water Waste Anonymously

Report Water Waste Anonymously
Please assist us by reporting water waste such as a water running off a property, middle of the day
lawn irrigation, or a faucet left running. Your help will assist Casitas MWD staff to investigate and offer
assistance in resolving the problem. Complete the form anonymously or contact our Water Waste
Hotline at (805) 6492251 Ext. 128.

 

Date Observed *

 

Time Observed *

 

Location Type *

 

Address/Location *

 

Type of Water Waste

 Outdoor irrigation more than two days a week

 Outdoor irrigation between 10 am and 6 pm

 Over watering or runoff onto pavement, street or gutter

 Not using a hose nozzle shutoff when cleaning vehicles, or hand watering landscapes

 Using a hose to wash a driveway, sidewalk, and/or other exterior hard or paved surface

 Broken sprinkler

 Other, please describe in comment field below:

 

Comments:

http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=lake-level
http://www.casitaswater.org/lower.php?url=contact
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=water-conservation
http://www.casitaswater.org/department.php?url=lake-casitas-recreation-area
http://www.casitaswater.org/index.php


Request for Allocation Adjustment 

The Casitas Municipal Water District's Water Efficiency and Allocation Program is designed to serve as a tool to help meet 
State mandated water use reductions and to manage local water supply. If you believe you need an adjusted allocation 
based on the reasons listed below, you must complete and return this form. Adjustments may be approved subject to 
verification and periodic review by Casitas Staff. Allocation adjustments are based on Stage 1 drought conditions and 
are subject to further limits due to drought conditions. 

NAME:  ________________________________________ ACCOUNT NO. ________________________ 
Email:   ________________________ Daytime Phone: ____________________   Evening Phone: __________________ 
Mailing Address: (if different from service address): ______________________________________________________  

I have read the ALLOCATION ADJUSTMENT GUIDELINES (on back page) and request an adjusted water allocation for 
the following reason(s): 

CIRCUMSTANCE.  Please explain circumstance, attach additional page if needed. A home water survey and/

or verification may be required. 

PLEASE NOTE: Submissions with incomplete information or missing documentation(s) will be returned to applicant. 
Approval of an allocation adjustment does not constitute a release from conserving in your home and penalties may be 
incurred if you exceed your water allocation. Processing may take 30 days. Casitas will respond to your request in writing.  
If approved, new allocation will apply starting with the next bill. For questions, call (805) 649-2251 Ext. 118. 

RETURN COMPLETED APPLICATION AND ACCEPTABLE DOCUMENTATION BY:  
(MAIL) Casitas Municipal Water District, Oak View, CA 93022, (FAX) 805-649-3001, or (EMAIL) 
rmerckling@casitaswater.com.  

I have completed this form and affirm that I am the above account holder and the information contained herein, including attachments, is 
complete and accurate. I further understand that all variances are subject to change and I may be liable for back charges for providing 
false information.  

PRINT NAME: ___________________________________    SIGNATURE: _____________________________  

For District Use Only, Date Received:____________________Allocation Adjustment Essential _____ Non-Essential______ 
Documentation Submitted_______________________________________________________________________________ 



Allocation Adjustment Guidelines 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION 

1. The customer is responsible for contacting Casitas and submitting a Request

for Allocation Adjustment in writing

2. Documentation subject to verification and review by Casitas' staff.

3.
Upon verification and approval of customer’s request, the allocation

adjustment will be applied to the next bill and will not be retroactive

4. Refusal or failure of applicant to provide documentation acceptable to and requested

by Casitas shall result in denial or revocation of adjustment

5.

6.

B. RELEVANT FACTORS THAT MAY QUALIFY FOR ALLOCATION ADJUSTMENTS 

1. Livestock (15 gallons of water per day per animal weighing more than 100

pounds)

2. Licensed 24/7 child or adult care facility

3. Correction of irrigable area square feet

Information contained on the application form is subject to an audit (Casitas reserves the right to 
audit Variance Applications). As an applicant subject to an audit, you must agree to: Provide 
documentation to support claims. If information supplied in the application is found to be false, 
the fees and 
charges will be adjusted retroactively to the date of the application and penalty fees may apply. 
Appropriate fees and charges will be added to the next water service bill for the address on the 
application.

Before submitting an application , please read the following:

Reasons for requesting allocation adjustments cannot be related to water waste. 

Variance applications may be subject to annual review

4. Correction of number of dwelling units on property



1055 Ventura Ave.
Oak View

, CA 93022
805-649-2251

w
w

w
.casitasw

ater.org

Y
our B

oard in A
ction

B
ill H

icks, D
ivision I

Jam
es W

. W
ord, D

ivision II
Pete K

aiser, D
ivision III

M
ary B

ergen, D
ivision IV

R
uss B

aggerly, D
ivision V

The 
C

asitas 
B

oard 
of 

D
irectors 

is 
scheduled 

to 
m

eet at 3:00 p.m
. in the board 

room
 located in the m

ain of-
fi ce at 1055 V

entura A
ve., 

O
ak V

iew
, on the 2

nd and 4
th 

W
ednesday of every m

onth.

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
5

H
is

to
ri

c
 D

ro
u

g
h

t 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
Join the C

asitas M
unicipal W

ater 
D

istrict Facebook page to get the 
latest updates on w

ater conserva-
tion and the Lake C

asitas Recreation A
rea at: w

w
w

.facebook.
com

/fbsitecasitasm
unicipalw

aterdistrict.

E
C

R
W

S
S

P
O

S
T

A
L
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R

T
h

e
 C

a
si

ta
s 

S
p

e
a

k
e

rs
 B

u
re

a
u

: 
Pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 fo
r c

us
to

m
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 

le
ar

n 
m

or
e 

ab
ou

t w
at

er
 is

su
es

 in
 th

e 
W

es
te

rn
 V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
ar

ea
. P

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t R
on

 M
er

ck
lin

g,
 W

at
er

 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
an

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 A
ff 

ai
rs

 M
an

ag
er

, 8
05

-6
49

-2
25

1, 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

11
8,

 to
 in

vi
te

 a
 s

pe
ak

er
 to

 y
ou

r n
ex

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
 o

r o
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l m

ee
tin

g.
 

Pl
ea

se
 v

is
it 

th
e 

W
at

er
 W

is
e 

G
ar

de
ni

ng
 in

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
eb

si
te

 a
t w

w
w

.v
en

tu
ra

.w
at

er
sa

vi
ng

pl
an

ts
.c

om
.

F
re

e
 L

a
n

d
sc

a
p

e
 C

la
ss

Pl
ea

se
 jo

in
 u

s 
fo

r o
ur

 la
st

 fr
ee

 w
at

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

w
or

ks
ho

p 
fo

r t
hi

s 
ye

ar
. L

ea
rn

 m
or

e 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 

yo
u 

ca
n 

sa
ve

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 m

on
ey

. T
he

 w
or

ks
ho

p 
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 fr

om
 9

:0
0 

a.
m

. t
o 

no
on

 o
n 

Sa
tu

rd
ay

, 
A

ug
us

t 8
, 2

01
5.

S
 

Ra
in

w
at

er
 C

ap
tu

re
 a

nd
 G

ra
yw

at
er

 –
 L

ea
rn

 h
ow

 to
 in

st
al

l a
 s

m
al

l s
ca

le
 s

ys
te

m
 th

at
 m

ee
ts

 a
ll 

co
un

ty
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.

Pl
ea

se
 R

SV
P 

ea
rly

 a
t r

m
er

ck
lin

g@
ca

si
ta

sw
at

er
.c

om
 o

r (
80

5)
 6

49
-2

25
1 E

xt
en

si
on

 11
8.

W
or

ks
ho

ps
 w

ill
 b

e 
he

ld
 a

t O
ak

 V
ie

w
 P

ar
k 

&
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Ce
nt

er
 (f

or
m

er
ly

 th
e 

O
ak

 V
ie

w
 

El
em

en
ta

ry
 S

ch
oo

l) 
lo

ca
te

d 
at

 5
55

 M
ah

on
ey

 
A

ve
nu

e.
 A

tt
en

de
es

 a
re

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d 

to
 p

ar
k 

in
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

ts
 in

st
ea

d 
of

 o
n 

th
e 

st
re

et
.

Th
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

Bo
ar

d 
de

cl
ar

ed
 

a 
St

ag
e 

II 
co

nd
iti

on
 fo

r t
he

 L
ak

e 
Ca

si
ta

s 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
15

. 
Lo

ca
l g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 a

nd
 L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

w
at

er
 le

ve
ls

 d
ec

lin
ed

 to
 

hi
st

or
ic

 lo
w

s 
no

t s
ee

n 
in

 fi 
ft

y 
ye

ar
s.

 It
 is

 c
rit

ic
al

 a
ll 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
, a

nd
 in

st
itu

tio
ns

 in
 

W
es

te
rn

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

ta
ke

 
ex

tr
a 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 c
on

se
rv

e 
w

at
er

 n
ow

 a
nd

 in
to

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
.  

Co
ns

er
vi

ng
 w

at
er

 n
ow

 c
an

 
pr

ol
on

g 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 
fu

tu
re

.  
W

at
er

 s
av

in
gs

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
no

w
 m

an
da

to
ry

 p
er

 th
e 

St
at

e 
of

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, C

as
ita

s 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s,
 

an
d 

ot
he

r l
oc

al
 w

at
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s’
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.
La

ke
 C

as
i t

as
 -

 a
t 

hi
st

or
ic

 lo
w

s

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D

E
C

R
W

SS

U
.S. P

O
ST

A
G

E

P
A

ID
SA

N
T

A
 B

A
R

B
A

R
A

, C
A

P
E
R

M
IT

 #
5
7
8

S
ta

te
 M

a
n

d
a

te
d

 W
a

te
r 

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
Th

e 
St

at
e 

ha
s 

pr
oc

la
im

ed
 a

 
st

at
e 

of
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t d
ro

ug
ht

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

en
ac

te
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 th
e 

w
as

te
 a

nd
 

un
re

as
on

ab
le

 u
se

 o
f w

at
er

.  
Th

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
re

 a
im

ed
 a

t r
ed

uc
in

g 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 u

se
 to

 th
e 

St
at

e’
s 

go
al

 o
f 5

5 
ga

llo
ns

 p
er

 c
ap

ita
 

pe
r d

ay
 (G

PC
D

) a
nd

 n
ow

 w
at

er
 

ag
en

ci
es

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t e
ff 

or
ts

 
to

 s
ig

ni
fi c

an
tly

 re
du

ce
 a

ll 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 u

se
. F

or
 m

os
t r

es
id

en
tia

l, 
bu

si
ne

ss
, a

nd
 in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
cu

st
om

er
s 

th
is

 m
ea

ns
 s

ig
ni
fi c

an
t 

ou
td

oo
r w

at
er

 u
se

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
m

on
th

 in
 2

01
3.

Th
e 

St
at

e 
m

an
da

te
d 

w
at

er
 

us
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 v

ar
y 

fo
r e

ac
h 

w
at

er
 a

ge
nc

y.
 T

he
 S

ta
te

 
re

qu
ire

d 
gr

ea
te

r r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 fo

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 w

ith
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
us

in
g 

hi
gh

er
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 c

ap
ita

 d
ay

 
w

at
er

 u
sa

ge
. T

he
 ta

bl
e 

at
 th

e 
rig

ht
 in

di
ca

te
s 

th
e 

m
an

da
te

d 
w

at
er

 re
du

ct
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

fr
om

 2
01

3 
w

at
er

 u
se

. 

Th
e 

St
at

e 
go

al
 o

f 5
5 

G
PC

D
 m

ea
ns

 th
at

 a
 fa

m
ily

 o
f 

fo
ur

 w
ill

 u
se

 9
 u

ni
ts

 o
f w

at
er

 
ea

ch
 m

on
th

.  
Re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
cu

st
om

er
s 

th
at

 u
se

 le
ss

 th
an

 
10

 u
ni

ts
 o

n 
th

ei
r m

on
th

ly
 

bi
ll 

ha
ve

 m
et

 th
e 

St
at

e’
s 

go
al

 a
nd

 a
re

 d
oi

ng
 a

 g
re

at
 

jo
b 

on
 w

at
er

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, f
or

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

th
at

 

us
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 m
or

e 
th

an
 10

 
un

its
 e

ac
h 

m
on

th
, i

t i
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
w

at
er

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
w

ill
 p

rim
ar

ily
 

co
m

e 
fr

om
 re

du
ci

ng
 o

ut
do

or
 

w
at

er
in

g 
of

 la
nd

sc
ap

es
. 

W
at

er
 A

ge
nc

y
% 

of
 W

at
er

 
R

ed
uc

ti
on

G
al

lo
ns

 P
er

 
Ca

pi
ta

 D
ay

 U
se

Ca
si

ta
s 

M
W

D
32

%
18

2.
9

Ci
ty

 o
f V

en
tu

ra
16

%
91

.3

G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 C
o.

 O
ja

i
36

%
26

1

Sm
al

l W
at

er
 

A
ge

nc
ie

s 
(V

en
tu

ra
 R

iv
er

 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t,
 

M
ei

ne
rs

 
O

ak
s 

W
at

er
 

A
ge

nc
y,

 lo
ca

l 
M

ut
ua

l W
at

er
 

Co
m

pa
ni

es
)

25
%

S
ta

te
 M

a
n

d
a

te
d

 W
a

te
r 

D
e

m
a

n
d

 R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s



P
a

g
e

 7
P

a
g

e
 2

C
a

si
ta

s’
 B

o
a

rd
 A

d
o

p
ts

 N
e

w
 

W
a

te
r 

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

Ca
si

ta
s’

 B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

a 
re

vi
se

d 
W

at
er

 E
ffi  

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 o
n 

Ju
ne

 5
, 2

01
5.

 T
he

 P
ro

gr
am

 
im

pl
em

en
ts

 C
as

ita
s’

 w
at

er
 d

em
an

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 s

to
ra

ge
 

le
ve

ls
 in

 L
ak

e 
Ca

si
ta

s.
 T

he
 p

ro
gr

am
 

de
sc

rib
es

 w
at

er
 d

em
an

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 w

at
er

 
sh

or
ta

ge
 c

on
di

tio
ns

, p
ro

m
ot

e 
w

at
er

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
an

d 
w

at
er

 e
ffi  

ci
en

cy
, a

nd
 th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

pe
na

lty
 to

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

w
as

tin
g 

w
at

er
.  

A
 k

ey
 re

vi
si

on
 in

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 in
cl

ud
es

 

W
a

te
r 

W
a

st
e

rs
 S

u
b

je
c

t 
to

 F
in

e
s

N
o 

on
e 

lik
es

 to
 g

et
 a

 fi 
ne

 a
nd

 C
as

ita
s’

 s
ta
ff 

 ta
ke

s 
no

 p
le

as
ur

e 
in

 g
iv

in
g 

th
em

. T
he

 s
er

io
us

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
 

dr
ou

gh
t n

ow
 m

ak
es

 it
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 is

su
e 
fi n

es
 to

 
pr

ev
en

t w
at

er
 w

as
te

 s
o 

w
e 

ca
n 

pr
ot

ec
t t

he
 li

m
ite

d 
lo

ca
l w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y.

 C
as

ita
s’

 W
at

er
 W

as
te

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 

st
at

es
 th

at
 a

 fi 
rs

t v
io

la
tio

n 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

w
ar

ni
ng

. S
ub

se
qu

en
t v

io
la

tio
ns

 w
ill

 in
cu

r fi
 n

es
 u

p 
to

 
$6

00
, f

or
 e

ac
h 

in
ci

de
nt

.

R
e

p
o

rt
 W

a
te

r 
W

a
st

e
Ca

si
ta

s’
 s

ta
ff 

 d
ep

en
ds

 o
n 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 to

 a
ss

is
t 

us
 w

ith
 g

et
tin

g 
ev

er
yo

ne
 to

 s
to

p 
w

as
tin

g 
ou

r l
oc

al
 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
s.

 If
 y

ou
 s

ee
 a

ny
on

e 
vi

ol
at

in
g 

an
y 

of
 

th
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

w
at

er
 w

as
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll 

ou
r 

ho
tli

ne
 a

t (
80

5)
 6

49
-2

25
1 e

xt
en

si
on

 12
8 

or
 v

is
it 

ou
r 

w
eb

si
te

 a
t w

w
w

.c
as

ita
sw

at
er

.o
rg

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

 a
no

ny
m

ou
s 

re
po

rt
in

g 
fo

rm
. P

le
as

e 
be

 s
ur

e 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ad

dr
es

s 
of

 w
at

er
 w

as
te

; d
at

e 
an

d 
tim

e 
of

 w
at

er
 w

as
te

; i
f p

os
si

bl
e 

pl
ea

se
 s

en
d 

a 
ph

ot
o;

 a
nd

 
ty

pe
 o

f w
at

er
 w

as
te

 fr
om

 th
e 

lis
t b

el
ow

: 

S
 O

ut
do

or
 ir

rig
at

io
n 

lim
ite

d 
to

 tw
o 

da
ys

 p
er

 
w

ee
k.

 N
o 

ou
td

oo
r i

rr
ig

at
io

n 
fr

om
 10

 a
m

 to
 6

 p
m

S
 L

ea
ks

 m
us

t b
e 
fi x

ed
 b

y 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

w
ne

rs
 

w
ith

in
 a

 re
as

on
ab

le
 ti

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
(u

su
al

ly
 4

8 
ho

ur
s)

S
 F

ou
nt

ai
ns

 a
nd

 w
at

er
 fe

at
ur

es
 m

us
t h

av
e 

a 
re

-
ci

rc
ul

at
in

g 
w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

S
 R

es
ta

ur
an

ts
 m

us
t n

ot
 s

er
ve

 d
rin

ki
ng

 w
at

er
 

un
le

ss
 re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er

S
 R

es
ta

ur
an

ts
 m

us
t u

se
 w

at
er

 s
av

in
g 

di
sh

 w
as

h 
sp

ra
y 

va
lv

es

S
 H

ot
el

s 
an

d 
m

ot
el

s 
m

us
t g

iv
e 

gu
es

ts
 th

e 
op

tio
n 

to
 d

ec
lin

e 
da

ily
 b

ed
 li

ne
n 

an
d 

to
w

el
 c

ha
ng

es

S
 K

ee
p 

irr
ig

at
io

n 
ru

no
ff 

 fr
om

 s
pi

lli
ng

 o
n 

to
 

st
re

et
s 

an
d 

si
de

w
al

ks

S
 U

se
 a

 h
os

e 
no

zz
le

 s
hu

t-
off

 s
 a

t a
ll 

tim
es

 w
he

n 
cl

ea
ni

ng
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

or
 h

an
d 

w
at

er
in

g 
la

nd
sc

ap
es

S
 S

w
ee

p,
 d

on
’t

 w
as

h 
si

de
w

al
ks

, d
riv

ew
ay

s,
 a

nd
 

pa
rk

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 a

 h
os

e 
ex

ce
pt

 fo
r s

af
et

y 
an

d 
sa

ni
ta

ry
 re

as
on

s

S
 N

o 
irr

ig
at

io
n 

du
rin

g,
 o

r 4
8 

ho
ur

s 
af

te
r, 

ra
in

fa
ll.

C
h

o
o

se
 t

o
 S

a
ve

 M
o

re
Ta

ke
 e

xt
ra

 s
te

ps
 to

 c
on

se
rv

e 
an

d 
sa

ve
 th

ou
sa

nd
s 

of
 g

al
lo

ns
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

. 
Se

ve
ra

l s
ug

ge
st

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
e:

S
 L

et
 y

ou
r t

ur
f g

o 
br

ow
n 

or
 re

pl
ac

e 
 

w
at

er
-th

irs
ty

 tu
rf

 w
ith

 w
at

er
 

sm
ar

t l
an

ds
ca

pe

S
 U

se
 m

ul
ch

 a
ro

un
d 

pl
an

ts
 to

 
pr

ev
en

t e
va

po
ra

tio
n

S
 T

ur
n 

off
  t

he
 fa

uc
et

 w
he

n 
sh

av
in

g,
 

br
us

hi
ng

 te
et

h 
an

d 
sc

ru
bb

in
g

 
di

sh
es

S
 R

un
 fu

ll 
lo

ad
s 

of
 la

un
dr

y 
an

d
 

di
sh

es

S
 T

ak
e 

sh
or

te
r s

ho
w

er
s,

 fi 
ve

 
m

in
ut

es
 o

r l
es

s

S
 In

st
al

l e
ffi  

ci
en

t fi
 x

tu
re

s 
an

d
 

ap
pl

ia
nc

es
 –

 L
oo

k 
fo

r r
eb

at
es

 o
n

 
Ca

si
ta

s’
 w

eb
si

te

S
 T

al
k 

to
 y

ou
r f

am
ily

, f
rie

nd
s 

an
d

 
co

w
or

ke
rs

 

Ch
ec

k 
ou

t t
he

 w
eb

si
te

s:
 w

w
w

.
ca

si
ta

sw
at

er
.o

rg
 a

nd
 w

w
w

.h
2o

us
e.

or
g 

fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
ug

ge
st

io
ns

 o
n 

w
at

er
 s

av
in

gs
.

T
h

e
 R

e
tu

rn
 o

f 
A

st
ro

n
o

m
y 

N
ig

h
ts

 
a

t 
L

a
k

e
 C

a
si

ta
s 

Fa
r, 

fa
r a

w
ay

 fr
om

 c
ity

 li
gh

ts
, L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
A

re
a 

is
 a

 p
er

fe
ct

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 s

ta
rg

az
e 

w
ith

 N
A

SA
 a

cc
re

d-
ite

d 
as

tr
on

om
er

 E
rn

es
t U

nd
er

ha
y.

 
Pe

ek
 th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r s
up

er
 b

ig
 te

le
sc

op
e 

an
d/

or
 b

rin
g 

yo
ur

 o
w

n 
bi

no
cu

la
rs

 o
r 

te
le

sc
op

e.
 M

r. 
U

nd
er

ha
y 

is
 a

s 
en

te
r-

ta
in

in
g 

as
 h

e 
is

 k
no

w
le

dg
ea

bl
e.

 

Ev
er

yo
ne

 is
 w

el
co

m
e.

 P
ar

k 
en

-
tr

an
ce

 fe
es

 a
pp

ly
. Y

ou
 m

ay
 w

an
t t

o 
br

in
g 

yo
ur

 b
la

nk
et

 o
r l

aw
n 

ch
ai

r. 

M
ee

t a
t P

ic
ni

c 
#1

 b
y 

Sa
nt

a 
A

na
 

La
un

ch
 R

am
p,

 E
ve

nt
 s

ta
rt

s 
at

 8
:3

0 
pm

:
u

 S
at

ur
da

y,
 J

un
e 

27
 - 

“N
ew

 M
oo

n 
  

 
an

d 
Ve

nu
s”

 
u

 S
at

ur
da

y 
Ju

ly
 18

 - 
“S

at
ur

n,
 L

or
d 

  
 

of
 th

e 
Ri

ng
s”

u
 S

at
ur

da
y,

 A
ug

us
t 1

5 
- “

Su
m

m
er

  
 

 
M

ilk
y 

W
ay

 a
nd

 S
co

rp
io

n’
s 

St
in

ge
r”

u
 S

at
ur

da
y,

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 5

 -  
“F

ar
ew

el
l  

 
to

 S
um

m
er

”
u

 S
un

da
y,

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

7 
- “

Bl
oo

d 
  

 
 

M
oo

n 
So

la
r E

cl
ip

se
” 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
n 

us
es

 1
96

 g
al

lo
ns

 o
f 

w
at

er
 p

er
 d

ay
 a

nd
 3

0-
60

%
 o

f t
he

ir 
w

at
er

 
ou

td
oo

rs
. H

er
e 

ar
e 

so
m

e 
ea

sy
 

ou
td

oo
r t

ip
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 w
at

er
 

us
e.

 F
in

d 
th

e 
rig

ht
 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

fo
r y

ou
 

to
 re

du
ce

 b
y 

20
%

 o
r 

38
 g

al
lo

ns
 a

 d
ay

.

W
HA

T 
DO

ES
 A

 
in

 w
at

er
 u

se
 lo

ok
 li

ke
?

O
U

TD
O

O
R 

W
AT

ER
 U

SE

Fo
r m

or
e 

tip
s o

n r
ed

uc
in

g 
w

at
er

 us
e,

 v
is

it 
w

w
w

.ca
si

ta
sw

at
er

.o
rg

 o
r w

w
w

.h
2o

us
e.

or
g 

U
SE

 A
 B

RO
O

M
 T

O
 C

LE
A

N
 

O
U

TD
O

O
R 

A
RE

A
S

 8
-1

8
 G

A
LL

O
N

S 
p
er

 m
in

u
te

sa
ve

s

W
AT

ER
 P

LA
N

TS
 E

A
RL

Y 
IN

 
TH

E 
A

M

PL
A

N
T 

D
RO

U
G

H
T-R

ES
IS

TA
N

T 
TR

EE
S 

A
N

D
 P

LA
N

TS

 2
5

 G
A

LL
O

N
S 

ea
ch

 t
im

e 
y
o
u
 w

a
te

r

 3
0

-6
0

 G
A

LL
O

N
S 

p
er

 1
,0

0
0
 s

q
. 
ft

. 
ea

ch
 t

im
e

sa
ve

s

sa
ve

s

A
D

JU
ST

 S
PR

IN
KL

ER
 T

O
 W

AT
ER

 
PL

A
N

TS
, N

O
T 

D
RI

VE
W

AY

IN
ST

A
LL

 D
RI

P-
IR

RI
G

AT
IO

N

U
SE

 M
U

LC
H

 O
N

 S
O

IL 
SU

RF
A

C
E

SE
T 

M
O

W
ER

 B
LA

D
E 

TO
 3

” 
(E

N
C

O
U

RA
G

ES
 D

EE
PE

R 
RO

O
TS

)

IN
ST

A
LL

 A
 “

SM
A

RT
” 

C
O

N
TR

O
LL

ER

 1
2

-1
5

 G
A

LL
O

N
S 

ea
ch

 t
im

e 
y
o
u
 w

a
te

r

 1
5

 G
A

LL
O

N
S 

ea
ch

 t
im

e 
y
o
u
 w

a
te

r

 2
0

-3
0

 G
A

LL
O

N
S 

p
er

 1
,0

0
0
 s

q
. 
ft

. 
ea

ch
 t

im
e

 1
6
-5

0
 G

A
LL

O
N

S 
p
er

 d
a
y

 2
4

+
 G

A
LL

O
N

S 
p
er

 d
a
y

sa
ve

s

sa
ve

s

sa
ve

s

sa
ve

s

sa
ve

s

m
et

ho
ds

 to
 a

ss
ig

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

to
 C

as
ita

s’
 c

us
to

m
er

s.
 

Th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 

be
 fa

ir 
an

d 
no

t r
eq

ui
re

 u
nr

ea
so

na
bl

e 
cu

tb
ac

ks
 fr

om
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 a
lre

ad
y 

co
ns

er
ve

. T
he

y 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

am
ou

nt
 o

f w
at

er
 

to
 m

ee
t p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y.
 T

he
y 

al
so

 ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
va

ria
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
m

ou
nt

s 
of

 w
at

er
 fo

r s
ea

so
na

l 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ne
ed

s.



1
0
5
5
 V

en
tu

ra A
ve.

O
ak V

iew
, C

A
 9

3
0
2
2

8
0
5
-6

4
9
-2

2
5
1

w
w

w
.casitasw

ater.o
rg

Y
our B

oard in A
ction

B
ill H

icks, D
ivision I

Jam
es W

. W
ord, D

ivision II
P

ete K
aiser, D

ivision III
M

ary B
ergen, D

ivision IV
R

uss B
aggerly, D

ivision V

T
he 

C
asitas 

B
oard 

of 
D

irectors 
is 

scheduled 
to 

m
eet at 3:00 p.m

. in the board 
room

 located in the m
ain of-

fi ce at 1055 V
entura A

ve., 
O

ak V
iew

, on the 2
nd and 4

th 

W
ednesday of every m

onth.

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
4

S
ta

te
w

id
e

 D
ro

u
g

h
t 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

s 
L

o
c

a
l 
R

e
sp

o
n

se
Join the C

asitas M
unicipal W

ater 
D

istrict Facebook page to get the 
latest updates on w

ater conserva-
tion and the Lake C

asitas Recreation A
rea at: w

w
w

.facebook.
com

/fbsitecasitasm
unicipalw

aterdistrict.

E
C

R
W

S
S

P
O

S
T

A
L
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R

T
h

e
 C

a
si

ta
s 

S
p

e
a

k
e

rs
 B

u
re

a
u

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
an

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r c

us
to

m
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 le

ar
n 

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t w

at
er

 is
su

es
 in

 th
e 

W
es

te
rn

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

ar
ea

. P
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t R

on
 M

er
ck

lin
g,

 W
at

er
 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 A
ff 

ai
rs

 M
an

ag
er

, 8
05

-6
49

-2
25

1, 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

11
8,

 to
 in

vi
te

 a
 s

pe
ak

er
 to

 y
ou

r 
ne

xt
 c

om
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
 o

r o
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l m

ee
tin

g.
 

Pl
ea

se
 v

is
it 

th
e 

ne
w

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
ed

 W
at

er
 W

is
e 

G
ar

de
ni

ng
 in

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
eb

si
te

 a
t 

w
w

w
.v

en
tu

ra
.w

at
er

sa
vi

ng
pl

an
ts

.c
om

.

F
re

e
 L

a
n

d
sc

a
p

e
 C

la
ss

Pl
ea

se
 jo

in
 u

s 
fo

r o
ne

 o
f o

ur
 fr

ee
 S

at
ur

da
y 

m
or

ni
ng

 c
la

ss
es

 to
 le

ar
n 

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 y

ou
 c

an
 s

av
e 

w
at

er
 a

nd
 m

on
ey

.

Ra
in

w
at

er
 c

ap
tu

re
/G

ra
yw

at
er

 W
or

ks
ho

p 
– 

fr
om

 9
:0

0 
a.

m
. t

o 
no

on
 o

n 
Sa

tu
rd

ay
, A

ug
us

t 1
6,

 2
01

4.
 

Th
is

 w
or

ks
ho

p 
is

 s
ur

e 
to

 a
ns

w
er

 a
ll 

of
 y

ou
r q

ue
st

io
ns

 re
la

te
d 

to
 ra

in
w

at
er

 
an

d 
gr

ay
w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 Y

ou
 w

ill
 le

ar
n 

ho
w

 to
 in

st
al

l y
ou

r o
w

n 
sy

st
em

s 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 p

er
m

it 
st

an
da

rd
s 

in
 V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y.

Pl
ea

se
 R

SV
P 

ea
rly

 a
t r

m
er

ck
lin

g@
ca

si
ta

sw
at

er
.c

om
 o

r (
80

5)
 6

49
-2

25
1 

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
11

8.

W
or

ks
ho

ps
 w

ill
 b

e 
he

ld
 a

t O
ak

 V
ie

w
 P

ar
k 

&
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Ce
nt

er
 

(f
or

m
er

ly
 th

e 
O

ak
 V

ie
w

 E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
l) 

lo
ca

te
d 

at
 5

55
 M

ah
on

ey
 

A
ve

nu
e.

 A
tt

en
de

es
 a

re
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 p
ar

k 
in

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
ts

 in
st

ea
d 

of
 

th
e 

st
re

et
.

W
es

te
rn

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y’

s 
w

at
er

 re
so

ur
ce

 s
ys

te
m

s 
w

ill
 

be
 s

tr
et

ch
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

w
or

se
 

st
at

ew
id

e 
dr

ou
gh

t i
n 

re
ce

nt
 

m
em

or
y 

co
nt

in
ue

s.
  B

y 
ea

rly
 s

um
m

er
, m

an
y 

lo
ca

l 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
ill

 
re

ac
h 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 lo

w
 le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 p

um
pe

rs
 w

ill
 re

ly
 

on
 L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

to
 m

ee
t l

oc
al

 
w

at
er

 d
em

an
ds

.  
By

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
su

m
m

er
 m

on
th

s,
 L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s’

 s
to

ra
ge

 w
ill

 d
ro

p 
to

 
be

lo
w

 fi 
ft

y 
pe

rc
en

t f
or

 th
e 
fi r

st
 

tim
e 

si
nc

e 
19

68
. A

t fi
 ft

y 
pe

rc
en

t 
st

or
ag

e,
 C

as
ita

s 
w

ill
 a

sk
 a

ll 
w

at
er

 u
se

rs
 in

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t t

o 
fu

rt
he

r r
ed

uc
e 

no
n-

es
se

nt
ia

l 
w

at
er

 u
se

. 

“I
t i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t f

or
 a

ll 
w

at
er

 
us

er
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t t
o 

be
gi

n 
to

 ta
ke

 e
xt

ra
or

di
na

ry
 s

te
ps

 
to

 c
ur

ta
il 

w
at

er
 u

sa
ge

,”
 s

ai
d 

Ro
n 

M
er

ck
lin

g,
 p

ub
lic

 a
ff 

ai
rs

/r
es

ou
rc

e 
m

an
ag

er
 fo

r C
as

ita
s.

 “
A

lth
ou

gh
, 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
se

ve
ra

l y
ea

rs
 o

f w
at

er
 

su
pp

ly
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

, i
t i

s 
cr

iti
ca

l f
or

 
al

l w
at

er
 u

se
rs

 to
 ta

ke
 a

ct
io

n 
no

w
, t

he
 o

nl
y 

w
at

er
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a 

is
 fr

om
 lo

ca
l 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
s,

” 
sa

id
 M

er
ck

lin
g.

W
es

te
rn

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

is
 

no
t a

lo
ne

 in
 fa

ci
ng

 th
e 

dr
ou

gh
t. 

 
Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

te
w

id
e 

dr
ou

gh
t 

is
 im

pa
ct

in
g 

m
os

t o
f t

he
 s

ta
te

’s
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
an

d 
w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  I

n 
m

an
y 

ar
ea

s,
 w

at
er

 ra
tio

ni
ng

 a
nd

 

cr
op

 fa
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
no

w
 in

 p
la

ce
 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
sc

ar
ci

ty
 o

f w
at

er
.

Ca
si

ta
s’

 d
is

tr
ic

t b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

en
co

m
pa

ss
 a

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
70

,0
00

 re
si

de
nt

s,
 

5,
80

0 
ac

re
s 

of
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
, a

nd
 

a 
w

id
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f c
om

m
er

ci
al

 
an

d 
in

du
st

ria
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
th

at
 

ar
e 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
m

or
e 

th
an

 e
ig

ht
 

di
ff 

er
en

t p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
w

at
er

 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

  I
f y

ou
 a

re
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

th
is

 n
ew

sl
et

te
r b

y 
m

ai
l, 

yo
u 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
a 

w
at

er
 c

us
to

m
er

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
of

 th
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t.

Ca
si

ta
s’

 “
D

ro
ug

ht
 O

n/
Ta

p 
O
ff 

” 
w

at
er

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

is
 a

im
ed

 a
t m

ak
in

g 
it 

as
 e

as
y 

as
 

po
ss

ib
le

 fo
r r

es
id

en
ts

, b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

fa
rm

er
s 

to
 s

av
e 

ev
en

 m
or

e 
w

at
er

. T
he

 c
am

pa
ig

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
, r

eb
at

es
 fo

r h
ig

h 
w

at
er

 e
ffi  

ci
en

cy
 d

ev
ic

es
, a

nd
 

fr
ee

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l, 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l, 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
 w

at
er

 s
ur

ve
ys

. S
ta

te
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
on

 w
at

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
e 

al
so

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 w
w

w
.

sa
ve

ou
rH

2O
.o

rg
, o

r j
oi

n 
th

e 
eff

 o
rt

 o
n 

Fa
ce

bo
ok

 a
nd

 T
w

itt
er

.  
A

ny
on

e 
in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 fi 

nd
in

g 
ou

t m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

th
es

e 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
is

 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 to
 v

is
it 

Ca
si

ta
s’

 w
eb

 
si

te
 a

t w
w

w
.c

as
ita

sw
at

er
.o

rg
 o

r 
ca

ll 
to

 c
al

l R
on

 M
er

ck
lin

g 
at

 (8
05

) 
64

9-
22

51
 E

xt
en

si
on

 11
8.

 

L
a
k
e
 C

a
si

 ta
s 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl

y
 a

t 
5
8
%

 o
f 

fu
ll
.

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D

E
C

R
W

SS

U
.S. P

O
ST

A
G

E

P
A

ID
SA

N
T

A
 B

A
R

B
A

R
A

, C
A

P
E
R

M
IT

 #
5
7
8



P
a

g
e

 7
P

a
g

e
 2

H
o

m
e

o
w

n
e

r 
U

se
s 

F
re

e
 C

a
si

ta
s’

 
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 S
a

ve
 W

a
te

r
Ca

ro
le

 Il
es

, a
 re

si
de

nt
 in

 th
e 

M
ei

ne
rs

 O
ak

s 
W

at
er

 
D

is
tr

ic
t s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 a
 fr

ee
 w

at
er

 s
ur

ve
y 

off
 e

re
d 

by
 

th
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t. 
“I

 w
an

te
d 

to
 

re
m

ov
e 

m
y 

la
w

n 
to

 re
du

ce
 m

y 
w

at
er

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n.
 

I t
ho

ug
ht

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
 m

ig
ht

 g
iv

e 
m

e 
so

m
e 

go
od

 
id

ea
s 

so
 I 

sc
he

du
le

d 
a 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ca
si

ta
s’

 
fr

ee
 h

om
e 

w
at

er
 s

ur
ve

y 
pr

og
ra

m
,”

 s
ai

d 
Ile

s.
 S

he
 re

-
ce

iv
ed

 a
 h

om
e 

w
at

er
 s

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
a 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
Ci

nn
am

on
 M

cI
nt

os
h,

 C
as

ita
s’

 W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t, 
w

ho
 o
ff 

er
ed

 a
dv

ic
e 

on
 h

ow
 s

he
 c

ou
ld

 
sa

ve
 o

n 
bo

th
 in

do
or

 a
nd

 o
ut

do
or

 w
at

er
 u

se
. 

“I
 w

as
 h

ap
py

 w
ith

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
su

gg
es

tio
ns

 
Ci

nn
am

on
 g

av
e 

m
e.

 I 
sa

ve
d 

w
at

er
 a

nd
 re

m
ov

in
g 

th
e 

la
w

n 
im

pr
ov

ed
 m

y 
la

nd
sc

ap
e,

” 
sa

id
 Il

es
. S

in
ce

 im
pl

e-
m

en
tin

g 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
 M

s.
 Il

es
 

ha
s 

no
tic

ed
 a

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 h
er

 w
at

er
 u

se
. 

A
ny

on
e 

liv
in

g 
in

 th
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

di
st

ric
t b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
th

at
 is

 in
te

re
st

ed
 in

 g
et

tin
g 

a 
fr

ee
 h

om
e 

w
at

er
 

su
rv

ey
 is

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d 

to
 e

m
ai

l 

C
in

n
a
m

o
n
 M

cI
n
to

sh
, 
C

a
si

ta
s’

 w
a
te

r 
co

n
se

rv
a
ti

o
n
 

sp
e
ci

a
li
st

, 
p

e
rf

o
rm

s 
a
 f

re
e
 h

o
m

e
 w

a
te

r 
su

rv
e
y
 a

t 
th

e
 r

e
si

d
e
n
ce

 o
f 

M
s.

 C
a
ro

le
 I

le
s.

cm
ci

nt
os

h@
ca

si
ta

sw
at

er
.c

om
 o

r c
al

l (
80

5)
 6

49
-2

25
1 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
11

0 
to

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
an

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

t.

E
a

g
le

s 
R

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 

N
e

st
 a

t 
L

a
k

e
 C

a
si

ta
s

Fo
r t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
ye

ar
 in

 
a 

ro
w

, a
 p

ai
r o

f b
al

d 
ea

gl
es

 
ha

tc
he

d 
tw

o 
ch

ic
ks

 in
 a

 n
es

t 
ne

ar
 L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

th
is

 s
pr

in
g.

 
Th

e 
la

st
 re

co
rd

ed
 n

es
tin

g 
of

 B
al

d 
Ea

gl
es

 o
n 

Ve
nt

ur
a 

Co
un

ty
’s

 m
ai

nl
an

d 
be

fo
re

 la
st

 
ye

ar
’s

 n
es

tin
g 

at
 L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

w
as

 in
 19

22
. 

If
 y

ou
 p

la
n 

to
 v

is
it 

th
e 

La
ke

 
Ca

si
ta

s 
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

A
re

a 
to

 
se

e 
th

e 
ea

gl
e 

ne
st

 it
 is

 V
ER

Y 
im

po
rt

an
t n

ot
 to

 d
is

tu
rb

 
th

e 
ne

st
. T

he
 n

es
tin

g 
ar

ea
 is

 
cl

os
ed

 to
 v

eh
ic

le
, b

ic
yc

le
, a

nd
 

fo
ot

 tr
affi

  c
 (a

 5
00

 fo
ot

 ra
di

us
) t

o 
re

du
ce

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 
to

 th
e 

ea
gl

es
, w

hi
ch

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 a
 e

uc
al

yp
tu

s 
tr

ee
 

ne
ar

 T
ea

cu
p 

#1
, w

ith
in

 th
e 

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
A

re
a.

 T
he

 b
es

t v
ie

w
in

g 
lo

ca
tio

n,
 lo

ca
te

d 
fa

r e
no

ug
h 

aw
ay

 to
 a

vo
id

 d
is

tu
rb

in
g 

th
e 

bi
rd

s,
 is

 a
t T

ea
cu

p 
#2

, a
 p

ic
ni

c 
ta

bl
e 

ar
ea

. T
he

re
 w

ill
 li

ke
ly

 
be

 o
th

er
s 

th
er

e 
w

ith
 s

po
tt

in
g 

sc
op

es
 to

 s
ho

w
 y

ou
 w

he
re

 
th

e 
ne

st
in

g 
is

 o
cc

ur
rin

g.
 It

 is
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 y

ou
 b

rin
g 

a 
go

od
 p

ai
r o

f b
in

oc
ul

ar
s 

or
 a

 
te

le
sc

op
e.

A
lth

ou
gh

 b
al

d 
ea

gl
es

 
w

er
e 

de
lis

te
d 

as
 fe

de
ra

lly
 

en
da

ng
er

ed
 s

pe
ci

es
 in

 2
00

7,
 

ne
st

in
g 

an
d 

w
in

te
rin

g 
Ba

ld
 

Ea
gl

es
 re

m
ai

n 
lis

te
d 

as
 e

n-
da

ng
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
&

 W
ild

lif
e.

 T
he

y 
ar

e 
al

so
 p

ro
-

te
ct

ed
 u

nd
er

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
fe

de
ra

l B
al

d 
an

d 
G

ol
de

n 
Ea

gl
e 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
A

ct
 a

nd
 th

e 
fe

de
ra

l M
ig

ra
to

ry
 B

ird
 

A
ct

 o
f 1

91
8.

A
 n

e
st

 w
it

h
 a

n
 a

d
u
lt

 e
a
g
le

 n
e
a
r 

L
a
k
e
 

C
a
si

ta
s.

S
p

ru
c

e
 U

p
 Y

o
u

r 
S

p
ri

n
k

le
r 

S
ys

te
m

 a
n

d
 S

a
ve

N
ow

 is
 th

e 
pe

rf
ec

t t
im

e 
to

 s
pr

uc
e 

up
 

yo
ur

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

 b
ef

or
e 

yo
u 

ra
m

p 
up

 y
ou

r w
at

er
in

g 
eff

 o
rt

s 
th

is
 s

um
m

er
. 

To
 g

et
 s

ta
rt

ed
, f

ol
lo

w
 th

es
e 

fo
ur

 s
im

pl
e 

st
ep

s:
 in

sp
ec
t,

 c
on

ne
ct

, d
ire

ct
, a

nd
 se

le
ct

.

S
 In

sp
ec

t.
 C

he
ck

 y
ou

r s
ys

te
m

 fo
r 

cl
og

ge
d,

 b
ro

ke
n,

 o
r m

is
si

ng
 s

pr
in

kl
er

 
he

ad
s.

 If
 y

ou
›re

 n
ot

 th
e 

do
-it

-y
ou

rs
el

f 
ty

pe
, l

oo
k 

fo
r a

n 
irr

ig
at

io
n 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 c
er

tifi
 e

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

W
at

er
Se

ns
e 

la
be

le
d 

irr
ig

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
.  

  

S
 C

on
ne

ct
. E

xa
m

in
e 

po
in

ts
 w

he
re

 th
e 

sp
rin

kl
er

 
he

ad
s 

co
nn

ec
t t

o 
pi

pe
s/

ho
se

s.
 If

 w
at

er
 is

 p
oo

lin
g 

in
 y

ou
r l

an
ds

ca
pe

 o
r y

ou
 h

av
e 

la
rg

e 
w

et
 a

re
as

, y
ou

 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 le

ak
 in

 y
ou

r s
ys

te
m

. A
 le

ak
 a

s 
sm

al
l 

as
 th

e 
tip

 o
f a

 b
al

lp
oi

nt
 p

en
 (1

/3
2nd

 o
f a

n 
in

ch
) c

an
 

w
as

te
 a

bo
ut

 6
,3

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 o

f w
at

er
 p

er
 m

on
th

.  
  

S
 D

ir
ec

t.
 A

re
 y

ou
 w

at
er

in
g 

th
e 

dr
iv

ew
ay

, h
ou

se
, 

or
 s

id
ew

al
k 

in
st

ea
d 

of
 y

ou
r 

ya
rd

? R
ed

ire
ct

 
sp

rin
kl

er
s 

to
 a

pp
ly

 w
at

er
 o

nl
y 

to
 y

ou
r 

la
w

n 
or

 p
riz

ed
 p

la
nt

s.
   

 

S
 

Se
le

ct
. A

n 
im

pr
op

er
ly

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 

irr
ig

at
io

n 
co

nt
ro

lle
r c

an
 w

as
te

 a
 lo

t o
f 

w
at

er
 a

nd
 m

on
ey

. U
pd

at
e 

yo
ur

 s
ys

te
m

›s
 

sc
he

du
le

 w
ith

 th
e 

se
as

on
s,

 o
r s

el
ec

t a
 s

m
ar

t 
irr

ig
at

io
n 

co
nt

ro
lle

r t
o 

ta
ke

 th
e 

gu
es

sw
or

k 
ou

t 
of

 s
ch

ed
ul

in
g.

 C
as

ita
s 

of
fe

rs
 re

ba
te

s 
of

$2
50

 fo
r a

 
sm

ar
t i

rr
ig

at
io

n 
co

nt
ro

lle
r, 

pl
ea

se
 s

ee
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

n 
qu

al
ifi 

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

t w
w

w
.c

as
ita

sw
at

er
.

or
g. Le

ar
n 

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 w
at

er
-s

m
ar

t 
ya

rd
 b

y 
vi

si
tin

g 
th

e 
U

.S
. E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y’
s 

W
at

er
Se

ns
e 

w
eb

si
te

 a
t w

w
w

.e
pa

.g
ov

/
w

at
er

se
ns

e/
ou

td
oo

r.

P
ro

te
c

ti
n

g
 L

a
k

e
 C

a
si

ta
s 

D
o

n
’t

 M
o

ve
 a

 M
u

ss
e

l
Ca

si
ta

s 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t r

ec
en

tly
 a

d-
op

te
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 s
to

p 
de

va
st

at
in

g 
in

va
si

ve
 m

us
se

ls
 fr

om
 m

ov
in

g 
in

to
 L

ak
e 

Ca
si

ta
s 

in
 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

sp
re

ad
 o

f m
us

se
ls

 in
 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
la

ke
s.

 C
as

ita
s’

 in
va

si
ve

 q
ua

gg
a 

an
d 

ze
br

a 
m

us
se

l p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

 w
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 

as
 th

e 
m

os
t e

xt
en

si
ve

 a
nt

i-m
us

se
l p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
pr

o-
gr

am
 in

 th
e 

st
at

e 
be

fo
re

 th
es

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
er

e 
ad

-
op

te
d. Ca

si
ta

s’
 B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
4,

 e
x-

te
nd

ed
 th

e 
bo

at
 q

ua
ra

nt
in

e 
pe

rio
d 

fr
om

 3
0 

to
 3

5 
da

ys
 a

s 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
. W

he
n 

a 
bo

at
 o

w
ne

r c
om

es
 to

 L
ak

e 
Ca

si
ta

s 
th

ey
 m

us
t a

cc
ep

t 
an

 in
iti

al
 b

oa
t i

ns
pe

ct
io

n.
 T

he
y 

th
en

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 a

 
ta

m
pe

r p
ro

of
 ta

g 
pr

og
ra

m
 to

 a
ss

ur
e 

th
ei

r b
oa

ts
 a

re
 

no
t a

llo
w

ed
 to

 e
nt

er
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 w
at

er
 b

od
y 

du
rin

g 
a 

w
ai

tin
g 

pe
rio

d.
 In

 M
ay

, r
ec

re
at

io
n 

st
aff

  c
om

pl
et

ed
 

an
 in

te
ns

iv
e 

tw
o-

da
y 

w
at

er
cr

af
t i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
an

d 
de

-
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

. T
he

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 q
ua

lifi
 e

s 
st

aff
  

to
 b

e 
le

ve
l I

 in
sp

ec
to

rs
 a

nd
 d

ec
on

ta
m

in
at

or
s.

 It
  i

s 

m
ea

nt
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 o

f b
oa

ts
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
at

 ri
sk

 o
f h

ar
bo

rin
g 

in
va

si
ve

 m
us

se
ls

. 

In
va

si
ve

 m
us

se
ls

 c
an

 b
e 

sp
re

ad
 in

ad
ve

rt
en

tly
 

fr
om

 o
ne

 w
at

er
 b

od
y 

to
 a

no
th

er
 b

y 
bo

at
er

s 
an

d,
 

on
ce

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
, c

an
 ra

pi
dl

y 
de

va
st

at
e 

th
at

 w
at

er
 

bo
dy

 w
ith

 th
e 

fo
rm

at
io

n 
of

 m
as

si
ve

 c
ol

on
ie

s 
th

at
 

lit
te

r b
ea

ch
es

, c
lin

g 
to

 b
oa

ts
 a

nd
 d

oc
ks

, c
lo

g 
an

d 
da

m
ag

e 
w

at
er

 in
ta

ke
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t,
 a

nd
 e

ve
n 

ca
us

e 
a 

co
lla

ps
e 

in
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 s

po
rt

 fi 
sh

. T
he

 s
pr

ea
d 

of
 th

es
e 

in
va

si
ve

 m
us

se
ls

 h
as

 p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

fr
om

 th
ei

r 
fi r

st
 in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

to
 N

or
th

 A
m

er
ic

an
 w

at
er

s 
in

 th
e 

G
re

at
 L

ak
es

 in
 19

88
 a

ll 
th

e 
w

ay
 to

 th
ei

r r
ec

en
t d

is
-

co
ve

ry
 in

 L
ak

e 
Pi

ru
. 

Ca
si

ta
s 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

aff
  a

na
ly

ze
s 

w
at

er
 s

am
-

pl
es

 e
ac

h 
m

on
th

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
la

ke
 re

m
ai

ns
 fr

ee
 o

f 
in

va
si

ve
 m

us
se

ls
. F

or
 q

 ue
st

io
ns

, i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
a 

bo
at

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t,
 p

le
as

e 
ca

ll 
(8

05
)-6

49
-2

23
3.



1055 Ventura Ave.
Oak View

, CA 93022
805-649-2251

w
w

w
.casitasw

ater.org

Y
our B

oard in A
ction

B
ill H

icks,D
ivision I

Jam
es W

. W
ord,D

ivision II
P

ete K
aiser,D

ivision III
M

ary B
ergen,D

ivision IV
R

uss B
aggerly,D

ivision V

T
he 

C
asitas 

B
oard 

of
D

irectors is scheduled to m
eet

at 3:00 p.m
. in the board room

located in the m
ain office at

1055 V
entura A

ve., O
ak V

iew
,

on the 2
nd

and 4
th W

ednesday
of every m

onth.

W
in

te
r 

20
14

H
is

to
ri

c 
D

ro
ug

ht
 S

tr
ai

ns
 

Lo
ca

l W
at

er
 S

up
pl

ie
s

Join the C
asitas M

unicipal W
ater

D
istrict Facebook page to get the

latest updates on w
ater conserva-

tion and the Lake C
asitas Recreation A

rea at:
w

w
w

.facebook.com
/fbsitecasitasm

unicipalw
aterdistrict.

P
R

S
R

T S
TD

U
.S

. P
O

S
TA

G
E

P
A

ID
C

U
S

TO
M

 M
A

ILIN
G

S
O

LU
TIO

N
S

, IN
C

EC
RW

SS

PO
STAL C

USTO
M

ER

T
he

 C
as

it
as

 S
pe

ak
er

s 
B

ur
ea

u 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 fo
r 

cu
st

om
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 le

ar
n

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t w

at
er

 is
su

es
 in

 th
e 

W
es

te
rn

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

ar
ea

. P
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t R

on
 M

er
ck

lin
g,

 W
at

er
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 A

ffa
irs

 M
an

ag
er

, 8
05

-6
49

-2
25

1,
 e

xt
en

sio
n 

11
8,

 to
 in

vi
te

 a
 s

pe
ak

er
 to

 y
ou

r
ne

xt
 c

om
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
 o

r 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

na
l m

ee
tin

g.
 

Pl
ea

se
 v

isi
t t

he
 n

ew
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 W

at
er

 W
ise

 G
ar

de
ni

ng
 in

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
eb

sit
e 

at
 

w
w

w
.v

en
tu

ra
.w

at
er

sa
vi

ng
pl

an
ts

.c
om

.

T
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, V

en
tu

ra
C

ou
nt

y,
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
Ri

ve
r

W
at

er
sh

ed
, b

eg
in

 2
01

4 
in

 th
e 

gr
ip

of
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 d
rie

st
 r

ec
or

de
d 

ra
in

pe
rio

ds
 in

 h
ist

or
y.

 G
ov

er
no

r 
Je

rr
y

Br
ow

n 
de

cl
ar

ed
 a

 d
ro

ug
ht

 e
m

er
-

ge
nc

y 
on

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

17
, 2

01
4,

 c
al

lin
g

on
 e

ve
ry

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
n 

to
 r

ed
uc

e
th

ei
r 

w
at

er
 u

sa
ge

 b
y 

20
%

. T
he

la
ck

 o
f r

ai
n 

re
ce

nt
ly

 h
as

 le
ft 

La
ke

C
as

ita
s 

at
 le

ss
 th

an
 s

ix
ty

 p
er

ce
nt

ca
pa

ci
ty

, i
ts

 lo
w

es
t p

oi
nt

 in
 m

or
e

th
an

 tw
o 

de
ca

de
s.

 W
ith

ou
t a

ny
 s

ig
-

ni
fic

an
t a

dd
iti

on
al

 r
ai

nf
al

l t
hi

s 
ye

ar
,

it 
is 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 d

ec
lin

e 
to

 5
0 

pe
r-

ce
nt

 c
ap

ac
ity

, a
 c

rit
ic

al
 p

oi
nt

 a
t

w
hi

ch
 C

as
ita

s 
w

ill
 im

pl
em

en
t a

dd
i-

tio
na

l w
at

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s
an

d 
ac

tio
ns

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 le
ss

w
at

er
 u

se
. C

as
ita

s 
is 

pr
es

en
tly

 r
e-

vi
ew

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

sin
g 

th
es

e 
m

ea
s-

ur
es

, a
nd

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

-
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ne

ar
 fu

tu
re

.

A
s 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t d

ro
ug

ht
 c

on
tin

-
ue

s,
 th

er
e 

is 
gr

ea
te

r 
de

m
an

d 
on

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s’

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y.
 L

ak
e

C
as

ita
s 

w
as

 b
ui

lt 
in

 th
e 

19
50

s 
to

 b
e

a 
ba

ck
-u

p 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

to
 lo

ca
l

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s.
 M

an
y 

of
C

as
ita

s’
 r

es
al

e 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 a

gr
ic

ul
-

tu
ra

l c
us

to
m

er
s 

th
at

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
ly

us
e 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
ha

ve
st

ar
te

d 
to

 u
se

 m
or

e 
of

 C
as

ita
s’

w
at

er
 a

s 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

su
pp

lie
s 

ha
ve

 d
im

in
ish

ed
. “

W
he

n
th

e 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
Ri

ve
r 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

as
 b

ui
lt

by
 th

e 
Bu

re
au

 o
f R

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

in
19

59
, i

t w
as

 in
te

nd
ed

 th
at

 L
ak

e
C

as
ita

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
l

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
du

rin
g 

ex
te

nd
ed

dr
ou

gh
t c

on
di

tio
ns

, a
s 

lo
ca

l
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 s

ou
rc

es
 d

ep
le

te
d,

”
sa

id
 S

te
ve

 W
ic

ks
tr

um
, g

en
er

al
m

an
ag

er
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

as
ita

s 
M

un
ic

ip
al

W
at

er
 D

ist
ric

t. 

C
as

ita
s 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 c

on
st

itu
en

ts
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t t

o 
us

e 
th

ei
r

w
at

er
 w

ise
ly

 th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

ct
iv

e
w

at
er

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

th
at

of
fe

rs
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

, r
eb

at
es

 fo
r 

hi
gh

w
at

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 d
ev

ic
es

, a
nd

 fr
ee

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l, 

re
sid

en
tia

l, 
an

d 
bu

si-
ne

ss
 w

at
er

 s
ur

ve
ys

.

C
as

ita
s’

 d
is

tr
ic

t b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

en
-

co
m

pa
ss

 a
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 a
pp

ro
xi

-
m

at
el

y 
70

,0
00

 r
es

id
en

ts
, 5

,8
00

ac
re

s 
of

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

, a
nd

 a
 w

id
e

va
ri

et
y 

of
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 in

du
s-

tr
ia

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

th
at

 a
re

 s
er

ve
d 

by
m

or
e 

th
an

 e
ig

ht
 d

iff
er

en
t p

ub
lic

an
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

w
at

er
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

. T
he

ar
ea

 r
el

ie
s 

so
le

ly
 o

n 
lo

ca
l s

ur
fa

ce
w

at
er

 a
nd

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s.
U

nl
ik

e 
m

os
t o

f S
ou

th
er

n
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, t
he

re
 is

 n
o 

im
po

rt
at

io
n

of
 S

ta
te

 W
at

er
 in

to
 th

e 
di

st
ri

ct
’s

bo
un

da
ri

es
.

A
ny

on
e 

in
te

re
st

ed
 in

 fi
nd

in
g

ou
t m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t i
nc

en
-

tiv
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
is 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
to

 v
isi

t C
as

ita
s’

 w
eb

sit
e 

at
 

w
w

w
.c

as
ita

sw
at

er
.o

rg
 o

r 
to

 c
al

l
Ro

n 
M

er
ck

lin
g 

at
 8

05
-6

49
-2

25
1

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
11

8.

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

is 
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

t 6
0%

 o
f f

ul
l. 

Ab
ov

e 
is 

th
e 

Sa
nt

a 
An

a 
bo

at
 ra

m
p.

Fr
ee

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 C

la
ss

es
Pl

ea
se

 jo
in

 u
s 

fo
r 

on
e 

of
 o

ur
 fr

ee
 S

at
ur

da
y 

m
or

ni
ng

 c
la

ss
es

 to
 le

ar
n 

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 y

ou
 c

an
 s

av
e 

w
at

er
an

d 
m

on
ey

.

•
C

on
ve

rt
 Y

ou
r 

Tu
rf

 –
 fr

om
 9

 a
.m

. t
o 

no
on

 o
n 

Sa
tu

rd
ay

, F
eb

ru
ar

y 
22

, 2
01

4.
 T

hi
s 

w
or

ks
ho

p 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

n 
ho

w
 to

 r
em

ov
e 

tu
rf

 a
nd

 w
ha

t a
es

th
et

ic
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 y

ou
r 

la
w

n.

•
D

es
ig

n 
w

it
h 

N
at

iv
e 

G
ar

de
ns

 –
 fr

om
 9

 a
.m

. t
o 

no
on

 o
n 

Sa
tu

rd
ay

, M
ay

 1
7,

 2
01

4.
 T

hi
s 

w
or

ks
ho

p 
w

ill
ex

pl
or

e 
ho

w
 to

 d
es

ig
n 

be
au

tif
ul

 la
nd

sc
ap

es
 w

ith
 n

at
iv

e 
pl

an
ts

.

•
R

ai
nw

at
er

 C
ap

tu
re

/G
ra

yw
at

er
 W

or
ks

ho
p 

– 
fr

om
 9

:0
0 

a.
m

. t
o 

no
on

 o
n 

Sa
tu

rd
ay

, A
ug

us
t 1

6,
 2

01
4.

T
hi

s 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

is 
su

re
 to

 a
ns

w
er

 a
ll 

of
 y

ou
r 

qu
es

tio
ns

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 r

ai
nw

at
er

 a
nd

 g
ra

yw
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
s.

 Y
ou

w
ill

 le
ar

n 
ho

w
 to

 in
st

al
l y

ou
r 

ow
n 

sy
st

em
s 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 p
er

m
it 

st
an

da
rd

s 
in

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y.

Pl
ea

se
 R

SV
P 

ea
rly

 a
t r

m
er

ck
lin

g@
ca

sit
as

w
at

er
.c

om
 o

r 
80

5-
64

9-
22

51
 E

xt
en

sio
n 

11
8.

W
or

ks
ho

ps
 w

ill
 b

e 
he

ld
 a

t O
ak

 V
ie

w
 P

ar
k 

&
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
en

te
r 

(fo
rm

er
ly

 th
e 

O
ak

 V
ie

w
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
Sc

ho
ol

) l
oc

at
ed

 a
t 5

55
 M

ah
on

ey
 A

ve
nu

e.
 A

tt
en

de
es

 a
re

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d 

to
 p

ar
k 

in
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

ts
 in

st
ea

d 
of

th
e 

st
re

et
.



Pa
ge

 3
Pa

ge
 2Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
ea

su
re

s 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d
D

ue
 t

o 
Q

ua
gg

a 
M

us
se

l T
hr

ea
t

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
A

re
a 

re
sp

on
de

d 
to

 th
e

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

13
 d

isc
ov

er
y

of
 in

va
siv

e 
Q

ua
gg

a 
m

us
se

ls
at

 L
ak

e 
Pi

ru
 b

y 
im

pl
em

en
t-

in
g 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
ac

tio
ns

 to
in

cl
ud

e 
su

bj
ec

tin
g 

al
l n

ew
ve

ss
el

s 
w

ish
in

g 
to

 u
se

 L
ak

e
C

as
ita

s 
to

 a
 m

an
da

to
ry

 3
5

da
y 

qu
ar

an
tin

e 
pe

rio
d.

T
he

 C
as

ita
s 

M
un

ic
ip

al
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t B
oa

rd
 o

n
Ja

nu
ar

y 
22

, 2
01

4 
to

ok
 a

d-
di

tio
na

l a
ct

io
n 

by
 c

al
lin

g
on

 th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 N

at
ur

al
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

A
ge

nc
y 

to
 a

ct
on

 it
s 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 p

la
n 

fo
r

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

r 
er

ad
ic

at
io

n
of

 in
va

si
ve

 m
us

se
ls

 fr
om

 L
ak

e 
Pi

ru
. L

ak
e 

Pi
ru

 is
 th

e
fir

st
 la

ke
 in

 S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 to
 g

et
 in

va
si

ve
 m

us
-

se
ls

 fr
om

 a
 s

ou
rc

e,
 li

ke
ly

 r
ec

re
at

io
na

l b
oa

ts
, o

th
er

th
an

 th
e 

C
ol

or
ad

o 
Ri

ve
r 

aq
ue

du
ct

. I
t i

s 
fe

ar
ed

 th
at

an
y 

fu
rt

he
r 

sp
re

ad
 o

f i
nv

as
iv

e 
m

us
se

ls
 in

 V
en

tu
ra

C
ou

nt
y 

w
ill

 r
es

ul
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l a

nd
 e

co
-

no
m

ic
 im

pa
ct

s.

In
va

siv
e 

m
us

se
ls 

re
pr

o-
du

ce
 r

ap
id

ly
 a

nd
 a

tt
ac

h
th

em
se

lv
es

 to
 h

ar
d 

su
r-

fa
ce

s.
 T

hi
s 

cr
ea

te
s 

m
ai

nt
e-

na
nc

e 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
ke

ep
in

g 
w

at
er

 in
ta

ke
 s

tr
uc

-
tu

re
s 

op
er

at
io

na
l. 

In
va

siv
e

m
us

se
ls 

ca
us

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l

da
m

ag
e 

to
 fi

sh
er

ie
s,

 w
at

er
-

sh
ed

, a
nd

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
be

-
ca

us
e 

th
ey

 a
re

 fi
lte

r 
fe

ed
er

s
th

at
 fi

lte
r 

ou
t f

oo
d 

su
pp

ly
fo

r 
m

os
t f

ish
 in

 a
 w

at
er

bo
dy

 a
nd

 a
llo

w
 fo

r 
m

or
e

fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

di
s-

ru
pt

iv
e 

al
ga

l b
lo

om
s.

 T
he

on
ly

 k
no

w
n 

er
ad

ic
at

io
n

m
et

ho
ds

 in
cl

ud
e 

dr
yi

ng
 o

ut
a 

la
ke

 o
r 

in
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f a
sm

al
le

r 
w

at
er

 b
od

y 
w

ith
 c

he
m

ic
al

 tr
ea

tm
en

t, 
op

tio
ns

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t a
t L

ak
e 

C
as

ita
s.

A
ny

on
e 

in
te

re
st

ed
 in

 h
av

in
g 

th
ei

r 
bo

at
 in

sp
ec

te
d 

at
La

ke
 C

as
ita

s,
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
35

 d
ay

 q
ua

ra
nt

in
e

pe
rio

d 
be

gi
ns

, i
s 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 m
ak

e 
an

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

t
w

ith
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

ga
te

 a
t 8

05
-6

49
-2

23
3 

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
10

3.

Li
fe

gu
ar

ds
 N

ee
de

d! T
he

 L
ak

e 
C

as
ita

s
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

A
re

a 
is 

no
w

ac
ce

pt
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

nl
in

e 
fo

r
pa

rt
-t

im
e 

lif
eg

ua
rd

s 
th

is 
su

m
m

er
 to

 w
or

k 
at

 th
e

C
as

ita
s 

W
at

er
 A

dv
en

tu
re

. A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 c
an

 b
e

do
w

nl
oa

de
d 

at
 w

w
w

.c
as

ita
sw

at
er

.o
rg

 u
nd

er
 th

e
em

pl
oy

m
en

t t
ab

. A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ai

le
d 

or
tu

rn
ed

 in
 b

y 
ha

nd
 to

 th
e 

fr
on

t e
nt

ra
nc

e 
of

 th
e

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
A

re
a 

at
 1

13
11

 S
an

ta
 A

na
Ro

ad
, V

en
tu

ra
, C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 9
30

10
, f

ro
m

 n
ow

 u
nt

il
th

e 
en

d 
of

 M
ay

.

Ca
si

ta
s 

to
 O

ff
er

 F
re

e
Ag

ri
cu

lt
ur

al
 I

rr
ig

at
io

n
Ev

al
ua

ti
on

s 
an

d 
Re

ba
te

Pr
og

ra
m

s

C
as

ita
s 

ai
m

s 
to

 fu
rt

he
r 

in
cr

ea
se

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l w
at

er
us

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

by
 o

ffe
rin

g 
a 

co
up

le
 o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ro
-

gr
am

s 
to

 a
ss

ist
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l g

ro
w

er
s.

 

O
ne

 p
ro

gr
am

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
re

ba
te

s 
to

 C
as

ita
s’

 a
gr

ic
ul

-
tu

ra
l c

us
to

m
er

s 
up

 to
 $

65
0 

pe
r 

cu
st

om
er

 o
n 

eq
ui

p-
m

en
t t

ha
t w

ill
 a

ss
ist

 th
em

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r 

irr
ig

at
io

n
ef

fic
ie

nc
y.

 A
ll 

el
ig

ib
le

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

w
ill

 fi
rs

t r
ec

ei
ve

 a
n 

ir-
rig

at
io

n 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

by
 th

e 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Re

so
ur

ce
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

D
ist

ric
t, 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
ffe

re
d 

at
no

 c
os

t. 

T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

pr
og

ra
m

 w
ill

 fu
nd

 fr
ee

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
ev

al
u-

at
io

ns
 o

n 
ho

bb
y 

fa
rm

s 
w

ith
 le

ss
 th

an
 tw

o 
ac

re
s 

of
pl

an
te

d 
cr

op
s,

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 r
eb

at
es

 fo
r 

w
at

er
 u

se
 e

ffi
-

ci
en

cy
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t u
p 

to
 $

12
5 

pe
r 

cu
st

om
er

. 

Fu
nd

s 
fo

r 
th

es
e 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
ar

e 
lim

ite
d.

 Ir
rig

at
io

n
ev

al
ua

tio
ns

 a
nd

 r
eb

at
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
n 

a 
fir

st
co

m
e 

fir
st

 s
er

ve
d 

ba
sis

. F
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

ho
w

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e,
 a

nd
 o

n 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
pr

og
ra

m
 te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
ar

e 
ur

ge
d

to
 c

on
ta

ct
 R

on
 M

er
ck

lin
g 

at
 r

m
er

ck
lin

g@
ca

sit
as

w
a-

te
r.c

om
 o

r 
80

5-
64

9-
22

51
 E

xt
en

sio
n 

11
8 

or
 to

 V
en

tu
ra

Re
so

ur
ce

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
D

ist
ric

t d
ire

ct
ly

 a
t

in
fo

@
vc

rc
d.

or
g 

or
 8

05
-7

64
-5

13
0.

W
at

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
t a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l i

rr
ig

at
io

n 
lin

es
.

Ph
ot

o 
co

ur
te

sy
 o

f H
un

te
r I

nd
us

tr
ie

s.

H
ow

 C
an

 I
 R

ed
uc

e 
M

y
W

at
er

 U
se

 b
y 

20
%

?
•

St
op

 o
ve

r 
w

at
er

in
g 

pl
an

ts
, w

hi
ch

 c
au

se
s 

th
em

 to
ha

ve
 s

ha
llo

w
 r

oo
ts

, a
nd

 tr
ai

ns
 th

em
 to

 w
an

t m
or

e
w

at
er

. P
la

nt
s 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

or
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
re

qu
ire

s 
th

ey
 r

ec
ei

ve
 le

ss
 w

at
er

in
g 

da
ys

 b
ut

de
ep

er
 s

oa
ks

 s
o 

ro
ot

s 
gr

ow
 fu

rt
he

r 
do

w
n 

in
to

 th
e

so
il.

 

•
If 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
 s

tr
ug

gl
in

g 
tr

op
ic

al
 p

la
nt

, c
on

sid
er

 
re

pl
ac

in
g 

it 
w

ith
 a

 d
ro

ug
ht

 to
le

ra
nt

 p
la

nt
 th

at
 w

ill
th

riv
e 

in
 it

s 
pl

ac
e.

 O
r 

ev
en

 b
et

te
r, 

pl
an

t a
 n

at
iv

e
pl

an
t t

ha
t w

ill
 b

en
ef

it 
lo

ca
l b

ut
te

rf
lie

s,
 b

ird
s,

 a
nd

be
es

.

•
Re

du
ce

 o
r 

el
im

in
at

e 
la

w
n 

ar
ea

s.

•
M

ul
ch

 y
ou

r 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

to
 h

el
p 

in
cr

ea
se

 w
at

er
 r

e-
te

nt
io

n 
in

 y
ou

r 
so

il.
 M

ul
ch

 is
 a

ny
 s

ub
st

an
ce

 th
at

pr
ov

id
es

 c
ov

er
 o

ve
r 

yo
ur

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
su

ch
 a

s 
w

oo
d

ch
ip

s 
or

 r
oc

ks
.

•
Ir

rig
at

e 
yo

ur
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

du
rin

g 
ea

rly
 m

or
ni

ng
 h

ou
rs

be
fo

re
 w

in
d 

an
d 

su
nl

ig
ht

 c
an

 e
va

po
ra

te
 m

os
t o

f
yo

ur
 ir

rig
at

io
n 

w
at

er
.

•
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

yo
ur

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

 b
y 

ch
ec

ki
ng

 it
 o

nc
e

a 
m

on
th

! A
ll 

irr
ig

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
ne

ed
 r

eg
ul

ar
 m

ai
n-

te
na

nc
e 

to
 r

em
ai

n 
ef

fic
ie

nt
. D

rip
 s

ys
te

m
s 

re
qu

ire
co

ns
ta

nt
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 to

 r
ep

ai
r 

lin
es

 c
he

w
ed

 b
y

cr
itt

er
s,

 e
m

itt
er

s 
cl

og
ge

d 
by

 h
ar

d 
w

at
er

, a
nd

 e
m

it-
te

rs
 b

lo
w

n 
of

f b
y 

hi
gh

 w
at

er
 p

re
ss

ur
e.

 E
ve

n 
bu

b-
bl

er
s 

an
d 

sp
ra

y 
va

lv
es

 c
an

 b
e 

da
m

ag
ed

 b
y 

la
w

n
m

ow
er

s 
an

d 
tr

im
m

er
s,

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
ca

rs
, a

nd
 

su
nl

ig
ht

. 

•
In

st
al

l h
ig

h 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

to
ile

ts
, w

as
hi

ng
 m

ac
hi

ne
s,

sh
ow

er
he

ad
s,

 a
nd

 fa
uc

et
 a

er
at

or
s.

•
O

pe
ra

te
 c

lo
th

es
 w

as
he

rs
 a

nd
 d

ish
w

as
he

rs
 w

ith
 fu

ll
lo

ad
s.

•
D

o 
no

t l
et

 fa
uc

et
s 

ru
n 

w
hi

le
 b

ru
sh

in
g 

te
et

h 
an

d
sh

av
in

g.

•
C

al
l C

as
ita

s 
at

 8
05

-6
49

-2
25

1 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

11
8 

to
sc

he
du

le
 a

 fr
ee

 h
om

e 
w

at
er

 s
av

in
g 

su
rv

ey
.

Vi
sit

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

eb
sit

es
 to

 fi
nd

 o
ut

 m
or

e 
in

fo
r-

m
at

io
n:

 C
as

ita
sw

at
er

.o
rg

 o
r 

Ve
nt

ur
a.

w
at

er
sa

vi
ng

-
pl

an
ts

.c
om

Q
ua

gg
a 

sig
n 

po
st

 a
t L

ak
e 

Ca
sit

as
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 

en
tr

an
ce

 g
at

e.



1055 Ventura Ave.
Oak View

, CA 93022
805-649-2251

w
w

w
.casitasw

ater.org

Y
our B

oard in A
ction

B
ill H

icks,D
ivision I

Jam
es W

. W
ord,D

ivision II
P

ete K
aiser,D

ivision III
M

ary B
ergen,D

ivision IV
R

uss B
aggerly,D

ivision V

T
he 

C
asitas 

B
oard 

of
D

irectors is scheduled to m
eet

at 3:00 p.m
. in the board room

located in the m
ain office at

1055 V
entura A

ve., O
ak V

iew
,

on the 2
nd

and 4
th W

ednesday
of every m

onth.

Su
m

m
er

 2
01

3

Ca
si

ta
s 

Go
es

 to
 G

re
at

 D
ep

th
s 

to
 M

ai
nt

ai
n 

Ca
si

ta
s 

D
am

Join the C
asitas M

unicipal W
ater

D
istrict Facebook page to get the

latest updates on w
ater conserva-

tion and the Lake C
asitas Recreation A

rea at:
w

w
w

.facebook.com
/fbsitecasitasm

unicipalw
aterdistrict.

P
R

S
R

T S
TD

U
.S

. P
O

S
TA

G
P

A
ID

C
U

S
TO

M
 M

A
ILIN

G
S

O
LU

TIO
N

S
, IN

C

EC
RW

SS

PO
STAL C

USTO
M

ER

La
ke

 C
as

it
as

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

An
no

un
ce

m
en

ts
C

as
ita

s 
W

at
er

 A
dv

en
tu

re
 w

ill
 b

e 
op

en
 e

ve
ry

da
y 

fr
om

 Ju
ne

 1
5 

to
 A

ug
us

t 2
5.

 H
ou

rs
 o

f o
pe

ra
-

tio
n 

ar
e 

11
 a

m
 to

 6
 p

m
 S

un
da

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
T

hu
rs

da
y

an
d 

11
 a

m
 to

 7
 p

m
 o

n 
Fr

id
ay

 a
nd

 S
at

ur
da

y.

T
he

 C
as

it
as

 S
pe

ak
er

s 
B

ur
ea

u 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 fo
r 

cu
st

om
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 le

ar
n

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t w

at
er

 is
su

es
 in

 th
e 

W
es

te
rn

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

ar
ea

. P
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t R

on
 M

er
ck

lin
g,

 W
at

er
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 A

ffa
irs

 M
an

ag
er

, 8
05

-6
49

-2
25

1,
 e

xt
en

sio
n 

11
8,

 to
 in

vi
te

 a
 s

pe
ak

er
 to

 y
ou

r
ne

xt
 c

om
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
 o

r 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

na
l m

ee
tin

g.
 

Pl
ea

se
 v

isi
t t

he
 n

ew
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 W

at
er

 W
ise

 G
ar

de
ni

ng
 in

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
eb

sit
e 

at
 

w
w

w
.v

en
tu

ra
.w

at
er

sa
vi

ng
pl

an
ts

.c
om

.

Bu
rie

d 
un

de
r 

a 
fe

w
 fe

et
 o

f f
in

e 
se

di
-

m
en

t a
t a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
19

1 
fe

et
 u

nd
er

-
w

at
er

 a
t t

he
 C

as
ita

s 
D

am
 is

 a
n

ab
an

do
ne

d 
in

le
t. 

It 
w

as
 o

rig
in

al
ly

 in
st

al
le

d
in

 1
95

9 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

 m
er

cu
ry

 s
en

sin
g 

lin
e

us
ed

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 h

ow
 fu

ll 
th

e 
la

ke
 w

as
 a

t
an

y 
gi

ve
n 

tim
e.

 T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

rin
g 

sy
st

em
w

as
 r

ep
la

ce
d 

by
 a

n 
el

ec
tr

ic
al

/m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l

bu
bb

le
r 

sy
st

em
 in

 th
e 

m
id

-1
98

0s
. T

he
ol

d 
sy

st
em

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
m

er
cu

ry
 h

as
sin

ce
 b

ee
n 

re
m

ov
ed

. I
ns

id
e 

th
e 

in
ta

ke
tu

nn
el

 a
t t

he
 b

ot
to

m
 o

f t
he

 la
ke

, w
he

re
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 s

en
so

r 
en

te
re

d 
fr

om
 th

e
ou

ts
id

e,
 a

 s
m

al
l l

ea
k 

st
ar

te
d 

th
at

 p
os

ed
 a

ris
k 

fo
r 

a 
gr

ea
te

r 
le

ak
 to

 fo
rm

 th
at

 c
ou

ld

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 fl

oo
d 

th
e 

in
ta

ke
 tu

nn
el

 o
f

th
e 

da
m

 if
 it

 fu
rt

he
r 

de
te

rio
ra

te
d.

 

C
as

ita
s’

 s
ta

ff 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 th
e 

be
st

w
ay

 to
 r

ep
ai

r 
th

e 
le

ak
 w

as
 to

 h
av

e 
a

di
ve

r 
pl

ug
 th

e 
in

le
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

ou
ts

id
e,

 a
t

th
e 

bo
tt

om
 o

f t
he

 la
ke

. C
as

ita
s 

w
en

t
ou

t t
o 

bi
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

w
or

k 
an

d 
H

ar
bo

r
O

ffs
ho

re
's 

qu
ot

e 
fo

r 
$8

3,
98

9 
w

as
 th

e
lo

w
es

t o
f t

hr
ee

 b
id

s.
 S

in
ce

 th
e 

di
ve

w
as

 b
el

ow
 1

85
 fe

et
, f

ed
er

al
 r

eg
ul

a-
tio

ns
 r

eq
ui

re
 d

iv
er

s 
to

 u
se

 a
 m

ix
ed

 g
as

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 a

 d
ec

om
pr

es
sio

n 
ch

am
be

r.
T

he
 le

ak
 w

as
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 c

ap
pe

d 
on

M
ay

 2
0.

Fr
ee

 G
ra

yw
at

er
 W

or
ks

ho
p

Sa
tu

rd
ay

, 
Ju

ly
 2

7,
 2

01
3 

fr
om

 9
:0

0 
a.

m
. 

to
 n

oo
n 

Pl
ea

se
 jo

in
 u

s 
fo

r 
ou

r 
fr

ee
 S

at
ur

da
y 

m
or

ni
ng

 c
la

ss
 to

 le
ar

n 
th

e 
in

s-
an

d-
ou

ts
 o

f i
ns

ta
lli

ng
 a

 g
ra

yw
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
 a

t y
ou

r 
ho

m
e.

Ba
ck

 b
y 

po
pu

la
r 

de
m

an
d,

 th
is 

w
or

ks
ho

p 
is 

su
re

 to
 a

ns
w

er
 a

ll 
of

 y
ou

r
qu

es
tio

ns
 r

el
at

ed
 to

 g
ra

yw
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
s.

 L
ea

rn
 h

ow
 to

 in
st

al
l y

ou
r 

ow
n

sy
st

em
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 p

er
m

it 
st

an
da

rd
s 

in
 V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y.

A
tt

en
da

nc
e 

is 
lim

ite
d 

to
 fo

rt
y 

pe
rs

on
s 

pe
r 

cl
as

s 
so

 p
le

as
e 

RS
VP

 e
ar

ly
at

 r
m

er
ck

lin
g@

ca
sit

as
w

at
er

.c
om

 o
r 

80
5 

64
9-

22
51

 E
xt

en
sio

n 
11

8.
 A

ll
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 w
ill

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 th

e 
bo

ar
dr

oo
m

 a
t C

as
ita

s 
m

ai
n 

of
fic

es
 lo

ca
te

d
at

 1
05

5 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
A

ve
nu

e 
in

 O
ak

 V
ie

w
.

Ve
nt

ur
a 

Co
un

ty
’s

 g
ra

yw
at

er
 m

od
el

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 a

t t
he

 la
st

 c
la

ss
.

G
re

g 
G

ut
sh

al
l, 

di
ve

r w
ith

H
ar

bo
r O

ffs
ho

re
, I

nc
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

to
 d

ive
.

As
tr

on
om

y 
N

ig
ht

s 
at

 L
ak

e 
Ca

si
ta

s
Fa

r, 
fa

r 
aw

ay
 fr

om
ci

ty
 li

gh
ts

, L
ak

e 
C

as
ita

s
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

A
re

a 
is

pe
rf

ec
t f

or
 s

ta
rg

az
in

g
w

ith
 N

A
SA

 a
cc

re
di

te
d

as
tr

on
om

er
 E

rn
es

t
U

nd
er

ha
y.

 P
ee

k
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
su

pe
r 

bi
g 

te
le

sc
op

e 
an

d/
or

 b
rin

g 
yo

ur
ow

n 
bi

no
cu

la
rs

 o
r 

te
le

sc
op

e.
 T

he
 e

ve
nt

 is
 fr

ee
, p

ar
k

en
tr

an
ce

 fe
es

 a
pp

ly.
 B

rin
g 

bl
an

ke
ts

 a
nd

 c
ha

irs
. F

or
m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pl
ea

se
 c

al
l 8

05
-6

49
-2

23
3 

X
 1

03
.

An
ot

he
r 

dr
y 

w
in

te
r 

m
ea

ns
 t

ha
t 

w
e 

m
us

t 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
us

e 
ou

r 
w

at
er

 w
is

el
y.

A
ll 

su
m

m
er

 s
ho

w
s 

ar
e 

8:
30

 P
M

 - 
9:

30
 P

M
 

M
ee

t a
t P

ic
ni

c 
#

1 
(b

y 
Sa

nt
a 

A
na

 L
au

nc
h 

Ra
m

p)
.

Sa
tu

rd
ay

, J
un

e 
29

Sa
tu

rd
ay

, J
ul

y 
27

Sa
tu

rd
ay

, A
ug

us
t 

10
 a

nd
 3

1
Sa

tu
rd

ay
, S

ep
te

m
be

r 
14

C
M

W
D

 N
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
3
_
L
a
y
o
u
t 
1
  
5
/2

9
/2

0
1
3
  
9
:0

6
 A

M
  
P

a
g
e
 1



Pa
ge

 7
Pa

ge
 2

W
hy

 D
id

 C
as

it
as

 R
es

po
nd

 t
o 

Go
ld

en
 S

ta
te

W
at

er
 C

us
to

m
er

s 
Re

qu
es

t 
to

 J
oi

n 
Ca

si
ta

s?
In

 Ju
ne

 2
01

1,
 a

 g
ra

ss
ro

ot
s 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n 

na
m

ed
 O

ja
i

Fr
ie

nd
s 

of
 L

oc
al

ly
 O

w
ne

d 
W

at
er

 (O
ja

i F
LO

W
) a

p-
pr

oa
ch

ed
 C

as
ita

s 
w

ith
 p

et
iti

on
s 

sig
ne

d 
by

 a
pp

ro
xi

-
m

at
el

y 
1,

90
0 

O
ja

i c
us

to
m

er
s 

of
 G

ol
de

n 
St

at
e 

th
at

re
qu

es
te

d 
C

as
ita

s 
co

ns
id

er
 a

cq
ui

rin
g 

G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e’
s

O
ja

i s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a.
 T

he
 p

et
iti

on
s 

w
er

e 
ba

se
d 

pr
im

ar
ily

on
 th

e 
fa

ct
 G

ol
de

n 
St

at
e’

s 
cu

st
om

er
s 

pa
y 

fa
r 

hi
gh

er
w

at
er

 r
at

es
 th

an
 th

e 
pr

ev
ai

lin
g 

ra
te

s 
in

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e’
s 

cu
st

om
er

s 
ha

ve
 e

nd
ur

ed
ra

te
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

of
 o

ve
r 

75
%

 s
in

ce
 2

00
8,

 a
nd

 G
ol

de
n

St
at

e’
s 

w
at

er
 r

at
es

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 c

lim
b 

ra
pi

dl
y.

C
us

to
m

er
s 

of
 G

ol
de

n 
St

at
e 

W
at

er
 in

 O
ja

i a
re

 c
on

-
st

itu
en

ts
 o

f C
as

ita
s,

 w
hi

ch
 m

ea
ns

 th
ey

 p
ay

 p
ro

pe
rt

y
ta

xe
s 

to
 C

as
ita

s 
an

d 
vo

te
 fo

r 
a 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
to

 s
er

ve
on

 C
as

ita
s’

 B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s.
 G

ol
de

n 
St

at
es

’ O
ja

i
sy

st
em

 a
lso

 r
el

ie
s 

on
 C

as
ita

s’
 w

at
er

 a
s 

a 
ba

ck
up

 w
at

er
su

pp
ly

 w
he

n 
dr

ou
gh

t c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

cc
ur

.

C
as

ita
s 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 O

ja
i F

LO
W

 p
et

i-
tio

ns
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
st

ud
ie

s 
an

d 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 th
e 

pr
o-

po
se

d 
ac

qu
isi

tio
n 

is 
fe

as
ib

le
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 s
av

e 
G

ol
de

n
St

at
e’

s 
cu

st
om

er
s 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l c

os
ts

.  
O

n 
M

ar
ch

 1
3,

20
13

, t
he

 C
as

ita
s 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
he

ld
 a

 w
el

l-a
t-

te
nd

ed
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

rin
g 

to
 c

on
sid

er
 fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 a

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ist

ric
t (

C
FD

) a
nd

 th
e 

im
po

si
-

tio
n 

of
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

 ta
x 

on
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
in

 G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e’
s

O
ja

i s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a 
to

 fi
na

nc
e 

th
e 

ac
qu

isi
tio

n.
 T

he
 m

ai
n

ob
je

ct
ive

 o
f t

he
 C

FD
 is

 to
 p

ro
vid

e 
a 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 th

at
 a

l-
lo

w
s 

G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e 
w

at
er

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

to
 p

ay
 fo

r t
he

 w
at

er
sy

st
em

 in
 O

ja
i w

ith
ou

t b
ur

de
ni

ng
 C

as
ita

s’
 e

xi
st

in
g 

cu
s-

to
m

er
s 

th
at

 li
ve

 o
ut

sid
e 

of
 th

at
 s

er
vic

e 
ar

ea
.T

he
 O

ja
i

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

ve
rw

he
lm

in
gl

y 
su

pp
or

te
d 

C
as

ita
s 

m
ov

in
g

fo
rw

ar
d.

  A
t t

he
 c

lo
se

 o
f t

he
 h

ea
rin

g,
 th

e 
C

as
ita

s
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

vo
te

d 
un

an
im

ou
sly

 to
 fo

rm
 th

e
C

FD
 a

nd
 s

et
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

 e
le

ct
io

n 
da

te
 fo

r 
A

ug
us

t 2
7,

20
13

, a
t w

hi
ch

 ti
m

e 
al

l r
eg

ist
er

ed
 v

ot
er

s 
in

 G
ol

de
n

St
at

e’
s 

O
ja

i s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a 
ca

n 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

fin
al

 d
ec

isi
on

 o
n

w
he

th
er

 to
 p

ro
ce

ed
 o

r 
no

t. 
 C

as
ita

s 
w

ill
 o

nl
y 

be
 a

u-
th

or
iz

ed
 to

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
if 

tw
o -

th
ird

s
or

 m
or

e 
of

 th
e 

vo
te

rs
 v

ot
e 

in
 fa

vo
r.

If 
th

e 
el

ec
tio

n 
is 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
, C

as
ita

s 
w

ill
 p

ro
ce

ed
w

ith
 m

ak
in

g 
an

 o
ffe

r 
to

 G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
of

 th
ei

r 
O

ja
i s

ys
te

m
. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

is 
pr

op
os

al
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
on

 th
e 

ho
m

ep
ag

e 
of

 C
as

ita
s 

w
eb

sit
e 

at
w

w
w

.c
as

ita
sw

at
er

.o
rg

.

W
ha

t 
Ar

e 
th

e 
Fa

ct
s 

Ab
ou

t 
Go

ld
en

 S
ta

te
 W

at
er

’s
 L

aw
su

it
?

G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e 
W

at
er

C
om

pa
ny

 s
er

ve
d 

C
as

ita
s

M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
ist

ric
t w

ith
 a

la
w

su
it 

th
at

 s
ee

ks
 to

 s
to

p 
th

e 
ci

t-
iz

en
s 

of
 O

ja
i f

ro
m

 v
ot

in
g 

on
w

he
th

er
 to

 a
pp

ro
ve

 C
as

ita
s’

pr
op

os
ed

 a
cq

ui
sit

io
n 

of
 G

ol
de

n
St

at
e’

s 
O

ja
i w

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a.
G

ol
de

n 
St

at
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

cl
ai

m
s 

it 
is

ill
eg

al
 fo

r 
C

as
ita

s 
to

 u
se

 a
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
D

ist
ric

t
(C

FD
) t

o 
fin

an
ce

 a
cq

ui
sit

io
n 

of
G

ol
de

n 
St

at
e’

s 
pr

op
er

ty
. T

he
 la

w
su

it 
w

as
 fi

le
d 

in
Ve

nt
ur

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Su

pe
rio

r 
C

ou
rt

 o
n 

M
ar

ch
 2

9,
 2

01
3.

T
he

 h
ea

rin
g 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

is 
la

w
su

it 
w

ill
 o

cc
ur

 o
n 

Ju
ne

10
, 2

01
3 

af
te

r 
th

is 
iss

ue
 h

as
 g

on
e 

to
 p

rin
t. 

It 
co

ul
d 

de
-

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t t

he
el

ec
tio

n 
se

t f
or

 A
ug

us
t 2

7,
 2

01
3

w
ill

 o
cc

ur
 o

r 
be

 d
el

ay
ed

.
U

pd
at

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
C

as
ita

s’
 w

eb
sit

e 
at

 w
w

w
.c

a-
sit

as
w

at
er

.o
rg

.

“W
e 

ha
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 G

ol
de

n
St

at
e’

s 
la

w
su

it 
an

d 
be

lie
ve

 it
 h

as
no

 m
er

it 
w

ha
ts

oe
ve

r,”
 C

as
ita

s
G

en
er

al
 C

ou
ns

el
 Jo

hn
 M

at
he

w
s

st
at

ed
.  

“C
as

ita
s 

in
te

nd
s 

to
 v

ig
-

or
ou

sly
 d

ef
en

d 
its

 r
ig

ht
 to

 u
se

 th
e 

w
el

l-e
st

ab
lis

he
d

C
FD

 la
w

 to
 a

cq
ui

re
 G

ol
de

n 
St

at
e’

s 
O

ja
i w

at
er

 u
til

ity
 if

th
at

 is
 w

ha
t t

he
 c

iti
ze

ns
 o

f O
ja

i w
ish

 u
s 

to
 d

o,
”

M
at

he
w

s 
ad

de
d.

Ea
gl

es
 N

es
ti

ng
 a

t 
La

ke
 C

as
it

as
A

 p
ai

r 
of

 y
ou

ng
 B

al
d

Ea
gl

es
 h

at
ch

ed
 tw

o 
ch

ic
ks

in
 a

 n
es

t n
ea

r 
La

ke
 C

as
ita

s
ar

ou
nd

 A
pr

il 
6,

 2
01

3.
 T

he
la

st
 r

ec
or

de
d 

ne
st

in
g 

of
Ba

ld
 E

ag
le

s 
on

 V
en

tu
ra

C
ou

nt
y’

s 
m

ai
nl

an
d 

w
as

 in
19

22
. T

he
 y

ou
ng

 a
du

lt
pa

ir 
w

as
 s

po
tt

ed
 o

ve
r 

th
e

la
st

 th
re

e 
to

 fo
ur

 y
ea

rs
 a

t
th

e 
la

ke
, b

ut
 th

is 
is 

th
e

fir
st

 y
ea

r 
th

ey
 w

er
e 

su
c-

ce
ss

fu
l i

n 
ha

tc
hi

ng
 c

hi
ck

s.

If 
yo

u 
pl

an
 to

 v
isi

t t
he

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
A

re
a 

to
 s

ee
 th

e 
ea

gl
e 

ne
st

 it
 is

VE
RY

 im
po

rt
an

t n
ot

 to
 d

ist
ur

b 
th

e 
yo

un
g 

ea
gl

e 
pa

r-
en

ts
. T

he
 n

es
tin

g 
ar

ea
 is

 c
lo

se
d 

to
 v

eh
ic

le
, b

ic
yc

le
, a

nd
fo

ot
 tr

af
fic

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

ea
gl

es
, w

hi
ch

is 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 a
 e

uc
al

yp
tu

s 
tr

ee
 n

ea
r 

Te
ac

up
 #

1,
 w

ith
in

th
e 

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
A

re
a.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 tw

o 
ex

-
ce

lle
nt

 v
ie

w
in

g 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 lo

ca
te

d 
fa

r 
en

ou
gh

 a
w

ay
 to

av
oi

d 
di

st
ur

bi
ng

 th
e 

bi
rd

s.
O

ne
 is

 o
ut

sid
e 

th
e 

fe
nc

e,
to

 th
e 

ea
st

 o
f t

he
 R

V 
st

or
-

ag
e 

ar
ea

. I
ns

id
e 

th
e 

re
cr

e-
at

io
n 

ar
ea

, t
he

 b
es

t s
po

t
is 

at
 T

ea
cu

p 
#

2,
 a

 p
ic

ni
c

ta
bl

e 
ar

ea
. T

he
re

 w
ill

lik
el

y 
be

 o
th

er
s 

th
er

e
w

ith
 s

po
tt

in
g 

sc
op

es
 to

sh
ow

 y
ou

 w
he

re
 th

e
ne

st
in

g 
is 

oc
cu

rr
in

g.
 It

 is
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 y
ou

br
in

g 
a 

go
od

 p
ai

r 
of

bi
no

cu
la

rs
 o

r 
a 

te
le

sc
op

e.

A
lth

ou
gh

 B
al

d 
Ea

gl
es

 w
er

e 
de

lis
te

d 
as

 fe
de

ra
lly

 e
n-

da
ng

er
ed

 s
pe

ci
es

 in
 2

00
7,

 n
es

tin
g 

an
d 

w
in

te
rin

g 
Ba

ld
Ea

gl
es

 r
em

ai
n 

lis
te

d 
as

 e
nd

an
ge

re
d 

by
 th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
ish

 &
 W

ild
lif

e.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

al
so

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
un

de
r 

bo
th

 th
e 

fe
de

ra
l B

al
d 

an
d 

G
ol

de
n 

Ea
gl

e
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

A
ct

 a
nd

 th
e 

fe
de

ra
l M

ig
ra

to
ry

 B
ird

 A
ct

 o
f

19
18

.

N
es

t w
ith

 a
du

lt 
ea

gl
e 

ne
ar

 L
ak

e 
Ca

sit
as

.

Fe
ds

 H
el

p 
Fu

nd
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
T

he
 U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

 B
ur

ea
u 

of
Re

cl
am

at
io

n 
an

d 
C

as
ita

s 
en

te
re

d
in

to
 a

 c
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
ag

re
e-

m
en

t a
lm

os
t t

w
o 

ye
ar

s 
ag

o.
 T

hi
s

ag
re

em
en

t h
as

 a
llo

w
ed

 fe
de

ra
l

m
at

ch
in

g 
gr

an
ts

 to
 d

at
e 

to
ta

lin
g

$5
36

,7
48

 fo
r 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
th

e 
La

ke
 C

as
ita

s 
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

A
re

a.
T

hi
s 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
un

di
ng

 h
as

 a
llo

w
ed

fo
r 

so
m

e 
lo

ng
 o

ve
rd

ue
 im

pr
ov

e-
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
La

ke
 C

as
ita

s
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

A
re

a 
to

 c
am

pg
ro

un
ds

,
ro

ad
s,

 a
nd

 C
as

ita
s 

W
at

er
A

dv
en

tu
re

. 

“W
e 

ha
ve

 tw
o 

ve
ry

 e
xc

iti
ng

 im
-

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

n 
ta

p 
to

 b
eg

in
 a

fte
r

th
e 

bu
sy

 s
um

m
er

 s
ea

so
n.

 T
he

y 
in

-
cl

ud
e 

a 
ne

w
 r

ed
es

ig
ne

d 
fr

on
t e

n-
tr

an
ce

 a
nd

 a
 n

ew
 r

oo
f s

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
t

Pi
cn

ic
 8

, a
lso

 k
no

w
n 

as
 T

ea
po

t,”
 s

ai
d

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
M

an
ag

er
, C

ar
ol

 B
el

se
r.

T
he

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
of

 th
e 

fr
on

t g
at

e 
pr

oj
-

ec
t i

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

la
ke

 s
ec

ur
ity

, i
n-

cr
ea

se
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l v

eh
ic

le
 h

ei
gh

t
ca

pa
ci

ty
 a

nd
 to

 a
ss

ist
 w

ith
 b

oa
tin

g
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 in

va
siv

e
sp

ec
ie

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
Q

ua
gg

a 
m

us
se

ls.
 It

 is
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

ov
er

he
ad

 s
tr

uc
-

tu
re

 d
em

ol
iti

on
 a

nd
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
-

tio
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 o
ve

rh
ea

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
e

w
ill

 o
cc

ur
 in

 th
e 

fa
ll 

of
 2

01
3.

In
 P

ic
ni

c 
nu

m
be

r 
ei

gh
t, 

al
so

kn
ow

n 
as

 T
ea

po
t, 

th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
an

ov
er

he
ad

 c
ov

er
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t. 

T
he

ol
d 

w
oo

de
n 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
th

at
 o

nc
e

co
ve

re
d 

th
e 

ar
ea

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

-
m

ov
ed

. T
he

 n
ew

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

ill
 u

se
ex

ist
in

g 
m

et
al

 a
nd

 c
em

en
t f

oo
tin

gs
.

It 
is 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 th

e 
ne

w
 r

oo
f w

ill
 b

e
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 S

um
m

er
20

13
.

Te
ap

ot
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
ith

 o
ld

 ro
of

 re
m

ov
ed

pr
io

r t
o 

ne
w

 ro
of

 in
st

al
la

tio
n.

C
M

W
D

 N
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r 

S
p
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
_
L
a
y
o
u
t 
1
  
5
/2

4
/2

0
1
3
  
4
:0

0
 P

M
  
P

a
g
e
 2



W
in

te
r 2

01
3

G
o 

to
 w

w
w

.v
en

tu
ra

.w
at

er
sa

vi
ng

pl
an

ts
.c

om
 t

o 
vi

ew
 t

he
 n

ew
 a

nd
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
 

w
eb

si
te

 t
ha

t 
no

w
 b

oa
st

s 
bi

gg
er

 im
ag

es
 a

nd
 p

ho
to

s 
to

 a
ss

is
t 

yo
u 

w
ith

 t
hi

s 
ye

ar
’s

 w
in

te
r 

pl
an

tin
g 

in
 y

ou
r g

ar
de

n.
 V

is
ito

rs
 to

 th
e 

si
te

 c
an

 n
ow

 st
or

e 
pl

an
t i

m
ag

es
 a

nd
 g

ar
de

n 
im

ag
es

 

to
 a

 p
ri

va
te

 fi
le

 o
n 

th
e 

si
te

 th
at

 c
an

 h
el

p 
yo

u 
w

ith
 p

la
nn

in
g 

yo
ur

 la
nd

sc
ap

e.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o 

si
x 

ne
w

 g
ar

de
n 

to
ur

s 
an

d 
hu

nd
re

ds
 o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 g

ar
de

n 
ga

lle
ry

 im
ag

es
 a

dd
ed

 to
 th

e 
si

te
.

A
ll 

of
 t

he
 g

ar
de

ns
 a

nd
 p

la
nt

s 
on

 t
he

 s
it

e 
ar

e 
fr

om
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 l

an
ds

ca
pe

s 
lo

ca
te

d 

w
it

hi
n 

Ve
nt

ur
a 

co
un

ty
.

“T
he

 n
ew

 s
ite

 h
as

 a
 h

an
dy

 r
ev

is
ed

 

w
at

er
in

g 
gu

id
e 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
ho

m
eo

w
ne

rs
 

w
ith

 
ad

ju
sti

ng
 

th
ei

r 
ir

ri
ga

tio
n 

co
nt

ro
lle

rs
 s

o 
th

ey
 c

an
 w

at
er

 t
he

ir
 

la
nd

sc
ap

es
 

m
or

e 
effi

ci
en

tly
,”

 
sa

id
 

Ro
n 

M
er

ck
lin

g,
 W

at
er

 C
on

se
rv

ati
on

 

M
an

ag
er

. 
Th

e 
si

te
 

no
w

 
in

cl
ud

es
 

a 
pa

rti
al

 
pl

an
t 

na
m

e 
se

ar
ch

 
to

ol
. 

Ty
pi

ng
 

th
e 

fir
st

 
fe

w
 

le
tt

er
s 

of
 

a 

pl
an

t’s
 b

ot
an

ic
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
on

 n
am

e 

w
ill

 g
en

er
at

e 
a 

lis
t 

of
 p

ho
to

s 
an

d 

in
fo

rm
ati

on
 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
pl

an
t 

fr
om

 

th
e 

si
te

’s
 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
da

ta
ba

se
.

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
de

si
gn

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ve
nt

ur
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

W
at

er
 W

is
e 

G
ar

de
ni

ng
 w

eb
si

te
, c

ou
rte

sy
 o

f 
G

ar
de

nS
of

t.

Ch
ec

k 
O

ut
 th

e 
N

ew
 a

nd
 Im

pr
ov

ed
 V

en
tu

ra
 

Co
un

ty
 W

at
er

 W
is

e 
W

eb
si

te

P
R

S
T S

TD
U

.S
. P

O
S

TA
G

E
PA

ID
C

U
S

TO
M

 M
A

ILIN
G

S
O

LU
TIO

N
S

, IN
C

.

1055 Ventura Ave.
O

ak View
, C

A 93022
805-649-2251

w
w

w
.casitasw

ater.org

E
C

R
W

S
S

P
O

S
TA

L C
U

S
TO

M
E

R
Join the C

asitas M
unicipal W

ater
D

istrict Facebook page to get the
latest updates on w

ater conserva-
tion and the Lake C

asitas R
ecreation A

rea at:
w

w
w

.facebook.com
/fbsitecasitasm

unicipalw
aterdistrict.

Your B
oard in A

ction
B

ill H
icks, D

ivision I
Jam

es W
. W

ord, D
ivision II

Pete K
aiser, D

ivision III
M

ary B
ergen, D

ivision IV
R

uss B
aggerly, D

ivision V

      The    C
asitas    B

oard    of
D

irectors is scheduled to m
eet

at 3:00 p.m
. in the board room

located  in  the  m
ain office  at

1055 Ventura Ave., O
ak V

iew
,

on the 2
nd and 4

th W
ednesday

of every m
onth.

Fr
ee

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 C

la
ss

es

Si
nc

e 
ou

r 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

cl
as

se
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
so

 p
op

ul
ar

 w
e 

ha
ve

 d
ec

id
ed

 
to

 o
ffe

r 
th

re
e 

m
or

e 
cl

as
se

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 n

ex
t y

ea
r. 

Pl
ea

se
 jo

in
 u

s 
at

 o
ne

 o
f 

ou
r 

fr
ee

 S
at

ur
da

y 
m

or
ni

ng
 c

la
ss

es
 a

nd
 le

ar
n 

ho
w

 to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

be
au

tif
ul

, 
w

at
er

-s
m

ar
t g

ar
de

n.

•	
Fi

nd
 a

nd
 F

ix
 a

 L
ea

k 
- f

ro
m

 9
:0

0 
a.

m
. t

o 
no

on
 o

n 
Sa

tu
rd

ay
, A

pr
il 

27
, 

20
13

. 
– 

Le
ar

n 
ho

w
 t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n,

 t
ro

ub
le

sh
oo

t,
 a

nd
 r

ep
ai

r 
yo

ur
 i

rr
ig

ati
on

 s
ys

te
m

 a
nd

 fi
nd

 o
ut

 a
bo

ut
 s

om
e 

ba
si

c 
in

do
or

 
pl

um
bi

ng
 ti

ps
. D

is
co

ve
r a

 fe
w

 id
ea

s t
ha

t w
ill

 m
ak

e 
it 

effi
ci

en
t a

nd
 

ea
sy

 fo
r 

yo
u 

to
 r

ep
ai

r 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

yo
ur

 ir
ri

ga
tio

n 
sy

st
em

. G
et

 
th

e 
ba

si
cs

 o
n 

go
od

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
ra

cti
ce

s t
ha

t w
ill

 h
el

p 
sa

ve
 y

ou
 

w
at

er
, m

on
ey

, ti
m

e,
 a

nd
 k

ee
p 

yo
ur

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
lo

ok
in

g 
be

au
tif

ul
. 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s 

to
 r

ec
ei

ve
 f

re
e 

hi
gh

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 s

ho
w

er
he

ad
s 

an
d 

fa
uc

et
 a

er
at

or
s,

 le
ak

 d
et

ec
tio

n 
dy

e 
ta

bl
et

s,
 a

nd
 to

ile
t fl

ap
pe

rs
. 

•	
G

ra
yw

at
er

 W
or

ks
ho

p 
– 

fr
om

 9
:0

0 
a.

m
. 

to
 n

oo
n 

on
 S

at
ur

da
y,

 J
ul

y 
27

, 
20

13
. 

Ba
ck

 b
y 

po
pu

la
r 

de
m

an
d,

 t
hi

s 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

is
 s

ur
e 

to
 a

ns
w

er
 a

ll 
of

 y
ou

r 
qu

es
tio

ns
 r

el
at

ed
 t

o 
gr

ay
w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 L

ea
rn

 h
ow

 t
o 

in
st

al
l y

ou
r 

ow
n 

sy
st

em
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 p

er
m

it 
st

an
da

rd
s 

in
 V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y.

Att
en

da
nc

e 
is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 f

or
ty

 p
er

so
ns

 p
er

 c
la

ss
 s

o 
pl

ea
se

 R
SV

P 
ea

rl
y 

at
 r

m
er

ck
lin

g@
ca

si
ta

sw
at

er
.c

om
 o

r 
(8

05
) 6

49
-2

25
1 

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
11

8.
 A

ll 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 w
ill

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 t

he
 b

oa
rd

ro
om

 a
t 

Ca
si

ta
s 

m
ai

n 
offi

ce
s 

lo
ca

te
d 

at
 1

05
5 

Ve
nt

ur
a 

Av
en

ue
 in

 O
ak

 V
ie

w
.

 Pl
ea

se
 v

is
it

 th
e 

ne
w

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
ed

 W
at

er
 W

is
e 

G
ar

de
ni

ng
 in

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
eb

si
te

 a
t w

w
w

.v
en

tu
ra

.w
at

er
sa

vi
ng

pl
an

ts
.c

om

Ca
si

ta
s’

 
Sp

ea
ke

rs
 

Bu
re

au
: 

Pr
ov

id
es

 
an

 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 
fo

r 
cu

st
om

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

to
 

le
ar

n 
m

or
e 

ab
ou

t 
w

at
er

 
is

su
es

 
in

 
th

e 
W

es
te

rn
 

Ve
nt

ur
a 

Co
un

ty
 

ar
ea

. 
Pl

ea
se

 
co

nt
ac

t 
Ro

n 
M

er
ck

lin
g,

 
W

at
er

 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
an

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 
A

ffa
irs

 
M

an
ag

er
, 

(8
05

) 
64

9-
22

51
 

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
11

8 
to

 
in

vi
te

 
a 

sp
ea

ke
r 

to
 

yo
ur

 
ne

xt
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

gr
ou

p 
or

 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

na
l 

m
ee

tin
g.

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
de

si
gn

 o
n 

w
eb

si
te

 c
ou

rte
sy

 o
f 

G
ar

de
nS

of
t.

C
ov

er
s.

in
dd

   
1

1/
22

/1
3 

  3
:0

0 
P

M



Se
tti

ng
 u

p 
sc

aff
ol

di
ng

 fo
r 

re
co

ati
ng

 o
f d

am
’s

 h
oi

st
 h

ou
se

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t a

nd
 in

ta
ke

 tr
ac

k.
 

Re
lia

bl
e W

at
er

 S
er

vic
e R

eq
ui

re
s C

on
tin

uo
us

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

  
 Th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
go

al
 o

f 
th

e 
Ca

si
ta

s 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

is
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
re

lia
bl

e 
w

at
er

 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 e
ac

h 
an

d 
ev

er
y 

cu
st

om
er

.  
To

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 g
oa

l, 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t c

on
tin

ua
lly

 p
er

fo
rm

s 
pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, 

re
pa

irs
 a

nd
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f 

w
at

er
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  

In
 m

an
y 

in
st

an
ce

s,
 th

e 
w

or
k 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n,

 re
pa

ir
 o

r r
ep

la
ce

 w
at

er
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 re
qu

ire
s a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

eff
or

t 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 w

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

m
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
w

at
er

 o
ut

ag
e 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
d 

by
 

th
e 

cu
st

om
er

.  
 

O
n 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
1,

 2
01

2,
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 fa
rm

er
s,

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

w
er

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 re

du
ce

 o
ut

do
or

 
an

d 
no

n-
es

se
nti

al
 in

do
or

 w
at

er
 u

se
 w

hi
le

 t
he

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
w

at
er

 m
ai

n 
fr

om
 C

as
ita

s 
D

am
 w

as
 

te
m

po
ra

ri
ly

 s
hu

td
ow

n,
 re

pa
ire

d,
 a

nd
 re

st
or

ed
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

. T
he

 w
or

k 
to

ok
 p

la
ce

 a
t t

he
 th

re
e-

w
ay

 st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y’

s 
Fo

st
er

 P
ar

k.
 O

nc
e 

th
e 

42
-in

ch
 d

ia
m

et
er

 p
ip

el
in

e 
w

as
 d

ew
at

er
ed

, C
as

ita
s’

 c
re

w
 re

pl
ac

ed
 a

 c
ri

tic
al

ly
 lo

ca
te

d 
el

bo
w

 li
ne

 in
 n

ee
d 

of
 re

pa
ir,

 a
nd

 
th

en
 b

eg
an

 t
o 

re
fil

l t
he

 p
ip

el
in

e.
  M

an
y 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 C
as

ita
s 

Sp
ri

ng
s 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
d 

a 
w

at
er

 
ou

ta
ge

 fo
r 

th
e 

da
y.

 C
as

ita
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 p
or

ta
bl

e 
w

at
er

 t
an

ks
 a

t 
va

ri
ou

s 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r 
us

e 
by

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.  

“C
as

ita
s w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 e

xp
re

ss
 a

pp
re

ci
ati

on
 to

 c
us

to
m

er
s t

ha
t w

er
e 

w
ith

ou
t w

at
er

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

da
y 

an
d 

to
 c

us
to

m
er

s t
ha

t 
cu

rt
ai

le
d 

th
ei

r w
at

er
 u

sa
ge

 to
 a

vo
id

 u
ne

xp
ec

te
d 

w
at

er
 o

ut
ag

es
,”

 s
ai

d 
St

ev
e 

W
ic

ks
tr

um
, G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
. “

W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 
th

an
kf

ul
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

op
er

ati
on

 b
y 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f V

en
tu

ra
 in

 a
ss

is
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
de

w
at

er
in

g 
of

 th
e 

pi
pe

lin
e,

” 
sa

id
 W

ic
ks

tr
um

.
La

ke
 C

as
ita

s R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

 A
nn

ou
nc

em
en

ts
:

Su
m

m
er

 Li
fe

gu
ar

ds
 N

ee
de

d!
Ca

si
ta

s 
W

at
er

 A
dv

en
tu

re
 is

 n
ow

 re
cr

ui
tin

g 
fo

r s
um

m
er

 li
fe

gu
ar

d 
jo

bs
 fo

r t
he

 2
01

3 
se

as
on

. E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ap

pl
ic

ati
on

s 
ca

n 
be

 d
ow

nl
oa

de
d 

at
 w

w
w

.c
as

ita
sw

at
er

.o
rg

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t t
ab

.  
A

pp
lic

ati
on

s 
ca

n 
be

 m
ai

le
d 

or
 t

ur
ne

d 
in

 t
o 

th
e 

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
A

re
a 

11
31

1 
Sa

nt
a 

A
na

 R
d.

 V
en

tu
ra

, C
A

 9
30

01
. 

Re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

be
in

g 
15

 y
ea

rs
 o

ld
 b

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 1

st
 2

01
3;

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l c

om
pl

eti
on

 o
f A

m
er

ic
an

 R
ed

 
Cr

os
s 

Li
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 c
ou

rs
e;

 a
nd

 c
le

ar
 a

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

ch
ec

k 
an

d 
dr

ug
 te

st
.

Fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
fo

rm
ati

on
, p

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t A
ar

on
 W

al
l, 

Pa
rk

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 O

ffi
ce

r 3
 a

t a
w

al
l@

ca
si

ta
sw

at
er

.c
om

 o
r 

(8
05

) 6
49

-2
23

3 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

11
4.

La
ke

 C
as

ita
s 

Li
fe

gu
ar

ds
 G

ar
ett

 C
ar

ls
on

 a
nd

 A
ng

el
a 

A
m

ic
o 

at
 w

or
k 

in
 th

e 
La

ke
 C

as
ita

s 
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

A
re

a.

A 
fe

w 
re

ce
nt

 a
nd

 on
go

in
g C

as
ita

s D
am

 p
ro

je
ct

s i
nc

lu
de

:   
 1)

 A
n 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
re

pa
ir

 o
f t

he
 in

te
ri

or
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

io
r 

of
 t

he
 d

am
’s

 in
ta

ke
 a

nd
 

ou
tle

t 
w

or
ks

, 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 t
ha

t 
al

lo
w

s 
w

at
er

 t
o 

be
 t

ak
en

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 l

ak
e 

an
d 

br
ou

gh
t 

in
to

 t
he

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

pl
an

t 
be

fo
re

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

. T
hi

s 
w

or
k 

is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 e
ve

ry
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s;
2)

 R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 i

nt
ak

e 
ga

te
 a

ss
em

bl
es

. 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

ni
ne

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
as

se
m

bl
ie

s 
th

at
 a

llo
w

 fo
r w

at
er

 to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

at
 d

iff
er

en
t d

ep
th

s 
in

 th
e 

la
ke

. W
at

er
 

qu
al

ity
 v

ar
ie

s b
y 

la
ke

 d
ep

th
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

s 
an

d 
bi

ol
og

ic
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

in
 t

he
 la

ke
 s

o 
be

in
g 

ab
le

 t
o 

se
le

ct
 t

he
 b

es
t 

de
pt

h 
to

 t
ak

e 
w

at
er

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 la

ke
 

im
pr

ov
es

 th
e 

ra
w

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
th

at
 is

 b
ro

ug
ht

 in
to

 th
e 

tr
ea

tm
en

t p
la

nt
;  

3)
 R

ec
oa

tin
g 

of
 t

he
 d

am
’s

 c
on

tr
ol

 h
ou

se
 h

oi
st

, m
et

al
w

or
k,

 w
or

k 
pl

atf
or

m
s 

an
d 

in
ta

ke
 t

ra
ck

. T
hi

s 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 is
 w

ha
t 

al
lo

w
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

in
ta

ke
 g

at
e 

as
se

m
bl

ie
s 

to
 

be
 p

la
ce

d 
in

to
 th

e 
la

ke
 a

nd
 re

m
ov

ed
 w

he
n 

ne
ed

ed
 fo

r 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
.

D
on

’t
 M

is
s O

ut
 o

n 
th

is
 Y

ea
r’

s K
id

’s
 F

is
hi

ng
 D

ay
, S

at
ur

da
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

3,
 2

01
3.

N
ei

l C
ol

e,
 P

ri
nc

ip
al

 C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
 s

ta
nd

s 
in

 fr
on

t o
f 1

6 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 w
at

er
 

ta
nk

s 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

w
or

k 
on

 U
pp

er
 O

ja
i R

es
er

vo
ir

 ta
nk

.

M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 C
as

ita
s D

am
 is

 C
rit

ica
l t

o W
es

te
rn

 Ve
nt

ur
a C

ou
nt

y 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 s
af

e 
an

d 
re

lia
bl

e 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ta
rt

s 
w

ith
 o

ng
oi

ng
 

re
pa

irs
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
Ca

si
ta

s 
D

am
. 

Si
nc

e 
Ca

si
ta

s 
D

am
’s

 c
on

st
ru

cti
on

 in
 

19
59

, 
it 

ha
s 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
es

se
nti

al
 t

o 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y,
 v

ita
l 

to
 t

he
 l

oc
al

 
ec

on
om

y,
 a

nd
 in

di
sp

en
sa

bl
e 

to
 t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

 o
f 

w
es

te
rn

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y.

 
“T

he
 m

os
t 

no
tic

ea
bl

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 C

as
ita

s 
D

am
 t

o 
m

an
y 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 is

 
an

 i
m

pr
ov

ed
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 l
ife

 t
hr

ou
gh

 r
ec

re
ati

on
al

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
, 

sc
en

ic
 v

al
ue

s,
 a

nd
 w

ild
lif

e 
ha

bi
ta

t,
 

bu
t 

th
e 

m
os

t 
im

po
rt

an
t 

va
lu

e 
is

 f
or

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
st

or
ag

e,
” 

sa
id

 R
on

 M
er

ck
lin

g,
 P

ub
lic

 A
ffa

irs
 M

an
ag

er
. 

“U
su

al
ly

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
pa

ys
 

ve
ry

 
litt

le
 

att
en

tio
n 

to
 

ba
si

c 
w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s;
 t

ha
t 

is
, u

nti
l a

 p
ip

e 
bu

rs
ts

, t
he

 
st

re
et

 fl
oo

ds
, 

or
, 

m
or

e 
tr

ag
ic

al
ly

, 
a 

da
m

 f
ai

ls
”, 

sa
id

 
M

er
ck

lin
g.

 C
as

ita
s 

m
us

t 
w

or
k 

co
nti

nu
ou

sl
y 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 s

uc
h 

as
 t

he
 C

as
ita

s 
D

am
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 in
te

rr
up

tio
ns

 in
 w

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 s
er

io
us

 fa
ilu

re
s 

in
 th

e 
sy

st
em

. T
o 

en
su

re
 

Ca
si

ta
s 

D
am

 r
em

ai
ns

 s
af

e 
an

d 
m

ee
ts

 a
ll 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

, 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

co
nd

uc
ts

 o
n-

go
in

g 
m

on
ito

ri
ng

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

di
re

cti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 

Bu
re

au
 o

f R
ec

la
m

ati
on

.

Cu
st

om
er

 W
at

er
 S

er
vic

e K
ep

t o
n 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

Ta
nk

 W
or

k
H

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
co

m
pl

et
e 

w
or

k 
on

 t
he

 o
nl

y 
w

at
er

 t
an

k 
in

 a
 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 k
ee

p 
cu

st
om

er
s 

ha
pp

y 
by

 k
ee

pi
ng

 t
he

ir
 

w
at

er
 ru

nn
in

g?
 C

as
ita

s’
 a

ns
w

er
 is

 to
 u

se
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 w
at

er
 

ta
nk

s!
 C

as
ita

s 
is

 p
la

nn
in

g 
to

 a
vo

id
 a

ny
 i

nt
er

ru
pti

on
 i

n 
w

at
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
in

 t
he

 U
pp

er
 O

ja
i V

al
le

y 
w

hi
le

 
co

m
pl

eti
ng

 in
te

ri
or

 p
ai

nti
ng

 a
nd

 se
is

m
ic

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

U
pp

er
 O

ja
i R

es
er

vo
ir

 ta
nk

. T
he

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 w

at
er

 ta
nk

s 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

w
at

er
 s

to
ra

ge
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
w

or
k.

  
A

ft
er

 t
hi

s 
w

or
k 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e,

 t
he

 t
em

po
ra

ry
 t

an
ks

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

fu
tu

re
 re

se
rv

oi
r 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
cti

vi
tie

s.
  

N
ew

ly
 re

fu
rb

is
he

d 
in

ta
ke

 g
at

e 
as

se
m

bl
y 

ar
ri

vi
ng

 
re

ad
y 

to
 b

e 
re

tu
rn

ed
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

.

Br
ia

n 
Ta

yl
or

, P
ip

el
in

e 
Fo

rm
an

 fo
r 

Ca
si

ta
s 

cl
im

bs
 d

ow
n 

in
to

 C
as

ita
s’

 
th

re
e-

w
ay

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
.

Sc
ott

 M
ac

D
on

al
d 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
n 

4’
X4

’ e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ga
te

 g
ui

de
s 

de
ep

 in
si

de
 d

am
’s

 
ou

tle
t w

or
ks

.

In
si

de
 s

pr
ea

dx
.in

dd
   

1
1/

22
/1

3 
  2

:5
9 

P
M



 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix N 
Public Comments Received 

 



Three key aspects to effectively manage water in this arid climate include: 

1. Recycled Water 

2. Rainwater Capture 

3. Growing plants suited to the Mediterranean environment 

These three activities lie in the realm of permaculture.  Permaculture is a guide to work with nature to 

use less energy and resources.  There are two permaculture farms in our community: East End Eden in 

Ojai and Quail Spring Farms in Maricopa. 

Casitas needs to provide more rebates, incentives, and education to encourage the use of recycled 

water, rainwater catchment, and growing plants suited to the arid, Mediterranean environment.   

1. Recycled Water 

a. Make recycled water available to the farmers 

b. Rebates for implementing Laundry to Landscape Systems and other greywater systems 

c. More education for implementing greywater solutions for homeowners and farmers 

d. Laundry to Landscape Kits – clear instructions, video, parts at discounted price for Casitas 

customers.  Make it easy and more people will do it. 

e. Laundry to Landscape (L2L): low cost financing and available plumbers or L2L technicians to 

implement systems with a payment plan 

2. Rainwater Capture 

a. Rain barrel rebates 

b. Cistern rebates/financing 

c. Create systems so the rainwater does not roll down the street, it gets captured in the land 

d. Make curb cuts easy for homeowners to do effectively to water the sidewalk strip plantings 

e. Help farmers capture the rainwater on their land.  Make it easy for them to use a 

permaculture expert to re‐grade the land with swales on contour to capture the water 

falling on their land  

3. Growing plants suited to the environment where we live 

a. More education, incentives, rebates for turf removal.  The days of lawns are over. 

b. More education, incentives, rebates for growing Mediterranean native plants and drought 

resistant plants suited to the climate of the Ojai Valley 

c. Education, incentives, rebates, financing, consultants available for the farmers to grow 

diverse polyculture food forests and move away from water intensive monocultures 

d. Incentives to encourage the community to buy from the local farmers conserving water and 

using permaculture principles 

e. Provide rebates, incentives to support the farmers growing crops adapted to the local 

conditions and effectively conserving water 

We could look at this water crisis as an opportunity to create a permaculture center in the Ojai Valley.  

People would come from long distances to learn permaculture. The permaculture center would make 

expert staff available to homeowners, businesses, and farmers to make the effective use of recycled 

water, rainwater, and plants suited to this climate.  There is a lack of good jobs in the Ojai Valley, this 

could be just the stimulus to create a whole round of jobs and industries to make the best use of our 

natural resources.   
Submitted by Mrs. Paulson, Oak View Casitas Customer 6/10/2016 



6/15/2016 Gmail  UWMP

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=4fd781e7f2&view=pt&q=bsandoval%40casitaswater.com&qs=true&search=query&msg=1554bc981b30fcc2&siml=1… 1/1

Brad Milner <mvconsulting1@gmail.com>

UWMP 

Ron Merckling <rmerckling@casitaswater.com> Mon, Jun 13, 2016 at 3:02 PM
To: Brad Milner <mvconsulting1@gmail.com>, Bryan Sandoval <bsandoval@casitaswater.com>

Brad,

I received a call from Bruce Kuebler, Board Member called me today to comment on our UWMP.

Page 83

4.2.2.1 Upper Ventura River Groundwater Basin extends from Matilija Canyon to Foster Park

4.2.2.1 The basin is mainly composed of thin alluvial deposits of 20 to 150 feet.

4.2.2.2 Lower Ventura River Groundwater Basin extends Foster Park to the Ocean

4.2.2.2 2nd to last line  Omit storage capacity of 264,000 acrefeet (this is a grossly large estimate, don't know what the
true value is)

Page 123

6.4.1 3. and 4. are shown as bullets but there is no 1 and 2 bullets.

Thanks,

Ron Merckling
Water Conservation/Public Affairs Manager
Casitas MWD
1055 Ventura Avenue
Oak View, CA 93022
(805) 6492251 Ext. 118

tel:%28805%29%20649-2251%20Ext.%20118


 
 

 
Final UWMP/AWMP, June 2016  
Casitas Municipal Water District 

Appendix O 
UWMP Checklist by Subject

  



1 

 

Appendix O 
UWMP Checklist Arranged by Subject 

 
CWC 

Section 

 
 

UWMP Requirement 

 
 

Subject 

DWR 
Guidebook 
Location 

CMWD 
UWMP 

Location 
10620(b) Every person that becomes an urban water 

supplier shall adopt an urban water 
management plan within one year after it has 
become an urban water supplier.  

Plan Preparation Section 2.1 NA 

10620(d)(2) Coordinate the preparation of its plan with 
other appropriate agencies in the area, 
including other water suppliers that share a 
common source, water management 
agencies, and relevant public agencies, to 
the extent practicable. 

Plan Preparation Section 2.5.2 Section 1.4 

10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
water supplier has encouraged active 
involvement of diverse social, cultural, and 
economic elements of the population within 
the service area prior to and during the 
preparation of the plan. 

Plan Preparation Section 2.5.2 Section 1.5 

10631(a) Describe the water supplier service area.  System 
Description 

Section 3.1 Section 2.2 

10631(a) Describe the climate of the service area of 
the supplier. 

System 
Description 

Section 3.3 Section 2.3 

10631(a) Provide population projections for  2020, 
2025, 2030, and 2035.  

System 
Description 

Section 3.4 Section 2.7 

10631(a) Describe other demographic factors affecting 
the supplier’s water management planning. 

System 
Description 

Section 3.4 Section 2.8 

10631(a) Indicate the current population of the service 
area.  

System 
Description and 
Baselines and 
Targets 

Sections 3.4 
and 5.4 

Section 2.7 

10631(e)(1) Quantify past, current, and projected water 
use, identifying the uses among water use 
sectors. 

System Water 
Use 

Section 4.2 Section 3.3 

10631(e)(3)(A) Report the distribution system water loss for 
the most recent 12-month period available.  

System Water 
Use 

Section 4.3 Section 3.4 

10631.1(a) Include projected water use needed for lower 
income housing projected in the service area 
of the supplier. 

System Water 
Use 

Section 4.5 Section 3.6 

10608.20(b) Retail suppliers shall adopt a 2020 water use 
target using one of four methods. 

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.7 
and App E 

NA 



2 

 

10608.20(e) Retail suppliers shall provide baseline daily 
per capita water use, urban water use target, 
interim urban water use target, and 
compliance daily per capita water use, along 
with the bases for determining those 
estimates, including references to supporting 
data.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Chapter 5 and 
App E 

NA 

10608.22 Retail suppliers’ per capita daily water use 
reduction shall be no less than 5 percent of 
base daily per capita water use of the 5 year 
baseline. This does not apply if the suppliers 
base GPCD is at or below 100.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.7.2 NA  

10608.24(a) Retail suppliers shall meet their interim 
target by December 31, 2015. 

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.8 
and App E 

NA  

10608.24(d)(2) If the retail supplier adjusts its compliance 
GPCD using weather normalization, 
economic adjustment, or extraordinary 
events, it shall provide the basis for, and 
data supporting the adjustment.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.8.2 NA  

10608.36 Wholesale suppliers shall include an 
assessment of present and proposed future 
measures, programs, and policies to help 
their retail water suppliers achieve targeted 
water use reductions.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.1 Sections 6.3 
and 7.3  

10608.40 Retail suppliers shall report on their progress 
in meeting their water use targets. The data 
shall be reported using a standardized form.  

Baselines and 
Targets 

Section 5.8 
and App E 

NA  

10631(b) Identify and quantify the existing and 
planned sources of water available for 2015, 
2020, 2025, 2030, and 2035. 

System Supplies Chapter 6 Sections 4.2 
and 4.4  

10631(b) Indicate whether groundwater is an existing 
or planned source of water available to the 
supplier.   

System Supplies Section 6.2 Section 4.2 

10631(b)(1) Indicate whether a groundwater 
management plan has been adopted by the 
water supplier or if there is any other specific 
authorization for groundwater management.  
Include a copy of the plan or authorization. 

System Supplies Section 6.2.2 Section 4.2 

10631(b)(2) Describe the groundwater basin. System Supplies Section 6.2.1 Section 4.2 

10631(b)(2) Indicate if the basin has been adjudicated 
and include a copy of the court order or 
decree and a description of the amount of 
water the supplier has the legal right to 
pump. 

System Supplies Section 6.2.2 Section 4.2 

10631(b)(2) For unadjudicated basins, indicate whether 
or not the department has identified the 
basin as overdrafted, or projected to become 
overdrafted. Describe efforts by the supplier 

System Supplies Section 6.2.3 Section 4.2 



3 

 

to eliminate the long-term overdraft 
condition.  

10631(b)(3) Provide a detailed description and analysis 
of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water 
supplier for the past five years 

System Supplies Section 6.2.4 Section 4.2 

10631(b)(4) Provide a detailed description and analysis 
of the amount and location of groundwater 
that is projected to be pumped. 

System Supplies Sections 6.2 
and 6.9 

Section 4.4 

10631(d) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or 
transfers of water on a short-term or long-
term basis. 

System Supplies  Section 6.7 Sections 4.2 
and 4.4  

10631(g) Describe the expected future water supply 
projects and programs that may be 
undertaken by the water supplier to address 
water supply reliability in average, single-dry, 
and multiple-dry years. 

System Supplies Section 6.8 Section 4.5 

10631(h) Describe desalinated water project 
opportunities for long-term supply.  

System Supplies Section 6.6 Sections 4.2 
and 4.4 

10631(j) Retail suppliers will include documentation 
that they have provided their wholesale 
supplier(s) – if any - with water use 
projections from that source.  

System Supplies Section 2.5.1 NA  

10631(j) Wholesale suppliers will include 
documentation that they have provided their 
urban water suppliers with identification and 
quantification of the existing and planned 
sources of water available from the 
wholesale to the urban supplier during 
various water year types.  

System Supplies Section 2.5.1 Sections 
1.4, 1.5, and 

1.6  

10633 For wastewater and recycled water, 
coordinate with local water, wastewater, 
groundwater, and planning agencies that 
operate within the supplier's service area. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.1 Sections 4.2 
and 4.4 

10633(a) Describe the wastewater collection and 
treatment systems in the supplier's service 
area. Include quantification of the amount of 
wastewater collected and treated and the 
methods of wastewater disposal. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.2  Sections 4.2 
and 4.4 

10633(b) Describe the quantity of treated wastewater 
that meets recycled water standards, is 
being discharged, and is otherwise available 
for use in a recycled water project. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 
6.5.2.2 

Sections 4.2 
and 4.4 

10633(c) Describe the recycled water currently being 
used in the supplier's service area. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.3 
and 6.5.4 

Sections 4.2 
and 4.4 

10633(d) Describe and quantify the potential uses of 
recycled water and provide a determination 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.4 Sections 4.2 
and 4.4 



4 

 

of the technical and economic feasibility of 
those uses. 

10633(e) Describe the projected use of recycled water 
within the supplier's service area at the end 
of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description 
of the actual use of recycled water in 
comparison to uses previously projected. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.4 Section 4.4 

10633(f) Describe the actions which may be taken to 
encourage the use of recycled water and the 
projected results of these actions in terms of 
acre-feet of recycled water used per year. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.5 Section 4.4 

10633(g) Provide a plan for optimizing the use of 
recycled water in the supplier's service area. 

System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 

Section 6.5.5 Section 4.4 

10620(f) Describe water management tools and 
options to maximize resources and minimize 
the need to import water from other regions. 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.4 Sections 4.2 
and 5.2 

10631(c)(1) Describe the reliability of the water supply 
and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic 
shortage. 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.1 Section 5.3 

10631(c)(1) Provide data for an average water year, a 
single dry water year, and multiple dry water 
years 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.2 Section 5.3 

10631(c)(2) For any water source that may not be 
available at a consistent level of use, 
describe plans to supplement or replace that 
source. 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.1 NA  

10634 Provide information on the quality of existing 
sources of water available to the supplier 
and the manner in which water quality 
affects water management strategies and 
supply reliability 

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.1 Section 5.4 

10635(a)  Assess the water supply reliability during 
normal, dry, and multiple dry water years by 
comparing the total water supply sources 
available to the water supplier with the total 
projected water use over the next 20 years.   

Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 

Section 7.3 Section 5.3 

10632(a) and 
10632(a)(1) 

Provide an urban water shortage 
contingency analysis that specifies stages of 
action and an outline of specific water supply 
conditions at each stage. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.1 Section 6.4 

10632(a)(2) Provide an estimate of the minimum water 
supply available during each of the next 
three water years based on the driest three-
year historic sequence for the agency. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.9 Section 5.3 

10632(a)(3) Identify actions to be undertaken by the 
urban water supplier in case of a 
catastrophic interruption of water supplies. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.8 Section 6.5 



5 

 

10632(a)(4) Identify mandatory prohibitions against 
specific water use practices during water 
shortages. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.2 Section 6.2 

10632(a)(5) Specify consumption reduction methods in 
the most restrictive stages.  

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.4 Section 6.4 

10632(a)(6) Indicated penalties or charges for excessive 
use, where applicable. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.3 Section 6.2 

10632(a)(7) Provide an analysis of the impacts of each of 
the actions and conditions in the water 
shortage contingency analysis on the 
revenues and expenditures of the urban 
water supplier, and proposed measures to 
overcome those impacts.  

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.6 Section 6.5 

10632(a)(8) Provide a draft water shortage contingency 
resolution or ordinance. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.7 Section 6.3 

10632(a)(9) Indicate a mechanism for determining actual 
reductions in water use pursuant to the water 
shortage contingency analysis. 

Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 

Section 8.5 Section 6.3 

10631(f)(1) Retail suppliers shall provide a description of 
the nature and extent of each demand 
management measure implemented over the 
past five years. The description will address 
specific measures listed in code.  

Demand 
Management 
Measures 

Sections 9.2 
and 9.3 

Section 7.3 

10631(f)(2) Wholesale suppliers shall describe specific 
demand management measures listed in 
code, their distribution system asset 
management program, and supplier 
assistance program.  

Demand 
Management 
Measures 

Sections 9.1 
and 9.3 

Section 7.3 

10631(i) CUWCC members may submit their 2013-
2014 CUWCC BMP annual reports in lieu of, 
or in addition to, describing the DMM 
implementation in their UWMPs. This option 
is only allowable if the supplier has been 
found to be in full compliance with the 
CUWCC MOU.  

Demand 
Management 
Measures 

Section 9.5 Section 7.2 

10608.26(a) Retail suppliers shall conduct a public 
hearing to discuss adoption, implementation, 
and economic impact of water use targets.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.3 NA  

10621(b) Notify, at least 60 days prior to the public 
hearing, any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water that the urban water 
supplier will be reviewing the plan and 
considering amendments or changes to the 
plan.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.2.1 Section 1.4 

10621(d) Each urban water supplier shall update and 
submit its 2015 plan to the department by 
July 1, 2016. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.3.1 and 
10.4 

Section 1.6 



6 

 

10635(b)  Provide supporting documentation that 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan has been, 
or will be, provided to any city or county 
within which it provides water, no later than 
60 days after the submission of the plan to 
DWR. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.4.4 Section 1.4 

10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier made the plan available 
for public inspection, published notice of the 
public hearing, and held a public hearing 
about the plan.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.2.2, 10.3, 
and 10.5  

Section 1.6 

10642 The water supplier is to provide the time and 
place of the hearing to any city or county 
within which the supplier provides water.   

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.2.1 

Sections 1.5 
and 1.6  

10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
plan has been adopted as prepared or 
modified. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.3.1 Section 1.6 

10644(a) Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier has submitted this 
UWMP to the California State Library.  

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.4.3 Section 1.5 

10644(a)(1) Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier has submitted this 
UWMP to any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water no later than 30 days 
after adoption. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.4.4 Section 1.5 

10644(a)(2) The plan, or amendments to the plan, 
submitted to the department shall be 
submitted electronically. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Sections 
10.4.1 and 
10.4.2 

Section 1.6 

10645 Provide supporting documentation that, not 
later than 30 days after filing a copy of its 
plan with the department, the supplier has or 
will  make the plan available for public review 
during normal business hours. 

Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 

Section 10.5 Section 1.10

 

 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  June 17, 2016 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  FY 2016-17 Budget 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider public comment and move to adopt the 
FY 2016-17 Budget during the regular meeting of the Board of Directors on June 22, 2016. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
    
This memorandum is prepared to provide additional insight to the collection of costs and 
revenues that have been assembled as the FY 2016-17 General Manager Recommended 
Budget.  The Budget funds the highest priority projects and tasks necessary to achieve our goals 
while keeping our costs and water rates as low as possible.  The budget is a financial 
management tool which presents the District’s projected revenues and expenses, and follows 
the district’s capital plan.  
 
The Budget has been initially assembled by each department of the District, the draft Budget has 
been reviewed by the General Manager with each department, followed by a thorough review by 
the Finance Committee and the Board Directors during a budget workshop on May 11, 2016.  
The FY 2016-17 Budget reflects the direction of the Board of Directors’ workshop, no changes to 
the current water and recreation rate structures, and a few minor adjustments that have been 
presented to the Finance Committee. 
 
BUDGET SUMMARY:  
 
The planning for FY 2016-17 has considered the range of expenses, capital projects, and 
revenue sources that are necessary to the District’s operation and service.  The following is a 
summary of the key expenses, capital projects and revenue sources that are further detailed in 
the budget document.   
 
Operational Expenses.  Reference to the Board Recommended Summary. The total 
operational expense for FY 2016-17 is $15,004,420.  This is a $342,288 increase in the 
expenses outlined in the FY 2015-16 Budget.  
 
It should be noted that there is a new listing for the Utilities Maintenance section.  In prior 
budgets, this section was a part of the Water Treatment section, thus the decline in Water 
Treatment expenses in FY 2016-17.  
 

Electrical Rates.  It is anticipated that the Edison power cost will escalate to $1,650,000.  
The adjustment for increased electrical costs was considered in the FY 2015-16 Budget, and 
there has been no indication from Edison of additional rate increases in FY 2016-17. 



 2 

 
Chemicals.  There is a new $140,000 cost in the Water Treatment section to purchase liquid 
oxygen for the hypolimnetic aeration system.   The cost for other chemicals used in water 
treatment plant appears to be stable for the upcoming year. 

   
Staffing.  The budget does include the salary for the present changes recommended by the 
Board for the Assistant General Manager, Human Resources positions, Utilities Maintenance 
position, and the additional recreation ordinance enforcement personnel.  These positions 
are in the process of being filled during the FY 2016-17.  A new position recommended to be 
added in the Administration Section during FY 2016-17 is entitled Customer Service.  This 
position is needed to keep pace with the increasing level of customer service contacts that 
are occurring at the front office. 

 
Salary Adjustments:  The budget includes a two percent salary cost of living adjustment in 
anticipation that cost of living adjustment may be provided in accordance with the revised 
employee MOUs.  The budget accounts for the COLAs that may be applied to each 
bargaining group. 
 
Board of Directors.  The budget for the installation of the new board room furniture 
($51,000) is listed in the Board of Directors. 
 
Water Conservation. The water conservation budget has been increased to address the 
current needs of the public and the District, in light of the current drought condition.  Some of 
the items included in this budget include grant fees and matching cost ($140,000), large 
residential surveys ($9,000), web site improvement ($10,000), just to name a few of the 
actions to be taken by this section.  Education and communication is also a large portion of 
this section’s budget. 
 
Safety.  The safety budget has been increased by approximately $30,000 to meet the 
training needs of employees and provide additional safety measures to work areas. 
 
Recreation.  The Recreation expenses are projected to be $4,144,971, which is an increase 
of $51,310 that can be primarily attributed to the application of the cost of living adjustment 
for staff salaries. 
 
Changes to the Draft Budget Expenses.  A carry-over expense of $70,000 is included in 
Board Approved Budget, Management Section, for a water rate study that was planned for 
FY 2015-16, proposals received and ready for an award to proceed with the study.  
Engineering also reinstated a one-half full-time salary (1040 hours) for the existing clerical in 
the Engineering Section. 
 

Capital Project Expenses.  The 10-Year Capital Project list has been updated by staff and 
presented in the budget binder.  The proposed FY 2016-17 district-wide Capital budget is 
$3,979,059.  This is an increase of $267,692 above last year’s capital budget.  It is noted that 
the Recreation capital expenditures are budgeted at $178,500.  Staff is dedicated to 
aggressively accomplishing the capital projects, although there are a few carry-over capital 
projects to FY 2016-17 that includes $75,000 for the Recreation Sewer System Study and 
$5,000 for new windows at the warehouse.  The listing and description of capital projects are 
provided in the budget binders.     
 



 3 

 
Revenue.  The primary sources of revenue are water revenues, property taxes, recreation 
revenues, grants, and interest on deposits.  The revenues from each of these areas, particularly 
water and recreation, can be highly variable and influenced by many factors such as weather 
conditions, economic climate, water conservation restrictions, and changes in customer 
demands.  The revenue estimate for the Manager Recommended Budget based on current 
rates for water and recreation is $15,729,155.  The following are the key revenue highlights that 
were considered in the development of the proposed FY 2016-17 Budget. 
 

Water Revenue.    The budget water revenues are developed from a conservative 
estimation of water sales volume of 15,251 acre-feet during the fiscal year.  This is a 1,333 
acre-foot reduction from the FY 2015-16 budget sales estimate. The volume of sales is an 
average of the last five years of water sales and considers the impact from Stage 3 water 
demand reduction measures. Based on the application of current water rates, the water 
revenue is estimated at $6,798,428.   
 
The Finance Committee is currently evaluating options for water rates that include a two-
tiered and a four-tiered residential rate structures, modification of the standby charges, and 
an overall percentage increase to all rates.  The results from each of these options are 
presented in the Revenue section of the Draft Budget presentation.  The Finance Committee 
would like to hear input from the Board on the aforementioned options and bring a final 
recommendation back to the Board in June 2016. 

 
Recreation Revenue.  The Recreation revenues are estimated to be $3,766,082.  This 
revenue estimate is based on small rate increases that were approved in September 2015. 
This revenue leaves a $557,389 gap between revenues and operational expenses that may 
require a reconsideration of Recreation rates and a part of which is reimbursed through 
grants.   
 
Property Taxes.  The three property tax sources of revenue are Prop 1A 1%, Mira Monte 
Water System, and Redevelopment Agency pass through, to be set at $2,080,209, $19,351 
and $62,500, respectively.  The budget does not include any revenues from the Ojai 
Community Facilities District as the costs for the Ojai water system acquisition are funded 
separately through the collection of Community Facility District property taxes. 

 
Interest on Investments.  The interest on time deposits and investments has been 
redirected to investment strategies that may improve the return on investments over time.  
The estimated interest on investments for the FY 2016-17 Budget is $476,236. 

 
Reserves.  In 2009, the District achieved its goal in attaining adequate levels of unrestricted 
reserves (Resolution No. 06-32), increasing the cash flow reserve to $3,000,000 and 
establishing a capital improvements reserve at an additional $3,000,000.  The variation of water 
sales reserve was increased to $3,479,850 in FY 2015-16.   In FY 2014-15, an OPEB reserve 
was established in the amount of $2,750,000.  The current level of reserves has remained 
healthy and untouched in light of decreasing water sales and revenues, and keeping pace with 
the increased expenditures for capital projects. 
 
Budget Balancing.    An imbalance between revenues and expenses will need further 
consideration through the modification of water and recreation rates and/or the application of 
reserve funds.  The following steps are recommended to balance the Budget: 



 4 

1) Fund the imbalance caused by the reduction in water sales revenue, approximately 
$872,774, through the Variation of Water Sales Reserve account; 
 

2) Fund the remaining imbalance of $2,381,550 through the Capital Improvement Reserve 
account; 

  
3) To restore reserve balances, move directly to: 

a. A water rate study and adoption of new water rates prior to January 1, 2017, if not 
sooner; and 

b. A recreation rate/financial planning study and the adoption of new recreation fees 
prior to January 1, 2017, if not sooner. 

   
Conclusion.   
 
The Finance Committee has reviewed the FY 2016-17 Board Recommended Budget and is 
moving the budget to the Board of Directors for consideration of adopting the Board 
Recommended Budget for FY 2016-17.   
 
. 
 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FINAL GENERAL FUND BUDGET. 
DEBT SERVICE FUND AND MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 

FUND BUDGETS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2017. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-16 
 

 
WHEREAS, District staff has prepared a proposed budget for the 2016-2017 

fiscal year;  
 

WHEREAS, the General Manager has made modifications to the proposal made 
by the various section supervisors; and 

 
WHEREAS, the resultant budget has been reviewed by the Finance Committee; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, three public meetings have been held to go over the budget with the 
public; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Casitas 

Municipal Water District, that the proposed budget per Board recommendations for the 
2016-17 fiscal year is here by approved for the General Fund Budget broken down as 
follows; Revenue $15,729,155., SWP Indebtedness Fund Budget Revenue $183,384., 
Mira Monte Water Assessment District Fund Revenue of $18,825., and 1% secured levy 
tax apportionment of $2,080,209., Expenses $15,004,420., Capital $3,979,059. 
 

Adopted this 22nd day of June, 2016. 
  
       

________________________ 
       Pete Kaiser, President 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



Casitas Municipal Water District

Budget Revenue, Expenses & Capital

2016 / 2017
Board Approved 2016 / 2017 2015 / 2016

15,251 AF 16,618

Revenue 15,729,155          16,601,929          

               Expenses

Administration 263,341               367,529               

Board of Directors 232,749               165,957               

District Maintenance 315,739               303,849               

Electrical Mechanical 2,304,683            2,557,800            

Engineering 874,971               649,159               

Fisheries 446,779               459,630               

Information Technology 202,679               213,650               

Management 1,304,301            1,142,372            

Pipeline 1,026,092            1,011,100            

Recreation - Operations / Maint. / PR / Water Pk 4,144,971            4,093,440            

Retirees 485,114               511,709               

Safety / Garage 164,859               135,149               

Utilities Maintenance 522,328               -

Water Conservation - P/R 633,686               561,383               

Water Quality, Lab 443,824               408,249               

Water Treatment 1,638,304            2,081,156            

Total Expenses 15,004,420          14,662,132          

Net 724,735               1,939,797            

           Capital

Administration 55,700                 47,000                 

Board of Directors -                           -                           

District Maintenance -                           17,000                 

Electrical Mechanical 676,400               633,000               

Engineering 2,285,000            1,013,217            

Fisheries -                           -                           

Information Technology -                           91,500                 

Management -                           -                           

Pipeline 57,500                 209,850               

Recreation - Operations / Maint. / PR / Water Pk 253,500               260,200               

Retirees -                           -                           

Safety / Garage 88,200                 -                           

Utilities Maintenance -                           -                           

Water Conservation - P/R -                           -                           

Water Quality, Lab 94,159                 700,000               

Water Treatment 468,600               739,600               

3,979,059            3,711,367            

Net assets, end of year (3,254,324)           (1,771,570)           

Funding Deficit from Available Variation of Water Sales 872,774               

Funding Deficit from Available Storm Damage Reserves

Funding Deficit from Available Un-Restricted Reserves

Funding Deficit from Available Capital Improvement Reserves 2,381,550            1,771,570            

Net assets, End of Year 0 0

Prepared by dcollin 6/16/2016 Page 1



Casitas Municipal Water District

Revenue 2016-2017
Board Approved - Current Rates

15,251 AF

Revenue
Water Sales - Residential

11-4-00 4000-00 Water Sales - Residential Gravity 17,090

11-4-00 4001-00 Water Sales - Residential Pumped 964,775

Water Sales - Business

11-4-00 4010-00 Water Sales - Business Gravity 572

11-4-00 4011-00 Water Sales - Business Pumped 403,209

Water Sales Industrial

11-4-00 4020-00 Water Sales - Industrial Gravity 0

11-4-00 4021-00 Water Sales - Industrial Pumped 14,812

Water Sales - Resale

11-4-00 4030-00 Water Sales - Resale Gravity 1,646,946

11-4-00 4031-00 Water Sales - Resale Pumped 603,033

Water Sales - Other

11-4-00 4040-00 Water Sales - Temporary Meter - Pumped 23,928

11-4-00 4041-00 Water Sales - Other Water Sales - Gravity 10,752

11-4-00 4042-00 Water Sales - Other Water Sales - Pumped 124,776

Water Sales - Fire Prevention

11-4-00 4050-00 Fire Prevention - General 0

11-4-00 4051-00 Fire Prevention - Hydrants 0

Water Sales - Agriculture Domestic

11-4-00 4060-00 Water Sales - Ag Domestic - Gravity 73,158

11-4-00 4061-00 Water Sales - Ag Domestic - Pumped 1,549,445

Water Sales - Agriculture

11-4-00 4070-00 Water Sales - Agricultural - Gravity 43,776

11-4-00 4071-00 Water Sales - Agricultural - Pumped 1,280,784

Water Sales - Interdepartmental

11-4-00 4080-00 Water Sales - Recreation - Gravity 0

11-4-00 4081-00 Water Sales - Recreation - Pumped 41,373 6,798,428.39

Water Services - Other

11-4-00 4090-00 Capital Facilities Charge 50,000

11-4-00 4091-00 Energy Surcharge 0

11-4-00 4092-00 Forfeited Deposits / Penalties 0

11-4-00 4093-00 Meter Tests and Installations 6,500

11-4-00 4094-00 Sale of Plans or Bid Packets 0

11-4-00 4095-00 Temporary Installation 0

11-4-00 4096-00 Water Storage Valuation 0

11-4-00 4097-00 Work Order Close Revenue 0

11-4-00 4098-00 Meter Standby Fees 2,210,153

11-4-00 4099-00 Pump Charges 0

Revenue - Interest

11-4-00 4100-00 1% Tax Allocation 0

11-4-00 4105-00 Assessments - Oak View 0

11-4-00 4110-00 Interest on BPC and Taormina 0

11-4-00 4115-00 Interest on Time Deposits and Investments 476,236

11-4-00 4120-00 Protested Tax Apportionment 0

Page 1 of 3



Revenue - Taxes and Assessments

11-4-00 4200-00 1 %  - Secured Current General Fund 2,080,209

11-4-00 4205-00 1 % - Redemption & In Lieu 0

11-4-00 4210-00 1 % - Secured Prior Year General Fund 0

11-4-00 4215-00 1 % - Unsecured Current General Fund 0

11-4-00 4220-00 1 % - Unsecured Prior Year General Fund 0

11-4-00 4225-00 Availability Charge Current - Oak View 0

11-4-00 4230-00 Availability Charge Prior Year - Oak View 0

69-4-00 4010-00 MMWS - Tax Secured 19,351

11-4-00 4235-00 RDA Pass Through 62,500

75-4-00 4010-00 CFD-2013 150,000

Revenue - Other Governmental Agencies

11-4-00 4300-00 Federal Disaster Assistance 0

11-4-00 4305-00 Grant Revenue - Federal 0

11-4-00 4310-00 Local - City of Ventura USGS 0

11-4-00 4315-00 State - Homeowners Property Tax 0

11-4-00 4320-00 State - Other 0 5,054,948.98

Revenue - Delinquency On-Off Fees / Water

11-4-00 4350-00 Hang Tag Fee 21,960

11-4-00 4351-00 Turn Off Fee 3,760

11-4-00 4352-00 Turn On Fee 3,760

11-4-00 4353-00 Late Fee - Residential 27,737

11-4-00 4357-00 Late Fee - Business 903

11-4-00 4361-00 Late Fee - Industrial 25

11-4-00 4365-00 Late Fee - Resale 42

11-4-00 4369-00 Late Fee - Other 528

11-4-00 4373-00 Late Fee - Fire Prevention 0

11-4-00 4377-00 Late Fee - Agriculture Domestic 7,433

11-4-00 4381-00 Late Fee - Agriculture 4,003

11-4-00 4385-00 Late Fee - Interdepartmental 0

11-4-00 4395-00 N.S.F. - Returned Check Fee 760 70,911.68

Revenue - Other 

11-4-00 4400-00 Flexible Storage 3,784

11-4-00 4405-00 Gain / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0

11-4-00 4410-00 Grant Revenue - Other 0

11-4-00 4415-00 Habitat Conservation Plan 0

11-4-00 4420-00 Miscellaneous Revenue - Other 35,000

11-4-00 4425-00 Sale of Fixed Assets 0

11-4-00 4430-00 Variation in Water Sales 0 38,784.00

Revenue - Park Entrance Fees and Permits / Recreation

11-4-62 4500-00 Animal Permit 7,000

11-4-62 4505-00 Area Use Permits - Recreation 0

11-4-62 4510-00 Boat Fees - Annual 38,000

11-4-62 4515-00 Boat Fees - Daily 9,000

11-4-62 4520-00 Boat Fees Annual - Refund Quagga 0

11-4-62 4525-00 Boat Inspection Fees - Quagga 1,800

11-4-62 4530-00 Boat Fees - Overnight 1,200

11-4-62 4535-00 Boat Lock Revenue - Quagga 2,000

11-4-62 4540-00 Boating Grant - Launching Facility - Archived 0

11-4-62 4542-00 Café Pass Fee 22,000

11-4-63 4543-00 Café Pass Reimbursement -20,000

11-4-62 4545-00 Camping Fees 1,731,500

11-4-62 4550-00 Camping Promotion 0

11-4-62 4555-00 Commercials - Recreation 3,000

11-4-62 4560-00 Deposit Forfeit 0

11-4-62 4565-00 Donation vouchers -2,000

11-4-62 4570-00 Events - Recreation 25,000

Page 2 of 3



11-4-62 4575-00 Event Reimbursement - Recreation 0

11-4-62 4580-00 Federal Disaster Assistance - Recreation 0

11-4-62 4585-00 Gift Cards and Certificates 1,200

11-4-62 4590-00 Grants - Recreation 150,000

11-4-62 4595-00 Guest Pass - Recreation -1,000

11-4-62 4600-00 Kayak & Canoes Annual - Recreation 4,000

11-4-62 4605-00 Kayak and Canoes Daily - Recreation 40

11-4-62 4610-00 Miscellaneous Revenue 0

11-4-62 4615-00 Miscellaneous Revenue - Refunds Quagga 0

11-4-62 4620-00 Rain Checks - Recreation -1,200

11-4-62 4625-00 Reservations 141,000

11-4-62 4630-00 Shower Facility Fees 19,000

11-4-62 4635-00 Trailer Storage Fees 207,000

11-4-62 4640-00 Vehicle Fees - Daily 197,000

11-4-62 4645-00 Violation Ordinance Fees 12,000

11-4-62 4650-00 Visitor Cards 144,000

11-4-62 4655-00 Visitor Cards - Refunds Quagga 0

11-4-62 4660-00 Wi-Fi Internet Fees 0 2,691,540.00

Revenue - Concessions / Recreation

11-4-62 4700-00 Bicycles - Concession 0

11-4-62 4705-00 Boat Rental - Concession 51,926

11-4-62 4710-00 Boat Rentals - Recreation - Archived 0

11-4-62 4715-00 Gasoline - Concession 0

11-4-62 4720-00 Park Store - Recreation 53,683

11-4-62 4725-00 Snack Bar - Concession 25,119

11-4-62 4730-00 Telephone - Recreation 0

11-4-62 4735-00 Trailer Rental Concession 0

11-4-62 4740-00 Water Park Snack Bar 5,000

11-4-62 4745-00 Wildlife Tours Concession 0 135,728.00

Revenue - Water Park

11-4-65 4800-00 Water Park - Cooler Fees 0

11-4-65 4805-00 Water Park - Five after Five Fee 94,500

11-4-65 4810-00 Water Park - Group Pass Fee -4,426

11-4-65 4815-00 Water Park - Junior Lifeguard Fee 7,800

11-4-66 4818-00 Water Park - Lifeguard Training Materials 1,200

11-4-65 4820-00 Water Park - Locker Fee 1,250

11-4-65 4825-00 Water Park - Next Day Pass Fee -2,000

11-4-65 4830-00 Water Park - Gift Certificates -240

11-4-65 4835-00 Water Park - Rain Checks -1,000

11-4-65 4840-00 Water Park - Reservation Fee 45,000

11-4-65 4845-00 Water Park - Season Pass Fee 30,880

11-4-65 4850-00 Water Park - Shade Rental Fee 15,000

11-4-65 4855-00 Water Park - Shower Facility Fees 6,850

11-4-65 4860-00 Water Park - Single Splash Fee 734,000

11-4-65 4865-00 Water Park - Special Event Fee 0

11-4-65 4870-00 Water Park - Water Fitness - Fee 10,000 938,814.00

Revenue - Other / Recreation

11-4-62 4900-00 Collection Over / Short - Recreation OP 0

11-4-65 4900-00 Collection Over / Short - Recreation WP 0

Total Revenue 15,729,155 15,729,155.05

Page 3 of 3



Casitas Municipal Water District

Proposed Capital Projects

Proposed for 2016 / 2017
Board Approved

Department: Amount Total

01 - Retirees

    Total Capital Projects Department - 01 0.00 0.00

11 - Board of Directors

    Total Capital Projects Department - 11 0.00 0.00

21 - Management

    Total Capital Projects Department - 21 0.00 0.00

24 - Information Technology

0.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 24 0.00

25 - Water Conservation

    Total Capital Projects Department - 25 0.00 0.00

28 - Fish Biologist

    Total Capital Projects Department - 28 0.00 0.00

30- Administrative Services

File Cabinets 5,700.00

Building Security Camera's 25,000.00

District Vault Re-Organization 25,000.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 30 55,700.00

Prepared by dcollin 6/16/2016 Page 1



32- Warehouse

    Total Capital Projects Department - 32 0.00

0.00

33-Garage

Recreation Truck 36,700.00

Fisheries Vehicle 26,500.00

Lab Vehicle 25,000.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 33 88,200.00

40- Engineering

Repair Ojai East Reservoir 795,000.00

Reservoir Cleaning and Inspection 35,000.00

Lake Shoreline Vegetation Management 100,000.00

Replace Upper Rincon Main 850,000.00

Maintain Reservoir, Pump Plant Roads 20,000.00

High Winds Distribution Pipe Replacement 5,000.00

Warehouse Upgrade 5,000.00

Replace Robeles Diffuser Panels 120,000.00

District Office Remodel & Lighting Replacement 355,000.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 40 2,285,000.00

42 - Water Quality - Laboratory

In-lake Remote Monitoring System 72,260.00

Lake Profiler 21,899.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 42 94,159.00

52 - Electrical Mechanical

Engineering Services - Rincon Pump Plant 50,000.00

Equipment for Avenue 1 Pump Plant 450,000.00

OVPP Pumps 1 & 2 50,000.00

Unit 3 Avenue 2 Pump Plant Machine Work 10,000.00

Spare Main Breakers for Pump Plants 23,000.00

MCC Modules (3) for Avenue 1 Pump Plant 13,000.00

201 C Esteem Radios 70,000.00

Hart Communicator 5,000.00

Scopemeter - Fluke 190 Series II 5,400.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 52 676,400.00

Prepared by dcollin 6/16/2016 Page 2



53 - Pipeline

Ojai East Reservoir - Valves & Flanges 57,500.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 53 57,500.00

54 - Water Treatment

Treatment Plant Electrical Upgrades 280,000.00

Filter Media Cleaning 50,000.00

Ammonia Pump Replacements 25,000.00

PLC Automation Upgrade 28,600.00

Intake Structure Repair 45,000.00

Intake Screen #3 Restoration 40,000.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 54 468,600.00

55- District Maintenance

0.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 55 0.00

62/63/64/65 - Recreation

Waterpark Master Plan 40,000.00

CWA Awing Replacement 2,500.00

Roads 75,000.00

Playground surface replacement 20,000.00

CWA Automated Disinfection ( chorine injection) 10,000.00

Irrigation System Improvements 8,000.00

Sewage Collection System 75,000.00

Siding on Restroom M 15,000.00

Camp F Campground Slabs 8,000.00

    Total Capital Projects Department - 62/63/64/65 253,500.00

Total Capital Projects / Budget 2016/2017 3,979,059.00

Prepared by dcollin 6/16/2016 Page 3



Casitas Municipal Water District 6/30/2015

Reserves / Restricted – Unrestricted

FY 2015/2016

June 30th, 2015

General Fund Balance - Rabobank 5,905,426.95

Visa - Rabobank 30,513.12

LAIF 446.51

Morgan Stanley - Investments 19,147,153.84

Morgan Stanley - Money Market 14,773.11

County of Ventura Investment (C.O.V.I.) 965.93

Total Reserves 25,099,279.46

Less: Restricted:

Due to Debt Service Fund 8,204,693.36

Due to Mira Monte Fund 102,589.84

Capital Facilities 1,984,395.06

Safe Drinking Water 60,000.00

Flexable Storage 37,840.00

10,389,518.26

Total available for Un-Restricted 14,709,761.20

Restricted:

Due to Debt Service Fund 8,204,693.36

Due to Mira Monte Fund 102,589.84

Capital Facilities 1,984,395.06

Safe Drinking Water 60,000.00

Flexable Storage 37,840.00

Total Restricted 10,389,518.26

Un-Restricted (designated funds)

Cash Flow 3,000,000.00

Storm Damage 2,479,850.00

Variation in Water Sales 3,479,850.00

Capital Improvements 3,000,000.00

OPEB 2,750,000.00

    Total Un-Restricted (designated funds) 14,709,700.00

 

Un-designated funds 7/01/15 61.20

Total Un-Restricted 14,709,761.20

Total Reserves 2015/2016 25,099,279.46

Restricted funds = Funds restricted by a third party and/or for Debt Service Fund.

Designated funds = Funds designated by Board for specific purpose.



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    1

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

 

NON DEPARTMENTAL

  WATER SALES                                       7,288,779      5,183,914     6,805,555     6,798,429     6,798,429

  WATER SERVICES                                    2,002,160      1,780,233     2,060,229     2,216,653     2,216,653

  WATER DELINQUNCY                                     70,911        117,044        70,911        70,911        70,911

  WATER REVENUE OTHER                                  38,784        831,653        38,784        38,784        38,784

  CAPITAL FACILITIES                                   25,000         75,267        50,000        50,000        50,000

  INTEREST                                            410,658        471,633       476,236       476,236       476,236

  TAXES & ASSESSMENTS                               2,106,049      2,135,733     2,249,560     2,249,560     2,249,560

  OTHER GOVT. AGENCIES                                897,123         18,616             0             0             0

  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES                               55,000         93,403        62,500        62,500        62,500

      TOTAL NON DEPARTMENTAL                       12,894,464     10,707,494    11,813,775    11,963,073    11,963,073

RECREATION - OPERATIONS

  RECREATION PARK                                   2,662,712      2,374,010     2,691,540     2,691,540     2,691,540

  RECREATION-CONCESSION                               136,500        115,903       130,728       130,728       130,728

  RECREATION OTHER                                          0            232             0             0             0

      TOTAL RECREATION - OPERATIONS                 2,799,212      2,490,145     2,822,268     2,822,268     2,822,268

RECREATION - WATER PARK

  RECREATION-CONCESSION                                 5,100          3,570         5,000         5,000         5,000

  RECREATION-WATER PARK                               903,150        634,063       938,814       938,814       938,814

  RECREATION OTHER                                          0             27             0             0             0

      TOTAL RECREATION - WATER PARK                   908,250        637,659       943,814       943,814       943,814

TOTAL REVENUE                                      16,601,926     13,835,299    15,579,857    15,729,155    15,729,155



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    2

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

RETIREES

  Benefits                                            511,709        428,275       485,114       485,114       485,114

  Services & Supplies                                       0   (         14)            0             0             0

      TOTAL RETIREES                                  511,709        428,261       485,114       485,114       485,114

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

  Salaries                                             64,660         54,422        64,660        64,660        64,660

  Benefits                                             77,597         62,533        78,589        78,589        78,589

  Services & Supplies                                  23,700          6,553        84,900        89,500        89,500

      TOTAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS                        165,957        123,508       228,149       232,749       232,749

MANAGEMENT

  Salaries                                            576,303        309,151       576,303       576,303       576,303

  Benefits                                            229,542         97,956       222,479       222,479       222,479

  Services & Supplies                                 336,528        397,930       380,918       505,518       505,518

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0         21,172             0             0             0

      TOTAL MANAGEMENT                              1,142,373        826,209     1,179,700     1,304,300     1,304,300

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

  Salaries                                            125,049        118,332       123,976       123,976       123,976

  Benefits                                             51,409         42,837        49,324        49,324        49,324

  Services & Supplies                                  37,192          6,938        29,380        29,380        29,380

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0          8,123             0             0             0

      TOTAL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY                    213,650        176,231       202,680       202,680       202,680

WATER CONSERVATION

  Salaries                                            287,936        228,517       279,883       279,883       279,883

  Benefits                                             96,558         61,365        95,521        95,521        95,521

  Services & Supplies                                 175,094        138,317       398,282       258,282       258,282

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0         13,497             0             0             0

      TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION                        559,588        441,696       773,686       633,686       633,686

FISHERIES

  Salaries                                            296,105        277,995       295,972       295,972       295,972

  Benefits                                            105,780         84,363       105,643       105,643       105,643

  Services & Supplies                                  57,746         25,409        45,164        45,164        45,164

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0         13,700             0             0             0

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                                  0         18,428             0             0             0

      TOTAL FISHERIES                                 459,631        419,894       446,779       446,779       446,779

ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

  Salaries                                            409,648        359,998       450,769       450,769       450,769

  Benefits                                            176,914        145,072       113,535       113,535       113,535

  Services & Supplies                                 792,423        576,525       671,335       664,083       664,083

  Other Operating Expenses                       (  1,036,865)        25,249  (    989,846) (    989,846) (    989,846)



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    3

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                              3,000          2,430       105,700        55,700        55,700

      TOTAL ADMINISTRATION SERVICES                   345,120      1,109,274       351,493       294,241       294,241

WAREHOUSE

  Salaries                                              8,931          8,049         8,431         8,431         8,431

  Benefits                                              1,948          1,495         1,839         1,839         1,839

  Services & Supplies                                  14,530          3,571        14,530        14,530        14,530

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0            548             0             0             0

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                             44,000              0             0             0             0

      TOTAL WAREHOUSE                                  69,409         13,663        24,800        24,800        24,800

GARAGE

  Salaries                                             39,560              0        19,464        19,464        19,464

  Benefits                                              8,628              0        31,303        31,303        31,303

  Services & Supplies                            (     30,900)  (     32,537) (      8,070)       14,280        14,280

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                             91,500        226,731       145,700       145,700       145,700

      TOTAL GARAGE                                    108,788        194,193       188,397       210,747       210,747

SAFETY

  Salaries                                             60,769         19,613        85,865        85,865        85,865

  Benefits                                             32,410          1,500        18,730        18,730        18,730

  Services & Supplies                                  26,477         39,039        37,750        21,600        21,600

      TOTAL SAFETY                                    119,656         60,152       142,345       126,195       126,195

ENGINEERING

  Salaries                                            367,035        333,441       483,546       483,546       520,304

  Benefits                                            123,913        114,884       178,575       178,575       186,593

  Services & Supplies                                 158,212         70,652       168,073       168,073       168,073

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0         23,570             0             0             0

  Salaries - Work Orders                              106,080        120,979             0             0             0

  Benefits - Work Orders                               23,137         16,924             0             0             0

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            884,000      1,683,228     2,280,000     2,280,000     2,285,000

      TOTAL ENGINEERING                             1,662,377      2,363,677     3,110,194     3,110,194     3,159,970

WATER QUALITY - LAB

  Salaries                                            155,148        145,591       180,663       180,663       180,663

  Benefits                                             80,143         67,654        86,611        86,611        86,611

  Services & Supplies                                 172,958        111,123       174,848       176,548       176,548

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0         10,159             0             0             0

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            700,000          3,905        94,159        94,159        94,159

      TOTAL WATER QUALITY - LAB                     1,108,249        338,432       536,281       537,981       537,981

UTILITIES MAINTENANCE

  Salaries                                                  0              0       326,809       326,809       326,809

  Benefits                                                  0              0        75,950        75,950        75,950

  Services & Supplies                                       0              0       119,569       119,569       119,569

      TOTAL UTILITIES MAINTENANCE                           0              0       522,328       522,328       522,328



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    4

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL

  Salaries                                            452,549        298,087       334,261       334,261       334,261

  Benefits                                            188,715        110,671       138,714       138,714       138,714

  Services & Supplies                               1,916,536      1,365,348     1,812,709     1,831,709     1,831,709

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0         17,519             0             0             0

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            633,000        403,343     1,193,900       676,400       676,400

      TOTAL ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL                   3,190,800      2,194,968     3,479,584     2,981,084     2,981,084

DIST MAINT - PIPELINE

  Salaries                                            327,812        318,427       389,501       389,501       389,501

  Benefits                                            169,758        131,693       167,166       167,166       167,166

  Services & Supplies                                 513,530        304,099       452,193       443,043       443,043

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0         16,694             0             0             0

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            209,850         26,434       150,000             0             0

      TOTAL DIST MAINT - PIPELINE                   1,220,950        797,347     1,158,860       999,710       999,710

WATER TREATMENT

  Salaries                                            786,981        886,380       554,570       554,570       554,570

  Benefits                                            347,278        290,140       348,948       348,948       348,948

  Services & Supplies                                 946,895        525,180       732,491       734,786       734,786

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0         41,751             0             0             0

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            739,600        367,714       570,600       468,600       468,600

      TOTAL WATER TREATMENT                         2,820,754      2,111,166     2,206,609     2,106,904     2,106,904

OPERATIONS - MAINTENANCE

  Salaries                                            133,508        124,755       150,274       150,420       150,420

  Benefits                                             53,398         40,781        57,923        57,934        57,934

  Services & Supplies                                 116,944        265,465       107,381       107,381       107,381

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0          4,433             0             0             0

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                             17,000              0       813,000             0             0

      TOTAL OPERATIONS - MAINTENANCE                  320,850        435,434     1,128,578       315,735       315,735

RECREATION - OPERATIONS

  Salaries                                            807,353        902,386       885,475       885,475       885,475

  Benefits                                            267,843        212,418       318,870       318,870       318,870

  Services & Supplies                                 279,837        372,840       276,126       276,126       276,126

  Other Operating Expenses                            511,823         21,303       510,178       510,178       510,178

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                             75,000         35,508        75,000        75,000        75,000

      TOTAL RECREATION - OPERATIONS                 1,941,856      1,544,455     2,065,649     2,065,649     2,065,649

RECREATION - MAINTENANCE

  Salaries                                            377,228        380,701       398,472       398,472       398,472

  Benefits                                            133,229        107,929       132,893       132,893       132,893

  Services & Supplies                                 336,548        279,356       319,968       286,968       286,968

  Other Operating Expenses                            242,987         12,923       225,083       225,083       225,083

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                             75,000         79,842        85,500        85,500       160,500

      TOTAL RECREATION - MAINTENANCE                1,164,992        860,751     1,161,916     1,128,916     1,203,916



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    5

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RECREATION - PUBLIC REL

  Salaries                                            107,165         45,147       110,921       110,921       110,921

  Benefits                                             15,532          3,454        16,214        16,214        16,214

  Services & Supplies                                  73,880         69,186        64,100        64,100        64,100

  Other Operating Expenses                             58,392              0        53,842        53,842        53,842

      TOTAL RECREATION - PUBLIC REL                   254,969        117,786       245,077       245,077       245,077

RECREATION - WATER PARK

  Salaries                                            426,876        320,657       430,648       430,648       430,648

  Benefits                                             43,103         33,383        43,361        43,361        43,361

  Services & Supplies                                 187,982        150,658       191,075       191,075       191,075

  Other Operating Expenses                            223,663          4,884       200,743       200,743       200,743

  Services & Supplies-W.O.                            110,200         20,042        18,000        18,000        18,000

      TOTAL RECREATION - WATER PARK                   991,824        529,624       883,827       883,827       883,827

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                 18,373,502     15,086,720    20,522,046    18,858,696    18,983,472

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                (  1,771,576)  (  1,251,421) (  4,942,189) (  3,129,541) (  3,254,317)



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    6

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

NON DEPARTMENTAL

================

WATER SALES

  Water Sales - Residential Grav                       18,960         10,116        17,090        17,090        17,090

  Water Sales - Residential Pump                    1,099,011        542,299       964,774       964,775       964,775

  Water Sales - Business Gravity                          605            363           571           572           572

  Water Sales - Business Pumped                       439,876        313,600       403,208       403,209       403,209

  Water Sales - Industrial Pumpe                       18,547          6,926        14,812        14,812        14,812

  Water Sales - Resale Gravity                      1,950,002      1,234,460     1,646,945     1,646,946     1,646,946

  Water Sales - Resale Pumped                         516,664        518,655       603,033       603,033       603,033

  Water Sales - Temporary Meter                        20,271          8,075        23,926        23,928        23,928

  Water Sales - Other Water Sale                       14,233          8,190        10,751        10,752        10,752

  Water Sales - Other Water Sale                      144,570         60,423       124,776       124,776       124,776

  Water Sales - Fire Prev Genera                        8,126              0         7,201             0             0

  Water Sales - Ag Domestic - Gr                       77,484         52,388        73,158        73,158        73,158

  Water Sales - Ag Domestic - Pu                    1,628,607      1,359,450     1,549,377     1,549,445     1,549,445

  Water Sales - Agricultural - G                       46,801         30,691        43,776        43,776        43,776

  Water Sales - Agricultural - P                    1,252,269      1,018,287     1,280,784     1,280,784     1,280,784

  Water Sales - Recrecation - Pu                       52,753         19,989        41,373        41,373        41,373

   TOTAL WATER SALES                                7,288,779      5,183,914     6,805,555     6,798,429     6,798,429

WATER SERVICES

  Meter Tests & Installations                           5,500         10,991         6,500         6,500         6,500

  Sale of Plans or Bid Packets                            100              0             0             0             0

  Meter Standby Fees                                1,996,560      1,769,242     2,053,729     2,210,153     2,210,153

   TOTAL WATER SERVICES                             2,002,160      1,780,233     2,060,229     2,216,653     2,216,653

WATER DELINQUNCY

  Hang Tag Fee                                         21,960         12,180        21,960        21,960        21,960

  Turn Off Fee                                          3,760          2,140         3,760         3,760         3,760

  Turn On Fee                                           3,760          2,140         3,760         3,760         3,760

  Late Fee - Residential                               27,737         18,287        27,737        27,737        27,737

  Alloc Penalty - Residential                               0         66,658             0             0             0

  Late Fee - Business                                     903          1,064           903           903           903

  Late Fee - Industrial                                    25            381            25            25            25

  Late Fee - Resale                                        42            201            42            42            42

  Late Fee - Other                                        528            631           528           528           528

  Late Fee - Agriculture Domesti                        7,433          6,195         7,433         7,433         7,433

  Late Fee - Agriculture                                4,003          6,445         4,003         4,003         4,003

  N.S.F. - Returned Check Fee                             760            720           760           760           760

   TOTAL WATER DELINQUNCY                              70,911        117,044        70,911        70,911        70,911

WATER REVENUE OTHER

  Flexible Storage                                      3,784          4,472         3,784         3,784         3,784

  Grant Revenue - Other                                     0        801,380             0             0             0



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    7

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Miscellaneous Revenue - Other                        35,000         25,801        35,000        35,000        35,000

   TOTAL WATER REVENUE OTHER                           38,784        831,653        38,784        38,784        38,784

CAPITAL FACILITIES

  Capital Facilities Charge                            25,000         75,267        50,000        50,000        50,000

   TOTAL CAPITAL FACILITIES                            25,000         75,267        50,000        50,000        50,000

INTEREST

  1% Tax Allocation                                         0            670             0             0             0

  Interest on Time Deposits and                       410,658        470,963       476,236       476,236       476,236

   TOTAL INTEREST                                     410,658        471,633       476,236       476,236       476,236

TAXES & ASSESSMENTS

  1 %  - Secured Current General                    2,106,049      2,053,697     2,080,209     2,080,209     2,080,209

  1 % - Secured Prior Year Gener                            0         20,478             0             0             0

  1 % - Unsecured Current Genera                            0         61,445             0             0             0

  1 % - Unsecured Prior Year Gen                            0             48             0             0             0

  Availability Charge Current -                             0             64        19,351        19,351        19,351

  CFD - 2013                                                0              0       150,000       150,000       150,000

   TOTAL TAXES & ASSESSMENTS                        2,106,049      2,135,733     2,249,560     2,249,560     2,249,560

OTHER GOVT. AGENCIES

  Grant Revenue - Federal                             877,772              0             0             0             0

  State - Homeowners Property Ta                       19,351         18,616             0             0             0

   TOTAL OTHER GOVT. AGENCIES                         897,123         18,616             0             0             0

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

  RDA - Pass Through                                   55,000         93,403        62,500        62,500        62,500

   TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES                        55,000         93,403        62,500        62,500        62,500

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

   TOTAL NON DEPARTMENTAL                          12,894,464     10,707,494    11,813,775    11,963,073    11,963,073

RECREATION - OPERATIONS

=======================

RECREATION PARK

  Animal Permit                                        22,800          6,726         7,000         7,000         7,000

  Boat Fees - Annual                                   40,000         31,083        38,000        38,000        38,000

  Boat Fees - Daily                                    10,500          6,942         9,000         9,000         9,000

  Boat Inspection Fees - Quagga                         3,500          1,504         1,800         1,800         1,800

  Boat Fees - Overnight                                 1,000            801         1,200         1,200         1,200

  Boat Lock Revenue - Quagga                            3,000          1,715         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Cafe Pass Fee                                        24,000         18,185        22,000        22,000        22,000

  Cafe Pass Reimbursment                         (     23,000)  (     15,398) (     20,000) (     20,000) (     20,000)

  Camping Fees                                      1,688,000      1,536,913     1,731,500     1,731,500     1,731,500

  Commercials - Recreation                              3,000            800         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Bad Debt Collection Recovery                              0             55             0             0             0

  Donation vouchers                                     3,000              0  (      2,000) (      2,000) (      2,000)



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    8

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Events - Recreation                                  35,000         31,008        25,000        25,000        25,000

  Gift Cards and Certificates                             500   (        553)        1,200         1,200         1,200

  Grants - Recreation                                  37,500         38,672       150,000       150,000       150,000

  Guest Pass - Recreation                        (        200)  (        100) (      1,000) (      1,000) (      1,000)

  Impound Fee                                               0            650             0             0             0

  Kayak & Canoes Annual - Recrea                        3,000          3,086         4,000         4,000         4,000

  Kayak and Canoes Daily - Recrr                           12             12            40            40            40

  Miscellaneous Revenue                                   400          2,522             0             0             0

  Rain Checks - Recreation                       (      2,500)  (        446) (      1,200) (      1,200) (      1,200)

  Reservations                                        148,800        115,425       141,000       141,000       141,000

  Shower Facility Fees                                 22,000         16,226        19,000        19,000        19,000

  Snow Bird Pumping                                         0          1,650             0             0             0

  Trailer Storage Fees                                212,400        188,171       207,000       207,000       207,000

  Vehicle Fees - Daily                                266,000        259,427       197,000       197,000       197,000

  Violation Ordinance Fees                             14,000          6,100        12,000        12,000        12,000

  Visitor Cards                                       150,000        122,837       144,000       144,000       144,000

   TOTAL RECREATION PARK                            2,662,712      2,374,010     2,691,540     2,691,540     2,691,540

RECREATION-CONCESSION

  Boat Rental - Concession                             68,000         48,173        51,926        51,926        51,926

  Park Store - Recreation                              44,000         43,593        53,683        53,683        53,683

  Cafe - Concession                                    24,500         24,137        25,119        25,119        25,119

   TOTAL RECREATION-CONCESSION                        136,500        115,903       130,728       130,728       130,728

RECREATION OTHER

  Over / Short - Recreation                                 0            232             0             0             0

   TOTAL RECREATION OTHER                                   0            232             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

   TOTAL RECREATION - OPERATIONS                    2,799,212      2,490,145     2,822,268     2,822,268     2,822,268

RECREATION - WATER PARK

=======================

RECREATION-CONCESSION

  Water Park Snack Bar                                  5,100          3,570         5,000         5,000         5,000

   TOTAL RECREATION-CONCESSION                          5,100          3,570         5,000         5,000         5,000

RECREATION-WATER PARK

  Water Park - Late Day Pass Fee                       94,900         60,052        94,500        94,500        94,500

  Water Park - Group Pass Fee                    (      9,000)  (      2,984) (      4,426) (      4,426) (      4,426)

  Water Park - Junior Lifeguard                         8,000          7,110         7,800         7,800         7,800

  Water Park - Lifeguard Trainin                        1,500            287         1,200         1,200         1,200

  Water Park - Locker Fee                               1,500            981         1,250         1,250         1,250

  Water Park - Miscellaneous Rev                 (      1,500)             0             0             0             0

  Water Park - Next Day Pass Fee                            0   (      1,180) (      2,000) (      2,000) (      2,000)

  Water Park - Promotion                                  150             16  (        240) (        240) (        240)

  Water Park - Rain Checks                       (      2,500)  (        300) (      1,000) (      1,000) (      1,000)

  Water Park - Reservation Fee                         30,000         28,512        45,000        45,000        45,000



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    9

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Water Park - Season Pass Fee                         25,000         11,882        30,880        30,880        30,880

  Water Park - Shade Rental Fee                         6,500          4,880        15,000        15,000        15,000

  Water Park - Shower Facility F                       21,500         14,726         6,850         6,850         6,850

  Water Park - Single Splash Fee                      718,000        503,559       734,000       734,000       734,000

  Water Park - Special Event Fee                          500              0             0             0             0

  Water Park - Water Fitness - F                        8,600          6,523        10,000        10,000        10,000

   TOTAL RECREATION-WATER PARK                        903,150        634,063       938,814       938,814       938,814

RECREATION OTHER

  Over / Short - Water Park                                 0             27             0             0             0

   TOTAL RECREATION OTHER                                   0             27             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

   TOTAL RECREATION - WATER PARK                      908,250        637,659       943,814       943,814       943,814

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                                      16,601,926     13,835,299    15,579,857    15,729,155    15,729,155



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   10

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RETIREES

========

Benefits

  Insurance - Group Life                                    0   (        164)            0             0             0

  Insurance - Group Health                            477,023        399,961       453,514       453,514       453,514

  Insurance - Group Dental                             29,491         24,224        26,815        26,815        26,815

  Insurance - Group Vision                              5,195          4,253         4,785         4,785         4,785

   TOTAL Benefits                                     511,709        428,275       485,114       485,114       485,114

Services & Supplies

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                            0   (         14)            0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                                0   (         14)            0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RETIREES                                       511,709        428,261       485,114       485,114       485,114



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   11

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

==================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     64,660         54,422        64,660        64,660        64,660

   TOTAL Salaries                                      64,660         54,422        64,660        64,660        64,660

Benefits

  Social Security Expense                               4,009          3,374         4,009         4,009         4,009

  Medicare Expense                                        938            789           938           938           938

  Insurance - Group Life                                  169            148           169           169           169

  Insurance - Group Health                             67,936         54,331        69,061        69,061        69,061

  Insurance - Group Dental                              3,998          3,413         3,802         3,802         3,802

  Insurance - Group Vision                                547            477           610           610           610

   TOTAL Benefits                                      77,597         62,533        78,589        78,589        78,589

Services & Supplies

  Service & Supplies                                   15,000              0        51,000        51,000        51,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                            700              0         7,500         7,500         7,500

  Computer Upgrades - Software                            100              0         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Private Vehicle Mileage                               3,500          2,284         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Travel Expense                                        1,200          1,637         1,200         3,000         3,000

  Directors Election Fees                                   0              0        18,000        18,000        18,000

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,200          2,632         3,200         6,000         6,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           23,700          6,553        84,900        89,500        89,500

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS                             165,957        123,508       228,149       232,749       232,749



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   12

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

MANAGEMENT

==========

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    489,595        272,941       486,336       486,336       486,336

  Vacation Pay                                         42,503         19,248        41,336        41,336        41,336

  Jury Duty                                               827            762         2,432         2,432         2,432

  Sick Pay                                             11,282          2,872        24,315        24,315        24,315

  Holiday Pay                                          32,096         13,327        21,884        21,884        21,884

   TOTAL Salaries                                     576,303        309,151       576,303       576,303       576,303

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                        81,605         35,364        81,622        81,622        81,622

  Social Security Expense                              35,731         13,979        35,731        35,731        35,731

  Medicare Expense                                      8,356          4,614         8,356         8,356         8,356

  Insurance - Group Life                                3,578          1,562         3,578         3,578         3,578

  Insurance - Group Health                             93,972         39,768        89,971        89,971        89,971

  Insurance - Group Dental                              5,753          2,431         2,674         2,674         2,674

  Insurance - Group Vision                                547            239           547           547           547

   TOTAL Benefits                                     229,542         97,956       222,479       222,479       222,479

Services & Supplies

  Service & Supplies                                    8,000         10,972         8,000        20,000        20,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          6,000              0         9,500         9,500         9,500

  Computer Upgrades - Software                          1,000              0         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Outside Contracts                                    12,000              0         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                            400              0           400           400           400

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          500            195           500         1,000         1,000

  Office Equipment Maintenance                            200              0           200           200           200

  Membership & Dues                                   101,700         70,438       105,900       106,000       106,000

  Books & Publications                                  4,000          4,299         4,000         4,000         4,000

  Office Supplies                                       7,000              0         8,000         8,000         8,000

  Postage Expense                                         600            180           600           600           600

  Other Professional Fees                             182,000        304,761       230,000       335,000       335,000

  Licenses & Permits                                      300              0           500           500           500

  Advertising & Legal Notices                           1,500              0         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Private Vehicle Mileage                               3,000          1,336         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Travel Expense                                        4,300          1,471         2,800         4,800         4,800

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,900          2,101         2,400         7,400         7,400

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0          2,029             0             0             0

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             93             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          128             54           118           118           118

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          336,528        397,930       380,918       505,518       505,518

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         21,172             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0         21,172             0             0             0



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   13

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL MANAGEMENT                                   1,142,373        826,209     1,179,700     1,304,300     1,304,300



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   14

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    101,870        104,554       101,870       101,870       101,870

  Overtime Pay                                          1,073          1,697             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                         10,835          6,238        10,835        10,835        10,835

  Jury Duty                                               211            234           211           211           211

  Sick Pay                                              2,877            467         2,877         2,877         2,877

  Holiday Pay                                           8,183          5,142         8,183         8,183         8,183

   TOTAL Salaries                                     125,049        118,332       123,976       123,976       123,976

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                        17,707         13,657        17,559        17,559        17,559

  Social Security Expense                               7,753          7,080         7,687         7,687         7,687

  Medicare Expense                                      1,813          1,764         1,797         1,797         1,797

  Insurance - Group Life                                  511            446           511           511           511

  Insurance - Group Health                             22,050         18,554        20,296        20,296        20,296

  Insurance - Group Dental                              1,438          1,216         1,337         1,337         1,337

  Insurance - Group Vision                                137            119           137           137           137

   TOTAL Benefits                                      51,409         42,837        49,324        49,324        49,324

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    2,000            330         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Service & Supplies                                    3,500            569         3,500         3,500         3,500

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          3,050          2,079         1,050         1,050         1,050

  Computer Upgrades - Software                          3,100            505         3,400         3,400         3,400

  Outside Contracts                                    20,550          2,754        14,550        14,550        14,550

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          800            534           800           800           800

  Books & Publications                                    100              0           100           100           100

  Postage Expense                                          50              0            50            50            50

  Small Tools                                             100             17           100           100           100

  Safety Program                                          110              0             0             0             0

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 300             17           300           300           300

  Travel Expense                                            0             14             0             0             0

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,500              0         3,500         3,500         3,500

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             93             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           32             27            30            30            30

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           37,192          6,938        29,380        29,380        29,380

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0          8,123             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0          8,123             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   15

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY                         213,650        176,231       202,680       202,680       202,680



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   16

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

WATER CONSERVATION

==================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    220,458        190,416       212,065       212,065       212,065

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                          15,226         13,274        15,226        15,226        15,226

  Overtime Pay                                          1,110            976         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Vacation Pay                                         25,069         10,670        23,705        23,705        23,705

  Jury Duty                                               488              0         1,394         1,394         1,394

  Sick Pay                                              6,654          4,034        13,944        13,944        13,944

  Holiday Pay                                          18,931          9,146        12,549        12,549        12,549

   TOTAL Salaries                                     287,936        228,517       279,883       279,883       279,883

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            38,301         23,082        37,200        37,200        37,200

  Social Security Expense                              17,852         13,163        17,352        17,352        17,352

  Medicare Expense                                      4,175          3,404         4,058         4,058         4,058

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,467          1,077         2,075         2,075         2,075

  Insurance - Group Health                             32,214         19,142        32,892        32,892        32,892

  Insurance - Group Dental                              2,139          1,237         1,671         1,671         1,671

  Insurance - Group Vision                                410            260           273           273           273

   TOTAL Benefits                                      96,558         61,365        95,521        95,521        95,521

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    3,400          2,464         1,700         1,700         1,700

  Service & Supplies                                   11,807          8,110        11,100        11,100        11,100

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          1,500          2,118         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Computer Upgrades - Software                              0            718           500           500           500

  Outside Contracts                                    99,548         98,883       327,848       187,848       187,848

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                            200              0             0             0             0

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        2,160            583         2,040         2,040         2,040

  Membership & Dues                                    11,405          9,507        11,505        11,505        11,505

  Printing & Binding                                   12,500          3,045        12,500        12,500        12,500

  Books & Publications                                    100              0           100           100           100

  Office Supplies                                           0             43             0             0             0

  Postage Expense                                       9,500          5,538         9,500         9,500         9,500

  Advertising & Legal Notices                          13,600          2,185        13,600        13,600        13,600

  Safety Program                                        4,550          1,195             0             0             0

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 150            145           250           250           250

  Travel Expense                                        2,480            680         2,850         2,850         2,850

  Education & Training Seminars                         2,098          1,244         3,200         3,200         3,200

  Pre-Employment Screening                                  0            137             0             0             0

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0            300             0             0             0

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0            186             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           96             59            89            89            89

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0          1,178             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          175,094        138,317       398,282       258,282       258,282



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   17

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         13,497             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0         13,497             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION                             559,588        441,696       773,686       633,686       633,686



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   18

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

FISHERIES

=========

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    208,044        222,843       211,448       211,448       211,448

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                          27,507         28,774        29,769        29,769        29,769

  Overtime Pay                                          9,440            180             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                         25,055         12,404        25,158        25,158        25,158

  Jury Duty                                               489              0         1,480         1,480         1,480

  Sick Pay                                              6,651          2,740        14,799        14,799        14,799

  Holiday Pay                                          18,919         11,054        13,318        13,318        13,318

   TOTAL Salaries                                     296,105        277,995       295,972       295,972       295,972

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            38,034         24,115        37,702        37,702        37,702

  Social Security Expense                              18,359         17,288        18,350        18,350        18,350

  Medicare Expense                                      4,294          4,148         4,292         4,292         4,292

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,356          1,184         1,356         1,356         1,356

  Insurance - Group Health                             41,024         35,305        41,346        41,346        41,346

  Insurance - Group Dental                              2,303          1,965         2,187         2,187         2,187

  Insurance - Group Vision                                410            358           410           410           410

   TOTAL Benefits                                     105,780         84,363       105,643       105,643       105,643

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    4,200          2,357         4,400         4,400         4,400

  Service & Supplies                                   13,300          7,491        11,300        11,300        11,300

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,000              0         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Computer Upgrades - Software                          1,000              0         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Outside Contracts                                     2,000            430         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          1,500             19         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        2,150          1,640         2,325         2,325         2,325

  Membership & Dues                                       250            190           250           250           250

  Printing & Binding                                      250              0           250           250           250

  Books & Publications                                    300            118           300           300           300

  Office Supplies                                           0             30             0             0             0

  Postage Expense                                         500              0           500           500           500

  Other Professional Fees                              10,000              0             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                      700              0           500           500           500

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 500              0           250           250           250

  Travel Expense                                       13,000          6,647        13,000        13,000        13,000

  Education & Training Seminars                         6,000          3,000         6,000         6,000         6,000

  Pre-Employment Screening                                  0             77             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           96             81            89            89            89

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0          3,329             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           57,746         25,409        45,164        45,164        45,164



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   19

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         13,700             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0         13,700             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                       0         18,428             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                           0         18,428             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL FISHERIES                                      459,631        419,894       446,779       446,779       446,779



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   20

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

=======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    334,934        304,701       374,967       374,967       374,967

  Overtime Pay                                          2,040          1,015         1,600         1,600         1,600

  Vacation Pay                                         35,625         24,594        34,093        34,093        34,093

  Jury Duty                                               692          2,445         2,006         2,006         2,006

  Sick Pay                                              9,456         10,892        20,054        20,054        20,054

  Holiday Pay                                          26,901         16,351        18,049        18,049        18,049

   TOTAL Salaries                                     409,648        359,998       450,769       450,769       450,769

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                        58,007         44,846        63,843        63,843        63,843

  Social Security Expense                              25,398         20,817        27,948        27,948        27,948

  Medicare Expense                                      5,940          5,388         6,536         6,536         6,536

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,858          1,622           376           376           376

  Insurance - Group Health                             80,432         67,889        13,871        13,871        13,871

  Insurance - Group Dental                              4,595          3,913           770           770           770

  Insurance - Group Vision                                684            597           191           191           191

   TOTAL Benefits                                     176,914        145,072       113,535       113,535       113,535

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    3,500          1,532         4,100         4,100         4,100

  Service & Supplies                                   16,000         16,867        28,752        21,500        21,500

  Utilities                                            50,000         29,789        42,000        42,000        42,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,500          4,434         7,250         7,250         7,250

  Computer Upgrades - Software                         21,500         34,773        18,000        18,000        18,000

  Leak Relief Expense                                   8,500              0             0             0             0

  Purchased Water                                         950          1,217         1,200         1,200         1,200

  Bad Debt Expense                                      7,500              0         6,700         6,700         6,700

  Outside Contracts                                    76,600        112,429        75,000        75,000        75,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                              0             59             0             0             0

  Communications - Radio & Telep                       36,700         31,089        55,700        55,700        55,700

  Office Equipment Maintenance                          1,750          2,631         3,150         3,150         3,150

  Membership & Dues                                       850            725           850           850           850

  Printing & Binding                                    3,500          1,170         4,500         4,500         4,500

  Office Supplies                                      11,500          7,955        11,500        11,500        11,500

  Postage Expense                                       3,200          3,201         3,650         3,650         3,650

  Other Professional Fees                              45,000         28,407        30,000        30,000        30,000

  Advertising & Legal Notices                             250            235           275           275           275

  Safety Program                                            0              0        77,228        77,228        77,228

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 500             38           350           350           350

  Travel Expense                                        3,000            157         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,600             45         4,100         4,100         4,100

  Interest / Penalty Expenses                         290,864         59,180        50,989        50,989        50,989

  Credit Card Fees                                          0         16,627        20,000        20,000        20,000

  Petty Cash Over / Short                                   0              9             0             0             0



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   21

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Property Tax Collection Fee                           5,500          5,307         5,500         5,500         5,500

  Property Tax Administration Fe                       10,000         22,633        25,000        25,000        25,000

  Insurance - Liability Premium                        64,000         60,984        65,000        65,000        65,000

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                      100,000        129,880       120,000       120,000       120,000

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0            136             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          159            135            41            41            41

  Bank Charges                                         25,000          4,882         7,500         7,500         7,500

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          792,423        576,525       671,335       664,083       664,083

Other Operating Expenses

  Administration Overhead                        (  1,036,865)             0  (    989,846) (    989,846) (    989,846)

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         25,249             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                (  1,036,865)        25,249  (    989,846) (    989,846) (    989,846)

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                   3,000          2,430        80,700        55,700        55,700

  Outside Contracts                                         0              0        25,000             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                       3,000          2,430       105,700        55,700        55,700

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION SERVICES                        345,120      1,109,274       351,493       294,241       294,241



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   22

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

WAREHOUSE

=========

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                      6,928          6,996         6,871         6,871         6,871

  Overtime Pay                                            500             36             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                            737            444           717           717           717

  Jury Duty                                                14              0            42            42            42

  Sick Pay                                                196            238           422           422           422

  Holiday Pay                                             556            334           379           379           379

   TOTAL Salaries                                       8,931          8,049         8,431         8,431         8,431

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                         1,265            879         1,194         1,194         1,194

  Social Security Expense                                 554            499           523           523           523

  Medicare Expense                                        129            117           122           122           122

   TOTAL Benefits                                       1,948          1,495         1,839         1,839         1,839

Services & Supplies

  Service & Supplies                                    3,500          1,049         3,500         3,500         3,500

  Utilities                                             2,500          1,924         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Outside Contracts                                       690              0           690           690           690

  Gains / Losses on Inventory                           7,840            599         7,840         7,840         7,840

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           14,530          3,571        14,530        14,530        14,530

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0            548             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0            548             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Outside Contracts                                    44,000              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                      44,000              0             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WAREHOUSE                                       69,409         13,663        24,800        24,800        24,800



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   23

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

GARAGE

======

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     32,505              0        15,863        15,863        15,863

  Vacation Pay                                          3,458              0         1,654         1,654         1,654

  Jury Duty                                                68              0            98            98            98

  Sick Pay                                                918              0           973           973           973

  Holiday Pay                                           2,611              0           876           876           876

   TOTAL Salaries                                      39,560              0        19,464        19,464        19,464

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                         5,602              0         2,757         2,757         2,757

  Social Security Expense                               2,452              0         1,206         1,206         1,206

  Medicare Expense                                        574              0           282           282           282

  Insurance - Group Life                                    0              0           895           895           895

  Insurance - Group Health                                  0              0        24,689        24,689        24,689

  Insurance - Group Dental                                  0              0         1,337         1,337         1,337

  Insurance - Group Vision                                  0              0           137           137           137

   TOTAL Benefits                                       8,628              0        31,303        31,303        31,303

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                        0          9,464             0             0             0

  Service & Supplies                                   11,600          7,439        15,800        15,800        15,800

  Utilities                                                 0          1,924             0             0             0

  Cost Applied - Service & Suppl                 (    170,000)  (    141,084) (    185,000) (    185,000) (    185,000)

  Vehicle Costs Direct                                125,000         88,635       125,000       125,000       125,000

  Outside Contracts                                         0            325        33,000        50,350        50,350

  Communications - Radio & Telep                            0            172             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                        0              0             0         5,000         5,000

  Travel Expense                                            0              0           600           600           600

  Education & Training  Seminars                        2,500            588         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Gain / Losses on Inventory GAS                            0              0             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                            0              0            30            30            30

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                     (     30,900)  (     32,537) (      8,070)       14,280        14,280

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                  91,500        226,731        43,000        43,000        43,000

  Outside Contracts                                         0              0       102,700       102,700       102,700

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                      91,500        226,731       145,700       145,700       145,700

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL GARAGE                                         108,788        194,193       188,397       210,747       210,747



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   24

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

SAFETY

======

Salaries

  Regular Saleries                                     49,042         19,286        69,980        69,980        69,980

  Vacation Pay                                          5,748              0         7,299         7,299         7,299

  Jury Duty                                               112              0           429           429           429

  Sick Pay                                              1,526              0         4,293         4,293         4,293

  Holiday Pay                                           4,341            327         3,864         3,864         3,864

   TOTAL Salaries                                      60,769         19,613        85,865        85,865        85,865

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                             9,313              0        12,161        12,161        12,161

  Social Security Expense                               4,078          1,216         5,324         5,324         5,324

  Medicare Expense                                        954            284         1,245         1,245         1,245

  Insurance - Group Life                                  630              0             0             0             0

  Insurance - Group Health                             16,445              0             0             0             0

  Insurance - Group Dental                                853              0             0             0             0

  Insurance - Group Vision                                137              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                      32,410          1,500        18,730        18,730        18,730

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                        0              0         1,700         1,700         1,700

  Services & Supplies                                   5,795          7,778         2,800         4,400         4,400

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                              0              0         1,000           500           500

  Computer Upgrades - Software                              0              0           500             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                    15,350         18,129        19,350         2,000         2,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                              0              0           200           200           200

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          300              0           300           300           300

  Memberships & Dues                                        0              0           200           500           500

  Books & Publications                                      0            395             0             0             0

  Professional Services                                     0          1,336             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                    5,000          8,695         5,000             0             0

  Safety                                                    0              0         4,550         9,850         9,850

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                   0              0           150           150           150

  Travel Expense                                            0              0         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Education and Training Seminar                            0          1,378         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Pre-Employee Screening                                    0            105             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           32              0             0             0             0

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0          1,223             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           26,477         39,039        37,750        21,600        21,600

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL SAFETY                                         119,656         60,152       142,345       126,195       126,195



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   25

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ENGINEERING

===========

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    302,525        265,040       394,090       394,090       424,047

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                           3,666            968             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                         27,082         38,917        41,101        41,101        44,226

  Jury Duty                                             3,000            667         2,418         2,418         2,602

  Sick Pay                                              9,967          7,339        24,177        24,177        26,015

  Holiday Pay                                          20,795         20,510        21,760        21,760        23,414

   TOTAL Salaries                                     367,035        333,441       483,546       483,546       520,304

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                        52,130         36,662        68,485        68,485        73,691

  Social Security Expense                              22,828         18,962        29,980        29,980        32,259

  Medicare Expense                                      5,338          4,999         7,011         7,011         7,544

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,761          1,907         4,087         4,087         4,087

  Insurance - Group Health                             39,158         48,832        64,895        64,895        64,895

  Insurance - Group Dental                              2,151          2,957         3,433         3,433         3,433

  Insurance - Group Vision                                547            564           684           684           684

   TOTAL Benefits                                     123,913        114,884       178,575       178,575       186,593

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    6,134          3,843         4,500         4,500         4,500

  Service & Supplies                                    8,200          4,264        11,300        11,300        11,300

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          3,300          4,063             0             0             0

  Computer Upgrades - Software                              0          5,399             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                   112,000         28,523       111,250       111,250       111,250

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                            600            167             0             0             0

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          400            397             0             0             0

  Membership & Dues                                     3,000          3,194         3,200         3,200         3,200

  Printing & Binding                                        0            161             0             0             0

  Books & Publications                                      0            770             0             0             0

  Office Supplies                                         200              0           200           200           200

  Postage Expense                                         100            130            75            75            75

  Other Professional Fees                                   0              0        10,000        10,000        10,000

  Licenses & Permits                                   18,150         16,921        20,200        20,200        20,200

  Safety Program                                            0              0           500           500           500

  Private Vehicle Mileage                               1,500          1,377         2,200         2,200         2,200

  Travel Expense                                        1,500              0         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,000          1,038         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Pre-Employment Screening                                  0            137             0             0             0

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0            142             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          128            127           148           148           148

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          158,212         70,652       168,073       168,073       168,073



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   26

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         23,570             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0         23,570             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders

  Regular Salaries                                     87,165        120,979             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                          9,272              0             0             0             0

  Jury Duty                                               181              0             0             0             0

  Sick Pay                                              2,460              0             0             0             0

  Holiday Pay                                           7,002              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Salaries - Work Orders                       106,080        120,979             0             0             0

Benefits - Work Orders

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            15,021          8,710             0             0             0

  Social Security Expense                               6,578          6,458             0             0             0

  Medicare Expense                                      1,538          1,755             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits - Work Orders                        23,137         16,924             0             0             0

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Service & Supplies                                        0          4,430        35,000        35,000        40,000

  Outside Contracts                                   880,000      1,678,797     2,245,000     2,245,000     2,245,000

  Licenses & Permits                                    4,000              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     884,000      1,683,228     2,280,000     2,280,000     2,285,000

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ENGINEERING                                  1,662,377      2,363,677     3,110,194     3,110,194     3,159,970



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   27

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

WATER QUALITY - LAB

===================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    127,482        119,885       147,488       147,488       147,488

  Overtime Pay                                              0          1,582         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Vacation Pay                                         13,561         11,096        15,186        15,186        15,186

  Jury Duty                                               264              0           893           893           893

  Sick Pay                                              3,600          6,593         8,935         8,935         8,935

  Holiday Pay                                          10,241          6,435         6,161         6,161         6,161

   TOTAL Salaries                                     155,148        145,591       180,663       180,663       180,663

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                        21,969         17,155        25,587        25,587        25,587

  Social Security Expense                               9,619          9,366        11,201        11,201        11,201

  Medicare Expense                                      2,250          2,190         2,620         2,620         2,620

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,035            904         1,035         1,035         1,035

  Insurance - Group Health                             42,120         35,597        43,219        43,219        43,219

  Insurance - Group Dental                              2,877          2,203         2,676         2,676         2,676

  Insurance - Group Vision                                273            239           273           273           273

   TOTAL Benefits                                      80,143         67,654        86,611        86,611        86,611

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    7,176          5,025         7,142         7,142         7,142

  Service & Supplies                                   25,510         13,937        47,906        47,906        47,906

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                              0            140             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                   118,757         74,337        98,617        98,617        98,617

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                            270            121           270           270           270

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          100             35           100           100           100

  Membership & Dues                                       135            125           150           150           150

  Books & Publications                                    250              0           250           250           250

  Postage Expense                                         220            393           340           340           340

  Licenses & Permits                                   16,376         13,883        15,614        15,614        15,614

  Advertising & Legal Notices                             100             79           100           100           100

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 600             96           600           600           600

  Travel Expense                                        1,800          1,569         1,800         2,800         2,800

  Education & Training Seminars                         1,600          1,329         1,900         2,600         2,600

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           64             54            59            59            59

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          172,958        111,123       174,848       176,548       176,548

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         10,159             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0         10,159             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   28

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                       0          3,905        94,159        94,159        94,159

  Outside Contracts                                   700,000              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     700,000          3,905        94,159        94,159        94,159

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WATER QUALITY - LAB                          1,108,249        338,432       536,281       537,981       537,981



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   29

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

UTILITIES MAINTENANCE

=====================

Salaries

  Regular Salary                                            0              0       250,050       250,050       250,050

  Overtime Pay                                              0              0        20,000        20,000        20,000

  Vacation Pay                                              0              0        26,078        26,078        26,078

  Jury Duty Pay                                             0              0         1,534         1,534         1,534

  Sick Pay                                                  0              0        15,341        15,341        15,341

  Holiday Pay                                               0              0        13,806        13,806        13,806

   TOTAL Salaries                                           0              0       326,809       326,809       326,809

Benefits

  CalPers - Classic                                         0              0        46,287        46,287        46,287

  Social Security                                           0              0        20,263        20,263        20,263

  Medicare Expense                                          0              0         4,738         4,738         4,738

  Insurance - Group Life                                    0              0           400           400           400

  Insurance - Group Health                                  0              0         2,227         2,227         2,227

  Insurance Group - Dental                                  0              0         1,762         1,762         1,762

  Insurance - Group Vision                                  0              0           273           273           273

   TOTAL Benefits                                           0              0        75,950        75,950        75,950

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                        0              0        15,000        15,000        15,000

  Services & Supplies                                       0              0        82,360        82,360        82,360

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                              0              0         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Outside Services                                          0              0         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                              0              0           700           700           700

  Comm. - Radio & Telephones                                0              0           960           960           960

  Licenses and Permits                                      0              0           950           950           950

  Small Tools                                               0              0         7,400         7,400         7,400

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                   0              0           300           300           300

  Travel Expenses                                           0              0         1,500         1,500         1,500

  Education & Training Seminars                             0              0         5,340         5,340         5,340

  Insurance - EAP                                           0              0            59            59            59

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                                0              0       119,569       119,569       119,569

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL UTILITIES MAINTENANCE                                0              0       522,328       522,328       522,328



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   30

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL

=====================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    354,597        241,892       259,140       259,140       259,140

  Overtime Pay                                          9,000          5,674        16,300        16,300        16,300

  Standby Pay                                          12,008          4,364             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                         37,716         22,489        27,026        27,026        27,026

  Jury Duty                                               734          1,079         1,590         1,590         1,590

  Sick Pay                                             10,012         10,351        15,897        15,897        15,897

  Holiday Pay                                          28,482         12,238        14,308        14,308        14,308

   TOTAL Salaries                                     452,549        298,087       334,261       334,261       334,261

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                        64,081         31,106        47,342        47,342        47,342

  Social Security Expense                              28,057         19,002        20,723        20,723        20,723

  Medicare Expense                                      6,563          4,444         4,848         4,848         4,848

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,259            961           982           982           982

  Insurance - Group Health                             83,625         51,770        61,429        61,429        61,429

  Insurance - Group Dental                              4,583          2,999         2,980         2,980         2,980

  Insurance - Group Vision                                547            391           410           410           410

   TOTAL Benefits                                     188,715        110,671       138,714       138,714       138,714

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   12,000         12,922             0        18,000        18,000

  Service & Supplies                                  103,600        125,563        57,350        58,350        58,350

  Utilities                                                 0         19,939             0             0             0

  Power Purchased for Pumping                       1,600,000      1,111,257     1,650,000     1,650,000     1,650,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                            500          3,019         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Outside Contracts                                   148,500         75,612        84,100        84,100        84,100

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          2,500          2,670         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        4,000          3,699         6,600         6,600         6,600

  Books & Publications                                    600            598           600           600           600

  Office Supplies                                         200              0             0             0             0

  Postage Expense                                           0            130             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                    4,500            180             0             0             0

  Advertising & Legal Notices                               0            200             0             0             0

  Small Tools                                          19,270          2,197         2,475         2,475         2,475

  Safety Program                                        2,000              0             0             0             0

  Private Vehicle Mileage                               2,000              0             0             0             0

  Education & Training Seminars                        16,740          4,809         7,995         7,995         7,995

  Pre-Employment Screening                                  0             60             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          126             88            89            89            89

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0          2,406             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                        1,916,536      1,365,348     1,812,709     1,831,709     1,831,709



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   31

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         17,519             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0         17,519             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Service & Supplies                                        0         24,359       283,900       116,400       116,400

  Outside Contracts                                   633,000        378,985       910,000       560,000       560,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     633,000        403,343     1,193,900       676,400       676,400

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL ELECTRICAL MECHANICAL                        3,190,800      2,194,968     3,479,584     2,981,084     2,981,084



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   32

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

DIST MAINT - PIPELINE

=====================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    247,171        242,702       271,798       271,798       271,798

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                               0              0        24,000        24,000        24,000

  Overtime Pay                                         15,000         25,307        20,000        20,000        20,000

  Standby Pay                                          12,008         10,614        12,008        12,008        12,008

  Vacation Pay                                         26,290         17,388        28,347        28,347        28,347

  Jury Duty                                               510              0         1,667         1,667         1,667

  Sick Pay                                              6,980         10,076        16,675        16,675        16,675

  Holiday Pay                                          19,853         12,339        15,006        15,006        15,006

   TOTAL Salaries                                     327,812        318,427       389,501       389,501       389,501

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                        44,718         29,333        50,064        50,064        50,064

  Social Security Expense                              20,323         20,209        24,149        24,149        24,149

  Medicare Expense                                      4,753          4,758         5,646         5,646         5,646

  Insurance - Group Life                                1,616          1,195         1,506         1,506         1,506

  Insurance - Group Health                             92,048         71,262        80,421        80,421        80,421

  Insurance - Group Dental                              5,753          4,447         4,833         4,833         4,833

  Insurance - Group Vision                                547            488           547           547           547

   TOTAL Benefits                                     169,758        131,693       167,166       167,166       167,166

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   45,500         32,740        43,500        43,500        43,500

  Service & Supplies                                  204,497        149,143       171,650       171,650       171,650

  Utilities                                                 0          1,542             0             0             0

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,500          2,546         3,500         3,500         3,500

  Outside Contracts                                   220,100         97,111       175,800       175,800       175,800

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          4,555          2,636         4,875         4,875         4,875

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        3,300          1,400           600           600           600

  Books & Publications                                    200              0           250           250           250

  Postage Expense                                           0             53             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                    1,600            441         1,600         1,600         1,600

  Small Tools                                          14,850          6,088        34,500        26,450        26,450

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                   0            397             0             0             0

  Travel Expense                                            0          1,368             0         1,000         1,000

  Education & Training Seminars                        16,300          3,362        15,800        13,700        13,700

  Property Losses for Operations                            0          2,058             0             0             0

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0            147             0             0             0

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             93             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          128            110           118           118           118

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0          2,863             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          513,530        304,099       452,193       443,043       443,043



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   33

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         16,694             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0         16,694             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                 108,350         26,434             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                   101,500              0       150,000             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     209,850         26,434       150,000             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL DIST MAINT - PIPELINE                        1,220,950        797,347     1,158,860       999,710       999,710



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   34

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

WATER TREATMENT

===============

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    610,496        734,866       413,676       413,676       413,676

  Overtime Pay                                         20,000         36,208        35,950        35,950        35,950

  Shift Pay                                                 0            898             0             0             0

  Standby Pay                                          24,016         17,108        11,040        11,040        11,040

  Vacation Pay                                         64,935         47,828        43,144        43,144        43,144

  Jury Duty                                             1,263            711         2,538         2,538         2,538

  Sick Pay                                             17,236         16,139        25,380        25,380        25,380

  Holiday Pay                                          49,035         32,623        22,842        22,842        22,842

   TOTAL Salaries                                     786,981        886,380       554,570       554,570       554,570

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                       109,735         74,164        78,544        78,544        78,544

  Social Security Expense                              50,282         53,806        35,068        35,068        35,068

  Medicare Expense                                     11,760         13,210         8,202         8,202         8,202

  Insurance - Group Life                                2,636          2,747         3,966         3,966         3,966

  Insurance - Group Health                            161,585        137,010       209,811       209,811       209,811

  Insurance - Group Dental                              9,763          8,152        11,853        11,853        11,853

  Insurance - Group Vision                              1,230          1,052         1,504         1,504         1,504

  Insurance - Unemployment                                287              0             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                     347,278        290,140       348,948       348,948       348,948

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                    5,000         20,068        15,000        15,000        15,000

  Service & Supplies                                  108,035         73,258        87,060        88,660        88,660

  Utilities                                           187,500        100,531       153,000       153,000       153,000

  Chlorine                                            101,550         81,380        98,000        98,000        98,000

  Polymer                                              32,700         29,898        46,500        46,500        46,500

  Ferric                                               16,500          8,807        17,000        17,000        17,000

  Ammonia                                              36,000         30,263        37,000        37,000        37,000

  Caustics                                            110,000         62,001        85,000        85,000        85,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          1,880          2,294           700           700           700

  Computer Upgrades - Software                          1,320              0             0             0             0

  Liquid Oxygen                                       174,000         71,045       140,000       140,000       140,000

  Outside Contracts                                   140,375         11,932        37,500        30,500        30,500

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          1,450          2,824         1,050         1,050         1,050

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        4,260          4,134         3,550         3,550         3,550

  Membership & Dues                                         0              0             0           505           505

  Postage Expense                                           0            106             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                    2,455          1,573         2,210         2,450         2,450

  Small Tools                                           6,220          4,805         1,915         1,915         1,915

  Safety Program                                          340              0             0             0             0

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 300          1,998         3,000         6,350         6,350

  Travel Expense                                        1,500          2,650             0         2,200         2,200

  Education & Training Seminars                        15,510          5,453         3,680         5,080         5,080



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   35

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0            636             0             0             0

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0            186             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                            0            238           326           326           326

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0          9,103             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          946,895        525,180       732,491       734,786       734,786

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         41,751             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0         41,751             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Service & Supplies                                  130,000         96,509        50,000       110,000       110,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,700              0             0             0             0

  Computer Upgrades - Software                         22,000          9,530             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                   584,900        261,675       520,600       358,600       358,600

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     739,600        367,714       570,600       468,600       468,600

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT                              2,820,754      2,111,166     2,206,609     2,106,904     2,106,904



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   36

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

OPERATIONS - MAINTENANCE

========================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     85,178         88,746        98,165        98,165        98,165

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                          29,850         23,395        29,850        29,996        29,996

  Overtime Pay                                              0   (         21)          500           500           500

  Vacation Pay                                          9,059          3,375        10,238        10,238        10,238

  Jury Duty                                               176              0           544           544           544

  Sick Pay                                              2,404          4,777         5,500         5,500         5,500

  Holiday Pay                                           6,841          4,483         5,477         5,477         5,477

   TOTAL Salaries                                     133,508        124,755       150,274       150,420       150,420

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            14,678          8,023        17,130        17,130        17,130

  Social Security Expense                               8,278          7,959         9,350         9,359         9,359

  Medicare Expense                                      1,936          1,862         2,186         2,188         2,188

  Insurance - Group Life                                  343            299           343           343           343

  Insurance - Group Health                             26,604         21,292        27,395        27,395        27,395

  Insurance - Group Dental                              1,286          1,107         1,246         1,246         1,246

  Insurance - Group Vision                                273            239           273           273           273

   TOTAL Benefits                                      53,398         40,781        57,923        57,934        57,934

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   20,000         19,292        20,522        20,522        20,522

  Service & Supplies                                   36,000         31,713        36,250        36,250        36,250

  Utilities                                               500            593         1,200         1,200         1,200

  SWP - CMWD Share of Expense                               0        183,384             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                    48,000         19,116        38,000        38,000        38,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          2,380          1,319         2,500         2,500         2,500

  Communications - Radio & Telep                        1,000             80           750           750           750

  Membership & Dues                                       100             45           100           100           100

  Licenses & Permits                                      400             90           400           400           400

  Small Tools                                           6,200          4,725         6,000         6,000         6,000

  Safety Program                                          500              0             0             0             0

  Education & Training Seminars                         1,800            853         1,600         1,600         1,600

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0          1,743             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                           64             54            59            59            59

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0          2,457             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          116,944        265,465       107,381       107,381       107,381

Other Operating Expenses

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0          4,433             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                           0          4,433             0             0             0

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   37

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                       0              0       200,000             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                    17,000              0       613,000             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                      17,000              0       813,000             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL OPERATIONS - MAINTENANCE                       320,850        435,434     1,128,578       315,735       315,735



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   38

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RECREATION - OPERATIONS

=======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    514,873        467,424       542,867       542,867       542,867

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                         148,762        179,692       202,380       202,380       202,380

  Overtime Pay                                         20,000        143,890         5,000         5,000         5,000

  Shift Pay                                            12,000         12,554        12,000        12,000        12,000

  Standby Pay                                               0          5,660             0             0             0

  Vacation Pay                                         54,764         17,252        56,618        56,618        56,618

  Jury Duty                                             1,064            796         3,331         3,331         3,331

  Sick Pay                                             14,536         23,730        33,305        33,305        33,305

  Holiday Pay                                          41,354         20,502        29,974        29,974        29,974

  Seasonal Pay                                              0         30,885             0             0             0

   TOTAL Salaries                                     807,353        902,386       885,475       885,475       885,475

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                        93,257         46,435        96,745        96,745        96,745

  Social Security Expense                              50,056         56,621        54,900        54,900        54,900

  Medicare Expense                                     11,706         13,526        12,839        12,839        12,839

  Insurance - Group Life                                3,059          2,671         3,614         3,614         3,614

  Insurance - Group Health                            102,210         86,680       141,580       141,580       141,580

  Insurance - Group Dental                              6,325          5,411         7,688         7,688         7,688

  Insurance - Group Vision                              1,230          1,074         1,504         1,504         1,504

   TOTAL Benefits                                     267,843        212,418       318,870       318,870       318,870

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   50,000         53,358        60,000        60,000        60,000

  Service & Supplies                                   19,580         49,497        25,300        25,300        25,300

  Utilities                                           102,000         91,457       105,000       105,000       105,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          2,000          3,656         2,200         2,200         2,200

  Computer Upgrades - Software                            800              0             0             0             0

  Bad Debt Expense                                        300   (         50)            0             0             0

  Fish Purchase                                        30,000         29,998             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                    12,250         76,051        24,340        24,340        24,340

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          8,900          3,220        14,240        14,240        14,240

  Communications - Radio & Telep                       15,570         10,328        11,580        11,580        11,580

  Membership & Dues                                     1,400            935             0             0             0

  Printing & Binding                                    3,000          2,413             0             0             0

  Office Supplies                                       3,000          1,013         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Postage Expense                                           0             27             0             0             0

  Other Professional Fees                                   0         21,044         8,370         8,370         8,370

  Licenses & Permits                                    7,500          3,905         3,250         3,250         3,250

  Advertising & Legal Notices                             650            702           400           400           400

  Small Tools                                               0             86             0             0             0

  Public Information Program                            1,500            951             0             0             0

  Safety Program                                        1,200            560             0             0             0

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                 900             53           400           400           400



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   39

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Travel Expense                                        2,000            592         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,700            729         8,420         8,420         8,420

  Pre-Employment Screening                              6,000            763         1,300         1,300         1,300

  Credit Card Fees                                      7,300          7,556         8,000         8,000         8,000

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             93             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          287            242           326           326           326

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0         13,646             0             0             0

  Bank Charges                                              0             14             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          279,837        372,840       276,126       276,126       276,126

Other Operating Expenses

  Other Operating Expenses                                  0            108             0             0             0

  Administration Overhead                             511,823              0       510,178       510,178       510,178

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         21,195             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                     511,823         21,303       510,178       510,178       510,178

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                       0          2,090             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                    75,000         33,418        75,000        75,000        75,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                      75,000         35,508        75,000        75,000        75,000

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RECREATION - OPERATIONS                      1,941,856      1,544,455     2,065,649     2,065,649     2,065,649



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   40

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RECREATION - MAINTENANCE

========================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                    192,584        198,270       194,761       194,761       194,761

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                         137,856        150,884       154,200       154,200       154,200

  Overtime Pay                                          5,000          6,191         5,300         5,300         5,300

  Vacation Pay                                         20,484          6,486        20,313        20,313        20,313

  Jury Duty                                               398            199         1,195         1,195         1,195

  Sick Pay                                              5,437          7,259        11,949        11,949        11,949

  Holiday Pay                                          15,469          9,890        10,754        10,754        10,754

  Seasonal Pay                                              0          1,522             0             0             0

   TOTAL Salaries                                     377,228        380,701       398,472       398,472       398,472

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                        33,895         21,517        34,596        34,596        34,596

  Social Security Expense                              23,388         24,324        24,705        24,705        24,705

  Medicare Expense                                      5,470          5,689         5,778         5,778         5,778

  Insurance - Group Life                                  708            699           708           708           708

  Insurance - Group Health                             65,479         51,801        63,035        63,035        63,035

  Insurance - Group Dental                              3,742          2,883         3,524         3,524         3,524

  Insurance - Group Vision                                547            774           547           547           547

  Insurance - Unemployment                                  0            241             0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                     133,229        107,929       132,893       132,893       132,893

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                   76,000         44,416        58,000        58,000        58,000

  Service & Supplies                                   96,500         87,594        98,900        65,900        65,900

  Utilities                                             1,500          1,324         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                            500              0         1,200         1,200         1,200

  Computer Upgrades - Software                            200              0             0             0             0

  Purchased Water                                      27,500         38,628        42,500        42,500        42,500

  Outside Contracts                                   117,800         73,444       103,000       103,000       103,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          3,000          2,321         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Communications - Radio & Telep                            0            297           450           450           450

  Membership & Dues                                         0             45             0             0             0

  Office Supplies                                         100            191             0             0             0

  Postage Expense                                          20              0             0             0             0

  Other Professional Fees                                   0          7,488             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                        0            252             0             0             0

  Small Tools                                           8,300          8,000         4,800         4,800         4,800

  Safety Program                                            0              0         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Travel Expense                                        2,000          1,088         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,000          5,745         3,000         3,000         3,000

  Pre-Employment Screening                                  0            263             0             0             0

  Insurance - Workers Compensati                            0          5,738             0             0             0

  Insurance - Aflac Service Fee                             0             43             0             0             0

  Insurance - Employee Assistanc                          128            108           118           118           118



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   41

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0          2,370             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          336,548        279,356       319,968       286,968       286,968

Other Operating Expenses

  Administration Overhead                             242,987              0       225,083       225,083       225,083

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0         12,923             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                     242,987         12,923       225,083       225,083       225,083

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                       0             21        23,000        23,000        23,000

  Outside Contracts                                    75,000         79,821        62,500        62,500       137,500

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                      75,000         79,842        85,500        85,500       160,500

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RECREATION - MAINTENANCE                     1,164,992        860,751     1,161,916     1,128,916     1,203,916



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   42

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RECREATION - PUBLIC REL

=======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     42,312              0        44,068        44,068        44,068

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                          55,370         40,076        56,350        56,350        56,350

  Overtime Pay                                            300              0           500           500           500

  Vacation Pay                                          4,501              0         4,596         4,596         4,596

  Jury Duty                                                88              0           270           270           270

  Sick Pay                                              1,195              0         2,704         2,704         2,704

  Holiday Pay                                           3,399              0         2,433         2,433         2,433

  Seasonal Pay                                              0          5,071             0             0             0

   TOTAL Salaries                                     107,165         45,147       110,921       110,921       110,921

Benefits

  CalPERS Pension Exp - Classic                         7,334              0         7,729         7,729         7,729

  Social Security Expense                               6,644          2,799         6,877         6,877         6,877

  Medicare Expense                                      1,554            655         1,608         1,608         1,608

   TOTAL Benefits                                      15,532          3,454        16,214        16,214        16,214

Services & Supplies

  Service & Supplies                                    4,300         10,385         7,400         7,400         7,400

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          4,000          3,910             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                    15,000          4,975        15,000        15,000        15,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          1,720            447         1,200         1,200         1,200

  Office Equipment Maintenance                              0              0           500           500           500

  Membership & Dues                                         0            300             0             0             0

  Printing & Binding                                   12,000          4,984             0             0             0

  Office Supplies                                           0            587             0             0             0

  Postage Expense                                           0          1,400             0             0             0

  Advertising & Legal Notices                               0            320             0             0             0

  Public Information Program                            6,860          4,513         4,000         4,000         4,000

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                   0              0        36,000        36,000        36,000

  Credit Card Fees                                     30,000         37,365             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                           73,880         69,186        64,100        64,100        64,100

Other Operating Expenses

  Administration Overhead                              58,392              0        53,842        53,842        53,842

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                      58,392              0        53,842        53,842        53,842

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RECREATION - PUBLIC REL                        254,969        117,786       245,077       245,077       245,077



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   43

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

RECREATION - WATER PARK

=======================

Salaries

  Regular Salaries                                     59,003         58,426        58,522        58,522        58,522

  Part Time - Temporary Wages                         173,901         82,007       357,100       357,100       357,100

  Overtime Pay                                          1,080            230           900           900           900

  Shift Pay                                               889              0           842           842           842

  Vacation Pay                                          6,276          6,431         6,104         6,104         6,104

  Jury Duty                                               122            271           359           359           359

  Sick Pay                                              1,666          3,945         3,590         3,590         3,590

  Holiday Pay                                           4,739          3,249         3,231         3,231         3,231

  Seasonal Pay                                        179,200        166,098             0             0             0

   TOTAL Salaries                                     426,876        320,657       430,648       430,648       430,648

Benefits

  PERS - Retirement Expense                            10,447          7,982        10,417        10,417        10,417

  Social Security Expense                              26,466         21,354        26,700        26,700        26,700

  Medicare Expense                                      6,190          4,994         6,244         6,244         6,244

  Insurance - Group Health                                  0   (        947)            0             0             0

   TOTAL Benefits                                      43,103         33,383        43,361        43,361        43,361

Services & Supplies

  District Equipment                                        0             20             0             0             0

  Service & Supplies                                   40,700         42,370        60,300        60,300        60,300

  Utilities                                            35,000         32,841        40,000        40,000        40,000

  Chlorine                                             22,000         21,324        23,000        23,000        23,000

  Chemicals - Water Playground                          4,000          3,366         4,000         4,000         4,000

  Computer Upgrades - Hardware                          1,000            347         2,000         2,000         2,000

  Computer Upgrades - Software                            300              0         1,000         1,000         1,000

  Purchased Water                                      27,500              0             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                    13,500          9,094        19,000        19,000        19,000

  Clothing & Personal Supplies                          7,000          5,903         7,000         7,000         7,000

  Communications - Radio & Telep                          400            909             0             0             0

  Office Equipment Maintenance                            200              0             0             0             0

  Membership & Dues                                       485            395           450           450           450

  Printing & Binding                                      800              0             0             0             0

  Books & Publications                                    200              0           600           600           600

  Office Supplies                                         200          1,427             0             0             0

  Other Professional Fees                                   0          6,195             0             0             0

  Licenses & Permits                                    8,422          1,130         1,425         1,425         1,425

  Advertising & Legal Notices                           3,000          1,060         4,000         4,000         4,000

  Small Tools                                           2,200            215           500           500           500

  Public Information Program                            4,900          1,357        10,000        10,000        10,000

  Safety Program                                            0          1,009             0             0             0

  Private Vehicle Mileage                                  75              0             0             0             0

  Travel Expense                                          400              0           800           800           800

  Education & Training Seminars                         3,000          2,274         1,000         1,000         1,000



 

 6-16-2016 12:24 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:   44

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

11 -GENERAL FUND

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  Pre-Employment Screening                              3,200          4,468         6,000         6,000         6,000

  Credit Card Fees                                      9,500         11,875        10,000        10,000        10,000

  Uninsured Losses - Injuries &                             0          3,000             0             0             0

  CalPers Pension Exp - PEPRA                               0             78             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                          187,982        150,658       191,075       191,075       191,075

Other Operating Expenses

  Administration Overhead                             223,663              0       200,743       200,743       200,743

  CalPERS Employer Paid for Emp                             0          4,884             0             0             0

   TOTAL Other Operating Expenses                     223,663          4,884       200,743       200,743       200,743

Salaries - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Benefits - Work Orders                            ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

Services & Supplies-W.O.

  Services & Supplies                                  78,000         20,042             0             0             0

  Outside Contracts                                    32,200              0        18,000        18,000        18,000

   TOTAL Services & Supplies-W.O.                     110,200         20,042        18,000        18,000        18,000

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL RECREATION - WATER PARK                        991,824        529,624       883,827       883,827       883,827

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                 18,373,502     15,086,720    20,522,046    18,858,696    18,983,472

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                (  1,771,576)  (  1,251,421) (  4,942,189) (  3,129,541) (  3,254,317)



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    1

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

29 -USBR & SWP BONDED INDEBT

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

                                                  ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    2

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

29 -USBR & SWP BONDED INDEBT

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

PROPERTY TAX

  Services & Supplies                                       0          2,257             0             0             0

      TOTAL PROPERTY TAX                                    0          2,257             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          2,257             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      2,257)            0             0             0



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    3

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

29 -USBR & SWP BONDED INDEBT

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    4

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

29 -USBR & SWP BONDED INDEBT

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

PROPERTY TAX

============

Services & Supplies

  Property Tax Collection Fee                               0          1,761             0             0             0

  Property Tax Administration Fe                            0            496             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                                0          2,257             0             0             0

Other Operating Expenses                          ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PROPERTY TAX                                         0          2,257             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          2,257             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      2,257)            0             0             0



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    1

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

69 -MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSME

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

                                                  ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    2

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

69 -MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSME

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

PROPERTY TAX

  Services & Supplies                                       0          5,321             0             0             0

      TOTAL PROPERTY TAX                                    0          5,321             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          5,321             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      5,321)            0             0             0



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    3

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

69 -MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSME

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    4

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

69 -MIRA MONTE WATER ASSESSME

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

PROPERTY TAX

============

Services & Supplies

  Interest / Penalty Expenses                               0          5,275             0             0             0

  Property Tax Collection Fee                               0             46             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                                0          5,321             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL PROPERTY TAX                                         0          5,321             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          5,321             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      5,321)            0             0             0



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    1

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

75 -CFD -2013-1

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

REVENUE SUMMARY

                                                  ___________    ___________   ___________   ___________   ___________



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    2

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

75 -CFD -2013-1

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

 

                                                      BUDGET       REV./EXP.    DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

                                                    2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

 

Property Tax

  Services & Supplies                                       0          1,116             0             0             0

      TOTAL Property Tax                                    0          1,116             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          1,116             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      1,116)            0             0             0



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    3

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

75 -CFD -2013-1

 

 

                                                      BUDGET       REVENUES     DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

REVENUES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________



 

 6-16-2016 12:25 PM                         CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                                 PAGE:    4

                                             REVENUE/EXPENDITURES STATEMENT

                                             PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2016/2017

75 -CFD -2013-1

 

 

                                                      BUDGET     EXPENDITURES   DEPARTMENT     GEN MGR         BOARD

EXPENSES                                            2015-2016     T0:30Jun16     REQUESTED   RECOMMENDED     APPROVED

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Property Tax

============

Services & Supplies

  Property Tax collection Fee                               0          1,116             0             0             0

   TOTAL Services & Supplies                                0          1,116             0             0             0

     __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL Property Tax                                         0          1,116             0             0             0

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                          0          1,116             0             0             0

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES                           0   (      1,116)            0             0             0



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-17 
 

RESOLUTION FIXING A TAX RATE FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 AND AUTHORIZING AND 

DIRECTING THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD TO EXECUTE A 
CERIFICATE REQUESTING THE VENTURA COUNTY 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO LEVY SUCH TAX 
 
 

WHEREAS, the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 on June 6, 1978; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Proposition 13 limits tax rates to voter-approved indebtedness; and 
 

WHEREAS, the indebtedness for the State Water Project was approved by the voters of 
Ventura county along with all the voters of the State of California on November 8, 1960, and 
December 19, 1933 and the payments for fiscal year 2016-2017 totals $183,384.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ventura county collection and administrative fees are estimated to be 
$2,235.; and are voter-approved, authorized expenditures; and  
 

WHEREAS,  on the basis of valuation figures furnished by the Ventura County Auditor, 
the amount to be raised by tax levy on unsecured personal property is $35,522.; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the basis of information furnished by the Ventura County Auditor, the 
amount to be raised by State subventions for voter-approved indebtedness amounts to $809.; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is estimated that $16,250.; will be received from the County in prior year 
tax delinquencies; and  
 

WHEREAS, taking account of the amount to be raised by tax levy on unsecured personal 
property, the amount to be raised by state subventions, and the amount to be received in prior 
delinquencies, the amount to be raised by taxation on secured property for voter-approved 
indebtedness of $156,752.; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the basis of figures furnished by the Ventura county Auditor, the net 
assessed/market valuation of local secured property, exclusive of the utility roll, is 
$8,745,800,794.; and the net assessed/market valuation of secured property on the utility roll is 
estimated at $109,905.; and the net assessed/market valuation of all secured property in Casitas is 
estimated at $8,678,407,594.; and 
 

WHEREAS, with a 2.500 percent allowance for delinquency on net local secured 
property of $9,459,998,378.; the current year delinquencies are estimated at $236,499,959.; and 
 



WHEREAS, the reduction for redevelopment assessments is $545,090,825.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the addition for the Homeowners Property Tax Relief exemption is 
$67,393,200; and 
 

WHEREAS, the tax rate required to raise the necessary funds of $0.001200 per hundred 
dollars of assessed/market valuation on all property within Casitas’ boundaries; 
 

WHEREAS, the tax rate in the previous year was $0.007083 per hundred dollars of 
assessed/market valuation; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1. The tax rate of Casitas Municipal Water District on all property within Casitas’ 
boundaries for fiscal year 2016-2017 is hereby fixed at $0.001200 per hundred dollars 
of assessed/market valuation for voter-approved indebtedness. 

 
2. The president of the Board of Directors is hereby authorized and directed to execute a 

certificate in the form attached hereto. 
 

Adopted this 22nd day of June, 2016. 
 
 
 
                                                                                    ___________________________ 
       Pete Kaiser, President 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



CERTIFICATE 
 

 
 

The Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal Water District hereby certifies to the 
Board of Supervisors and Auditor of the County of Ventura as follows: 
 
1. Casitas has voter-approved indebtedness for fiscal year 2016-17 for the following: 

 
a. $183,384. for the State Water Project indebtedness which was approved by 

the voters of the State of California on November 8, 1960 and December 19, 
1933. 

 
2. It is hereby directed that at the time and in the manner required by law for the levying 

of taxes for County purposes for fiscal year 2016-17, the Board of Supervisors of 
Ventura county shall levy, in addition to such other tax as may be levied by such 
Board, a tax on all property within Casitas’ boundaries at the rate of $0.001200 per 
hundred dollars of assessed/market valuation.   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF this certificate has been executed on behalf of and at the 
direction of the Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal Water District by the President 
thereof this 22nd  day of June, 2016. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Pete Kaiser, President 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 

 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-18 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 
FOR THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 
 

 
WHEREAS, Section 7910 of the Government Code requires each local jurisdiction to 

establish its appropriations limit by resolution for the following fiscal year pursuant to Article 
XIII B of the California constitution at a regularly scheduled meeting or noticed special meeting; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, 15 days prior to such meeting, documentation used in the determination of 
the appropriations limit has been made available to the public; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the determination of the appropriations limit is a legislative act; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Casitas 
Municipal Water District hereby establishes the appropriations limit of $12,669,524. for Casitas 
Municipal Water District for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, pursuant to Article XIII B of 
the California Constitution. 
 
 ADOPTED this 22th day of June, 2016 
 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Pete Kaiser, President 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 16-19 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, ACTING IN ITS 
CAPACITY AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF CASITAS 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 2013-1 (OJAI), AUTHORIZING THE LEVY OF 
A SPECIAL TAX FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 29, 2013 this Board of Directors (the “Board”) adopted 
Resolution No. 13-08, entitled “Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District, California Declaring Its Intention to Establish Community Facilities District No. 
2013-1 (OJAI), to Authorize the Levy of Special Taxes Therein” (the “Resolution of Intention”), 
stating its intention to form Casitas Municipal Water District Community Facilities District No. 
2013-1 (OJAI) (the ”CFD”) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as 
amended, Section 53311 et seq. of the California Government Code (the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 13, 2013, after providing all notice required by the Act, the Board 
held a noticed public hearing required by the Act relative to the formation of Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI), the proposed levy of a special tax within Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) to finance certain improvements within the CFD as 
described in Resolution No. 13-08 and to secure the payment of any bonded indebtedness of the 
CFD, and the proposed issuance of up to $60,000,000 of bonded indebtedness for Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI); and 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2013, following the close of the public hearing, the Board 
adopted Resolution Nos. 13-12 (the “Resolution of Formation”) and 13-13 (the “Resolution to 
Incur Bonded Indebtedness”) which called a special election on August 27, 2013 within 
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) on Measure V relating to the levying of a 
special tax, the incurring of bonded indebtedness and the establishment of an appropriations limit 
for the Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 27, 2013, a special election was held within Community 
Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) at which the qualified electors approved by more than a 
two-thirds vote Measure V authorizing the levy of a special tax within the Community Facilities 
District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) for the purposes described in the Resolution of Intention and the 
Resolution of Formation and the issuance of bonded indebtedness for Community Facilities 
District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) as described in the Resolution to Incur Bonded Indebtedness; and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 13, 2013, the Board adopted Resolution No. 13-38 declaring 
the results of the special election, which results showed that the issues presented at said special 
election were approved by the qualified electors of the CFD by more than two-thirds of the votes 
cast at said special election; and 

 



 WHEREAS, on November 27, 2013 the Board adopted Ordinance No. 13-01 which 
authorized the levy of a special tax within Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) (the 
“Ordinance”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Board hereby certifies that the Ordinance authorizing the levy of the 
special taxes within Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) has been duly adopted in 
accordance with law and is legal and valid; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ordinance provides that the Board is further authorized to determine 
each year, by ordinance, or by resolution if permitted by then applicable law, on or before 
August 10 of each year, or such later date as is permitted by the law, the specific special tax rate 
and amount to be levied on each parcel of land in Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 
(OJAI) pursuant to the rate and method of apportionment set forth for Community Facilities 
District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) in Exhibit “B” to Resolution No. 13-12 (the “Rate and Method”).  
The special tax rate to be levied pursuant to the Rate and Method shall not exceed the applicable 
maximum rates set forth therein, but the special tax may be levied at a lower rate; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is now necessary and appropriate that the Board levy and collect the 
special taxes for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 for the purpose specified in the Ordinance, by the 
adoption of a resolution as specified by the Act and the Ordinance; and 
 

NOW, therefore, the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water District acting in 
its capacity as the legislative body of Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) does 
hereby resolve as follows: 

 
 Section 1. The above recitals are all true and correct. 
 
 Section 2. In accordance with Section 53340 of the Act and the Ordinance, there is 
hereby levied upon the parcels within the CFD which are not otherwise exempt from taxation 
under the Act or the Ordinance the special taxes for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 (the “Special 
Taxes”), at the tax rates set forth in Exhibit 1 hereto.  The Special Tax Consultant shall apportion 
the Special Taxes in the manner specified in Resolution Nos. 13-12 and 13-13.  Such rates do not 
exceed the maximum rates set forth in the Ordinance.  After adoption of this Resolution, but no 
later than July 5, 2016 (the County’s deadline of accepting direct assessment enrollments for tax 
year 2016-2017), or such later date as is permitted by the law, the Special Tax Consultant shall 
deliver the certified list of all parcels subject to the special tax levy, including the amount of the 
Special Taxes to be levied on each parcel in Fiscal Year 2016-2017 (the “Certified List”), to the 
Accounting Manager or designee, and thereafter, but in no event later than July 5, 2016, or such 
later date as is permitted by the law, the Accounting Manager or designee, shall cause a certified 
copy of this Resolution, together with the Certified List, to be filed with the County Auditor-
Controller, or in the case of direct billing, at a different time or in a different manner if necessary 
to meet its financial obligations.  The Certified List may contain tax rates lower than those set 
forth in Exhibit 1 if the Accounting Manager determines that such lower rates are adequate to 
accomplish the purposes of the CFD in Fiscal Year 2016-2017.  The Accounting Manager or 
designee and the County Auditor-Controller are hereby authorized to make changes to the 
Certified List from time to time to correct any error in the amount of the levy on any parcel to 



make it consistent with the Rate and Method, including, but not limited to, adding any parcels 
omitted from the Certified List or deleting any parcels included in the Certified List. 
 
 Section 3. Properties or entities of the state, federal or other local governments shall 
be exempt from the special tax, except as otherwise provided in Sections 53317.3 and 53317.5 of 
the Act and the Rate and Method.  No other properties or entities are exempt from the special tax 
unless the properties or entities are expressly exempted in the Resolution of Formation, or in a 
resolution of consideration to levy a new special tax or special taxes or to alter the rate or method 
of apportionment of an existing special tax as provided in Section 53334 of the Act. 
 
 Section 4. All of the collections of the special tax pursuant to the Rate and Method 
shall be used as provided for in the Act and the Resolution of Formation.  The special tax shall 
be levied within Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (OJAI) only so long as needed for the 
purposes described in the Resolution of Formation. 
 
 Section 5. The special tax levied pursuant to the Rate and Method shall be collected 
in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes are collected and shall be subject to 
the same penalties and the same procedure, sale and lien priority in case of delinquency as is 
provided for ad valorem taxes (which such procedures include the exercise of all rights and 
remedies permitted by law to make corrections, including, but not limited to, the issuance of 
amended or supplemental tax bills), as such procedure may be modified by law or by this Board 
from time to time. 
 
 Section 6. As a cumulative remedy, if any amount levied as a special tax for payment 
of the interest or principal of any bonded indebtedness of Community Facilities District No. 
2013-1 (OJAI) (the “Bonds”), together with any penalties and other charges accruing under the 
Ordinance, are not paid when due, the Board may, not later than four years after the due date of 
the last installment of principal on the Bonds, order that the same be collected by an action 
brought in the superior court to foreclose the lien of such special tax. 
 
 Section 7. The Accounting Manager or designee is hereby authorized to transmit a 
certified copy of this Resolution, together with the Certified List, to the County Assessor and/or 
the Treasurer-Tax Collector, together with other supporting documentation as may be required to 
place the Special Taxes on the secured property tax roll for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 and for the 
collection of the Special Taxes in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes and to 
perform all other acts which are required by the Act, the Ordinance, or by law or deemed 
necessary by the Accounting Manager in order to accomplish the purpose of this Resolution, the 
Act, or Bond covenants, or in the case of direct billing, the Accounting Manager or designer is 
hereby authorized to mail the applicable tax bill to the individual taxpayer. 
 
 Section 8. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED and ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water 
District at a regular meeting held on the 22nd day of June, 2016. 
 
 



 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       Peter Kaiser, President 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121010-0-070-110 Single Family Detached 638,154 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-070-210 Single Family Detached 871,200 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-070-220 Single Family Detached 412,513 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-070-260 Single Family Detached 436,471 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-120-020 Single Family Detached 116,305 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-120-100 Single Family Detached 180,774 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-120-145 Single Family Detached 103,672 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-120-155 Single Family Detached 112,384 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-120-165 Single Family Detached 93,654 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-120-175 Single Family Detached 87,120 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-120-200 Single Family Detached 35,600 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-120-210 Single Family Detached 512,266 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-130-040 Single Family Detached 134,600 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-130-100 Single Family Detached 24,800 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-130-130 Single Family Detached 21,390 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-130-150 Single Family Detached 93,593 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-130-170 Single Family Detached 20,470 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-130-190 Single Family Detached 22,310 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-130-210 Single Family Detached 159,429 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-130-220 Single Family Detached 26,789 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-130-230 Single Family Detached 49,223 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-130-250 Single Family Detached 70,200 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-130-265 Single Family Detached 47,480 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-130-275 Single Family Detached 45,302 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-130-300 Single Family Detached 129,373 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-130-330 Single Family Detached 143,657 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-035 Single Family Detached 76,665 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-055 Single Family Detached 60,984 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-065 Single Family Detached 55,321 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-140-075 Single Family Detached 33,900 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-080 Single Family Detached 69,696 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-115 Single Family Detached 48,787 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-125 Single Family Detached 47,916 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-150 Single Family Detached 57,934 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-165 Single Family Detached 51,836 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-170 Single Family Detached 57,934 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-140-180 Single Family Detached 19,800 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-235 Single Family Detached 73,484 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-140-245 Single Family Detached 73,718 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-150-050 Single Family Detached 36,150 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-150-060 Single Family Detached 31,500 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-150-090 Single Family Detached 24,256 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-150-110 Single Family Detached 22,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-150-120 Single Family Detached 20,200 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-150-170 Single Family Detached 245,543 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-150-190 Single Family Detached 225,316 1 -

Page 1 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$215.42$215.422010-0-150-200 Single Family Detached 23,124 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-150-230 Single Family Detached 43,610 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-150-240 Single Family Detached 235,191 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-160-020 Single Family Detached 21,780 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-160-050 Single Family Detached 71,874 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-160-060 Single Family Detached 130,244 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-160-080 Single Family Detached 43,995 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-160-120 Single Family Detached 23,800 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-160-160 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-010 Single Family Detached 229,126 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-060 Single Family Detached 48,787 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-070 Single Family Detached 50,094 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-080 Single Family Detached 38,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-090 Single Family Detached 25,600 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-100 Single Family Detached 32,435 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-110 Single Family Detached 27,817 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-120 Single Family Detached 24,600 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-130 Single Family Detached 31,800 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-140 Single Family Detached 34,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-150 Single Family Detached 27,484 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-160 Single Family Detached 37,200 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-170 Single Family Detached 66,211 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-180 Single Family Detached 81,892 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-190 Single Family Detached 36,824 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-200 Single Family Detached 46,173 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-210 Single Family Detached 42,776 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-201-240 Single Family Detached 40,800 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-250 Single Family Detached 43,995 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-260 Single Family Detached 48,351 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-270 Single Family Detached 45,738 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-280 Single Family Detached 95,396 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-201-290 Single Family Detached 80,586 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-210-040 Single Family Detached 44,431 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-210-070 Single Family Detached 38,350 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-210-120 Single Family Detached 59,241 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-210-150 Single Family Detached 51,836 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-210-170 Single Family Detached 48,352 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-210-200 Single Family Detached 53,709 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-210-240 Single Family Detached 38,333 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-220-020 Single Family Detached 57,063 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-220-030 Single Family Detached 39,800 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-220-050 Single Family Detached 50,094 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-220-060 Single Family Detached 49,658 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-220-070 Single Family Detached 51,400 1 -
$366.12$366.121010-0-220-080 Single Family Detached 54,014 1 -
$215.42$215.422010-0-220-090 Single Family Detached 41,700 1 -

Page 2 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$215.42$215.422010-0-220-120 Single Family Detached 34,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-231-050 Single Family Detached 20,280 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-231-060 Single Family Detached 19,950 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-231-070 Single Family Detached 20,612 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-231-080 Single Family Detached 20,751 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-232-030 Single Family Detached 20,592 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-232-040 Single Family Detached 19,718 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-232-050 Single Family Detached 20,034 1 -
$129.46$129.463010-0-232-060 Single Family Detached 20,280 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-020-050 Single Family Detached 93,418 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-020-140 Single Family Detached 60,984 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-020-150 Single Family Detached 109,771 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-020-300 Single Family Detached 236,530 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-020-310 Single Family Detached 438,213 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-020-350 Single Family Detached 234,788 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-020-370 Single Family Detached 304,786 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-020-390 Single Family Detached 46,609 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-020-410 Single Family Detached 229,749 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-040 Single Family Detached 58,806 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-050 Single Family Detached 53,143 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-060 Single Family Detached 58,806 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-070 Single Family Detached 48,351 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-080 Single Family Detached 51,836 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-120 Single Family Detached 46,609 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-130 Single Family Detached 45,738 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-300 Single Family Detached 60,548 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-310 Single Family Detached 46,609 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-320 Single Family Detached 79,279 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-030-330 Single Family Detached 57,063 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-041-020 Single Family Detached 145,054 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-041-030 Single Family Detached 43,995 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-042-020 Single Family Detached 72,745 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-042-050 Single Family Detached 80,150 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-042-060 Single Family Detached 164,962 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-042-070 Single Family Detached 110,686 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-051-010 Single Family Detached 40,994 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-051-020 Single Family Detached 41,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-051-030 Single Family Detached 46,173 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-051-040 Single Family Detached 41,200 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-051-050 Single Family Detached 48,351 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-051-060 Single Family Detached 43,995 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-051-070 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-051-080 Single Family Detached 48,787 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-051-090 Single Family Detached 38,100 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-051-100 Single Family Detached 42,900 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-051-110 Single Family Detached 41,200 1 -

Page 3 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$215.42$215.422019-0-051-120 Single Family Detached 39,784 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-051-130 Single Family Detached 39,784 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-051-140 Single Family Detached 41,600 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-051-150 Single Family Detached 48,787 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-052-010 Single Family Detached 37,428 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-052-020 Single Family Detached 39,600 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-052-030 Single Family Detached 39,600 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-052-040 Single Family Detached 39,600 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-052-050 Single Family Detached 41,241 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-052-060 Single Family Detached 39,433 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-061-010 Single Family Detached 149,410 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-061-030 Single Family Detached 47,044 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-061-040 Single Family Detached 52,272 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-061-070 Single Family Detached 90,169 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-061-080 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-061-090 Single Family Detached 58,663 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-061-100 Single Family Detached 53,613 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-061-110 Single Family Detached 201,660 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-062-010 Single Family Detached 164,221 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-062-030 Single Family Detached 48,351 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-062-040 Single Family Detached 49,658 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-062-050 Single Family Detached 47,480 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-062-070 Single Family Detached 47,044 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-062-080 Single Family Detached 44,431 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-062-110 Single Family Detached 47,044 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-062-120 Single Family Detached 46,609 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-062-130 Single Family Detached 43,168 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-062-160 Single Family Detached 199,504 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-010 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-020 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-030 Single Family Detached 51,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-070-050 Single Family Detached 40,358 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-060 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-070 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-080 Single Family Detached 57,934 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-070-110 Single Family Detached 42,133 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-070-120 Single Family Detached 39,250 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-130 Single Family Detached 65,340 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-070-170 Single Family Detached 43,200 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-180 Single Family Detached 47,916 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-190 Single Family Detached 60,548 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-200 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-210 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-070-220 Single Family Detached 43,430 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-070-230 Single Family Detached 51,400 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-081-010 Single Family Detached 46,609 1 -

Page 4 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121019-0-081-020 Single Family Detached 48,351 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-081-030 Single Family Detached 47,916 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-081-040 Single Family Detached 47,480 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-081-050 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-082-010 Single Family Detached 47,916 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-082-020 Single Family Detached 208,216 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-082-120 Single Family Detached 43,995 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-082-130 Single Family Detached 43,995 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-082-140 Single Family Detached 44,866 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-082-150 Single Family Detached 44,866 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-082-160 Single Family Detached 62,290 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-082-170 Single Family Detached 60,984 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-082-180 Single Family Detached 47,916 1 -

$56.06$56.077019-0-092-010 Commercial Property - - 1,056
$366.12$366.121019-0-092-030 Single Family Detached 74,923 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-092-040 Single Family Detached 51,836 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-050 Single Family Detached 39,800 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-092-060 Single Family Detached 45,738 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-070 Single Family Detached 42,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-120 Single Family Detached 38,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-140 Single Family Detached 33,200 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-150 Single Family Detached 35,600 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-160 Single Family Detached 32,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-170 Single Family Detached 37,600 1 -
$278.24$278.247019-0-092-190 Commercial Property - - 5,240
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-210 Single Family Detached 36,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-230 Single Family Detached 24,788 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-092-240 Single Family Detached 39,445 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-093-010 Single Family Detached 44,431 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-093-030 Single Family Detached 52,272 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-093-040 Single Family Detached 49,658 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-093-050 Single Family Detached 44,533 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-094-010 Single Family Detached 35,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422019-0-094-020 Single Family Detached 41,333 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-094-030 Single Family Detached 59,241 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-094-040 Single Family Detached 55,756 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-094-050 Single Family Detached 59,677 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-094-060 Single Family Detached 50,094 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-094-070 Single Family Detached 59,677 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-094-080 Single Family Detached 62,290 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-094-090 Single Family Detached 48,787 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-100-260 Single Family Detached 44,431 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-100-270 Single Family Detached 47,480 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-100-280 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$607.72$607.737019-0-110-260 Commercial Property - - 11,445

$1,343.48$1,343.487019-0-110-335 Commercial Property - - 25,301

Page 5 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$955.38$955.387019-0-110-345 Commercial Property - - 17,992
$187.86$187.877019-0-110-420 Commercial Property - - 3,538
$866.42$866.437019-0-110-470 Commercial Property - - 16,317
$215.42$215.422019-0-180-010 Single Family Detached 29,732 1 -
$366.12$366.121019-0-180-020 Single Family Detached 55,756 1 -
$129.46$129.463019-0-180-030 Single Family Detached 19,166 1 -
$129.46$129.463019-0-180-040 Single Family Detached 16,552 1 -
$247.44$247.457019-0-180-060 Commercial Property - - 4,660

$56.06$56.077019-0-180-070 Commercial Property - - 1,056
$1,889.08$1,889.097019-0-180-080 Commercial Property - - 35,576

$60.48$60.486019-0-190-010 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-020 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-030 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-040 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-050 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-060 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-070 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-080 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-090 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-100 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-110 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$71.10$71.105019-0-190-120 Condominium - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-130 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-140 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-150 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-160 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-170 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-180 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-190 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-200 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-190-210 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-010 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-020 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-030 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-040 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-050 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-060 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-070 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-080 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-090 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-100 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-110 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-120 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-130 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-140 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-150 Multifamily Attached - 1 -

Page 6 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$60.48$60.486019-0-200-160 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-170 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-180 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-190 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-200 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-210 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-220 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-230 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-240 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-250 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-200-260 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-010 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-020 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-030 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-040 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-050 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-060 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-070 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-080 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-090 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-100 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-110 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-120 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-130 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-140 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-150 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-160 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-170 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-180 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-190 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-200 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-210 Multifamily Attached - 1 -
$60.48$60.486019-0-210-220 Multifamily Attached - 1 -

$366.12$366.121020-0-010-035 Single Family Detached 43,995 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-010-100 Single Family Detached 121,532 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-010-110 Single Family Detached 44,431 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-010-140 Single Family Detached 42,863 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-010-310 Single Family Detached 37,430 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-010-320 Single Family Detached 36,872 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-010-330 Single Family Detached 36,930 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-010-340 Single Family Detached 40,660 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-010-350 Single Family Detached 44,862 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-010-360 Single Family Detached 43,200 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-010-380 Single Family Detached 40,885 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-010-390 Single Family Detached 39,039 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-010-400 Single Family Detached 37,974 1 -

Page 7 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121020-0-010-420 Single Family Detached 174,937 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-010-430 Single Family Detached 197,326 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-010-440 Single Family Detached 189,050 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-010-450 Single Family Detached 188,614 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-010-470 Single Family Detached 52,269 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-010-480 Single Family Detached 116,741 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-021-020 Single Family Detached 17,314 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-030 Single Family Detached 54,014 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-050 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-060 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-070 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-080 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-110 Single Family Detached 60,548 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-120 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-021-140 Single Family Detached 36,853 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-150 Single Family Detached 85,409 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-205 Single Family Detached 44,350 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-021-210 Single Family Detached 74,568 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-022-010 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-022-020 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-022-030 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-022-040 Single Family Detached 43,995 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-022-050 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-030-010 Single Family Detached 50,965 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-030-030 Single Family Detached 72,745 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-030-050 Single Family Detached 96,465 1 -

$1,098.36$1,098.361020-0-030-070 Single Family Detached 79,364 3 -
$646.26$646.262020-0-030-080 Single Family Detached 23,475 3 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-040-030 Single Family Detached 51,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-040-040 Single Family Detached 25,078 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-040-050 Single Family Detached 26,630 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-040-080 Single Family Detached 60,112 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-040-150 Single Family Detached 17,550 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-040-160 Single Family Detached 104,108 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-052-010 Single Family Detached 52,707 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-052-020 Single Family Detached 51,836 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-052-040 Single Family Detached 32,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-052-050 Single Family Detached 34,575 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-052-060 Single Family Detached 53,578 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-052-070 Single Family Detached 35,150 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-052-080 Single Family Detached 43,585 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-052-090 Single Family Detached 45,028 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-053-010 Single Family Detached 46,609 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-053-020 Single Family Detached 37,400 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-053-030 Single Family Detached 47,480 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-053-060 Single Family Detached 48,351 1 -

Page 8 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121020-0-061-030 Single Family Detached 50,965 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-061-040 Single Family Detached 42,250 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-061-050 Single Family Detached 39,100 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-061-140 Single Family Detached 50,094 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-061-150 Single Family Detached 34,700 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-061-160 Single Family Detached 42,070 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-061-170 Single Family Detached 47,480 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-061-180 Single Family Detached 46,609 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-062-010 Single Family Detached 58,806 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-062-020 Single Family Detached 71,874 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-062-030 Single Family Detached 63,162 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-062-040 Single Family Detached 35,360 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-062-060 Single Family Detached 46,173 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-062-070 Single Family Detached 76,230 1 -
$120.96$120.966020-0-071-120 Multifamily Attached - 2 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-071-130 Single Family Detached 7,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-071-160 Single Family Detached 15,654 1 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-071-200 Single Family Detached 8,325 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-071-210 Single Family Detached 16,650 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-071-220 Single Family Detached 16,656 1 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-071-230 Single Family Detached 3,843 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-071-240 Single Family Detached 6,248 1 -

$258.92$258.923020-0-071-250 Single Family Detached 12,218 2 -
$258.92$258.923020-0-071-260 Single Family Detached 11,100 2 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-071-270 Single Family Detached 7,462 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-071-280 Single Family Detached 7,538 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-071-290 Single Family Detached 4,971 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-071-300 Single Family Detached 2,486 1 -

$388.38$388.383020-0-071-310 Single Family Detached 10,786 3 -
$1,028.16$1,028.166020-0-071-370 Multifamily Attached - 17 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-071-390 Single Family Detached 8,358 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-071-400 Single Family Detached 18,373 1 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-071-450 Single Family Detached 7,528 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-071-460 Single Family Detached 7,650 1 -

$967.68$967.686020-0-071-470 Multifamily Attached - 16 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-071-530 Single Family Detached 7,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-071-540 Single Family Detached 7,000 1 -

$129.46$129.463020-0-072-010 Single Family Detached 15,083 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-072-030 Single Family Detached 9,823 1 -

$167.68$167.684020-0-072-050 Single Family Detached 6,102 2 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-072-065 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-072-075 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-072-085 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-072-095 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-072-105 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-072-115 Condominium - 1 -

Page 9 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$71.10$71.105020-0-072-125 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-072-135 Condominium - 1 -

$129.46$129.463020-0-073-010 Single Family Detached 17,200 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-073-020 Single Family Detached 22,500 1 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-073-030 Single Family Detached 6,566 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-073-040 Single Family Detached 13,171 1 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-073-050 Single Family Detached 6,594 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-073-060 Single Family Detached 7,392 1 -

$129.46$129.463020-0-073-070 Single Family Detached 10,598 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-073-080 Single Family Detached 16,712 1 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-073-090 Single Family Detached 3,981 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-073-100 Single Family Detached 13,193 1 -
$258.92$258.923020-0-073-110 Single Family Detached 13,193 2 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-073-120 Single Family Detached 6,187 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-180 Single Family Detached 608,032 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-190 Single Family Detached 145,926 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-200 Single Family Detached 60,113 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-210 Single Family Detached 80,586 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-225 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-235 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-245 Single Family Detached 43,996 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-255 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-265 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-275 Single Family Detached 50,530 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-310 Single Family Detached 74,187 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-080-330 Single Family Detached 74,118 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-090-050 Single Family Detached 47,044 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-090-060 Single Family Detached 33,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-090-070 Single Family Detached 30,800 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-090-080 Single Family Detached 31,250 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-090-110 Single Family Detached 31,600 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-090-120 Single Family Detached 44,431 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-090-150 Single Family Detached 47,480 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-090-160 Single Family Detached 73,616 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-090-170 Single Family Detached 27,250 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-090-180 Single Family Detached 40,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-090-190 Single Family Detached 31,950 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-090-200 Single Family Detached 55,321 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-100-030 Single Family Detached 31,350 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-100-050 Single Family Detached 63,597 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-100-060 Single Family Detached 49,658 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-100-070 Single Family Detached 62,726 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-100-080 Single Family Detached 64,468 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-100-090 Single Family Detached 59,241 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-110-030 Single Family Detached 48,787 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-110-040 Single Family Detached 65,340 1 -

Page 10 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121020-0-110-050 Single Family Detached 78,843 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-110-070 Single Family Detached 65,340 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-110-080 Single Family Detached 56,628 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-110-090 Single Family Detached 48,351 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-110-100 Single Family Detached 50,529 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-110-110 Single Family Detached 61,855 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-110-120 Single Family Detached 42,688 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-010 Single Family Detached 41,600 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-020 Single Family Detached 31,560 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-050 Single Family Detached 33,420 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-060 Single Family Detached 34,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-070 Single Family Detached 32,500 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-080 Single Family Detached 39,830 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-090 Single Family Detached 33,660 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-100 Single Family Detached 33,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-110 Single Family Detached 31,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-140 Single Family Detached 25,800 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-130-150 Single Family Detached 31,860 1 -
$120.96$120.966020-0-130-160 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-010 Single Family Detached 39,450 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-020 Single Family Detached 26,900 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-030 Single Family Detached 27,950 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-040 Single Family Detached 33,900 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-050 Single Family Detached 34,480 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-060 Single Family Detached 40,650 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-070 Single Family Detached 23,800 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-080 Single Family Detached 22,550 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-090 Single Family Detached 23,800 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-141-100 Single Family Detached 26,385 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-142-010 Single Family Detached 36,850 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-142-020 Single Family Detached 19,097 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-142-040 Single Family Detached 35,850 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-142-050 Single Family Detached 31,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-142-060 Single Family Detached 29,350 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-142-070 Single Family Detached 27,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-142-080 Single Family Detached 25,312 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-142-090 Single Family Detached 16,639 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-142-100 Single Family Detached 25,750 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-142-110 Single Family Detached 25,947 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-170-020 Single Family Detached 40,075 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-170-050 Single Family Detached 34,848 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-181-010 Single Family Detached 37,050 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-181-020 Single Family Detached 12,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-181-030 Single Family Detached 10,867 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-181-040 Single Family Detached 18,550 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-181-050 Single Family Detached 16,325 1 -

Page 11 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$55.96$55.977020-0-181-070 Commercial Property - - 1,054
$125.62$125.637020-0-181-080 Commercial Property - - 2,366
$638.90$638.907020-0-181-090 Commercial Property - - 12,032
$420.54$420.557020-0-181-110 Commercial Property - - 7,920
$483.84$483.846020-0-181-120 Multifamily Attached - 8 -
$476.20$476.207020-0-181-160 Commercial Property - - 8,968
$366.12$366.121020-0-191-010 Single Family Detached 50,094 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-191-020 Single Family Detached 47,044 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-191-030 Single Family Detached 21,582 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-191-040 Single Family Detached 29,540 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-192-010 Single Family Detached 27,550 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-192-020 Single Family Detached 16,533 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-192-030 Single Family Detached 17,050 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-192-040 Single Family Detached 13,575 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-192-060 Single Family Detached 12,666 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-192-070 Single Family Detached 10,338 1 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-192-080 Single Family Detached 7,859 1 -
$646.26$646.262020-0-192-090 Single Family Detached 25,821 3 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-192-120 Single Family Detached 62,804 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-192-160 Single Family Detached 22,693 1 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-201-010 Single Family Detached 7,085 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-030 Single Family Detached 6,679 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-040 Single Family Detached 5,477 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-050 Single Family Detached 5,626 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-060 Single Family Detached 5,696 1 -

$388.38$388.383020-0-201-070 Single Family Detached 12,829 3 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-090 Single Family Detached 6,460 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-100 Single Family Detached 6,860 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-120 Single Family Detached 7,115 1 -

$181.44$181.446020-0-201-130 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-140 Single Family Detached 7,499 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-150 Single Family Detached 7,201 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-160 Single Family Detached 7,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-170 Single Family Detached 8,036 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-190 Single Family Detached 8,940 1 -
$83.84$83.844020-0-201-200 Single Family Detached 8,066 1 -

$129.46$129.463020-0-202-010 Single Family Detached 14,700 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-030 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-040 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-050 Single Family Detached 11,229 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-060 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-070 Single Family Detached 11,241 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-080 Single Family Detached 11,231 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-090 Single Family Detached 11,249 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-100 Single Family Detached 11,225 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-110 Single Family Detached 11,242 1 -

Page 12 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$129.46$129.463020-0-202-120 Single Family Detached 11,239 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-130 Single Family Detached 11,236 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-140 Single Family Detached 14,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-150 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-202-160 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-203-010 Single Family Detached 19,200 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-203-020 Single Family Detached 11,222 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-203-030 Single Family Detached 11,224 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-203-040 Single Family Detached 11,226 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-203-050 Single Family Detached 11,225 1 -
$241.92$241.926020-0-203-060 Multifamily Attached - 4 -

$83.84$83.844020-0-203-070 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-203-080 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-203-090 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463020-0-203-100 Single Family Detached 14,100 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-211-010 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-211-025 Single Family Detached 43,200 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-212-010 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-212-020 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-212-030 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-213-010 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-213-020 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-213-030 Single Family Detached 43,200 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-213-040 Single Family Detached 43,300 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-213-050 Single Family Detached 43,200 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-213-060 Single Family Detached 43,995 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-213-070 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-213-080 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-213-090 Single Family Detached 43,300 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-213-100 Single Family Detached 43,200 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-214-010 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-214-020 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-214-030 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-221-010 Single Family Detached 41,300 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-221-030 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-221-040 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-221-050 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-221-060 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-221-070 Single Family Detached 47,916 1 -
$366.12$366.121020-0-221-080 Single Family Detached 49,460 1 -
$215.42$215.422020-0-222-020 Single Family Detached 39,100 1 -

$71.10$71.105020-0-230-015 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-230-025 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-230-035 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-230-045 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-230-055 Condominium - 1 -

Page 13 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$71.10$71.105020-0-230-065 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-230-075 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-230-085 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-230-095 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-240-015 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-240-025 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-240-035 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-240-045 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-240-055 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-240-065 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-250-015 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-250-025 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-250-035 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-250-045 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-250-055 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-250-065 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-250-075 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105020-0-250-085 Condominium - 1 -

$366.12$366.121021-0-011-050 Single Family Detached 90,532 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-060 Single Family Detached 57,499 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-070 Single Family Detached 96,935 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-011-100 Single Family Detached 20,134 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-011-110 Single Family Detached 19,995 1 -
$215.42$215.422021-0-011-120 Single Family Detached 35,980 1 -
$215.42$215.422021-0-011-130 Single Family Detached 30,726 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-140 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-150 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-160 Single Family Detached 99,752 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-170 Single Family Detached 51,401 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-180 Single Family Detached 66,211 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-190 Single Family Detached 78,071 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-215 Single Family Detached 358,687 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-225 Single Family Detached 87,377 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-235 Single Family Detached 88,131 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-011-240 Single Family Detached 68,290 1 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-031-030 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-031-040 Single Family Detached 6,824 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-031-050 Single Family Detached 6,544 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-031-070 Single Family Detached 4,771 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-031-080 Single Family Detached 7,772 1 -

$258.92$258.923021-0-031-090 Single Family Detached 14,044 2 -
$258.92$258.923021-0-031-100 Single Family Detached 12,694 2 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-031-110 Single Family Detached 11,801 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-031-120 Single Family Detached 12,101 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-031-130 Single Family Detached 11,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-031-150 Single Family Detached 12,290 1 -

Page 14 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$762.08$762.097021-0-031-160 Commercial Property - - 14,352
$129.46$129.463021-0-031-180 Single Family Detached 17,581 1 -
$181.44$181.446021-0-031-190 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-031-200 Single Family Detached 13,697 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-032-010 Single Family Detached 10,516 1 -
$120.96$120.966021-0-032-020 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-032-030 Single Family Detached 5,110 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-032-040 Single Family Detached 5,110 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-032-050 Single Family Detached 15,000 1 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-032-080 Single Family Detached 5,600 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-032-090 Single Family Detached 8,429 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-032-100 Single Family Detached 10,490 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-033-010 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-033-020 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-033-030 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$1,814.40$1,814.406021-0-033-050 Multifamily Attached - 30 -
$120.96$120.966021-0-034-080 Multifamily Attached - 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-034-090 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$258.92$258.923021-0-034-100 Single Family Detached 10,000 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-034-110 Single Family Detached 5,000 1 -
$366.38$366.397021-0-034-170 Commercial Property - - 6,900
$241.92$241.926021-0-034-190 Multifamily Attached - 4 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-034-210 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$241.92$241.926021-0-034-220 Multifamily Attached - 4 -
$241.92$241.926021-0-034-230 Multifamily Attached - 4 -
$388.38$388.383021-0-041-020 Single Family Detached 20,150 3 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-041-030 Single Family Detached 9,750 2 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-041-040 Single Family Detached 9,750 2 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-042-010 Single Family Detached 15,000 1 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-042-030 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-042-050 Single Family Detached 4,500 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-042-060 Single Family Detached 18,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-042-070 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-042-080 Single Family Detached 3,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-042-100 Single Family Detached 6,750 1 -

$258.92$258.923021-0-042-110 Single Family Detached 11,250 2 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-042-120 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$167.68$167.684021-0-042-130 Single Family Detached 7,452 2 -
$241.92$241.926021-0-043-040 Multifamily Attached - 4 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-043-050 Single Family Detached 7,085 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-043-120 Single Family Detached 15,013 1 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-043-140 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-043-150 Single Family Detached 8,100 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-043-160 Single Family Detached 6,711 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-044-020 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-044-060 Single Family Detached 8,950 1 -

Page 15 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844021-0-044-070 Single Family Detached 9,380 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-044-080 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$181.44$181.446021-0-044-090 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-044-100 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$483.84$483.846021-0-044-110 Multifamily Attached - 8 -
$120.96$120.966021-0-044-130 Multifamily Attached - 2 -

$1,512.00$1,512.006021-0-044-180 Multifamily Attached - 25 -
$786.24$786.246021-0-044-190 Multifamily Attached - 13 -

$71.10$71.105021-0-044-215 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-044-225 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-044-235 Condominium - 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-051-050 Single Family Detached 9,900 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-051-080 Single Family Detached 7,671 1 -

$120.96$120.966021-0-051-090 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-051-100 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-051-170 Single Family Detached 10,060 1 -
$430.84$430.842021-0-051-190 Single Family Detached 22,433 2 -
$430.84$430.842021-0-051-200 Single Family Detached 22,433 2 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-051-235 Single Family Detached 11,761 1 -
$258.92$258.923021-0-051-240 Single Family Detached 13,939 2 -
$241.92$241.926021-0-051-250 Multifamily Attached - 4 -

$1,105.96$1,105.977021-0-051-280 Commercial Property - - 20,828
$83.84$83.844021-0-051-290 Single Family Detached 9,029 1 -

$181.44$181.446021-0-052-010 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-052-020 Single Family Detached 11,564 1 -
$120.96$120.966021-0-052-030 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-052-040 Single Family Detached 14,826 1 -
$241.92$241.926021-0-052-050 Multifamily Attached - 4 -

$3,024.00$3,024.006021-0-052-060 Multifamily Attached - 50 -
$260.42$260.427021-0-061-010 Commercial Property - - 4,904
$129.46$129.463021-0-061-020 Single Family Detached 10,140 1 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-061-030 Single Family Detached 8,280 2 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-061-040 Single Family Detached 18,013 1 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-061-050 Single Family Detached 9,936 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-062-010 Single Family Detached 12,882 1 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-062-020 Single Family Detached 6,818 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-062-040 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-062-050 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-062-060 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$257.96$257.967021-0-062-070 Commercial Property - - 4,858
$83.84$83.844021-0-063-010 Single Family Detached 6,156 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-063-020 Single Family Detached 13,796 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-063-030 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-063-040 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-063-050 Single Family Detached 8,250 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-063-080 Single Family Detached 5,328 1 -

Page 16 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844021-0-063-090 Single Family Detached 8,400 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-063-100 Single Family Detached 8,400 1 -

$362.88$362.886021-0-063-110 Multifamily Attached - 6 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-063-120 Single Family Detached 10,480 1 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-064-010 Single Family Detached 6,145 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-064-020 Single Family Detached 6,397 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-064-030 Single Family Detached 6,661 1 -

$483.84$483.846021-0-064-060 Multifamily Attached - 8 -
$846.72$846.726021-0-064-070 Multifamily Attached - 14 -
$215.42$215.422021-0-064-080 Single Family Detached 23,524 1 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-071-010 Single Family Detached 5,600 2 -
$120.96$120.966021-0-071-020 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$241.92$241.926021-0-071-030 Multifamily Attached - 4 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-071-040 Single Family Detached 9,450 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-071-060 Single Family Detached 6,550 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-071-070 Single Family Detached 6,550 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-071-090 Single Family Detached 13,350 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-071-100 Single Family Detached 6,502 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-071-110 Single Family Detached 10,604 1 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-071-120 Single Family Detached 9,046 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-072-010 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-072-020 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-072-030 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-072-040 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$967.68$967.686021-0-072-060 Multifamily Attached - 16 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-072-070 Single Family Detached 15,000 1 -
$139.18$139.187021-0-072-080 Commercial Property - - 2,621

$83.84$83.844021-0-072-090 Single Family Detached 8,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-072-100 Single Family Detached 5,625 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-072-110 Single Family Detached 5,625 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-020 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-030 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$167.68$167.684021-0-073-060 Single Family Detached 7,500 2 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-070 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-100 Single Family Detached 7,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-110 Single Family Detached 7,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-120 Single Family Detached 7,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-130 Single Family Detached 5,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-140 Single Family Detached 5,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-150 Single Family Detached 6,100 1 -
$72.32$72.327021-0-073-160 Commercial Property - - 1,362
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-170 Single Family Detached 5,643 1 -

$181.44$181.446021-0-073-180 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-200 Single Family Detached 8,400 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-210 Single Family Detached 6,185 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-073-220 Single Family Detached 9,489 1 -

Page 17 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844021-0-073-230 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-073-240 Single Family Detached 10,329 1 -
$302.40$302.406021-0-073-250 Multifamily Attached - 5 -
$120.96$120.966021-0-074-020 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$544.32$544.326021-0-074-030 Multifamily Attached - 9 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-074-040 Single Family Detached 17,500 1 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-074-050 Single Family Detached 7,500 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-074-060 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-074-070 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-074-100 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-074-110 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-074-120 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-074-130 Single Family Detached 6,250 1 -

$604.80$604.806021-0-074-140 Multifamily Attached - 10 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-074-150 Single Family Detached 6,250 1 -

$241.92$241.926021-0-074-160 Multifamily Attached - 4 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-074-170 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-074-180 Single Family Detached 9,525 1 -
$90.54$90.557021-0-074-190 Commercial Property - - 1,705

$129.46$129.463021-0-081-040 Single Family Detached 10,400 1 -
$110.98$110.987021-0-081-050 Commercial Property - - 2,090
$344.98$344.987021-0-081-070 Commercial Property - - 6,497

$83.84$83.844021-0-081-080 Single Family Detached 5,921 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-081-120 Single Family Detached 8,250 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-081-130 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-081-140 Single Family Detached 9,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-081-150 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-081-170 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-081-180 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-081-220 Single Family Detached 10,273 1 -
$112.14$112.157021-0-081-230 Commercial Property - - 2,112

$83.84$83.844021-0-081-240 Single Family Detached 8,325 1 -
$181.44$181.446021-0-081-250 Multifamily Attached - 3 -

$71.10$71.105021-0-081-335 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-081-345 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-081-355 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-081-365 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-081-375 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-081-385 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-081-395 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-081-405 Condominium - 1 -
$98.92$98.937021-0-081-430 Commercial Property - - 1,863

$120.96$120.966021-0-082-010 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-082-020 Single Family Detached 4,291 1 -
$40.88$40.897021-0-082-030 Commercial Property - - 770

$241.92$241.926021-0-082-060 Multifamily Attached - 4 -

Page 18 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844021-0-082-070 Single Family Detached 8,353 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-082-080 Single Family Detached 8,353 1 -

$258.92$258.923021-0-082-090 Single Family Detached 10,180 2 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-082-100 Single Family Detached 10,200 1 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-082-110 Single Family Detached 9,760 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-082-120 Single Family Detached 9,554 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-082-130 Single Family Detached 8,509 1 -
$89.46$89.477021-0-082-140 Commercial Property - - 1,685

$120.96$120.966021-0-082-150 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$1,270.08$1,270.086021-0-082-160 Multifamily Attached - 21 -

$241.92$241.926021-0-091-010 Multifamily Attached - 4 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-091-020 Single Family Detached 4,880 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-091-030 Single Family Detached 4,796 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-091-040 Single Family Detached 4,796 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-091-050 Single Family Detached 4,769 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-091-060 Single Family Detached 4,889 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-092-020 Single Family Detached 4,989 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-092-030 Single Family Detached 5,078 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-092-040 Single Family Detached 5,078 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-092-050 Single Family Detached 5,078 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-092-060 Single Family Detached 5,121 1 -

$120.96$120.966021-0-092-070 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-092-080 Single Family Detached 14,280 1 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-092-090 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$388.38$388.383021-0-092-100 Single Family Detached 12,000 3 -
$204.54$204.547021-0-092-110 Commercial Property - - 3,852
$129.46$129.463021-0-092-120 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-101-010 Single Family Detached 13,500 1 -
$251.52$251.524021-0-101-020 Single Family Detached 9,000 3 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-101-050 Single Family Detached 7,500 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-101-080 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$120.96$120.966021-0-101-090 Multifamily Attached - 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-101-100 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-101-110 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$120.96$120.966021-0-101-120 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$388.38$388.383021-0-101-130 Single Family Detached 15,000 3 -
$362.88$362.886021-0-102-010 Multifamily Attached - 6 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-102-040 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-102-060 Single Family Detached 13,500 1 -
$140.72$140.727021-0-102-070 Commercial Property - - 2,650

$83.84$83.844021-0-102-090 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-102-100 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$250.10$250.107021-0-102-110 Commercial Property - - 4,710
$207.88$207.897021-0-103-020 Commercial Property - - 3,915
$120.96$120.966021-0-103-030 Multifamily Attached - 2 -

$93.46$93.467021-0-103-040 Commercial Property - - 1,760

Page 19 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844021-0-104-010 Single Family Detached 5,000 1 -
$42.06$42.067021-0-104-020 Commercial Property - - 792
$89.00$89.007021-0-104-030 Commercial Property - - 1,676

$265.50$265.507021-0-104-050 Commercial Property - - 5,000
$185.84$185.857021-0-104-060 Commercial Property - - 3,500
$159.88$159.887021-0-104-080 Commercial Property - - 3,011
$619.40$619.417021-0-104-090 Commercial Property - - 11,665

$83.84$83.844021-0-105-010 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-105-040 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$302.40$302.406021-0-105-060 Multifamily Attached - 5 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-105-070 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-105-080 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$131.00$131.007021-0-105-100 Commercial Property - - 2,467
$83.84$83.844021-0-105-110 Single Family Detached 5,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-105-120 Single Family Detached 4,914 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-106-020 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$92.18$92.187021-0-106-100 Commercial Property - - 1,736

$129.46$129.463021-0-111-010 Single Family Detached 12,000 1 -
$52.04$52.047021-0-111-030 Commercial Property - - 980

$121.60$121.607021-0-111-040 Commercial Property - - 2,290
$189.34$189.357021-0-111-050 Commercial Property - - 3,566
$241.92$241.926021-0-111-070 Multifamily Attached - 4 -
$167.68$167.684021-0-111-080 Single Family Detached 6,000 2 -
$120.96$120.966021-0-111-100 Multifamily Attached - 2 -

$83.84$83.844021-0-111-110 Single Family Detached 9,000 1 -
$1,831.94$1,831.957021-0-112-020 Commercial Property - - 34,500

$83.84$83.844021-0-113-040 Single Family Detached 7,700 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-113-050 Single Family Detached 7,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-113-060 Single Family Detached 7,700 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-113-070 Single Family Detached 8,400 1 -

$120.96$120.966021-0-113-100 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$120.96$120.966021-0-113-110 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$254.02$254.037021-0-113-120 Commercial Property - - 4,784
$140.92$140.937021-0-113-130 Commercial Property - - 2,654
$117.46$117.467021-0-113-150 Commercial Property - - 2,212
$103.80$103.817021-0-113-180 Commercial Property - - 1,955
$204.06$204.067021-0-113-200 Commercial Property - - 3,843

$66.58$66.597021-0-113-230 Commercial Property - - 1,254
$739.46$739.477021-0-113-250 Commercial Property - - 13,926
$509.76$509.767021-0-113-260 Commercial Property - - 9,600

$65.84$65.847021-0-113-270 Commercial Property - - 1,240
$235.18$235.187021-0-113-280 Commercial Property - - 4,429
$162.74$162.757021-0-113-290 Commercial Property - - 3,065
$144.00$144.017021-0-113-300 Commercial Property - - 2,712

$83.84$83.844021-0-113-310 Single Family Detached 8,739 1 -
$3,326.40$3,326.406021-0-131-010 Multifamily Attached - 55 -

Page 20 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121021-0-131-020 Single Family Detached 378,100 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-131-030 Single Family Detached 5,100 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-131-040 Single Family Detached 11,900 1 -
$83.84$83.844021-0-131-050 Single Family Detached 6,375 1 -

$129.46$129.463021-0-131-060 Single Family Detached 19,940 1 -
$215.42$215.422021-0-131-070 Single Family Detached 27,964 1 -
$129.46$129.463021-0-131-080 Single Family Detached 18,332 1 -
$215.42$215.422021-0-131-090 Single Family Detached 28,108 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-131-110 Single Family Detached 49,658 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-131-160 Single Family Detached 97,119 1 -
$366.12$366.121021-0-131-170 Single Family Detached 92,072 1 -
$215.42$215.422021-0-131-180 Single Family Detached 40,775 1 -
$411.52$411.537021-0-140-020 Commercial Property - - 7,750

$26.86$26.877021-0-140-130 Commercial Property - - 506
$28.20$28.217021-0-140-140 Commercial Property - - 531
$79.92$79.927021-0-140-150 Commercial Property - - 1,505

$157.18$157.187021-0-140-160 Commercial Property - - 2,960
$151.18$151.187021-0-140-170 Commercial Property - - 2,847
$495.74$495.747021-0-140-180 Commercial Property - - 9,336
$301.40$301.407021-0-140-190 Commercial Property - - 5,676
$311.70$311.707021-0-140-205 Commercial Property - - 5,870
$434.24$434.257021-0-140-210 Commercial Property - - 8,178
$415.14$415.147021-0-140-220 Commercial Property - - 7,818
$366.12$366.127021-0-140-260 Commercial Property - - 6,895
$305.32$305.337021-0-140-330 Commercial Property - - 5,750
$442.42$442.437021-0-140-340 Commercial Property - - 8,332

$36.20$36.207021-0-140-360 Commercial Property - - 682
$29.90$29.917021-0-140-370 Commercial Property - - 563

$132.74$132.757021-0-140-380 Commercial Property - - 2,500
$127.44$127.447021-0-140-400 Commercial Property - - 2,400

$17.88$17.897021-0-140-410 Commercial Property - - 337
$201.78$201.787021-0-140-420 Commercial Property - - 3,800

$34.52$34.527021-0-140-430 Commercial Property - - 650
$308.72$308.727021-0-140-440 Commercial Property - - 5,814
$146.50$146.507021-0-140-450 Commercial Property - - 2,759

$58.52$58.527021-0-140-460 Commercial Property - - 1,102
$50.02$50.027021-0-140-490 Commercial Property - - 942

$1,044.68$1,044.697021-0-140-500 Commercial Property - - 19,674
$378.50$378.507021-0-140-510 Commercial Property - - 7,128

$71.10$71.105021-0-150-015 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-150-025 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-150-035 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-160-015 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-160-025 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-160-035 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105021-0-160-045 Condominium - 1 -

Page 21 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121022-0-012-010 Single Family Detached 186,001 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-020 Single Family Detached 36,400 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-030 Single Family Detached 86,248 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-040 Single Family Detached 43,108 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-050 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-060 Single Family Detached 75,358 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-070 Single Family Detached 81,021 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-080 Single Family Detached 42,000 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-090 Single Family Detached 61,419 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-100 Single Family Detached 179,249 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-110 Single Family Detached 188,436 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-120 Single Family Detached 25,920 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-160 Single Family Detached 24,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-170 Single Family Detached 17,010 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-180 Single Family Detached 17,010 1 -

$1,098.36$1,098.361022-0-012-230 Single Family Detached 116,740 3 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-240 Single Family Detached 11,200 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-250 Single Family Detached 10,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-260 Single Family Detached 10,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-270 Single Family Detached 10,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-280 Single Family Detached 11,795 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-290 Single Family Detached 11,795 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-300 Single Family Detached 17,715 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-320 Single Family Detached 13,200 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-330 Single Family Detached 13,198 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-340 Single Family Detached 14,965 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-350 Single Family Detached 15,068 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-360 Single Family Detached 14,934 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-370 Single Family Detached 14,232 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-380 Single Family Detached 16,291 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-390 Single Family Detached 37,276 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-400 Single Family Detached 18,096 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-410 Single Family Detached 22,195 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-420 Single Family Detached 21,843 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-430 Single Family Detached 23,895 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-440 Single Family Detached 25,233 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-012-450 Single Family Detached 25,237 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-460 Single Family Detached 101,494 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-480 Single Family Detached 47,044 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-012-490 Single Family Detached 16,553 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-500 Single Family Detached 64,468 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-525 Single Family Detached 53,579 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-535 Single Family Detached 63,597 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-545 Single Family Detached 74,052 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-555 Single Family Detached 236,531 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-565 Single Family Detached 88,862 1 -

Page 22 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121022-0-012-575 Single Family Detached 46,173 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-615 Single Family Detached 81,783 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-625 Single Family Detached 63,813 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-640 Single Family Detached 264,942 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-012-665 Single Family Detached 89,298 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-013-015 Single Family Detached 46,174 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-013-025 Single Family Detached 43,996 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-013-035 Single Family Detached 43,996 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-013-045 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-055 Single Family Detached 14,972 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-060 Single Family Detached 12,632 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-070 Single Family Detached 14,912 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-080 Single Family Detached 13,033 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-090 Single Family Detached 14,512 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-105 Single Family Detached 15,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-110 Single Family Detached 14,906 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-120 Single Family Detached 15,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-130 Single Family Detached 15,128 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-140 Single Family Detached 15,019 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-150 Single Family Detached 14,506 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-013-160 Single Family Detached 14,289 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-021-020 Single Family Detached 62,290 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-021-030 Single Family Detached 12,150 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-021-040 Single Family Detached 8,100 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-021-050 Single Family Detached 8,019 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-021-060 Single Family Detached 7,919 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-021-070 Single Family Detached 12,150 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-021-080 Single Family Detached 20,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-021-090 Single Family Detached 12,150 1 -
$258.92$258.923022-0-022-040 Single Family Detached 12,555 2 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-022-060 Single Family Detached 23,683 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-022-070 Single Family Detached 15,531 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-022-090 Single Family Detached 7,912 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-022-100 Single Family Detached 8,100 1 -

$215.42$215.422022-0-022-110 Single Family Detached 26,247 1 -
$2,904.70$2,904.707022-0-023-020 Commercial Property - - 54,703

$167.68$167.684022-0-024-020 Single Family Detached 6,297 2 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-024-030 Single Family Detached 5,585 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-024-050 Single Family Detached 12,015 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-024-080 Single Family Detached 13,737 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-024-090 Single Family Detached 13,740 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-024-110 Single Family Detached 33,450 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-024-120 Single Family Detached 12,605 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-024-130 Single Family Detached 5,348 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-024-140 Single Family Detached 7,859 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-025-010 Single Family Detached 9,686 1 -

Page 23 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$258.92$258.923022-0-025-020 Single Family Detached 12,010 2 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-025-040 Single Family Detached 12,700 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-025-050 Single Family Detached 10,660 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-025-060 Single Family Detached 9,793 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-025-100 Single Family Detached 7,267 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-025-110 Single Family Detached 8,902 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-025-120 Single Family Detached 8,902 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-025-150 Single Family Detached 8,340 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-025-180 Single Family Detached 10,594 1 -
$270.52$270.527022-0-025-190 Commercial Property - - 5,095
$120.96$120.966022-0-025-200 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-030-030 Single Family Detached 65,340 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-070 Single Family Detached 10,548 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-080 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-090 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-100 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-030-110 Single Family Detached 9,954 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-120 Single Family Detached 11,700 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-030-130 Single Family Detached 7,964 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-030-140 Single Family Detached 7,800 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-030-150 Single Family Detached 9,900 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-030-180 Single Family Detached 18,757 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-190 Single Family Detached 19,169 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-030-210 Single Family Detached 5,800 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-030-220 Single Family Detached 5,800 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-030-230 Single Family Detached 5,800 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-030-240 Single Family Detached 6,052 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-030-250 Single Family Detached 8,046 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-030-260 Single Family Detached 8,047 1 -

$366.12$366.121022-0-030-300 Single Family Detached 68,824 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-340 Single Family Detached 12,064 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-350 Single Family Detached 12,064 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-030-360 Single Family Detached 59,677 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-030-370 Single Family Detached 27,362 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-030-380 Single Family Detached 60,112 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-030-390 Single Family Detached 22,053 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-400 Single Family Detached 12,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-410 Single Family Detached 12,196 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-030-460 Single Family Detached 40,162 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-490 Single Family Detached 17,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-500 Single Family Detached 21,733 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-510 Single Family Detached 12,014 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-520 Single Family Detached 12,986 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-535 Single Family Detached 12,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-545 Single Family Detached 12,065 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-555 Single Family Detached 12,058 1 -

Page 24 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$129.46$129.463022-0-030-565 Single Family Detached 13,774 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-575 Single Family Detached 12,011 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-585 Single Family Detached 15,340 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-595 Single Family Detached 12,781 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-605 Single Family Detached 12,024 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-615 Single Family Detached 12,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-625 Single Family Detached 12,026 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-635 Single Family Detached 14,340 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-645 Single Family Detached 12,002 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-655 Single Family Detached 15,431 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-665 Single Family Detached 12,152 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-030-675 Single Family Detached 18,557 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-040-020 Single Family Detached 34,857 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-040-030 Single Family Detached 34,842 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-040-060 Single Family Detached 27,847 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-040-070 Single Family Detached 20,877 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-040-080 Single Family Detached 22,612 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-040-100 Single Family Detached 31,274 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-040-110 Single Family Detached 24,318 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-040-120 Single Family Detached 20,835 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-040-130 Single Family Detached 28,562 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-040-150 Single Family Detached 15,024 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-040-190 Single Family Detached 46,609 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-040-210 Single Family Detached 33,507 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-040-220 Single Family Detached 19,975 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-040-230 Single Family Detached 14,855 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-040-240 Single Family Detached 18,233 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-040-250 Single Family Detached 13,800 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-040-260 Single Family Detached 37,452 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-051-030 Single Family Detached 5,950 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-051-040 Single Family Detached 6,459 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-051-050 Single Family Detached 8,318 1 -

$604.80$604.806022-0-051-080 Multifamily Attached - 10 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-051-090 Single Family Detached 19,820 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-051-100 Single Family Detached 78,843 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-051-110 Single Family Detached 21,804 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-051-120 Single Family Detached 21,804 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-051-130 Single Family Detached 28,745 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-051-140 Single Family Detached 11,139 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-051-150 Single Family Detached 11,139 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-051-180 Single Family Detached 11,209 1 -
$120.96$120.966022-0-051-190 Multifamily Attached - 2 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-051-230 Single Family Detached 7,960 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-051-260 Single Family Detached 14,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-051-270 Single Family Detached 14,071 1 -
$646.26$646.262022-0-051-280 Single Family Detached 24,265 3 -

Page 25 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121022-0-051-290 Single Family Detached 58,372 1 -
$362.88$362.886022-0-052-010 Multifamily Attached - 6 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-052-020 Single Family Detached 54,450 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-052-030 Single Family Detached 25,635 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-052-050 Single Family Detached 6,940 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-052-060 Single Family Detached 6,798 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-052-070 Single Family Detached 6,798 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-052-080 Single Family Detached 10,164 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-052-090 Single Family Detached 6,535 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-052-100 Single Family Detached 7,108 1 -

$215.42$215.422022-0-052-110 Single Family Detached 26,342 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-052-120 Single Family Detached 12,001 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-061-025 Single Family Detached 14,000 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-061-035 Single Family Detached 7,620 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-045 Single Family Detached 7,639 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-055 Single Family Detached 7,639 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-065 Single Family Detached 7,639 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-075 Single Family Detached 7,639 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-085 Single Family Detached 7,639 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-095 Single Family Detached 7,639 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-105 Single Family Detached 7,639 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-115 Single Family Detached 7,639 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-125 Single Family Detached 8,624 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-061-135 Single Family Detached 12,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-145 Single Family Detached 9,872 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-155 Single Family Detached 7,184 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-061-165 Single Family Detached 9,404 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-061-180 Single Family Detached 16,563 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-015 Single Family Detached 7,206 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-025 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-035 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-045 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-055 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-065 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-075 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-085 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-095 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-105 Single Family Detached 7,206 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-115 Single Family Detached 7,206 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-125 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-135 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-145 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-155 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-165 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-175 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-185 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -

Page 26 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-062-195 Single Family Detached 6,972 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-062-205 Single Family Detached 7,206 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-015 Single Family Detached 7,766 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-025 Single Family Detached 7,179 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-035 Single Family Detached 7,095 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-045 Single Family Detached 7,940 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-055 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-065 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-075 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-085 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-095 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-105 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-115 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-125 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-135 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-063-145 Single Family Detached 7,206 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-064-015 Single Family Detached 8,624 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-064-025 Single Family Detached 7,684 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-065-015 Single Family Detached 7,206 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-065-025 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-065-035 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-065-045 Single Family Detached 7,206 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-066-015 Single Family Detached 7,206 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-066-025 Single Family Detached 7,644 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-071-010 Single Family Detached 9,714 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-071-020 Single Family Detached 9,061 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-071-030 Single Family Detached 9,061 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-071-040 Single Family Detached 9,061 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-071-050 Single Family Detached 9,061 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-071-060 Single Family Detached 9,061 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-071-070 Single Family Detached 10,706 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-071-080 Single Family Detached 10,706 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-071-090 Single Family Detached 10,706 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-071-100 Single Family Detached 10,706 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-071-110 Single Family Detached 10,658 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-072-010 Single Family Detached 7,952 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-072-020 Single Family Detached 8,540 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-072-030 Single Family Detached 8,540 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-072-040 Single Family Detached 8,540 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-072-050 Single Family Detached 8,540 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-072-060 Single Family Detached 8,540 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-072-070 Single Family Detached 10,090 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-072-080 Single Family Detached 10,090 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-072-090 Single Family Detached 10,090 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-072-100 Single Family Detached 10,090 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-072-110 Single Family Detached 10,042 1 -

Page 27 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-081-010 Single Family Detached 8,626 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-020 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-030 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-040 Single Family Detached 8,185 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-050 Single Family Detached 8,185 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-060 Single Family Detached 8,185 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-070 Single Family Detached 8,168 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-080 Single Family Detached 9,050 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-081-090 Single Family Detached 12,600 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-081-100 Single Family Detached 11,008 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-081-110 Single Family Detached 11,008 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-081-120 Single Family Detached 8,541 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-130 Single Family Detached 8,541 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-140 Single Family Detached 8,541 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-150 Single Family Detached 8,493 1 -

$366.12$366.121022-0-081-230 Single Family Detached 48,787 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-240 Single Family Detached 7,988 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-250 Single Family Detached 8,025 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-260 Single Family Detached 7,875 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-270 Single Family Detached 8,231 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-280 Single Family Detached 8,125 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-290 Single Family Detached 7,662 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-300 Single Family Detached 8,988 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-310 Single Family Detached 8,838 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-320 Single Family Detached 8,009 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-330 Single Family Detached 8,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-340 Single Family Detached 7,950 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-350 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-360 Single Family Detached 8,002 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-370 Single Family Detached 8,002 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-380 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-390 Single Family Detached 8,020 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-081-400 Single Family Detached 8,938 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-010 Single Family Detached 8,631 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-020 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-030 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-040 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-050 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-060 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-070 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-080 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-090 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-100 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-110 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-120 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-130 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -

Page 28 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-082-140 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-082-150 Single Family Detached 8,002 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-020 Single Family Detached 8,100 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-030 Single Family Detached 8,312 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-040 Single Family Detached 8,200 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-050 Single Family Detached 9,375 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-060 Single Family Detached 9,888 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-083-070 Single Family Detached 10,125 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-080 Single Family Detached 8,425 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-090 Single Family Detached 8,064 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-100 Single Family Detached 8,036 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-110 Single Family Detached 8,036 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-120 Single Family Detached 8,036 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-130 Single Family Detached 8,011 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-083-140 Single Family Detached 8,150 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-010 Single Family Detached 8,675 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-020 Single Family Detached 8,325 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-030 Single Family Detached 7,875 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-040 Single Family Detached 8,250 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-070 Single Family Detached 8,438 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-080 Single Family Detached 8,700 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-090 Single Family Detached 8,488 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-100 Single Family Detached 8,038 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-110 Single Family Detached 8,603 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-084-130 Single Family Detached 8,258 1 -

$167.68$167.684022-0-090-010 Single Family Detached 9,620 2 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-090-040 Single Family Detached 158,994 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-090-070 Single Family Detached 6,096 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-080 Single Family Detached 9,828 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-100 Single Family Detached 7,835 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-110 Single Family Detached 8,219 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-120 Single Family Detached 7,822 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-140 Single Family Detached 7,115 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-150 Single Family Detached 7,100 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-160 Single Family Detached 7,261 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-180 Single Family Detached 8,834 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-190 Single Family Detached 9,018 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-200 Single Family Detached 8,671 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-210 Single Family Detached 6,739 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-220 Single Family Detached 7,045 1 -

$167.68$167.684022-0-090-230 Single Family Detached 7,609 2 -
$967.68$967.686022-0-090-250 Multifamily Attached - 16 -
$362.88$362.886022-0-090-260 Multifamily Attached - 6 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-090-270 Single Family Detached 7,464 1 -
$181.44$181.446022-0-090-280 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-090-290 Single Family Detached 10,164 1 -

Page 29 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$129.46$129.463022-0-090-300 Single Family Detached 10,164 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-090-400 Single Family Detached 10,106 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-090-410 Single Family Detached 5,677 1 -
$258.92$258.923022-0-090-420 Single Family Detached 13,497 2 -

$1,512.00$1,512.006022-0-090-450 Multifamily Attached - 25 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-480 Single Family Detached 7,267 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-490 Single Family Detached 7,546 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-090-500 Single Family Detached 8,122 1 -

$202.74$202.747022-0-090-520 Commercial Property - - 3,818
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-020 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-030 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-080 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-090 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-100 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-110 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-130 Single Family Detached 6,562 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-150 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-160 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-170 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-180 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-190 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-200 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-230 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-240 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-250 Single Family Detached 8,250 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-260 Single Family Detached 6,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-270 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-280 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-290 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-300 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-310 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-320 Single Family Detached 7,119 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-330 Single Family Detached 6,706 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-340 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-350 Single Family Detached 8,228 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-360 Single Family Detached 6,580 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-380 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-390 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -

$215.42$215.422022-0-100-420 Single Family Detached 31,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-430 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-440 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -

$181.44$181.446022-0-100-450 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-100-460 Single Family Detached 5,036 1 -

$163.02$163.027022-0-100-470 Commercial Property - - 3,070
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-010 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-020 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

Page 30 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-110-040 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-060 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-070 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-090 Single Family Detached 7,184 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-100 Single Family Detached 7,815 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-130 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-150 Single Family Detached 8,577 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-160 Single Family Detached 8,160 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-190 Single Family Detached 7,871 1 -

$215.42$215.422022-0-110-200 Single Family Detached 27,543 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-110-210 Single Family Detached 17,649 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-110-220 Single Family Detached 14,618 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-110-230 Single Family Detached 26,665 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-110-240 Single Family Detached 19,100 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-110-250 Single Family Detached 8,982 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-260 Single Family Detached 9,846 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-300 Single Family Detached 7,475 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-320 Single Family Detached 7,465 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-330 Single Family Detached 7,465 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-110-340 Single Family Detached 10,909 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-110-350 Single Family Detached 10,909 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-110-380 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-390 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-400 Single Family Detached 7,200 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-410 Single Family Detached 8,100 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-110-430 Single Family Detached 13,778 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-440 Single Family Detached 7,465 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-460 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-470 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-480 Single Family Detached 8,866 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-490 Single Family Detached 7,920 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-110-500 Single Family Detached 16,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-110-520 Single Family Detached 9,000 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-110-530 Single Family Detached 11,778 1 -
$167.68$167.684022-0-110-540 Single Family Detached 9,929 2 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-110-550 Single Family Detached 7,918 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-110-560 Single Family Detached 11,714 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-110-570 Single Family Detached 14,003 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-120-040 Single Family Detached 28,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-120-050 Single Family Detached 20,264 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-120-065 Single Family Detached 6,815 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-075 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-085 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-095 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-105 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-115 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -

Page 31 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-120-125 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-135 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-145 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-155 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-165 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-175 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-185 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-195 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-205 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-215 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-225 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-235 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-245 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-255 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-265 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-275 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-285 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-290 Single Family Detached 6,958 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-120-300 Single Family Detached 10,289 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-330 Single Family Detached 6,431 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-340 Single Family Detached 6,431 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-350 Single Family Detached 6,431 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-360 Single Family Detached 6,431 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-370 Single Family Detached 6,128 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-380 Single Family Detached 6,030 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-390 Single Family Detached 9,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-400 Single Family Detached 9,563 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-120-410 Single Family Detached 9,285 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-015 Single Family Detached 8,520 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-025 Single Family Detached 8,519 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-035 Single Family Detached 8,518 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-045 Single Family Detached 8,516 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-055 Single Family Detached 8,515 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-065 Single Family Detached 8,514 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-075 Single Family Detached 8,513 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-085 Single Family Detached 8,512 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-095 Single Family Detached 8,511 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-105 Single Family Detached 8,510 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-115 Single Family Detached 8,509 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-125 Single Family Detached 8,508 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-135 Single Family Detached 8,507 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-145 Single Family Detached 8,506 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-155 Single Family Detached 8,504 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-165 Single Family Detached 8,503 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-175 Single Family Detached 8,502 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-185 Single Family Detached 8,501 1 -

Page 32 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-130-195 Single Family Detached 8,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-205 Single Family Detached 8,499 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-215 Single Family Detached 8,498 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-130-225 Single Family Detached 8,497 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-130-235 Single Family Detached 10,208 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-140-030 Single Family Detached 12,768 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-140-040 Single Family Detached 11,130 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-140-050 Single Family Detached 11,130 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-140-060 Single Family Detached 11,450 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-140-080 Single Family Detached 7,750 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-140-090 Single Family Detached 11,950 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-140-100 Single Family Detached 7,807 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-110 Single Family Detached 7,576 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-120 Single Family Detached 6,907 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-130 Single Family Detached 7,857 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-140 Single Family Detached 8,123 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-150 Single Family Detached 8,726 1 -

$120.96$120.966022-0-140-160 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-140-170 Single Family Detached 10,187 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-140-180 Single Family Detached 9,837 1 -
$167.68$167.684022-0-140-190 Single Family Detached 8,544 2 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-140-200 Single Family Detached 8,296 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-210 Single Family Detached 8,388 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-220 Single Family Detached 8,175 1 -

$120.96$120.966022-0-140-230 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-260 Single Family Detached 6,959 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-270 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-290 Single Family Detached 5,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-300 Single Family Detached 5,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-310 Single Family Detached 5,814 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-320 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-330 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-340 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-350 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-365 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-370 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-380 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-390 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-400 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-410 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -

$170.98$170.987022-0-140-470 Commercial Property - - 3,220
$258.92$258.923022-0-140-490 Single Family Detached 10,047 2 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-140-500 Single Family Detached 9,490 1 -
$181.44$181.446022-0-140-510 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$241.92$241.926022-0-140-520 Multifamily Attached - 4 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-140-530 Single Family Detached 6,705 1 -

Page 33 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-140-540 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-550 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-560 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-570 Single Family Detached 5,878 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-580 Single Family Detached 5,933 1 -
$53.10$53.107022-0-140-590 Commercial Property - - 1,000
$38.74$38.747022-0-140-600 Commercial Property - - 730
$83.84$83.844022-0-140-610 Single Family Detached 4,650 1 -

$181.44$181.446022-0-140-630 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$53.10$53.107022-0-140-640 Commercial Property - - 1,000

$228.44$228.447022-0-151-010 Commercial Property - - 4,302
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-020 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-030 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-040 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-050 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-060 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-070 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-080 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-090 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-100 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-110 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-120 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-130 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-140 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-150 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-160 Single Family Detached 6,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-170 Single Family Detached 6,071 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-180 Single Family Detached 6,476 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-190 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-200 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-210 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-220 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-230 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-240 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-250 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-260 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-270 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-280 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-290 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-300 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$167.68$167.684022-0-151-310 Single Family Detached 7,500 2 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-320 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-151-330 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-151-340 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-151-350 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$112.72$112.737022-0-151-360 Commercial Property - - 2,123

Page 34 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$437.32$437.337022-0-152-010 Commercial Property - - 8,236
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-020 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-030 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-040 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-050 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-070 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-080 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-090 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-100 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-110 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-120 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-130 Single Family Detached 7,373 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-140 Single Family Detached 7,627 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-150 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-160 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-170 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-180 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-152-190 Single Family Detached 10,910 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-152-200 Single Family Detached 10,908 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-152-210 Single Family Detached 8,702 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-220 Single Family Detached 8,509 1 -

$167.68$167.684022-0-152-230 Single Family Detached 8,509 2 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-240 Single Family Detached 8,957 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-250 Single Family Detached 8,957 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-152-280 Single Family Detached 10,301 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-152-290 Single Family Detached 10,301 1 -
$204.80$204.817022-0-152-300 Commercial Property - - 3,857
$146.70$146.707022-0-152-310 Commercial Property - - 2,763
$129.46$129.463022-0-152-320 Single Family Detached 10,400 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-152-330 Single Family Detached 10,301 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-152-340 Single Family Detached 12,764 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-152-350 Single Family Detached 7,912 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-360 Single Family Detached 7,464 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-152-370 Single Family Detached 7,464 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-015 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-025 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-035 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-161-040 Single Family Detached 11,301 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-060 Single Family Detached 9,443 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-070 Single Family Detached 9,443 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-080 Single Family Detached 6,295 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-090 Single Family Detached 6,628 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-100 Single Family Detached 6,998 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-110 Single Family Detached 7,320 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-120 Single Family Detached 7,646 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-130 Single Family Detached 6,295 1 -

Page 35 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-161-140 Single Family Detached 6,295 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-150 Single Family Detached 6,295 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-160 Single Family Detached 6,295 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-161-170 Single Family Detached 12,590 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-161-180 Single Family Detached 10,018 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-161-195 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-205 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-215 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-225 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-235 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-240 Single Family Detached 8,092 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-250 Single Family Detached 6,188 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-270 Single Family Detached 6,226 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-280 Single Family Detached 6,240 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-290 Single Family Detached 6,252 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-300 Single Family Detached 6,266 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-310 Single Family Detached 5,025 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-320 Single Family Detached 5,379 1 -

$268.58$268.587022-0-161-330 Commercial Property - - 5,058
$89.90$89.907022-0-161-340 Commercial Property - - 1,693

$123.62$123.627022-0-161-350 Commercial Property - - 2,328
$153.88$153.887022-0-161-370 Commercial Property - - 2,898

$90.62$90.637022-0-161-380 Commercial Property - - 1,707
$321.14$321.157022-0-161-390 Commercial Property - - 6,048

$83.84$83.844022-0-161-405 Single Family Detached 8,773 1 -
$179.20$179.217022-0-161-415 Commercial Property - - 3,375

$83.84$83.844022-0-161-420 Single Family Detached 6,295 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-430 Single Family Detached 6,295 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-440 Single Family Detached 6,200 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-161-450 Single Family Detached 6,213 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-162-015 Single Family Detached 8,521 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-162-035 Single Family Detached 8,522 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-162-045 Single Family Detached 8,523 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-162-055 Single Family Detached 8,524 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-162-065 Single Family Detached 8,525 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-162-075 Single Family Detached 8,526 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-162-085 Single Family Detached 8,527 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-162-095 Single Family Detached 8,528 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-162-105 Single Family Detached 8,528 1 -

$287.10$287.117022-0-162-145 Commercial Property - - 5,407
$83.84$83.844022-0-171-015 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-171-025 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-171-035 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-171-045 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-171-055 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-171-065 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -

Page 36 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-171-075 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-171-085 Single Family Detached 8,626 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-015 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-025 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-035 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-045 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-055 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-065 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-075 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-085 Single Family Detached 8,631 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-095 Single Family Detached 8,631 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-105 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-115 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-125 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-135 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-145 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-155 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-172-165 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-173-015 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-173-025 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-173-035 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-173-045 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-173-055 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-173-065 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-173-075 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-173-085 Single Family Detached 8,631 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-181-015 Single Family Detached 8,626 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-181-025 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-181-035 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-181-045 Single Family Detached 8,185 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-181-055 Single Family Detached 8,185 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-181-065 Single Family Detached 8,186 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-181-075 Single Family Detached 8,160 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-181-085 Single Family Detached 9,378 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-181-095 Single Family Detached 13,008 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-181-105 Single Family Detached 11,010 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-181-115 Single Family Detached 11,088 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-182-015 Single Family Detached 8,631 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-025 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-035 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-045 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-055 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-065 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-075 Single Family Detached 9,086 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-085 Single Family Detached 9,086 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-095 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -

Page 37 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-182-105 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-115 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-125 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-135 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-182-145 Single Family Detached 8,631 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-183-015 Single Family Detached 8,631 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-183-025 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-183-035 Single Family Detached 8,008 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-183-045 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-183-055 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-183-065 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-183-075 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-183-085 Single Family Detached 8,190 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-183-095 Single Family Detached 8,372 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-183-100 Single Family Detached 10,035 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-183-110 Single Family Detached 10,035 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-183-120 Single Family Detached 10,035 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-184-010 Single Family Detached 10,224 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-184-020 Single Family Detached 10,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-184-030 Single Family Detached 11,150 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-184-040 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-184-050 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-184-060 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-184-070 Single Family Detached 11,150 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-184-080 Single Family Detached 10,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-184-090 Single Family Detached 10,002 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-185-010 Single Family Detached 10,035 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-185-020 Single Family Detached 10,035 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-185-030 Single Family Detached 10,035 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-191-015 Single Family Detached 8,169 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-191-025 Single Family Detached 12,333 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-191-035 Single Family Detached 11,092 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-191-045 Single Family Detached 10,018 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-191-055 Single Family Detached 11,183 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-192-015 Single Family Detached 8,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-192-025 Single Family Detached 10,950 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-192-035 Single Family Detached 14,967 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-192-045 Single Family Detached 9,100 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-055 Single Family Detached 9,400 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-192-065 Single Family Detached 10,450 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-075 Single Family Detached 8,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-085 Single Family Detached 8,629 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-095 Single Family Detached 8,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-105 Single Family Detached 9,722 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-115 Single Family Detached 8,800 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-125 Single Family Detached 9,600 1 -

Page 38 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-192-135 Single Family Detached 8,659 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-145 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-150 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-160 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-170 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-180 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-190 Single Family Detached 8,103 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-205 Single Family Detached 8,103 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-215 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-225 Single Family Detached 8,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-245 Single Family Detached 9,958 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-255 Single Family Detached 8,876 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-265 Single Family Detached 9,880 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-192-275 Single Family Detached 17,367 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-192-285 Single Family Detached 16,750 1 -

$83.84$83.844022-0-192-295 Single Family Detached 8,600 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-305 Single Family Detached 8,322 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-315 Single Family Detached 8,433 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-325 Single Family Detached 8,545 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-335 Single Family Detached 8,657 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-345 Single Family Detached 9,100 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-192-355 Single Family Detached 15,250 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-365 Single Family Detached 9,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-375 Single Family Detached 8,010 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-385 Single Family Detached 8,010 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-395 Single Family Detached 8,010 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-405 Single Family Detached 8,010 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-415 Single Family Detached 8,010 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-192-425 Single Family Detached 7,962 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-015 Single Family Detached 8,100 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-025 Single Family Detached 8,150 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-035 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-045 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-055 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-060 Single Family Detached 7,952 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-075 Single Family Detached 7,952 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-080 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-095 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-193-105 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-015 Single Family Detached 8,300 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-025 Single Family Detached 8,300 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-035 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-045 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-055 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-065 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-075 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -

Page 39 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-194-080 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-095 Single Family Detached 7,958 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-105 Single Family Detached 7,958 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-110 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-120 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-130 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-145 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-155 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-194-165 Single Family Detached 8,006 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-195-010 Single Family Detached 8,001 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-195-020 Single Family Detached 8,027 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-195-030 Single Family Detached 8,150 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-195-045 Single Family Detached 13,400 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-195-055 Single Family Detached 8,400 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-196-015 Single Family Detached 8,225 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-196-020 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-196-030 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-196-040 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-196-050 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-196-060 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-196-070 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-196-080 Single Family Detached 8,003 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-196-090 Single Family Detached 8,001 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-035 Single Family Detached 7,985 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-045 Single Family Detached 8,128 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-055 Single Family Detached 8,128 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-065 Single Family Detached 8,128 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-075 Single Family Detached 8,084 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-085 Single Family Detached 8,091 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-095 Single Family Detached 8,173 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-105 Single Family Detached 8,173 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-115 Single Family Detached 8,173 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-125 Single Family Detached 8,173 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-135 Single Family Detached 8,173 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-145 Single Family Detached 8,173 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-155 Single Family Detached 8,173 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-165 Single Family Detached 8,173 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-175 Single Family Detached 8,315 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-185 Single Family Detached 7,862 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-195 Single Family Detached 8,001 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-205 Single Family Detached 8,001 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-215 Single Family Detached 8,001 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-225 Single Family Detached 8,194 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-235 Single Family Detached 7,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-245 Single Family Detached 9,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-255 Single Family Detached 8,150 1 -

Page 40 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844022-0-200-265 Single Family Detached 9,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-275 Single Family Detached 7,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-285 Single Family Detached 8,060 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-295 Single Family Detached 8,070 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-305 Single Family Detached 8,146 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-315 Single Family Detached 8,279 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-325 Single Family Detached 8,412 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-335 Single Family Detached 8,483 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-345 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-355 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-365 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-375 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-385 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-395 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-405 Single Family Detached 8,085 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-415 Single Family Detached 7,916 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-425 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-435 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-445 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-455 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-465 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-475 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-485 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-495 Single Family Detached 8,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-505 Single Family Detached 8,085 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-525 Single Family Detached 7,952 1 -
$83.84$83.844022-0-200-535 Single Family Detached 9,585 1 -

$129.46$129.463022-0-210-170 Single Family Detached 11,429 1 -
$215.42$215.422022-0-210-180 Single Family Detached 26,021 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-210-190 Single Family Detached 13,556 1 -
$129.46$129.463022-0-210-200 Single Family Detached 12,626 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-210-210 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121022-0-210-245 Single Family Detached 364,030 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-010-010 Single Family Detached 32,673 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-010-080 Single Family Detached 32,500 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-010-100 Single Family Detached 38,850 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-010-120 Single Family Detached 39,361 1 -
$388.70$388.707023-0-020-010 Commercial Property - - 7,320
$215.42$215.422023-0-020-020 Single Family Detached 31,940 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-020-030 Single Family Detached 32,053 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-020-050 Single Family Detached 32,279 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-020-060 Single Family Detached 23,292 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-020-080 Single Family Detached 32,500 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-020-100 Single Family Detached 32,500 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-020-130 Single Family Detached 32,500 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-020-150 Single Family Detached 32,500 1 -

Page 41 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$215.42$215.422023-0-020-160 Single Family Detached 32,500 1 -
$1,168.08$1,168.087023-0-020-170 Commercial Property - - 21,998

$215.42$215.422023-0-020-200 Single Family Detached 33,813 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-030-020 Single Family Detached 15,580 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-030-030 Single Family Detached 15,580 1 -

$1,036.24$1,036.247023-0-030-040 Commercial Property - - 19,515
$366.12$366.121023-0-030-050 Single Family Detached 45,738 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-030-060 Single Family Detached 24,162 1 -
$234.32$234.337023-0-030-140 Commercial Property - - 4,413
$786.24$786.246023-0-030-150 Multifamily Attached - 13 -
$430.90$430.917023-0-030-180 Commercial Property - - 8,115
$159.70$159.717023-0-030-190 Commercial Property - - 3,008
$129.46$129.463023-0-040-040 Single Family Detached 13,825 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-040-060 Single Family Detached 29,850 1 -
$366.12$366.121023-0-050-010 Single Family Detached 47,916 1 -
$366.12$366.121023-0-050-020 Single Family Detached 47,916 1 -
$366.12$366.121023-0-050-080 Single Family Detached 75,358 1 -
$366.12$366.121023-0-050-130 Single Family Detached 71,002 1 -

$88.68$88.697023-0-061-040 Commercial Property - - 1,670
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-050 Single Family Detached 7,537 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-080 Single Family Detached 5,674 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-090 Single Family Detached 6,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-100 Single Family Detached 5,300 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-110 Single Family Detached 8,059 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-120 Single Family Detached 7,504 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-130 Single Family Detached 7,226 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-140 Single Family Detached 6,948 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-061-150 Single Family Detached 13,062 1 -
$73.70$73.707023-0-061-160 Commercial Property - - 1,388
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-170 Single Family Detached 6,988 1 -

$143.78$143.797023-0-061-210 Commercial Property - - 2,708
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-220 Single Family Detached 7,781 1 -

$166.94$166.957023-0-061-230 Commercial Property - - 3,144
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-250 Single Family Detached 6,114 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-061-260 Single Family Detached 5,836 1 -

$109.48$109.497023-0-061-270 Commercial Property - - 2,062
$74.18$74.187023-0-061-280 Commercial Property - - 1,397

$129.46$129.463023-0-062-010 Single Family Detached 12,952 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-020 Single Family Detached 8,022 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-030 Single Family Detached 7,868 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-040 Single Family Detached 7,713 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-050 Single Family Detached 7,559 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-060 Single Family Detached 9,800 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-070 Single Family Detached 9,700 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-080 Single Family Detached 6,176 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-090 Single Family Detached 6,390 1 -

Page 42 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844023-0-062-100 Single Family Detached 6,745 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-110 Single Family Detached 7,246 1 -

$215.42$215.422023-0-062-120 Single Family Detached 22,900 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-130 Single Family Detached 9,200 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-150 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-160 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$167.68$167.684023-0-062-170 Single Family Detached 7,500 2 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-240 Single Family Detached 4,256 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-250 Single Family Detached 7,492 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-062-270 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-063-060 Single Family Detached 6,736 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-063-070 Single Family Detached 5,819 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-063-080 Single Family Detached 8,088 1 -

$281.22$281.227023-0-063-140 Commercial Property - - 5,296
$271.18$271.187023-0-063-170 Commercial Property - - 5,107

$83.84$83.844023-0-063-220 Single Family Detached 7,800 1 -
$111.50$111.517023-0-063-230 Commercial Property - - 2,100

$83.84$83.844023-0-063-240 Single Family Detached 7,075 1 -
$430.84$430.842023-0-071-030 Single Family Detached 22,500 2 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-071-050 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-072-020 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-072-030 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-072-040 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$258.92$258.923023-0-072-050 Single Family Detached 11,250 2 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-072-060 Single Family Detached 22,500 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-073-010 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-073-020 Single Family Detached 5,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-073-030 Single Family Detached 5,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-073-050 Single Family Detached 6,195 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-073-060 Single Family Detached 5,725 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-073-070 Single Family Detached 5,433 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-073-080 Single Family Detached 5,175 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-073-090 Single Family Detached 5,400 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-073-100 Single Family Detached 5,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-073-110 Single Family Detached 6,376 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-074-010 Single Family Detached 11,250 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-074-020 Single Family Detached 18,750 1 -
$263.58$263.597023-0-074-030 Commercial Property - - 4,964
$129.46$129.463023-0-074-050 Single Family Detached 18,000 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-074-060 Single Family Detached 9,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-074-070 Single Family Detached 18,000 1 -

$71.10$71.105023-0-075-185 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-075-195 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-075-205 Condominium - 1 -
$81.34$81.357023-0-075-220 Commercial Property - - 1,532

$1,117.22$1,117.227023-0-076-020 Commercial Property - - 21,040

Page 43 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$127.76$127.767023-0-077-040 Commercial Property - - 2,406
$322.64$322.647023-0-077-050 Commercial Property - - 6,076
$105.66$105.677023-0-077-060 Commercial Property - - 1,990
$123.66$123.677023-0-077-070 Commercial Property - - 2,329

$46.04$46.047023-0-077-080 Commercial Property - - 867
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-010 Single Family Detached 13,850 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-081-020 Single Family Detached 6,496 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-030 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-040 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-050 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-060 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-070 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-080 Single Family Detached 7,200 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-090 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-100 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-110 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-120 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-081-130 Single Family Detached 11,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-081-145 Single Family Detached 9,100 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-081-150 Single Family Detached 19,600 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-160 Single Family Detached 20,450 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-300 Single Family Detached 19,800 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-315 Single Family Detached 17,900 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-325 Single Family Detached 13,900 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-335 Single Family Detached 16,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-081-345 Single Family Detached 26,300 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-081-355 Single Family Detached 36,700 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-365 Single Family Detached 12,400 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-370 Single Family Detached 10,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-400 Single Family Detached 10,856 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-410 Single Family Detached 10,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-420 Single Family Detached 12,150 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-430 Single Family Detached 13,420 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-440 Single Family Detached 12,786 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-450 Single Family Detached 12,152 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-081-460 Single Family Detached 10,800 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-082-010 Single Family Detached 8,250 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-082-020 Single Family Detached 8,560 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-082-030 Single Family Detached 8,414 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-082-040 Single Family Detached 8,220 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-082-050 Single Family Detached 10,050 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-082-070 Single Family Detached 15,100 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-082-105 Single Family Detached 11,524 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-082-120 Single Family Detached 17,339 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-082-130 Single Family Detached 19,650 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-083-010 Single Family Detached 10,568 1 -

Page 44 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$129.46$129.463023-0-083-020 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-083-030 Single Family Detached 10,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-083-040 Single Family Detached 13,400 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-083-050 Single Family Detached 7,854 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-060 Single Family Detached 8,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-070 Single Family Detached 7,262 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-080 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-090 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-100 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-110 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-120 Single Family Detached 5,850 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-130 Single Family Detached 6,750 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-140 Single Family Detached 6,550 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-083-150 Single Family Detached 5,525 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-090-040 Single Family Detached 9,105 1 -

$215.42$215.422023-0-090-060 Single Family Detached 23,250 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-090-080 Single Family Detached 36,080 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-090-140 Single Family Detached 11,128 1 -
$120.96$120.966023-0-090-150 Multifamily Attached - 2 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-090-235 Single Family Detached 9,674 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-090-295 Single Family Detached 9,955 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-090-305 Single Family Detached 10,125 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-090-310 Single Family Detached 21,453 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-090-320 Single Family Detached 42,681 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-090-330 Single Family Detached 14,483 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-090-345 Single Family Detached 31,871 1 -
$106.30$106.317023-0-100-040 Commercial Property - - 2,002

$78.68$78.697023-0-100-050 Commercial Property - - 1,482
$391.88$391.887023-0-100-060 Commercial Property - - 7,380
$265.44$265.457023-0-100-080 Commercial Property - - 4,999

$83.84$83.844023-0-100-140 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-100-150 Single Family Detached 6,000 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-100-160 Single Family Detached 6,700 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-100-170 Single Family Detached 7,700 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-100-180 Single Family Detached 10,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-100-190 Single Family Detached 7,700 1 -

$292.04$292.057023-0-100-220 Commercial Property - - 5,500
$321.26$321.267023-0-100-230 Commercial Property - - 6,050
$543.96$543.967023-0-100-240 Commercial Property - - 10,244
$129.46$129.463023-0-110-040 Single Family Detached 20,000 1 -
$117.56$117.567023-0-110-080 Commercial Property - - 2,214
$152.76$152.777023-0-110-120 Commercial Property - - 2,877
$132.96$132.967023-0-110-130 Commercial Property - - 2,504
$129.46$129.463023-0-110-150 Single Family Detached 14,100 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-110-170 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-110-180 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

Page 45 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844023-0-110-190 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-110-200 Single Family Detached 5,200 1 -

$113.62$113.637023-0-110-210 Commercial Property - - 2,140
$83.84$83.844023-0-110-220 Single Family Detached 5,200 1 -
$52.14$52.147023-0-110-230 Commercial Property - - 982
$83.84$83.844023-0-110-240 Single Family Detached 5,575 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-110-250 Single Family Detached 5,575 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-110-260 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$167.68$167.684023-0-110-270 Single Family Detached 7,500 2 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-110-280 Single Family Detached 7,500 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-110-290 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-110-310 Single Family Detached 14,302 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-110-330 Single Family Detached 7,151 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-110-340 Single Family Detached 7,160 1 -

$215.42$215.422023-0-110-370 Single Family Detached 27,374 1 -
$199.44$199.447023-0-110-390 Commercial Property - - 3,756
$298.36$298.377023-0-110-400 Commercial Property - - 5,619
$370.58$370.587023-0-110-410 Commercial Property - - 6,979

$55.44$55.447023-0-110-440 Commercial Property - - 1,044
$258.70$258.707023-0-110-450 Commercial Property - - 4,872
$219.04$219.047023-0-110-460 Commercial Property - - 4,125
$188.60$188.617023-0-110-470 Commercial Property - - 3,552
$129.46$129.463023-0-120-010 Single Family Detached 13,940 1 -
$120.96$120.966023-0-120-040 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-120-090 Single Family Detached 11,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-120-105 Single Family Detached 11,285 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-120-110 Single Family Detached 9,857 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-120-190 Single Family Detached 8,118 1 -

$120.96$120.966023-0-120-200 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$181.44$181.446023-0-120-210 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$120.96$120.966023-0-120-220 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$120.96$120.966023-0-120-230 Multifamily Attached - 2 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-132-070 Single Family Detached 41,000 1 -
$544.32$544.326023-0-132-090 Multifamily Attached - 9 -
$181.44$181.446023-0-132-110 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-132-120 Single Family Detached 27,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-132-160 Single Family Detached 15,200 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-132-170 Single Family Detached 14,600 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-132-180 Single Family Detached 34,166 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-141-010 Single Family Detached 8,400 1 -
$143.68$143.697023-0-141-020 Commercial Property - - 2,706

$83.84$83.844023-0-141-030 Single Family Detached 7,355 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-040 Single Family Detached 4,226 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-050 Single Family Detached 6,930 1 -

$112.44$112.448023-0-141-060 Industrial Property - - 4,074
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-070 Single Family Detached 7,350 1 -

Page 46 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844023-0-141-080 Single Family Detached 5,250 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-090 Single Family Detached 4,867 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-100 Single Family Detached 7,350 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-110 Single Family Detached 5,250 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-120 Single Family Detached 5,250 1 -

$110.34$110.347023-0-141-130 Commercial Property - - 2,078
$167.16$167.167023-0-141-140 Commercial Property - - 3,148

$83.84$83.844023-0-141-170 Single Family Detached 8,102 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-200 Single Family Detached 6,481 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-141-210 Single Family Detached 12,152 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-141-220 Single Family Detached 12,152 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-141-230 Single Family Detached 8,131 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-240 Single Family Detached 8,131 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-250 Single Family Detached 8,131 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-260 Single Family Detached 8,133 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-270 Single Family Detached 8,133 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-141-280 Single Family Detached 8,133 1 -

$241.92$241.926023-0-141-310 Multifamily Attached - 4 -
$302.40$302.406023-0-141-330 Multifamily Attached - 5 -
$261.94$261.947023-0-141-340 Commercial Property - - 4,933
$215.42$215.422023-0-141-410 Single Family Detached 33,015 1 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-142-010 Single Family Detached 5,377 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-142-020 Single Family Detached 6,050 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-142-030 Single Family Detached 8,521 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-142-040 Single Family Detached 14,259 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-142-050 Single Family Detached 8,102 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-142-060 Single Family Detached 8,102 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-142-070 Single Family Detached 8,102 1 -

$181.44$181.446023-0-142-080 Multifamily Attached - 3 -
$604.80$604.806023-0-142-090 Multifamily Attached - 10 -

$83.84$83.844023-0-142-150 Single Family Detached 5,100 1 -
$450.70$450.717023-0-142-170 Commercial Property - - 8,488

$99.02$99.037023-0-150-030 Commercial Property - - 1,865
$83.84$83.844023-0-150-040 Single Family Detached 7,200 1 -

$129.46$129.463023-0-150-050 Single Family Detached 13,314 1 -
$105.98$105.997023-0-150-060 Commercial Property - - 1,996
$215.42$215.422023-0-150-070 Single Family Detached 35,800 1 -
$215.42$215.422023-0-150-175 Single Family Detached 25,620 1 -

$36.20$36.218023-0-150-205 Industrial Property - - 1,312
$44.86$44.877023-0-150-250 Commercial Property - - 845

$207.08$207.097023-0-150-285 Commercial Property - - 3,900
$169.90$169.918023-0-150-295 Industrial Property - - 6,156
$591.96$591.967023-0-150-315 Commercial Property - - 11,148

$88.04$88.047023-0-150-345 Commercial Property - - 1,658
$68.34$68.347023-0-150-405 Commercial Property - - 1,287

$323.06$323.068023-0-150-415 Industrial Property - - 11,705

Page 47 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$323.06$323.068023-0-150-425 Industrial Property - - 11,705
$145.22$145.237023-0-150-435 Commercial Property - - 2,735
$138.74$138.757023-0-150-455 Commercial Property - - 2,613
$804.46$804.468023-0-150-475 Industrial Property - - 29,147
$215.42$215.422023-0-150-480 Single Family Detached 35,719 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-150-490 Single Family Detached 10,019 1 -
$129.46$129.463023-0-150-500 Single Family Detached 10,019 1 -
$363.62$363.637023-0-150-510 Commercial Property - - 6,848
$121.76$121.767023-0-160-075 Commercial Property - - 2,293
$148.40$148.417023-0-160-115 Commercial Property - - 2,795

$32.68$32.688023-0-160-125 Industrial Property - - 1,184
$22.96$22.968023-0-160-195 Industrial Property - - 832
$30.80$30.808023-0-160-205 Industrial Property - - 1,116

$115.36$115.378023-0-160-255 Industrial Property - - 4,180
$141.16$141.178023-0-160-285 Industrial Property - - 5,115
$169.54$169.558023-0-160-315 Industrial Property - - 6,143
$257.26$257.268023-0-160-335 Industrial Property - - 9,321
$196.84$196.847023-0-160-345 Commercial Property - - 3,707
$327.30$327.317023-0-160-365 Commercial Property - - 6,164

$2,102.78$2,102.798023-0-172-055 Industrial Property - - 76,188
$20.30$20.318023-0-173-030 Industrial Property - - 736
$71.10$71.105023-0-180-010 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-180-020 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-180-030 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-180-040 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-180-050 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-180-060 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-180-070 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-180-080 Condominium - 1 -

$1,231.70$1,231.717023-0-190-110 Commercial Property - - 23,196
$681.32$681.337023-0-190-120 Commercial Property - - 12,831

$83.84$83.844023-0-200-015 Single Family Detached 3,611 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-025 Single Family Detached 3,905 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-035 Single Family Detached 3,868 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-045 Single Family Detached 3,979 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-055 Single Family Detached 3,869 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-065 Single Family Detached 3,869 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-075 Single Family Detached 3,979 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-085 Single Family Detached 3,390 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-095 Single Family Detached 4,769 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-105 Single Family Detached 4,095 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-115 Single Family Detached 4,076 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-125 Single Family Detached 4,232 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-135 Single Family Detached 4,258 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-145 Single Family Detached 4,114 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-155 Single Family Detached 4,077 1 -

Page 48 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844023-0-200-165 Single Family Detached 4,040 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-175 Single Family Detached 4,204 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-185 Single Family Detached 4,501 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-195 Single Family Detached 3,622 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-205 Single Family Detached 3,338 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-215 Single Family Detached 3,309 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-225 Single Family Detached 3,338 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-235 Single Family Detached 3,309 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-245 Single Family Detached 3,338 1 -
$83.84$83.844023-0-200-250 Single Family Detached 6,498 1 -
$98.66$98.678023-0-200-290 Industrial Property - - 3,575
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-015 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-025 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-035 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-045 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-055 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-065 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-075 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-085 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-095 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-105 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-115 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-125 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-135 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-145 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-155 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-165 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-175 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-185 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-195 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-205 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-215 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-225 Condominium - 1 -
$71.10$71.105023-0-210-235 Condominium - 1 -

$3,150.34$3,150.357024-0-010-020 Commercial Property - - 59,329
$543.36$543.377024-0-010-090 Commercial Property - - 10,233
$796.50$796.507024-0-010-110 Commercial Property - - 15,000
$464.52$464.527024-0-020-010 Commercial Property - - 8,748
$339.94$339.957024-0-020-100 Commercial Property - - 6,402
$366.12$366.121024-0-031-020 Single Family Detached 94,089 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-031-030 Single Family Detached 103,237 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-031-060 Single Family Detached 85,377 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-031-070 Single Family Detached 94,525 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-031-150 Single Family Detached 255,822 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-031-160 Single Family Detached 203,300 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-031-170 Single Family Detached 19,707 1 -

Page 49 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$366.12$366.121024-0-031-180 Single Family Detached 48,869 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-033-020 Single Family Detached 175,546 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-033-040 Single Family Detached 71,438 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-033-070 Single Family Detached 110,642 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-033-100 Single Family Detached 105,850 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-033-130 Single Family Detached 135,471 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-033-150 Single Family Detached 132,422 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-033-160 Single Family Detached 41,817 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-033-170 Single Family Detached 43,124 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-033-180 Single Family Detached 43,124 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-033-230 Single Family Detached 94,960 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-033-240 Single Family Detached 53,578 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-042-040 Single Family Detached 125,017 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-071-085 Single Family Detached 22,331 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-071-095 Single Family Detached 22,331 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-071-105 Single Family Detached 22,331 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-072-015 Single Family Detached 19,762 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-025 Single Family Detached 39,525 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-035 Single Family Detached 22,088 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-072-055 Single Family Detached 347,173 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-155 Single Family Detached 36,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-072-245 Single Family Detached 18,400 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-265 Single Family Detached 23,275 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-072-305 Single Family Detached 20,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-335 Single Family Detached 26,500 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-072-345 Single Family Detached 47,916 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-072-385 Single Family Detached 17,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-072-395 Single Family Detached 17,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-072-445 Single Family Detached 18,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-465 Single Family Detached 26,136 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-475 Single Family Detached 26,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-072-485 Single Family Detached 20,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-072-505 Single Family Detached 18,000 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-525 Single Family Detached 26,500 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-535 Single Family Detached 26,500 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-545 Single Family Detached 26,136 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-555 Single Family Detached 26,500 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-565 Single Family Detached 24,910 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-072-705 Single Family Detached 57,020 1 -
$215.42$215.422024-0-072-715 Single Family Detached 26,789 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-120-025 Single Family Detached 278,348 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-120-045 Single Family Detached 213,880 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-120-055 Single Family Detached 232,175 1 -

$1,557.90$1,557.918024-0-120-105 Industrial Property - - 56,446
$1,349.80$1,349.818024-0-120-145 Industrial Property - - 48,906

$447.28$447.298024-0-120-155 Industrial Property - - 16,206

Page 50 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$444.64$444.648024-0-120-165 Industrial Property - - 16,110
$526.86$526.868024-0-120-175 Industrial Property - - 19,089
$775.64$775.648024-0-120-225 Industrial Property - - 28,103
$854.50$854.508024-0-120-285 Industrial Property - - 30,960

$1,352.30$1,352.307024-0-120-295 Commercial Property - - 25,467
$366.12$366.121024-0-131-015 Single Family Detached 194,278 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-131-025 Single Family Detached 206,039 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-131-035 Single Family Detached 165,528 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-131-045 Single Family Detached 165,092 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-131-055 Single Family Detached 163,350 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-131-065 Single Family Detached 168,577 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-132-015 Single Family Detached 104,544 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-132-025 Single Family Detached 153,767 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-132-035 Single Family Detached 148,540 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-132-045 Single Family Detached 157,687 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-132-055 Single Family Detached 144,619 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-132-065 Single Family Detached 152,024 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-132-075 Single Family Detached 106,722 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-133-015 Single Family Detached 104,108 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-133-025 Single Family Detached 106,286 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-133-035 Single Family Detached 137,214 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-133-045 Single Family Detached 132,422 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-133-055 Single Family Detached 119,354 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-133-065 Single Family Detached 130,680 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-133-075 Single Family Detached 121,097 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-141-015 Single Family Detached 94,525 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-141-025 Single Family Detached 91,912 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-141-035 Single Family Detached 99,752 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-141-045 Single Family Detached 107,158 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-141-055 Single Family Detached 128,938 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-141-065 Single Family Detached 118,483 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-142-015 Single Family Detached 159,430 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-142-025 Single Family Detached 184,259 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-142-035 Single Family Detached 140,699 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-142-045 Single Family Detached 147,233 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-142-055 Single Family Detached 129,373 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-142-065 Single Family Detached 170,755 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-142-085 Single Family Detached 168,577 1 -
$129.46$129.463024-0-142-110 Single Family Detached 14,086 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-143-015 Single Family Detached 92,783 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-143-025 Single Family Detached 104,544 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-143-035 Single Family Detached 99,317 1 -
$366.12$366.121024-0-143-045 Single Family Detached 105,851 1 -

$51.56$51.568024-0-151-015 Industrial Property - - 1,868
$32.46$32.468024-0-151-025 Industrial Property - - 1,176
$34.68$34.698024-0-151-035 Industrial Property - - 1,257

Page 51 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$41.40$41.408024-0-151-045 Industrial Property - - 1,500
$47.50$47.508024-0-151-055 Industrial Property - - 1,721
$48.46$48.478024-0-151-065 Industrial Property - - 1,756
$48.68$48.698024-0-151-075 Industrial Property - - 1,764
$38.96$38.978024-0-151-085 Industrial Property - - 1,412
$31.90$31.918024-0-151-095 Industrial Property - - 1,156
$34.74$34.758024-0-151-105 Industrial Property - - 1,259
$36.10$36.108024-0-151-115 Industrial Property - - 1,308

$175.02$175.027024-0-160-015 Commercial Property - - 3,296
$157.60$157.607024-0-160-025 Commercial Property - - 2,968
$152.28$152.297024-0-160-035 Commercial Property - - 2,868
$169.02$169.027024-0-160-045 Commercial Property - - 3,183
$142.10$142.107024-0-160-055 Commercial Property - - 2,676
$146.82$146.827024-0-160-065 Commercial Property - - 2,765
$119.48$119.487024-0-160-075 Commercial Property - - 2,250
$127.76$127.767024-0-160-085 Commercial Property - - 2,406
$215.42$215.422028-0-072-030 Single Family Detached 23,303 1 -
$366.12$366.121028-0-072-040 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-072-050 Single Family Detached 42,540 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-072-060 Single Family Detached 28,571 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-070 Single Family Detached 14,286 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-072-080 Single Family Detached 22,111 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-072-090 Single Family Detached 22,119 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-100 Single Family Detached 20,012 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-072-110 Single Family Detached 22,550 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-120 Single Family Detached 20,224 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-072-130 Single Family Detached 22,335 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-180 Single Family Detached 20,452 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-190 Single Family Detached 20,059 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-200 Single Family Detached 20,441 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-220 Single Family Detached 20,045 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-072-230 Single Family Detached 32,061 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-240 Single Family Detached 10,563 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-250 Single Family Detached 10,563 1 -

$83.84$83.844028-0-072-260 Single Family Detached 8,712 1 -
$952.30$952.307028-0-072-290 Commercial Property - - 17,934

$37.74$37.757028-0-072-300 Commercial Property - - 711
$1,054.74$1,054.747028-0-072-310 Commercial Property - - 19,863

$215.42$215.422028-0-072-340 Single Family Detached 22,531 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-350 Single Family Detached 20,026 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-360 Single Family Detached 20,495 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-370 Single Family Detached 20,014 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-390 Single Family Detached 20,003 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-400 Single Family Detached 20,503 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-410 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-420 Single Family Detached 10,297 1 -

Page 52 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$129.46$129.463028-0-072-430 Single Family Detached 20,248 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-072-440 Single Family Detached 20,248 1 -
$246.76$246.767028-0-072-460 Commercial Property - - 4,647
$863.62$863.627028-0-073-010 Commercial Property - - 16,264

$1,054.74$1,054.747028-0-073-040 Commercial Property - - 19,863
$215.42$215.422028-0-080-020 Single Family Detached 30,106 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-080-030 Single Family Detached 13,452 1 -
$241.92$241.926028-0-080-040 Multifamily Attached - 4 -
$366.12$366.121028-0-080-070 Single Family Detached 130,680 1 -
$366.12$366.121028-0-080-100 Single Family Detached 43,701 1 -
$366.12$366.121028-0-080-110 Single Family Detached 80,009 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-080-120 Single Family Detached 41,382 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-080-130 Single Family Detached 41,382 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-091-040 Single Family Detached 35,828 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-091-090 Single Family Detached 32,932 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-091-100 Single Family Detached 35,454 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-092-040 Single Family Detached 42,312 1 -
$366.12$366.121028-0-092-070 Single Family Detached 87,120 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-092-080 Single Family Detached 38,166 1 -
$215.42$215.422028-0-100-080 Single Family Detached 41,347 1 -
$366.12$366.121028-0-100-090 Single Family Detached 43,560 1 -
$366.12$366.121028-0-100-100 Single Family Detached 48,787 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-100-120 Single Family Detached 20,318 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-100-130 Single Family Detached 20,404 1 -

$1,098.36$1,098.361028-0-100-140 Single Family Detached 260,053 3 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-151-035 Single Family Detached 2,178 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-151-045 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-151-055 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-151-065 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-125 Single Family Detached 4,463 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-135 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-145 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-155 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-165 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-175 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-185 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-195 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-205 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-215 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-225 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-235 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-245 Single Family Detached 5,227 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-255 Single Family Detached 6,098 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-265 Single Family Detached 6,969 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-275 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-285 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -

Page 53 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844028-0-152-295 Single Family Detached 3,484 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-305 Single Family Detached 2,178 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-315 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-325 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-152-335 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-185 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-195 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-205 Single Family Detached 5,227 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-215 Single Family Detached 3,484 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-225 Single Family Detached 4,791 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-235 Single Family Detached 2,613 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-245 Single Family Detached 2,613 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-255 Single Family Detached 6,098 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-265 Single Family Detached 3,484 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-275 Single Family Detached 4,791 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-285 Single Family Detached 6,098 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-295 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-305 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-315 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-325 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-335 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-345 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-355 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-365 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-375 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-385 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-395 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-405 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-415 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-425 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-435 Single Family Detached 1,742 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-445 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-455 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-465 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-475 Single Family Detached 6,098 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-485 Single Family Detached 5,227 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-495 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-505 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-153-515 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-095 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-105 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-115 Single Family Detached 3,484 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-125 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-135 Single Family Detached 2,178 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-145 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-155 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -

Page 54 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$83.84$83.844028-0-154-165 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-175 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-185 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-195 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-205 Single Family Detached 2,613 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-215 Single Family Detached 5,227 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-225 Single Family Detached 7,840 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-235 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-154-245 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-155-055 Single Family Detached 6,534 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-155-065 Single Family Detached 4,356 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-155-075 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-155-085 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-155-095 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-155-105 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-155-115 Single Family Detached 3,920 1 -
$83.84$83.844028-0-155-125 Single Family Detached 4,791 1 -

$129.46$129.463028-0-161-015 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-025 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-035 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-045 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-055 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-065 Single Family Detached 11,219 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-075 Single Family Detached 20,468 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-085 Single Family Detached 11,778 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-095 Single Family Detached 10,101 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-105 Single Family Detached 10,006 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-115 Single Family Detached 10,006 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-125 Single Family Detached 10,006 1 -
$181.60$181.607028-0-161-135 Commercial Property - - 3,420
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-145 Single Family Detached 13,514 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-155 Single Family Detached 10,650 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-165 Single Family Detached 10,516 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-175 Single Family Detached 10,545 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-161-185 Single Family Detached 10,021 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-015 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-025 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-035 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-045 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-055 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-065 Single Family Detached 10,076 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-075 Single Family Detached 10,240 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-085 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-095 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-105 Single Family Detached 10,350 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-115 Single Family Detached 10,359 1 -

Page 55 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$129.46$129.463028-0-162-125 Single Family Detached 12,023 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-135 Single Family Detached 15,828 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-145 Single Family Detached 13,266 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-162-155 Single Family Detached 10,911 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-010 Single Family Detached 10,780 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-020 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-030 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-040 Single Family Detached 10,613 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-050 Single Family Detached 10,463 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-060 Single Family Detached 10,459 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-070 Single Family Detached 10,580 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-080 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-090 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-100 Single Family Detached 10,914 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-110 Single Family Detached 10,914 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-120 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-130 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-140 Single Family Detached 10,555 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-150 Single Family Detached 10,463 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-160 Single Family Detached 10,459 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-170 Single Family Detached 10,522 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-180 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-190 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-200 Single Family Detached 10,914 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-210 Single Family Detached 10,685 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-220 Single Family Detached 10,135 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-230 Single Family Detached 10,019 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-240 Single Family Detached 10,292 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-250 Single Family Detached 15,017 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-260 Single Family Detached 10,309 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-270 Single Family Detached 10,069 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-171-280 Single Family Detached 10,701 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-010 Single Family Detached 10,161 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-020 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-030 Single Family Detached 12,370 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-040 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-050 Single Family Detached 10,066 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-060 Single Family Detached 10,114 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-070 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-080 Single Family Detached 10,911 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-090 Single Family Detached 12,320 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-100 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-110 Single Family Detached 10,053 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-120 Single Family Detached 10,787 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-130 Single Family Detached 12,314 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-140 Single Family Detached 10,911 1 -

Page 56 of 57



Exhibit 1

Casitas Municipal Water District
Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai)

Actual 
Special Tax

Assessor's
Parcel

Number

No. of 
Residential

Units
Maximum

Special Tax
Tax

Class
Building

Sq. Ft.

Parcel
Square
FootageDescription

$129.46$129.463028-0-172-150 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-172-160 Single Family Detached 10,114 1 -
$366.12$366.121028-0-173-010 Single Family Detached 67,500 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-020 Single Family Detached 11,988 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-030 Single Family Detached 12,003 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-040 Single Family Detached 12,019 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-050 Single Family Detached 12,034 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-060 Single Family Detached 12,050 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-070 Single Family Detached 11,698 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-080 Single Family Detached 10,066 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-090 Single Family Detached 10,014 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-100 Single Family Detached 15,210 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-110 Single Family Detached 15,442 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-120 Single Family Detached 10,004 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-130 Single Family Detached 10,000 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-173-140 Single Family Detached 10,013 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-181-065 Single Family Detached 11,970 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-181-075 Single Family Detached 10,002 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-181-085 Single Family Detached 10,003 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-181-095 Single Family Detached 12,508 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-181-105 Single Family Detached 12,493 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-181-115 Single Family Detached 10,143 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-181-125 Single Family Detached 10,001 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-182-015 Single Family Detached 10,001 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-182-025 Single Family Detached 10,001 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-182-035 Single Family Detached 10,040 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-182-045 Single Family Detached 10,043 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-182-055 Single Family Detached 10,002 1 -
$129.46$129.463028-0-182-065 Single Family Detached 10,002 1 -

Totals:

6/15/2016

2,937 $469,616.08

Percentage Levy of Maximum Special Tax: 100.00%

$469,617.10

Printed:

Page 57 of 57



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE: Letter of Support for the Ventura County Watershed Protection District’s 
Funding Application to the Prop 1 Watershed Grant Program – Matilija Dam 
Removal 65 % Design Planning Project. 

Date:   June 16, 2016 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize and direct the General Manager to 
sign a letter of support for the Ventura County Watershed Protection District’s grant funding 
application. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
Casitas has been informed that the Ventura County Watershed Protection District (VCWPD) 
is pursuing a grant from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Prop 1 Watershed 
Grant Program, to partially fund the 65 % level design of the Matilija Dam decommissioning 
project.  The approximate funding request is $3 million to prepare 65 percent design of the 
Matilija Dam decommissioning project.   
 
This project includes a dam removal feasibility study, independent technical review, dam 
removal 30% and 65%  design, reevaluation of downstream flood mitigations, update of the 
Real Estate Plan, a water supply mitigation feasibility study, CEQA/NEPA permitting, a 
project permitting plan, and associated design oversight and stakeholder meeting to develop 
further information and detail on the future implementation of the Matilija Dam removal which 
will provide long-term (>25 years) resiliency throughout the watershed. 
 
VCWPD has requested a letter of support from Casitas that will be a part of the application.  It 
seems appropriate that Casitas would support the VCWPD in their efforts to move this project 
forward.  A draft letter is attached to this memorandum for consideration of authorizing the 
General Manager to sign the letter.  Time is of the essence, the VCWPD is filing its 
application very near the June 22nd date of the Casitas Board meeting. 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
June 22, 2016 
 
 
Charlton H. Bonham, Director 
Department of Fish and Wildlife 
1416 9th Street, 12th Floor 
Sacramento, CS 95814 
 
Re:  Ventura County Watershed Protection District’s Request from CDFW Prop 1 

Watershed Restoration Grant Program for Matilija Dam Removal 65% Design 
Planning Project 

 
Director Bonham, 
 
The Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas) is submitting this letter in support of the 
Ventura County Watershed Protection District’s (VCWPD) grant application for the 
Matilija Dam Removal 65% Design Planning Project.  Casitas strongly believes that 
the proposed project will meet at least three of the four priorities for CDFW’s Prop 1 
Grant Solicitation; 1) Manage Headwaters for Multiple Benefits, 2) Protect and Restore 
Anadromous Fish Habitat, and 3) Protect and Restore Coastal Wetland Ecosystems.  
Most importantly, the Project has been through an intensive review process and has 
received consensus support by State and local agencies, non-profit organizations, and 
the general public. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Steven E. Wickstrum 
General Manager 

 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes 

 
 
DATE:  June 15, 2016 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of June 10, 2016 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.      Directors Peter Kaiser and Russ Baggerly 
   Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
   Ron Merckling, Resources Manager 
     
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.    

Director Baggerly requested that the noise complaint at Ojai 4(M) Pump Plant be brought 
to the Board as soon as possible. 
 
Director Baggerly requested staff to move a letter of support for the Ventura County 
Watershed Protection District’s efforts to seek grant funding for the design of the Matilija 
Dam removal.  The General Manager had received the request for the letter of support 
and will move this item forward to the Board. 

 
4. Discussion regarding Board Workshop on Water Supply Contingency Planning 

and Analysis. 
The Committee discussed the purpose, timing and content of such a meeting.  
Committee directed staff to prepare an agenda outline for the workshop that is to be 
reviewed at the next Executive Committee meeting. 
  

5. Discussion regarding Cyber Security. 
The Committee discussed in general terms the threats and defenses that the District has 
to protect its computer systems.  No action to report.  
 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Finance Committee 

 
DATE:    June 17, 2016 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:    Finance Committee Meeting of June 17, 2016, at 0930 hours 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Peter Kaiser and Director Mary Bergen  
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Accounting Manager/Treasurer, Denise Collin 
 Assistant to the General Manager, Rebekah Vieira 
 

2. Public Comments.   
None. 
 

3. Board/Management comments.  
None. 
 

4. Review of the Workers’ Compensation Renewal. 
Rebekah Vieira reported to the Committee that she has received several proposals for Workers’ 
Comp coverage and compared full coverage to the current $125,000 self-insured retention that is 
currently in place.  The recommendation is to stay with current coverage at a reduced annual fee. 
There is a need to receive approve of this item before July 1, 2016.  This item will move forward 
to the Board. 
    

5. Statement of Work with Ernst & Young, LLP for the State Water Project. 
The Statement of Work is an annual cost for auditing services that are applied to the State Water 
Project.  This item will move forward to the Board. 
 

6. Cost change order from the Upper Ventura River Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Formation Committee. 
A change order is being processed by the Formation Committee and equally shared by the five 
agencies.  The change order is a result of additional and unanticipated costs that are associated 
with attorney work in the formation documents and geotechnical work involved in the basin 
boundary adjustments. This item will move to the Board upon receipt of the invoice for the 
change order work. 
 

7. Review of the proposed Fiscal Year 2016/17 Budget. 
The Committee reviewed the proposed “Board Approved” FY 2016-17 Budget and the changes 
that are recommended by the General Manager.  The Committee reviewed the recommended 
changes and carry-over of project costs to the expense and capital budgets.  Further discussion 
was provided concerning moving forward expediently to have a water rate study performed for the 
District.  The Committee is moving the FY 2016-17 Budget to the Board for a public hearing and 
adoption of the Budget. 
 

8. Review of the Financial Statement for April 2016. 
The Committee reviewed the financial statement and discussed revenue, expenses, overtime 



 2 

costs and allocation penalty charges that have been collected to date. 
  

9. Review of the Water Consumption for April 2016. 
The Committee reviewed the water consumption numbers for April 2016.     
 

10. Review of the FY 2016/17 Appropriations Limit – Prop 4. 
Denise Collin presented the approximate amount of tax revenue ($2 million) to be collected and 
compared that value to the Prop 4 appropriations limit of approximately $12 million.  The district’s 
tax collection will not exceed the Prop 4 Appropriations limit.  This item will be moved to the 
Board. 

 



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

06/15/16

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

Federal Farm CR Bank 31331VWN2 4/13/2026 $938,237 $922,979 1.901% 5/9/2016 4.72% 3538

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $854,602 $847,409 2.790% 3/28/2016 4.33% 3504

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFNR4 11/18/2024 $808,881 $804,304 2.870% 11/18/2015 4.11% 3033

Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,015,823 $1,010,100 3.000% 3/24/2016 5.17% 3833

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 33133EFHV2 10/13/2022 $588,204 $580,916 2.200% 10/23/2015 2.97% 2278

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381TA3 1/17/2023 $277,619 $285,000 2.240% 9/8/2014 1.46% 2372

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,369,823 $1,376,568 1.625% 10/3/2012 7.04% 1079

Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A0EN6 12/10/2021 $546,904 $539,055 1.107% 5/9/2016 2.76% 1975

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $771,936 $771,843 2.875% 2/19/2016 3.95% 3238

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OA98 8/14/2024 $126,966 $132,001 2.500% 7/3/2014 0.67% 2939

676633 Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 6/11/2021 $671,331 $676,973 5.625% 1/16/2013 3.46% 1796

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G43A4 10/30/2024 $849,441 $885,195 2.500% 7/3/2014 4.53% 3015

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 1/13/2022 $677,933 $698,860 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.57% 2008

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,052,581 $1,061,990 5.125% 1/3/2012 5.43% 512

*TB Federal National Assn 3136G0K67 4/9/2021 $192,000 $192,198 2.000% 12/2/2014 0.98% 1734

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $684,240 $685,397 1.375% 3/12/2012 3.50% 150

Federal National Assn 31315P2J7 5/1/2024 $808,971 $801,778 1.721% 5/1/2016 4.10% 2836

Federal National Assn 3135G0ZR7 9/6/2024 $1,487,468 $1,486,275 2.625% 5/25/2016 7.60% 2961

Federal National Assn 3135G0K36 4/24/2026 $2,532,772 $2,543,650 2.125% 5/25/2016 13.01% 3549

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 7/15/2018 $1,118,584 $1,160,947 1.375% 7/6/2010 5.94% 750

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF4 1/15/2020 $1,116,487 $1,176,762 1.375% 11/18/2015 6.02% 1290

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $768,895 $836,267 2.750% 12/13/2013 4.28% 2670

Accrued Interest $80,072

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $19,259,698 $19,556,539 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $448 $448 0.46% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,854 $2,848 0.50% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $19,263,000 $19,559,835 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $19,322,201 $19,413,245

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $21,209,477 $21,337,340

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $4,891,058 $4,891,058

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $2,075 $2,075 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $24,156,133 $24,452,968

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $24,012,120 $24,139,982

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	6-22-16 Agenda
	6-08-16 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	June 8, 2016

	6-06-16 Ethics Training Minutes
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Special Meeting Held
	June 6, 2016

	2016 Work Comp Insurance memo
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	Inter-Office Memorandum
	FROM:  Assistant to General Manager, Rebekah Vieira
	URECOMMENDATION:

	CAMWD_1617_EWC_Proposal (1)
	Ernst & Young
	bill list
	Board Report UWMP 2016
	Reso uwmp 2016
	Casitas MWD-2016 UWMP-AWMP-Final--6-15-2016-all
	Recommended Budget Memo 06 17 2016
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	Inter-Office Memorandum
	FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider public comment and move to adopt the FY 2016-17 Budget during the regular meeting of the Board of Directors on June 22, 2016.
	UBACKGROUND:

	Resolution Adopting Final General Fund Budget 2016-2017
	Revenue - Expense Summary 2016-17 Current Rates
	Revenue - 2016-17 Current Rates - Board Approved
	Proposed Capital Projects - 2016-17
	Reserves 2015-16
	Budget - Board Approved 2016-17 (1)
	Resolution for Tax Rate State Water 2016-2017
	CERTIFICATE

	Resolution for Prop 4 - 2016-2017
	Resolution CFD-2013-1 2016-2017
	Support letter for VCWPD Grant Application 06 22 2016
	MEMORANDUM

	Executive Minutes  06 10 2016
	Fin Minutes 06 17 2016
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Investment Report 06-15-16

	NAME: 
	ACCOUNT NO: 
	Email: 
	Daytime Phone: 
	Evening Phone: 
	Mailing Address if different from service address: 
	Check Box6: Off
	Text7: 
	PRINT NAME: 


